
Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
 

 
DATE:   Wednesday, April 19, 2023  
TIME:     11:30 A.M.   
   

THIS MEETING WILL CONTINUE TO BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY AS 
PERMITTED UNDER THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ FEBRUARY 7, 2023, 
ORDER SUSPENDING THE APPLICATION OF BOARD POLICY 3.055 UNTIL 

JUNE 30, 2023 
 

TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CALL AS FOLLOWS: 
DIAL-IN NUMBER: 1 (323) 776-6996 

CONFERENCE ID: 322130288#    
MS Teams link (Ctrl+Click to Follow Link) 

 
AGENDA 

 

Members of the Public may address the Health and Mental Health Services Meeting 
on any agenda item.  Two (2) minutes are allowed for each item. 

 
THIS TELECONFERENCE WILL BE MUTED FOR ALL CALLERS. PLEASE DIAL *6 

TO UNMUTE YOUR PHONE WHEN IT IS YOUR TIME TO SPEAK. 

 
1:00 P.M.- NOTICE OF CLOSED SESSION 
CS-1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Government Code Section 54956.9(a)  
Jacqueline Cothran, et al. v. County of Los Angeles, et al. 
United States District Court Case No. 2:21-cv-02882 

Department of Health Services 

Sheriff’s Department 

 
I. Call to order 

 
II. Information Item(s) (Any Information Item is subject to discussion and/or 

presentation at the request of two or more Board offices): 
 

a. DHS: Request to Accept Compromise Offer of Settlement for patient seen 
under the Trauma Center Service Agreement 
 

b. DHS: Authorize the Sole Source Acquisition of Various Radiology 
Equipment for LAC+USC Medical Center 

 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Fesia A. Davenport 

HEALTH AND MENTAL HEALTH CLUSTER 
AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDYyNmM5OWUtNjUxMy00Mjc0LWIxNDktZDBkYmM5NWVjZWMz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2207597248-ea38-451b-8abe-a638eddbac81%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22aee854e8-3749-4ed3-b719-eea46c7d7ba0%22%7d


 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

c. DPH: Approval to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the Los 

Angeles County Office of Education and Agency Agreement Number 

230315 with the Tulare County Superintendent of Schools to Support the 

Friday Night Live Programs (All Supervisorial Districts) (3 Votes) (#06817) 

 

III. Presentation Item(s): 
 

a. DPH: Authorization to Accept and Sign Grant Agreement Number 22-

10885 and Future Agreements and/or Amendments from the California 

Department of Public Health for the Syphilis Outbreak Strategy Project 

(All Supervisorial Districts) (3 Votes) (#06894) 

 

b. DMH: Adopt the Department of Mental Health’s Mental Health Services 

Act Revised Annual Update for Fiscal Year 2022-23 

 

c. DMH/LACDA: Request for Approval of Interim Ordinance Authority for 

Department of Mental Health (DMH) to Add and Fill Six (6) Positions to 

Perform the Required Activities and Functions to Implement the 

Community Care Expansion (CCE) Preservation Program and Approval 

for Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) to Sign and 

Execute Necessary Agreements to Administer and Implement the CCE 

Preservation Program – Capital Projects (CP) Component 

 

d. CEO: Approval of New Board Policy – Automated External Defibrillators 
(AEDs) For Employee and Public Use and Hands-only Cardiopulmonary 
Resuscitation (CPR) and AEDs Usage Training for Employees 

 
IV. Items Continued from a Previous Meeting of the Board of Supervisors or from the 

Previous Agenda Review Meeting 
 

V. Items not on the posted agenda for matters requiring immediate action because of an 
emergency situation, or where the need to take immediate action came to the attention 
of the Department subsequent to the posting of the agenda 

 
VI. Public Comment 

      
VII. Adjournment  

 



BOARD LETTER/MEMO 
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

 Board Letter    Board Memo  Other 

CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/19/2023 

BOARD MEETING DATE 5/2/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 
AFFECTED   All     1st      2nd        3rd   4th      5th   

DEPARTMENT(S) Department of Health Services (DHS) 
SUBJECT REQUEST TO ACCEPT COMPROMISE OFFER OF SETTLEMENT FOR  

PATIENT SEEN UNDER THE TRAUMA CENTER SERVICE AGREEMENT. 
PROGRAM Health Services 
AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT   Yes     No  

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT   Yes     No  
If Yes, please explain why:  

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS Not Applicable 

COST & FUNDING Total cost: 
$0.00 

Funding source: 
Not Applicable 

TERMS (if applicable): Not Applicable 

Explanation: 
There is no net cost to the County 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST Requesting Board approval for the acceptance of a compromise offer of 
settlement for a patient account that is unable to be paid in full. The payment 
will replenish the Los Angeles County Trauma Funds. 

The Board is being asked to authorize the Director, or designee, to accept the 
attached compromise offer of settlement, pursuant to Section 1473 of the 
Health and Safety Code. This will expedite the County's recovery of revenue 
totaling $75,000.00 for medical care provided at Harbor UCLA MC. 

BACKGROUND 
(include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

The acceptance of the attached compromise settlement will help maximize net 
revenues and will help DHS meet its' budgeted revenue amounts. 

EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how: 

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how: 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email: 
DHS, Virginia Perez, Associate Hospital Administrator II, (626) 525-6077 
virperez@dhs.lacounty.gov 
County Counsel, Kelly Hassel, Deputy County Counsel, (213) 974-1803 
khassel@counsel.lacounty.gov 



  
DRAFT 

May 2, 2023 
 
 
                 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
 
Dear Supervisors: 
 
 
 

REQUEST TO ACCEPT COMPROMISE OFFER OF SETTLEMENT 
FOR PATIENT SEEN UNDER THE  

TRAUMA CENTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS) 

(3 VOTES) 
 
 

 
SUBJECT 
 
To request Board approval for the Director of Health Services (DHS), or designee, to 
accept a compromise offer of settlement for a patient who received medical care at either 
a Los Angeles County (LA County) facility and/or at a non-LA County operated facility 
under the Trauma Center Service Agreement.  The compromise offer of settlement 
referenced below is not within the Director of DHS’ authority to accept. 
 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD: 
 
Authorize the Director of DHS, or designee, to accept the attached compromise offer of 
settlement, pursuant to Section 1473 of the Health and Safety Code, for the following 
individual account: 
 
Patient who received medical care at an LACounty facility: 

 
• Harbor- UCLA Medical Center – Account Number 101720869 in the amount of 

$75,000.00 
 
 
 
 



 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
April 18, 2023 
Page 2 
 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The compromise offer of settlement for this patient account is recommended because the 
patient is unable to pay the full amount of charges and the compromise offer represents 
the maximum amount DHS was able to negotiate or was offered. 
 
It is in the best interest of LA County to approve the acceptance of the compromise offer, 
as it will enable DHS to maximize net revenue on this account. 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS 
 
The recommended action will support Strategy III.3 “Pursue for Operational Effectiveness, 
Fiscal Responsibility, and Accountability” of the LA County’s Strategic Plan. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING 
 
The approval will recover revenue totaling $75,000.00 in charges. 
 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
Under LA County Code Chapter Section 2.76.046, the Director of DHS, or designee, has 
the authority to reduce patient account liabilities by the greater of i) $15,000, or ii) $75,000 
or 50% of the account balance, whichever is less.  Any reduction exceeding the Director of 
DHS’, or designee’s, authority requires Board approval. 
 
On January 15, 2002, the Board adopted an ordinance granting the Director of DHS, or 
designee, authority to compromise or reduce patient account liabilities when it is in the best 
interest of LA County to do so.     
 
On November 1, 2005, the Board approved a revised ordinance granting the Director of 
DHS, or designee, authority to reduce, on an account specific basis, the amount of any 
liability owed to LA County which relates to medical care provided by third parties for which 
LA County is contractually obligated to pay and related to which LA County has subrogation 
or reimbursement rights.  The revised ordinance was adopted by the Board on December 
8, 2005.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
April 18, 2023 
Page 3 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 
 
Maximizing net revenues on patients who received medical care at LA County facilities will 
help DHS meet its budgeted revenue amounts. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Christina R. Ghaly, M.D.  
Director   

 
CRG:RS:VP 

 
Enclosures  
 
c: Chief Executive Office 
 County Counsel         
 Executive Office, Board of Supervisors 
 
 



                          
Attachment I 

 
 
 
 

DATA FOR COMPROMISE SETTLEMENT 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES 
TRANSMITTAL 23-04-A 
 

Amount of Aid $597,255.00 
 Account  
 Number 101720869 

 
Amount Paid $0.00  Name  Adult Male 

Balance Due $597,255.00 
 Service  
 Date 11/20/19 – 12/17/19 

Compromise 
Amount Offered $75,000.00  Facility Harbor -UCLA Medical Center 
Amount to be 
Written Off $522,255.00 

 Service  
 Type Inpatient 

 
JUSTIFICATION 

 
The patient was treated at Harbor- UCLA Medical Center at a total cost of $597,255.00. 
The patient has a total of $2,934,747.35 in medical bills and attorney fees. 
 
The attorney has settled the case in the amount of $1,000,000.00. Due to the low recovery 
and the insufficient funds to fully satisfy all liens and fees the attorney proposes the 
following disbursement: 

 
  
Disbursements 

  
Total Claim 

Proposed 
Settlement 

Percent of 
Settlement 

Attorney Fees $333,333.33 $333,333.33 33.33% 
Attorney Cost $14,873.30 $14,873.30 1.49% 
Other lien holders $1,989,285.72 $225,158.11 22.52% 
Los Angeles Department of Health 
Services (Harbor- UCLA MC) $597,255.00 $75,000.00          7.50% 
Net to Client (Heirs) $0.00 $351,635.26 35.16% 
Total $2,934,747.35 $1,000,000.00 100.00% 

 



BOARD LETTER/MEMO  
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

 
 

  Board Letter                                     Board Memo                                             Other 
 

CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/19/2023 

BOARD MEETING DATE 5/2/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 
AFFECTED 

 
  All         1st       2nd        3rd       4th      5th          

DEPARTMENT(S) Health Services 

SUBJECT Authorize the Sole Source Acquisition of various Radiology Equipment for the 
LAC+USC Medical Center 

PROGRAM N/A 

AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT   Yes            No   

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT   Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain why:  

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS 

N/A 

COST & FUNDING Total cost: 
$7,432,000 

Funding source: 
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Final Budget 

TERMS (if applicable): N/A    

Explanation:  

PURPOSE OF REQUEST Authorize the Director of the Internal Services Department, as the County’s Purchasing 
Agent, to proceed with the sole source acquisition of various radiology equipment from 
Siemens Medical Solutions USA, Inc. for the Department of Health Services’ LAC+USC 
Medical Center (LAC+USC MC), with a total estimated cost of $7,432,000. 

BACKGROUND 
(include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

 
This acquisition will allow DHS to continue its acquisition strategy to standardize, 
replace, and update existing radiology equipment.  Also, this acquisition will allow 
LAC+USC MC to replace end of life angiography (Interventional Radiology) equipment 
and radiography and fluoroscopy (RF) equipment. 
 
On February 5, 2013, the Board of Supervisors instructed the DHS Director to report 
back within 30 days on protocols for prioritizing medical equipment purchases, 
maintenance and replacement throughout all of its facilities.  On March 5, 2013, the 
Director provided his report to the Board, which described the criteria used to determine 
the priority and timing for replacement of medical equipment at all DHS facilities.  
Beginning in FY 2013-14, the Department established a $10 million ongoing revolving 
fund to purchase and install the radiology equipment and make the necessary room 
alterations required to accommodate such equipment throughout DHS.  DHS 
subsequently convened a group of subject matter expert radiologists and supply chain 
staff to assess DHS patient care needs for the future and thoroughly review available 
imaging technology in an effort to standardize imaging care across DHS, which will also 
provide the opportunity for group purchasing discounts; and ensure consistent 
integration with the Online Realtime Centralized Health Information Database system 
(ORCHID, formerly referred to as the Electronic Health Record Information System).  



This group has approved the use of these radiology funds to purchase the recommended 
radiology equipment for LAC+USC MC. 
 
Radiography and Fluoroscopy Equipment 
DHS intends to purchase the proprietary digital radiology equipment from Siemens to 
meet the RF imaging needs for LAC+USC MC. The Supply Chain Operations Value 
Analysis (SCOVA) Radiology Committee reviewed RF equipment from four major 
vendors (GE, Siemens, Toshiba and Philips).  Siemens RF equipment was the selected 
equipment based on a standardized evaluation process that considered: a) cost; b) 
image quality; c) desired functions; and d) compatibility and interoperability with DHS 
enterprise-wide computer network for digitized radiologic images and reports. Alternate 
factors taken into account for this selection were the ability to meet facility specific 
minimum space requirements. RF is used to diagnose and determine the extent of a 
variety of diseases, including gastrointestinal obstruction, cancer, infertility and certain 
joint diseases, as well as to diagnose speech pathology. 
 
Interventional Radiology Equipment 
DHS plans to purchase the Interventional Radiology equipment from Siemens for 
LAC+USC MC.  This equipment will be utilized to perform a variety of interventional 
radiology procedures, to both diagnose and treat a wide spectrum of medical conditions. 
Siemens is the only system that allows imaging from any allowable table position, to both 
increase patient comfort and accommodate those who cannot lie in a perfectly horizontal 
position.  This feature is critical to allow radiologists to properly position difficult patients 
and perform interventional therapeutic procedures not feasible on other vendor units. 
The equipment is also the only system that allows 3D imaging for large fields of view. 
3D imaging increases the accuracy of diagnosis and treatment planning for 
interventional radiology procedures. 
 
The establishment of the capital project for the necessary room alterations to 
accommodate the equipment will be submitted for the Board’s approval via a separate 
Board letter, and related appropriation adjustment, at a future date. 

EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how: Acquisition and replacement of the aforementioned 
equipment will maintain service parity across the DHS. 
  
 

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES  

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how:  
 
Board Priority #2: Health Integration/ Alliance for Health Integration –Replace end-of-life 
imaging equipment that is key to maintaining standard of care practices for the County’s 
residents and patients. 
 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email:  
DHS - Jason Ginsberg, Chief of Supply Chain Operations, (323) 914-7926, 
jginsberg@dhs.lacounty.gov;  
DHS – Daniel Amaya, Administrator, (323) 409-7291, damaya@dhs.lacounty.gov;  
County Counsel- Kelly Hassel, khassel@counsel.lacounty.gov, (213) 974-1803 

 



 
 

May 02, 2023 
DRAFT 

DHS Letterhead 
 

The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
Dear Supervisors: 
 

AUTHORIZE THE SOLE SOURCE ACQUISITION OF VARIOUS RADIOLOGY 
EQUIPMENT FOR LAC+USC MEDICAL CENTER 

 (SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 1) 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

(3 VOTES)  
 

 
SUBJECT 
 
Authorize the Director of the Internal Services Department (ISD), as the Los Angeles 
County (LA County) Purchasing Agent, to proceed with the sole source acquisition of 
various radiology equipment with a purchase cost in excess of $250,000 for the 
Department of Health Services’ (DHS) LAC+USC Medical Center (LAC+USC MC). 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD: 
 
Authorize the Director of ISD, as the LA County’s Purchasing Agent, to proceed with the 
sole source acquisition of various radiology equipment from Siemens Medical Solutions 
USA, Inc. (Siemens) for the DHS LAC+USC MC, with a total estimated cost of 
$7,432,000. 
 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION  
 
Approval of the recommended action will authorize ISD, as the LA County’s Purchasing 
Agent, to proceed with the sole source acquisition of various radiology equipment with 
a total estimated cost of $7,432,000 detailed in Attachment A for LAC+USC MC, 
allowing DHS to continue its acquisition strategy to standardize, replace, and update 
existing radiology equipment.  This acquisition will allow LAC+USC MC to replace end 
of life angiography (Interventional Radiology) equipment and Radiography and 
Fluoroscopy (RF) equipment. 
 
On February 5, 2013, the Board of Supervisors (Board) instructed the Director of DHS 
to report back within 30 days on protocols for prioritizing medical equipment purchases, 
maintenance, and replacement throughout all of its facilities. On March 5, 2013, the 



 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
May 2, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Director of DHS provided the report to the Board, which described the criteria used to 
determine the priority and timing for replacement of the medical equipment at all DHS 
facilities.  Beginning in Fiscal Year (FY) 2013-14, DHS established a $10 million ongoing 
revolving fund to purchase and install the radiology equipment and make the necessary 
room alterations required to accommodate such equipment throughout DHS.  DHS 
subsequently convened a group of subject matter expert radiologists and supply chain 
staff to assess DHS patient care needs for the future and thoroughly review available 
imaging technology in an effort to standardize imaging care across DHS, which will also 
provide the opportunity for group purchasing discounts, and ensure consistent 
integration with the Online Realtime Centralized Health Information Database system 
(ORCHID, formerly referred to as the Electronic Health Record Information System). 
This group has approved the use of these radiology funds to purchase the 
recommended radiology equipment for LAC+USC MC identified in Attachment A. 
 
RF Equipment 
 
DHS intends to purchase the proprietary digital radiology equipment from Siemens to 
meet the RF imaging needs for LAC+USC MC. The Supply Chain Operations Value 
Analysis (SCOVA) Radiology Committee reviewed RF equipment from four major 
vendors (GE, Siemens, Toshiba, and Philips).  Siemens RF equipment was the selected 
equipment based on a standardized evaluation process that considered: a) cost; b) 
image quality; c) desired functions; and d) compatibility and interoperability with DHS 
enterprise-wide computer network for digitized radiologic images and reports.  Alternate 
factors taken into account for this selection were the ability to meet facility specific 
minimum space requirements.  RF is used to diagnose and determine the extent of a 
variety of diseases, including gastrointestinal obstruction, cancer, infertility, and certain 
joint diseases, as well as to diagnose speech pathology. 
 
Interventional Radiology Equipment 
 
DHS plans to purchase the Interventional Radiology equipment from Siemens for 
LAC+USC MC.  This equipment will be utilized to perform a variety of interventional 
radiology procedures, to both diagnose and treat a wide spectrum of medical conditions. 
Siemens is the only system that allows imaging from any allowable table position to both 
increase patient comfort and accommodate those who cannot lie in a perfectly horizontal 
position.  This feature is critical to allow radiologists to properly position difficult patients 
and perform interventional therapeutic procedures not feasible on other vendor units. 
The equipment is also the only system that allows 3D imaging for large fields of view. 
3D imaging increases the accuracy of diagnosis and treatment planning for 
interventional radiology procedures. 
 
The establishment of the capital project for the necessary room alterations to 
accommodate the equipment will be submitted for the Board’s approval via a separate 
Board letter, and related appropriation adjustment, at a future date. 
 



 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
May 2, 2023 
Page 3 
 
Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals 
 
This recommendation supports Goal II.2 “Support the Wellness of Our Communities” 
and III.3, “Pursue Operational Effectiveness, Fiscal Responsibility and Accountability” of 
the County Strategic Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING  
 
The total estimated cost is approximately $7,432,000. The estimated acquisition cost 
includes the equipment, twelve-month service warranty, freight, and tax. Funding is 
included in the FY 2022-23 Final Budget. 
 
Operating Budget Impact 
 
DHS will request and fund the associated ongoing annual maintenance, as needed, 
with departmental resources in future budget phases. There is no net LA County cost 
impact associated with the recommendation. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
On October 16, 2001, the Board approved the classification categories for fixed assets 
and new requirements for major fixed asset (now referred to as capital asset) 
acquisitions requiring LA County departments to obtain Board approval to acquire or 
finance equipment with a unit cost of $250,000 or greater prior to submitting their 
requisition to ISD. 
 
CONTRACTING PROCESS 
 
The acquisition of equipment falls under the statutory authority of the LA County 
Purchasing Agent and will be accomplished in accordance with LA County’s purchasing 
policies and procedures for sole source purchases. 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 
 
Approval of the recommendation will allow LAC+USC MC to continue to provide 
diagnostic and interventional procedures to support the Level One Trauma Center, 
Primary Stroke Center, and all DHS emergency patient, inpatient, and outpatient 
angiographic and RF procedures. This will ensure the provision of standardized 
radiologic services across DHS and will enable DHS to provide high quality and 
responsive care to its patients, as well as to meet regulatory standards for access to 
radiologic studies.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
May 2, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Christina R. Ghaly, M.D. 
Director 
 
CRG:jc 
 
Enclosure 
 
c: Chief Executive Office 
 County Counsel  
 Executive Office, Board of Supervisors 
 Internal Services Department 
 



 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES 

RADIOLOGY EQUIPMENT OVER $250,000 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

 

No. Category Quantity Description Cost 

1 Radiography and Fluoroscopy 1 Luminos Agile Max $559,000 

  1 Luminos Agile Max $557,000 

  1 Luminos Agile Max $557,000 

  1 Luminos Agile Max $581,000 

2 Interventional Radiology 1 ARTIS Icono Ceiling IR Pro $1,513,000 

  1 ARTIS Icono Ceiling IR Pro $1,390,000 

  1 ARTIS Icono Biplane IR Pro $2,275,000 

 Total 7  $7,432,000 



BOARD LETTER/MEMO
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

Board Letter    Board Memo  Other

CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE

4/19/2023

BOARD MEETING DATE 5/2/2023

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT
AFFECTED All   1st 2nd      3rd   4th      5th   

DEPARTMENT(S) Department of Public Health (Public Health) 

SUBJECT
APPROVAL TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION AND AGENCY AGREEMENT 
NUMBER 230315 WITH TULARE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS TO 
SUPPORT FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE PROGRAMS (3 VOTES) 

PROGRAM Substance Abuse Prevention and Control (SAPC)

AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT 

Yes   No  

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT Yes   No  

If Yes, please explain why: N/A 

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS

N/A

COST & FUNDING Total cost:  
$1,750,000 

Funding source for MOU with Los Angeles County Office of 
Education is Federal Substance Abuse Prevention and 
Treatment Block Grant (SABG) Funds passed through the 
California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to 
Tulare, Assistance Listing Number 93.959. 

Not applicable for the agreement with Tulare Superintendent 
of Schools (Tulare).  This is revenue generating. 

TERMS (if applicable):
The Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE) Memorandum of
Understandings (MOU) - Effective upon execution through June 30, 2028.
Tulare’s Agency Agreement Number 230315 - Effective upon execution through
June 30, 2023.

Explanation: N/A

PURPOSE OF REQUEST Approval of the execution of the LACOE MOU and the agreement with Tulare will allow 
Public Health Substance Abuse Prevention and Control (Public Health-SAPC) to 
continue providing services through the Friday Night Live (FNL) Programs in Los 
Angeles County. 

BACKGROUND 
(Include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

DHCS currently allocates specific prevention funding for the FNL Programs which have 
been successfully provided by LACOE, due to its direct affiliation with local schools. 
LACOE is the nation’s largest regional education agency, serving close to two million 
children, eighty public school districts, and three hundred independent charter schools 
in the county of Los Angeles. Through a multifaceted collaborative approach with partner 
agencies, LACOE aims to ensure that all students access a high-quality public education 
and the wrap-around services to support their education and well-being. 

Per the State’s Information Notice 22-057, Tulare is now the pass-through agency that 
will manage the SABG funds for FNL Programs (formerly this was done through DHCS 
directly).  



EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

Yes          No  
If Yes, please explain how: Through the FNL Programs, Public Health-SAPC intends to 
intervene early and emphasize long-term prevention of Substance Use Disorders (SUD). 

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES 

Yes          No  

If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how: 
 
Sustainability – Public Health continues to anticipate that Prevention services in Los 
Angeles County will not require additional net County cost, as existing funding 
streams, and the County’s ability to draw down the maximum federal Medi-Cal 
matching funds, should be sufficient to provide the full continuum of SUD services. 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email:

Joshua Bobrowsky, Public Health Director Government Affairs,  
(213) 288-7871 
 jbobrowsky@ph.lacounty.gov  
 
Craig Kirkwood, Deputy County Counsel 
(213) 974-1755  
CKirkwood@counsel.lacounty.gov 

 
Gary Tsai, Public Health Substance Abuse Prevention and Control 
(626) 299-3504  
GTsai@ph.lacounty.gov 
 



May 2, 2023

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
5000 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Supervisors:

APPROVAL TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 
LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION AND AGENCY AGREEMENT 

NUMBER 230315 WITH THE TULARE COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
TO SUPPORT THE FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE PROGRAMS

(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS)
(3 VOTES)

SUBJECT

Request approval to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the Los Angeles 
County Office of Education and an Agency Agreement with the Tulare Superintendent 
of Schools to support the Friday Night Live Programs.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Approve and instruct the Director of the Department of Public Health (Public
Health), or designee, to execute a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
substantially similar to Exhibit I, with the Los Angeles County Office of Education
(LACOE) to support the Friday Night Live (FNL) Programs, effective July 1, 2023,
through June 30, 2028, at an annual maximum obligation of $350,000, for a total
maximum obligation of $1,750,000; 100 percent offset by federal Substance
Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant (SABG) funds passed through the
California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) to the Tulare
Superintendent of Schools (Tulare), Assistance Listing Number 93.959.

BARBARA FERRER, Ph.D., M.P.H., M.Ed.
Director

MUNTU DAVIS, M.D., M.P.H.
County Health Officer

MEGAN McCLAIRE, M.S.P.H.
Chief Deputy Director

313 North Figueroa Street, Suite 806 
Los Angeles, CA 90012
TEL (213) 288-8117 • FAX (213) 975-1273

www.publichealth.lacounty.gov

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Hilda L. Solis 
First District

Holly J. Mitchell 
Second District

Lindsey P. Horvath 
Third District 

Janice Hahn 
Fourth District

Kathryn Barger 
Fifth District



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023
Page 2 

 
2. Approve and instruct the Director of Public Health, or designee, to execute 

Agency Agreement number 230315, substantially similar to Exhibit II, with Tulare 
to support the FNL Programs, which contains mutual indemnification, effective 
upon execution for fiscal year (FY) 2022-23.  Tulare will pay Public Health-
Substance Abuse Prevention and Control (SAPC) up to $235,000; 100 percent 
offset by federal SABG funds passed through DHCS to Tulare. 
 

3. Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health, or designee, to execute 
amendments to the MOU referenced in Recommendation 1 that extend the term 
for five additional one-year periods through June 30, 2033; provide an increase 
or decrease in funding at amounts to be determined by the funder; and make any 
corresponding service adjustments, as necessary, subject to review and approval 
by County Counsel, and notification to your Board and the Chief Executive Office 
(CEO). 
 

4. Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health, or designee, to amend or 
replace the Agency Agreement referenced in Recommendation 2 that extend the 
term for five one-year periods through June 30, 2028; provide an increase or 
decrease in funding at amounts to be determined by the funder; and make any 
corresponding service adjustments, as necessary, subject to review and approval 
by County Counsel, and notification to your Board and the CEO. 
 

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMEND ACTIONS

LACOE FNL is funded by DHCS to provide a school-based prevention program 
focusing on community, individual, and classroom level services to decrease alcohol 
and other drug availability and accessibility among school-age youth. The services 
require specific experience and established relationships with the community to obtain 
feedback and participation required for the comprehensive assessment. 
 
Furthermore, the FNL Programs require formal affiliation with school sites. LACOE is 
uniquely qualified having provided these services for over 20 years, moreover, LACOE 
has been identified as the only local agency with experience providing the FNL 
Programs and thus, Public Health has historically contracted with LACOE.  Public 
Health will provide LACOE with technical support to complete the requirements outlined 
in the MOU’s Statement of Work, which includes, but is not limited to, guidance in the 
development and implementation of work plans and evaluation tools, provision of 
trainings, and coordination of collaborative efforts across multi-sector partners. 

Tulare supports the FNL Programs in Los Angeles County, and will pay Public Health-
SAPC when evidence is provided that all deliverables have been completed.  
 
Approval of Recommendation 1 will allow Public Health to execute an MOU with 
LACOE to support the FNL Programs. 
 



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023
Page 3 

Approval of Recommendation 2 will allow Public Health to execute an Agency 
Agreement with Tulare to support the FNL Programs. 
 
Approval of Recommendation 3 will allow Public Health to execute amendments to the 
MOU referenced in Recommendation 1 that extend the term for five additional one-year 
periods through June 30, 2033; provide an increase or decrease in funding at amounts 
to be determined by the funder; and make any corresponding service adjustments, as 
necessary. 

Approval of Recommendation 4 will allow Public Health to amend or replace the Agency 
Agreement referenced in Recommendation 2 that extend the term for five one-year 
periods through June 30, 2028; provide an increase or decrease in funding at amounts 
to be determined by the funder; and make any corresponding service adjustments, as 
necessary. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS 

The recommended actions support Strategy ll.2 – Support Wellness of our 
Communities; Objective ll.2.4 – Promote Active and Healthy Lifestyles, of the County’s 
Strategic Plan.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The total cost of the LACOE MOU for the term effective July 1, 2023, through June 30, 
2028, is $1,750,000, 100 percent offset by federal SABG funds passed through DHCS 
to Tulare. 
 
The total revenue of the Agency Agreement with Tulare for the term effective upon 
execution for FY 2022-23, is $235,000, 100 percent offset by federal SABG funds 
passed through DHCS to Tulare. 
 
Funding has been included in Public Health’s FY 2023-24 Adopted Budget and will be 
included in future FYs as necessary. 
 
There is no net County cost associated with the recommended actions. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

DHCS currently allocates specific prevention funding for the FNL Programs which have 
been successfully provided by LACOE, due to its direct affiliation with local schools. 
LACOE is the nation’s largest regional education agency, serving close to two million 
children, eighty public school districts, and three hundred independent charter schools 
in the county of Los Angeles. Through a multifaceted collaborative approach with 
partner agencies, LACOE aims to ensure that all students access a high-quality public 
education and the wrap-around services to support their education and well-being.  
   



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023
Page 4 

Per the State’s Information Notice 22-057, Tulare is now the pass-through agency that 
will manage the SABG funds for FNL Program services (formerly this was done through 
DHCS directly). 
 
Tulare’s agreement contains a mutual indemnification provision. The mutual 
indemnification requires each party to indemnify and hold the other harmless from 
losses or liability for injury or damage, actual or alleged, to person or property arising 
out of or resulting from the indemnifying party’s acts or omissions in the performance of 
this Agreement. 
 
County Counsel has reviewed and approved Exhibits l and ll as to form. 

CONTRACTING PROCESS

On May 27, 2014, your Board authorized Public Health to execute 41 Alcohol and Other 
Drug Prevention Services renewal contracts, which included four (4) sole source 
agreements, and delegated authority to make funding and service adjustments, 
effective July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2016.  The four sole source contracts were 
originally approved by your Board on December 6, 2011, to address gaps in prevention 
services that resulted from lack of qualified proposals in response to a Request for 
Proposals issued in 2010.   

Since then, Public Health exercised its delegated authority, extended the contracts, and 
has made funding and service adjustments. Currently only the LACOE sole source 
contract is in effect to provide FNL services through June 30, 2023. 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 

Approval of the recommended actions will allow Public Health to further our collaborate 
partnerships with LACOE and Tulare to support the FNL Programs. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Barbara Ferrer, Ph.D., M.P.H., M.Ed. 
Director 
 
BF:jt 
#06817 
 
Enclosures 
 
c: Chief Executive Officer 
    County Counsel 
    Executive Officer, Board of Supervisors



Exhibit I

MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services

MOU Number: ____________

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL

AND

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

FOR 

FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE PROGRAM SERVICES 



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 1 of 7 

MOU Number: ____________ 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION AND CONTROL  

AND 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

FOR

FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE PROGRAMS 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into on   __________________, 
by and between the County of Los Angeles (County) Department of Public Health 
Substance Abuse Prevention and Control (Public Health-SAPC); and Los Angeles County 
Office of Education (hereafter “Agency” or “LACOE”). 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the parties to enter into this MOU for the implementation of 
Public Health’s Substance Abuse Prevention and Control’s Friday Night Live Programs; 
and 

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2023, the County Board of Supervisors authorized the Director of 
Public Health, or designee, to execute this MOU to allow for collaboration on Friday Night 
Live Programs’ activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants herein set forth and the mutual 
benefits to be derived therefrom, the parties agree as follows:

I. PURPOSE & BACKGROUND

A. PURPOSE

The purpose of this MOU is to state the terms of the agreement, the funding
provisions, and the duties and responsibilities of Public Health and Agency
for the implementation of Public Health-SAPC’s Friday Night Live (FNL)
Programs.

B. BACKGROUND

FNL is funded by the California Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS) to provide school-based primary prevention programming focused
on community, individual, and classroom level services to decrease alcohol



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 2 of 8

and other drug availability and accessibility among school-age 
youth. Public Health-SAPC and LACOE will work in partnership to develop 
youth-created and youth-informed programs and services with a focus on 
primary prevention efforts. Primary prevention is defined as strategies, 
programs, and services directed at individuals who have not been 
determined to require treatment for a substance use disorder. Strategies 
may consist of both individual- and population-based services, using the six 
prevention strategies identified by Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration’s Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP). 
The 6 CSAP strategies are 1) Information Dissemination, 2) Education, 3) 
Alternative, 4) Problem Identification and Referral, 5) Community-Based 
Process, and 6) Environmental. 

Utilizing a youth development framework, the primary focus of FNL is to 
provide programs that form youth-adult partnerships and offer youth 
leadership opportunities, in order to minimize risk factors associated with 
problem behaviors and maximize protective factors associated with healthy 
youth development. Organized through school-based services, adult 
advisors work with students to help increase their peer knowledge and form 
healthy working relationships, fostering a supportive environment. In 
addition, youth develop resiliency skills through participation in youth-led
and community engagement activities that address the social norms and 
community conditions that contribute to access and availability of substance 
use among youth. 

II. TERM

This MOU is effective July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2028, unless sooner
terminated or extended, in whole or in part, as provided in this MOU.

III. FUNDING (SPECIFIC TO PROGRAM)

The annual maximum obligation for the period of July 1, 2023, through June 30,
2028 is $350,000, for a total maximum obligation of$1,750,000; 100 percent offset
by federal Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant funds passed
through DHCS to the Tulare Superintendent of Schools, Assistance Listing
Number 93.959.

IV. DESCRIPTION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

A. AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES

Agency shall:

1. Coordinate activities and services to achieve the objectives and goals
specified in the attachment incorporated herein by reference as
Attachment A, Statement of Work (SOW) of this MOU.



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 3 of 8

2. Ensure that overall Agency’s management responsibilities are provided
by an assigned Prevention Coordinator, who shall coordinate efforts to
ensure that project activities are completed and collaborate with Public
Health-SAPC’s staff when needed.

3. Ensure that necessary resources - including, but not limited to,
personnel and benefits, workspace, computer, internet access, paper,
toner, other supplies, transportation, and/or in-kind staff support - are
available for performing the duties outlined in the attachment.

4. Enter service data to the web-based data collection system as required
by DHCS and Public Health-SAPC as required. Service data is based
on State of California guidelines. Services will be recorded based on
the state service codes: Community-Based Process, Environmental,
Information Dissemination, Problem ID and Referral, Education, and
Alternative strategies.

5. Submit invoices monthly to Public Health-SAPCH no later than thirty
(30) calendar days after completion of activities as identified in
Attachment A, SOW, attached hereto.

6. Comply with all fingerprint clearance requirements as outlined under
Paragraph 1, Background and Security Investigations, of Attachment B,
Additional Requirements. All costs associated with the background and
fingerprint investigation shall be paid by the Agency. Agency shall
provide evidence of clearance upon request.

7. Institute and maintain close supervision of all persons providing
services pursuant to this MOU. Agency shall be responsible for training
employees (In-Service Training), as appropriate, concerning applicable
federal, State and County laws, regulations, guidelines, directives, and
administrative procedures. Agency shall institute a training program in
which all personnel employed in-full, or in-part, by this MOU shall
participate. This includes requirements as outlined under Paragraph 2,
Staffing, of Attachment B, Additional Requirements.

8. Submit all requested information for data reporting and programmatic
and fiscal compliance purposes.

9. Maintain all fiscal and programmatic records in a safe and secure
manner for a minimum of 10 years and provide as requested by the
County.

10. Attend meetings with Public Health-SAPC, as required, to provide
updates on the program, report successes, and identify areas in need



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 4 of 8

of improvement.

B. PUBLIC HEALTH RESPONSIBILITIES

Public Health shall:

1. Provide Agency with technical support, as needed, to complete the
requirements outlined in Attachment A, SOW. Technical support may
include guidance in developing plans and tools, facilitating linkages to
subject matter experts, evaluation development and implementation
guidance, provision of trainings, coordination across multi-sector
partners, etc.

2. Schedule annual site visits, as needed, to ensure compliance by
Agency with the requirements and responsibilities of this MOU. Public
Health will provide Agency a minimum of five (5) calendar days written
notice, either by mail or email, prior to the scheduled site visit. Public
Health will issue a report to Agency within thirty days (30) after site
visit/monitoring that may communicate areas of compliance and non-
compliance by Agency. As part of the report, Public Health shall specify
corrective actions that need to be taken by Agency to maintain
compliance with the requirements and responsibilities of this MOU. If
Agency takes no action to correct any non-compliance within the time
period specified, Public Health may suspend this MOU for a period of
up to ninety (90) calendar days or may elect to terminate this MOU.

3. Maintain time and attendance records signed by Agency personnel and
approved by the supervisor. Time distribution records shall also be kept
by Agency and shall account for total work time for all employees and
agents relative to this MOU. Public Health is responsible for monitoring
the activities of Agency's participation for program implementation and
compliance.

4. Reimburse Agency for services rendered pursuant to this MOU in
accordance with the attached corresponding SOW and Budget(s).

V. INDEMNIFICATION:  The Contractor must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
the County, its Special Districts, elected and appointed officers, employees,
agents and volunteers (County Indemnitees) from and against any and all
liability, including but not limited to demands, claims, actions, fees, costs, and
expenses (including attorney and expert witness fees), arising from and/or
relating to this Contract, except for such loss or damage arising from the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of the County Indemnitees.



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 5 of 8

VI. INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS

A. Commercial General Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage
equivalent to Insurance Services Office ["ISO"] policy form "CG 00 01"),
naming County and its Agents as an additional insured, with limits of not
less than:

General Aggregate:     $2 Million
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate: $1 Million
Personal and Advertising Injury: $1 Million
Each Occurrence: $1 Million

B. Automobile Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to
ISO policy form CA 00 01) with limits of not less than $1 Million for bodily
injury and property damage, in combined or equivalent split limits, for each
single accident.  Insurance must cover liability arising out of Contractor’s
use of autos pursuant to this Contract, including "owned,” “leased,” "hired,”
and/or non-owned autos, as each may be applicable.

C. Workers Compensation and Employers’ Liability: Contractor will maintain
insurance, or qualified self-insurance, satisfying statutory requirements,
including Employers’ Liability coverage with limits of not less than $1 Million
per accident.  If Contractor will provide leased employees, or, is: (1) an
employee leasing temporary staffing firm; or, (2) a professional employer
organization (PEO), coverage also shall include an Alternate Employer
Endorsement (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form
WC 00 03 01 A) naming the County as the Alternate Employer. Written
notice must be provided to the County at least 10 days in advance of
cancellation for non-payment of premium and 30 days in advance for any
other cancellation or policy change.   If applicable to Contractor’s
operations, coverage shall be arranged to satisfy the requirements of any
federal workers or workmen’s compensation law or any federal occupational
disease law.

D. Sexual Misconduct Liability: Insurance covering actual or alleged claims for
sexual misconduct and/or molestation with limits of not less than  $2 Million
per claim and $2 Million aggregate, and claims for negligent employment,
investigation, supervision, training or retention of, or failure to report to
proper authorities, a person(s) who is alleged to have committed any act of
abuse, molestation, harassment, mistreatment or maltreatment of a sexual
nature.

E. Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions:  Insurance covering
Contractor’s liability arising from or related to this Contract, with limits of not
less than $1 Million per claim and $3 Million aggregate.  Further, Contractor



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 6 of 8

understands and agrees it must maintain such coverage for a period of not 
less than three years following this Contract’s expiration, termination, or 
cancellation.

VII. FINANCIAL RECORDS

Contractor shall prepare and maintain on a current basis, complete financial
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; written
guidelines, standards, and procedures which may from time to time be
promulgated by Director; and requirements set forth in the Los Angeles County
Auditor-Controller’s Contract Accounting and Administration Handbook.  The
handbook is available on the internet at:
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/cg/docs/AuditorControllerContractingandAdminH
B.pdf

VIII. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

Agency will adhere to the Additional Provisions as described in the Federal
Requirements, Attachment D.

IX. TERMINATION

This MOU may be terminated at any time, with or without cause, by the County,
upon giving at least thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice thereof to the other
party.   Any written notice of termination shall state the date that termination shall
become effective. Public Health may terminate the MOU if funding for the project
becomes unavailable.

X. AMENDMENTS

This MOU may be amended at any time upon by the county.  Any changes to this
MOU must be made as a formal amendment to this MOU signed by the authorized
representative of both parties.

XI. DESIGNATION OF RESPONSIBLE PARTIES

The following persons, identified by position and title, have been designated as the
responsible parties for all communications, including required notices, related to
this MOU:

A. County of Los Angeles Department of Public Health

Gary Tsai, Director
Substance Abuse Prevention and Control
County of Los Angeles, Public Health
1000 South Fremont Avenue



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 7 of 8

Building A-9 East, Third Floor
Alhambra, California 91803

Telephone: (626) 299-4595
E-mail: gtsai@ph.lacounty.gov

B. Los Angeles County Office of Education

Alicia Garoupa, Chief of Well-Being and Support Services
Los Angeles County Office of Education
9300 Imperial Hwy
Downey, CA 90242

Telephone: (562) 922-6233
Email: garoupa_alicia@lacoe.edu

Both parties may change their designated responsible person, at any time, with 
fifteen (15) days prior written notice. 

VIII. ENTIRE MOU

This MOU constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of understanding
between the parties, which supersedes all previous agreements, written or oral,
and all other communications between the parties relating to the subject matter of
this MOU.

IX. SIGNATURES

The undersigned hereby represent and acknowledge that they are duly authorized
to execute this MOU on behalf of the entity for which they sign and are in
agreement with all terms and conditions and hereby the MOU is being executed
by parties identified below

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 



MOU between Public Health-SAPC and LACOE for FNL Program Services 

Page 8 of 8

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOU on the day, month, 
and year indicated on page 1.

On behalf of the DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH: 

_____________________________ _________________________
Barbara Ferrer, Ph.D., M.P.H., M.Ed. Date
Director

On behalf of the LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION: 

________________________________ _________________________
Karen Kimmel Date
Chief Financial Officer

#06817:jt



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 1 of 19 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
SUBSTANCE USE PREVENTION SERVICES FOR 

FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE (FNL) 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

A. PROJECT BACKGROUND

1. Introduction: Funding provided under this statement of work (SOW) shall cover the Friday
Night Live (FNL) Programs.

The Department of Public Health’s (Public Health) Substance Abuse Prevention and
Control (SAPC) program has the primary responsibility of administering the County’s
continuum of substance use disorder prevention, treatment, and recovery programs in
order to reduce the impact of substance use and addiction on individuals, families, and
communities.

Public Health-SAPC prevention initiatives are designed to specifically address high
priority substance use prevention actions within target community(ies) and/or
population(s) within each Service Planning Area (SPA). Public Health-SAPC aspires to
advance inclusive, just, and equitable access to resources, and best practices that
prevent and address substance use in Los Angeles County (LAC). Collaboration with
public and private entities improve access to substance use prevention within LAC
communities, by influencing the social norms and community conditions that correlate
with substance use within target population(s) and/or communities. These prevention
initiatives are designed to specifically address the four (4) high priority substances
within target community(ies) and/or population(s): marijuana, alcohol,
methamphetamine, and prescription drugs.

These services are designed to educate and empower local health and human service
providers in order to address community risk factors that contribute to substance use-
related problems. These objectives include identifying the local determinants of health
that impact local health conditions, (e.g., neighborhood safety, green spaces, and
ongoing trauma); and introducing planning tools in order to reduce health inequities and
support local prevention strategies that promote positive norms.

This is achieved by ensuring opportunities for positive youth development and directing
the implementation of school and community-based efforts to reduce substance use
availability and accessibility. These skills are developed through participation in FNL
(high school), Club Live (middle school) and FNL Kids (4th, 5th and 6th grade) school-
based chapters, and with the guidance of adult advisors who help facilitate successful
implementation of prevention projects, including environmental efforts and social
events.

Please refer to the Public Health-SAPC Strategic Prevention Plan and Public Health-
SAPC Prevention Provider Manual for additional information.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 2 of 19 

2. Prevention Frameworks and Categories: The initiatives must clearly align with the
County’s Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF) (Appendix B). Providers must develop
their programming to align with the following service category1 included in the Spectrum
of Prevention (Appendix A).

3. County Goals and Objectives: All substance use prevention efforts implemented under
this SOW must clearly align with the Public Health-SAPC Strategic Prevention Plan.

For the Provider, this is limited to the following County Goals and Objectives:

Goal 1: Decrease Alcohol Use Among Youth 

Objective 1.1: Increase perception of underage alcohol use as harmful.

Objective 1.2: Reduce retail availability of alcohol to underage youth. 

Goal 2: Decrease Marijuana Use Among Youth

Objective 2.1: Increase youth perception of underage marijuana use as harmful. 

Objective 2.2: Reduce retail availability of marijuana to underage youth. 

Goal 3: Decrease Methamphetamine Use Among Youth and Adults 

Objective 3.1: Increase community awareness of the harms of methamphetamine. 

Goal 4: Decrease Prescription Drug Misuse or Abuse Among Youth and Adults

Objective 4.1: Decrease prescriptions of opioid drugs for adults. 

Objective 4.2: Reduce youth access to prescription drugs.

While the majority of these four (4) County Goals aim to provide primary prevention 
programs and services aimed at youth; these goals must also include engagement with 
other stakeholders, (e.g., parents/guardians, students, community members, caregivers, 
etc.). Prevention efforts require engagement from the community-at-large, especially 
individuals who indirectly and directly impact substance use and abuse for youth. 
Providing services that also engage and outreach to young adults and adults, where 
appropriate, is highly encouraged. 

B. PERSONS AND AREAS TO BE SERVED

1. Providers are required to identify what persons and communities will be served by this
MOU. This MOU requires delivery of substance use prevention efforts under the FNL,
Club Live, and FNL Kids Chapters, therefore “persons served” refers to those students
and adult advisors who are directly involved in the development and/or implementation of
such efforts. Providers must align prevention services with the County approved Work

1 Spectrum of Prevention Categories available at http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/sapc/prevention/PP/LASpectrumPrevention.pdf.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 3 of 19 

Plan. 

2. Prevention strategies depend on the service delivery method and the targeted population
as established by the Institute of Medicine2 (IOM).

The following IOM prevention classification categories are allowable:

Universal Prevention: “Targets the entire population (national, local community, school,
and neighborhood), with messages and programs aimed at preventing or delaying the
(ab)use of alcohol or other drugs. All members of the population share the same
general risk for substance (ab)use, although the risk may vary among individuals.”

Universal Direct: “Interventions directly serve an identifiable group of participants but
who have not been identified on the basis of individual risk, (e.g., school curriculum,
afterschool program, parenting class). This also could include interventions involving
interpersonal and ongoing/repeated contact (e.g., coalitions).”

Universal Indirect: “Interventions support population-based programs and environmental
strategies, (e.g., establishing substance use policies, modifying substance use
advertising practices). This also could include interventions involving programs and
policies implemented by coalitions.”

Selective Prevention: “Targets subsets of the total population at risk for substance
misuse by virtue of their membership in a particular population segment. Selective
prevention targets the entire subgroup regardless of the degree of risk of any individual
within the group. The selective prevention program is presented to the entire subgroup
because the subgroup is at higher risk for substance misuse than the general
population. An individual’s personal risk is not specifically assessed or identified and is
based solely on a presumption given his or her membership in the at-risk subgroup.”

Indicated Prevention: “Targets individuals who do not meet the Fifth Edition of the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM-5) criteria for abuse or
dependence, but who are showing early danger signs, such as failing grades and
consumption of alcohol and/or other gateway drugs. The mission of indicated prevention
is to identify individuals who are exhibiting potential early signs of substance abuse and
other problem behaviors associated with substance use, and to target them with special
programs.”

In all cases, these prevention services shall be directed at individuals who never
received nor require treatment services, and do not/would not meet criteria for a
substance use disorder according to the Fifth Edition of the DSM-5. A screening and/or
assessment shall not be conducted for the sole purpose of making this determination.

2Institute of Medicine (IOM) Classifications for Prevention available at 
http://dpbh.nv.gov/uploadedFiles/mhnvgov/content/Meetings/Bidders_Conference/Institute%20of%20Medicine%20Prevention
%20Classifications-rev10.20.14.pdf. 



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 4 of 19 

3. Services will be provided to, and/or involve the following age group(s): Check all that
apply.

Children 0-7 years old Young Adults 18-24 years old
Children 8-11 years old Adults 25-59 years old
Youth 12-17 years old Older Adults 60+ years old

4. All agencies working with individuals less than eighteen (18) years of age must comply
with fingerprint clearance requirements as outlined under Paragraph 1, Background and
Security Investigations, of MOU Attachment B, Additional Requirements.

5. Services must be made available for all individuals for whom services are appropriate,
regardless of sex assigned at birth, gender identity, or recorded gender.

6. Unless a specific population(s) is/are identified, services will be made available to all
individuals in the specified age group(s) identified above, regardless of racial or ethnic
status or socio-economic status(s).

7. Special population (s) to be served: No  Yes

If yes, indicate special population to be served:  Foster Care. 

8. Services will be provided by Service Planning Area (SPA) 1 through 8 and Supervisorial
District(s) (SD) 1 through 5. This includes the following County, city(ies), and/or
community(ies): Lakewood, Hacienda Heights, Hawthorne, Inglewood, Cerritos, La
Puente, Lancaster, Lawndale, Los Angeles, Montebello, Norwalk, Palmdale, Pasadena,
Santa Monica, and Whittier., and as defined by the following boundaries (e.g., streets if
not entire city, zip codes) N/A. For a location of SPAs, visit:
http://gis.lacounty.gov/districtlocator/.

C. SERVICE DELIVERY SITES AND DAYS/HOURS OF OPERATION

The primary and secondary/satellite sites, (e.g., schools), where services are provided and/or
administered must be identified and specified in the MOU. An agreement letter is required for
all regular services provided at all locations where the Provider does not own or lease the
property. This agreement must comply with all host site requirements including services to be
provided, (e.g., frequency, days/times, group topics). A signed copy must be provided to
Public Health-SAPC prior to the delivery of services, within sixty (60) days of agreement
execution. The Provider shall be required to provide prevention services during the hours that
are most effective and convenient for persons served.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 5 of 19 

Primary Facility Site 

1 

Los Angeles County 
Office of Education 

Phone# (562) 
940-6693

Fax# (562) 
940-1697

Minors Served

Durado_debra@lacoe.edu; smith_pat@lacoe.edue 
Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., and evenings and weekends, as 
scheduled

9300 Imperial Highway, Downey, CA 90242 

SPA: 1 through 8

SD: 1 through 5

Provider shall obtain prior written approval from the Public Health-SAPC’s Chief of 
Community and Youth Engagement at least thirty (30) calendar days before terminating 
services at primary and secondary/satellite location(s), or before commencing such services 
at any other location. If the population/ages served, days and hours of operation, telephone 
number, FAX number, or e-mail address of Provider facility(ies), are changed in any manner, 
Provider shall inform Public Health-SAPC Director, via formal written letter/notice, at least ten 
(10) calendar days prior to the effective date(s) thereof.

In the event of a program closure or reduction in services, Provider shall engage other 
service providers and coordinate the transfer or referral of program participants to avoid 
interruption of services. 

D. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

1. Community Assessment

The purpose of the community assessment is to collect and analyze data from a variety
of data sources, (i.e., archival data, surveys, focus groups, key informant interviews,
environmental scans), to identify and understand how community risks for substance
use affects all four (4) priority substance use problems, (e.g., marijuana, alcohol,
methamphetamine, and prescription drugs). The community assessment also
establishes a baseline to benchmark agency outcome measures within the Logic Model
and Work Plan(s).

Provider is strongly encouraged to use local data resources including the 2017
Community Needs Assessment (CNA) – Marijuana Use and Public Perceptions in LA
County and Prescription Medication Misuse and Public Perceptions in LA County,
SAPC Data Reports and Briefs, and existing FNL assessments and evaluations for
collecting and analyzing data to develop the Logic Model and programmatic objectives
within the Work Plan.

The community assessment shall be completed within the first three (3) months of the
award, unless directed by Public Health-SAPC, where results must be reflected in the



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 6 of 19 

Logic Model and Work Plan’s programmatic objectives. In addition, the community 
assessment should be facilitated by the Program Evaluator. 
Provider is responsible for surveying their communities for the prevalence of the four (4) 
priority substances, as referenced in the County Goals and Objectives. Data integrity 
must be maintained; and this references the assurance that facts stored in Provider's 
database are accurate, consistent, and can be reconciled. 

2. Logic Model

The Logic Model outlines the four (4) priority substances as referenced in the County
Goals and Objectives, with substance-related problems and programmatic solutions.
Data from the factors identified during the community assessment and Logic Model
translate these priorities into program goals and objectives. These planning tools will be
the foundation for determining what substance use prevention efforts are implemented
by Provider during the MOU term.

Integral to the success of these efforts is the active and sustained involvement of local
community residents, (youth and adults), leaders, businesses, substance use service
providers, and others who are knowledgeable of the local substance use related issues
and are committed to engaging in evidence-based solutions. The Provider will engage
community members and leaders throughout the process to best identify, implement,
and sustain efforts to address substance use prevention issues within the community.

The Logic Model must be completed within the first three (3) months of the award
unless otherwise directed by Public Health-SAPC.

3. Work Plan(s)

The Work Plan(s) shall outline the specific Major Activities and associated tasks needed
to achieve the County goals and objectives while maintaining Members in Good
Standing (MIGS) status according to California Friday Night Live Partnership (CFNLP)
guidelines and documents. The Work Plan(s) shall also ensure that adult advisors are
fully trained and capable of implementing FNL, Club Live, and/or FNL Kids chapters as
designed and intended, and to ensure appropriate development of new chapters and
oversight of existing chapters. Only the most relevant efforts that directly contribute to
achieving the identified County Goals and Objectives may be included in the Work
Plan(s) and claimed for reimbursement. Such efforts must also correlate with the results
of the community assessment and Logic Model. This will ensure that community needs
are accurately being addressed.

The Work Plan(s) will capture all services provided and may be revised with Public
Health-SAPC approval, where revisions may be used to approve additional work.
Additionally, any use of screening tools must be included on the Work Plan(s) and
approved by Public Health-SAPC in advance.

Provider’s Goals need to be SMART goals: Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Relevant



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 7 of 19 

and Time-based. The Work Plan(s) must be completed using the required template. All 
providers must address County goals 1 - 4: 1) alcohol use among youth; 2) marijuana 
use among youth; 3) methamphetamine use among youth and adults; 4) prescription 
drug misuse or abuse among youth and adults. 

Overall, the Work Plan(s) submitted over the entire SOW term must include a 
progression in services and activities needed to favorably impact the selected County 
goals and objectives. Furthermore, the identified processes and outcome measures 
should collectively determine if the combination of services and activities have the 
expected impact, or if modifications are needed.

For year one (1), the Work Plan(s) is/are due within the first six (6) months of the award, 
unless otherwise directed by Public Health-SAPC. For subsequent years, the Work 
Plan(s) must be submitted to the County at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the 
start of each fiscal year for approval. The documents must be submitted in the required 
format and include an adequate scope of services corresponding to the funding amount.

4. Evidence-Based and Local Innovative Programs

Evidence-based, substance use prevention services, activities, and/or programs are
encouraged and strongly considered. Additionally, local innovation programs that,
although not widely researched, demonstrate promise in achieving positive substance
use prevention and related outcomes, are encouraged. As such, all Work Plan major
activities and associated tasks must be directly related to the successful implementation
of the allowable evidenced-based programs (EBP) or local innovative programs.

Allowable options include:

1) EBP or curricula categorized under substance misuse prevention on SAMHSA’s
Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center3 or Communities That Care
Prevention Strategies Guide4.

2) Substantiated prevention strategies such as those described in the RAND
Preventing Underage Drinking5 Technical Report or the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention Community Guide6.

3) Promising practices where the program or curricula is not a recognized best
practice/model program (as described in one and two above), substantiated
results of an evaluation conducted by an evaluator independent of the proposer
that documents the ability of the program/curricula to achieve the intended
outcomes.

3 SAMHSA: Evidence-Based Practices Resource Center, available at: https://www.samhsa.gov/ebp-resource-center. 
4 Communities That Care Prevention Strategies Guide, available at: 
http://sdrg.org/ctcresource/Prevention%20Strategies%20Guide/introduction.pdf. 
5 RAND: Preventing Underage Drinking, available at: https://www.rand.org/pubs/technical_reports/TR403.html.
6 The Community Guide, available at: https://www.thecommunityguide.org/. 



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 8 of 19 

If using option three (3), the Provider must ensure that evidence of program 
effectiveness and any collected data or validated research reports are sent to Public 
Health-SAPC Prevention Program for review and approval, at least thirty (30) days prior 
to the program implementation. 

All new programs within the Work Plan must be approved by Public Health-SAPC prior 
to program implementation. All evidence-based practices shall be evaluated and 
reported in the Year-End Report and Annual Evaluation Report, in collaboration with the 
provider’s Program Evaluator. 

For a list of recommended evidence-based programs, pre-approved by Public Health-
SAPC, please see the Public Health-SAPC Prevention Provider Manual for additional 
information.

Failure to document implementation and evaluation of the evidence-based practices 
listed above with fidelity, including modifications approved by the County for each fiscal 
year of the SOW term, shall be determined a breach of MOU, and may result in a 
funding reduction up to, and including, SOW termination. 

5. Program Deliverables

The Provider is responsible for ensuring that the training, resources, and program
oversight are sufficient to ensure fidelity to the FNL models and that expansion to
additional school sites occurs where appropriate.

Within the Work Plan, the FNL Provider will be required to adhere to the following:

a. Standards of Practice

Provider shall adhere to the CFNLP Friday Night Live/Club Live Youth
Development Standards of Practice.

b. Training and Technical Assistance

The Provider shall participate in all training and technical assistance session
required by the CFNLP, including annual conferences. The Provider shall also
ensure that Chapters (e.g., adult advisors) participate in these sessions as
appropriate to ensure understanding of program requirements and changes.

c. Members in Good Standing (MIGS)

Provider shall maintain MIGS status throughout the MOU term, as determined by
the CFNLP. This is to ensure that all FNL projects statewide apply the same
minimum standards, including the foundational evidence-based principal of youth
development and utilization of environmental prevention strategies.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 9 of 19 

Failure to maintain MIGS shall be determined a breach of the MOU and may 
result in a funding reduction up to and including SOW termination. 

For additional information, please see Appendix C, MIGS Requirements 
Overview.

d. Chapter Sites

FNL and Club Live chapters shall be available in each SPA and distributed
proportionally based on data indicators. FNL Kids is optional, but if provided, it
should also be proportionally available in each SPA. Chapter distribution is as
follows but may be updated throughout the term as agreed with Public Health-
SAPC to allow for project growth or redistribution of sites:

Chapter Type SPA 1 SPA 2 SPA 3 SPA 4 SPA 5 SPA 6 SPA 7 SPA 8

Friday Night Live (High School) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Club Live (Middle School) TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

FNL Kids (Elementary School) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Roadmap School Site(s) To Be Determined TBD 

Provider shall ensure, and maintain documentation that, each FNL, Club Live, 
and FNL Kids chapter:

i. Completes and submits the chapter application, chapter profile, and
advisor information for each school year; and

ii. Submits a monthly activity log (excluding non-instruction months); and

iii. Facilitates at least (1) one chapter meeting per month in the academic
year; and

iv. Organizes at least one youth-led prevention project that focuses on
establishing or changing community standards that addresses
problematic alcohol and other drug (AOD) availability, distribution,
promotion, sales, and consumption, with emphasis on public policy
(excluding FNL Kids chapters), and one social event each school year;
and

v. Conducts the Youth Development Survey annually.

e. Adult Advisors

Each FNL, Club Live, and FNL Kids school site shall have an adult advisor (e.g.,



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 10 of 19 

teacher, principal) charged with guiding implementation of the student-led FNL 
project, and ensuring alignment of efforts with CFNLP and FNL requirements. 
The Provider shall ensure that each adult advisor is trained on CFNLP and FNL 
requirements at least annually and receives one-on-one guidance at least every 
other month regarding site specific implementation efforts. A stipend shall be 
provided for each adult advisor who is not a Provider employee, unless not 
permitted by the advisor’s employer. If a stipend is utilized, the process for 
determining distribution including a contract mechanism outlining the set of 
responsibilities or tasks and the stipend amount shall be approved by Public 
Health-SAPC, and documentation shall be maintained to substantiate these 
requirements.

f. Youth Development

The Provider shall ensure that employees and advisors are trained in youth
development principles, including but not limited to those outlined in the Friday
Night Live/Club Live Youth Development Standards of Practice and Friday Night
Live/Club Live Operating Principles, and are capable of modeling these principles
and fully incorporating them in all efforts. Training shall occur prior to delivery of
services and at least annually thereafter.

g. Youth Council

The Provider shall maintain a youth council that operates year-round and
provides guidance on implementing substance abuse prevention efforts
throughout the County. Development of this council shall be done in collaboration
with the CFNLP.

h. FNL Branding

The Provider shall identify all FNL activities using the appropriate branding and
logos to ensure statewide continuity and project integrity, including all distributed
materials, banners, and posters, and develop and maintain an accessible and
youth friendly FNL webpage that outlines project goals, successes, and other
related information.

i. CORE Components

The components characterize elements within all FNL Programs and how they
implement prevention programming that reflects youth development best
practices. The components define how FNL groups are formed, what services
are provided, and it connects to the community.

j. SPA-based Coalition Meetings

Participate consistently in the SPA-based Coalition and other existing coalition-



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 11 of 19 

related programs and events, which are led and facilitated by the Community 
Collaboration Program (CCP) Provider within your designated SPA. The Coalition 
is comprised of local community residents, (youth and adults), leaders, non-
substance use focused businesses, substance use prevention providers, and 
others from the target city(ies)/community(ies). As a coalition member, the 
Provider shall meet at minimum quarterly, the outcome of which should be 
reflected on meeting agenda, minutes, and sign-in sheets.

k. Public Health-SAPC-led Prevention Advisory Committee

Participate as requested in a monthly Public Health-SAPC-led Prevention Advisory
Committee to guide Countywide prevention efforts. As requested by Public Health-
SAPC, propose innovative ways to implement new and improved programming that
connect youth, young adults, and communities to LAC substance use prevention
services.

l. Environmental Prevention Activities

Support County environmental prevention activities such as coalitions, public
health awareness campaigns and social media and marketing efforts.
Additionally, the Provider shall provide services to the community to support
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Social Determinants of Health: Social determinants of health7 explore diverse 
societal factors that influence health, including substance use risk and protective 
factors. In participating in substance use-related outreach and education, Provider is 
required to address the social determinants of health to fully address the community 
and systems-level factors that directly and indirectly impact substance use and 
misuse within communities. 

Additional Requirements: The Public Health-SAPC Prevention Provider Manual 
and/or associated Public Health-SAPC Bulletins provide additional details on 
programmatic requirements of the MOU, including but not limited to those listed 
above.

6. Data Reporting and Evaluation

a. Data Management: Provider is required to devise a data management plan that
outlines how data is/are to be handled for the duration of the MOU term. The
data management plan should identify what data elements would be collected,
and how this data would be stored and maintained.  Data variables collected may
include gender, race/ethnicity, age, education, health history, knowledge level
and evidence of learning or level of satisfaction, indicated as a scale. Data
management can be implemented through Microsoft Excel, (or other software)

7 Prevention Tactics: Social Determinants of Health: A Common Language for Collaborating Across Sectors available at 
http://www.ca-cpi.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/07/Prevention-Tactics-Vol9-No13-2015.pdf. 



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 12 of 19 

once the data has been collected. Hard copies must be maintained in a locked 
cabinet, and electronic data must be password protected.

b. Web-based data collection system as required by the California Department of
Health Care Services (DHCS). All substance use prevention services provided
per the Work Plan shall be entered into the web-based data collection system as
required by DHCS. Provider shall enter data on a weekly basis, and comply with
meeting monthly reporting timelines, participate in webinar training sessions, and
follow guidelines for reporting prevention service activities. Payments may be
delayed and/or disallowed if data entry is consistently delinquent, inaccurate,
does not fully represent completion of services in the County approved Work
Plan, and/or otherwise does not comply with County and DHCS data reporting
requirements.

c. Annual Evaluation Report: Provider shall coordinate with their program evaluator
to conduct a process and outcome evaluation to determine whether the
Provider’s services, objectives, and outcomes outlined in the County approved
Work Plan were achieved. The Annual Evaluation Report shall be submitted with
the Year-End Report. Provider shall verify that a minimum of five (5) percent, not
to exceed maximum of ten (10) percent of the budget, is allocated for: (1)
program evaluation each fiscal year; (2) how fidelity to the evidence-based
model(s) or practice(s) is maintained and measured; and (3) the qualifications of
the evaluators.

d. County Conducted Assessment and Evaluation: Provider agrees to participate in
any County conducted assessment or evaluation plan to determine comparative
substance use, scope of problems, and prevention program effectiveness.
Examples of County conducted assessments include CNA surveys that aim to
quantify the scope of community conditions as they relate to substance use.

e. Evaluation Trainings: Provider participation shall include, but is not limited to,
training on program evaluation procedures, data collection and reporting,
administration of standardized evaluation and outcome reporting instruments,
completing on-line surveys and interviews as requested, and other requirements
as detailed by the County. Failure of Provider to participate in the evaluation
activities as described shall constitute a breach of MOU may be terminated by
County.

f. Required Reports: The following reports are required annually and must comply
with all requirements outlined in the instructions/templates:

1) Agency-led community assessment reports and results, offering baseline
data on the communities served;

2) Annual Work Plan(s) outlining major activities and associated tasks
achieve goals and objectives as outlined in the Logic Model;

3) Work Plan Amendments (as required) emphasizing new programs or



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 13 of 19 

service areas; 
4) Year-End Report highlighting an annual summary of prevention activities

to determine whether the Provider’s services, objectives, and outcomes
outlined in the County approved Work Plan(s) were achieved;

5) Annual Evaluation Report to present program effectiveness and fidelity.

g. Additional Requirements: The annual prevention budget shall fund evaluation
efforts at a minimum of five (5) percent, and not to exceed ten (10) percent of the
total MOU budget. Additional reports may be required as necessary to ensure
MOU compliance and quality assurance. Report formats will be provided and
claims reimbursement may be delayed if reports are not submitted on-time and
as required. Please refer to the Public Health-SAPC Strategic Prevention Plan
and Public Health-SAPC Prevention Provider Manual for additional information.

E. QUALITY ASSURANCE PLAN

The County may evaluate the Provider’s performance under this MOU using the Substance
Abuse Prevention and Control Master Audit Program; County Standard Terms and
Conditions; as required in the PERFORMANCE BENCHMARKS AND DASHBOARDS
Paragraph of the Contract; as required in the QUALITY CONTROL paragraph of this
Statement of Work, and the following additional requirements:

1. County Audits: County audits shall occur at least once each fiscal year to verify all
administrative and personnel requirements, program activities and deliverables,
measurable outcomes, monthly service data submission, material submission and
approval forms, and County Goals as outlined in the Work Plan and this SOW.
Unsubstantiated and/or incomplete deliverables shall be discussed and cited as a
deficiency in the Program Monitoring Summary Report. Deficiency (ies) shall require a
Corrective Action Plan8 (CAP) that identifies how the agency shall prevent reoccurrence.

2. County Observations: In addition to departmental contracting staff, other County personnel
may observe performance, activities, and review documents relevant to this MOU at any
time during normal business hours. However, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with the Provider’s performance.

F. QUALITY CONTROL

The Provider shall establish and utilize a comprehensive Quality Control Plan to assure a
consistently high level of service throughout the term of the MOU. The Plan shall be submitted
to the designated County contract program auditor for review.  The plan shall include, but may
not be limited to, the following:

8 SAPC Provider Corrective Action Plan Form available at DHCS: Data Collection and Reporting available at 
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/provgovpart/Pages/Primary-Prevention.aspx. 



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 14 of 19 

1. A method of monitoring to ensure that requirements of the MOU are being met.

2. A record of all inspections conducted by the Provider, any corrective action taken, the time
a problem was first identified, a clear description of the problem, and the time that elapsed
between identification and completed corrective action, that shall be provided to the
County upon request.

3. Due to federal, State, and local emphasis on better documentation and assessment of
program effectiveness, the County may, at its sole discretion, require Providers to
participate in County-authorized process and outcome evaluations.

G. MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, AND/OR EQUIPMENT

The purchase of all materials, supplies, and/ or equipment to provide the needed services
is the responsibility of the Provider. Provider shall use materials, equipment, and/or
supplies that are safe for the environment and safe for use by the employee.

The County shall not be liable or responsible for payment of materials or equipment
purchased prior to approval.

H. STAFFING AND TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

1. Program Director: Provider shall designate a Program Director to administer the
prevention services provided under this SOW.  In addition to the Minimum Qualifications
described below, such person shall have a minimum of two (2) years of professional
experience in the areas of:  budgeting, facility operation, fiscal management, personnel,
evidence-based prevention program planning, report writing, documentation of specific
activities, program evaluation and knowledge of State and County funding and
substance use prevention services. Program Director shall act as a central point of
contact with the County. Provider shall provide a phone number and email address
where the Program Director may be reached on an eight (8) hour per day basis during
those hours.

2. Prevention Coordinator: One 100% full-time position must be assigned to the MOU to
serve as the Prevention Coordinator. Unless otherwise designated by the Provider, this
individual will be the primary contact for the MOU, and responsible for oversight of daily
operations.  This includes implementation of the County approved Work Plan; ensuring
compliance with County, State, and federal funding MOU requirements; and,
maintaining compliance with data entry into a web-based data collection system as
required by the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). The Prevention
Coordinator is under the direct supervision of the Program Director.

It is highly recommended that the Prevention Coordinator receive certification as a
Certified Prevention Specialist under the California Consortium of Addiction Programs
and Professionals. Credentialed prevention staff ensure that funded programs are
delivered utilizing the latest evidence-based practices and a thorough understanding of
substance use prevention.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 15 of 19 

3. Program Evaluator: All Providers shall have a Program Evaluator with the following
minimum qualifications:

a. Formal education and training in research methods.

b. Experience in evaluation methods, research skills, as well as specific experience
with the populations and health issues being addressed.

c. Skilled at clearly presenting findings and conclusions to a variety of audiences,
including, but not limited to project staff, program participants, funding agency
representatives, and legislators.

4. Minimum Qualifications: All staff employed (full-time and part-time) under this SOW to
provide direct services must meet the following minimum qualifications:

a. One (1) year of experience providing substance use prevention services prior to
employment. Education may be substituted for experience where coursework is
directly related to substance use prevention, or the public health field.

b. Experience developing, providing, and/or evaluating environmental prevention
programs/services.

c. Experience conducting activities that align with the Spectrum of Prevention
(Appendix A) and Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF) (Appendix B).

d. Experience in leading, facilitating, engaging and/or organizing community
members, schools, businesses, and other stakeholders in the
implementation/adoption of a community and/or population-based effort.

e. Ability to implement evidence-based strategies and prevention concepts to
address substance use related community problems and contributing factors.

f. Competency to work with the various ethnic/cultural groups in the target
area/community(ies).

g. If applicants for positions other than the Program Director and Prevention
Coordinator do not meet the above requirements, other relevant experience (e.g.,
community organizing, other prevention experience) may be substituted if
trainings are provided by an external training organization within three (3) months
of employment.

5. Staff Positions and Vacancies: Provider shall assign a reasonable number of employees
to perform the required work. At least one (1) full-time employee on site shall be
authorized to act for Provider in assuring compliance with contractual obligations at all
times.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 16 of 19 

All positions outlined in the Budget to provide substance use prevention services must 
be filled at the approved designated level and pay scale proportionate with workload
and responsibilities throughout the SOW term. Providers are expected to ensure pay 
equity and a just and professional work culture. 

If any position becomes vacant during the term of this SOW, the Public Health-SAPC
Director or designee must be notified within ten (10) calendar days. All vacancies must 
be filled within ninety (90) calendar days after the vacancy occurs. 

6. Professional and Career Development: Providers shall offer professional, career
development, and advancement opportunities, as well as competitive salary schedules
and benefits to their prevention staff to ensure best human resource practices and
standards in pay equity, hiring, and promotion. Providers shall promote cultural and
linguistic competency and sensitivity through additional trainings and certifications to
increase meaningful engagement with diverse demographic subpopulations of LAC.

7. County Meetings and Training Requirements: The Program Director and/or Prevention
Coordinator shall attend all County and State mandated meetings and trainings, and the
representative(s) in attendance must have the ability to participate and make decisions
in reference to this SOW on behalf of the Provider.

I. REIMBURSEMENT AND CLAIMS SUBMISSION

1. Reimbursement Structure:

Provider will be reimbursed for actual, eligible, reimbursable costs incurred while
providing services designated in this SOW in accordance with the dollar amounts listed
in the Budget, and as such costs are reflected in Provider’s billing statements.  The
definition of "services" shall include time spent performing any service activities
designated in this SOW, and shall also include time spent in preparation for such
service activities.

Reimbursement may be delayed and/or disallowed if Provider is non-compliant with the
terms of the SOW including, but not limited to: failure to complete County approved
Work Plan services on-time and in-full; failure to submit required reports on-time and in-
full; failure to submit data/documentation reflective of all services as outlined in the
County approved Work Plan; failure to accurately document or input service data into
the state of California database as required; and/or failure to otherwise comply with
County and DHCS data reporting and funding requirements. Provider shall regularly
monitor expenditures to ensure full allocation of budgeted amount per MOU term.



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 17 of 19

Appendix A: Prevention Institute: Spectrum of Prevention9

“The Spectrum of Prevention is a systematic tool that promotes a multifaceted range of 
activities for effective prevention. Originally developed by Larry Cohen while working as 
Director of Prevention Programs at the Contra Costa County Health Department, the Spectrum 
is based on the work of Marshall Swift in treating developmental disabilities. It has been used 
nationally in prevention initiatives targeting traffic safety, violence prevention, injury prevention, 
nutrition, and fitness.

The Spectrum identifies multiple levels of intervention and helps people move beyond the 
perception that prevention is merely education. The Spectrum is a framework for a more 
comprehensive understanding of prevention that includes six levels for strategy development. 

These levels, delineated in the table below, are complementary and when used together 
produce a synergy that results in greater effectiveness than would be possible by 
implementing any single activity or linear initiative. At each level, the most important activities 
related to prevention objectives should be identified. As these activities are identified they will 
lead to interrelated actions at other levels of the Spectrum.”

9 Prevention Institute: Spectrum of Prevention available at: 
https://www.preventioninstitute.org/sites/default/files/uploads/1PGR%20Spectrum%20of%20Prevention.pdf



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 18 of 19 

Appendix B. Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF)

PREVENTION FRAMEWORK

To achieve comprehensive, effective, and culturally competent alcohol and other drug (AOD) 
prevention services, Department of Public Health-Public Health-SAPC combines the following 
three frameworks: 

1) Federal Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)
Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF) planning process.

2) SAMHSA’s Center for Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP) prevention
strategies.

3) Institute of Medicine (IOM) classification.

The use of these frameworks is required by the California Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) and is part of the mandatory reporting requirements for a web-based data collection 
system as required by the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). 

SAMHSA’S Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF)10

The SPF is a five-step planning process that systematically guides 
the development of prevention services.  Central to all steps is 
ensuring cultural competency and sustainability. By addressing each 
of these steps, prevention services should: address the needs of the 
target communities and populations; enhance protective factors and 
reduce risk factors in communities; build community capacity and 
collaboration; develop goals and measurable objectives; and 
emphasize evaluation to ensure the prevention program achieves 
the intended outcomes. The following is a brief description of each 
SPF step: 

Step 1: Assess Needs: What is the problem, and how can I learn more?
Step 2: Build Capacity: What do I have to work with?
Step 3: Plan: What should I do, and how should I do it?
Step 4: Implement: How can I put my plan into action?
Step 5: Evaluate: Is my plan succeeding?

10 Strategic Prevention Framework. (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.samhsa.gov/sites/default/files/20190620-samhsa-strategic-prevention-
framework-guide.pdf 



Exhibit I
Attachment A

Page 19 of 19

Appendix C. Member In Good Standing (MIGS) Requirements Overview



Exhibit I
Attachment B 

Page 1 of 3 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
SUBSTANCE USE PREVENTION SERVICES FOR  

FRIDAY NIGHT LIVE (FNL) 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

1. Background and Security Investigations

Each of Agency's staff performing services under this Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU), who is in a designated sensitive position, as determined 

by County in County's sole discretion, shall undergo and pass a background 

investigation to the satisfaction of County as a condition of beginning and 

continuing to perform services under this MOU. Such background investigation 

must be obtained through fingerprints submitted to the California Department of 

Justice to include State, local, and federal-level review, which may include, but 

shall not be limited to, criminal conviction information. The fees associated with 

the background investigation shall be at the expense of the Agency, regardless if 

the member of Agency's staff passes or fails the background investigation. 

Agency shall perform the background check using County’s mail code, routing 

results to the County. 

If a member of Agency’s staff who is in a designated sensitive position 

does not obtain work clearance through the criminal history background review, 

they may not be placed and/or assigned within the Department of Public Health. 

During the term of the MOU, the Department may receive subsequent criminal 

information. If this subsequent information constitutes a job nexus, the Agency 

shall immediately remove staff from performing services under this MOU and 

replace such staff within fifteen (15) days of removal or within an agreed upon 

time with the County. Pursuant to an agreement with the Federal Department of 

Justice, the County will not provide to Agency nor to Agency’s staff any 

information obtained through the County’s criminal history review. 

Disqualification of any member of Agency’s staff pursuant to this section 

shall not relieve Agency of its obligation to complete all work in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of this MOU. 



Exhibit I
Attachment B 

Page 2 of 3 

2. Staffing

In addition to the requirements set forth under this Paragraph, Agency shall

comply with any additional staffing requirements which may be included in the

SOW incorporated herein. General requirements are as follows:

A. Language Skills: Agency is encouraged to recruit and hire staff in service

positions who are fluent in American Sign Language and the primary

language of any special population group being served.

B. Training: Agency shall provide each administrative (i.e., management) and

service employees (i.e., prevention/treatment and support personnel) with

a minimum of twenty (24) hours of training per contract year. For

prevention staff, training on the Strategic Prevention Framework,

environmental prevention strategies, and other evidence-based prevention

strategies that can enhance the quality of prevention services shall fulfill

the aforementioned training requirement for the applicable period. All

training received during the term of this MOU shall be included in the

personnel file of all administrative and service staff employed by Agency.

C. Child Abuse Reporting and Neglect: All staff shall be trained in child abuse

reporting and neglect issues, and requirements of mandated reporters.

(This requirement is not applicable to Evaluation Services).

D. Sexual Harassment and Sexual Contact: Sexual harassment and sexual

contact shall be prohibited between participants, and service employee

staff and administrative staff, including members of the Board of Directors.

Agency shall include a statement in each employee's personnel file noting

that each employee has read and understands the sexual harassment and

sexual contact prohibition. Agency shall include this prohibition policy as

part of an overall participant's rights statement given the participant at the

time of admission. Such prohibition policy shall remain in effect for no less

than six (6) months after a participant exits recovery service program.

(This requirement is not applicable to Evaluation Services).



Exhibit I
Attachment B 

Page 3 of 3 

E. Disability Coordinator: Agency shall designate at least one employee as

"Disability Access Coordinator" to ensure program access for disabled

individuals, and to receive and resolve complaints regarding access for

disabled persons at Agency’s facility(ies). (This requirement is not

applicable to Evaluation Services).



Exhibit I

Page 1 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

Attachment C-1 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 
Period of 07/01/23 

to 06/30/24 

1. Maximum Allocation $ 350,000 

2. Projected Revenue $ 0 

3. Gross Program Allocation $ 350,000 
(Item 1 plus Item 2)

4. Estimated Maximum Monthly Amount/Allocation $ 29,166 



Exhibit I

Page 2 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-1 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 

Period of 07/01/23 
to 06/30/24 

1. Salaries $ 246,256

2. Facility Rent/Lease $ 4,417

3. Equipment Leases $ 3,500 

4. Services and Supplies $ 60,365 

5. Administrative Overhead $ 35,462 

6. Gross Budget $ 350,000 



Exhibit I

Page1 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-2 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 
Period of 07/01/24 

to 06/30/25 

1. Maximum Allocation $ 350,000

2. Projected Revenue $ 0 

3. Gross Program Allocation $ 350,000
(Item 1 plus Item 2)

4. Estimated Maximum Monthly Amount/Allocation $ 29,166 



Exhibit I

Page2 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-2 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 

Period of 07/01/24 
to 06/30/25 

1. Salaries $ 256,210

2. Facility Rent/Lease $ 4,550

3. Equipment Leases $ 0 

4. Services and Supplies $ 53,472 

5. Administrative Overhead $ 35,768 

6. Gross Budget $ 350,000 



Exhibit I

Page 1 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-3 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 
Period of 07/01/25 

to 06/30/26 

1. Maximum Allocation $ 350,000

2. Projected Revenue $ 0 

3. Gross Program Allocation $ 350,000
(Item 1 plus Item 2)

4. Estimated Maximum Monthly Amount/Allocation $ 29,166 



Exhibit I

Page 2 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-3 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 

Period of 07/01/25 
to 06/30/26 

1. Salaries $ 257,939

2. Facility Rent/Lease $ 4,686

3. Equipment Leases $ 0 

4. Services and Supplies $ 51,619 

5. Administrative Overhead $ 35,756 

6. Gross Budget $ 350,000 



Exhibit I

Page 1 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-4 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 
Period of 07/01/26 

to 06/30/27 

1. Maximum Allocation $ 350,000

2. Projected Revenue $ 0 

3. Gross Program Allocation $ 350,000
(Item 1 plus Item 2)

4. Estimated Maximum Monthly Amount/Allocation $ 29,166 



Exhibit I

Page 2 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-4 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 

Period of 07/01/26 
to 06/30/27 

1. Salaries $ 260,231

2. Facility Rent/Lease $ 4,827

3. Equipment Leases $ 0 

4. Services and Supplies $ 49,199 

5. Administrative Overhead $ 35,743 

6. Gross Budget $ 350,000 



Exhibit I

Page 1 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-5 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 
Period of 07/01/27 

to 06/30/28 

1. Maximum Allocation $ 350,000

2. Projected Revenue $ 0 

3. Gross Program Allocation $ 350,000
(Item 1 plus Item 2)

4. Estimated Maximum Monthly Amount/Allocation $ 29,166 



Exhibit I

Page 2 of 2 

LOS ANGELES COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Attachment C-5 

Substance Use Prevention Services for

Friday Night Live (FNL)

COST REIMBURSEMENT: 

Period of 07/01/27 
to 06/30/28 

1. Salaries $ 260,231

2. Facility Rent/Lease $ 4,971

3. Equipment Leases $ 0 

4. Services and Supplies $ 49,068 

5. Administrative Overhead $ 35,730 

6. Gross Budget $ 350,000 



Exhibit I 
Attachment D 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

- 1 -

A. Financial Records:  Agency shall prepare and maintain on a current basis, complete financial
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; written guidelines,
standards, and procedures which may from time to time be promulgated by Director; and
requirements set forth in the Los Angeles County Auditor-Controller’s MOU Accounting and
Administration Handbook.  The handbook is available on the internet at:
AC Contract Accounting and Administration Handbook - June 2021 (lacounty.gov)

B. Federally funded Agencies shall adhere to strict fiscal and accounting standards and must comply
with Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and related Office of
Management and Budget Guidance.
Such records shall clearly reflect the actual cost of the type of service for which payment is
claimed and shall include, but not be limited to:
(1) Books of original entry which identifies all designated donations, grants, and other
revenues, including County, federal, and State revenues and all costs by type of service.
(2) A General Ledger.
(3) A written cost allocation plan which shall include reports, studies, statistical surveys, and
all other information Agency used to identify and allocate indirect costs among Agency’s various
services.  Indirect Costs shall mean those costs incurred for a common or joint objective which
cannot be identified specifically with a particular project or program.
(4) Personnel records which show the percentage of time worked providing service claimed
under this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  Such records shall be corroborated by
payroll timekeeping records, signed by the employee and approved by the employee’s supervisor,
which show time distribution by programs and the accounting for total work time on a daily basis.
This requirement applies to all program personnel, including the person functioning as the
executive director of the program, if such executive director provides services claimed under this
MOU.
(5) Personnel records which account for the total work time of personnel identified as
indirect costs in the approved contract budget.  Such records shall be corroborated by payroll
timekeeping records signed by the employee and approved by the employee’s supervisor.  This
requirement applies to all such personnel, including the executive director of the program, if such
executive director provides services claimed under this MOU.

The entries in all of the aforementioned accounting and statistical records must be readily 
traceable to applicable source documentation (e.g., employee timecards, remittance advice, 
vendor invoices, appointment logs, client/patient ledgers). The client/patient eligibility 
determination and fees charged to, and collected from clients/patients must also be reflected 
therein.  All financial records shall be retained by Agency at a location within Los Angeles 
County during the term of this MOU and for a minimum period of seven years following 
expiration or earlier termination of this MOU, or until federal, State and/or County audit findings 
are resolved, whichever is later.  During such retention period, all such records shall be made 
available during normal business hours within 10 calendar days, to authorized representatives of 
federal, State, or County governments for purposes of inspection and audit.  In the event records 
are located outside Los Angeles County and Agency is unable to move such records to Los 
Angeles County, Agency shall permit such inspection or audit to take place at an agreed to 
outside location, and Agency shall pay County for all travel, per diem, and other costs incurred by 
County for any inspection and audit at such other location.  Agency further agrees to provide such 
records, when possible, immediately to County by facsimile/FAX, or through the Internet (i.e., 
electronic mail [“e-mail”]), upon Director’s request.  Director’s request shall include appropriate 
County facsimile/FAX number(s) and/or e-mail address(es) for Agency to provide such records to 



- 2 -

County.  In any event, Agency agrees to make available the original documents of such FAX and 
e-mail records when requested by Director for review as described hereinabove.

C. Audit Reports:  In the event that an audit of any or all aspects of this MOU is conducted by any
federal or State auditor, or by any auditor or accountant employed by Agency or otherwise,
Agency shall file a copy of each such audit report(s) with the Chief of the Public Health MOU
Monitoring Division, and with County’s Auditor-Controller (Auditor-Controller’s Audit Branch)
within 30 calendar days of Agency’s receipt thereof, unless otherwise provided for under this
MOU, or under applicable federal or State regulations.  To the extent permitted by law, County
shall maintain the confidentiality of such audit report(s).

D. Independent Audit: Agency’s financial records shall be audited by an independent auditor in
compliance with 2 CFR 200.501.  The audit shall be made by an independent auditor in
accordance with Governmental Financial Auditing Standards developed by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and any other applicable federal, State, or County statutes, policies,
or guidelines. Agency shall complete and file such audit report(s) with the County’s Public
Health MOU Monitoring Division no later than the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s
report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period.

If the audit report(s) is not delivered by Agency to County within the specified time, Director
may withhold all payments to Agency under all service agreements between County and Agency
until such report(s) is/are delivered to County.

The independent auditor’s work papers shall be retained for a minimum of three years from the
date of the report, unless the auditor is notified in writing by County to extend the retention
period.  Audit work papers shall be made available for review by federal, State, or County
representative upon request.

E. Federal Access to Records:  If, and to the extent that, Section 1861 (v) (1) (I) of the Social
Security Act [42 United States Code (“U.S.C.”) Section 1395x(v) (1) (I)] is applicable, Agency
agrees that for a period of seven years following the furnishing of services under this MOU,
Agency shall maintain and make available, upon written request, to the Secretary of the United
States Department of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United
States, or to any of their duly authorized representatives, the contracts, books, documents, and
records of Agency which are necessary to verify the nature and extent of the cost of services
provided hereunder.  Furthermore, if Agency carries out any of the services provided hereunder
through any subcontract with a value or cost of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) or more over a 12-
month period with a related organization (as that term is defined under federal law), Agency
agrees that each such subcontract shall provide for such access to the subcontract, books,
documents, and records of the Subcontractor.

F. Federal Certification and Disclosure Requirement: Because federal monies are to be used to pay
for Agency's services under this MOU, Agency shall comply with all certification and disclosure
requirements prescribed by Section 319, Public Law 101-121 (Title 31, U.S.C., Section 1352) and
any implementing regulations, and shall ensure that each of its Subcontractors receiving funds
provided under this MOU also fully comply with all such certification and disclosure
requirements.



- 3 -

G. CONTRACTOR'S EXCLUSION FROM PARTICIPATION IN A FEDERALLY FUNDED
PROGRAM:  Agency hereby warrants that neither it nor any of its staff members is restricted or
excluded from providing services under any health care program funded by the federal
government, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, and that Agency will notify Director within
30 calendar days in writing of:  (1) any event that would require Agency or a staff member's
mandatory exclusion from participation in a federally funded health care program; and, (2) any
exclusionary action taken by any agency of the federal government against Agency or one or
more staff members barring it or the staff members from participation in a federally funded health
care program, whether such bar is direct or indirect, or whether such bar is in whole or in part.

Agency shall indemnify and hold County harmless against any and all loss or damage County
may suffer arising from any federal exclusion of Agency or its staff members from such
participation in a federally funded health care program.

Failure by Agency to meet the requirements of this Paragraph shall constitute a material breach of
contract upon which County may immediately terminate or suspend this MOU.

H. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION - LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS (45 C.F.R. PART
76):  Agency hereby acknowledges that the County is prohibited from contracting with and
making sub-awards to parties that are suspended, debarred, ineligible or excluded from securing
federally funded contracts.  By executing this MOU, Agency certifies that neither it, nor any of its
owners, officers, partners, directors or principals are currently suspended, debarred, ineligible, or
excluded from securing federally funded contracts.  Further, by executing this MOU, Agency
certifies that, to its knowledge, none of its Subcontractors, at any tier, or any owner, officer,
partner director, or other principal of any Subcontractor is currently suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or excluded from securing federally funded contracts.  Agency shall immediately
notify County in writing, during the term of this MOU, should it or any of its Subcontractors or
any principals of either being suspended, debarred, ineligible, or excluded from securing federally
funded contracts.  Failure of Agency to comply with this provision shall constitute a material
breach of this MOU upon which the County may immediately terminate or suspend this MOU.

18D. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS: 
A. Per federal statute 41 United States Code (U.S.C.) 4712, all employees working for

contractors, grantees, Subcontractors, and subgrantees on federal grants and contracts are
subject to whistleblower rights, remedies, and protections and may not be discharged,
demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as a reprisal for whistleblowing.  In addition,
whistleblowing protections cannot be waived by any agreement, policy, form, or
condition of employment.

B. Whistleblowing is defined as making a disclosure “that the employee reasonably
believes” is evidence of any of the following: gross mismanagement of a federal contract
or grant; a gross waste of federal funds; an abuse of authority relating to a federal
contract or grant; a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety; or a
violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal contract or grant (including the
competition for, or negotiation of, a contract or grant).  To qualify under the statute, the
employee’s disclosure must be made to: a member of Congress, or a representative of a
Congressional committee; an Inspector General; the Government Accountability Office;
a federal employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management at the
relevant agency; an official from the Department of Justice, or other law enforcement



- 4 -

agency; a court or grand jury; or a management official or other employee of the 
contractor, Subcontractor, grantee, or subgrantee who has the responsibility to 
investigate, discover, or address misconduct. 

C. The National Defense Authorization Act for fiscal year 2013, enacted January 2, 2013,
mandates a Pilot Program for Enhancement of Agency Employee Whistleblower
Protections that requires that all grantees, their subgrantees, and Subcontractors inform
their employees working on any federal award that they are subject to the whistleblower
rights and remedies of the pilot program; inform their employees in writing of the
employee whistleblower protections under statute 41 U.S.C. 4712 in the predominant
native language of the workforce; and include such requirements in any agreement made
with a Subcontractor or subgrantee.

18E.   MOST FAVORED PUBLIC ENTITY:  If Agency’s prices decline, or should Agency at any time 
during the term of this MOU provide the same goods or services under similar quantity and delivery 
conditions to the State of California or any county, municipality, or district of the State at prices 
below those set forth in this MOU, then such lower prices shall be immediately extended to the 
County. 

22. NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES REGARDING THE FEDERAL EARNED INCOME CREDIT:
Agency must notify its employees, and will require each Subcontractor to notify its employees,
that they may be eligible for the Federal Earned Income Credit under the federal income tax laws.
Such notice must be provided in accordance with the requirements set forth in Internal Revenue
Service Notice No. 1015.

23. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
A. Any documents submitted by Agency; all information obtained in connection with the

County’s right to audit and inspect the Agency’s documents, books, and accounting records
pursuant to the RECORD RETENTION AND AUDITS Paragraph of this MOU; as well as
those documents which were required to be submitted in response to the solicitation process
for this MOU, become the exclusive property of the County.  All such documents become a
matter of public record and will be regarded as public records.  Exceptions will be those
elements in the California Government Code Section 7921.000 et seq. (Public Records Act)
and which are marked “trade secret,” “confidential,” or “proprietary.”  The County will not
in any way be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any such records including, without
limitation, those so marked, if disclosure is required by law, or by an order issued by a
court of competent jurisdiction.

B. In the event the County is required to defend an action on a Public Records Act request for
any of the aforementioned documents, information, books, records, and/or contents of a
proposal marked “trade secret,” “confidential,” or “proprietary,” Agency agrees to defend
and indemnify the County from all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s
fees, in action or liability arising under the Public Records Act.

24. PURCHASES:
A. Purchase Practices:  Agency shall fully comply with all federal, State, and County laws,

ordinances, rules, regulations, manuals, guidelines, and directives, in acquiring all furniture,
fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies.  Such items shall be acquired at the lowest
possible price or cost if funding is provided for such purposes hereunder.



- 5 -

B. Proprietary Interest of County:  In accordance with all applicable federal, State, and County
laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, manuals, guidelines, and directives, County shall retain
all proprietary interest, except for use during the term of this MOU, in all furniture, fixtures,
equipment, materials, and supplies, purchased or obtained by Agency using any MOU funds
designated for such purpose.  Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this MOU, the
discontinuance of the business of Agency, the failure of Agency to comply with any of the
provisions of this MOU, the bankruptcy of Agency or its giving an assignment for the benefit
of creditors, or the failure of Agency to satisfy any judgment against it within 30 calendar
days of filing, County shall have the right to take immediate possession of all such furniture,
removable fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies, without any claim for reimbursement
whatsoever on the Agency's part.  Agency, in conjunction with County, shall attach
identifying labels on all such property indicating the proprietary interest of County.

C. Inventory Records, Controls, and Reports:  Agency shall maintain accurate and complete
inventory records and controls for all furniture, fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies,
purchased or obtained using any contract funds designated for such purpose.  Annually,
Agency shall provide Director with an accurate and complete inventory report of all furniture,
fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies, purchased or obtained using any County funds
designated for such purpose.

D. Protection of Property in Agency's Custody:  Agency must maintain vigilance and take all
reasonable precautions, to protect all furniture, fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies,
purchased or obtained using any MOU funds designated for such purpose, against any
damage or loss by fire, burglary, theft, disappearance, vandalism, or misuse.  Agency must
contact Director for instructions for disposition of any such property which is worn out or
unusable.

E. Disposition of Property in Agency's Custody:  Upon the termination of the funding of any
program covered by this MOU, or upon the expiration or early termination of this MOU, or at
any other time that County may request, Agency shall:  (1) provide access to and render all
necessary assistance for physical removal by Director or authorized representatives, of any or
all furniture, fixtures, equipment, materials, and supplies, purchased or obtained using any
County funds designated for such purpose, in the same condition as such property was
received by Agency, reasonable wear and tear expected; or, (2) at Director's option, deliver
any or all items of such property to a location designated by Director.  Any disposition,
settlement, or adjustment connected with such property shall be in accordance with all
applicable federal, State, and County laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, manuals,
guidelines, and directives. 









BOARD LETTER/MEMO
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

Board Letter    Board Memo  Other

CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/19/2023 

BOARD MEETING DATE 5/2/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT
AFFECTED

  All     1st 2nd 3rd 4th   5th   

DEPARTMENT(S) Department of Public Health

SUBJECT AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT AND SIGN GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER 22-
10885 AND FUTURE AGREEMENTS AND/OR AMENDMENTS FROM THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH FOR THE SYPHILIS OUTBREAK 
STRATEGY PROJECT

PROGRAM Division of HIV and STD Programs

AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT

Yes   No  

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT   Yes     No 

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS

July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027 

COST & FUNDING Total cost: 
$11,871,681 

Funding source: 
California Department of Public Health 

TERMS (if applicable):July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027

Explanation: Funding will allow Public Health to support the expansion of syphilis 
prevention and treatment services in Los Angeles County.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST Authorization to accept and sign Grant Agreement Number 22-10885 and future 
agreements and/or amendments from the California Department of Public Health to 
support Syphilis Outbreak Strategy Project which provides a maximum obligation of 
$11,871,681 for the period effective July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2027.

BACKGROUND
(include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

The new funding under this Standard Agreement was allocated to eight local health 
jurisdictions (LHJs) with high rates of early syphilis or Congenital Syphilis (CS) and to 
support innovative and impactful syphilis and CS prevention and control activities, with 
a focus on disproportionately impacted populations. Public Health will use the new 
SOS funds to do the following activities: expand syphilis testing for persons who could 
get pregnant through partnership with Syringe Support Programs (SSP), homeless 
health care providers, and emergency departments (ED); conduct quality improvement 
activities to improve linkage by County Public Health staff of early syphilis cases to HIV 
prevention and reproductive health care services; implement a specialized 
investigation team and a clinical field team to identify syphilis clusters and outbreaks 
and provide field based medical care; expand access to medications for syphilis 
treatment, financial incentives, temporary housing, and transportation assistance for 
people with syphilis to facilitate treatment completion; medical provider training. 

EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how:  (2) Develop and implement strategies that identify, prioritize 
and effectively support the most disadvantaged geographies and populations. 

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES 

  Yes            No  
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how: 2. Alliance for Health Integration; 
services integrate services across health services and public health to assist client’s 
access to care and address mental health 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email:
Joshua Bobrowsky, Director Government Affairs, Public Health (213) 288-7871, 
jbobrowsky@ph.lacounty.gov  
Emily Issa, Senior Deputy County Counsel, (213) 974-1827 
eissa@counsel.lacounty.gov 



May 2, 2023

The Honorable Board of Supervisors  
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Supervisors:

AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT AND SIGN GRANT AGREEMENT
NUMBER 22-10885 AND FUTURE AGREEMENTS AND/OR AMENDMENTS 

FROM THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH FOR 
THE SYPHILIS OUTBREAK STRATEGY PROJECT

(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES)

SUBJECT

Provide authorization to accept and sign Grant Agreement Number 22-10885 and future 
agreements and/or amendments from the California Department of Public Health to 
support the Syphilis Outbreak Strategy Project. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Authorize and instruct the Director of the Department of Public Health (Public
Health), or designee, to accept and sign Grant Agreement (GA) Number 22-10885
(Exhibit I) received from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for the
term of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2027, at a maximum obligation of
$11,871,681, to support implementing the Syphilis Outbreak Strategy (SOS)
project, that includes innovative and impactful syphilis and congenital syphilis
prevention and control activities with a focus on disproportionately impacted
populations. The general terms and conditions that are incorporated into the GA
include provisions requiring the County to indemnify the State against all claims
and losses related to this grant and to waive all claims and recourse against the
State related to this project.

BARBARA FERRER, Ph.D., M.P.H., M.Ed.
Director

MUNTU DAVIS, M.D., M.P.H.
County Health Officer

MEGAN McCLAIRE , M.S.P.H.
Chief Deputy Director

313 North Figueroa Street, Room 806 
Los Angeles, California 90012
TEL (213) 288-8117 FAX (213) 975-1273

www.publichealth.lacounty.gov

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Hilda L. Solis 
First District

Holly J. Mitchell 
Second District

Lindsey P. Horvath 
Third District

Janice Hahn 
Fourth District

Kathryn Barger 
Fifth District



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023 
Page 2 
 
2. Delegate authority to the Director of Public Health, or designee, to accept future

GAs and/or amendments from CDPH that are consistent with the requirements of 
the GA referenced in Recommendation 1 that extend the term or funding at 
amounts to be determined by CDPH; reflect revisions to the award’s terms and 
conditions to include but not be limited to the rollover of unspent funds, redirection 
of funds, and/or an increase or decrease in funding, subject to review and approval 
by County Counsel, and notification to your Board and the Chief Executive Office.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approval of Recommendation 1 will allow Public Health to accept and sign GA Number 
22-10885 from the CDPH to support the SOS project activities.    
 
The new funding under this GA was allocated to eight local health jurisdictions with high 
rates of early syphilis or Congenital Syphilis (CS) and to support innovative and impactful 
syphilis and CS prevention and control activities, with a focus on disproportionately 
impacted populations as determined by local or regional syphilis and CS epidemiology, 
which may include, but are not limited to, African American/Black people, Latinx people, 
American Indians/Alaska Native people, trans women, people who can get pregnant,
people experiencing homelessness or who use drugs, (e.g., people who exchange sex 
for money, drugs, or a place to stay), and gay, bisexual, and other men who have sex 
with men. 

The amount of annual funding was determined by a non-competitive formula set forth in 
the 2022 California Budget Act, allocating 40% of funds based on CS and 60% of funds 
based on early syphilis cases. 

Public Health will use the new SOS funds to support the following activities: expand 
syphilis testing for persons who could get pregnant through partnership with Syringe 
Support Programs, homeless health care providers, and emergency departments;
conduct quality improvement activities to improve linkage by County Public Health staff 
of early syphilis cases to HIV prevention and reproductive health care services; implement 
a specialized investigation team and a clinical field team to identify syphilis clusters and 
outbreaks and provide field based medical care; expand access to medications for 
syphilis treatment, financial incentives, temporary housing, and transportation assistance 
for people with syphilis to facilitate treatment completion; medical provider training. In 
addition, Public Health will hire 10 temporary personnel through As-Needed Temporary 
Personnel Services (ANTPS) contracts, as approved by the Board on December 20, 
2022, to provide some of the implementation and oversight activities referenced above.
Utilizing the ANTPS will allow Public Health to complete grant deliverables on time.  

Public Health will continue to link people diagnosed with or at risk for syphilis to County 
Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) clinics. To increase syphilis testing, Public Health
will increase funding to existing community STD clinics to support the processing of 
syphilis lab costs, as needed.  



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023 
Page 3 
 
Approval of Recommendation 2 will allow Public Health to accept future GAs and/or 
amendments from CDPH that are consistent with the requirements of the GA that extend 
the funding period at amounts to be determined by CDPH and reflect revisions to the 
GA’s terms and conditions to include but not be limited to the rollover of unspent funds, 
redirection of funds, and/or increase or decrease in funding. This authority is being 
requested to enhance Public Health’s efforts to expeditiously maximize grant revenue, 
consistent with Board Policy 4.070: Full Utilization of Grant Funds. 
 
Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

The recommended actions support Strategy l.2, Enhance Our Delivery of Comprehensive 
Interventions, of the County’s Strategic Plan.
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

Public Health will accept GA Number 22-10885 from CDPH for the SOS Project, in the 
amount of $11,871,681, consisting of $2,374,336, annually for the budget period of  
July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2027. These funds will be used to support new syphilis 
prevention and control activities, including increasing funds to existing community-based 
organizations providing STD screening, diagnosis, treatment and linked referral services 
in the County, to provide syphilis screening. 
 
Funding is not included in Public Health’s fiscal year (FY) 2022-23 Final Adopted Budget. 
Public Health will be preparing supplemental budget adjustments to the FY 2022-23 
budget and will include funding in future FY budgets. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

On November 14, 2022, Public Health was notified by CDPH STD Control Branch 
of the intent to award State local assistance funds through the SOS Grant, a one-time 
appropriation in the 2022 California Budget Act for spend down from July 1, 2022, 
through June 30, 2027, through GA Number 22-10885. 
 
There is no net County cost associated with this action.
 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 

Approval of the recommended actions will allow Public Health to support the expansion 
of syphilis prevention and treatment services in Los Angeles County.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

Barbara Ferrer, Ph.D., M.P.H., M.Ed. 
Director 



The Honorable Board of Supervisors
May 2, 2023
Page 4
 
BF:ml
BL# 06894

Enclosure

c: Chief Executive Officer
County Counsel
Executive Officer, Board of Supervisors 



State of California Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Public Health
CDPH 1229 (12/2021)

Page 1 of 4

CALIFORNIA SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASES BRANCH

STD Program Management

Awarded By

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH, hereinafter Departme

TO

County of Los Angeles, hereinafter Grantee

Implementing the Syphilis Outbreak Strategy, hereinafter roject

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER 22-10885

The Department awards this Grant, and the Grantee accepts and agrees to use the Grant
funds as follows:

AUTHORITY: The Department has authority to grant funds for the Project Health and 
Safety Code, Section 131085(a).

PURPOSE: The Department shall award this Grant Agreement to and for the benefit of the
Grantee; the purpose of the grant is to support innovative and impactful syphilis and 
congenital syphilis (CS) prevention and control activities, with a focus on disproportionately 
impacted populations as determined by local or regional syphilis and CS epidemiology, 
which may include, but are not limited to, African American/Black people, Latinx people, 
American Indians/Alaska Native people, trans women, pregnant people experiencing 
homelessness or who use drugs, (e.g., people who exchange sex for money, drugs, or a place to 
stay), and gay, bisexual, and other men who have sex with men (MSM). Funds shall be used 
to supplement, but not supplant, existing financial and resource commitments of the local 
health jurisdiction for sexually transmitted disease prevention and control activities. Funds 
shall be used to supplement, but not supplant, existing financial and resource commitments 
of the local health jurisdiction for sexually transmitted disease prevention and control 
activities.

GRANT AMOUNT: The maximum amount payable under this Grant Agreement shall not
exceed the amount of $11,871,681.00.

TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT: The term of the Grant shall begin July 1, 2022 and
terminates on June 30, 2027. No funds may be requested or invoiced for services
performed or costs incurred after June 30, 2027.



State of California  Health and Human Services Agency  California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 2 of 4 

 
PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES. The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant will 
be: 
  
 
California Department of Public Health 

 
Grantee: County of Los Angeles 

Name: Alexia McGonagle, Section Chief 
 STD Control Branch 

Name: Elizabeth Escobedo 
 Grant Manager 

Address: P.O. Box 997377, MS 7320 Address:  600 S. Commonwealth Ave., 10th fl. 

City, ZIP: Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 City, ZIP: Los Angeles, CA 90005 

Phone: (916) 628-5222 Phone: (213) 351-8093 

E-mail: Alexia.McGonagle@cdph.ca.gov E-mail: eescobedo@ph.lacounty.gov 
 
 

Direct all inquiries to the following representatives: 

  
California Department of Public Health, 

STD Control Branch 

 
Grantee: County of Los Angeles 

Attention: Adriana Cervantes, Grant Manager Attention: Elizabeth Escobedo 

Address: P.O. Box 997377, MS 7320 Address: 600 S. Commonwealth Ave., 10th fl. 

City, Zip: Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 City, Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90005 

Phone: (279) 667-1464 Phone: (213) 351-8093 

E-mail: Adriana.Cervantes@cdph.ca.gov E-mail: eescobedo@ph.lacounty.gov 
 
  
All payments from CDPH to the Grantee; shall be sent to the following address:  
 

Remittance Address 
 

Grantee: County of Los Angeles 

Attention: Sine Yohannes 

Address: 600 S. Commonwealth Ave., 10th fl. 

City, Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90005 

Phone: (213) 351-1138 

E-mail: SYohannes@ph.lacounty.gov 
 



State of California  Health and Human Services Agency  California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 3 of 4 

 
Either party may make changes to the Project Representatives, or remittance address, by 
giving a written notice to the other party, said changes shall not require an amendment to 
this agreement but must be maintained as supporting documentation. Note: Remittance 
address changes will require the Grantee to submit a completed CDPH 9083 Governmental 
Entity Taxpayer ID Form or STD 204 Payee Data Record Form and the STD 205 Payee 
Data Supplement which can be requested through the CDPH Project Representatives for 
processing. 
 
STANDARD GRANT PROVISIONS.  The Grantee must adhere to all Exhibits listed and any 
subsequent revisions. The following Exhibits are attached hereto or attached by reference 
and made a part of this Grant Agreement:  
 
Exhibit A AWARD LETTER, FUNDING ALLOCATIONS/ALLOCATION PROCESS 
 
Exhibit A ATTACHMENT 1  GRANT ACTIVITIES, this document is the final Grant  
 Activities and shall be incorporated by reference or attached hereto.  
 
Note: Once the Grant Agreement has been fully executed, requests for 
modifications/changes thereafter to the existing Exhibit A and/or Exhibit A, Attachment 1, do 
not require a formal amendment but must be agreed to in writing by both parties.  The 
CDPH/Grantee Project Representatives are responsible for keeping records of approved 
modifications/changes.  Such modifications/changes must be made at least 30 days prior to 
implementation.  A formal written amendment is required when there is an increase or 
decrease in funding or a change in the term of the agreement. 
 
Exhibit B BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
Exhibit C STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS  
 
Exhibit D ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 
Exhibit E STD LOCAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS  STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 
 
Exhibit F INFORMATION PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of California  Health and Human Services Agency  California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (12/2021) 

Page 4 of 4 

 
GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS: The Grantee(s) accept all terms, provisions, and 
conditions of this grant, including those stated in the Exhibits incorporated by reference 
above. The Grantee(s) shall fulfill all assurances and commitments made in the application, 
declarations, other accompanying documents, and written communications (e.g., e-mail, 
correspondence) filed in support of the request for grant funding.  The Grantee(s) shall 
comply with and require its  to comply with all applicable laws, policies, and 
regulations. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant on the dates set forth below. 
 
Executed By: 
 
Date: 

 

      

  

   Barbara Ferrer, Ph.D., M.P.H. M.Ed. 
Director 
County of Los Angeles 
Department of Public Health 
313 N. Figueroa Street, Room 806 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 

 
Date: 

 

      

  

   Javier Sandoval, Chief 
Contracts Management Unit 
California Department of Public Health 
1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 74.262 
P.O. Box 997377, MS 1800-1804 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 

 



Exhibit A – Attachment 1 
Syphilis and Congenital Syphilis Outbreak Strategy 

Grant Activities 
 
 

Page 1 of 17 

1. Service Overview 
 

The California Department of Public Health (CDPH), Sexually Transmitted Disease Branch 
(STDCB) shall provide a grant to and for the benefit of the Grantee. Funded by the 2022 
California State Budget Act, nine million dollars for FY 2022-2023 has been appropriated for the 
Syphilis and Congenital Syphilis (CS) Outbreak Strategy (SOS) for eight local health jurisdictions 
(Grantee). Subsequent allocation of nine million each for FY 2023-24 and FY 2024-25 will be 
made available if funds are appropriated through the California state budget and available for 
spend down from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027.   

 
The Grantee will use this funding to expand existing syphilis and congenital syphilis activities.  
Funding is intended to support innovative and impactful syphilis and congenital syphilis 
prevention and control activities, with a focus on disproportionately impacted populations as 
determined by local or regional syphilis and congenital syphilis epidemiology, which may include, 
but are not limited to, African American/Black people, Latinx people, American Indians/Alaska 
Native people, trans women, pregnant people experiencing homelessness or who use drugs, 
(e.g., people who exchange sex for money, drugs, or a place to stay), and gay, bisexual, and 
other men who have sex with men (MSM). Grantees will be expected to describe how they have 
centered priority populations based on local epidemiology. Funds shall be used to supplement, 
but not supplant, existing financial and resource commitments of the local health jurisdiction for 
sexually transmitted disease prevention and control activities. 

 
All Grantees must adhere to the Grant Activities and STDCB Terms and Conditions, and any 
subsequent revisions, along with all instructions, policy memorandums, or directives issued by 
CDPH/STDCB. CDPH/STDCB will make any changes and/or additions to these guidelines in 
writing and, whenever possible, notification of such changes shall be made 30 days prior to 
implementation. 

 
2. Service Location 
 

The services shall be performed at applicable facilities within the Grantee’s jurisdiction. 
 
3. Service Hours 
 

The services shall be primarily provided Monday through Friday, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and 
include evenings, weekends, and holidays as needed. 

 
4. Project Representatives  

 
The project representative for the Syphilis and Congenital Syphilis Outbreak Strategy grants at 
CDPH/STDCB is Adriana Cervantes at Adriana.Cervantes@cdph.ca.gov.  
 

5. Services to be Performed 

See the attached Grant Activities as follows for a description of the services to be performed.  
 



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 2

 o
f 

1
7

G
ra

nt
e

e
s 

ar
e

 e
nc

o
ur

a
ge

d
 t

o 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 t

o 
a

d
dr

es
si

ng
 e

a
rly

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
an

d 
co

n
ge

ni
ta

l s
yp

hi
lis

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

a
n

d 
co

nt
ro

l t
ha

t 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
sp

e
ci

fic
al

ly
 li

st
e

d 
in

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
es

 b
el

ow
. 

In
no

va
tiv

e 
a

p
pr

oa
ch

e
s 

m
u

st
 b

e 
de

sc
rib

ed
 in

 t
he

 n
ar

ra
tiv

e 
p

o
rt

io
n 

of
 e

a
ch

 p
a

rt
.  

T
h

e 
th

re
e

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
G

ra
nt

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

re
 f

oc
u

se
d 

o
n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ta
rg

et
s:

  
 

P
a

rt
 I:

 H
e

al
th

 A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

A
ll:

 S
yp

h
il

is
 T

es
ti

n
g

, T
re

at
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

H
ea

lt
h

 C
a

re
 f

oc
u

se
s 

on
 s

yp
hi

lis
 t

e
st

in
g,

 t
re

a
tm

en
t, 

an
d 

po
st

-
e

xp
o

su
re

 p
ro

ph
yl

ax
is

 (
D

ox
yP

E
P

) 
to

 in
te

rr
up

t 
o

ng
oi

n
g 

sy
ph

ili
s 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 a
n

d 
pr

ev
e

nt
 a

d
ve

rs
e

 o
ut

co
m

es
.  

L
in

ka
g

es
 t

o 
p

re
n

at
al

, 
p

re
co

n
ce

pt
io

n 
or

 f
am

ily
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
ca

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 in
cl

u
de

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 u
ni

n
te

nd
ed

 p
re

gn
a

nc
ie

s 
in

 p
e

op
le

 w
h

o 
d

o
 n

ot
 w

a
nt

 to
 b

e
co

m
e

 
p

re
gn

an
t,

 a
n

d 
to

 p
re

ve
n

t a
dv

e
rs

e 
ou

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
p

re
gn

an
t 

pe
op

le
, i

nc
lu

d
in

g
 c

on
g

en
ita

l s
yp

h
ili

s.
 

 
P

a
rt

 II
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s:

 H
o

u
s

in
g

, M
e

n
ta

l H
e

al
th

, 
an

d
 S

u
b

st
a

n
ce

 U
s

e 
fo

cu
se

s 
on

 w
ra

p
-a

ro
u

nd
 s

e
rv

ic
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d
 a

s 
p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

sy
p

hi
lis

 a
nd

 c
o

ng
en

ita
l s

yp
h

ili
s 

p
re

ve
nt

io
n

.  
G

ra
nt

ee
s 

m
us

t i
de

nt
ify

 a
t l

e
as

t 
on

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 fr
om

 P
ar

t 
II.

  
 

P
a

rt
 II

I:
 C

o
re

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 D

is
ea

se
 In

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

 f
o

cu
se

s 
o

n 
co

re
 p

u
bl

ic
 h

ea
lth

 f
u

nc
tio

n
s 

th
at

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
e

t b
y 

ex
is

tin
g

 lo
ca

l, 
st

a
te

, 
or

 fe
de

ra
l f

u
nd

in
g

 a
nd

 is
 c

o
ns

id
er

e
d 

a
n 

op
tio

n
al

 u
se

 o
f t

h
es

e
 fu

nd
s.

  
 

 P
a

rt
 I.

 H
ea

lt
h

 A
c

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
A

ll
: 

S
y

p
h

ili
s 

T
e

st
in

g
, T

re
at

m
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 O

th
er

 H
e

al
th

 C
ar

e
.  

G
ra

nt
 A

ct
iv

iti
e

s 
A

 –
 C

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
  

G
ra

nt
e

es
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ch
o

os
e 

o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e
 o

pt
io

na
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 D
 –

 L
, 

bu
t 

ar
e 

no
t 

re
q

ui
re

d
.  

P
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

d
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

os
e

d 
ap

pr
o

ac
h 

to
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
d

 a
nd

 s
el

e
ct

e
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 t

h
e 

a
re

a 
pr

ov
id

e
d 

u
nd

er
 e

a
ch

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 t

he
 ta

bl
e

. 
D

e
sc

rib
e 

h
ow

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
e

e 
w

ill
 c

e
nt

er
 r

a
ci

a
l e

qu
ity

 in
 t

he
ir

 a
ct

iv
iti

e
s 

u
nd

er
 t

he
 P

ar
t I

 N
ar

ra
tiv

e 
se

ct
io

n.
  

 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

A
.

In
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o 

sy
p

h
ili

s 
sc

re
en

in
g

 
a

nd
 p

re
gn

an
cy

 t
es

tin
g 

in
 s

e
tti

n
gs

 t
ha

t 
se

rv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

p
op

ul
a

tio
n

s 
in

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

ne
 

se
tt

in
g,

 s
uc

h 
a

s 
h

om
e

le
ss

 
e

nc
a

m
pm

en
ts

, 
co

m
m

u
ni

ty
-b

as
e

d 
o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 (
C

B
O

),
 c

or
re

ct
io

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 e

m
er

g
en

cy
 d

ep
ar

tm
e

nt
s 

(E
D

),
 

m
en

ta
l h

e
a

lth
 c

ar
e 

pr
og

ra
m

s/
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 
h

ar
m

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
pr

o
gr

am
s,

 s
yr

in
g

e 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

, 
su

bs
ta

n
ce

 u
se

 
d

is
o

rd
e

r 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

s,
 in

st
itu

tio
n

s 
o

f 
h

ig
h

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l s
et

tin
gs

, 
a

nd
 f

a
ith

-b
as

e
d 

or
ga

n
iz

at
io

n
s.

 

N
um

b
er

 o
f s

yp
h

ili
s 

te
st

s 
pe

rf
or

m
e

d
N

um
b

er
 o

fp
re

g
na

nc
y 

te
st

s 
p

er
fo

rm
e

d 
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: N
u

m
be

r/
pe

rc
en

t 
of

 r
e

ac
tiv

e 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

es
ts

/to
ta

l n
u

m
be

r 
of

 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

e
st

s 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: N
u

m
be

r 
of

 n
ew

 s
yp

hi
lis

 d
ia

g
no

se
s/

to
ta

l n
u

m
be

r 
of

 p
o

si
tiv

e 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

e
st

s 
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: N
u

m
be

r 
of

 n
ew

 d
ia

g
no

si
s 

th
at

 r
e

ce
iv

ed
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
tr

e
at

m
e

nt
 

fo
r 

st
a

ge
/N

um
b

er
 o

f 
ne

w
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

di
a

gn
os

e
s 

 W
he

re
 p

os
si

b
le

: 
 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d 
sy

ph
ili

s 
ca

se
s/

to
ta

l n
u

m
be

r 
of

 p
o

si
tiv

e 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

e
st

s 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

vi
o

us
ly

 d
ia

g
no

se
d 

sy
ph

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

in
a

de
qu

a
te

ly
 

tr
e

at
e

d 
at

 ti
m

e 
o

f 
te

st
/N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

vi
o

us
ly

 d
ia

g
no

se
d

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

 
N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

vi
o

us
ly

 d
ia

g
no

se
d 

sy
ph

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

in
a

de
qu

at
el

y 
tr

e
at

e
d 

at
 ti

m
e 

o
f 

te
st

 w
ho

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d 

a
de

qu
a

te
 t

re
at

m
en

t/
N

um
be

r 
of

 
p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
d

ia
gn

o
se

d
 s

yp
hi

lis
 c

a
se

s

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 3

 o
f 

1
7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 
  

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e
B

.
In

cr
ea

se
 lo

w
-b

a
rr

ie
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
sy

p
hi

lis
 

tr
e

at
m

e
nt

 a
n

d/
or

 D
o

xy
P

E
P

 a
m

on
g 

p
rio

rit
y 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, s

u
ch

 a
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

n
o

n-
3

40
b-

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
m

e
di

ca
tio

n
 t

o
 r

ed
uc

e 
a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
re

st
ri

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
pr

o
vi

d
er

s.
 

(e
.g

.,
 B

ic
ill

in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
, 

co
rr

e
ct

io
n

al
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 e
m

e
rg

e
nc

y 
d

ep
ar

tm
e

nt
s,

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
se

tt
in

g
s;

 
a

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 o

f s
yp

h
ili

s 
tr

e
at

m
e

nt
 in

 t
he

 
fie

ld
; 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
o

f 
D

o
xy

P
E

P
).

 

N
um

b
er

 o
f B

ic
ill

in
 d

o
se

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
er

s
N

um
b

er
 o

f B
ic

ill
in

 d
o

se
s 

de
liv

er
ed

/a
dm

in
is

te
re

d
in

 t
h

e 
fie

ld
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: N
u

m
be

r 
of

 D
ox

yP
E

P
 p

re
sc

ri
pt

io
ns

/d
os

es
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 t
o 

p
at

ie
nt

s 
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: N
u

m
be

r 
of

 e
ar

ly
 s

yp
hi

lis
 c

a
se

s 
re

ce
iv

in
g

 t
re

at
m

e
n

t/t
ot

a
l 

n
um

be
r 

o
f e

ar
ly

 s
yp

hi
lis

 c
a

se
s 

di
ag

n
os

e
d 

 B
y 

se
tti

ng
: N

u
m

be
r 

of
 p

re
gn

an
t 

p
eo

p
le

 w
ith

 s
yp

hi
lis

 r
ec

e
iv

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
tr

e
at

m
e

nt
/to

ta
l n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

pr
eg

na
nt

 p
eo

pl
e 

di
a

gn
os

e
d 

w
ith

 s
yp

hi
lis

 
 B

y 
se

tti
ng

: M
e

di
a

n 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
a

ys
 b

et
w

e
en

 e
ar

ly
 s

yp
hi

lis
 d

ia
g

no
si

s 
a

nd
 tr

ea
tm

e
nt

 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

C
.

L
in

k 
p

eo
pl

e
 d

ia
gn

o
se

d
 w

ith
 o

r 
a

t r
is

k 
fo

r 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

o
 c

lin
ic

a
l s

e
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

p
re

ve
nt

 
se

xu
a

lly
 t

ra
ns

m
itt

e
d 

in
fe

ct
io

n
s 

(S
T

I)
, 

H
IV

, 
u

ni
nt

en
de

d 
pr

e
gn

an
cy

, a
nd

 a
dv

e
rs

e 
p

re
gn

an
cy

 o
ut

co
m

e
s 

(e
.g

.,
 H

IV
 

P
rE

P
/P

E
P

, 
D

o
xy

P
E

P
, 

fa
m

ily
 p

la
n

ni
n

g,
 

p
re

na
ta

l c
ar

e
).

 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

lin
ka

g
e 

pr
ot

o
co

ls
N

um
b

er
 o

f l
in

ka
g

es
 t

o 
H

IV
 P

re
P

/P
E

P
, 

D
ox

yP
E

P
, f

a
m

ily
 p

la
nn

in
g

, 
a

nd
/o

r 
p

re
n

at
al

 c
a

re
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 4

 o
f 

1
7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

c
e 

a 

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 

D
. 

In
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o 

tr
a

ns
p

o
rt

at
io

n 
fo

r 
te

st
in

g,
 t

re
at

m
en

t f
ol

lo
w

-u
p

, 
an

d/
o

r 
p

re
na

ta
l c

ar
e

 v
is

its
 f

or
 p

rio
rit

y 
po

p
ul

at
io

n
s 

(e
.g

.,
 v

ia
 h

e
al

th
-a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d

 r
id

e 
sh

ar
e 

p
ro

gr
am

s,
 tr

a
ns

p
or

ta
tio

n
 

vo
uc

h
er

s/
to

ke
ns

).
 

 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
at

io
n 

vo
u

ch
e

rs
/r

id
e

s 
p

ro
vi

de
d 

N
um

b
er

/p
er

ce
nt

of
 tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 v

o
uc

h
er

s
re

su
lti

n
g 

in
 s

u
cc

es
sf

ul
 

a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

ar
e

 fo
r 

an
y 

o
f t

he
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

e
st

in
g

, t
re

a
tm

en
t, 

or
 f

o
llo

w
-u

p
 

(w
he

re
 f

ea
si

b
le

) 
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 E
. 

U
til

iz
e 

e
xi

st
in

g 
C

O
V

ID
-1

9 
te

st
in

g,
 

tr
e

at
m

e
nt

 a
n

d 
va

cc
in

at
io

n 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
fo

r 
sy

p
hi

lis
 a

n
d 

pr
e

gn
an

cy
 t

e
st

in
g,

 
tr

e
at

m
e

nt
, a

nd
 d

is
e

a
se

 
in

te
rv

e
nt

io
n/

co
n

ta
ct

 tr
a

ci
n

g
. 

 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f s

yp
h

ili
s 

te
st

 p
e

rf
or

m
e

d 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

g
na

nc
y 

te
st

s 
p

er
fo

rm
e

d
  

 N
um

b
er

 o
f r

e
ac

tiv
e 

sy
ph

ili
s 

te
st

s/
to

ta
l n

um
b

er
 o

f s
yp

h
ili

s 
te

st
s 

p
er

fo
rm

e
d 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f n

e
w

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
di

a
gn

os
e

s/
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
o

si
tiv

e 
sy

ph
ili

s 
te

st
s 

N
um

b
er

 o
f n

ew
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 t
ha

t r
e

ce
iv

e
d 

a
d

eq
ua

te
 t

re
a

tm
en

t/
N

um
b

er
 o

f 
n

ew
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

d
ia

g
no

se
s

W
he

re
 p

os
si

b
le

: 
 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d 
sy

ph
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

/ t
ot

a
l n

um
b

er
 o

f 
p

os
iti

ve
 s

yp
hi

lis
 t

e
st

s 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

vi
o

us
ly

 d
ia

g
no

se
d 

sy
ph

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
th

at
 w

er
e 

in
a

de
qu

at
el

y 
tr

e
at

e
d 

at
 ti

m
e 

o
f 

te
st

/N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d 
sy

ph
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
in

a
de

qu
at

el
y 

tr
e

at
e

d 
at

 ti
m

e 
o

f 
te

st
 w

ho
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d 
a

de
qu

a
te

 t
re

at
m

en
t /

 N
um

b
er

 o
f 

p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

d
ia

gn
o

se
d

 s
yp

hi
lis

 c
as

es
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 5

 o
f 

1
7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 
   

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e

  O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

ce
 a

  

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 F

. 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 a

n
d/

or
 fu

n
d 

lo
ca

l C
B

O
s 

o
r 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 w
o

rk
er

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
a

w
a

re
n

es
s 

of
 a

n
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

lin
ka

ge
s 

to
 

sy
p

hi
lis

 t
e

st
in

g,
 D

ox
yP

E
P

, 
H

IV
 

P
rE

P
/P

E
P

, f
a

m
ily

 p
la

nn
in

g
, 

a
nd

/o
r 

p
re

na
ta

l c
ar

e
 (

e.
g.

, 
pr

o
m

o
to

re
 p

ro
gr

a
m

s,
 

p
er

in
a

ta
l h

e
al

th
 p

ro
gr

a
m

s 
se

rv
in

g 
B

IP
O

C
, 

C
B

O
s 

se
rv

in
g 

LG
B

T
Q

 
co

m
m

u
ni

tie
s,

 o
ut

re
a

ch
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
fo

r 
p

eo
pl

e 
ex

p
er

ie
nc

in
g 

h
om

e
le

ss
n

es
s,

 
m

en
ta

l h
e

a
lth

 c
ar

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s/

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 

in
st

itu
tio

n
s 

of
 h

ig
he

r 
e

du
ca

tio
n,

 
a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, 

fa
ith

-b
a

se
d 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n

s,
 

a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 s

er
vi

ng
 p

eo
pl

e
 w

h
o 

u
se

 d
ru

g
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ha
rm

 r
e

du
ct

io
n

 
p

ro
gr

am
s,

 s
yr

in
g

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

o
vi

d
e

rs
, 

an
d 

su
bs

ta
n

ce
 u

se
 d

is
or

de
r 

pr
ov

id
er

s)
.  

 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

co
lla

b
or

at
io

n 
w

ith
 s

ta
ke

h
ol

d
er

s  
7

/1
/2

2 
–

6/
30

/2
7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 6

 o
f 

1
7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

c
e 

a 

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 G

. 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a
nd

/o
r 

im
pl

em
e

nt
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 f
or

 
w

ar
m

 h
an

d-
of

fs
 t

o 
pa

tie
nt

 n
a

vi
g

at
or

s 
o

r 
D

IS
 f

or
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
, l

in
ka

g
e 

to
 o

n
go

in
g

 
te

st
in

g,
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
a

n
d 

o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 

E
D

s,
 c

or
re

ct
io

n
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
se

tt
in

gs
 w

h
er

e
 lo

ss
 t

o 
fo

llo
w

-u
p 

is
 h

ig
h.

   
 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

pr
ot

o
co

l f
or

 w
a

rm
 h

a
nd

-o
ff

s 
N

um
b

er
 o

f i
n

di
vi

du
a

ls
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

lly
 li

nk
e

d 
to

 c
ar

e
/to

ta
l n

u
m

be
r 

of
 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

s 
re

fe
rr

e
d 

to
 D

IS
 o

r 
na

vi
ga

to
rs

  
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 H
. 

P
a

rt
n

er
 w

ith
 a

 c
lin

ic
 o

r 
st

re
e

t-
m

ed
ic

in
e 

p
ro

gr
am

 t
o 

es
ta

b
lis

h
 tr

a
um

a
-in

fo
rm

e
d,

 
h

ar
m

 r
ed

uc
tio

n-
ce

nt
er

ed
 s

yp
hi

lis
 t

es
tin

g 
a

nd
/o

r 
p

re
n

at
al

 c
a

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
cu

se
d 

o
n 

p
rio

rit
y 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
n

g 
pr

eg
na

n
t 

p
eo

pl
e 

ex
p

er
ie

nc
in

g 
h

om
e

le
ss

n
es

s 
a

nd
/o

r 
u

si
ng

 d
ru

gs
. 

 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f s

yp
h

ili
s 

te
st

 p
e

rf
or

m
e

d 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

g
na

nc
y 

te
st

s 
p

er
fo

rm
e

d
  

 N
um

b
er

 o
f r

e
ac

tiv
e 

sy
ph

ili
s 

te
st

s/
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
te

st
s 

p
er

fo
rm

e
d 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f n

e
w

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
di

a
gn

os
e

s/
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
o

si
tiv

e 
sy

ph
ili

s 
te

st
s 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f n

e
w

 d
ia

gn
os

is
 t

ha
t r

e
ce

iv
e

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
 tr

ea
tm

e
nt

/n
um

be
r 

of
 

n
ew

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
d

ia
g

no
se

s 
 W

he
re

 p
os

si
b

le
: 

 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f p
re

vi
o

us
ly

 d
ia

g
no

se
d 

sy
ph

ili
s 

ca
se

s/
to

ta
l n

u
m

be
r 

of
 p

o
si

tiv
e 

sy
p

hi
lis

 t
e

st
s 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d 
sy

ph
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
in

a
de

qu
at

el
y 

tr
e

at
e

d 
at

 ti
m

e 
o

f 
te

st
/n

um
be

r 
of

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

d
ia

gn
os

ed
 s

yp
hi

lis
 c

a
se

s 
 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f p

re
vi

o
us

ly
 d

ia
g

no
se

d 
sy

ph
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
in

a
de

qu
at

el
y 

tr
e

at
e

d 
at

 ti
m

e 
o

f 
te

st
 w

ho
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d 
a

de
qu

a
te

 t
re

at
m

en
t/

n
um

b
er

 o
f 

p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

d
ia

gn
o

se
d

 s
yp

hi
lis

 c
as

es
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 7

 o
f 

1
7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 
  

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 I.

 
Im

p
le

m
en

t/e
xp

an
d 

an
d 

ev
al

u
at

e 
h

om
e

 
se

lf-
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
ph

ili
s 

te
st

in
g

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
ki

ts
 o

rd
er

e
d 

by
 g

e
nd

er
 id

en
tit

y/
se

x 
at

 b
irt

h 
N

um
b

er
 o

f c
o

lle
ct

io
n 

ki
ts

 r
et

ur
n

ed
, 

b
y 

S
T

I 
a

nd
 g

en
de

r 
id

e
nt

ity
/s

ex
 a

t 
b

irt
h

  
 N

um
b

er
/p

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
p

os
iti

ve
 t

e
st

s,
 b

y 
S

T
I 

an
d 

ge
nd

er
 id

en
tit

y/
se

x 
at

 b
irt

h 
 W

he
re

 p
os

si
b

le
, 

nu
m

be
r/

pe
rc

en
t o

f p
e

op
le

 w
ith

 p
o

si
tiv

e
 t

e
st

s 
w

h
o 

re
ce

iv
ed

 tr
e

at
m

e
nt

, b
y 

S
T

I 
a

nd
 g

e
n

de
r 

id
en

tit
y/

se
x 

at
 b

ir
th

 
 A

ve
ra

g
e

 ti
m

e 
to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
ro

m
 d

ia
gn

os
is

 b
y 

S
T

I a
nd

 g
en

de
r 

id
e

nt
ity

/s
e

x 
a

t b
irt

h 
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 
 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 J
. 

T
ra

in
 m

ed
ic

al
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 h
e

al
th

 s
e

rv
ic

e 
p

ro
vi

de
rs

 in
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

sc
re

en
in

g
, 

d
ia

g
no

si
s,

 
a

nd
 tr

ea
tm

e
nt

, 
tr

a
um

a-
in

fo
rm

ed
 

a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

to
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e,
 m

ed
ic

al
 

m
is

tr
us

t,
 a

nd
/o

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l h
e

al
th

 
b

el
ie

fs
 a

n
d 

pr
a

ct
ic

es
. 

   

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
of

 t
ra

in
in

g
of

fe
re

d
 N

um
b

er
 a

nd
 t

yp
e

 o
f 

pr
o

vi
de

rs
 (

e.
g

.,
 in

te
rn

a
l m

ed
ic

in
e,

 f
am

ily
 m

e
di

ci
n

e,
 

O
b

st
et

ri
cs

/G
yn

e
co

lo
gy

, E
m

er
g

en
cy

 D
e

pa
rt

m
en

t)
 a

tt
en

d
in

g 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 e

va
lu

a
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

  



E
x

h
ib

it
 A

 –
 A

tt
ac

h
m

e
n

t 
1

S
y

p
h

il
is

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

g
e

n
it

al
 S

y
p

h
ili

s 
O

u
tb

re
a

k 
S

tr
at

e
g

y 
G

ra
n

t 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
a

ge
 8

 o
f 

1
7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 K

. 
Im

p
le

m
en

t a
 s

o
ci

al
 m

a
rk

e
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n

 
to

 in
cr

e
as

e
 a

w
ar

e
ne

ss
 o

f 
sy

p
hi

lis
, 

p
re

na
ta

l a
n

d 
fa

m
ily

 p
la

nn
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
es

 
a

va
ila

b
le

 f
or

 p
eo

p
le

 a
t r

is
k 

fo
r 

sy
p

hi
lis

.  
 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

so
ci

al
 m

a
rk

et
in

g 
ca

m
p

ai
gn

 
C

am
p

ai
g

n 
re

ac
h 

a
nd

 e
ng

ag
em

e
nt

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 L
. 

O
th

er
 in

n
ov

at
iv

e 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

fu
l a

p
pr

oa
ch

 
th

at
 in

cr
e

as
e

s 
a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
yp

hi
lis

 t
e

st
in

g
, 

tr
e

at
m

e
nt

, o
r 

pr
en

at
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
am

on
g

 
p

op
ul

at
io

n
s 

a
t r

is
k 

fo
r 

sy
ph

ili
s.

  
P

le
a

se
 

d
es

cr
ib

e
 in

 t
h

e 
n

ar
ra

tiv
e 

se
ct

io
n 

be
lo

w
.  

 

 
P

le
a

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

d
ic

at
or

s 
fo

r 
‘o

th
er

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
’ 

 
7

/1
/2

2 
–

6/
30

/2
7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

P
A

R
T

 I
 N

A
R

R
A

T
IV

E
. 

P
le

as
e

 d
es

cr
ib

e
 h

ow
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

ee
 w

ill
 c

e
n

te
r 

ra
ci

al
 e

qu
ity

in
 im

pl
em

e
nt

in
g 

th
e 

a
ct

iv
iti

es
 li

st
ed

 in
 P

ar
t 

I.
  



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

ge
 9

 o
f 

1
7

P
a

rt
 II

. 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 S

er
vi

c
es

: 
H

o
u

si
n

g
, M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lt

h
, 

an
d

 S
u

b
st

a
n

ce
 U

se
.  

G
ra

nt
e

e
s 

m
us

t 
ch

o
o

se
 a

t 
le

as
t o

ne
 o

p
tio

na
l G

ra
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

 f
ro

m
 P

ar
t I

I. 
 P

le
a

se
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 d
e

sc
ri

pt
io

n 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

os
e

d 
a

p
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

se
le

ct
e

d 
a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

pr
ov

id
ed

 u
nd

er
 e

ac
h 

a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 t

h
e 

ta
b

le
. 

 D
e

sc
rib

e 
ho

w
 t

h
e 

G
ra

n
te

e 
w

ill
 c

en
te

r 
ra

ci
al

 e
q

ui
ty

 in
 th

ei
r 

a
ct

iv
iti

es
 u

n
de

r 
th

e 
P

a
rt

 I
I N

a
rr

a
tiv

e 
se

ct
io

n.
 

 
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

  O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

ce
 a

  

  
   

  
ch

e
c

km
ar

k
 in

 t
h

e
 b

o
x 

o
n

ly
 i

f 
G

ra
n

te
e

  
  

   
  

p
la

n
s 

to
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

a
te

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y.

 
 A

. 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

o
r 

m
ai

n
ta

in
 a

 s
yp

hi
lis

-f
oc

u
se

d
 

ta
sk

 f
or

ce
 o

r 
co

m
m

u
ni

ty
 a

d
vi

so
ry

 b
o

ar
d

, 
in

cl
u

di
n

g 
n

o
n-

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 p

a
rt

ne
rs

 b
a

se
d 

o
n 

lo
ca

l s
yp

h
ili

s 
a

n
d 

co
ng

e
ni

ta
l s

yp
hi

lis
 

e
pi

de
m

io
lo

g
y 

(e
.g

.,
 L

G
B

T
Q

 
o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

, W
om

e
n,

 In
fa

n
t, 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

(W
IC

),
 c

h
ild

 
p

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

e
s,

 m
en

ta
l h

e
a

lth
 

p
ro

gr
am

s,
 c

om
m

u
ni

ty
-b

as
e

d 
pe

rin
at

al
 

h
ea

lth
 p

ro
gr

am
s,

 C
B

O
s 

se
rv

in
g

 p
eo

pl
e

 
w

ho
 u

se
 d

ru
g

s)
. 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f t

a
sk

fo
rc

e
/c

o
m

m
u

ni
ty

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 b

o
ar

d 
m

e
m

be
rs

, g
oa

ls
, 

a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

         



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
0

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 
B

. 
C

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l M

at
e

rn
a

l, 
C

h
ild

, 
a

nd
 A

d
ol

e
sc

en
t 

H
e

a
lth

 (
M

C
A

H
) 

a
nd

/o
r 

o
th

e
r 

su
pp

or
tiv

e
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

(e
.g

., 
p

ub
lic

 h
e

al
th

 n
ur

si
ng

, 
pe

ri
n

at
a

l e
qu

ity
 

in
iti

a
tiv

e,
 B

IH
) 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 c
a

se
 

m
an

ag
e

m
e

nt
 o

n 
a

ll 
pr

e
gn

an
t 

sy
p

h
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

an
d/

o
r 

sy
p

hi
lis

 c
a

se
s 

am
o

ng
 

w
om

e
n 

of
 r

e
pr

o
du

ct
iv

e
 a

g
e 

(1
5-

4
5+

).
 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

co
lla

b
or

at
iv

e 
a

ct
iv

iti
e

s 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f c
as

e
s 

re
fe

rr
ed

 f
or

 e
n

ha
nc

ed
 c

as
e 

m
an

a
ge

m
en

t 
 N

um
b

er
 o

f c
as

e
s 

th
at

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
e

n
ha

nc
e

d 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
e

nt
  

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7 
   

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 C
. 

P
ro

vi
de

 h
ot

e
l/m

ot
el

 s
ta

ys
 f

or
 p

eo
pl

e
 w

h
o 

a
re

 u
ns

ta
b

ly
 h

o
us

ed
 d

u
rin

g 
co

u
rs

e 
of

 la
te

 
sy

p
hi

lis
 t

re
at

m
e

nt
 a

n
d 

lin
k 

to
 m

or
e

 
p

er
m

an
en

t 
h

ou
si

ng
 s

o
lu

tio
ns

. 

N
um

b
er

 o
f h

ot
el

/m
o

te
l s

ta
ys

 p
ro

vi
de

d
N

um
b

er
/p

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
pe

o
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

ho
te

l/m
o

te
l s

ta
ys

 t
h

at
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

a
de

qu
at

e 
tr

e
at

m
en

t, 
b

y 
ge

n
de

r 
id

e
nt

ity
/s

e
x 

at
 b

irt
h

 a
nd

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 

st
a

tu
s 

 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

  



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
1

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 D
. 

C
ol

la
bo

ra
te

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
n

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

u
ni

ty
 d

ev
el

o
pm

e
nt

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

de
 lo

w
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

ho
u

si
ng

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
fo

r 
pe

o
pl

e 
di

a
gn

os
e

d 
w

ith
, 

or
 a

t 
ris

k 
fo

r,
 s

yp
h

ili
s.

 
 

 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

co
lla

b
or

at
io

n
 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f i

n
di

vi
d

ua
ls

 w
ho

 w
e

re
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 s

u
pp

or
tiv

e
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 N
um

b
er

 o
f i

n
di

vi
d

ua
ls

 w
ho

 t
h

at
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

su
p

po
rt

iv
e

 s
e

rv
ic

es
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

  
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 E
. 

P
a

rt
n

er
 w

ith
 L

H
J 

be
ha

vi
or

al
 h

e
al

th
 o

r 
C

B
O

 im
pl

em
e

nt
in

g
 c

o
nt

in
g

e
nc

y 
m

an
ag

e
m

e
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 u
si

ng
 

st
im

u
la

nt
s 

(e
.g

.,
 D

ep
ar

tm
e

nt
 o

f 
H

ea
lth

 
C

ar
e

 S
e

rv
ic

es
 C

o
n

tin
g

en
cy

 M
a

na
ge

m
en

t 
P

ilo
t 

P
ro

gr
am

).
 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/r
ef

er
ra

l s
ys

te
m

 
N

um
b

er
 o

f r
ef

er
ra

ls
 t

o 
co

n
tin

g
e

nc
y 

m
a

na
ge

m
en

t a
m

on
g 

pe
op

le
 

d
ia

gn
os

ed
 w

ith
, 

or
 a

t 
ris

k 
fo

r,
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

c
ti

vi
ty

:

  



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
2

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 F
. 

O
th

er
 in

n
ov

at
iv

e 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

fu
l a

p
pr

oa
ch

 
to

 s
yp

hi
lis

 a
nd

/o
r 

co
n

ge
ni

ta
l s

yp
hi

lis
 

p
re

ve
n

tio
n 

fo
cu

se
d 

o
n 

su
p

po
rt

iv
e 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
  

P
le

as
e 

d
es

cr
ib

e
 in

 t
h

e 
n

ar
ra

tiv
e

 s
e

ct
io

n
 b

el
o

w
. 

P
le

as
e

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 f

or
 ‘o

th
er

 in
n

ov
at

iv
e

 a
pp

ro
ac

h
’ 

 
7

/1
/2

2 
–

6/
30

/2
7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 

P
A

R
T

 I
IN

A
R

R
A

T
IV

E
. P

le
as

e
 d

es
cr

ib
e

 h
ow

 t
he

 G
ra

nt
ee

 w
ill

 c
en

te
r 

ra
ci

al
 e

qu
ity

in
 im

pl
em

e
nt

in
g 

th
e 

a
ct

iv
iti

e
s 

lis
te

d
 in

 P
ar

t I
I.

  
                 



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
3

of
 1

7

P
a

rt
 II

I. 
C

o
re

 S
u

rv
ei

ll
an

c
e 

an
d

 D
is

e
as

e 
In

te
rv

en
ti

o
n

 –
 O

P
T

IO
N

A
L

.  
G

ra
nt

e
e

s 
m

ay
 s

el
e

ct
 s

u
rv

ei
lla

n
ce

 a
n

d/
o

r 
di

se
as

e 
in

te
rv

e
nt

io
n

 r
e

la
te

d 
G

ra
nt

 A
ct

iv
iti

e
s 

in
 P

ar
t 

II
I a

fte
r 

us
in

g 
ot

h
er

 f
ed

er
a

l, 
st

at
e

, a
nd

 lo
ca

l f
u

nd
s 

fo
r 

su
rv

ei
lla

nc
e 

a
nd

 d
is

ea
se

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n

. M
ar

k 
th

e 
ch

ec
kb

o
x 

b
el

o
w

 
if 

G
ra

n
te

e 
w

is
h

es
 t

o 
op

t 
o

ut
 o

f 
P

ar
t 

II
I. 

 F
or

 G
ra

nt
ee

s 
w

is
hi

n
g 

to
 o

p
t i

n
to

 P
a

rt
 II

I,
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 t

h
e 

p
ro

p
os

e
d 

ap
pr

o
ac

h
 t

o 
th

e 
se

le
ct

e
d 

ac
tiv

iti
e

s 
in

 th
e 

a
re

a
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

un
de

r 
ea

ch
 a

ct
iv

ity
 in

 t
he

 t
ab

le
.  

D
es

cr
ib

e
 h

ow
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

ee
 w

ill
 c

e
n

te
r 

ra
ci

al
 e

qu
ity

 in
 t

h
ei

r 
a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
u

nd
er

 th
e

 P
a

rt
 II

I N
a

rr
at

iv
e 

se
ct

io
n.

 
 

 
P

a
rt

 II
I 

N
o

t 
A

p
p

li
ca

b
le

.  
P

la
ce

 a
 c

h
ec

km
ar

k 
in

 t
he

 b
ox

 if
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

ee
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

u
se

 g
ra

nt
 f

un
ds

 f
or

 c
or

e 
su

rv
e

ill
a

nc
e

 a
nd

 d
is

ea
se

  
in

te
rv

e
nt

io
n.

 
 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

T
im

el
in

e

  O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
: 

 P
la

ce
 a

  

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 
A

. 
C

on
du

ct
 e

n
ha

nc
ed

, c
a

se
-b

as
e

d 
su

rv
ei

lla
nc

e 
fo

r 
e

ar
ly

 s
yp

hi
lis

 a
nd

 
co

ng
en

ita
l s

yp
h

ili
s.

  
 

P
e

rc
en

t o
f f

em
a

le
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
(a

ll 
st

a
ge

s)
 w

ith
 c

om
p

le
te

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
p

re
gn

an
cy

 s
ta

tu
s 

(f
em

al
e

s 
a

ge
d 

1
2-

4
4)

, 
es

tim
at

ed
 d

at
e 

o
f d

el
iv

e
ry

 if
 

p
re

gn
an

t,
 tr

ea
tm

e
nt

 d
at

e(
s)

, 
st

ag
e-

a
pp

ro
p

ria
te

 m
e

di
ca

tio
n,

 a
n

d 
do

sa
g

e,
 

H
IV

 s
ta

tu
s,

 r
ac

e/
et

h
ni

ci
ty

 
P

e
rc

en
t o

f n
e

on
at

es
 e

xp
o

se
d 

to
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

w
ith

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

bi
rt

h 
o

ut
co

m
e 

an
d 

a
p

pr
op

ria
te

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
on

 t
h

e 
C

o
ng

en
ita

l S
yp

hi
lis

 C
as

e 
R

ep
or

t 
F

or
m

 
 P

er
ce

n
t 

of
 m

a
le

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
a

nd
 s

e
co

n
da

ry
 s

yp
hi

lis
 c

as
es

 w
ith

 c
o

m
pl

e
te

 
d

at
a

 fo
r 

tr
ea

tm
e

nt
 d

at
e

, s
ta

te
-a

p
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ed
ic

at
io

n/
do

sa
g

e
, H

IV
 

st
a

tu
s,

 a
nd

 g
en

de
r 

an
d 

pr
e

gn
an

cy
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 s
e

x 
pa

rt
n

er
s 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7 
         

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

          



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
4

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 B
. 

E
n

su
re

 ti
m

e
ly

 in
ve

st
ig

a
tio

n
s 

o
f 

al
l 

re
p

or
te

d 
re

ac
tiv

e 
se

ro
lo

gi
c 

te
st

s 
fo

r 
sy

p
hi

lis
 a

nd
 c

o
nd

uc
t 

di
se

as
e

 in
te

rv
e

nt
io

n 
fo

r 
ea

rly
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

an
d 

co
ng

e
ni

ta
l s

yp
hi

lis
 

ca
se

s.
 

 P
er

ce
n

t 
of

 e
a

rly
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
am

on
g 

pr
io

ri
tiz

ed
 p

op
ul

a
tio

n
s 

(e
.g

.,
 

M
S

M
, 

pr
eg

na
n

t p
eo

pl
e

) 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 t
re

at
e

d 
 P

er
ce

n
t 

of
 e

a
rly

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

am
on

g 
pr

io
ri

tiz
ed

 p
op

ul
a

tio
n

s 
(e

.g
.,

 
M

S
M

, 
pr

eg
na

n
t p

eo
pl

e
) 

w
ith

 a
t l

e
as

t 
o

ne
 p

ar
tn

er
 tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

d
ay

s 
b

ef
o

re
 o

r 
af

te
r 

in
de

x 
cl

ie
nt

 s
pe

ci
m

e
n

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n 

  

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7 

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 

    
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 C
. 

A
ss

es
s 

pr
eg

na
n

cy
 in

te
n

tio
n

 a
m

o
n

g 
p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 c

a
n 

be
co

m
e 

pr
e

gn
an

t a
nd

 
lin

k 
to

 p
re

co
n

ce
p

tio
n 

ca
re

, 
pr

en
at

al
 c

ar
e,

 
o

r 
fa

m
ily

 p
la

n
ni

ng
/c

o
nt

ra
ce

pt
iv

e
 

co
un

se
lin

g
, 

as
 d

es
ire

d.
 

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

 o
f 

D
IS

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 f

or
 li

nk
ag

es
 t

o 
pr

ec
on

ce
p

tio
n

, 
pr

en
at

al
, 

or
 

fa
m

ily
 p

la
nn

in
g/

co
nt

ra
ce

p
tiv

e 
ca

re
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
5

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 D
. 

E
m

b
ed

 D
IS

 o
r 

na
vi

ga
to

rs
 in

 h
ar

m
 

re
d

uc
tio

n
 p

ro
gr

am
s,

 L
G

B
T

Q
+

 c
en

te
rs

, 
e

m
e

rg
e

nc
y 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ts

, 
co

rr
ec

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

o
r 

ot
he

r 
pr

o
gr

am
s 

w
ith

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
m

or
b

id
ity

. 
  

 P
er

ce
n

t 
of

 e
a

rly
 s

yp
h

ili
s 

ca
se

s 
fr

om
 p

ar
tic

ip
a

tin
g

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
 

a
de

qu
at

el
y 

tr
e

at
ed

  
 P

er
ce

n
t 

of
 e

a
rly

 s
yp

h
ili

s 
ca

se
s 

fr
om

 p
ar

tic
ip

a
tin

g
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e 

pa
rt

n
e

r 
tr

ea
te

d 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 b
ef

or
e 

or
 a

fte
r 

in
d

ex
 c

lie
nt

 
sp

ec
im

en
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n 
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 

   
A

c
ti

vi
ti

e
s

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

T
im

el
in

e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 E
. 

T
ra

in
 D

IS
 o

n 
ra

ci
a

l e
q

ui
ty

, t
ra

um
a

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 c

ar
e

, h
a

rm
 r

e
du

ct
io

n
, 

in
tim

at
e 

p
ar

tn
er

 v
io

le
nc

e 
pr

ev
e

nt
io

n/
re

sp
on

se
, 

so
ci

a
l d

et
er

m
in

an
ts

 o
f 

he
al

th
, 

or
 o

th
e

r 
p

rio
rit

y 
tr

ai
n

in
g

s.
 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

N
um

b
er

 o
f D

IS
 t

ra
in

e
d

 T
ra

in
in

g
 e

va
lu

a
tio

n 
o

ut
co

m
e

s 
 

7
/1

/2
2 

–
6/

30
/2

7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

   



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
6

of
 1

7

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 In

d
ic

at
o

rs
T

im
el

in
e

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 A

C
T

IV
IT

Y
:

P
la

c
e 

a 

c
h

ec
km

ar
k

 in
 t

h
e

 b
o

x 
o

n
ly

 i
f 

G
ra

n
te

e
 

  
   

  
p

la
n

s 
to

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
a

te
 i

n
 t

h
is

 a
ct

iv
it

y.
 

 F
. 

O
th

er
 in

n
ov

at
iv

e 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

fu
l 

a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

to
 s

u
rv

ei
lla

nc
e 

a
nd

/o
r 

d
is

e
as

e 
in

te
rv

e
nt

io
n

. P
le

as
e 

d
es

cr
ib

e 
in

 
th

e 
na

rr
at

iv
e 

se
ct

io
n

 b
e

lo
w

. 

P
le

as
e

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 f

or
 ‘o

th
er

 in
n

ov
at

iv
e

 a
pp

ro
ac

h
’ 

 
7

/1
/2

2 
–

6/
30

/2
7  

P
le

a
se

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
ed

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y:

 

 P
A

R
T

 II
I

N
A

R
R

A
T

IV
E

. P
le

as
e

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
h

o
w

 t
h

e 
G

ra
n

te
e 

w
ill

 c
en

te
r 

ra
ci

al
 e

qu
ity

in
 im

p
le

m
en

tin
g 

th
e

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 li

st
e

d
 in

 P
ar

t 
III

. 
 

                  



G
ra

n
t 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s 
S

y
p

h
il

is
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
g

e
n

it
al

 S
y

p
h

ili
s 

O
u

tb
re

a
k 

S
tr

at
e

g
y 

 

P
a

g
e 

1
7

of
 1

7

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 R

ep
o

rt
s

 a
n

d
 D

at
a 

 
 F

re
q

u
en

c
y 

1 T
im

ef
ra

m
e 

2 D
ea

d
li

n
e 

A
c

ti
vi

ti
e

s
R

ep
o

rt
 R

ec
ip

ie
n

t

S
e

m
i-

A
n

n
ua

l
 

0
7/

0
1/

20
22

 –
6/

30
/2

02
3

 0
7/

0
1/

20
23

 –
 6

/3
0

/2
02

4 
  0

7/
0

1/
20

24
 –

 6
/3

0
/2

02
5 

  0
7/

0
1/

20
25

 –
 6

/3
0

/2
02

6 
  0

7/
0

1/
20

26
 –

 6
/3

1
/2

02
7 

 

0
1/

3
1/

20
23

0
7/

3
1/

20
24

 0
1/

3
1/

20
24

 
0

7/
3

1/
20

25
 

 0
1/

3
1/

20
25

 
0

7/
3

1/
20

26
 

 0
1/

3
1/

20
25

 
0

7/
3

1/
20

26
 

 0
1/

3
1/

20
26

 
0

6/
3

0/
20

27
 

P
a

rt
 I

 -
III

S
T

D
L

H
JC

on
tr

ac
ts

@
cd

ph
.c

a
.g

ov

O
n

g
oi

ng
7

/0
1

/2
02

2 
– 

6/
3

0/
20

27
 

O
n

go
in

g
, 

w
ith

in
 4

5
 d

a
ys

 o
f r

e
po

rt
 to

 
th

e 
LH

J 
 

S
T

D
 C

a
se

 C
lo

su
re

C
a

lR
E

D
IE

da
ta

 s
ys

te
m

, o
r 

b
y 

o
th

e
r 

m
ea

ns
 p

e
r 

ag
re

e
m

e
nt

 
b

et
w

e
en

 t
he

 lo
ca

l S
T

D
 C

o
nt

ro
l 

O
ff

ic
er

 a
nd

 th
e

 S
T

D
C

B
.

1
T

im
ef

ra
m

e
 d

at
e

s 
a

re
 s

u
bj

ec
t 

to
 c

ha
n

g
e 

a
n

d 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

re
q

ui
re

 a
n

 a
m

e
n

dm
e

n
t t

o
 th

e
 g

ra
n

t a
g

re
e

m
en

t.
2

D
e

a
d

lin
e

 d
a

te
s 

a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

h
a

ng
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ire

 a
n

 a
m

e
nd

m
en

t 
to

 t
h

e 
g

ra
nt

 a
g

re
em

e
n

t.
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 1 of 6 

1. Invoicing and Payment

A. Upon completion of project activities as provided in Exhibit A – Attachment 1, and upon 
receipt and approval of the invoices, the State agrees to reimburse the Grantee for 
activities performed and expenditures incurred in accordance with the total amount of 
this agreement. 

 
B. Invoices shall include the Grant Number and shall be submitted electronically or in 

triplicate not more frequently than quarterly in arrears to:  
 
Adriana Cervantes 
California Department of Public Health 
STD Control Branch 
MS 7320 
P.O. Box 997377-7377 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
 
Electronic invoice submissions can be transmitted via email to STDLHJInvoices@cdph.ca.gov. 
 

C. Invoices shall: 
 
1) Be prepared using the electronic invoice template provided by your CDPH Grant 

Manager.  Invoices must be signed by an authorized official, employee or agent 
certifying that the expenditures claimed represent activities performed and are in 
accordance with Exhibit A – Attachment 1 under this Grant.

2) Be submitted electronically. Mailed hard copies are not required. 
3) Bear the Grantee’s name as shown on the Grant. 
4) Identify the billing and/or performance period covered by the invoice. 
5) Itemize costs for the billing period in the same or greater level of detail as indicated 

in this Grant.  Subject to the terms of this Grant, reimbursement may only be sought 
for those costs and/or cost categories expressly identified as allowable and 
approved by CDPH.  
 

D. Invoices must be submitted no more than forty-five (45) calendar days after the end of 
each quarter unless a later or alternate deadline is agreed to in writing by the program 
Grant Manager. 

 
E. Amount awarded under this Grant is identified in the CDPH 1229 Grant Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 2 of 6 

2. Budget Contingency Clause

A. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent 
years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for the 
program, or if the appropriated funds have been expended prior to the Agreement 
expiration date, this Agreement shall be of no further force and effect. In this event, the 
State shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any 
other considerations under this Agreement and Grantee shall not be obligated to fulfill 
any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this 

program, the State shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability 
occurring to the State or offer an agreement amendment to Grantee to reflect the 
reduced amount. 

 
3. Prompt Payment Clause 

 
Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government 
Code Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927.
 

4. Timely Submission of Final Invoice 
 
A. A final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no more than forty-five (45) 

calendar days following the expiration or termination date of this Grant, unless a later or 
alternate deadline is agreed to in writing by the program grant manager.  Said invoice 
should be clearly marked “Final Invoice”, indicating that all payment obligations of the 
State under this Grant have ceased and that no further payments are due or 
outstanding. 

 
B. The State may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final invoice if the 

Grantee fails to obtain prior written State approval of an alternate final invoice 
submission deadline.   

 
5. Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement
 

A. Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall, unless otherwise specified 
in this Agreement, be at the rates currently in effect, as established by the California 
Department of Human Resources (Cal HR). If the Cal HR rates change during the term 
of the Agreement, the new rates shall apply upon their effective date and no 
amendment to this Agreement shall be necessary. No travel outside the State of 
California shall be reimbursed without prior authorization from the CDPH. Verbal 
authorization should be confirmed in writing. Written authorization may be in a form 
including fax or email confirmation.  
 
 
 
 
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 3 of 6 

B. In accordance with California Assembly Bill 1887 (Chapter 687, Statues of 2016), and 
Government Code Section 11139.8, travel is prohibited to states that, enact the 
following after June 26, 2015: 
 

a. A law that voids or repeals, or has the effect of voiding or repealing, existing state 
or local protections against discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or gender expression.  

b. A law that authorizes or requires discrimination against same-sex couples or their 
families or on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender 
expression.  

c. A law that creates an exemption to antidiscrimination laws in order to permit 
discrimination against same-sex couples or their families or on the basis of 
sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender expression. 
  

The California Attorney General’s webpage lists the states to where travel is 
prohibited.  

 
C. The total budget amount for out-of-state travel shall not exceed five (5) percent of the 

total annual budget of this grant agreement.  
 

6. Use of Funds/Supplanting 
 

These funds shall be used to support innovative and impactful syphilis and congenital 
syphilis prevention and control activities, with a focus on disproportionately impacted 
populations as determined by local or regional syphilis and congenital syphilis 
epidemiology, which may include, but are not limited to, African American/Black people, 
Latinx people, American Indians/Alaska Native people, trans women, pregnant people 
experiencing homelessness or who use drugs, (e.g., people who exchange money for sex, 
drugs, or a place to stay), and gay, bisexual and other men who have sex with men (MSM). 
Funds shall be used to supplement, but not supplant, existing financial and resource 
commitments of the LHJs for sexually transmitted disease (STD) prevention and control 
activities. Supplanting of funds is defined (for the purposes of this agreement) as using 
local assistance award monies to “replace” or “take the place of” existing local funding.  For 
example, reductions in local funds cannot be offset by the use of any dollars for the same 
purpose. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 4 of 6 

 
7. Proper Use of Funds

A. The funds for this grant agreement may be used for:
1. Local health jurisdiction staff to support innovative and impactful syphilis and 

congenital syphilis prevention and control activities. 
2. Out-of-state travel to conferences and meetings, except to prohibited states as 

provided in 5.B. above.  Travel costs may include travel and per diem for local 
leadership and other relevant staff (listed in the budget as in-kind support) to attend 
the Annual California STD HIV Controllers Association Membership Meeting, Annual 
STDCB Statewide Meeting (e.g., Congenital Syphilis Prevention Forum), National 
STD Prevention Conference, or other national forums as relevant.  Prior written 
approval for out-of-state travel approval must be obtained from STDCB and shall not 
exceed five (5) percent of the total annual budget of this grant agreement.

3. In-state travel to support local capacity building, except to prohibited states as 
provided in 5.B. above. This includes training course fees, travel, and per diem to 
support enhancement of knowledge, skills, and abilities of Disease Intervention 
Workforce (e.g., Principles, Practices, and Pathways to Disease Intervention (3PDI), 
Phlebotomy, Cultural Humility), or other staff essential to syphilis and congenital 
syphilis prevention and control.

4. Costs associated with syphilis testing, such as syphilis test kits, laboratory reagents,
and other testing supplies.

5. Syphilis treatment (i.e., Benzathine penicillin G, Doxycycline) and prophylaxis (i.e., 
DoxyPEP).  

6. Condoms.
7. Pregnancy tests. 
8. Emergency contraception pills.
9. Provider education materials.
10. Client education materials.
11. The purchase, lease, or other support of mobile testing units. 

a. The Grantee shall only use said vehicles for the performance under the terms of 
this Agreement. 

b. The Grantee agrees that all operators of motor vehicles, reimbursed by CDPH 
under the terms of this Agreement, shall hold a valid State of California driver's 
license. In the event that ten or more passengers are to be transported in any 
one vehicle, the operator shall also hold a State of California Class B driver's 
license. 

c. If any motor vehicle is reimbursed by CDPH under the terms of this Agreement, 
the Grantee, as applicable, shall provide, maintain, and certify that, at a 
minimum, the following type and amount of automobile liability insurance is in 
effect during the term of this Agreement or any extension period during which 
any vehicle remains in the Grantee's possession:

i. The Grantee, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies that it possesses or 
will obtain automobile liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined. Said insurance 
must be obtained and made effective upon the delivery date of any motor 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 5 of 6 

vehicle reimbursed with agreement funds by CDPH under the terms of this 
Agreement to the Grantee.

ii. The Grantee shall, as soon as practical, furnish a copy of the certificate of 
insurance to the CDPH Program Grant Manager. 

iii. The Grantee agrees that bodily injury and property damage liability 
insurance, as required herein, shall remain in effect at all times during the 
term of this Agreement.

iv. The Grantee agrees to provide at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration 
date of said insurance coverage a copy of a new certificate of insurance 
evidencing continued coverage, as indicated herein for not less than the 
remainder of the term of this Agreement, the term of any extension or 
continuation thereof, or for a period of not less than one (1) year.

v. In the event the Grantee fails to keep insurance coverage as required herein 
in effect at all times during vehicle possession, CDPH may, in addition to any 
other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence 
of such event.” 

 
B. The funds for this grant agreement may be used for the following items, with 

supportive justification, tracking, and reporting of outcomes: 
1. Incentives such as low value gift cards (e.g., WalMart, Safeway, transportation 

vouchers), hygiene kits, and/or other syphilis or congenital syphilis related 
incentives. 
a. Client incentives, such as low value gift cards, may be approved as Behavioral 

Modification Materials (BMM).  The value of the incentive is limited to $50.00 of 
merchandise per person per intervention (e.g. client attendance for syphilis 
treatment at $25.00 for each Bicillin injection).   

b. Current CDPH approvals require the BMM to be justified with scientific proof of 
behavior change, and be accompanied by a targeted distribution plan, incentive 
tracking log, and reporting of incentive distribution and client outcomes.

c. Incentives cannot be used for the purchase of alcohol, tobacco, firearms, lottery 
tickets or cannabis. 

d. There is no prepayment for incentives. The LHJ will only be reimbursed for the 
amount of incentives distributed during each quarter.

2. Hotel/motel stays for people who are unstably housed during course of late syphilis 
treatment. 

3. Transportation rides/vouchers/tokens for testing and/or treatment.  
4. Material support items, including, but not limited to, sleeping bags, tarps, shelter, 

clothing items, and hygiene kits, to people living with, or at risk for, syphilis.  
5. All items under this section are provided to program participants to motivate and/or 

reinforce positive behavior and/or involvement in syphilis and congenital syphilis 
control and prevention activities. Receipt of these items requires action on the part of 
the recipient. The Grantee is responsible for the possession, security (e.g., will keep 
the BMMs and/or material support items and/or transportation rides/vouchers/tokens
in a secure location), and accountability of all these items. The Grantee will prepare 
a log sheet that will track and identify each of these items, value, transfer date, and 
recipient.



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Exhibit B 
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 

 

 
Page 6 of 6 

6. All items under this section must also comply with the provisions in Exhibit E, STD 
Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures.  

 
C. The funds for this grant agreement cannot be used for:

1. Stuff We All Get (SWAG) - The purchase of free promotional items for health 
promotion events such as pens, mugs, t-shirts, posters, key chains, or bumper 
stickers.  This provision is in accordance with the California State Constitution, 
Article 16, section 6, which prohibits any gifting of public funds.

2. Individual prizes or high value incentives (e.g., iPads, iPhones). 
3. Cash incentives paid to an individual.
4. Scholarships paid to an individual or a school on behalf of an individual.
5. Food (e.g., sponsored lunch or dinner at provider education sessions, brown bag 

lunches, buffets at screening events). 
6. Construction, renovation, improvement, or repair of property.
7. The purchase of alcohol, tobacco, firearms, lottery tickets or cannabis. 

 
 



County of Los Angeles
22-10885 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS 
 

1. APPROVAL:  This Grant is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by 
the Department of General Services, if required.  The Grantee may not commence 
performance until such approval has been obtained 

 
2. AMENDMENT:  No amendment or variation of the terms of this Grant shall be valid unless 

made in writing, signed by the parties, and approved as required.  No oral understanding or 
Agreement not incorporated in the Grant is binding on any of the parties.  In no case shall 
the Department materially alter the scope of the Project set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
3. ASSIGNMENT:  This Grant is not assignable by the Grantee, either in whole or in part, 

without the written consent of the Grant Manager in the form of a written amendment to the 
Grant.  

 
4. AUDIT: Grantee agrees that the Department, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated 

representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to this Grant.  Grantee agrees to maintain such records for a 
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment or completion of the 
project funded with this Grant, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated. 
Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours 
and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to 
such records.  Further, Grantee agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records 
and interview staff in any subcontract related to the project. 

 
5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable state 

and/or federal conflict of interest laws. 
 
6. INDEMNIFICATION:  Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the State, its 

officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to 
any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm or 
corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with 
the project, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm 
or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Grantee in the performance of any 
activities related to the Project. 

 
7. FISCAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:  Grantee agrees 

that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to permit 
tracing of all grant funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have 
not been used in violation of any applicable state or federal law, or the provisions of this 
Grant.  Grantee further agrees that it will maintain separate Project accounts in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
8. GOVERNING LAW:  This Grant is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California. 



County of Los Angeles
22-10885 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 

 
9. INCOME RESTRICTIONS:  Grantee agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits, or other 

amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the Grantee under this 
Grant shall be paid by the Grantee to the Department, to the extent that they are properly 
allocable to costs for which the Grantee has been reimbursed by the Department under this 
Grant. 

 
10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Grantee, and its agents and employees of Grantee, in the 

performance of the Project, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, 
employees or agents of the Department. 

 
11. MEDIA EVENTS:  Grantee shall notify the Department’s Grant Manager in writing at least 

twenty (20) working days before any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments 
and/or results of the Project and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by 
Department’s representatives. 

 
12. NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS:  The Department and Grantee do not intend to create any 

rights or remedies for any third- party as a beneficiary of this Grant or the project. 
 
13. NOTICE:  Grantee shall promptly notify the Department’s Grant Manager in writing of any 

events, developments or changes that could affect the completion of the project or the budget 
approved for this Grant. 

 
14. PROFESSIONALS: Grantee agrees that only licensed professionals will be used to perform 

services under this Grant where such services are called for. 
 
15. RECORDS:  Grantee certifies that it will maintain Project accounts in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles.  Grantee further certifies that it will comply with the 
following conditions for a grant award as set forth in the Request for Applications (Exhibit D) 
and the Grant Application (Exhibit A). 

 
A. Establish an official file for the Project which shall adequately document all 

significant actions relative to the Project; 
B. Establish separate accounts which will adequately and accurately depict all 

amounts received and expended on this Project, including all grant funds received 
under this Grant; 

C. Establish separate accounts which will adequately depict all income received which 
is attributable to the Project, especially including any income attributable to grant 
funds disbursed under this Grant; 

D. Establish an accounting system which will adequately depict final total costs of the 
Project, including both direct and indirect costs; and, 

E. Establish such accounts and maintain such records as may be necessary for the 
state to fulfill federal reporting requirements, including any and all reporting 
requirements under federal tax statutes or regulations. 

16. RELATED LITIGATION:  Under no circumstances may Grantee use funds from any 
disbursement under this Grant to pay for costs associated with any litigation between the 
Grantee and the Department. 



County of Los Angeles
22-10885 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 
17. RIGHTS IN DATA:  Grantee and the Department agree that all data, plans, drawings, 

specifications, reports, computer programs, operating manuals, notes, and other written or 
graphic work submitted under Exhibit A in the performance of the Project funded by this Grant 
shall be in the public domain.  Grantee may disclose, disseminate and use in whole or in part, 
any final form data and information received, collected, and developed under this Project, 
subject to appropriate acknowledgment of credit to the Department for financial support.  
Grantee shall not utilize the materials submitted to the Department (except data) for any profit 
making venture or sell or grant rights to a third-party who intends to do so.  The Department 
has the right to use submitted data for all governmental purposes. 

 
18. VENUE:  (This provision does not apply to Local Governmental Entities) 
 

The Department and Grantee agree that any action arising out of this Grant shall be filed and 
maintained in the Superior Court, California.  Grantee waives any existing sovereign immunity 
for the purposes of this Grant, if applicable. 

 
19. STATE-FUNDED RESEARCH GRANTS:  

 
A.  Grantee shall provide for free public access to any publication of a department-funded 

invention or department-funded technology.  Grantee further agrees to all terms and 
conditions required by the California Taxpayer Access to Publicly Funded Research Act 
(Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 13989) of Part 4.5 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the 
Government Code). 

 
B.  As a condition of receiving the research grant, Grantee agrees to the following terms and 

conditions which are set forth in Government Code section 13989.6 (“Section 13989.6”): 
 

1) Grantee is responsible for ensuring that any publishing or copyright agreements 
concerning submitted manuscripts fully comply with Section 13989.6. 
 

2)  Grantees shall report to the Department the final disposition of the research grant, 
including, but not limited to, if it was published, when it was published, where it was 
published, when the 12-month time period expires, and where the manuscript will be 
available for open access. 
 

3) For a manuscript that is accepted for publication in a peer-reviewed journal, the 
Grantee shall ensure that an electronic version of the peer-reviewed manuscript is 
available to the department and on an appropriate publicly accessible database 
approved by the Department, including, but not limited to, the University of California’s 
eScholarship Repository at the California Digital Library, PubMed Central, or the 
California Digital Open Source Library, to be made publicly available not later than 12 
months after the official date of publication. Manuscripts submitted to the California 
Digital Open Source Library shall be exempt from the requirements in subdivision (b) 
of Section 66408 of the Education Code.  Grantee shall make reasonable efforts to 
comply with this requirement by ensuring that their manuscript is accessible on an 
approved publicly accessible database, and notifying the Department that the 
manuscript is available on a department-approved database.  If Grantee is unable to 
ensure that their manuscript is accessible on an approved publicly accessible 
database, Grantee may comply by providing the manuscript to the Department not 
later than 12 months after the official date of publication. 



County of Los Angeles
22-10885 

Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 
 

4) For publications other than those described inparagraph B.3 above,, including 
meeting abstracts, Grantee shall comply by providing the manuscript to the 
Department not later than 12 months after the official date of publication. 
 

5) Grantee is authorized to use grant money for publication costs, including fees charged 
by a publisher for color and page charges, or fees for digital distribution. 

 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Page 1 of 5 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

 

1. Cancellation / Termination 

A. This Grant may be cancelled by CDPH without cause upon thirty (30) calendar days 
advance written notice to the Grantee. 

B. CDPH reserves the right to cancel or terminate this Grant immediately for cause.  
The Grantee may submit a written request to terminate this Grant only if CDPH 
substantially fails to perform its responsibilities as provided herein.

C. The term “for cause” shall mean that the Grantee fails to meet the terms, conditions, 
and/or responsibilities of this agreement.  Causes for termination include, but are not 
limited to the following occurrences:   

 
1) If the Grantee knowingly furnishes any statement, representation, warranty, or 

certification in connection with the agreement, which representation is materially 
false, deceptive, incorrect, or incomplete.

 
2) If the Grantee fails to perform any material requirement of this Grant or defaults 

in performance of this agreement.
 

3) If the Grantee files for bankruptcy, or if CDPH determines that the Grantee 
becomes financially incapable of completing this agreement. 

 
D. Grant termination or cancellation shall be effective as of the date indicated in 

CDPH’s notification to the Grantee.  The notice shall stipulate any final performance, 
invoicing or payment requirements. 

  
E. In the event of early termination or cancellation, the Grantee shall be entitled to 

compensation for services performed satisfactorily under this agreement and 
expenses incurred up to the date of cancellation and any non-cancelable obligations 
incurred in support of this Grant. 

 
F. In the event of termination, and at the request of CDPH, the Grantee shall furnish 

copies of all proposals, specifications, designs, procedures, layouts, copy, and other 
materials related to the services or deliverables provided under this Grant, whether 
finished or in progress on the termination date. 

 
G. The Grantee will not be entitled to reimbursement for any expenses incurred for 

services and deliverables pursuant to this agreement after the effective date of 
termination. 

 
 

 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Page 2 of 5 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

 

H. Upon receipt of notification of termination of this Grant, and except as otherwise 
specified by CDPH, the Grantee shall:
 
1) Place no further order or subgrants for materials, services, or facilities.

 
2) Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of 

orders and subgrants. 
  

3) Upon the effective date of termination of the Grant and the payment by CDPH of 
all items properly changeable to CDPH hereunder, Grantee shall transfer, assign 
and make available to CDPH all property and materials belonging to CDPH, all 
rights and claims to any and all reservations, grants, and arrangements with 
owners of media/PR materials, or others, and shall make available to CDPH all 
written information regarding CDPH’s media/PR materials, and no extra 
compensation is to be paid to Grantee for its services. 
 

4) Take such action as may be necessary, or as CDPH may specify, to protect and 
preserve any property related to this agreement which is in the possession of the 
Grantee and in which CDPH has or may acquire an interest.

 
I. CDPH may, at its discretion, require the Grantee to cease performance of certain 

components of the Scope of Work as designated by CDPH and complete 
performance of other components prior to the termination date of the Grant.

 
2. Avoidance of Conflicts of Interest by Grantee  
 

A. CDPH intends to avoid any real or apparent conflict of interest on the part of the 
Grantee, subgrants, or employees, officers and directors of the Grantee or 
subgrants.  Thus, CDPH reserves the right to determine, at its sole discretion, 
whether any information, assertion or claim received from any source indicates the 
existence of a real or apparent conflict of interest; and, if a conflict is found to exist, 
to require the Grantee to submit additional information or a plan for resolving the 
conflict, subject to CDPH review and prior approval. 

 
B. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to: 
 

1) An instance where the Grantee or any of its subgrants, or any employee, officer, 
or director of the Grantee or any subgrant or has an interest, financial or 
otherwise, whereby the use or disclosure of information obtained while 
performing services under the grant would allow for private or personal benefit or 
for any purpose that is contrary to the goals and objectives of the grant.
 
 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Page 3 of 5 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

 

2) An instance where the Grantee’s or any subgrant’s employees, officers, or 
directors use their positions for purposes that are, or give the appearance of 
being, motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as 
those with whom they have family, business or other ties.

C. If CDPH is or becomes aware of a known or suspected conflict of interest, the 
Grantee will be given an opportunity to submit additional information or to resolve 
the conflict. A Grantee with a suspected conflict of interest will have five (5) working 
days from the date of notification of the conflict by CDPH to provide complete 
information regarding the suspected conflict.  If a conflict of interest is determined to 
exist by CDPH and cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of CDPH, the conflict will 
be grounds for terminating the grant.  CDPH may, at its discretion upon receipt of a 
written request from the Grantee, authorize an extension of the timeline indicated 
herein. 
 

3. Dispute Resolution Process 
 

A. A Grantee grievance exists whenever there is a dispute arising from CDPH’s action 
in the administration of an agreement.  If there is a dispute or grievance between the 
Grantee and CDPH, the Grantee must seek resolution using the procedure outlined 
below. 

 
1) The Grantee should first informally discuss the problem with the CDPH Program 

Grant Manager. If the problem cannot be resolved informally, the Grantee shall 
direct its grievance together with any evidence, in writing, to the program Branch 
Chief.  The grievance shall state the issues in dispute, the legal authority or other 
basis for the Grantee's position and the remedy sought.  The Branch Chief shall 
render a decision within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written 
grievance from the Grantee.  The Branch Chief shall respond in writing to the 
Grantee indicating the decision and reasons therefore.  If the Grantee disagrees 
with the Branch Chief’s decision, the Grantee may appeal to the second level. 

 
2) When appealing to the second level, the Grantee must prepare an appeal 

indicating the reasons for disagreement with Branch Chief’s decision.  The 
Grantee shall include with the appeal a copy of the Grantee's original statement 
of dispute along with any supporting evidence and a copy of the Branch Chief’s 
decision.  The appeal shall be addressed to the Deputy Director of the division in 
which the branch is organized within ten (10) working days from receipt of the 
Branch Chief’s decision.  The Deputy Director of the division in which the branch 
is organized or his/her designee shall meet with the Grantee to review the issues 
raised.  A written decision signed by the Deputy Director of the division in which 
the branch is organized or his/her designee shall be directed to the Grantee 
within twenty (20) working days of receipt of the Grantee's second level appeal. 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Page 4 of 5 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

 

B. If the Grantee wishes to appeal the decision of the Deputy Director of the division in 
which the branch is organized or his/her designee, the Grantee shall follow the 
procedures set forth in Division 25.1 (commencing with Section 38050) of the Health 
and Safety Code and the regulations adopted thereunder.  (Title 1, Division 2, 
Chapter 2, Article 3 (commencing with Section 1140) of the California Code of 
Regulations). 

 
C. Disputes arising out of an audit, examination of an agreement or other action not 

covered by subdivision (a) of Section 20204, of Chapter 2.1, Title 22, of the 
California Code of Regulations, and for which no procedures for appeal are provided 
in statute, regulation or the Agreement, shall be handled in accordance with the 
procedures identified in Sections 51016 through 51047, Title 22, California Code of 
Regulations. 
 

D. Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by CDPH, all dispute, grievance and/or appeal 
correspondence shall be directed to the CDPH Grant Manager. 
 

E. There are organizational differences within CDPH’s funding programs and the 
management levels identified in this dispute resolution provision may not apply in 
every contractual situation.  When a grievance is received and organizational 
differences exist, the Grantee shall be notified in writing by the CDPH Grant 
Manager of the level, name, and/or title of the appropriate management official that 
is responsible for issuing a decision at a given level. 

 
4. Executive Order N-6-22 - Economic Sanctions

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) 
regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. 
“Economic Sanctions” refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to 
Russia’s actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law. The EO 
directs state agencies to terminate contracts with, and to refrain from entering any new 
contracts with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of Economic 
Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State determine Grantee is a target of Economic 
Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, 
that shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement. The State shall provide Grantee 
advance written notice of such termination, allowing Grantee at least 30 calendar days to 
provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State. 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Page 5 of 5 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
 

 

Prior to awarding and executing grant, the State shall conduct its due diligence to 
determine if the proposed awardee is a named individual or entity on federal and any state 
Economic Sanctions lists. If the proposed awardee is listed, the State shall refrain from 
entering into the Grant. Resources for locating names of sanctioned individuals and entities 
are available on the DGS Office of Legal Services’ webpage:  Ukraine-Russia (ca.gov).  

If this Agreement is valued at $5 million or more, upon execution the State will send a 
separate notification outlining additional requirements specified under the EO.  Compliance 
with this Economic Sanctions imposed in response to Russia’s actions in Ukraine is 
required, including with respect to, but not limited to, the federal executive orders identified 
in the EO and the sanctions identified on the U.S. Department of the Treasury website 
(https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/financial-sanctions/sanctionsprograms-and-
country-information/ukraine-russia-related-sanctions). Failure to comply may result in the 
termination of this Agreement.  



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

 
STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures 

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

1. Overview

The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) STD Control Branch 
(STDCB) sets forth the following standards and procedures. These standards 
and procedures specify the conditions for receipt of CDPH STDCB local 
assistance funds. This funding is intended to support innovative and impactful 
syphilis and congenital syphilis (CS) prevention and control activities, with a 
focus on disproportionately impacted populations as determined by local or 
regional syphilis and CS epidemiology, which may include, but are not limited to, 
African American/Black people, Latinx people, American Indians/Alaska Native 
people, trans women, pregnant people experiencing homelessness or who use 
drugs, (e.g., people who exchange money for sex, drugs, or a place to stay), and 
gay, bisexual, and other men who have sex with men (MSM). 
 
All Grantees must adhere to these standards and procedures, and any 
subsequent revisions, along with all instructions, policy memorandums, or 
directives issued by CDPH STDCB. CDPH STDCB will make any changes 
and/or additions to these provisions in writing and, whenever possible, 
notification of such changes shall be made 30 days prior to implementation.
 
The local health department has the authority for STD Prevention and Control as 
outlined in the Summary of Regulations Related to STD Prevention and Control 
Efforts in California.  https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/STD-
ForLocalHealthJurisdictions.aspx

2. Grantee’s Responsibilities
 
The Grantee agrees to:
 
A. Direct activities toward achieving the program objectives set forth by the 

CDPH STDCB. 
B. Use these funds in accordance with any additional guidance set forth by 

the CDPH STDCB regarding the granting, use and reimbursement of the 
STDCB local assistance funds.  Additional consideration should be given 
to other guidance from the CDPH and Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC) intended to highlight successful sexually transmitted 
disease (STD) prevention and control strategies or outline California 
specific initiatives, policies and procedures. Please find relevant 
programmatic guidance documents on the CDPH STDCB website: 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/STD.aspx 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures

Page 2 of 6 

Funds shall be used to supplement, but not supplant, existing financial and
resource commitments of the LHJ  for sexually 
transmitted disease (STD) prevention and control activities. Supplanting of 
funds is defined (for the purposes of this agreement) as using local 
assistance award monies to
“replace” or “take the place of” existing local funding. For example, reductions
in local funds cannot be offset by the use of any dollars for the same purpose.
Abide by the most recent standards of care for syphilis and CS screening,
treatment, control and prevention as promulgated by:

California Department of Public Health
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/STDs-
ClinicalGuidelines.aspx
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
https://www.cdc.gov/std/

Share health advisories, health education materials, outreach, testing and
linkage to care and care coordination protocols, and other products created 
to enhance syphilis and CS awareness, prevention, testing, linkage to care, 
and care coordination funded with these dollars with CDPH and other LHJs 
and community-based organizations (CBOs) in California. The intent of this is 
to allow duplication (where possible) and cross-jurisdictional reach of 
successful syphilis and CS interventions and activities aimed at the priority 
populations, clinical providers, and community partners. Source documents 
should be submitted to CDPH STDCB upon completion and with the annual 
progress report, and upon request from CDPH, as relevant.
Submit information and reports as requested by the CDPH STDCB.
Ensure the use of a competitive bid process in the selection of all sub
grantees. If the sub grantee is one where the LHJ has a current agreement 
with, indicate the date the agreement was effective. If the CBO is a non-profit 
agency as defined by Internal Revenue Code 501(c), ensure the LHJ has a 
current letter on file from the Internal Revenue Service for the CBO.



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

 
STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

3. Reporting Requirements

A. Case Report, Laboratory, and Interview Record  
All Grantees shall comply with morbidity reporting requirements for 
reportable STDs identified in Title 17, California Code of Regulations 
(CCR) §2500, §2593, §2641.5-2643.20, and §2800 – 20182 Reportable 
Diseases and Conditions.
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Document%20L
ibrary/ReportableDiseases.pdf

All Grantees, excluding Los Angeles and San Francisco, must enter 
syphilis and CS case reports, laboratory results, and interview data for 
their jurisdiction directly into the California Reportable Disease Information 
Exchange (CalREDIE) system, the CDPH web-based reporting software 
for notifiable diseases. Data must be entered into the appropriate tabs and 
forms in CalREDIE. Submission of hard copy forms for data entry into 
CalREDIE by CDPH or scanning of case reports, laboratory results, or 
interview records into the electronic filing cabinet (EFC), sans data entry, 
will not be accepted. Specific case investigation and report requirements 
are as follows: 
1. Syphilis laboratory tests and confidential morbidity reports should 

be processed and assigned for investigation according to the 
California Syphilis Reactor Alert System (SRAS). Some health 
jurisdictions may have a more nuanced local system for prioritizing 
reported reactive syphilis tests. 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/CDPH%20Docume
nt%20Library/SyphilisReactorSRASChartAlgorithm.pdf

2. Syphilis cases and CS case investigations are to be reported 
according to updated CDPH STDCB protocols on the appropriate 
case report forms (Syphilis Interview Record or California 
Congenital Syphilis-CS Case Investigation and Report) found in 
CalREDIE; samples of these forms can be viewed at 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/PSB/Pages/CommunicableDise
aseControl.aspx.  Grantees will complete and close investigations 
in CalREDIE within 45 days of initial report to local health 
department.  

3. Grantees will participate in syphilis and CS-specific CalREDIE 
trainings and conduct quality control procedures, including review 
of cases to ensure appropriate surveillance case definition and 
reconciliation of case counts.  

 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

 
STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

For additional STD-related CalREDIE help, please email 
STDCalREDIE@cdph.ca.gov.
 
For STD case definitions, please visit 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/STDCaseDefinitions.
aspx
 
For frequently asked questions, manuals/guidelines, and 
forms/instructions.  
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/STD-CalREDIE-
Resources.aspx

Los Angeles and San Francisco grantees must report the data outlined 
above to CDPH STD Control Branch via a secure file transfer protocol 
(FTP) on a weekly basis.  Data will be transmitted using the following 
formats: 

 Case report data to be submitted using the National Electronic 
Telecommunications System for Surveillance (NETSS) or Message 
Mapping Guides (MMG) standards.    

 Interview record data to be submitted in a format that conforms to the 
corresponding CalREDIE data elements. 

B. Performance Measurement and Program Evaluation 
Grantees will submit performance indicators specified in the Grant 
Activities, including for subcontracted activities . Project specific data 
reporting requirements and performance indicators will be determined in 
collaboration with CDPH within the first three months of the project period.

C.       Data Security and Confidentiality 
Grantees shall comply with recommendations set forth in CDC’s “Data 
Security and Confidentiality Guidelines for HIV, Viral Hepatitis, Sexually 
Transmitted Disease, and Tuberculosis Programs.” 
http://www.cdc.gov/nchhstp/programintegration/docs/PCSIDataSecurityGu
idelines.pdf. Grantees shall have staff complete CDPH required 
confidentiality and data security training, and maintain on file associated 
confidentiality agreements for each staff person with access to STD data.

 
 
 
 
 



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

 
STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

D. Outbreak Reporting
The California Code of Regulations (Title 17, Section 2502[c]) directs local 
health officers to immediately report unusual disease occurrences or 
outbreaks to CDPH.  Reports should be conveyed by calling the CDPH 
STDCB Office at (510) 620-3400. 
 

E. Financial Expenditures and Reporting 
Grantees must maintain records reflecting actual expenditures. The CDPH 
STDCB reserves the right to question and re-negotiate reimbursement for 
any expenditure that may appear to exceed a reasonable cost for the 
service. Financial expenditures/reporting are required and must be 
submitted within 45 calendar days after the end of each quarter. Annual 
financial expenditures and reporting should be submitted no later than 45 
days after the end of the budget period. Invoices should be sent to 
STDLHJInvoices@cdph.ca.gov.  

F. Performance Progress Reporting 
The Midyear Progress Report is due no later than 30 days after the 
midpoint of the budget period.  The Annual Performance Progress Report 
is due no later than 30 days after the end of the budget period (e.g., July 
31, 2020). All publications and manuscripts published as a result of the 
work supported in part or whole by the cooperative grant must be 
submitted with the performance progress reports. Additionally, health 
advisories, health education materials, and other products should be 
submitted. Midyear and Annual Performance Progress Reports should be 
submitted to STDLHJContracts@cdph.ca.gov. 

G. Reporting Use of Incentives, Hotel/Motel Stays, Transportation 
Rides/Vouchers/Tokens and Material Support
1. All proposals for incentives, hotel/motel stays, transportation 

rides/vouchers/tokens and material support items must be submitted to 
CDPH STDCB for review prior to purchase and project implementation, 
accompanying documents must contain justification for use as
behavior modification materials, and accompanied by a targeted 
distribution plan and tracking/reporting/outcome log.



County of Los Angeles
Grant 22-10885

Exhibit E 

 
STD Local Assistance Funds – Standards and Procedures 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

2. When using incentives, hotel/motel stays, transpostation 
rides/vouchers/tokens and material support items to achieve the goals
and objectives outlined in the Grant Activities, the Grantee must 
adhere to the following requirements: 

a. Complete a Subject Reimbursement Log that is kept within a 
secure study file. This log will contain the item brand, item 
number, denomination, date purchased, reason for 
disbursement, the recipient of the item, and the issue date (see 
attached log). 

b. Each participant receiving one of these items must complete a 
Subject Payment Receipt at the time the item is issued. The 
Subject Payment Receipt must be kept in a secure location.    

c. Participation incentives cannot be used for the purchase of 
alcohol, tobacco, firearms, lottery tickets or cannabis. 

d. A copy of the Subject Reimbursement Log must be submitted 
with the quarterly invoice. 

e. The Subject Payment Receipt must be kept for a minimum of 
five (5) years after the termination of the grant. 

 
4. Rights of California Department of Public Health, Sexually Transmitted 

Disease Control Branch  
A. The CDPH STDCB reserves the right to modify the terms and conditions 

of all awards.  Additional information and documentation may be required. 
B. The CDPH STDCB reserves the right to use and reproduce all reports and 

data produced and delivered pursuant to the local assistance awards and 
reserves the right to authorize others to use or reproduce such materials, 
provided that the confidentiality of patient information and records is 
protected pursuant to California State laws and regulations. 

 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

Page 1 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts  

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

This Information Privacy and Security Requirements Exhibit (Exhibit) sets forth the information privacy and 
security requirements Contractor is obligated to follow with respect to all personal and confidential 
information (as defined herein) disclosed to Contractor, or collected, created, maintained, stored, 
transmitted or used by Contractor for or on behalf of the California Department of Public Health ( CDPH), 
pursuant to Contractor’s agreement with CDPH. (Such personal and confidential information is referred to 
herein collectively as CDPH PCI.) CDPH and Contractor desire to protect the privacy and provide for the 
security of CDPH PCI pursuant to this Exhibit and in compliance with state and federal laws applicable to 
the CDPH PCI. 

I. Order of Precedence: With respect to information privacy and security requirements for all CDPH PCI,
the terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall take precedence over any conflicting terms or conditions
set forth in any other part of the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including Exhibit A (Scope
of Work), all other exhibits and any other attachments, and shall prevail over any such conflicting terms
or conditions.

II. Effect on lower tier transactions: The terms of this Exhibit shall apply to all contracts, subcontracts, and
subawards, and the information privacy and security requirements Contractor is obligated to follow with
respect to CDPH PCI disclosed to Contractor, or collected, created, maintained, stored, transmitted or
used by Contractor for or on behalf of CDPH, pursuant to Contractor’s agreement with CDPH.  When
applicable the Contractor shall incorporate the relevant provisions of this Exhibit into each subcontract
or subaward to its agents, subcontractors, or independent consultants.

III. Definitions:  For purposes of the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including this Exhibit, the
following definitions shall apply:

A. Breach:

“Breach” means:

1. the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CDPH PCI in a manner which
compromises the security, confidentiality, or integrity of the information; or

2. the same as the definition of "breach of the security of the system" set forth in California Civil
Code section 1798.29(f).

B. Confidential Information:  “Confidential information” means information that:

1. does not meet the definition of “public records” set forth in  California Government Code
section 6252(e), or is exempt from disclosure under any of the  provisions of Section 6250,
et seq. of the California Government Code or any other applicable state or federal laws; or

2. is contained in documents, files, folders, books, or records that are clearly labeled, marked
or designated with the word “confidential” by CDPH.

C. Disclosure:  “Disclosure” means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any
manner of information outside the entity holding the information.



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 2 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

D. PCI:  “PCI” means “personal information” and “confidential information” (as these terms are 
defined herein:

E. Personal Information:  “Personal information” means information, in any medium (paper, 
electronic, oral) that: 

1. directly or indirectly collectively identifies or uniquely describes an individual; or 
 
2. could be used in combination with other information to indirectly identify or uniquely 

describe an individual, or link an individual to the other information; or 
 
3. meets the definition of “personal information” set forth in California Civil Code section 

1798.3, subdivision (a) or 
 
4. is one of the data elements set forth in California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision 

(g)(1) or (g)(2); or 
 
5. meets the definition of “medical information” set forth in either California Civil Code section 

1798.29, subdivision (h)(2) or California Civil Code section 56.05, subdivision (j); or 
 
6. meets the definition of “health insurance information” set forth in California Civil Code 

section 1798.29, subdivision (h)(3); or 
 
7. is protected from disclosure under applicable state or federal law. 

 
F. Security Incident: “Security Incident” means: 

1. an attempted breach; or 
 
2. the attempted or successful unauthorized access or disclosure, modification, or destruction 

of CDPH PCI, in violation of any state or federal law or in a manner not permitted under the 
agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including this Exhibit; or  

 
3. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or interference with, 

Contractor’s system operations in an information technology system, that negatively 
impacts the confidentiality, availability, or integrity of CDPH PCI; or 
 

4. any event that is reasonably believed to have compromised the confidentiality, integrity, or 
availability of an information asset, system, process, data storage, or transmission. 
Furthermore, an information security incident may also include an event that constitutes a 
violation or imminent threat of violation of information security policies or procedures, 
including acceptable use policies. 

 
G. Use: “Use” means the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis of 

information. 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 3 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

IV. Disclosure Restrictions: The Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall protect 
from unauthorized disclosure any CDPH PCI. The Contractor shall not disclose, except as otherwise 
specifically permitted by the agreement between Contractor and CDPH (including this Exhibit), any 
CDPH PCI to anyone other than CDPH personnel or programs without prior written authorization from 
the CDPH Program Contract Manager, except if disclosure is required by State or Federal law. 

V. Use Restrictions: The Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall not use any 
CDPH PCI for any purpose other than performing the Contractor's obligations under its agreement with 
CDPH. 

VI. Safeguards: The Contractor shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the privacy, confidentiality, security, integrity, and availability of 
CDPH PCI, including electronic or computerized CDPH PCI. At each location where CDPH PCI exists 
under Contractor’s control, the Contractor shall develop and maintain a written information privacy 
and security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to 
the size and complexity of the Contractor’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities in 
performing its agreement with CDPH, including this Exhibit, and which incorporates the requirements 
of Section VII, Security, below. Contractor shall provide CDPH with Contractor’s current and updated 
policies within five (5) business days of a request by CDPH for the policies. 

VII. Security: The Contractor shall take any and all steps reasonably necessary to ensure the continuous 
security of all computerized data systems containing CDPH PCI. These steps shall include, at a 
minimum, complying with all of the data system security precautions listed in the Contractor Data 
Security Standards set forth in Attachment 1 to this Exhibit. 

VIII. Security Officer: At each place where CDPH PCI is located, the Contractor shall designate a Security 
Officer to oversee its compliance with this Exhibit and to communicate with CDPH on matters 
concerning this Exhibit. 

IX. Training: The Contractor shall provide training on its obligations under this Exhibit, at its own expense, 
to all of its employees who assist in the performance of Contractor’s obligations under Contractor’s 
agreement with CDPH, including this Exhibit, or otherwise use or disclose CDPH PCI. 

A. The Contractor shall require each employee who receives training to certify, either in hard copy 
or electronic form, the date on which the training was completed. 
 

B. The Contractor shall retain each employee’s certifications for CDPH inspection for a period of 
three years following contract termination or completion. 
 

C. Contractor shall provide CDPH with its employee’s certifications within five (5) business days of 
a request by CDPH for the employee’s certifications. 

 
X. Employee Discipline: Contractor shall impose discipline that it deems appropriate (in its sole 

discretion) on such employees and other Contractor workforce members under Contractor’s direct 
control who intentionally or negligently violate any provisions of this Exhibit. 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 4 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

XI. Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities:

A. Notification to CDPH of Breach or Security Incident: The Contractor shall notify CDPH 
immediately by telephone and email upon the discovery of a breach (as defined in this 
Exhibit), and within twenty-four (24) hours by email of the discovery of any security incident 
(as defined in this Exhibit), unless a law enforcement agency determines that the notification will 
impede a criminal investigation, in which case the notification required by this section shall be 
made to CDPH immediately after the law enforcement agency determines that such notification 
will not compromise the investigation. Notification shall be provided to the CDPH Program 
Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief Information Security Officer, 
using the contact information listed in Section XI (F), below. If the breach or security incident is 
discovered after business hours or on a weekend or holiday and involves CDPH PCI in 
electronic or computerized form, notification to CDPH shall be provided by calling the CDPH 
Information Security Office at the telephone numbers listed in Section XI(F), below. For 
purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be treated as discovered by 
Contractor as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is known to the 
Contractor, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to the Contractor. 
Contractor shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach if such breach is known, or by 
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, other than the person 
committing the breach, who is an employee or agent of the Contractor. 

Contractor shall take: 

1. prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach or 
security incident and to protect the operating environment; and 

 
2. any action pertaining to a breach required by applicable federal and state laws, including, 

specifically, California Civil Code section 1798.29.
 

B. Investigation of Breach and Security Incidents: The Contractor shall immediately investigate such 
breach or security incident. As soon as the information is known and subject to the legitimate 
needs of law enforcement, Contractor shall inform the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the 
CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security Officer of: 

1. what data elements were involved and the extent of the data disclosure or access involved in 
the breach, including, specifically, the number of individuals whose personal information was 
breached;  

 
2. a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to have improperly 

used the CDPH PCI and/or a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably 
believed to have improperly accessed or acquired the CDPH PCI, or to whom it is known or 
reasonably believed to have had the CDPH PCI improperly disclosed to them;  

 
3. a description of where the CDPH PCI is believed to have been improperly used or disclosed;  
 
4. a description of the probable and proximate causes of the breach or security incident; and 
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 5 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

5. whether Civil Code section 1798.29 or any other federal or state laws requiring individual 
notifications of breaches have been triggered. 

 
C. Written Report: The Contractor shall provide a written report of the investigation to the CDPH 

Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer as soon as practicable after the discovery of the breach or security incident. The report 
shall include, but not be limited to, the information specified above, as well as a complete, detailed 
corrective action plan, including information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain 
the breach or security incident, and measures to be taken to prevent the recurrence or further 
disclosure of data regarding such breach or security incident. 

D. Notification to Individuals: If notification to individuals whose information was breached is required 
under state or federal law, and regardless of whether Contractor is considered only a custodian 
and/or non-owner of the CDPH PCI, Contractor shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election 
of CDPH, either:

1. make notification to the individuals affected by the breach (including substitute notification), 
pursuant to the content and timeliness provisions of such applicable state or federal breach 
notice laws. Contractor shall inform the CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, manner and 
content of any such notifications, prior to the transmission of such notifications to the 
individuals; or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its notification (including substitute notification) to the 
individuals affected by the breach.

E. Submission of Sample Notification to Attorney General: If notification to more than 500 
individuals is required pursuant to California Civil Code section 1798.29, and regardless of 
whether Contractor is considered only a custodian and/or non-owner of the CDPH PCI, 
Contractor shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

1. electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach notification, excluding any 
personally identifiable information, to the Attorney General pursuant to the format, content 
and timeliness provisions of Section 1798.29, subdivision (e). Contractor shall inform the 
CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, manner and content of any such submissions, prior to the 
transmission of such submissions to the Attorney General; or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its submission of a sample copy of the notification to the 
Attorney General. 

F. CDPH Contact Information: To direct communications to the above referenced CDPH staff, the 
Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated herein. CDPH reserves the right to make changes 
to the contact information below by verbal or written notice to the Contractor. Said changes shall 
not require an amendment to this Exhibit or the agreement to which it is incorporated. 
  



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 6 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

CDPH Program 
Contract Manager

CDPH Privacy Officer CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer 

See the Scope of Work 
exhibit for Program 
Contract Manager  

Privacy Officer
Privacy Office
c/o Office of Legal Services 
California Dept. of Public Health 
P.O. Box 997377, MS 0506 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
 
Email: privacy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (877) 421-9634 
 

Chief Information Security Officer 
Information Security Office 
California Dept. of Public Health 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6302 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: 
CDPH.InfoSecurityOffice@cdph.ca.gov   
Telephone: (855) 500-0016 

XII. Documentation of Disclosures for Requests for Accounting: Contractor shall document and make 
available to CDPH or (at the direction of CDPH) to an Individual such disclosures of CDPH PCI, and 
information related to such disclosures, necessary to respond to a proper request by the subject 
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of personal information as required by Civil Code section 
1798.25, or any applicable state or federal law. 

XIII. Requests for CDPH PCI by Third Parties: The Contractor and its employees, agents, or 
subcontractors shall promptly transmit to the CDPH Program Contract Manager all requests for 
disclosure of any CDPH PCI requested by third parties to the agreement between Contractor and 
CDPH (except from an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of the individual’s personal 
information pursuant to applicable state or federal law), unless prohibited from doing so by applicable 
state or federal law. 

XIV. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement: CDPH may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of 
Contractor to monitor compliance with this Exhibit. Contractor shall promptly remedy any violation of 
any provision of this Exhibit and shall certify the same to the CDPH Program Contract Manager in 
writing. 

XV. Return or Destruction of CDPH PCI on Expiration or Termination: Upon expiration or termination of 
the agreement between Contractor and CDPH for any reason, Contractor shall securely return or 
destroy the CDPH PCI. If return or destruction is not feasible, Contractor shall provide a written 
explanation to the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief 
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XI (F), above.  

A. Retention Required by Law: If required by state or federal law, Contractor may retain, after 
expiration or termination, CDPH PCI for the time specified as necessary to comply with the law.  

B. Obligations Continue Until Return or Destruction: Contractor’s obligations under this Exhibit shall 
continue until Contractor returns or destroys the CDPH PCI or returns the CDPH PCI to CDPH; 
provided however, that on expiration or termination of the agreement between Contractor and 
CDPH, Contractor shall not further use or disclose the CDPH PCI except as required by state or 
federal law.  



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 7 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

C. Notification of Election to Destroy CDPH PCI: If Contractor elects to destroy the CDPH PCI, 
Contractor shall certify in writing, to the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy 
Officer and the CDPH Chief Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in 
Section XI (F), above, that the CDPH PCI has been securely destroyed. The notice shall include 
the date and type of destruction method used. 

XVI. Amendment: The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws regarding information security and 
privacy rapidly evolves and that amendment of this Exhibit may be required to provide for procedures 
to ensure compliance with such laws. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is 
necessary to implement new standards and requirements imposed by regulations and other 
applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of CDPH PCI. The parties agree to promptly enter 
into negotiations concerning an amendment to this Exhibit consistent with new standards and 
requirements imposed by applicable laws and regulations. 

XVII. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings: Contractor shall make itself and any 
subcontractors, workforce employees or agents assisting Contractor in the performance of its 
obligations under the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, available to CDPH at no cost to 
CDPH to testify as witnesses, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being 
commenced against CDPH, its director, officers or employees based upon claimed violation of laws 
relating to security and privacy, which involves inactions or actions by the Contractor, except where 
Contractor or its subcontractor, workforce employee or agent is a named adverse party. 

XVIII. No Third-Party Beneficiaries: Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this Exhibit is 
intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than CDPH or Contractor 
and their respective successors or assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities 
whatsoever. 

XIX. Interpretation: The terms and conditions in this Exhibit shall be interpreted as broadly as necessary to 
implement and comply with regulations and applicable State laws. The parties agree that any 
ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that 
complies and is consistent with federal and state laws and regulations. 

XX. Survival: If Contractor does not return or destroy the CDPH PCI upon the completion or termination of 
the Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of Contractor under Sections VI, VII and XI of 
this Exhibit shall survive the completion or termination of the agreement between Contractor and 
CDPH. 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 8 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

Attachment 1
Contractor Data Security Standards 

I. Personnel Controls 
 
A. Workforce Members Training and Confidentiality. Before being allowed access to CDPH PCI, 

all Contractor’s workforce members who will be granted access to CDPH PCI must be trained in 
their security and privacy roles and responsibilities at Contractor’s expense and must sign a 
confidentiality and acceptable CDPH PCI use statement. Training must be on an annual basis. 
Acknowledgments of completed training and confidentiality statements, which have been signed 
and dated by workforce members must be retained by the Contractor for a period of three (3) 
years following contract termination. Contractor shall provide the acknowledgements within five 
(5) business days to CDPH if so requested. 

 
B.  Workforce Members Discipline. Appropriate sanctions, including termination of employment 

where appropriate, must be applied against workforce members who fail to comply with privacy 
policies and procedures, acceptable use agreements, or any other provisions of these 
requirements.  

 
C. Workforce Member Assessment. Before being permitted access to CDPH PCI, Contractor must 

assure there is no indication its workforce member may present a risk to the security or integrity 
of CDPH PCI. Contractor shall retain the workforce member’s assessment documentation for a 
period of three (3) years following contract termination. 
 

II. Technical Security Controls 
 
A. Encryption. All desktop computers, mobile computing devices, and portable electronic storage 

media that processes or stores CDPH PCI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified 128 bit 
or higher algorithm. The encryption solution must be full disk unless approved by the CDPH 
Information Security Office (ISO) and Privacy Office (PO). FIPS 140-2 certified 128 bit or higher 
algorithm end-to-end, individual file encryption, or ISO approved compensating security controls, 
shall be used to protect CDPH PCI transmitted or accessed outside the Contractor’s secure 
internal network (e.g., email, remote access, file transfer, internet/website communication tools). 

 
B. Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted CDPH PCI must have sufficient local and 

network perimeter administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect the CDPH 
information asset, based upon a current risk assessment/system security review. 

 
C. Minimum Necessary. Only the minimum amount of CDPH PCI required to complete an 

authorized task or workflow may be copied, downloaded, or exported to any individual device.  
 
D. Antivirus software. Contractor shall employ automatically updated malicious code protection 

mechanisms (anti-malware programs or other physical or software-based solutions) at its network 
perimeter and at workstations, servers, or mobile computing devices to continuously monitor and 
take action against system or device attacks, anomalies, and suspicious or inappropriate activities. 

 
E. Patch Management. All devices that process or store CDPH PCI must have a documented patch 

management process. Vulnerability patching for Common Vulnerability Scoring System (CVSS) 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 9 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

“Critical” severity ratings (CVSS 9.0 – 10.0) shall be completed within forty-eight (48) hours of 
publication or availability of vendor supplied patch; “High” severity rated (CVSS 7.0- 8.9) shall be 
completed within seven (7) calendar days of publication or availability of vendor supplied patch; 
all other vulnerability ratings (CVSS 0.1 – 6.9) shall be completed within thirty (30) days of 
publication or availability of vendor supplied patch, unless prior ISO and PO variance approval is 
granted. 

 
F. User Identification and Access Control. All Contractor workforce members must have a unique 

local and/or network user identification (ID) to access CDPH PCI. The unique ID may be 
passwords, physical authenticators, or biometrics, or in the case of multi-factor authentication, 
some combination thereof. Should a workforce member no longer be authorized to access CDPH 
PCI, or an ID has been compromised, that ID shall be promptly disabled or deleted. User ID’s 
must integrate with user role-based access controls to ensure that individual access to CDPH PCI 
is commensurate with job-related responsibilities.  

 
G. CDPH PCI Destruction. When no longer required for business needs or legal retention periods, 

all electronic and physical media holding CDPH PCI must be purged from Contractor’s systems 
and facilities using the appropriate guidelines for each media type as described in the prevailing 
“National Institute of Standards and Technology – Special Publication 800-88” – “Media 
Sanitization Decision Matrix.” 

 
H. System Inactivity Timeout. Contractor’s computing devices holding, or processing CDPH PCI 

must be configured to automatically log-off an authenticated user or lock the device in a manner 
where the user must reauthenticate the user session after no more than twenty (20) minutes of 
user inactivity.  

 
I. Warning Banners. During a user log-on process, all systems providing access to CDPH PCI, 

must display a warning banner stating that the CDPH PCI is confidential, system and user 
activities are logged, and system and CDPH PCI use is for authorized business purposes only. 
User must be directed to log-off the system if they do not agree with these conditions.  

 
J. System Logging. Contractor shall ensure its information systems and devices that hold or 

process CDPH PCI are capable of being audited and the events necessary to reconstruct 
transactions and support after-the-fact investigations are maintained. This includes the auditing 
necessary to cover related events, such as the various steps in distributed, transaction-based 
processes and actions in service-oriented architectures. Audit trail information with CDPH PCI 
must be stored with read-only permissions and be archived for three (3) years after event 
occurrence. There must also be a documented and routine procedure in place to review system 
logs for unauthorized access. 

K. Intrusion Detection. All Contractor systems and devices holding, processing, or transporting 
CDPH PCI that interact with untrusted devices or systems via the Contractor intranet and/or the 
internet must be protected by a monitored comprehensive intrusion detection system and/or 
intrusion prevention system. 

III. Audit Controls 
 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 10 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

A. System Security Review. Contractor, to assure that administrative, physical, and technical 
controls are functioning effectively and providing adequate levels of protection for CDPH PCI, shall 
conduct at least, an annual administrative assessment of risk, including the likelihood and 
magnitude of harm from the unauthorized access, use, disclosure, disruption, modification, or 
destruction of an information system or device holding processing, or transporting CDPH PCI, 
along with periodic technical security reviews using vulnerability scanning tools and other 
appropriate technical assessments. 

 
B. Change Control. All Contractor systems and devices holding, processing, or transporting CDPH 

PCI shall have a documented change control process for hardware, firmware, and software to 
protect the systems and assets against improper modification before, during, and after system 
implementation.  

 
IV. Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Controls 

 
A. Emergency Mode Operation Plan. Contractor shall develop and maintain technical recovery and 

business continuity plans for systems holding, processing, or transporting CDPH PCI to ensure 
the continuation of critical business processes and the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of 
CDPH PCI following an interruption or disaster event lasting more than twenty-four (24) hours.  

 
B. CDPH PCI Backup Plan. Contractor shall have a documented, tested, accurate, and regularly 

scheduled full backup process for systems and devices holding CDPH PCI.   
 
V. Paper Document Controls 

 
A. Supervision of CDPH PCI. CDPH PCI in any physical format shall not be left unattended at any 

time. When not under the direct observation of an authorized Contractor workforce member, the 
CDPH PCI must be stored in a locked file cabinet, desk, or room. It also shall not be left unattended 
at any time in private vehicles or common carrier transportation, and it shall not be placed in 
checked baggage on common carrier transportation.  

 
B. Escorting Visitors. Visitors who are not authorized to see CDPH PCI must be escorted by 

authorized workforce members when in areas where CDPH PCI is present, and CDPH PCI shall 
be kept out of sight of visitors.  

 
C. Removal of CDPH PCI. CDPH PCI in any format must not be removed from the secure computing 

environment or secure physical storage of the Contractor, except with express written permission 
of the CDPH PCI owner.   

 
D. Faxing and Printing. Contractor shall control access to information system output devices, such 

as printers and facsimile devices, to prevent unauthorized individuals from obtaining any output 
containing CDPH PCI. Fax numbers shall be verified with the intended recipient before transmittal.  

E. Mailing. Mailings of CDPH PCI shall be sealed and secured from damage or inappropriate viewing 
to the extent possible. Mailings which include five hundred (500) or more individually identifiable 
records of CDPH PCI in a single package shall be sent using a tracked mailing method which 



County of Los Angeles 
22-10885 

  Page 11 of 11 
Exhibit F 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPPA/HITECH Act Contracts 

 
 

CDPH IPSR 9-22 

includes verification of delivery and receipt, unless the prior written permission of CDPH to use 
another method is obtained.   

 
 



BOARD LETTER/MEMO  
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

 
  Board Letter                                     Board Memo                                             Other 

 
CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/19/2023 

BOARD MEETING DATE 5/2/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 
AFFECTED 

 
  All         1st       2nd        3rd       4th      5th          

DEPARTMENT(S) Mental Health 

SUBJECT Adopt the Department of Mental Health’s Mental Health Services Revised Annual Update for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 
 

PROGRAM MHSA 

AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT 

  Yes            No   

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT   Yes            No   

 

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS 

May 2, 2023 

COST & FUNDING Total cost: 
$60 million 
 

Funding source:  
Mental Health Service Act 

TERMS (if applicable): 
 
Upon approval to June 30, 2023 

Explanation:  

PURPOSE OF REQUEST The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisor’s approved the MHSA Annual Update for 
FY 2022-23 on June 28, 2022. The revision to the MHSA Annual Update is to reflect 
new programs, expansion of current programs, and administrative changes to the 
Annual Update for FY 2022-23.   
 

BACKGROUND 
(include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

Each counties mental health program is required to prepare a MHSA Three-Year Program and 
Expenditure Plan and Updates. The MHSA Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan and  
Updates are required to be circulated for public review and comment.  On January 20, 2023, DMH 
posted the mid-year adjustments on its website for 30 days for public comment. The posting 
included a number of actions which a portion of are included in the revised Annual Update for FY 
2022-23. 
 

 

EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how:  

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES  

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how:  

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email: 

Darlesh Horn, Program Manager III, (213) 943-8475, dkhorn@dmh.lacounty.gov 

William Bernie, Senior Deputy County Counsel, (213) 972-5717, 

wbirnie@counsel.lacounty.gov  

 

DRAFT

mailto:wbirnie@counsel.lacounty.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

510 S. VERMONT AVENUE, LOS ANGELES, CA 90020  |  HTTPS://DMH.LACOUNTY.GOV  |  (800) 854-7771 
 
 
 
 

Connie D. Draxler, M.P.A. 
Acting Chief Deputy Director 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

LISA H. WONG, Psy.D. 
Director 

Curley L. Bonds, M.D. 
Chief Medical Officer 

Wong, Psy.D. 
Senior Deputy Director 

May 2, 2023 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
 
Dear Supervisors:  
 

ADOPT THE DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH’S  
MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT REVISED ANNUAL UPDATE  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 
(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS) 

(3 VOTES) 
 

SUBJECT 
 

Request adoption of the Department of Mental Health’s Mental Health Services Act Revised 
Annual Update for Fiscal Year 2022-23. 
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT YOUR BOARD: 
 
Adopt the Department of Mental Health’s (DMH) Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 
Revised Annual Update for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 to include mid-year adjustments.  
 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
 
The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors (Board) approved the MHSA Annual Update 
for FY 2022-23.  The MHSA Annual Update for FY 2022-23 contains a summary of MHSA 
programs detailed by  MHSA components: Innovations, Prevention and Early Intervention, 
Community Services and Supports, and Capital Facilities and Technological Needs.  DMH 
requires the adoption of the Revised MHSA Annual Update for FY 2022-23 to reflect the 
following:  new programs, expansion of current programs, and administrative changes. 
 
 
 
 



 
Each Supervisor 
May 2, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
 

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals 
 
The recommended action is consistent with the County’s Strategic Plan Goal I (Make 
Investments that Transform Lives), via Strategy I.2 (Enhance our Delivery of Comprehensive 
Interventions) and County’s Strategic Plan Goal III (Realize Tomorrow’s Government Today), 
via Strategy III.4 (Engage and Share Information with Our Customers, Communities, and 
Partners).  
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING 
 
The Revised MHSA Annual Update for FY 2022-23 will increase the initial Annual Update for 
FY 2022-23 by approximately $60 million, fully funded by State MHSA revenue.  Sufficient 
appropriation is included in DMH’s FY 2022-23 Final Adopted Budget for this action.  
 
There is no net County cost impact associated with the recommended action. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Assembly Bill (AB) 1467, chaptered into law on June 27, 2012, implemented changes to the 
MHSA law.  More specifically, AB 1467 amended the Welfare and Institutions Code and 
requires that each county mental health program prepare a MHSA Three-Year Program and 
Expenditure Plan and Annual Updates, which are to be adopted by the Board and submitted 
to the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission and the State 
Department of Health Care Services.   
 
In preparation for Board adoption, the mid-year adjustments to the Annual Update must be 
circulated for review and comment, for at least 30 days, to stakeholders and any interested 
party who have requested a copy of the mid-year adjustments.  In accordance with these 
requirements, DMH posted the MHSA Mid-Year Adjustment on its website on  
January 20, 2023, for 30 days for public comment.  The posting included a number of actions 
which are included in the revised Annual Update for FY 2022-23 (Attachment). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Each Supervisor 
May 2, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 

 

 
 

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES 
 
Board adoption of the MHSA Revised Annual Update for FY 2022-23 will ensure compliance 
with the MHSA and allow for uninterrupted access to vital mental health services. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
LISA H. WONG, Psy D. 
Director 
 
LHW:CDD:KN:DKH:SK:ZW:atm 
 
Attachment 
 
c: Executive Office, Board of Supervisors 

Chief Executive Office 
 County Counsel 
 Chairperson, Mental Health Commission 



 

  

LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MHSA ANNUAL UPDATE 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

Adopted by the 

Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 

on June 28, 2022 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

2 | Page 

 

 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................ 4 
DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE ............................................................................................... 5 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................ 6 
MHSA OVERVIEW ......................................................................................................... 8 
DEVELOPMENT OF ANNUAL UPDATE 
MHSA Requirements ...................................................................................................... 9 
County Demographics .................................................................................................... 9 
Community Planning Partnership with Stakeholders: Your DMH ................................... 11 
MHSA Planning Activities .............................................................................................. 13 
Stakeholder Feedback .................................................................................................. 14 
Addressing Disparities .................................................................................................. 15 
COVID-19 IMPACT ON MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ................................................ 17 
PROPOSED CHANGES FOR MHSA ANNUAL UPDATE ............................................. 21 
 
EXISTING PROGRAMS AND SERVICES BY COMPONENT 
Community Services and Supports (CSS)..................................................................... 31 
Full Service Partnership ................................................................................................ 32 
Outpatient Care Services .............................................................................................. 36 
Alternative Crisis Services ............................................................................................ 40 
Housing ........................................................................................................................ 48 
Linkage ......................................................................................................................... 52 
Planning, Outreach and Engagement ........................................................................... 55 
Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) ........................................................................ 61 
Early Intervention .......................................................................................................... 62 
Prevention..................................................................................................................... 70 
Stigma and Discrimination ............................................................................................ 87 
Suicide Prevention ........................................................................................................ 93 
Workforce Education and Training (WET) ..................................................................... 99 
Innovation (INN) .......................................................................................................... 107 
Capital Facilities and Technological Needs (CFTN) .................................................... 132 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

3 | Page 

 
 
 
 
Exhibit A - Budget Summary  ...................................................................................... 134 
Exhibit B - MHSA County Compliance Certification ..................................................... 139 
Exhibit C - MHSA County Fiscal Accountability Certification ....................................... 140 
Exhibit D - Mental Health Commission (MHC) Letter ................................................... 141 
Exhibit E – Supportive Documentation to MHC ........................................................... 146 
Exhibit F – LACDMH Response to MHC ..................................................................... 189 
Exhibit G - County Board of Supervisors Adopted Letter and Minutes ......................... 196  
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix A - Executive Summary ............................................................................... 200 
Appendix B - Stakeholder Presentation ....................................................................... 216 
Appendix C - Mental Health Commission Presentation ............................................... 227 
Appendix D - Public Comments and Responses ......................................................... 243 
Appendix E - Public Hearing Presentation and Transcripts ......................................... 271 
Appendix F - Acronyms ............................................................................................... 350 
 
 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

4 | Page 

INTRODUCTION 
Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 5847 states that county mental health programs shall 
prepare and submit a Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan (Plan) followed by Annual Updates 
for Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) programs and expenditures.  The MHSA Plan provides an 
opportunity for the Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) to review its MHSA 
programs and services and obtain feedback from a broad array of stakeholders on those services.  Any 
changes made to the MHSA programs would need to be in accordance with the MHSA, current 
regulations, and relevant State guidance.   
  
LACDMH engaged in individual community planning processes for each component of the MHSA as 
guidelines were issued by the California Department of Mental Health.  Implementation of each 
component began after plan approval by either the California Department of Mental Health or the Mental 
Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) as shown below: 

 

MHSA Component Approval Dates 

Community Services and Support (CSS) Plan  February 14, 2006 

Workforce Education and Training (WET) Plan  April 8, 2009 

Technological Needs (TN) Plan   May 8, 2009 

Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) Plan  September 27, 2009 

Innovation 1 - Integrated Clinic Model, Integrated Services Management Model, Integrated 
Mobile Health Team Model and Integrated Peer-Run Model 

 February 2, 2010 

Capital Facilities (CF) Plan   April 19, 2010 

Innovation 2 - Developing Trauma Resilient Communities through Community Capacity Building  May 28, 2015 

Innovation 3 - Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and Supports Utilizing a Suite of 
Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions (Renamed to Help@Hand) 

 October 26, 2017 

Innovation 4 - Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation  April 26, 2018 

Innovation 5 - Peer Operated Full Service Partnership  April 26, 2018 

Innovation 7 - Therapeutic Transportation  September 26, 2018 

Innovation 8 - Early Psychosis Learning Health Care Network  December 16, 2018 

Innovation 9 - Recovery Supports for Conservatees  September 26, 2018 

True Recovery Innovation Embraces Systems that Empower (TRIESTE)  May 23, 2019 

 
The programs funded within each component are described in this document, along with the number 
of clients served and relevant program outcomes.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

5 | Page 

 
 
 

DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dear L.A. County, 
 
Since its passage, the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) has provided the Los Angeles County 
Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) and the myriad communities we serve with an unprecedented 
opportunity to engage and partner in developing and promoting a shared plan for impact. Building on 
the successes achieved over years, we have doubled down on our investment in stakeholder 
engagement through our guiding bodies including the Service Area Leadership Team, the Underserved 
Cultural Communities, and the Board appointed Mental Health Commission. Known as YourDMH, 
community leaders come together as a Community Leadership Team (CLT) to help catalyze the 
processes we need in place to plan properly and transparently. 
 
Many important service expansions and improvements have been informed through YourDMH in 
alignment with the LACDMH strategic plan including: 
 

• Reinstituting the Psychiatrist Loan Repayment program that incentivizes recruitment of quality, 
motivated, and dedicated professionals to serve our clients and strengthen our staff; 

• Transforming the Full Service Partnership program so that we can best support our highest acuity 
outpatient clients on the path to recovery in the community and at the same time activating the 
grass roots through our Community Ambassador Network which empowers individuals through 
employment opportunities, access to available resources, increased awareness of mental 
illness, and reduction of stigma; 

• Bolstering the Therapeutic Transportation Van program to provide intensive care resources 
needed to help individuals in crisis who are falling out of community; and 

• Expanding our homeless outreach and mobile engagement (HOME) program to care for and 
house our most vulnerable clients who too often linger in the open-air asylum of the street. 
 

I am steadfast in my commitment to ensuring that our MHSA resources help those most in need to 
develop and maintain strong personal relationships, live freely in stable and dignified environments of 
their choice, and engage in meaningful life activities. 

 

Heart Forward, 

 

 
 

Lisa H. Wong, Psy.D. 
Senior Deputy Director 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

JONATHAN E. SHERIN, M.D., Ph.D. 
Director 

Gregory C. Polk, M.P.A. 
Chief Deputy Director 

 
Curley L. Bonds, M.D. 
Chief Medical Officer  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

6 | Page 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
PREFACE 
 
In November 2004, California voters supported Proposition 63 and passed the Mental Health Services 
Act (MHSA) that imposes a 1% income tax on personal income in excess of $1 million.  The Act provides 
the significant funding to expand, improve and transform public mental health systems to improve the 
quality of life for individuals living with a mental illness.  MHSA funds an array of services that starts 
with prevention and integrates it into a comprehensive system of care to treat the whole person, with 
focus on wellness, recovery and resilience so that we may keep him/her out of hospitals, off the streets, 
and out of the jails.   
 
Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section 5847 requires county mental health programs prepare 
and submit a Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plan (“Three-Year Plan” or “Plan”) followed by 
Annual Plan Updates for MHSA programs and expenditures.  The Plan provides an opportunity for the 
Los Angeles County (County) - Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) to review its existing MHSA 
programs and services to evaluate their effectiveness.  The Plan also allows LACDMH to propose and 
incorporate any new programs through a robust stakeholder engagement process, should additional 
funding be available.  It is through this Community Planning Process that LACDMH will obtain important 
feedback from a broad array of stakeholders.  Any changes made to any MHSA program must comply 
with MHSA regulations, as well as relevant State requirements. 
 
 
PLAN LAYOUT 
 
This Plan describes the programs that are funded by MHSA and is organized by the five MHSA 
components (Community Services and Supports; Prevention and Early Intervention; Innovation; 
Workforce Education and Training; and Capital Facilities and Technological Needs).   
  
The information within this report is structured in the following two sections: 
 
▪ Proposed Plan Changes  

The Plan details significant changes that are either being proposed or will be explored within the 
next fiscal year.   

 
▪ Existing Programs and Services by MHSA Component 

The Plan provides relevant program outcomes specific to FY 2020-21 for programs previously 
reflected in the Three-Year Plan for FYs 2021-22 through 2023-24. 

 
 
PLAN CHANGES  
 
LACDMH proposes four (4) changes to the adopted MHSA Three Year Plan for FYs 2021-22 through 
2023-24: The continuation of Innovation 2 services, Community Capacity Building to Prevent and 
Address Trauma, using Prevention funding, the addition of $5 million dollars to the Capital Facilities 
component, the redesign of the Innovation Project, Trieste and budget projections. 
 
Innovation 2 centers on building the capacity of the community to identify and support community 
members at risk of trauma or experiencing trauma. The project aims to utilize the assets of the 
community to test strategies that allow local communities to work together in ways that will ultimately 
lead to better mental health and reductions in trauma, through the building of shared community values, 
leadership development and community member empowerment. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

7 | Page 

Additional funding for capital facilities will help to expand the opportunities for accessible community 
based services for clients and their families, promoting the reduction in disparities in underserved 
groups.   

 
The Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project is a modification of the MHSA Innovation project (originally Trieste) 
approved by the MHSOC in May of 2019.  

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

8 | Page 

MHSA OVERVIEW 
 
The Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) was enacted in January 2005 following the passage of 
Proposition 63 in late 2004.  The Act imposes a 1% income tax on personal income in excess of $1.0 
million to provide resources that will greatly improve the delivery of community-based mental health 
services and treatment across the State.  
 
WIC Section 5891 states that MHSA revenues may only fund mental health services, and MHSA 
programs and activities.  MHSA addresses a broad continuum of county mental health services for all 
populations: children, transition-age youth, adults, older adults, families, and underserved.  MHSA 
specifies five required components that support county mental health systems. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Community Services and Supports (CSS) 

- Direct mental health services and supports for 
children and youth, transition age youth, adults, 
and older adults 

- Permanent supportive housing for clients with 
serious mental illness  

- Accounts of 75% of the total MHSA allocation 
 
Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) 

- Services to engage individuals before the 
development of serious mental illness or at the 
earliest signs of mental health struggles 

- Accounts of 18% of the total MHSA allocation 
 
Workforce and Education Training (WET)* 

- Enhancement of the mental health workforce 
through continuous education and training 
programs 

 
Innovation (INN) 

- Opportunities to design and test time-limited new 
or changing mental health practices that have 
not yet been demonstrated as effective, and to 
fuse such practices into the mental health 
system, thereby increasing access to 
underserved communities, promotion of 
interagency collaboration, and the overall quality 
of mental health services 

- Accounts for 5% of the total MHSA allocation 
 
Capital Facilities and Technological Needs (CFTN)* 

- Building projects and improvements of mental 
health services delivery systems using the latest 
technology 

 
 
*Transfers of CSS funds to WET and/or CFTN are 
permitted in accordance with MHSA guidelines 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

9 | Page 

African American
835,191

(8%)

Asian / Pacific 
Islander

1,457,731
(14%)

Latino
4,993,673

(49%)

Native American
23,720
(<1.0%)

Two or More 
Races 230,193

(2%)

White
2,719,729

(27%)

African American Asian / Pacific Islander Latino

Native American Two or More Races White

DEVELOPMENT OF THE MHSA ANNUAL UPDATE 
 
MHSA REQUIREMENTS 
WIC Section 5847 states that county mental health programs shall prepare and submit a Three-Year 
Program and Expenditure Plan and Annual Updates for MHSA programs and expenditures.  Counties 
must also submit Annual Updates reflecting the status of their programs and services, as well as any 
changes. 
 
Plans and Annual Updates must be adopted by the county Board of Supervisors and submitted to the 
Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) within 30 days after 
Board of Supervisor adoption. 
 
WIC Section 5848 states the mental health board shall conduct a public hearing on the draft Three-
Year Program and Expenditure Plan at the close of the 30-day comment period. 
 
MHSOAC is mandated to oversee MHSA-funded programs and services through these documents, 
and evaluate how MHSA funding has been used, what outcomes have resulted, and how to improve 
services and programs. 

 

COUNTY DEMOGRAPHICS 
The Los Angeles County (County) Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) is the largest county-
operated mental health system in the United States.  Serving as the local mental health plan in an area 
with over 10 million residents, LACDMH ensures access to quality mental health care through its 
provider network composed of directly operated clinic sites, contracted clinic sites, and co-located sites.  
These sites provide an array of programs and services to County residents within and beyond the 
physical clinic facilities in more than 85 cities within its boundaries.   
 
County residents represent one of the most diverse populations.  This diverse racial and ethnic makeup 
are spread across approximately 4,000 miles that the County serves based on eight County defined 
Service Area (SA) boundaries.  The next two tables provide the breakdown by race/ethnicity based on 
the SAs.  Bold values shown in blue and brown represent the highest and lowest percentages, 
respectively, within each racial/ethnic group (Table 1) and across all SAs (Table 2). 
 
Figure 1.  Total population by race/ethnicity      
 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 

SA 8 – South Bay 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

10 | Page 

Children 1,934,741
(19%)

Transition Age Youth
1,428,430

(14%)
Adult

4,904,764
(48%)

Older Adult
1,947,942

Table 1.  Population by race/ethnicity and Service Area 

Service 
Area (SA) 

African 
American 

Asian/Pacific 
Islander 

Latino 
Native 

American 
White 

Two or 
More Races 

Total 

SA 1 61,148 15,464 181,754 1,922 125,684 11,300 397,272 

Percent 15.4% 3.9% 45.8% 0.48% 31.6% 2.8% 100% 

SA 2 77,002 254,680 909,678 4,703 943,807 58,441 2,248,311 

Percent 3.4% 11.3%  40.5% 0.21% 42.0% 2.6% 100% 

SA 3 63,409 507,240 846,574 3,720 358,478 35,040 1,814,459 

Percent 3.5% 28.0% 46.7% 0.21% 19.8% 1.9% 100% 

SA 4 59,582 206,948 616,104 2,619 285,102 21,416 1,191,772 

Percent 5.0% 17.4% 51.7% 0.22% 23.9% 1.8% 100% 

SA 5 37,299 91,134 110,277 1,184 398,949 28,378 667,220 

Percent 5.6% 13.7% 16.5% 0.18% 59.8% 4.3% 100% 

SA 6 275,338 19,164 717,130 1,825 25,738 11,503 1,050,698 

Percent 26.2% 1.8% 68.3% 0.17% 2.4% 1.1% 100% 

SA 7 39,210 119,386 974,630 3,344 168,786 15,589 1,320,945 

Percent 3.0% 9.0% 73.8% 0.25% 12.8% 1.2% 100% 

SA 8 222,204 243,714 637,526 4,403 413,188 48,525 1,569,560 

Percent 14.2% 15.5% 40.6% 0.28% 26.3% 3.1% 100.0% 

Total 835,191 1,457,731 4,993,673 23,720 2,719,729 230,193 10,260,237 

Percent 8.1% 14.2% 48.7% 0.23% 26.5% 2.2% 100% 
Data source:  ACS, US Census Bureau and Hedderson Demographic Services, Calendar Year 2019 
Some totals and percentages reflect rounding 

 

 

Table 2.  Population by race/ethnicity and Service Area 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 

SA 8 – South Bay 

 
In addition to the racial and ethnic diversity, LACDMH also serves residents across their lifespan.  
Figure 2 and Tables 3 and 4 below provide a snapshot of the population breakdown by age group 
based on the SAs.  Bold values shown in blue and brown in represent the highest and lowest 
percentages, respectively, within each age group (Table 3) and across all SAs (Table 4). 
 

Figure 2.  Total population by age group 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Ethnic Group Highest Lowest 

African-American SA 6 (33%) SA 5 (4%) 

Asian/Pacific Islander SA 3 (35%) SA 6 (1%) 

Latino SA 7 (20%) SA 5 (2%) 

Native American SA 2 (20%) SA 5 (5%) 

White SA 2 (35%) SA 6 (1%) 

Two or More Races SA 2 (25%) SA 1 (5%) 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

11 | Page 

Table 3.  Population by age group and Service Area  

Service 
Area (SA) 

Age Group 

0-18 19-20 21-25 26-59 60-64 65+ Total 

SA 1 104,022 13,206 34,450 176,405 24,364 44,825 397,272 

Percent 26.2% 3.3% 8.7% 44.4% 6.1% 11.3% 100% 

SA 2 486,825 60,627 152,108 1,085,643 147,042 316,066 2,248,311 

Percent 21.7% 2.7% 6.8% 48.3% 6.5% 14.1% 100% 

SA 3 390,614 54,138 131,937 837,009 119,711 281,050 1,814,459 

Percent 21.5% 3.0% 7.3% 46.1% 6.6% 15.5% 100% 

SA 4 239,083 26,350 69,744 643,006 64,200 149,389 1,191,772 

Percent 20.1% 2.2% 5.9% 54.0% 5.4% 12.5% 100% 

SA 5 119,662 23,038 40,973 334,647 41,382 107,518 667,220 

Percent 17.9% 3.5% 6.1% 50.2% 6.2% 16.1% 100% 

SA 6 298,631 38,452 90,823 477,317 50,349 95,126 1,050,698 

Percent 28.4% 3.7% 8.6% 45.4% 4.8% 9.1% 100% 

SA 7 329,651 40,947 103,494 610,331 72,824 163,698 1,320,945 

Percent 25.0% 3.1% 7.8% 46.2% 5.5% 12.4% 100% 

SA 8 361,487 43,443 109,466 740,406 98,813 215,945 1,569,560 

Percent 23.0% 2.8% 7.0% 47.2% 6.3% 13.8% 100% 

Total 2,329,975 300,201 732,995 4,904,764 618,685 1,373,617 10,260,237 

Percent 22.7% 2.9% 7.1% 47.8% 6.0% 13.4% 100% 
Data source: ACS, US Census Bureau and Hedderson Demographic Services, 2019 
Some totals and percentages reflect rounding 

 

Table 4.  Population by age group and Service Area 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 

SA 4 – Metro 

SA 5 – West 

SA 6 – South 

SA 7 – East 

SA 8 – South Bay 

  
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
The goal of the Community Planning Process is to ensure community stakeholders take an active role 
in advising the County on service needs across all Los Angeles County communities. LACDMH takes 
a collaborative and inclusive approach to understanding community priorities through a community-
driven partnership that engages the large, multicultural, and diverse community stakeholder group 
within the County.  
 
A. Partnership with Stakeholders: YourDMH 

The purpose of this collaborative and inclusive approach is to develop shared goals of hope, 
recovery, and well-being. This approach, known as YourDMH, is engaged to produce community-
driven stakeholder priorities that provide feedback and guidance to LACDMH in the development 
of LACDMH action plans for countywide service provision across the system. It forms planning 
and development for large system efforts, including the MHSA Three-Year Plan.  Partners in 
YourDMH play an active role in setting the priorities of funding allocations for services funded by 
MHSA and provide feedback on priority populations and service models to be implemented. 

 
The active partnership includes these diverse groups of stakeholders:   
▪ Service Area Leadership Teams (SALT) 
▪ Underserved Cultural Communities (UsCC) 

Age 
Group 

Highest 
(in blue) 

Lowest 
(in brown) 

0-18 SA 2 (21%) SA 1 (4%) 

19-20 SA 2 (20%) SA 1 (4%) 

21-25 SA 2 (21%) SA 1 (5%) 

26-59 SA 2 (22%) SA 1 (4%) 

60-64 SA 2 (24%) SA 1 (4%) 

65+ SA 2 (23%) SA 1 (3%) 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

12 | Page 

▪ Community Leadership Team (CLT) 
▪ Mental Health Commission  
 
Service Area Leadership Teams (SALT) 
For the purposes of planning and operation, Los Angeles County is divided into eight Service 
Areas (SA) as shown in the table below.  Each SA has a SALT - formerly known as Service Area 
Advisory Committee (SAAC).  Each SALT functions as a local forum of consumers, families, 
service providers and community representatives to provide LACDMH with information, advice, 
and recommendations regarding the: 
- Functioning of local service systems; 
- Mental health service needs of their geographic area; 
- Most effective/efficient use of available resources; and 
- Maintenance of two-way communication between LACDMH and various groups and 

geographic communities. 
 

            Table 5.  County Service Areas 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley SA 5 – West Los Angeles 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley SA 6 – South Los Angeles 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles SA 8 – South Bay 

 
Underserved Cultural Communities (UsCC) 
One of the cornerstones of MHSA is to empower underrepresented ethnic/cultural groups and to 
give them a voice in the stakeholder process. The term refers to communities historically 
unserved, underserved and inappropriately served, in terms of mental health services. As a result 
of MHSA, UsCC subcommittees were developed by LACDMH to address the needs of targeted 
ethnic/cultural communities and reduce cultural and ethnic disparities in access to care and 
service delivery.  There are seven UsCC subcommittees. 

 
 Table 6.  UsCC subcommittees 

African/African American Eastern European/Middle Eastern 

American Indian/Alaska Native Latino 

Asian Pacific Islander Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, 
Transgender, Queer, Questioning, 
Intersex, Two-Spirit (LBGTQI2-S) 

Deaf, Hard of Hearing, Blind, and 
Physical Disabilities 

 
The UsCC subcommittees are an important part of the YourDMH community stakeholder 
engagement process. The UsCC subcommittees work closely with community partners and 
consumers to increase the capacity of the public mental health system and to develop culturally 
competent recovery-oriented policies and services specific to the UsCC communities. As a part 
of the YourDMH community stakeholder engagement process, the UsCC subcommittees have 
been allotted funding to develop capacity building projects that provide a unique opportunity to 
draw on the collective wisdom and experience of community members to determine the greatest 
needs and priorities related to mental health in their communities. 

 
The goals of the UsCC capacity building projects include increasing knowledge about mental 
illness, increasing access to mental health resources, and decreasing stigma related to mental 
illness in the targeted UsCC community. These projects are not intended for the delivery of mental 
health services but to increase access to care by unserved, underserved, and inappropriately 
served populations who are uninsured/uninsurable and across age groups (children, transitional 
aged youth, adult, and older adult) consistent with the language and cultural needs and 

https://dmh.lacounty.gov/about/yourdmh/


 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

13 | Page 

demographics of those communities. The projects should be community-based and include 
culturally effective outreach, engagement, and education and respond to historical and 
geographic disparities and barriers to services. 

 
Community Leadership Team (CLT)  
CLT is made up of Co-Chairs from two important networks of stakeholders: SALT and UsCC.  
CLT participants work together to discuss and consolidate stakeholder priorities.  All stakeholder 
priorities that are officially endorsed by SALT and the UsCC and any other convening groups, are 
then included on the stakeholder priority list. The purpose of combining similar stakeholder 
priorities is to indicate which priorities have the support of multiple stakeholders and therefore 
must be relayed to LACDMH through the CLT. This group meets quarterly. 

 
 This inclusive and ongoing community planning process allows the LACDMH to gather input about 

experiences with MHSA programs and the current mental health system; to gauge the overall 
impact and effectiveness of such programs; to record recommendations for improvement of 
programs and processes; and to acknowledge feedback regarding future and/or unmet needs 
pursuant to WIC Section 5848(a). 

 
Mental Health Commission (MHC) 

 In adherence to WIC Section 5604 that sets very specific membership requirements, the MHC is 
made up of 16 members.  Each member represents a Supervisorial District.  The role of the MHC 
is to review and evaluate the community’s mental health needs, services, facilities and special 
programs.   

 
B. MHSA Planning Activities 
 

Posting of Executive Summary: March 4, 2022 
An executive summary highlighting Service Area data, MHSA client counts, updates on actions 
approved in the MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan FYs 2021-22 through 2023-24 
and proposed changes in the MHSA Annual Update FY 2022-23, was posted to the LACDMH 
website on this date. A Spanish version as posted on March 10, 2022.  See Appendix A. 
 
Stakeholder Meeting: March 9, 2022 
A high-level overview of the Update was presented at the full Mental Health Commission meeting 
attended by CLT, UsCCs and SALTs to receive input and feedback.  LACDMH also brought 
forward proposed changes included in the Plan.  The presentation is attached as Appendix B. 
 
Mental Health Commission (MHC) Executive Committee: March 10, 2022  
A high-level overview of the Update was presented to Executive Committee members to receive 
input and feedback.  A budget overview, the impact of COVID, proposed changes and updates 
on previously approved programs was presented.  The agenda and presentation are attached as 
Appendix C. 
 
Posting of Draft MHSA Annual Update: March 8, 2022 
The full version of the draft update was posted to the LACDMH website on this date followed by 
a 45-day public comment period.  A Spanish version was later posted.  Public comments received 
during this period are attached as Appendix D. 
 
Public Hearing: April 28, 2022 
The virtual Public Hearing meeting occurred on this date with Spanish and Korean translation.  
The agenda, presentation and transcripts are attached as Appendix E. 
 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

14 | Page 

C. Stakeholder Feedback 
 

Surveys in both English and Spanish were available to provide feedback during the public posting 
and comment period.  Through this feedback process, the Department collected the following:  
 

• 66 Survey responses were received, 65 in English and 1 in Spanish.  There were 9 survey 
questions administered. Not all respondents answered all the questions. 

• Various written and email correspondences were received that were recorded and reflect in 
the stakeholder feedback toward review of the Plan 

 

The input collected from the surveys represents input from individuals representing various (self-
reported) stakeholder categories including: 
 

• 21% of the respondents are clients/consumers 

• 7% of the respondents are peers 

• 13% of the respondents are advocates 

• 14% of the respondents are family members of a client/consumer 

• 5% of the respondents are other government employees 

• 6% of the respondents are LACDMH staff/employees 

• 17% of the respondents are mental health service provider 

• 16% of the respondents indicated Other 
 

Among these categories, the following ethnic populations were represented: 
 

• 14% reported African American 

• 8% reported Asian 

• 24% reported Caucasian 

• 26% reported Latin/Latina/Latinx 

• 4% reported Mixed/multi-ethnic 

• 10% reported Native American / American Indian/ Alaskan Native 

• 14% reported Other 
 

Summary of Feedback Received 
 

The comments received about the Plan, included: 

• Plan written so that it is easily understandable to stakeholders and the general public 

• Access to services to communities in need expanded through regular phone calls with 
clients and family members 

• Focuses on objectives to expand mental health services to ethnic and underserved 
communities 

• Very data driven 

• Continuation of FSP  

• Additional information on budget and spending provided to stakeholders  
 

Input received on opportunities to improve the plan/process included: 

• Provide additional focus on Individuals with serious mental illness/gravely disabled, 
dually diagnosed/those suffering from opioid crisis 

• Finding more treatment beds or facilities.  

• Increase advocacy, family support or engagement  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

15 | Page 

• Continue support for CANs program seems to be the bridge in making sure the 
community members have access to the needed resources. 

• Open grant opportunities and open bid solicitations with limited restrictions directly 
targeting innovative approaches expanding direct mental health services.  

• Better identify treatment services for mental health disorders like Rape Trauma 
Syndrome (PTSD), Intermittent Explosive Disorder in Children and Teens, Adjustment 
Disorder, Autism with Behavioral Disorders. 

• Increase time for sharing plan information and making follow up contact information 
available 

• Make the plan more LGBTQ1AS5 friendly by ensuring more direct hiring of individuals 
that identify as LGBTQ1AS5, especially LGBTQ1AS5 of color, youth and older adults 

• Create more peer specialist roles for LGBTQ1AS5 and integrate them in both directly 
operated and contracted programs 

• Make pronouns universal across all programs  

• Allocate FSP slots for patients discharged from DHS hospitals 

• Provide more DMH psychiatry to support DHS Collaborative Care Model for Depression 
in the Primary Care Medical Homes 

• Create innovation that will create a technological application that provides record sharing 
across entities, including court evaluators, to speed up the competency evaluation 
process; 

• Expand diversion related services by funding the Los Angeles County Department of 
Health Services’ Office of Diversion and Re-entry (ODR) to expand diversion services 
beyond its 2,200-bed capacity based on ODRs demonstrated success in reducing the 
number of incarcerated mentally ill individuals 

• Improve layout and format of the Plan documents by increasing size of font for 
presentation slide content 

 

Strategies for Bolstering the CPPP and Stakeholder Involvement for Future Plans and 

Updates: 

• Continue to expand outreach efforts through multiple outlets (e.g. media, public posting, 
email blasts, etc.) to ensure the public and stakeholder groups are aware of MHSA 
programs and activities and how to participate in CPPP 

• Increase use of tables and summaries similar to current Annual Update presentation to 
ensure streamlined, user-friendly information is provided to stakeholders to receive 
feedback. Information will be distributed through monthly meetings with CLTs, UsCCs, 
SALTs and the MH Commission. 

• Provide monthly MHSA 101 trainings to identified stakeholder groups, including SALTs, 
CLTs, UsCCs, Mental Health Commission, and contracted and partner/grassroots 
CBOs. DMH will also provide bi-annual training for Mental Health Providers, County 
Departments’ staff, and DMH employees and staff 

• Continue NAMI contract for 3 additional years to provide expanded training for family 
members across the County 

• Update communication follow up process including the resolution process and have a 
MHSA mailbox to receive input and communication year-around 

 
D. Disparities 
 

When comparing the racial and ethnic distributions of Los Angeles County Medi-Cal enrollees 
with the racial and ethnic distributions of those who receive direct mental health services within 
Los Angeles County, trends have continued that need to be addressed.  When comparing 2019 
to 2020 calendar year data, Medi-Cal beneficiaries receiving Specialty Mental Health Services 
who report their ethnicities as Latino, African American and White have proportionately increased 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

16 | Page 

(1.8% for Latino, .5% for African Americans and .2% for Whites), Latino and Asian/Pacific Islander 
(API) groups continue to proportionately receive fewer mental health services than their 
representation as Medi-Cal enrollees would suggest.  See table below. 
 
Table 7.  County Med-Cal Eligible Population and Beneficiaries Served in Calendar Year 2020, by Race/Ethnicity 

(From BHC-EQRO Report) 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Status of Actions to Address Racial/Ethnic Mental Health Care Disparities 
Based on feedback from UsCC groups, LACDMH reviewed the data it collects to more 
comprehensively capture the racial, ethnic, cultural and disability status of the clients its serves. 

 

Race and Ethnicity: 
LACDMH will now be reporting the racial and ethnic status, including primary language spoken, 
of the clients served at a more granular level and will publish a public-facing dashboard on its 
website. 
 

Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity (SOGI) 
The County has finalized data collection fields for gender identity and sexual orientation.  
LACDMH has been working to ensure that recent federal requirements are consistent with 
County reporting prior to modifying its electronic health record and requiring that of contractors.  
The Department’s subject matter expert on SOGI has developed training materials for staff on 
collecting this information and will finalize once data fields are finalized.   
 

Services for Clients with Disabilities 
▪ The number of clients who report their primary language as American Sign Language 

(ASL) will now be reported.  Current data has clients who report their primary language 
as ASL is .03% of clients served. 

▪ The ACCESS Center Help Line is in the process of transitioning to 711, the California 
Relay Service, to assist callers who are deaf or hard of hearing.  This will replace the 
antiquated TTY-TTD system. Informational materials will be disseminated upon adoption 
of 711. 

 

In the first quarter of calendar year 2022, LACDMH will begin participating in a multi-county 
learning collaborative, informed by the outstanding work of Solano County and comprised of 
training from the University of California, Davis (UC Davis) Center for Reducing Disparities on 
applying the Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Standards (CLAS) to populations that we 
specify and to utilize quality improvement approaches to reduce disparities.  LACDMH views 
this opportunity as a vehicle for the disparities reduction efforts and as a way to strengthen 
community voice. 

Los Angeles Mental Health Plan 

Race/Ethnicity 
Average Monthly 

Unduplicated Medi-Cal 
Beneficiaries 

Percentage of Medi-
Cal Beneficiaries 

Unduplicated Annual 
Count of Beneficiaries 

Served by the MHP 

Percentage of 
Beneficiaries Served 

by the MHP 

White 505,892 13.1% 33,290 15.7% 

Latino/Hispanic 2,280,000 58.9% 112,962 53.2% 

African-American 392,427 10.1% 38,800 18.3% 

Asian/Pacific Islander 373,270 9.6% 9,141 4.3% 

Native American 4,802 0.1% 530 0.2% 

Other 311,841 8.1% 17,549 8.3% 

Total 3,868,232 100% 212,272 100% 
The total for Average Monthly Unduplicated Medi-Cal Enrollees is not a direct sum of the averages above it. The 
averages are calculated independently. The total for Average Monthly Unduplicated Medi-Cal Enrollees is not a 
direct sum of the averages above it.    Data represents entire Los Angeles County and is not specific to MHSA. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

17 | Page 

COVID-19 IMPACT ON THE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH SYSTEM 
 
The recent LACDMH MHSA 3-year Plan shed light on the significant impact the COVID-19 outbreak 
had on residents and communities within the County.  The Plan noted the challenges County residents 
faced over the last 2-years of the pandemic, highlighting the increased demand for critical mental health 
services due to increased stress and isolation across populations, increased housing and economic 
disparities for communities of color, and significant capacity shortages for the mental health and health 
safety nets to meet the needs of those most vulnerable.  Wide spread rising COVID infection rates 
prompting the need for temporary and/or permanent business and clinic closures resulted in shortages 
in the workforce available to meet the needs of LA County residents across industries, including social 
services and the county mental health system.  While the entire world has witnessed improvements in 
this third year of the pandemic in our ability to control infection rates, hospitalizations, and to provide 
social services and economic help to those in need, many individuals and families are still faced with 
increased levels of stress while struggling to cope mentally with the emotional and financial aftermath 
of the last two years.  In the 3-year Plan, LACDMH developed several strategies to quickly adapt to 
challenges faced by our LA County residents that depend on our services.  We outlined strategies such 
as deploying the use of telepsychiatry on a far greater scale to maintain essential mental health services 
and to address heightened social isolation and limited human interaction due to restrictions on social 
gatherings caused by the pandemic.  We also proposed services that increased focus on heighten 
mental illness due to fear of loss of income or home; fear of contracting the virus; and losing loved ones 
to the virus.    
 
The significant economic impact of the pandemic was highlighted at the beginning of the 3-Year Plan, 
and throughout the plan the impact on mental health programs and services, as well as access to care 
were captured.  We continue to learn throughout this experience that we have found more capacity to 
be flexible and responsive than we may have previously thought possible and remain hopeful that we 
can continue to emerge from this crisis a stronger community of care.  
 
As we continue to move forward confronting the ongoing challenges that remain in this third year of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, we have employed our planned strategies and effectively increased our 
collaboration with community resources in the physical and virtual realm.  We continue to increase our 
use of technology in order ensure continued access to care for our communities and clients.  The 
following are updates to those strategies identified in the 3-Year Plan to continue address COVID 
related challenges to service provision to ensure the mental health needs our communities and clients 
are met.  
 
Outpatient Care Services 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, LACDMH made immediate modifications to standard clinical 
operations in order to reduce risk, support our staff, and maintain the health and safety of our clients, 
staff, and communities.  To reduce risk, one of the first steps taken was to transition the bulk of our staff 
from in-person client care to client care through telework, providing most services via telehealth. We 
maintained in-person services for essential/urgent/emergent needs (e.g., vulnerable populations, 
crises, FSP clients, 5150 evaluations, clients without access to technology), and developed ways to 
adapt and monitor clinical practice in the context of telework.  To prevent any gaps in service, LACDMH 
quickly mobilized resources, including: the distribution of personal protective equipment; creating 
psychiatry hubs that could reach across the County from any location; the capacity for clinical pharmacy 
refills that could be done without in-person contact; and providing needed vehicles, laptops, and 
phones.  Clinic services during the pandemic included:   

• A peer/volunteer run warm line for those seeking to reach out by phone to stay connected, 

• Virtual group for clients and clinic staff to meet and remain connected, including virtual 
celebrations, 

• Video clinical team meetings, case conferencing, and clinical supervision to ensure best clinical 
practice and team cohesion, and 

• Regular client check in for all clients by clinic staff. 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

18 | Page 

 
These strategies are still in use and continue to ensure clients stay connected and receive the care that 
they need while we continue in our joint efforts to keep clients, communities and staff safe and healthy 
through the pandemic.    
 

Full Service Partnership (FSP) - Assisted Outpatient Program (AOT) 
The AOT Teams outreached by phone to their clients since the beginning of the pandemic and when 
not possible to reach the client directly, the Team maintained contact with clients’ collaterals.  When in-
person requests were made to attempt to house a homeless client, staff made those in-person contacts.  
AOT Teams have fully returned to field-based services and continue to experience placement issues 
for clients due to facility COVID-19 restrictions.  While the pandemic also significantly reduced the 
number visits that could be made to clients in hospitals and in jails the Teams continue their efforts to 
engage clients through telephone/teleconference or WEBEX court hearings when possible and if the 
client has capacity to engage in services using these technological mediums.  
 
Homeless Outreach and Mobile Engagement (HOME) 
HOME was initially tasked with assisting in the mitigation of risk of spread of COVID-19 amongst and 
by people experiencing homelessness (PEH).  HOME was tasked with mobilizing the effort to identify, 
enroll, and transport PEH into Project Room Key (PRK) which secured hotel and motel rooms for 
vulnerable PEH to protect the capacity of hospitals and the healthcare system. The follow-up to this 
effort as PRK began to demobilize was the extensive task of matching individuals to permanent 
supportive housing subsidies, and ongoing supportive services and benefits.  Over the last year of the 
pandemic, HOME Teams have transitioned to targeting the most acutely mentally ill individuals 
experiencing homelessness and providing intensive outreach, treatment and street medicine.   
 
Veteran Peer Access Network (VPAN) 
VPAN continues to be minimally impacted by COVID-19. Staff adjusted from working out of the office 
to working out of their homes while continuing to deploy to the field as necessary. As a result of the 
opportunity afforded by the pandemic, VPAN continues to provide a support line available 7 days a 
week to drastically increase access to the program’s target population. VPAN staff continues to 
participate in regular street outreach in multiple SAs working closely with HOME, VA, E-6, and other 
outreach providers. 
 
Enhanced Care Management (ECM) formerly Whole Person Care (WPC) Intensive Service Recipient 
and Kin through Peer (ISR/KTP)  
The WPC was drastically impacted by COVID-19 as the program relies on relationships with hospitals 
and the ability to first engage and enroll participants during a hospitalization. Given over the first years 
of the pandemic few hospitals allowed WPC staff to enter the facility to engage and enroll individuals. 
Enrollments were critically reduced. Staff continued to outreach and provide in-person services and the 
program continued to receive referrals from many hospitals.  Staff observed that it was much less 
effective and often the staff was unable to contact individuals after they were released from the hospital.  
As of January 1, 2022, WPC was transitioned to Enhanced Care Management.   
 
Women’s ReEntry and Well-Being Center 
Consistent with other DMH programs, the staff of Women’s ReEntry and Well-Being Center were 
challenged transitioning from face-to-face contact in the field to online platforms to engage a target 
population that is high needs and often homeless.  Initially, the program struggled to consistently 
engage clients online despite their many outreach efforts.  Numerous efforts were made in the first 
years of the pandemic including hiring staff and providing staff with access to electronic case 
documentation trainings.  Staff were ultimately able to resume field work to locate, engage and train 
clients to use and access the online platform for telepsychiatry via cell phones.    
Currently the program has established a work structure incorporating field work and online platforms 
which has helped increase the provisions of mental health services. However, in the past 3 months the 
program continues to address capacity challenges as numerous staff and clients become infected with 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

19 | Page 

Covid variants. This factor has disrupted specific services such as groups, ability to transport, and In-
Reach (outreach to new clients in Jail) with CRDF on lock down. 
 
Interim Housing Program (IHP) 
The Interim Housing Program (IHP) provides safe and clean shelter, 24-hour general oversight, three 
meals a day, clean linens, clothing, hygiene products and case management services to adults with 
mental illness and their minor children who are homeless.  DMH has worked closely with the 
Departments of Health Services (DHS) and Public Health (DPH) to support the health and safety of 
clients that have been in interim housing during the COVID-19 pandemic.  Over the past year the DHS’ 
COVID-19 Response Teams (CRTs) recommended the number of clients served by IHP be reduced 
from 570 to 475 to address safe occupancy concerns.  Of the 20 sites that provided IHP services, all 
of them were placed on quarantine by DPH at some time during the past years of the pandemic and no 
new clients could be admitted to the site.  The length of the quarantine time varied between one to nine 
months.  The CRTs provided COVID-19 testing and vaccinations to both staff and clients at the sites in 
accordance with DPH vaccination prioritization categories.  A minimum of bi-weekly IHP COVID 
Learning Collaboratives were offered to the providers, and COVID information update memos were 
sent to support them during the pandemic.   
 
Enriched Residential Care (ERC) Program     
The Enriched Residential Care Program (ERC) provides funding to house high-acuity clients with SMI 

in Adult Residential Facilities (ARFs) and Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly (RCFEs).  These 

facilities provide a home to some of DMH’s most vulnerable clients who struggle to maintain 

independent housing - many of whom, without this resource, would be homeless or require higher levels 

of care in inpatient settings.  As the pandemic enters its third year, many operators of ARFs and RCFEs 

have become increasingly equipped and adept at managing COVID-19 cases and outbreaks within 

their facilities.  At the start of the pandemic, it was necessary for DMH to collaborate with partners from 

various departments and agencies, including the Departments of Health Services (DHS) and Public 

Health (DPH), Veterans Administration (VA), Community Care Licensing Division (CCLD) and Long-

Term Care Ombudsman (LTCO), to provide extensive support and technical assistance to facilities.  

This included webinars, telephonic outreach and onsite visits to provide facilities with training and 

guidance around outbreak management, infection control, isolation and quarantine procedures and 

other topics related to the management of COVID-19 as well as assistance with establishing onsite 

testing and vaccination capacity.  These efforts were supported by the distribution of a weekly COVID-

19 related survey by DMH and DHS to all facilities working with ERC clients that captured the number 

of residents and staff testing positive for COVID-19 as well as any requests for support.  Telephonic 

follow up was then completed for those facilities whose survey responses indicated a need.  As a result, 

facilities now have the knowledge and tools to be more independent around COVID-19 response.   

 

For this reason and to relieve operators from having to report duplicative information to various entities, 

DMH and DHS have terminated the weekly distribution of surveys and, instead, facilities are now only 

required to report COVID-19 cases to DPH and CCLD as they now take the lead on COVID-19 

response.  Although DMH and DHS are no longer monitoring COVID-19 cases directly, DPH shares 

access to data so that all agencies remain aware of which facilities are currently experiencing 

outbreaks.  Additionally, when facilities report cases to DPH, DMH and DHS continue to make follow-

up phone calls to offer any support needed to manage the outbreak including assistance with facilitating 

testing.  In most cases, facilities are reporting their ability to manage the outbreaks independently 

without direct assistance from DMH or DHS.  

 
In terms of access to COVID-19 vaccinations, all licensed residential facilities have had the opportunity 

to provide onsite vaccination clinics through the Federal Pharmacy Partnership Program, which offered 

residents the initial two COVID-19 vaccines.  At this time, most facilities have also been able to work 

with local pharmacy partners, County agencies or other resources to provide residents with onsite 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

20 | Page 

opportunities to receive COVID-19 booster shots.  DPH and DHS also have capacity to assist with 

coordination and distribution of booster shots in cases where facilities are unable to coordinate these 

services independently.  These robust efforts to provide vaccinations to residents and staff at ARFs 

and RCFEs have led to a drastic reduction in the number and severity of COVID-19 outbreaks within 

facilities. Though rates of COVID-19 did increase slightly as a result of the recent Omicron surge, 

outbreak rates and severity of outbreaks within facilities were significantly lower than prior to vaccination 

efforts.  

 

While facilities are more equipped to manage COVID-19 independently, costs related to the pandemic 

still impose an increased financial burden on ARFs and RCFEs that serve Supplemental Security 

Income (SSI) recipients.  In an effort to mitigate these cost burdens, the newly formed Licensed Adult 

Residential Care Association (LARCA) partnered with DMH to provide COVID-19 related resources to 

facilities through their Emergency Assistance Program (EAP).  Through this effort, LARCA secured 

grant funding for 1,260 rapid antigen tests that were mailed out to member facilities.  In addition, LARCA 

was able to obtain 44,100 KN95 masks and 960 hand sanitizer bottles from the Governor's Office of 

Emergency Services, which were provided to both member and non-member facilities 

Countywide through four in-person distribution events organized in collaboration with DMH and DHS.  

Through these events, LARCA was able to provide resources to over 100 facilities ranging from four to 

250 beds.  

 

Although overall COVID-19 response has significantly ramped down, DHS maintains one COVID-19 

Response Team that is available to make onsite visits and provide testing and technical assistance in 

cases where licensed residential facilities need more intensive assistance with outbreak 

management.  Furthermore, facilities are aware of the support available to them through County 

resources and have not hesitated to reach out for assistance as needed.  

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

21 | Page 

PROPOSED CHANGES  
This section provides detailed information for proposed changes that are incorporated into the Update.  
 

▪ INNOVATION 2: COMMUNITY CAPACITY BUILDING TO PREVENT AND ADDRESS TRAUMA  
This Innovation project was posted to the LACDMH website on February 27, 2015 and approved 
by the OAC on May 28, 2015.   
 
This project centers on building the capacity of the community to identify and support community 
members at risk of trauma or experiencing trauma. The project aims to utilize the assets of the 
community to test strategies that allow local communities to work together in ways that will 
ultimately lead to better mental health and reductions in trauma, through the building of shared 
community values, leadership development and community member empowerment.  In June 
2020, LACDMH integrated community mental health workers (community ambassadors) into the 
INN 2 project.   
 
The concept of the Community Ambassador Network (CAN) leverages existing networks of 
trusted community-based providers and organizations to have the right people in the right place 
at the right time to provide necessary resources to those in need.  The development of the 
Community Ambassador Network (CAN) through Innovations 2 has allowed DMH to expand our 
behavioral health workforce, in partnership with community based organizations, to hire and train 
326 community ambassadors.  As of 12/6/2021, 321 individuals have been part of the CAN.  The 
CAN intern project was introduced a year ago as a collaborative project with the Department of 
Public Social Services (DPSS), the INN 2 team and the California Work Opportunity and 
Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) team. Funded by DPSS, CAN Interns expand the reach and 
supports available within communities by members of the community.  
 
The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors approved nine (9) lead agencies and ten (10) 
projects, two (2) in each Supervisorial District, to establish community partnerships in 
geographically-defined communities.  The identified communities are those with a concentration 
of inequalities, including disproportionate levels of poverty, high concentrations of unserved and 
underserved individuals and poor health and well-being outcomes, including educational and 
unemployment inequities. Lead agencies were selected through a solicitation process. Each 
proposing organization and their community partners selected specific strategies based on their 
community’s interests and needs.  Beyond the implementation of selected strategies, each 
community partnership is responsible for building the capacity of the specific communities to work 
collectively toward supporting community identification and reduction of trauma, as outlined in the 
solicitation. 
 
COVID-19 has resulted in a critical need for mental health services, and the 321 individuals that 

have been part of the CAN have allowed DMH to build capacity, provide trauma-informed targeted 

outreach and resources to communities at higher risk.  In addition, by leveraging existing 

relationships and partnerships, each lead agency was able to identify available resources and 

connect with community members with needed supports (i.e., housing, food, mobile shower units, 

hot meals, rental and utility assistance and a multitude of linkages).    

Outcomes  
Specifically, the following process and summative outcomes were achieved by the Innovations 2 

program: 

• There were 8,077 registered participants, with 68% (5,499) of all participants were enrolled 

in INN 2 during the pandemic.  Most participants in INN 2 are families with young children 

between the ages of 0-5 (25.2% of participants), intergenerational families (23.2% of 

participants) and TAY (22.3% of participants).  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

22 | Page 

• Through nearly 10,700 community events, outreach and social media posts, 560,268 

community members were reached, 18,000 meals provided, 9,865 individuals vaccinated 

for COVID-19 and PPE provided to nearly 14,000 individuals.   

• The CAN Participants demonstrated a stronger understanding of the relationship between 

trauma and mental health, significant improvements in resilience, and improved ability to 

cope with stress.   

• Over the past year, 93% of the 29,587 linkages to community resources and supports 

were successful.  Despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, linkages increased 

substantially from the prior year. 

• During FY 2020-2021, there were a total of 14,219 outreach and engagement efforts, 
representing a substantial increase compared to the prior year of the project. 

• Through Learning Sessions, partners learned how to engage a wider net of at risk 

community members to provide support.   

• Participants enrolled in INN 2 during the COVID-19 pandemic, reported feeling 
significantly more connected with the community, and utilized  more approach coping skills 
after three months of INN 2 activities. 

• Participants reported feeling significantly more resilient after 9 months of participation in 
INN 2. 

• Based on data from the Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale (CD-RISC-10) participants 
who enrolled in INN 2 during the past year of the pandemic, reported no decline in their 
resilience despite the significant amount of stress communities experienced over the 
course of the past year.   

• In addition, based on the Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale, INN 2 participants 
reported a significant increase in their connection to the community, relative to the 
baseline score. 

• Community members engaged with INN 2 and the Community Ambassadors also reported 
significant improvement in Approach Coping scores, based on The Cope Inventory. 

• Partnership rosters within the community increased by 13% as INN 2 partnerships 
expanded to include new organizations and community members.  Specifically, the INN 2 
networks averaged 57 partners in February 2021, compared to 51 partners last year 
(February 2020) and 36 partners in March 2019 (baseline assessment).  On key factor 
responsible for the stronger community partnerships has been the addition of the 
Community Ambassador Network. 

 
Table 8. Innovation Evaluation Rubric across Programs: 

INN 2 Events (Program Level) Count  

Total Outreach and Engagement Events  14,219 

Group Activities 2,989 

Partnership and Other Meetings  2,698 

Community Outreach  1,964 

Community Based Trainings 1,646 

Covid-19 Education Efforts  1,078 

Linkages (Participant Level)  

Successful Linkages  29,587 

Number Participants Linked  4,594 

 
  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

23 | Page 

 

Outcome (Participant Level) Baseline (M) Most Recent (M) 

Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale  
(CD-RISC-10) 

28.7/40 28.9/40 

The Cope Inventory (Approach Coping) 34.8/48 35.7/48 

The Cope Inventory (Avoidance Coping) 23.1/48 22.8/48 

Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale  3.47/6 3.62/6 

 
Table 9. 

Partnership and Collaboration (Project Level): Wilder Collaborative Factor Inventory 

 Environment Memberships Process Communications Purpose Resources 

Feb 2020 4.03 4.04 3.88 3.94 4.06 3.78 

Aug 2020 4.06 4.05 3.91 3.95 4.08 3.73 

Feb 2021 4.13 4.11 4.01 4.02 4.10 3.86 

 
Table 10. 

Partnership and Collaboration (Project Level): Social Network Analysis/Partner Roster 

 Network Average Partners (M) Partnership Roster % Increase  

Mar. 2019 36 -- 

Feb. 2020 51 40% 

Feb. 2021 57 13% 

 
 

It is requested the project be extended using Prevention funding in order to continue the support 
of the CAN and ongoing assistance to the communities in the recovery from the COVID-19 
pandemic. Goal is, within two years, LACDMH will develop and release a solicitation to sustain 
and expand the community capacity building and community access platform work being 
accomplished through the Community Ambassador Network (CAN) 
 

▪  CAPITAL FACILITIES 
Capital Facilities component funds will be utilized to increase and improve existing capital facilities 
infrastructure to accommodate the needs of current and expanded MHSA programs. The 
additional funds will address the current and anticipated needs of both public mental health 
service facilities and administrative space. Space utilization at all facilities is currently at maximum 
capacity.  To the extent possible, DMH will utilize these funds to continue to modernize and 
develop welcoming facilities that will move its mental health system toward the goals of wellness, 
recovery, and resiliency; and will also help to expand the opportunities for accessible community 
based services for clients and their families, promoting the reduction in disparities in underserved 
groups. 
 

 
▪ INNOVATION – TRIESTE: HOLLYWOOD 2.0 

LACDMH was approved to receive MHSA Innovation funding from the Mental Health Services 

Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) to test a new and comprehensive approach 

to providing services to individuals in the Hollywood area suffering from severe and persistent 

mental illness, as a result, experiencing chronic homelessness, incarceration and or repeated 

hospital use.  The Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project is a modification of the MHSA Innovations project 

Trieste, which was approved by the MHSOC in May of 2019 prior to the pandemic.  The project 

is based on LACDMH’s fiscal projections and the anticipated CalAim program. The Hollywood 2.0 

pilot aims to provide our most vulnerable residents with relentless engagement and enhanced 

access to treatment functioning as tools to facilitate individuals with connection to people, place, 

and purpose in life. Hollywood 4WRD (4 Walls, a Roof and a Door), a grassroots public-private 

coalition, will serve as the engagement body for the Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project.  The primary 

purpose of the Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project is to establish a variety of recovery-oriented resources 

that promote an integrated, community-based approach in the delivery of novel programs and 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

24 | Page 

services that enhance the client’s abilities to lead fulfilling lives in their neighborhood. The project 

is proposed for 5 years. 

 

The Hollywood 2.0 pilot represents an opportunity for the County to leverage MHSA Innovation 

funding, partner with local community leadership, and use existing local assets to build out a rich 

array of resources that will strengthen clients’ ties to the Hollywood community.  Such resources 

include a robust infrastructure of facilities and a system of care that offers both services and 

opportunities to support a highly vulnerable community in new and exciting ways. 

 
Hollywood 2.0 will allow the Department to develop novel programs and services that will   enhance 
client’s abilities to lead fulfilling lives and feel connected to their surrounding neighborhood. New 
programs such as Supportive Employment and Supportive Education services will provide 
clients with opportunities to learn life skills while simultaneously connecting them to agencies 
and employers in the Hollywood area. By providing the Pilot’s clients with a chance to find 
purpose in their daily lives and make meaningful connections to others in their community, 
Hollywood 2.0 embraces the Department’s belief in clients’ ability to manage their life 
successfully, which is a key element  of recovery. 
 

Staffing for Hollywood 2.0 will be identified for assignment to Full-Service Partnership (FSP) (6-7 

staff) and Homeless Outreach Mobile Engagement (HOME) teams dedicated to the project.  The 

proposed annual budget is $100,000. 

 

Hollywood has one of the County’s most concentrated populations of unhoused individuals 

suffering from profound brain illness(es) and languishing in the streets. Aside from putting in place 

resources needed to address this crisis, the goal of the Hollywood 2.0 project is to leverage the 

significant momentum and buy-in across the Hollywood community. As part of our plan to expand 

the current footprint and establish new resources in Hollywood to create service arrays, the pilot 

will leverage a few key evolving reform efforts, including the Full-Service Partnership (FSP) 

Redesign, (HOME) Outpatient Conservatorship Pilot (HOME pilot), Peer Resource Center 

replication (including clubhouse type programming) and Alternative Crisis Response (ACR) 

initiatives.  

 

▪ FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 BUDGET PROJECTION CHANGES 
Tables 11-16 show the difference of what was projected for FY 2022-23 in the Three Year 

Program and Expenditure Plan, Fiscal Years 2021-22 through 2023-24, and what is now 

projected in the MHSA Annual Update FY 2022-23. 

Table 11. Community Services and Supports 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as of 

March 2022 
Change Description 

Full Service 
Partnership 

 $302,391,232   $299,567,466   $(2,823,767) 

(1) Overall reduction in services due to the 

pandemic and difficulties to retain staff 

offset by funds allocated to maintain the 

Flexible Housing Subsidies Pool for 

housing vouchers provided to mental 

health clients for rent.  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

25 | Page 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as of 

March 2022 
Change Description 

Outpatient 
Care Services 

 $636,564,407   $569,476,324   $67,088,083) 
(2) Overall reduction in services due to the 

pandemic and difficulties in retaining 

staff.  

Alternative 
Crisis Services 

 $139,819,715  $165,520,546    $25,700,832  
Reflects the operating cost for the new 

Crisis Residential Treatment Programs 

(CRTP) at the Restorative Villages.  

Planning 
Outreach & 
Engagement 

 $7,108,451   $6,464,668   $(643,783) Same as (2) above  

Linkage 
Services 

 $28,322,985   $34,901,893   $6,578,907  Reflects projection of additional Linkage 

services based on current utilization.  

Housing  $ 35,073,361   $35,144,049   $70,688  Same as (1) above 

CSS 
Administration 

 $38,865,316   $43,284,429   $4,419,113  Same as (2) above  

TOTAL $1,188,145,468 $1,154,359,375 $(33,786,093)  

 

Table 12. Prevention and Early Intervention 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as of 

March 2022 
Change Description 

Suicide 
Prevention  $ 22,302,998   $22,302,998   $       -      

Stigma & 
Discrimination 
Reduction  

 $366,250   $366,250  $        -    

Prevention  $43,564,826   $50,513,488   $6,948,662  

Primarily reflects the addition of 311 
positions for universal promoters which will 
serve as community promoters to provide 
outreach and education and the one-time 
extension of My Health LA (MHLA) 
Agreement with Department of Health 
Services (DHS) for mental health prevention 
services provided in a primary care setting. 

Early 
Intervention  $198,997,562   $188,002,410   $(10,995,152) 

Reflects the overall reduction in services due 
to the pandemic and difficulties in retaining 
staff.  

Outreach   $8,368,989   $ 38,688,869   $30,319,880  

Primarily reflects continuation of funding for 
the Los Angeles Unified School District 
(LAUSD) and Los Angeles County Office of 
Education (LACOE) for Community School 
Initiatives (CSI) and the transition of the 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

26 | Page 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as of 

March 2022 
Change Description 

Innovation Community Capacity Building 
project. 

PEI 
Administration  $14,343,578   $15,640,011   $1,296,433  

 Reflects the change in administrative costs 
based on the projected cost of the projects.  

TOTAL  $287,944,203   $315,514,026   $ 27,569,823  
  

 

Table 13. Innovation 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as of 

March 2022 
Change Description 

 Inn #2 - 
Community 
Capacity Building  

 $ 14,700,000   $  -     $(14,700,000) 
Continuation of CANS programming with PEI 
funding. 

INN # 3 - 
Technology Suite 

 $6,321,028   $  -     $(6,321,028) 

 Reflects the completion of the project.  
DMH is currently in discussions with the 
California Mental Health Services Authority 
(CalMHSA) for additional services that may 
be provided.  

 Inn # 4 - 
Transcranial 
Magnetic 
Stimulation  
Center  

 $1,150,726   $1,150,726   $ -    
 Reflects the continuation of this project in 
FY 2022-23.  

 Inn #7 - 
Therapeutic 
Transportation  

 $ 3,387,415   $5,467,999   $2,080,584  
 Reflects the expansion of teams in 
partnership with Los Angeles City Fire 
Department.  

Inn # 8 - Early 
Psychosis Learning 
Health Care 
Network 

 $492,709   $492,709  $ -    
 Reflects the continuation of this project in 
FY 2022-23.  

 Hollywood 2.0 
Project ( formally 
known Trieste)  

   $5,439,504   $5,439,504  
 Reflects the implementation of True 
Recovery Innovation Embraces Systems That 
Empower (TRIESTE) / Hollywood 2.0 Project  

 INN - 
Administration  

 $ 4,176,000   $2,310,671   $(1,865,329) 
 Reflects the change in administrative costs 
based on the projected cost of the projects  

TOTAL  $ 30,227,878   $14,861,609   $ (15,366,269)  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

27 | Page 

Table 14. Workforce Education and Training (WET) 

Program 

Original 
Projections as 
of June 2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

UCLA Affiliation Agreement  $7,135,501   $6,417,864   $(717,637) 
 Reflects scheduled reduction of one-time 
services.  

Financial Incentive Programs  $3,873,084   $3,873,084   $        -      

Stipend Program for MSWs, 
MFTs, AND NPs 

 $3,063,600   $3,063,600   $        -      

Charles R. Drew Affiliation 
Agreement 

 $2,011,394   $2,309,058   $297,664  
Reflects an increase in the services provided in 
the residency program. 

Funds Assistant Behavioral 
Sciences Consultants (6 FTEs), 
for Post-Docs at Harbor-UCLA 

 $510,000   $        -     $(510,000) 

Reflects the elimination of this funding as the 
fellows being funding with a different funding 
source, as they provide direct mental health 
services. 

Intensive MH Recovery 
Specialist Core Training 
Program 

 $440,000   $ 440,000   $        -      

Interpreter Training Program  $ 80,000   $80,000   $        -      

Learning Net System 2.0  $250,000   $250,000   $        -      

Navigators (Health and 

Housing) 
 $200,000  

 $                                         

400,000  

 $                    

200,000  

 Reflects an expansion in the Health Navigation 

training program. 

  

Continuum of Care Reform / 

Staff and Resource Parents 

Training  

 $500,000   $500,000   $        -      

Parent Partner Training and 

Parent Volunteers Project 
 $320,000   $320,000   $        -      

Peer Focused Training  $        -     $400,000   $400,000  Reflects funding for Peer focused training. 

Med. School Affiliation at 

Harbor 
 $260,000   $260,000   $        -      

UCLA Medical School 

Affiliation Agreement (MSAA) 
 $126,000   $136,000   $10,000  

Reflects an increase in cost for services provided 

by UCLA. 

Licensure Preparation Program 

(MSW, MFT, PSY) 
 $250,000   $250,000   $        -      

Administrative Overhead  $1,412,379   $1,501,578   $89,199  
 Reflects the change in administrative costs 

based on the projected cost of the projects.  

TOTAL  $20,431,958   $20,201,184   $(230,774)   

 

 

 

 

 

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

28 | Page 

 

Table 15. Capital Facilities/Technological Needs (CFTN) 

Program 

Original 
Projections as 
of June 2021 

Updated 
Projections 
as of March 

2022 

Change Description 

 Tenant Improvement / Capital 
Facilities  

   $5,000,000   $5,000,000  

 Reflects funding for new and/or existing 
facilities to continue to modernize and develop 
welcoming building to meet the goals of the 
mental health services delivered in Los Angele 
County.  

Modern Call Center  $3,500,000   $3,500,000   $        -    
 Reflects the continuation of this project in FY 
2022-23.  

 CFTN - Administration   $350,000   $2,150,000   $1,800,000  
 Reflects the change in administrative costs 
based on the projected cost of the projects  

TOTAL  $3,850,000   $10,650,000   $6,800,000   

 

Table 16. Summary by Program 

Program 
Original Projections 

as of June 2021 

Updated Projections 
as of March 2022 

Change 

  Community Services and Supports 
(CSS) Plan  

 $1,188,145,468   $1,154,359,375   $(33,786,093) 

Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) 
Plan 

 $287,944,203   $315,514,026   $27,569,823  

 Innovation   $30,227,878   $14,861,609   $(15,366,269) 

 Workforce, Education and Training 
(WET) Plan  

 $20,431,958   $20,201,184   $(230,774) 

Capital Faculties / Technology 
Needs(CFTN) Plan 

 $3,850,000   $10,650,000   $6,800,000  

TOTAL $1,530,599,507 $1,515,586,193 $(15,013,313) 

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

29 | Page 

▪ FY 2022-23 MID-YEAR ADJUSTMENTS TO THE MHSA ANNUAL UPDATE  
 
 

The Fiscal Year 2022-23 MHSA Annual Update, adopted on June 28, 2022, by the Board of 

Supervisors, is being revised to include MHSA Mid-year Adjustments.  The MHSA Mid-year 

Adjustments had a 30-day public review and comment period from January 20, 2023 through 

February 20, 2023.  The MHSA Mid-year Adjustments reflect program changes and a budget 

increase of $58.4M. 

 

The following are the updates for Community Services and Supports (CSS):  

 

Project Impact – Outpatient Care Services (OCS): $0.2M 

Project IMPACT will provide mental health services to all age groups, ranging from children to 

transitional age youth/young adults as well as their parents/caregivers. All age groups will have 

access to outreach and engagement, assessments, culturally responsive mental health 

services, crisis intervention, case management, and medication support. 

 

Project Impact will serve approximately 168 OCS clients. 

 

FSP Expansion $10M 

Increase in the CSS Budget to reflect additional services targeted to meet the 51% FSP 

threshold. 

End of Year Legal Entity Contract Amendments: $29M 

Reflects additional funding to ensure continuation of services through end of the Fiscal Year. 

 

The following are updates for PEI: 

 
Project Impact – PEI: $0.6M 
The intent of Project Impact’s PEI program is to serve children and young adults who have 
experienced or have been exposed to traumatic events such as child sexual abuse, violence, 
traumatic loss and/or experiencing difficulty related to symptoms of Post-Traumatic Stress 
Disorder (PTSD), depression, anxiety, or additional co-occurring disorders; and to provide early 
intervention mental health services to reduce the impact of the identified symptoms and 
problems.  The PEI services coupled with the CSS OCS funds will provide a continuum of care 
for clients served by Project Impact.  
 
Project Impact will serve approximately 672 PEI clients 
 
TAY Supported Employment 
Reflects the realignment of funding from CSS to PEI. 
 
End of Year Legal Entity Contract Amendments: $2.0M 

Reflects additional funding to ensure continuation of services through end of the Fiscal Year. 

Realignment of funding: $7.8M 
Realigns existing PEI funding based on changes in the spending plan with and overall increase 

in funding. 

 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

30 | Page 

The following are updates for Capital Facility and Technology Needs (CFTN): 
 
Capital Facility Project: $6M 

Transfer funds from CSS to CFTN for capital facility projects/tenant improvements, including 

but not limited to:  

a. Olive View Urgent Care Center 
b. Children's medical HUB 
c. Central administration expenditures 
d. Pool dollars/Unanticipated projects 

 
Call Center Modernization: $2.8M 

Increase in funding to fully fund this project.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

31 | Page 

EXISTING PROGRAMS AND SERVICES BY COMPONENT 
This section provides FY 2020-21 outcome data for existing MHSA programs and is organized by 
component.  It also provides financial information for two prior FYs 2019-20 and 2020-21, as well as 
the proposed annual budget for FY 2022-23 and the total proposed budget for the three FYs 2021-22 
through 2023-24 of the MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan.  Costs are reported at gross 
and does not include program administration. 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND SUPPORTS (CSS) 
As the largest component with 76% of the total MHSA allocation, CSS was designed with service 
categories that shape the integrated system of care for clients diagnosed with SMI.  In FY 2020-21, 
approximately 135,232 unique clients received a direct mental health service through CSS.  The two 
tables below provide additional detail. 
 
The CSS component of the Plan includes the following programs:  
▪ Full Service Partnership (FSP) 
▪ Outpatient Care Services (OCS)  
▪ Alternative Crisis Services (ACS)  
▪ Housing Services 
▪ Linkage to County-Operated Functions/Programs (Linkage) 
▪ Planning, Outreach, and Engagement Services (POE).   
 

 

Table 17.  Clients served through CSS in FY 2020-21 

Clients Served New Clients Served 

135,232 clients received a direct mental health service: 
- 37% of the clients are Hispanic 
- 20% of the clients are African American 
- 18% of the clients are White 
- 5% of the clients are Asian 
- 1% of the clients are Native American 
- 79% have a primary language of English 
- 14% have a primary language of Spanish 

35,499 new clients receiving CSS services countywide 
with no previous MHSA service 
- 36% of the new clients are Hispanic 
- 14% of the new clients are African American 
- 16% of the new clients are White 
- 3% of the clients are Asian 
- 0.48% of the clients are Native American 
- 77% have a primary language of English 
- 14% have a primary language of Spanish 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 18.  CSS clients served by Service Area 

Service 
Area 

Number of 
Clients Served 

Number of 
New Clients 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 9,098 2,410 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 22,613 5,886 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 19,146 5,952 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 25,458 6,801 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 7,837 1,918 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 21,682 4,727 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 12,465 2,953 

SA 8 – South Bay 27,189 6,940 

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

32 | Page 

The next few pages provide a summary of information for each CSS program.  The summary will include 
a follow-up on the last approved Three-Year Plan (FYs 2021-24), as well as outcome data for the 
specific program.   
 
 
 
 

A. FULL SERVICE PARTNERSHIP (FSP) 
 

Status ☐  New ☐  Continuing ☒  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☒  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  Transition Age Youth (TAY) 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

FSP programs provide a wide array of services and supports, guided by a commitment by providers to do “whatever it 
takes” within the resources available to help the highest acuity clients within defined populations make progress 
on their paths to recovery and wellness.   

 
FSP services are provided by multi-disciplinary teams of professional and paraprofessional and volunteer providers 

who have received specialized training preparing them to work effectively with children and their families; FSP 
teams provide 24/7 crisis services and develop plans with families to do whatever it takes within the resources 
available and the recovery plan agreed between the client and the FSP provider team to help clients meet 
individualized recovery, resiliency, and development and/or recovery goals or treatment plan; and FSP teams are 
responsive and appropriate to the cultural and linguistic needs of the child and their family. 

 
Intended Outcomes 

- Reduce serious mental health systems, homelessness, incarceration and hospitalization 
- Increase independent living and overall quality of life 
 

Key Activities 
- Clinical services (24/7 assessment and crisis services; counseling and psychotherapy; field-based services; 

integrated treatment for co-occurring mental health and substance abuse disorder; case management to provide 
linkages to services to employment, education, housing and physical health care) 

- Nonclinical services (peer and parent support services; self-help and family support groups; wellness centers; 
respite care) 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ FULL SERVICE PARTNERSHIP Update 

 
As part of the previous Three-Year Plan, FSP programs and services were developed to provide 
comprehensive mental health services to clients requiring intensive treatment.  Services are provided 
by a multi-disciplinary team based on a specific number of client slots.  Services provided to clients 
enrolled in FSP may include, but are not limited to, 24/7 crisis response (in-person when needed); 
ongoing intensive mental health treatment; housing services; employment services; and co-occurring 
mental illness and substance use treatment services. Adult FSP Services aim to help Clients, those 
adults enrolled in Adult FSP Services, increase their ability to function at optimal levels, decrease 
homelessness and incarcerations, and reduce unnecessary medical and psychiatric urgent care and 
emergency room visits and hospitalizations. For those Clients that are homeless, Adult FSP Services 
will help them transition from street to home by providing immediate and on-going assistance with 
securing and maintaining housing. Child/Young Adult (YA) FSP Services include but are not limited to 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

33 | Page 

individual and family counseling, 24/7 assessment and crisis services, Intensive Care Coordination 
(ICC), and Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS). The intent of these services is to help Clients and/or 
families increase their ability to function at optimal levels. Existing FSP programs serve children and 
young adults between the ages of 0-20 and adults (21+).  
 
LACDMH transformed the FSP program so that we can best support our highest acuity outpatient 
consumers on the path to recovery and well-being.  This effort included: 

- Changed the eligibility criteria to be more focused on those most in need of FSP care; 
- Changed the FSP service model to utilize a multidisciplinary team/population approach, rather 

than individual caseloads and “slots;” 
- Began the integration of all specialty FSP programs into one FSP model (with the exception 

of Housing FSP which transitioned to housing support); 
- Lowered client to staff ratios; 
- Added funding for additional staffing to enable Child FSP programs to provide Intensive Care 

Coordination (ICC) & Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS); 
- Provided enhanced training and technical assistance to support FSP providers in achieving 

desired outcomes; 
- Enhanced services and supports to ensure successful transitions between levels of care; 
- Centralized the authorization, enrollment, and disenrollment processes for FSP to ensure that 

those highest needs clients are able to access the FSP services; 

- Standardized rates to bring contracted provider staff salaries closer to parity with their 
counterparts in the LACDMH clinics, as a part of LACDMH’s broader rate-setting exercise; 
and  

- Changes to the FSP contracts to add incentives for providers to help their clients achieve 
critical life outcomes, moving our system towards performance-based contracting; and 

- Using data, and consumer & provider feedback to drive continuous improvement. 
 
These changes were incorporated into the Service Exhibits within the contracts, which were included 
in the new Legal Entity agreements that were executed on July 1, 2021.  The transformed FSP program 
was launched on July 1, 2021.  Because this program redesign is new for both LACDMH and contract 
providers, we plan to work with existing FSP providers to pilot this new model over the next 3 years.  
Lessons learned from this pilot will inform the rebid of FSP contracts for FY 2024-25.   
 
 

FY 2020-21 ◼ FULL SERVICE PARTNERSHIP Data and Outcomes 

 

As of June 30, 2021, LACDMH had 17,298 FSP slots as shown in the next table. 
 
Table 19.  FSP summary: age group, slots, average cost per client, and unique clients served 

Age Group 
Number 
of Slots 

Average Cost 
per Client 

Number of 
Unique Clients 
Served 

Children 
(includes Wraparound Child, Intensive Field Capable 
Clinical Services, and Wraparound TAY) 

3,584 $17,954 3,777 

TAY, Ages 16-25 1,410 $13,405 2,915 

Adult, Ages 26-59 
(includes Integrated Mobile Health Team, 
Assisted Outpatient Treatment, Forensic, Homeless, 
Measure H and Housing) 

11,419 $14,642 7,618 

Older Adult, Ages 60+ 885 $11,373 1,993 

 

Cost is based on Mode 15 
services, not inclusive of 
community outreach ser-
vices or client supportive 
services expenditures. 

 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

34 | Page 

We assessed the impact of FSP enrollment on client outcomes by measuring changes in the 
proportions of clients and in the numbers of days spent with homelessness, justice involvement, 
psychiatric hospitalization, or independent living. 
 
Comparing a client’s life before and after, FSP enrollment shows that the program 
- Reduces homelessness; 
- Reduces justice involvement; 
- Reduces psychiatric hospitalization; and 
- Increases independent living. 
 
Table 20.  Impact of FSP on post-partnership residential outcomes  

FSP Program Percentage by Clients Percentage by Days 

Homeless 

TAY 21% reduction 41% reduction 

Adult 31% reduction 63% reduction 

Older Adult 27% reduction 58% reduction 

Justice Involvement 

TAY 3% reduction 34% reduction 

Adult 28% reduction 64% reduction 

Older Adult 20% reduction 49% reduction 

Psychiatric Hospitalization 

Child 40% reduction 40% reduction 

TAY 47% reduction 17% reduction 

Adult 25% reduction 62% reduction 

Older Adult 12% reduction 22% reduction 

Independent Living 

TAY 33% increase 41% increase 

Adult 42% increase 41% increase 

 
FSP disenrollment can apply to either an interruption or a discontinuation of service. An interruption of 
service is defined as a temporary situation in which the client is expected to return to services within 12 
months or less from the date of last contact. A discontinuation of service is defined as a long-term 
situation in which the client is not expected to return to FSP services for more than 12 months from the 
date of last contact.  
 
The reasons for disenrollment are as follows:  
- Target population criteria not met; 
- Client decided to discontinue FSP participation after partnership was established;  
- Client moved to another county/service area;  
- Client cannot be located after attempts to contact client;  
- Community services/program interrupted - client will be detained or incarcerated in the 
 juvenile or adult system for over 90 days;  
- Community services/program interrupted - client will require residential/institutional mental 
 health services - Institutions for Mental Disease (IMD), Mental Health Rehabilitation Center 
 (MHRC) or State Hospital 
- Client has successfully met his/her goals such that discontinuation of FSP is appropriate; or  
- Client is deceased. 
 
 

 

 

Comparison of residential data for 12 months 
immediately prior to receiving FSP services 
(pre-partnership) and for 12 months of 
residential status while receiving FSP services 
(post-partnership) for client’s outcomes 
entered through June 30, 2021.  Data is 
adjusted (annualized) by a percentage based 
on average length of stay in the FSP program.  
Data must meet data quality standards to be 
included in the analysis.   
 
Children (n=12,254) 
TAY (n = 6,870) 
Adults (n =19,886) 
Older adults (n = 2,763)  
Figures represent cumulative changes, 
inclusive of all clients through June 30, 2021 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

35 | Page 

Figure 3.  Reasons for FY 2020-21 FSP disenrollments 

 
◼◼ Target population criteria not met 

◼◼ Client moved to another county/service area 

◼◼ Client has successfully met his/her goals such that discontinuation of FSP is appropriate 

◼◼ Client cannot be located after attempts to contact client  

◼◼ Community services/program interrupted - client is in a residential/institutional facility 

◼◼ Community services/program interrupted - client is detained 

◼◼ Client decided to discontinue FSP participation after partnership was established 

◼◼ Client is deceased 

 

◼  FULL SERVICE PARTNERSHIP 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

16,093 
Total  
Number Served1 

$271.6 million 
Total Gross 

Expenditures 

15,955 
Total  
Number Served 

$268.7 million 
Total Gross 
Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 Three-Year Plan FYs 2021-24 

16,024 
Total  
Number to be Served2 

$299.6 million 
Estimated Gross 

Expenditures 

$921.5 million 
Estimated Gross 
Expenditures 

Notes 
1 Prior Year Total Number Served: Number of unduplicated clients receiving Mode 15 Direct Services, not inclusive of community 
 outreach services or client support services 
2  FY 2022-23 Total Number to be served:  Reflects average of two prior years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5%
12%16%

23% 16%

20%
1%

5%
6%

1%

7%

4%
5%

11%

6%

18% 22%

16%

56%

31%
36% 27%

6% 12%
8%

9%

3% 1%
1% 4%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

Child (1,870) TAY (662) Adult (2,515) Older Adult (214)



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

36 | Page 

B. OUTPATIENT CARE SERVICES 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☒  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

Outpatient Care Services, formerly known as Recovery, Resilience and Reintegration (RRR), provides a broad array of 
integrated community-based, clinic-based and well-being services and a recovery-focused supportive system of 
care services to all age groups.  A continuum of care is critical so clients can receive the care they need when 
they need it and in the most appropriate setting to meet their needs.   

 
The goal is for clients to achieve their recovery goals to reintegrate successfully into the community.  An array of 

services designed to meet the mental health needs of individuals in different stages of recovery.  Each 
 program will provide each client with a combination of one or more of the core components to meet 
the client’s individual needs.  These services meet the needs of all age ranges from child to TAY to adults and 
older adults.  While there may be some minor differences in the specific services provided to each population, 
there is more commonality across age groups than differences.  All age groups will have access to assessments, 
traditional mental health services, crisis intervention, case management and medication support.  The intensity, 
location (community/field or office/clinic) and duration of the service(s) will depend on the individualized need 
of each client and will likely change over time.  While most clients will hopefully move from more intensive to 
less intensive services, some clients may need more intensive services for periods of time due to a variety of 
factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, the emergence or exacerbation of a severe mental illness, 
non-adherence to treatment recommendations, a substance use disorder, exposure to trauma or violence or 
external psychosocial stressors, such as housing, employment, relationship or legal problems.   

 
Intended Outcomes 
Our aim is to help our clients and families to 

- Have a safe place to live 
- Have healthy relationships 
- Have access to public assistance when necessary 
- Weather crises successfully 
- Use their time in a meaningful way 
- Have the best possible physical health 
 

Key Activities 
- Clinical services (individual, group and family therapy; crisis resolution/intervention; evidence-based treatments; 

medication management and support; outreach and engagement screenings and assessments to determine the 
level of functioning and impairment; case management) 

- Non-clinical services (peer support; family education and support; linkage to primary care; housing services; 
vocational and pre-vocational services) 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ OUTPATIENT CARE SERVICES Data and Outcomes 

 

Table 21.  FY 2020-21 Data for clients served through various outpatient programs 

Age Group 
Number of 

Unique Clients Served 
Average Cost 

per Client 

Children, Ages 0-15 21,110 $5,972 

TAY, Ages 16-25 18,696 $4,642 

Adult, Ages 26-59 60,206 $3,861 

Older Adult, Ages 60+ 16,175 $3,885 

 

B1. TAY Probation Camps 

LACDMH staff provides MHSA-funded services to youth in camps operated by the Los Angeles 
County Probation Department, including youth with SED/SMI.  LACDMH staff and contract 
providers are co-located in these camps along with Probation, DHS Juvenile Court Health 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

37 | Page 

Services (JCHS), and Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE).  This inter-
departmental team provides coordinated care to the youth housed at the camps.   

 
Youth housed in the camps receive an array of mental health services, including assessments; 
individual group, and family therapy; medication support; and aftercare and transition services.  
These services are individually tailored to meet the needs of each youth, including co-occurring 
disorders and trauma.  Interventions include evidence-based  
practices such as Aggression Replacement Training, Adapted Dialectical Behavior Therapy and 
Seeking Safety.   MHSA funding has made it possible for youth to be housed in a broader array 
of camps and still receive psychotropic medications. 

 

B2. TAY Drop-In Centers 

TAY Drop-In Centers are intended as entry points to the mental health system for homeless 
youth or youth in unstable living situations. Drop-In Centers provide “low demand, high 
tolerance” environments in which youth can find temporary safety and begin to build trusting 
relationships with staff members who can connect them to the services and supports they need.  
They also help to meet the youths’ basic needs such as meals, hygiene facilities, clothing, 
mailing address, and a safe inside place to rest. Generally, these centers are operated during 
regular business hours.  However, MHSA funding allows for expanded hours of operation during 
the evenings and weekends when access to these centers is even more crucial.  

 Table 22.  Drop-in Center locations 

Service 
Area 

Agency Address 

SA 1 
Penny Lane Centers 
Yellow Submarine 

43520 Division Street 
Lancaster, CA 93535 

SA 2 
The Village Family Services 
TVFS TAY Drop-In Center 

6801 Coldwater Canyon Blvd 
North Hollywood, CA 91606 

SA 3 
Pacific Clinics 

Hope Drop-In Center 
13001 Ramona Blvd 
Irwindale, CA 91706 

SA 4 
Los Angeles LGBT Center 

Youth Center on Highland 
1220 N. Highland Ave 
Los Angeles, CA 90038 

SA 5 
Daniel’s Place 

Step-Up on Second Street, Inc. 
1619 Santa Monica Blvd 
Santa Monica, CA 90405 

SA 6 
Good Seed Church of God in Christ, Inc. 

Good Seed Youth Drop-in Center 
2814 W. MLK Jr., Blvd 
Los Angeles, CA 90008 

SA 7 
Penny Lane Centers 

With A Little Help from My Friends 
5628 E. Slauson Ave 

Commerce, CA 90040 

SA 8 
Good Seed Church of God in Christ, Inc.  

Good Seed on Pine Youth Drop-In Center 
1230 Pine Ave 

Long Beach, CA 90813 

 

B3. Integrated Care Program (ICP) 

ICP is designed to integrate mental health, physical health, substance abuse, and other needed 
care such as nontraditional services to more fully address the spectrum of needs of individuals. 
The ICP service array will support the recovery of individuals with particular attention to those 
who are homeless and uninsured.  ICP promotes collaboration and partnerships by and 
between service providers and community-based organizations utilizing an array of services 
that may include traditional and non-traditional services. 
 
The target population for the ICP is individuals with SMI or SED who meet the Medi-Cal medical 
necessity criteria for receiving specialty mental health services, including those with co-
occurring substance abuse and/or physical health issues, who are economically disadvantaged 
or uninsured. 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

38 | Page 

B4.  Transformation Design Team 

The Older Adult Transformation Team provides system support to develop the infrastructure of 
older adult services within MHSA.  The team monitors outcome measures utilized in the FSP 
utilizes performance-based contracting measures to promote program services. 
  
This team is comprised of two health program analyst positions. The goal of the team is to 
ensure that our older adult consumers receive appropriate and timely mental health services 
from our provider agencies, and they do this by providing data and analytic support to their 
Program Manager and the Client Supportive Services team as they complete their regular site 
visits.  Additionally, the Transformation Team reviews all aspects related to contracts, 
compliance, service delivery, operations, and budgets, and generates detailed reports to 
evaluate programmatic design and effectiveness.   

 
B5.  Service Extenders 

 Service Extenders are volunteers and part of the Older Adult RRR inter-disciplinary team.  They 
are consumers in recovery, family members, or other individuals interested in working with older 
adults.  They receive specialized training to serve as members of the team and are paid a small 
stipend.  Service extenders receive supervision from professional clinical staff within the 
program in which they are placed.  

 
B6.  Older Adult Training  

The Older Adult Training Program addresses the training needs of existing mental health 
professionals and community partners by providing the following training topics: field safety, 
elder abuse, documentation, co-occurring disorders, hoarding, geriatric psychiatry, gero-
psychiatry fellowship, service extenders and evidence based practices.   
 
The following are achievements/highlights for FY 2020-21 

- Older Adult Consultation Medical Doctor’s (OACT-MD) Series: Outpatient Services 
Division conducted this ongoing OACT-MD Series for training and consultation for 
psychiatrists, nurse practitioners, nurses & mental health clinicians to improve the 
accessibility and quality of mental health services for Older Adults. 

o Cognitive Screening using the St. Louis University Mental Status Exam, 10-22-
20. 

o Polypharmacy Lecture, 01-28-21. 
- The Holiday Blues:  Training which exams the role holidays, can play on mental health, 

during the holiday season and its impact on older adults as they may be isolated or the 
contact with family has decreased, 11-2-20.   

- Older Adult Legal Issues/Elder Law Trainings and Consultation: OASOC as part of 
ongoing multi-disciplinary Older Adult Consultation team trainings, provided training and 
Elder Law consultation, curriculum training development and coordination on Elder Law 
for DMH and DMH-contracted clinical and non-clinical staff on best practices for working 
with Older Adult populations. 

- Medical Legal Pre-Elective Part I: The purpose of this training is to educate participants 
on cognitive screening test, elements of decision-making capacity and legal report in the 
context of geriatric patients who requires evaluation for conservatorship, testamentary 
capacity, undue influence, and other relevant issues that involve the overlap between 
geriatrics and the law, 12-17-20. 

- Medical Legal Elective Part II Direct and Cross Examination: The following training will 
educate mental health participants on strategies for expert witness court testimony 
specific to older adults with cognitive impairments. This training will prepare medical 
doctors and psychologists on ethnically diverse older adult cases with practiced 
simulated direct and cross examination situations, 04-22-21. 

- Medical Legal Elective Part III Simulated Trails: The following training will educate 
mental health participants on strategies for expert witness court testimony specific to 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

39 | Page 

older adults with cognitive impairments. The training will describe the evolution of mock 
trials and be involved in a simulated actual case, including practicing attorneys, and an 
experienced judge in a condensed version of a trial, 4-29-21. 

- Effective Techniques in Working with Individuals with Mild to Moderate Cognitive 
Impairment: A training request from LA County Board of Supervisor.  The training outline 
different types of cognitive impairment often observed among older adults, including 
normal aging, mild cognitive impairment, dementia, and impairments resulting from 
COVID and/or pandemic conditions, 5-12-21. 

- Co-Occurring Disorder Mini-Conference:  The Los Angeles County Department of 
Mental Health (DMH) presents the Co-Occurring Disorders Mini-Conference.  The 
Conference will discuss treatment of Co-Occurring Mental Health and Substance Use 
Disorders (COD) within the DMH system, 5-26-21. 

- Problem Solving Treatment (PST): Problem Solving Treatment (PST) is a brief 
intervention and will offer experiential activities to enhance clinical skills thereby 
supporting the model’s effectiveness, 5-27-21. 

- The Use of Cognitive Screening Measures: The Mini Mental State Exam (MMSE).   The 
purpose of this training is to provide an overview of a cognitive screening tool as well as 
hands on-experience using The Mini Mental State Exam (MMSE), 5-19-21; 6-29-21. 

- Problem Solving Treatment (PST): Problem Solving Treatment (PST) is a brief 
intervention and will offer experiential activities to enhance clinical skills thereby 
supporting the model’s effectiveness, 6-24-21   

 

FYs 2021-24 ◼ OUTPATIENT CARE SERVICES Continued Work 

In the next three years, the coming enhancements to improve service delivery will be the modernized Call Center to assist in 
access to services and the most appropriate level of care.  LACDMH will also be building up and supporting capacity to ensure 
successful transitions from higher levels of care.   

 

◼  OUTPATIENT CARE SERVICES 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

113,145 
Total  
Number Served1 

$584.2 million 
Total Gross 

Expenditures 

113,003 
Total  
Number Served1 

$483.4 million 
Total Gross 
Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 Three-Year Plan FYs 2021-24 

113,074 
Total  
Number to be Served2 

$569.5 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$1.794 billion 
Estimated 
Gross Expenditures 

Notes 
1 Prior Year Total Number Served: Number of unduplicated clients receiving Mode 15 Direct Services, not inclusive of community 
 outreach services or client support services 
2  FY 2022-23 Total Number to be Served:  Reflects average of two prior years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

40 | Page 

C. ALTERNATIVE CRISIS SERVICES 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

Alternative Crisis Services (ACS) provides a comprehensive range of services and supports for mentally ill individuals 
that are designed to provide alternatives to emergency room care, acute inpatient hospitalization and 
institutional care; reduce homelessness; and prevent incarceration. These programs are essential to crisis 
intervention and stabilization, service integration, and linkage to community-based programs, e.g., FSP and 
Assertive Community Treatment programs, housing alternatives, and treatment for co-occurring substance 
abuse. ACS serves individuals 18 years of age and older of all genders, race/ethnicities, and languages spoken. 

 
In 2019, Countywide Resource Management integrated with the Managed Care Division and changed its name to the 

Intensive Care Division.  It remains responsible for overall administrative, clinical, integrative, and fiscal aspects 
of programs that serve the most severely ill individuals with mental illness.  This includes planning, developing, 
and implementing urgent care centers and enriched residential programs for these specialized populations.  Also, 
it coordinates functions to maximize the flow of clients between various levels of care and community-based 
mental health services and supports. 

 
LACDMH MHSA ACS programs: 
▪ Residential and Bridging Care (RBC) Program  
▪ Psychiatric Urgent Care Centers 
▪ Enriched Residential Services (ERS) 
▪ Crisis Residential Treatment Programs (CRTP) 
▪ Law Enforcement Teams (LET) 

 
Intended Outcomes 

- Reduce utilization of psychiatric emergency rooms and inpatient acute psychiatry   
- Reduce incarceration of persons with severe and persistent mental illness 
 

Key Activities 
- Divert clients as appropriate to mental health urgent cares 
- Divert clients as appropriate to Crisis Residential Treatment Programs 
- Utilize mental health clinician teams in the field as Alternatives to Crisis Response 

 

          FY 20-21 ◼ ALTERNATIVE CRISIS SERVICES Update 

 
• LACDMH recommended a two-year pilot, long with strategies to expand and improve mental health bed capacity 

and service quality throughout the system, to procure up to 500 mental health treatment beds of varying types 
based on available funding.   In the last two years, LACDMH arranged for access to up to 239 beds when they 
became (or will become) available, of which 160 beds were utilized. In implementing the bed pilot, DMH went 
approximately $9.9 million dollars over budget utilizing one-time Sales Tax Realignment. In order to continue to 
move patients and allow continuous and efficient system flow, ongoing funding above the $25 million in Sales Tax 
Realignment revenues set aside in the FY 2019-20 Final Adopted Budget by LACDMH is required.  This bed pilot 
was implemented in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic and as such, it was executed in combination with the 
County Continuity of Operations: Surge Plan. 

 
 

FY 20-21 ◼ ALTERNATIVE CRISIS SERVICES Data and Outcomes 

 

During FY 20-21, LACDMH continued its investment in the development of PSH for homeless or 
chronically homeless individuals and families who are living with SMI or serious emotional disturbances 
(SED).   
 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

41 | Page 

C1. Residential and Bridging Program (RBC) 
RBC involves psychiatric social workers and peer advocates assisting in the coordination of 
psychiatric services and supports for TAY, Adults, and Older Adults with complicated psychiatric 
and medical needs.  The program ensures linkages to appropriate levels and types of mental 
health and supportive services through collaboration with Service Area Navigators, FSP, 
residential providers, self-help groups, and other community providers. Peer advocates provide 
support to individuals in subacute settings, Enriched Residential Services (ERS) facilities, and 
intensive residential programs to successfully transition to community living. 

  
The County Hospital Adult Linkage Program is part of the RBC program. Its mission is to assist 
in the coordination of psychiatric services for LACDMH clients at County hospitals operated by 
DHS to ensure clients are discharged to the appropriate level of care and that they are provided 
relevant mental health, residential, substance abuse, or other specialized programs. This 
program promotes the expectation that clients are successfully reintegrated into their 
communities upon discharge and that all care providers participate in client transitions. 

 
C2.  Psychiatric Urgent Care Centers (UCC) 

 Psychiatric UCCs are Medi-Cal certified and Lanterman Petris Short (LPS) designated free-
standing crisis stabilization units that provide rapid access to mental health evaluation and 
assessment, crisis intervention and medication support 24-hours per day, 7 days per week.  
UCCs also provide case management for individuals experiencing psychological distress and/or 
psychiatric crisis. UCC services, including integrated services for co-occurring disorders, are 
focused on stabilization and linkage to recovery-oriented community-based resources. Clients 
are permitted to stay in the UCC chair 23 hours and 59 minutes that are licensed by the 
California Department of Health Care Services. 
 

 Table 23.  Bed capacity and location of the current UCCs 

Urgent Care Center 
Service 

Area 
Location Open 

Beds 
(Age 18+) 

Beds 
(17 & under) 

Exodus (Eastside UCC) SA 4 
Downtown Los 

Angeles 
Yes 22  

Exodus (Harbor UCC) SA 8 
Harbor-

UCLA/Torrance 
Yes 15 0 

Exodus (MLK UCC) SA 6 MLK/Los Angeles Yes 14 8 

Exodus (Westside UCC) SA 5 Culver City Yes 12  

Olive View Community 
Care Services (OV UCC) 

SA 2 Sylmar Yes 8  

Providence Little Company 
of Mary OBHC2 

SA 8 San Pedro Yes 12  

Star View BHUCC SA 8 Long Beach Yes 12 6 

Star View BHUCC SA 3 San Gabriel Valley Yes 12 6 

Telecare (La Casa1 MHUCC2) SA 8 Long Beach Yes Varies  

1 La Casa is an exception; it is not open 24-hours per day, 7 days a week. It is LPS-designated. 
2 MHUCC = Mental Health UCC; OBHC = Outpatient Behavioral Health Center 

 
The following graphs provide an overview of FY 2020-21 outcomes of the nine UCCs.  Olive 
View UCC has two components:  Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU) - 7913 and Outpatient UCC - 
7591 that does not operate 24/7.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

42 | Page 

Figure 4.   FY 2020-21 UCC New admissions by age group 
 

 
 
 

 Figure 5.   Clients with a psychiatric emergency assessment within 30 days of a UCC assessment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 
 
 

OV UCC
7591

OV CSU
7913

Exodus
MLK UCC

Exodus
Eastside

UCC

Exodus
Westside

UCC

Exodus H-
UCLA UCC

Providenc
e OBHC

Star View
Long

Beach

Star View
City of

Industry

Telecare
MHUCC

Child 8 0 1,123 139 136 208 0 398 233 0

TAY 653 113 1,402 1,862 684 904 393 837 398 248

Adult 2,307 349 5,371 5,983 2,998 3,462 1,602 2,205 1,076 1,159

Older Adult 208 24 430 440 223 275 162 169 87 97

2,307 349
5,371

5,983 2,998 3,462
1,602

2,205 1,076

1,159

653 113

1,402

1,862 684 904
393

837 398

248

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

OV UCC
7591

OV CSU
7913

Exodus
MLK UCC

Exodus
Eastside

UCC

Exodus
Westside

UCC

Exodus H-
UCLA UCC

Providenc
e OBHC

Star View
Long

Beach

Star View
City of

Industry

Telecare
MHUCC

No 3,196 396 7,867 8,073 3,525 4,349 1,311 3,327 1,792 1,492

Yes - 74 461 465 516 525 845 282 2 12

3,196 

396 

7,867 

8,073 

3,525 

4,349 

1,311 

3,327 

1,792 
1,492 

-
74 461 465 516 525 

845 

282 2 12 
 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

43 | Page 

Figure 6.  Clients returning to UCC within 30 days of prior UCC visit 
 

 

 
Figure 7.  Clients who were homeless upon admission to UCCs 

 
 
C3. Enriched Residential Services (ERS) 

ERS is designed to provide supportive on-site mental health services at selected licensed Adult 
Residential Facilities, and in some instances, assisted living, congregate housing or other 
independent living situations. The program also assists clients transitioning from acute inpatient 
and institutional settings to the community by providing intensive mental health, substance 
abuse treatment and supportive services.  The following graphs provide an overview of FY 
2020-21 outcomes of the nine ERS facilities. 

 

OV UCC
7591

OV CSU
7913

Exodus
MLK UCC

Exodus
Eastside

UCC

Exodus
Westside

UCC

Exodus H-
UCLA UCC

Providenc
e OBHC

Star View
Long

Beach

Star View
City of

Industry

Telecare
MHUCC

No 1,548 405 7,727 8,059 3,802 4,504 2,047 3,212 1,574 1,440

Yes 1,648 65 601 479 239 370 109 397 220 64

1,648 

65 
601 479 239 370 109 

397 220 
64 

1,548 

405 
7,727 8,059 3,802 4,504 2,047 

3,212 1,574 
1,440 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

OV UCC
7591

OV CSU
7913

Exodus
MLK UCC

Exodus
Eastside

UCC

Exodus
Westside

UCC

Exodus H-
UCLA UCC

Providenc
e OBHC

Star View
Long

Beach

Star View
City of

Industry

Telecare
MHUCC

No 3,166 335 6,190 6,653 2,801 3,089 1,571 3,033 1,541 1,444

Yes 30 135 2,138 1,885 1,240 1,785 585 576 253 60

30 

135 2,138 1,885 
1,240 

1,785 
585 

576 253 
60 

3,166 

335 6,190 6,653 
2,801 

3,089 
1,571 

3,033 1,541 
1,444 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

44 | Page 

Figure 8.  Source of client referrals for ERS admissions (n = 603)

 
 
 Figure 9.  Client admission and discharge rates to ERS facilities (admission n = 396; discharge n = 146)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

207

192

95

44

28

21

8

6

2

0 50 100 150 200 250

Lateral Transfers/Rollovers/Readmits

Subacute (IMD)

CRTP

Fee for Service Hospital

County Hospital

Jail / Outpatient Programs

State Hospital

ERS

Mental Health Outpatient Provider

Anne Sippi
Clinic

Bridges
Cedar Street

Homes
Normandie

Village
Percy Village

Special
Services for

Groups

Special
Services for

Groups -
Special
Needs

Telecare 7

Admissions 20 15 31 62 52 118 48 50

Discharges 2 6 10 29 20 56 8 15

Discharged 10% 40% 32% 47% 38% 47% 17% 30%

Average Length of Stay 149 175 179 130 106 144 147 124

20 15

31

62
52

118

48

50

2 6
10

29
20

56

8
15

0

50

100

150

200

250



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

45 | Page 

Figure 10.  Client admission types to ERC facilities (n = 603)  

               

Admission types include clients who newly admit into a facility for the current fiscal year (New Admissions); readmit into the 
same facility as result of an absence (Readmits or Readmits post AWOL); (3) transfer internally to a higher or lower level of 
care (Lateral Transfers); and (4) change bed type, such as from indigent to Medi-Cal (Rollovers). 

  
C4. Crisis Residential Treatment Programs (CRTP) 

 CRTPs are designed to provide short-term, intensive, and supportive services in a home-like 
environment through an active social rehabilitation program that is certified by the California 
Department of Health Services and licensed by the California Department of Social Services, 
Community Care Licensing Division. They are designed to improve the lives and adaptive 
functioning of those they serve. Those admitted to a CRTP can be expected to receive an array 
of services including self-help skills, peer support, individual and group interventions, social 
skills, community re-integration, medication support,            co-occurring services, pre-vocational 
/ educational support, and discharge planning.  

 
Table 24.  Overview of current and future CRTPs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rollovers, 35
(5%)

Readmits, 172
(27%)

Readmits post 
AWOL, 47

(7%)

New Admissions, 396
(61%)

CRTP Bed Count Open 

Hillview (includes 3 AB109 slots) 15 Yes 

Excelsior House 14 Yes 

Jump Street 10 Yes 

Exodus 12 Yes 

Gateways 16 Yes 

CLARE Foundation 16 Yes 

Teen Project 16 Yes 

Lacada 16 February 2022 

Special Services for Groups (SSG) 16 February 2022 

Martin Luther King, Jr. 16 February 2022 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

46 | Page 

Figure 11.  Source of Client Referrals for Crisis Residential Facility Admissions (n = 1,630) 

 
 

Figure 12.  Client referrals, admissions and discharge rates CRTP admissions 

 

 
*Not all CRTP referrals result in an admission.  For FY 2020-21, there were 2,223 CRTP referrals, of those 1,452 ‘were no longer 
referred’.  Clients are no longer referred for the following reasons: (1) client discharged from the hospital prior to admission; 
(2) client declined the CRTP; (3) client discharged to CRTP but decided to no-show; (4) client admitted to another CRTP.   

 

C5. Law Enforcement Teams (LET) 
 The countywide police and mental health co-responder teams consist of LACDMH staff working 

collaboratively with local police departments in Los Angeles County.  The primary mission of 
LET is to assist patrol officers when responding to 911 calls involving persons with a mental 
illness.  These crisis intervention services are aimed to reduce incarcerations, mitigate police 

1,273 

185 

76 

54 

21 

9 

8 

3 

1

 -  200  400  600  800  1,000  1,200  1,400

Fee for Service Hospital

Department of Health Services

*Psychiatric Health Facilities

Urgent Care Center

Other

State Hospital

County Contracted

County Hospital

Crisis Response

Hillview CLARE Foundation Gateways SRP Exodus
Freehab (Teen

Project)

Total Referrals* 86 397 612 643 485

Total Admissions 26 88 217 232 207

Total Discharges 26 83 192 185 192

Discharged 100% 94% 88% 80% 93%

Average Length of Stay 85 32 24 25 20

86

26

88

217

232

207

26

83

192
185

192

0

50

100

150

200

250

Admissions = 770 
Discharges = 678 

*Includes Skilled Nursing Facilities / 
Psychiatric Diversion Beds 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

47 | Page 

use of force, and allow patrol officers to return quickly to patrol duties. 
 

The County’s diverse population requires compassionate and equitable intervention methods 
across the spectrum of care.  LACDMH serves those most vulnerable and at-risk in our 
community through expanded personalized programs and collaboration with other County 
departments. 

 
LET co-response teams consist of a law enforcement officer and a LACDMH mental health 
clinician who respond to 911 calls involving mental health crises. These teams ensure that the 
individuals in crisis receive appropriate, specialized care and safe transportation to the 
treatment facilities.  LET and LACDMH’s Psychiatric Mobile Response Teams (PMRT) support 
one another as resources permit.  Mental health clinicians have already been assigned to work 
with 40 of the 46 police departments throughout the County. 

 
During FY 2020-21, there were 13,871 incidents, of which 31% involved homeless individuals; 
4% resulted in arrests; and 60% required hospitalizations. 
 
 

◼ ALTERNATIVE CRISIS SERVICES Continued Work 

LACDMH will continue to look for opportunities to enhance MHSA ACS funded program leveraging other potential 
funding sources while ensuring existing resources meet the varied needs of those served.  Recent activities and 
future plans include: 

- Focus on prevention and diversion to subacute and open residential treatment beds, as well as crisis residential 
beds that will help decompress County hospital beds 

- Secure Measure J funding to expand treatment beds (UCCs, sobering centers, CRTPs, peer respite); acute, 
subacute, board and care, and congregate housing; and expand LET by an additional 10 teams to service different 
parts of the County 

- Increase placement options at various levels of care to help fill current gaps/lack of availability of “back-end” 
referral resources for diversion and linkage 

 

◼ ALTERNATIVE CRISIS SERVICES 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

14,423 
Total  
Number Served1 

$137.3 million 
Total Gross 

Expenditures 

33,458 
Total  
Number Served 

$124.2 million 
Total Gross 

Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 Three-Year Plan FYs 2021-24 

23,940 
Total  
Number to be Served2 

$165.5 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$516.3 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

Notes 
1 Prior Year Total Number Served: Number of unduplicated clients receiving Mode 15 Direct Services, not inclusive of community 
 outreach services or client support services 
2  FY 2022-23 Total Number Served:  Reflects average of two prior years 

 
 
  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

48 | Page 

D. HOUSING 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

The Housing program develops and manages housing resources and mental health programs for individuals who are 
homeless and have a SMI or SED; and provides employment and education programs; training technical 
assistance; and advocacy on housing, employment, and education.   

 
LACDMH Housing and Housing Supportive Services programs: 
▪ Enriched Residential Care (ERC) Program  
▪ Federal Housing Subsidies Program 
▪ Housing Assistance Program (HAP) 
▪ Housing for Mental Health (HFMH)  
▪ Intensive Case Management Services (ICMS) Program 
▪ Interim Housing Program (IHP) 
▪ Mental Health Housing Program  
▪ MHSA Housing and Special Needs Housing Program 
▪ No Place Like Home  

 
Intended Outcomes 

- Assist LACDMH clients who are homeless to obtain interim housing and permanent housing 
- Assist LACDMH clients living in permanent housing to retain housing 
- Increase the overall number of interim and permanent supportive housing (PSH) units and rental subsidies 

targeting LACDMH clients 
 

Key Activities 
- Provide immediate interim housing and supportive services to LACDMH clients who are homeless to get them off 

the streets 
- Provide financial assistance to help LACDMH clients transition from homelessness to permanent housing (e.g., 

rental subsidies, security deposits, utility assistance, furniture, household goods, etc.) 
- Provide mental health, case management and housing retention services to LACDMH clients who are formerly 

homeless and living in permanent housing 
- Invest in the capital development of PSH for individuals who are homeless and have a SMI/SED in partnership 

with the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) and through the use of No Place Like Home funding 
and managing the current portfolio of PSH to ensure the intended population is targeted 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ HOUSING Data and Outcomes 

 

During FY 2020-21, LACDMH continued its investment in the development of PSH for homeless or 
chronically homeless individuals and families who are living with SMI or severe emotional disorder.   

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

49 | Page 

Table 25.  Number of developments 
by target population in FY 2020-21 

Target 
Population 

Number of 
Developments 

Number 
of Units 

TAY 20 360 

Adults 80 2,154* 

Older Adults 26 621 

Families 14 408 

Veterans 8 176* 

Total 148 3,719 

 

By the end of FY 2020-21, 56 of the 148 PSH developments had finished construction and 1,100 of the 
3,719 units were occupied with units ranging in size from studios to 1- to-4 bedroom apartments.  Taking 
into account all move-ins and exits throughout the fiscal year, a total of 1,199 clients were served as 
well as 491 adult family members and 222 minor children.  New lease-ups for the fiscal year totaled 
268.  The housing retention rate for the program was 95%.   
  
As part of its PSH investment efforts for FY 2020-21, DMH continued to work in collaboration with the 
Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) on the MHSA-funded No Place Like Home 
(NPLH) program.  In October 2020, LACDA in collaboration with DMH released a Notice of Funding 
Availability (NOFA), which included $50 million in new NPLH dollars.  The NOFA resulted in a 
commitment of NPLH funds toward 12 new PSH developments and 357 units targeting adults and older 
adults.  These developments and units are included in the chart above. 
 
D1.  Federal Housing Subsidies Program 

In addition to MHSA project-based PSH units, DMH grew its number of tenant-based PSH units 
to 2,639 in FY 2020-21 through 19 contracts with the City and County of Los Angeles Housing 
Authorities including two contracts managed by the Los Angeles County Department of Health 
Services (DHS).  These contracts provide DMH clients who are homeless with access to federal 
tenant-based PSH subsidies such as Continuum of Care, Tenant Based Supportive Housing, 
Mainstream Voucher and Section 8 program subsidies.  Federal subsidies make units 
affordable by allowing clients to pay a limited percentage of their income as rent, with the 
balance paid to the property owner by the Housing Authority.  The Federal Housing Subsidies 
Program leverages MHSA-funded services, which are used to meet the required Federal match 
for Continuum of Care subsidies.  These services include those provided by DMH clinicians and 
case managers who assist clients who are homeless with accessing federal subsidies such as 
supporting them through the application, interview and housing location process as well as 
maintaining their housing once obtained.   
 
With new move-ins and exits during the fiscal year, the Federal Housing Subsidies Program 
provided housing to 2,185 clients, 117 adult family members and 766 minor children.  The 
number of clients newly leased up during the fiscal year totaled 314.  With 122 clients also 
exiting housing, the retention rate for the program was 94%. 
 

D2. Housing for Mental Health (HFMH) 

In FY 2020-21, $10 million in MHSA funding was set aside for the Housing for Mental 
Health (HFMH) program.  This program provides ongoing rental subsidies, as well as 
funding for security deposits, utility assistance and household goods, for highly 
vulnerable individuals with a serious mental illness who are enrolled in a Full Service 
Partnership (FSP) Program and are homeless and/or have criminal justice involvement.  
Twenty percent of housing subsidies are for FSP clients referred by the Department of 
Health Services (DHS) Office of Diversion and Reentry.  The HFMH program also works 
in close collaboration with DHS Intensive Case Management Services (ICMS) teams, 

Since 2008, DMH has invested over $958 million in MHSA funds, of which 
$664 million has been committed, toward the development of Permanent 
Supportive Housing (PSH) in Los Angeles County for individuals and families 
who are homeless and living with a serious mental illness or severe 
emotional disorder.  This has included providing capital funding for 148 PSH 
developments and 3,719 units as well as capitalized operating subsidies for 
13 of these developments.  The chart to the left offers further details on the 
populations being targeted for these development and units as of FY 2020-
21. 
 
*Includes both health-care eligible and non-health-care eligible Veterans. 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

50 | Page 

who work alongside FSP staff to assist clients with the housing process, and with 
Brilliant Corners who serves as the administrator of the HFMH subsidies.    
 
Table 26.  Number of referrals by permanent 
housing type   

 
Housing Referrals Move-ins 

Tenant-Based 
Housing 

95 150 

Project-Based 
Housing 

70 90 

Licensed 
Residential 
Facility 

6 8 

Total 171 248 

 
 
D3.  Housing Assistance Program (HAP) 

HAP uses a variety of funding sources including MHSA to assist homeless consumers of mental 
health services who have limited or no income with the move-in costs needed to transition from 
homelessness into permanent housing.  The program provides assistance in seven areas 
including Security Deposits, Utility Deposits, Household Goods, One-Time Rental Assistance, 
Ongoing Rental Assistance, Eviction Prevention and Permanent Rental Subsidies through the 
Flexible Housing Subsidy Pool (FHSP).   

 

 Table 27.  Number of clients served by program components   

Services Provided 
Number  

of Clients 
Expenditure 

Security Deposits 195 $301,753 

Utility Deposits 26 $4,916 

Household Goods 485 $478,558 

One-Time Rental Assistance 3 $530 

Time-Limited Rental Assistance 121 $424,705 

Eviction Prevention 11 $8,699 

Permanent Rental Subsidies 53 $1,162,292 

TOTAL 894 $2,381,453 

 
In addition to the above, HAP provided financial assistance to other DMH special populations.  
This included $40,354 to support eight Transition Age Youth (TAY) clients in directly-operated 
programs with rental assistance and move-in costs and $85,175 to support 28 adult FSP clients 
in directly-operated programs with Client Supportive Services (CSS) funding.   
 
 

D4. Enriched Residential Care (ERC) Program 
The Enriched Residential Care (ERC) Program assists DMH clients to obtain and maintain 
housing at an Adult Residential Facility (ARF) or Residential Care Facility for the Elderly (RCFE) 
when needed to live successfully in the community.  Such unlocked facilities, which are licensed 
by the State, provide residents with 24-hour care and supervision, medication management, 
three meals per day and assistance with activities of daily living.  MHSA and other funds are 
used to pay for the client’s rent at the facility as well as personal and incidental (P&I) expenses 
should the client not have Supplemental Security Income (SSI) or other adequate income to 
pay for these items.  (It is a program requirement that all clients who are potentially eligible for 
SSI receive assistance to apply for SSI.)  MHSA and other funds are also used to provide 

In FY 2020-2021, HAP provided financial 
assistance to 894 households totaling $2.38 
million with amounts by service type 
detailed in the chart. 

During FY 2020-21, a total of 445 individuals were served by the 
HFMH program.  This included 171 individuals who were newly 
referred and 248 who newly moved into permanent housing.  
Recognizing that the housing needs of referred clients vary, HFMH 
rental subsides can be used for various types of permanent housing 
including tenant-based housing, project-based housing at one of 
eight partnering housing developments, and licensed residential 
facilities.  The chart details to which types of permanent housing 
clients were referred as well as where they moved in.  The housing 
retention rate for the program was 90%.     



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

51 | Page 

facilities with an enhanced rate to help cover the costs of enhanced services that a client may 
require due to their higher acuity and complex needs.        
 
As of June 30, 2021, the ERC Program was serving a total of 595 clients.  This included 175 
clients who were receiving financial assistance for rent, P&I expenses and an enhanced rate as 
well as 420 clients who were receiving funding for an enhanced rate only.   

      
 Table 28.  Number of new move-ins 

Funding Type 
Total New 
Move-Ins 

Final Census 
(as of 6/30/20) 

Rent, P&I and Enhanced Rate 151 119 

Enhanced Rate Only 85 65 

Total 236 184 

 
D5.  Interim Housing Program (IHP) 

IHP is intended to provide short-term shelter services for adults with mental illness and their 
minor children who are homeless and do not have adequate income to pay for temporary 
housing. Serving as a bridge to permanent housing, the IHP provides clients with safe and clean 
shelter, 24-hour general oversight, three meals per day, linens, clothing, toiletries and case 
management services.   

 
Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, MHSA funds enabled the IHP to contract for 575 beds across 
19 sites. This included 506 beds for individuals and 69 family units. However, during FY 2020-
21, IHP site capacity was reduced to provide safe occupancy in accordance with Los Angeles 
County Department of Public Health (DPH) guidelines.  As a result, 413 individual beds and 69 
family units were available last fiscal year, which served a total of 1,129 individuals and 153 
families.  Hotel and motel rooms secured through Project Roomkey were also made accessible 
to individuals in the IHP and new referrals who were COVID vulnerable. 
  

FYs 2021-24 ◼  HOUSING Continued Work 

For FYs 2022-24, LACDMH continues to look for opportunities to grow its housing resources and ensure its existing 
resources meet the varied needs of those served.  Other recent activities and future plans include: 

- Initiating a capital improvements grant program for licensed residential facilities to help them address deferred 
maintenance issues (repairs, technology, etc.) that could threaten facility operations and impact their ability to 
provide critical housing and services to DMH clients in need.  $11.2M in one-time MHSA funding has already been 
designated toward this program.  To further fund these efforts, the County will also be applying for a portion of 
the $805M in Community Care Expansion funding that was approved by the State to support licensed residential 
facilities that serve people who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Additional funding from 
philanthropic partners is also being leveraged to fund capital needs assessments and research that will analyze 
the operational and ownership structures of these facilities.  

- Increasing Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) grant funding for the Enriched 
Residential Care (ERC) Program from $6M in FY 2021 to $8.7M in FY 2022.  These additional dollars will fund new 
licensed residential care placements for DMH clients in need as well as help ensure the continued payment of 
client enhanced rates to licensed residential facilities that were previously supported by Whole Person Care 
funding, which ended in December 2021.   

- Partnering with the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority (LAHSA) on an application to the State for 
Encampment Resolution Grant funding that would help fund outreach and navigation services and interim and 
permanent housing for 500 women experiencing homelessness in the Skid Row area of Los Angeles and their 
associated households.        

- Exploring opportunities to implement temporary outdoor living environments within Los Angeles County, known 
as Triage Communities, that would increase the availability of officially endorsed, organized, safe, clean and 
resource-enriched sites where people experiencing homelessness can sleep, eat, work and socialize as a 
community while establishing longer-term plans.    

- Continuing to allocate the remaining No Place Like Home funding, of which $100 million has been set aside to 
develop PSH at Restorative Care Village sites on County healthcare campuses.  

 

Throughout FY 2020-21, 236 clients were newly 
referred to the ERC Program and 184 of them 
moved into an ARF or RCFE with ERC support.  See 
chart below for further details on the population 
served by the ERC program.  Overall, the ERC 
housing retention rate was 85%.     



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

52 | Page 

◼ HOUSING 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$10.5 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$31.2 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$35.1 million 
Estimated Gross Expenditures 

$105.6 million 
Estimated Gross Expenditures 

 
E. LINKAGE 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority  
Population 

☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☐  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☐  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

Linkage provides programming that works with those in the community to connect them to essential services that 
include treatment, housing and other mental health service programs throughout the County. 

 
Linkage Programs: 
▪ Jail Transition and Linkage Services 
▪ Mental Health Court Linkage 
▪ Service Area Navigation 
 

Intended Outcomes 
Linkage programming engages in joint planning efforts to ensure that an active locally-based support network comprised 

of community partners, including community-based organizations, other County departments, intradepartmental 
staff, schools, health service programs, faith-based organizations, and self-help and advocacy groups: 

- Increase access to mental health services and strengthen the network of services available to clients in the mental 
health system 

- Promote awareness of mental health issues and the commitment to recovery, wellness and self-help 
- Engage with people and families to quickly identify currently available services, including supports and services 

tailored to a client’s cultural, ethnic, age and gender identity 
 

Key Activities 
- Assist the judicial system with individual service needs assessments of defendants, link defendants to treatment 

programs, and provide support and assistance to defendants and families 
- Assist a multi-disciplinary team in considering candidates’ eligibility and suitability for pre-trial rapid diversion and 

linkage to treatment services 
- Develop alternate sentencing, mental health diversion and post-release plans that consider best fit treatment 

alternatives and Court stipulations 

FY 2020-21 ◼ LINKAGE Data and Outcomes 

 

E1. Jail Transition and Linkage Services  
Client Contacts: 2,825 
This program addresses the needs of individuals in collaboration with the judicial system by 
providing identification, outreach, support, advocacy, linkage, and interagency collaboration in 
the courtroom and in the jail.  Linkage staff work with the MHSA Service Area Navigators as 
well as service providers to assist incarcerated individuals with accessing appropriate levels of 
mental health services and support upon their release from jail, including housing, benefits and 
other services as indicated by individual needs and situations. The goal is to successfully link 
individuals to community-based services upon discharge to prevent releasing them to the 
streets, thus alleviating the revolving door of incarceration and unnecessary emergency/acute 
psychiatric inpatient services. 
 

Currently, unique client count is only for 
MHSA programs with Mode 15 Direct 
Services (FSP, Outpatient Services, and 
Alternative Crisis Services).  LACDMH is 
working to strengthen its data collection 
methods to better capture exit data. 
All dollar amounts in this table are 
reported at gross costs and does not 
include any program administration 
costs. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

53 | Page 

E2. Mental Health Court Linkage Program 
  Client Contacts: 4,489 

 This program has two sub-programs funded by MHSA:   
▪ The Court Liaison Program is a problem-solving collaboration between LACDMH and the 

Los Angeles County Superior Court.  It is staffed by a team of mental health clinicians who 
are co-located at courts countywide.  This recovery-based program serves adults with a 
mental illness or co-occurring disorder who are involved with the criminal justice 
system.  The objectives of the program are to increase coordination and collaboration 
between the criminal justice and mental health systems, improve access to mental health 
services and supports, and enhance continuity of care.  

 
▪ The Community Reintegration Program (CRP) offers an alternative to incarceration for 

defendants with a mental illness including those with co-occurring substance abuse.  The 
goal of CRP and its participating providers is to reintegrate clients into the community with 
the skills and resources necessary to maintain stability and avoid re-arrest.  Also, this 
program provides admission to two specialized mental health contract facilities for judicially 
involved individuals with mental illness who voluntarily accept treatment in lieu of 
incarceration. 

 
E3. Service Area Navigation 

 Client Contacts: 20,166 
Service Area Navigator Teams assist individuals and families in accessing mental health and 
other supportive services and network with community-based organizations to strengthen the 
array of services available to clients of the mental health system. Such networking creates 
portals of entry in a variety of settings that would make the long-standing goal of “no wrong 
door” achievable.   
 
The following charts reflect FY 2020-21 data reported by the Service Area Navigators.  

 

  

Figure 13.  Number of phone contacts and outreach activities   

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

Phone Contact Outreach Activities



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

54 | Page 

Figure 14.  Number of clients referred to FSP services 

 
Figure 15.  Number of clients referred to Non-FSP services 

 

FYs 2022-24 ◼ LINKAGE Continued Work 

For FYs 2022-24, LACDMH will continue the indicated Key Activities by the following: 
- Secure Measure J funding to expand Court Linkage to additional courthouses 
- Expand rapid diversion programs to additional courthouses to better service the significant needs of the County 
- Expand and enhance videoconferencing capabilities and capacity in courthouse, lock-up, and jail facilities to more 

efficiently and rapidly provide diversion and linkage services to a greater number of clients, including leveraging 
flexible resource pools and economies of sale factors 

- Create direct communication and coordination channels/pathways between the judicial system and diversion 
and linkage referral resources, including LACDMH directly-operated and contracted service programs 

 

◼ LINKAGE 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$37.7 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$17.7 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$34.9 million 
Estimated Gross 
Expenditures 

$109.5 million 
Estimated Gross 
Expenditures 

 

1,651

1,917 1,916
2,054

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

0

100

200

300

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4

◼ RRR 

◼ Urgent Care 

◼ PEI 

◼ Community Based Programs 

 

Currently, unique client count is only for MHSA 
programs with Mode 15 Direct Services (FSP, 
Outpatient Services, and Alternative Crisis 
Services).   
 
All dollar amounts in this table are reported at 
gross costs and does not include any program 
administration costs. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

55 | Page 

F. PLANNING, OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

One of the cornerstones of MHSA is to empower underrepresented ethnic populations.  In June 2007, LACDMH 
established the Underserved Cultural Communities Unit (UsCC) to develop a stakeholder platform to historically 
underserved ethic and cultural communities in Los Angeles County.  Subcommittees were established to work 
closely with the various underrepresented / underserved ethnic and cultural populations in order to address 
their individual needs.   

 
UsCC Subcommittees:  
▪ African/African American 
▪ American Indian/Alaska Native 
▪ Asian Pacific Islander 
▪ Deaf, Hard-of-Hearing, Blind, and Physical Disabilities 
▪ Eastern European/Middle Eastern 
▪ Latino 
▪ Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Questioning, Intersex, Asexual, and Two-Spirit (LGBTQIA2-S) 
 
Each UsCC subcommittee is allotted one-time funding totaling $200,000 per fiscal year to focus on CSS-based 

capacity-building projects.  This unique opportunity draws on the collective wisdom and experience of 
community members to determine the greatest needs and priorities in their communities.  Project proposals are 
created and submitted via a participatory and consensus-based approach.   

 
Intended Outcomes 

- Increase mental health awareness to all communities within the County 
- Identify and address disparities amongst target populations 
- Reduce stigma discrimination by educating and empowering communities to understand the importance of 

mental health care 
- Increase access to care for mental health services provided by LACDMH and contract providers  
 

Key Activities 
-        Outreach communities throughout the County by conducting conferences and special events 
- Communicate and educate community members using various media and print media, as well as and grassroot 

level community mental health presentations 
- Conduct surveys to gather results for data analysis to continue planning, outreach and engagement activities 
- Enlist the help of community members to collaborate in outreach and engagement activities 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ PLANNING, OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT Data and Outcomes 

 
In FY 2020-21, Service Area outreach staff attended multiple events with 24,035 participants. The 
population consisted of the community at large from UsCCs.  Staff disseminated mental health 
information at job fairs, Veteran events, colleges, libraries, community events and activities at local 
senior centers. 
 
Table 29.  Event participants by Service Area 

Service 
Area 

Number of  
Participants 

SA1 – Antelope Valley 5,763 

SA2 – San Fernando Valley 2,145 

SA3 – San Gabriel Valley 3,466 

SA4 – Metro Los Angeles 1,106 

SA5 – West Los Angeles 20,024 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

56 | Page 

Service 
Area 

Number of  
Participants 

SA6 – South Los Angeles 3,304 

SA7 – East Los Angeles County 1,180 

SA8 – South Bay 170 

 
An overview of the projects that were approved for each of the seven UsCC Subcommittees is provided 
below. Due to COVID-19 precautions, the FY 2019-2020 UsCC projects were rolled into FY 2020-2021. 
Most projects in this cycle are currently being implemented and therefore outcomes will not be available 
to report until after June of 2022. For projects in the this cycle that have been completed, a brief 
statement of the outcomes was provided. 
 
A. AFRICAN/AFRICAN AMERICAN 

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

 

Black & African-American Village Elders Mental Health Project 
 
Black and African-American Village Elders Mental Health Project aims to build a cadre of Community Service Leaders that have 
the knowledge and capacity to recognize and respond to signs of social isolation and disconnection from community amongst 
Black and African-American elders and their caregivers. Community Service Leaders will present community seminars 
specifically to these populations. 
1st Component:  Include recruitment of Community Service Leaders (CSLs), followed by the facilitation  of a forum for the CSLs 
that focuses on how to work with and assist the Black and African-American elder population, as well as their caregivers, with 
regards to mental health awareness and signs and symptoms of isolation and depression. 
 
2nd Component: For the CSLs to conduct community mental health seminars to outreach and engage elders and their 
caregivers. 

 

Project 

“Empowering the Black & African-American Family” A Wellness Conversation Series in Service Area 3 
 
The objective of this project is to increase awareness and dialogue surrounding mental health issues, signs, and symptoms, 
provide multidisciplinary psycho-education on mental health challenges experienced by Black and African American adults 
and youth and destigmatize the topic of mental health in these communities. The goal is to have a monthly Wellness 
Conversation to decrease stigma about mental health issues and increase awareness of healthy coping strategies, connect 
community members to supportive resources and services needed to improve opportunities for healing and wholeness in 
their lives.   

 
B. AMERICAN INDIAN/ALASKA NATIVE (AI/AN) 

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

American Indian/Alaska Native Community Mental Health Needs Assessment 
 
The project is to outreach and engage the AI/AN population into a discussion regarding the needs of their community, as well 
as reduce stigma associated with mental health services. Additionally, this project aims to increase awareness of the mental 
health needs of AI/AN individuals, increase connections with mental health providers, and provide opportunities to address 
concerns about mental health services. Additionally, this project has a goal of increasing community member involvement in 
the LACDMH stakeholder process. 
Phase 1: Outreach to individuals within the AI/AN community 
Phase 2: Conduct an AI/AN Community Leaders Mental Health Forum made up of leaders and providers who will be brought 
together into a learning collaborative to discuss the needs of the community. 

American Indian/Alaska Native Outreach and Engagement Toolkit 
 
This project aims to promote mental health services, reduce stigma, and increase the capacity of the public mental health 
system in Los Angeles County, as well as increase community member engagement in the LACDMH stakeholder process. This 
project will include the recruitment of AI/AN community members, peers, and family members into a Cohort, the development 
of an Outreach and Engagement Toolkit including a training video, and the facilitation of a Community Wellness Forum. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

57 | Page 

Project 

1st Component: Outreach and engagement of AI/AN community members, peers, and family members into a Cohort. 
 
2nd Component: Involve Cohort Members hosting a Community Wellness Forum with the purpose of further building 
community connections and sharing personal testimonials regarding their experiences during the Cohort Meetings, and 
providing attendees with a copy of the Toolkit. 

American Indian/Alaska Native Wellness Forums 
 
The project aims to reduce mental health access barriers for AI/AN community members by engaging this population into 
conversations about mental health and traditional forms of healing. This will enable this often underserved and marginalized 
population to access mental health services for themselves and empower other community members to access mental health 
services as well. 
 

 
C. ASIAN PACIFIC ISLANDER (API) 

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

Korean Mental Health Navigation Services Pilot Project 
 
The goal of this project is to develop Korean Mental Health Navigation Services that will primarily target the first generation 
immigrant Korean community (all ages) in Service Area (SA) 4. It will include information on mental health resources, help 
connecting to services and faith-based programs, as well as provide mental health awareness workshops for Clergy and 
community members. 

Asian Pacific Islander Families – Our Stories and Our Journey on Mental Health Recovery and Resilience 
 
This project aims to compile helpful mental health wellness information, resources, and personal stories of recovery and 
resilience in audio-visual format to share with various API communities (e.g., Cambodian, Chinese, Filipino, Korean, South 
Asian, Vietnamese). The audio-visual format, such as narrated Power Point presentations (with audio and video segments), 
could be shared via social media (such as: YouTube; WeChat) and in waiting rooms of clinics to de-mystify mental health 
issues 

 
D. DEAF, HARD OF HEARING, BLIND, AND PHYSICAL DISABILITIES  

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

Mental Health Needs Assessment for the Blind, Partially Sighted, and Visually Impaired Community 
 
The goal of this project is to outreach and engage people who are blind, partially sighted, and visually impaired individuals 
into a virtual discussion regarding the mental health needs of this community, as well as to reduce the stigma associated with 
mental health services.  Additionally, this project aims to increase connections with mental health providers and provide 
opportunities to address concerns about mental health services.  This project will target blind, partially sighted, and visually 
impaired community members from eight the (8) service areas across Los Angeles County. 

Mental Health Needs Assessment for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Community 
 
The goal of this project is to outreach and engage people who are blind, partially sighted, and visually impaired individuals 
into a virtual discussion regarding the mental health needs of this community, as well as to reduce the stigma associated with 
mental health services.  Additionally, this project aims to increase connections with mental health providers and provide 
opportunities to address concerns about mental health services.  This project will target blind, partially sighted, and visually 
impaired community members from eight the (8) service areas across Los Angeles County. 

Mental Health Needs Assessment for Physically Disabled Community 
 
The goal of this project is to outreach and engage people who are physically disabled individuals into a virtual discussion 
regarding the mental health needs of this community, as well as to reduce the stigma associated with mental health services.  
Additionally, this project aims to increase connections with mental health providers and provide opportunities to address 
concerns about mental health services.  This project will target blind, partially sighted, and visually impaired community 
members from eight the (8) service areas across Los Angeles County. 

 
 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

58 | Page 

 
E. EASTERN EUROPEAN/MIDDLE EASTERN   

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

Armenian Community Symposiums Project 
 
This project aims to promote mental health services, reduce stigma, and increase the capacity of the public mental health 
system in Los Angeles County.  This will enable this often underserved and marginalized population to access mental health 
services for themselves and empower other community members to access mental health services as well. In addition, this 
project will inform the Armenian community members regarding the EE/ME UsCC subcommittee in order to increase 
community member and consumer interest and participation in the MHSA stakeholder process and engage more consumers 
and community members to participate in the monthly EE/ME UsCC subcommittee meetings. 
 
Project Outcomes: Virtual Armenian Mental Health Symposium #1 was conducted on 12/5/2021. There were around 35 
participants. Three different mental health topics were presented, such as Depression, Substance Abuse and Domestic 
Violence within the Armenian Community. This symposium was conducted in the Armenian language. The presentations 
were educational and culturally sensitive. Participants provided positive feedback about the presentations, stating that the 
presentations were informative and interesting. 

Mental Health Needs Assessment for the Arabic Speaking Community through Virtual Focus Groups 
This project aims to develop and implement Mental Health Needs Assessment Project for the Arabic speaking community 
through conducting 8 virtual focus groups. This t will be completed in two phases: 
❶ Conduct Community Leaders Mental Health Forum made up of leaders and providers within the Arabic speaking 
community who will be brought together virtually (i.e. Zoom, Skype) into a learning collaborative to discuss the needs of the 
community. 
❷ Outreach to the Arabic speaking community and engage them in virtual focus groups to assess the needs of the 
community, identify gaps in access to mental health services, and identify how to engage community members into mental 
health services provided by LACDMH 

The Farsi Poetry Night Mental Health Virtual Outreach Project 
 
This project aims to develop and implement virtual the Poetry Night Mental Health Outreach Project.  This project will target 
Farsi speaking older adults residing in Los Angeles County.  This project will consist of virtual Poetry Night events two (2) 
times a month, for ten (10) consecutive months.  Poetry is an important part of the Iranian culture and is traditionally used 
as a tool to help individuals heal from their mental and emotional problems. The Poetry Night Mental Health Outreach Project 
or “Shabeh Sher” will provide a place for Farsi speaking older adults to get together and interact with one another. It will also 
provide a safe space for them to share their emotional and mental health issues in a culturally appropriate and acceptable 
manner.  Poetry night events will be facilitated by a poetry expert, who will bring in poems to share with the participants and 
have interactive group discussion. 
 
Project Outcomes: Vendor provided schedules for the Poetry Workshops in English and Farsi for all 10 months. Individual 
flyers include zoom link. Four poetry classes have been conducted already. Vendor reported that overall, the workshops are 
going very well. The poetry classes are getting good attendance and very positive feedback from community members. 
Vendor is also planning on doing some advertisements with the local Iranian radio stations for the workshops starting in 
January. 

Russian Mental Health Outreach Campaign 
 
The Russian Public Service Announcement Project seeks to increase mental health awareness and education to the  
Russian community in Los Angeles County, which is significantly underserved by the public mental health system. The 
Campaign includes production and distribution of PSAs that will serve as the centerpiece of the engagement efforts. The 
selected Consultant is expected to have experience reaching the intended audiences and expertise in the specific outreach 
strategies being used to reach them. An initial project proposal must be approved by LACDMH before beginning work. This 
Campaigns should run for a period of 12 months. A final report and summary of the Campaign’s results is required at the 
completion of the project/ 
 
Project Outcomes: Russian PSAs have been airing on Russian-Armenian Television, ARTN, Network, 4 times a day and Russian 
Television Network, RTN, 2 times a day. Vendor submitted Airing Logs from RTN for the Russian Media Campaign and is 
waiting to receive the Airing Logs from ARTN. The project is going well according to the Vendor. 

 
 
 
 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

59 | Page 

 
 
 
F. LATINO 

UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 
Project 

Older Latino Adults Outreach and Engagement Project 
 
This project will target the older Latino adult community at large by promoting mental health literacy, increasing mental health 
service utilization and education, and reducing mental health stigma. Older Latino adults in Los Angeles County are 
predominantly Spanish-speaking and first-generation immigrants. Among this group, the rates of untreated anxiety, 
loneliness, and depression are high while mental health education, service utilization, and health literacy remains significantly 
low. Health literacy disparities are most likely to affect older ethnic minority adults, particularly first-generation immigrants 
who are non-native English-speakers. Social stigma, a lack of knowledge, language barriers, and Eurocentric clinical approaches 
lacking cultural relevance have prevented older Latino adults from receiving mental health services in a timely and culturally 
appropriate manner. 

Latino Garment District Workers Outreach Project 
 
This project aims to develop and implement the Latino Garment District Workers Outreach Project. It will target the Latino 
garment workers in Service Area four (4), Service Area six (6), and Service Area seven (7), but can include other service areas 
based on need. The project’s main goal is to outreach, educate, and increase knowledge pertaining to mental health services 
and resources by utilizing a non-stigmatizing and empowering approach. To develop and implement this project 

 
G. LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER, QUEER, QUESTIONING, INTERSEX, ASEXUAL, 

TWO-SPIRIT (LGBTQIA2-S) 
UsCC SUBCOMMITTEE 

Project 

Abusua PA 
 
The “Abusua Pa” Black LGBTQIA2-S Parents, Caregivers, and Youth Collaborative Project hopes to develop tools, resources, 
and educational videos to help Black and African American caregivers in working with their LGBTQIA2-S identified youth as 
well as help providers and clinicians in engaging and working with the Black LGBTQIA2-S community. 
● 1st Component: Outreach and engagement of Black and African American parents and caregivers of LGBTQIA2-S identified 
youth, as well as the youth themselves into a Collaborative. Collaborative members will participate in 2-hour weekly meetings 
for a minimum period of 8 weeks. 
●2nd Component: Collaborative members hosting a Community Wellness Forum with the purpose of further building 
community connections and sharing personal testimonials regarding their experiences during the Collaborative meetings, and 
providing attendees with a copy of the Toolkit. 
 

LGBTQIA2-S Youth Mental Health Community Engagement Campaign 
 
The LGBTQIA2-S UsCC’s aims to create content that will reach and inspire youth to promote mental health services, reduce 
stigma and barriers to mental health services for LGBTQIA2-S youth. The Campaign includes production and distribution of 
five videos that will serve as the centerpiece of the engagement efforts 

LGBTQIA2-S Youth Innovation Lab & Fellowship Project  
 
This project aims to empower youth as the experts to develop their own innovative strategies, educate and empower this 
community about the importance of mental health care, destigmatize mental health issues amongst LGBTQIA2-S youth, 
develop culturally sensitive resources/tools. e hired to implement the LGBTQIA2-S Youth Innovation Lab & Fellowship Project. 
It include outreach and engagement of LGBTQIA2-S Youth Fellows into a Youth Innovation Lab. During the Lab, the Fellows 
will develop innovative strategies for reducing mental health access barriers for their community, work on building stronger 
social connections, and develop tools and resources that can be shared with other LGBTQIA2-S youth, as well as clinicians and 
providers. 

LGBTQIA2-S Non-Binary & Intersex Mental Health Survey 
 
The objective of the LGBTQIA2-S Non-Binary & Intersex Mental Health Survey is to conduct a community survey, including 
focus groups, of the non-binary and intersex communities in order to promote mental health services, reduce stigma and 
barriers to mental health services for the non-binary and intersex communities, and increase the capacity of the public mental 
health system in Los Angeles County. As non-binary and intersex identities are becoming more visible and understood by the 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

60 | Page 

Project 

public, there remains very little data and research around mental health and related issues/challenges regarding non-binary 
and intersex people. 
 
Project Outcomes: Two surveys completed: Survey 1 produced 296 usable entries and Survey 2 produced 300 usable entries. 
Of those, 144 were currently receiving or had received mental health care in the past. The majority of survey participants 
identified as non-binary. 165 participants reported having encountered barriers to care while trying to access mental health 
services. Most common barriers included lack of affirming clinicians and too expensive/lack of financial resources. 281 
participants reported that telehealth is a beneficial tool to assist in affirming gender identity during medical appointments. 

 

FYs 2022-24 ◼ PLANNING, OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT Continued Work 

For FYs 2022-24, LACDMH will continue outreach and engagement activities. 

 

◼ PLANNING, OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$8.3 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$6.7 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$6.5 million 
Estimated Gross Expenditures 

$20.2 million 
Estimated Gross Expenditures 

 
  

Currently, unique client count is only for 
MHSA programs with Mode 15 Direct 
Services (FSP, Outpatient Services, and 
Alternative Crisis Services).   
 
All dollar amounts in this table are 
reported at gross costs. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

61 | Page 

PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENTION (PEI) 
This section outlines the services and activities associated with the various components of PEI.   Over 
the last year, LACDMH has moved toward a more robust and upstream approach to PEI services.  
While the focus of early intervention continues to be evidence-based practices (EBP), promising 
practices and community-defined evidence practices, LACDMH is in the process of implementing 
prevention strategies in settings such as schools and libraries where access platforms are being 
established.  By identifying individuals with specific risk factors, particularly for trauma, and through the 
promotion of protective factors, such as social connectedness and engagement, a prevention service 
platform is being developed that: 
- Raises awareness of the importance of mental and emotional well-being and health, the impact of 

trauma and the promotion of resilience strategies on systems and communities; 

- Builds organizational and community capacity to promote well-being and resiliency and to recognize 
and respond to trauma and mental health needs; and 

- Builds bridges to mental health care when it is requested. 
 
The prevention strategies involve, at a minimum, a combination of training, resource infusion at the site 
of the access platform, partnership development and consultation to educators.   
 
PEI includes the following services: 
▪ Prevention 
▪ Early Intervention 
▪ Stigma and Discrimination 
▪ Suicide Prevention 
 

Table 30.  FY 2020-21 Clients served through PEI  

Clients Served New Clients Served 

42,784 clients received a direct mental health service: 
- 62% of the clients are children 
- 21% of the clients are TAY 
- 15% of the clients are adult 
- 2% of the clients are older adult 
- 45% of the clients are Hispanic 
- 9% of the clients are African American 
- 9% of the clients are White 
- 3% of the clients are Asian/Pacific Islander 
- 1% of the clients are Native American 
- 4% of the clients are Multiple Races 
- 76% have a primary language of English 
- 21% have a primary language of Spanish 

23,277 new clients receiving PEI services countywide: 
with no previous MHSA service 
- 42% of the new clients are Hispanic 
- 9% of the new clients are African American 
- 9% of the new clients are White 
- 3% of the new clients are Asian/Pacific Islander 
- 4% of the new clients are Multiple Races 
- 0.42% of the new clients are Native American 
- 76% have a primary language of English 
- 21% have a primary language of Spanish 

   
Table 31.  FY 2020-21 Clients served through PEI by Service Area 

 

 
 

Service 
Area 

Number of  
Clients Served 

Number of 
New Clients 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 2,850 1,560 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 7,288 3,807 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 7,042 4,068 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 6,231 3,890 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 1,626 931 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 5,249 3,334 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 6,185 3,882 

SA 8 – South Bay 7,020 3,807 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

62 | Page 

A.  EARLY INTERVENTION 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☒  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

Early Intervention is directed toward individuals and families for whom a short (usually less than one year), relatively 
low-intensity intervention is appropriate to measurably improve mental health problems and avoid the need for 
more extensive mental health treatment. 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ EARLY INTERVENTION Data and Outcomes 

Table 32.  FY 2020-21 EBPs  
Note:  Some age groups show the specific age(s) of clients served  

Early Intervention EBP Description 

Aggression Replacement Training (ART) 
Children (ages 5-12) Skill Streaming Only 
Children (ages 12-15) 
TAY (ages 16-17) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  19 
Gender:  68% Male, 32% Female 
Ethnicity:  53% Hispanic, 5% African American,  
  37% Unreported, 5% Multiple Races 

ART is a multimodal psycho-educational intervention 
designed to alter the behavior of chronically aggressive 
adolescents and young children. Its goal is to improve social 
skills, anger control, and moral reasoning. The program 
incorporates three specific interventions: skill-streaming, 
anger control training, and training in moral reasoning. Skill-
streaming teaches pro-social skills. In anger control training, 
youths are taught how to respond to their hassles. Training 
in moral reasoning is designed to enhance youths’ sense of 
fairness and justice regarding the needs and rights of others. 

Alternatives for Families 
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (AF-CBT) 
Children (ages 4-15) 
TAY (ages 16-17) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  161 
Gender:  53% Male, 47% Female 
Ethnicity:  66% Hispanic, 14% African American, 
                  1% Asian, 2% White, 16% Unreported,   
                  1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander,  
                  1% Multiple Races                                                

AF-CBT is designed to improve the relationships between 
children and parents/ caregivers in families involved in 
physical force/coercion and chronic conflict/hostility. This 
practice emphasizes training in both intrapersonal and 
interpersonal skills designed to enhance self-control, 
strengthen positive parenting practices, improve family 
cohesion/communication, enhance child coping skills and 
social skills, and prevent further instances of coercion and 
aggression. Primary techniques include affect regulation, 
behavior management, social skills training, cognitive 
restructuring, problem solving, and communication.  

Brief Strategic Family Therapy (BFST) 
Children (ages 10-15) 
TAY (ages 16-18)) 
 
 

BSFT is a short-term, problem-oriented, family-based 
intervention designed for children and adolescents who are 
displaying or are at risk for developing behavior problems, 
including substance abuse. The goal of BSFT is to improve a 
youth’s behavior problems by improving family interactions 
that are presumed to be directly related to the child’s 
symptoms, thus reducing risk factors and strengthening 
protective factors for adolescent drug abuse and other 
conduct problems.  

Center for the Assessment and  
Prevention of Prodromal States (CAPPS) 
TAY 
 
Unique Clients Served:  31 
Gender:  65% Male, 35% Female 
Ethnicity:  58% Hispanic, 10% Unreported, 13% White  
  3% Asian, 10% Multiple Races, 3% African American, 
                   3% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 

The focus of CAPPS is to conduct outreach and engagement 
specifically to those youths who are experiencing their first-
break psychosis and early onset of serious mental illnesses 
with psychotic features. In order to mitigate mental health 
challenges and reduce the progression of these challenges 
into mental health diagnoses, this project will also engage 
families and significant others of the youth as well as the 
youth themselves in PEI services. 

Child-Parent Psychotherapy (CPP) 
Young Children (ages 0-6) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  1,526 

CPP is a psychotherapy model that integrates psycho-
dynamic, attachment, trauma, cognitive -behavioral, and 
social-learning theories into a dyadic treatment approach. 
CPP is designed to restore the child-parent relationship and 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

63 | Page 

Early Intervention EBP Description 

Gender:  53% Male, 47% Female 
Ethnicity:  43% Hispanic, 12% African American, 
  0.46% Asian, 10% White, 28% Unreported 
                   5% Multiple Races, 0.13% Native American, 
                   1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
 

the child's mental health and developmental progression 
that have been damaged by the experience of domestic 
violence. CPP is intended as an early intervention for young 
children that may be at risk for acting-out and experiencing 
symptoms of depression and trauma.  

Crisis Oriented Recovery Services (CORS) 
Children 
TAY 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served: 78 
Gender:  31% Male, 69% Female 
Ethnicity: 35% Hispanic, 15% African American,  
 5% Asian, 6% White, 24% Unreported,  
                  13% Multiple Races, 1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific   

Islander 

CORS is a short-term intervention designed to provide 
immediate crisis intervention, address identified case 
management needs, and assure hard linkage to ongoing 
services. The primary objective is to assist individuals in 
resolving and/or coping with psychosocial crises by 
mitigating additional stress or psychological harm. It 
promotes the development of coping strategies that 
individuals can utilize to help restore them to their previous 
level of functioning prior to the crisis event.  

Depression Treatment Quality Improvement (DTQI) 
Children 
TAY 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  120 
Gender:  37% Male, 63% Female 
Ethnicity:  26% Hispanic, 1% Native American,  
  68% Unreported, 1% White,  
                  3% Multiple Races 

DTQI is a comprehensive approach to managing depression 
that utilizes quality improvement processes to guide the 
therapeutic services to adolescents and young adults. The 
psychoeducation component helps individuals learn about 
major depression and ways to decrease the likelihood of 
becoming depressed in the future. The psychotherapy 
component assists individuals who are currently depressed 
to gain understanding of factors that have contributed to the 
onset and maintenance of their depression and learn ways 
to treat their disorder.  

Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) 
Children (ages 12-15) 
TAY (ages 16-20) 
 
Unique Clients Served: 202 
Gender:  20% Male, 79% Female, 1% Female to Male 
Ethnicity:  33% Hispanic, 11% African American,  
  3% Asian, 21% White, 22% Unreported, 
                  2% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                   5% Multiple Races 

DBT serves individuals who have or may be at risk for 
symptoms related to emotional dysregulation, which can 
result in the subsequent adoption of impulsive and 
problematic behaviors, including suicidal ideation. DBT 
incorporates a wide variety of treatment strategies including 
chain analysis, validation, dialectical strategies, mindfulness, 
contingency management, skills training and acquisition 
(core mindfulness, emotion regulation, interpersonal 
effectiveness, distress tolerance and self-management), 
crisis management, and team consultation.  

Families Over Coming Under Stress (FOCUS) 
Children 
TAY 
Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  97 
Gender:  53% Male, 47% Female 
Ethnicity:  17% Hispanic, 4% African American, 
                   1% White, 77% Unreported, 1% Multiple Races 

Family resiliency training for Military families, couples, and 
children who experience difficulties with multiple 
deployments, injuries, PTSD, and combat operational issues. 
FOCUS believes that poor communication skills and combat 
operational stress leads to distortions in thinking and family 
detachment. Treatment is delivered to couples and/or the 
family by building upon existing strengths and positive 
coping strategies as well as increasing communication and 
decreasing stress.  

Functional Family Therapy (FFT) 
Children (ages 11-15) 
TAY (ages 16-18) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  38 
Gender:  55% Male, 45% Female 
Ethnicity:  11% White, 53% Hispanic, 18% Unreported, 11%   

African American, 8% Multiple Races, 
 

FFT is a family-based, short-term prevention and 
intervention program for acting-out youth. It focuses on risk 
and protective factors that impact the adolescent, 
specifically intrafamilial and extrafamilial factors, and how 
they present and influence the therapeutic process. Major 
goals are to improve family communication and 
supportiveness while decreasing intense negativity these 
families experience.  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

64 | Page 

Early Intervention EBP Description 

Group Cognitive Behavioral Therapy for  
Major Depression (Group CBT) 
TAY (ages 18-25) 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  5 
Gender:  40% Male, 60% Female 
Ethnicity:  20% Asian, 40% Hispanic, 20% African American, 

20% Multiple Races 

Group CBT focuses on changing an individual's thoughts 
(cognitive patterns) to change his or her behavior and 
emotional state.  Treatment is provided in a group format 
and assumes maladaptive, or faulty, thinking patterns cause 
maladaptive behaviors and negative emotions. The group 
format is particularly helpful in challenging distorted 
perceptions and bringing thoughts more in-line with reality. 
Cultural tailoring of treatment and case management shows 
increased effectiveness for low-income Latino and African-
American adults.  

Incredible Years (IY) 
Young Children (ages 2-5) 
Children (ages 6-12) 
 
Unique Clients Served: 118 
Gender:  73% Male, 27% Female 
Ethnicity:  64% Hispanic, 4% African American, 
  4% Asian, 13% White, 14% Unreported, 
                   1% Multiple Races 

IY is based on developmental theories of the role of multiple 
interacting risk and protective factors in the development of 
conduct problems. Parent training intervention focuses on 
strengthening parenting competency and parent 
involvement in a child's activities to reduce delinquent 
behavior. Child training curriculum strengthens children's 
social/emotional competencies. Teacher training 
intervention focuses on teachers' classroom management 
strategies, promoting pro-social behaviors and school 
readiness.  

Individual Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (Ind. CBT) 
TAY (ages 18-25) 
Adults 
Older Adults 
Directly Operated Clinics only 
 
Unique Clients Served:  3,239 
Gender:  27% Male, 73% Female 
Ethnicity:  49% Hispanic, 7% African American,  
 2% Asian, 13% White, 22% Unreported, 
                  1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                  6% Multiple Races, 0.25% Native American 

CBT is intended as an early intervention for individuals who 
either have or may be at risk for symptoms related to the 
early onset of anxiety, depression, and the effects of trauma 
that impact various domains of daily living. CBT incorporates 
a wide variety of treatment strategies including psycho-
education, skills acquisition, contingency management, 
Socratic questioning, behavioral activation, exposure, 
cognitive modification, acceptance and mindfulness 
strategies and behavioral rehearsal. 

Interpersonal Psychotherapy for Depression (IPT) 
Children (ages 9-15)  
TAY 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served: 1,311 
Gender:  31% Male, 69% Female 
Ethnicity:  35% Hispanic, 6% African American,  
                   2% Asian, 7% White, 47% Unreported, 
                   3% Multiple Races  

IPT is a short-term therapy (8-20 weeks) that is based on an 
attachment model, in which distress is tied to difficulty in 
interpersonal relationships. IPT targets the TAY population 
suffering from non-psychotic, uni-polar depression. It 
targets not only symptoms, but improvement in 
interpersonal functioning, relationships, and social support. 
Therapy focuses on one or more interpersonal problem 
areas, including interpersonal disputes, role transitions, and 
grief and loss issues.  

Loving Intervention Family Enrichment Program (LIFE) 
Children (ages 0-8) 
 
 

An adaptation of Parent Project, LIFE is a 22- week skills-
based curriculum implemented with parenting classes/ 
support groups, youth mental health groups, and multi-
family groups for parents with children at risk of or involved 
with the juvenile justice system. The program was designed 
for low-income Latino families with monolingual (Spanish) 
parents of children at high-risk of delinquency and/ or school 
failure. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

65 | Page 

Early Intervention EBP Description 

Managing and Adapting Practice (MAP) 
Young Children 
Children 
TAY (ages 16-21) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  13,761 
Gender:  47% Male, 53% Female 
Ethnicity:  47% Hispanic, 6% African American, 
  1% Asian, 7% White, 34% Unreported,  
                   4% Multiple Races 
 

MAP is designed to improve the quality, efficiency, and 
outcomes of children’s mental health services by giving 
administrators and practitioners easy access to the most 
current scientific information and by providing user- friendly 
monitoring tools and clinical protocols. Using an online 
database, the system can suggest formal evidence-based 
programs or can provide detailed recommendations about 
discrete components of evidence-based treatments relevant 
to a specific youth’s characteristics. MAP as implemented in 
the County has four foci of treatment, namely, anxiety, 
depression, disruptive behavior, and trauma.  

Mental Health Integration Program (MHIP) 
Formerly known as IMPACT 
Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  907 
Gender:  28% Male, 72% Female 
Ethnicity:  54% Hispanic, 11% African American,  
  2% Asian, 14% White, 12% Unreported,  
                  2% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                  4% Multiple Races 

MHIP delivers specialty mental health services to Tier 2 PEI 
and Low-Income Health Plan (LIHP)/Healthy Way LA 
enrollees with less intense mental health needs who are 
appropriately served through focused, time- limited early 
intervention strategies. An integrated behavioral health 
intervention program is provided within a primary care 
facility or in collaboration with a medical provider. MHIP is 
used to treat depressive disorders, anxiety disorders or 
PTSD, and to prevent a relapse in symptoms.  

Multidimensional Family Therapy (MDFT) 
Children (ages 12-15) 
TAY (ages 16-18) 
 
 

MDFT is a family-based treatment and substance-abuse 
prevention program to help adolescents to reduce or 
eliminate substance abuse and behavior/conduct problems, 
and improve overall family functioning through multiple 
components, assessments, and interventions in several core 
areas of life. There are also two intermediate intervention 
goals for every family: 1) helping the adolescent achieve an 
interdependent attachment/bond to parents/family; and 2) 
helping the adolescent forge durable connections with pro-
social influences such as schools, peer groups, and 
recreational and religious institutions.  

Multisystemic Therapy (MST) 
Children (ages 12-15) 
TAY (ages 16-17) 
 
Unique Clients Served: 1,733 
Gender:  45% Male, 55% Female 
Ethnicity:  54% Hispanic, 13% African American,  
  2% Asian, 14% White, 8% Unreported, 
                   1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                   7% Multiple Races 

MST targets youth with criminal behavior, substance abuse 
and emotional disturbance, as well as juvenile probation 
youth. MST typically uses a home-based approach to reduce 
barriers that keep families from accessing services. 
Therapists concentrate on empowering parents and 
improving their effectiveness by identifying strengths and 
developing natural support systems (e.g. extended family, 
friends) and removing barriers (e.g. parental substance 
abuse, high stress).  

Parent-Child Interaction Therapy (PCIT) 
Young Children (2-7) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  950 
Gender:  62% Male, 38% Female 
Ethnicity:  45% Hispanic, 9% African American, 
  31% Unreported, 8% White, 
                   6% Multiple Races 

PCIT provides highly specified, step-by-step, live-coaching 
sessions with both the parent/ caregiver and the child. 
Parents learn skills through didactic sessions to help manage 
behavioral problems in their children. Using a transmitter 
and receiver system, the parent/caregiver is coached in 
specific skills as he or she interacts in specific play with the 
child. The emphasis is on changing negative parent/ 
caregiver-child patterns.  

Powerful Initiatives for Early Recovery (PIER) 
Children (ages 12-15) 
TAY (ages 16-25) 
 
 

PIER provides early treatment for youth who pose a clinical-
high-risk of developing severe mental illness, such as 
schizophrenia and psychosis. By detecting and treating 
patients at the onset of psychosis, the negative impact of 
psychosis may be mitigated. The PIER program assists youth 
and families to increase performance in all areas of life by 
building coping skills, reducing stress, and implementing 
problem-solving techniques. 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

66 | Page 

Early Intervention EBP Description 

Problem Solving Therapy (PST) 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served: 15 
Gender:  33% Male, 67% Female 
Ethnicity:  80% Hispanic, 13% White, 7% Unreported 
 

PST has been a primary strategy in IMPACT/ MHIP and 
PEARLS. While PST has generally focused on the treatment 
of depression, this strategy can be adapted to a wide range 
of problems and populations. PST is intended for those 
clients who are experiencing short-term challenges that may 
be temporarily impacting their ability to function normally. 
This intervention model is particularly designed for older 
adults who have diagnoses of dysthymia or mild depression 
who are experiencing early signs of mental illness.  

Program to Encourage Active Rewarding  
Lives for Seniors (PEARLS) 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  9 
Gender:  89% Female, 11% Male 
Ethnicity:  11% Hispanic, 33% Asian, 11% White, 
                   11% African American, 33% Unreported 

PEARLS is a community-based treatment program using 
methods of problem solving treatment (PST), social and 
physical activation and increased pleasant events to reduce 
depression in physically impaired and socially isolated older 
adults.  

 

Prolonged Exposure - 
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PE-PTSD) 
TAY (ages 18-25)  
Adults 
Older Adults 
Directly Operated Clinics Only 
 
Unique Clients Served:  12 
Gender:  25% Male, 75% Female 
Ethnicity:  33% Hispanic, 8% African American, 
  33% Unreported, 8% White,  
                   8% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                   4% Multiple Races 

PE-PTSD is an early intervention, cognitive behavioral 
treatment for individuals experiencing symptoms indicative 
of early signs of mental health complications due to 
experiencing one or more traumatic events. Individual 
therapy is designed to help clients process traumatic events 
and reduce their PTSD symptoms as well as depression, 
anger, and general anxiety.  
 
 

Reflective Parenting Program (RPP) 
Young Children (ages 2-5) 
Children (ages 6-12) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  16 
Gender:  44% Male, 56% Female 
Ethnicity:  44% Hispanic, 12% African American, 25% 

Unreported, 13% White, 6% Asian 

RPP consists of a 10-week workshop that includes 
instruction, discussions and exercises to involve parents in 
topics such as temperament, responding to children’s 
distress, separation, play, discipline, and anger as they relate 
to issues in their own families. The workshops help parents/ 
caregivers enhance their reflective functioning and build 
strong, healthy bonds with their children.  

Seeking Safety (SS) 
Children (13-15)  
TAY 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  1,429 
Gender:  33% Male, 67% Female 
Ethnicity:  51% Hispanic, 7% African American,  
  1% Asian, 10% White, 27% Unreported, 
                   1% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
                   2% Multiple Races 

SS is a present-focused therapy that helps people attain 
safety from trauma or PTSD and substance abuse. It consists 
of 25 topics that focus on the development of safe coping 
skills while utilizing a self-empowerment approach. The 
treatment is designed for flexible use and is conducted in 
group or individual format, in a variety of settings, and for 
culturally diverse populations.  

Stepped Care (SC) 
Children  
TAY 
Adults 
Older Adults 
 
Unique Clients Served:  12,203 
Gender:  43% Male, 57% Female 
Ethnicity:  42% Hispanic, 8% African American, 

This service delivery option intends to improve access to 
services for clients and families who are experiencing early 
signs and symptoms of mental illness, require engagement 
into the mental health system, and are not ready to 
participate in evidence-based early intervention services. 
Client level of care received is determined by the initial and 
ongoing assessment. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

67 | Page 

Early Intervention EBP Description 

 3% Asian, 8% White, 5% Multiple Races,  1% Native 
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 

Strengthening Families (SF) 
Children (ages 3-15) 
TAY (ages 16-18) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  4 
Gender:  25% Male, 75% Female 
Ethnicity:  25% Hispanic, 75% Unreported 

SF is a family-skills training intervention designed to enhance 
school success and reduce substance use and aggression 
among youth. Sessions provide instruction for parents on 
understanding the risk factors for substance use, enhancing 
parent-child bonding, monitoring compliance with parental 
guidelines, and imposing appropriate consequences, 
managing anger and family conflict, and fostering positive 
child involvement in family tasks. Children receive 
instruction on resisting peer influences. 

Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy  
(TF-CBT) Honoring Children, Mending the Circle 
Children (ages 3-8) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  3,432 
Gender:  40% Male, 60% Female 
Ethnicity:  46% Hispanic, 8% African American,  
  7% White, 32% Unreported, 1% Asian 
                   0.55% Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
                   5% Multiple Races 

This practice for Native American child trauma victims is 
based on TF-CBT. Treatment goals are to improve spiritual, 
mental, physical, emotional, and relational well-being. The 
EBP includes traditional aspects of healing with American 
Indians and Alaskan Natives from their world view.  

Triple P Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) 
Young Children (ages 0-5) 
Children (ages 6-15) 
TAY (age 16) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  356 
Gender:  67% Male, 33% Female 
Ethnicity:  42% Hispanic, 4% African American,  
 2% Asian, 11% White, 7% Multiple Races, 
                   35% Unreported 

Triple P is intended for the prevention and early intervention 
of social, emotional and behavioral problems in childhood, 
the prevention of child maltreatment, and the strengthening 
of parenting and parental confidence. Levels Two and Three, 
which focus on preventive mental health activities, are being 
implemented through community- based organizations. 
Levels Four and Five, which are early interventions parenting 
and teen modules, are being implemented by LACDMH 
directly operated and contract agencies.  

UCLA Ties Transition Model  
(UCLA TTM) 
Young Children (ages 0-5) 
Children (ages 6-12) 
 
Unique Clients Served:  7 
Gender:  43% Male, 57% Female 
Ethnicity:  43% Hispanic, 14% African American, 
  14% Unreported, 14% White, 14% Multiple Races 

UCLA TTM is a multi-tiered transitional and supportive 
intervention for adoptive parents of high-risk children. 
Families participate in three 3-hour psycho- educational 
groups. Additional service and support options are available 
to families, including older children, for up to one year (e.g., 
monthly support sessions, adoption- specific counseling, 
home visiting if child is less than age 3, interdisciplinary 
educational and pediatric consultation).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 33.  EBP Outcomes since 2009 through June 2021 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

68 | Page 

Early 
Intervention 

EBP 

Number of 
Treatment 

Cycles 

Percent 
Reported 

Completing 
the EBP 

Mental Health 

ART 3,432 43% 

-   10% Improvement in disruptive behaviors (as reported by parents and 
children) 
-   21% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors (as reported by 

parents and children) 
-   6% Improvement in disruptive behaviors (as reported by teachers) 
-   14% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors (as reported by  

teachers) 

ART 
Skillstreaming 

328 54% 
- 21% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 19% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

AF-CBT 1,699 52% -  58% Reduction in trauma related symptoms 

BFST 203 63% 
-  50% Reduction in behavioral problems 
-   66% Reduction in anxiety symptoms 
-   60% Reduction in attention problems 

CFOF 733 67% 
- 30% Improvement in disruptive behaviors 
- 20% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

CAPPS 207 42% - 60% Reduction in prodromal symptoms 

CPP 7,313 47% 
- 17% Improvement in mental health functioning following a 
 traumatic event 

CBITS 131 71% - No Data to Report  (n=12) 

CORS 4,163 60% - 18% Improvement in mental health functioning 

DBT 263 59% - 7% Improvement in emotional regulation 

DTQI 1,331 65% - 55% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 

FOCUS 714 70% - 50% Improvement in direct communication  

FC 23 44% - No Data to Report (n=1) 

FFT 1,721 66% - 31% Improvement in mental health functioning 

Group CBT 1,137 42% - 42% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 

IY 2,856 64% 
- 35% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 18% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

Ind. CBT 
 

Anxiety 
3,561 

Depression 
7,478 

Trauma 
1,057 

Anxiety 45% 
Depression 44% 

Trauma 47% 

- 63% Reduction in symptoms related to anxiety 
- 58% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 
- 61% Reduction in trauma related symptoms 

IPT 8,166 49% - 50% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 

LIFE 433 65% 
- 50% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 23% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

MAP 66,271 51% 

- 43% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 26% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 
- 55% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 
- 44% Reduction in symptoms related to anxiety 
- 50% Reduction in trauma related symptoms 

MHIP 
 

Anxiety 
2,670 

Depression 
6,475 

Trauma 302 

Anxiety 38% 
Depression 33% 

Trauma 29% 

- 58% Reduction in symptoms related to anxiety 
- 57% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 
- 24% Reduction in trauma related symptoms 

MPG 16 86% - No Data to Report (n=1) 

MDFT 77 89% - No Data to Report (n=6) 

MST 126 72% 
- No Data to Report (n=0)   
    Pediatric Symptom Checklist 35 is used for this practice 

NPP N/A N/A - No Data to Report (n=0) 

PCIT 4,666 40% 
- 63% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 37% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

PIER N/A N/A - No Data to Report 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

69 | Page 

Early 
Intervention 

EBP 

Number of 
Treatment 

Cycles 

Percent 
Reported 

Completing 
the EBP 

Mental Health 

PST 409 63% - 45% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 

PEARLS 168 49% - 45% Reduction in symptoms related to depression 

PE-PTSD 99 58% - No Data to Report (n=14) 

PATHS 747 33% 
- 33% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 19% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

RPP 250 72% 
- 15% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 6% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

SS 20,954 40% 
- 52% Reduction in trauma related symptoms (Adults) 
- 42% Reduction in trauma related symptoms (Children) 

SC 8,767 100% - 26% Improvement in mental health functioning 

SF 237 89% - No Data to Report (n=15) 

TF-CBT 25,721 54% - 51% Reduction in trauma related symptoms 

Triple P 6,423 60% 
- 50% Reduction in disruptive behaviors 
- 27% Reduction in the severity of problem behaviors 

UCLA TTM 196 50% - No Data to Report (N=11) 

 

◼ EARLY INTERVENTION 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

42,784 
Total  
Number Served1 

$188.6 million 
Total  
Gross Expenditures 

47,602 
Total  
Number Served 

$206.5 million 
Total  
Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 Three-Year Plan FYs 2021-24 

45,193 
Total  
Number to be Served2 

$226.2 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$667.4 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

Notes 
1 Prior Year Total Number Served: Number of unduplicated clients receiving Mode 15 Direct Services, not inclusive of community 
 outreach services or client support services 
2  FY 2021-22 Total Number Served:  Reflects average of two prior years  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

70 | Page 

B. PREVENTION 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☒  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

       The following prevention activities and services are geared toward addressing, through awareness, education, 
training, outreach and/or navigation, the risk factors associated with the onset of mental illness or emotional 
disturbances, including a focus on enhancing protective factors such as social connectedness and support. 

 
       The COVID-19 pandemic impacted service delivery of prevention services. Some programs were able to adapt by 

providing services virtually while others were not able to continue providing services under social distancing and 
other safety guidelines. As a result, this report reflects both decreased service delivery and outcomes data 
collection. 

 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ PREVENTION Data and Outcomes 

 
B1. Community Partnerships  

  LACDMH partners with several county and city agencies, such as the Los Angeles County 
 Departments of Parks and Recreation, Children and Family Services (DCFS), DPH, 
 Sheriff’s Department, and Public Library; and the Los Angeles Unified School District 
 (LAUSD) to deliver mental health prevention and promotion programming to populations 
 served by those agencies.  

 
 

▪ Home Visitation Program (HVP) 
The Home Visitation Program (HVP) includes three home visiting programs: Healthy 

Families America (HFA), Parents as Teachers (PAT), and Nurse Family Partnership (NFP) 

that target high-risk, low-income, pregnant women, or parents/caregivers with children 

between the ages of 0 and 5 years old. Screenings for mental health and protective factors 

were integrated into existing services in an effort to decrease risk factors and provide 

support and services. The skills of HVP home visitors were also enhanced through trainings 

so that they could recognize mental health risk factors and refer for mental health treatment 

when deemed necessary. 

 

The HVP uses the following as indicators to measure outcomes: social connections, 

parental/caregiver knowledge of child development, self-sufficiency, risky behaviors, birth 

outcomes, child development inclusive of kindergarten readiness, and parental and familial 

resiliency. 
 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

71 | Page 

Table 34. HVP client demographics (n = 911) 

▪  Primary Language  

 

▪  Ethnicity  

     Arabic 1      Hispanic or Latino as follows:  

     Cambodian 12      Central American 142 

     Cantonese 3      Mexican/Mexican American/Chicano 450 

     English 541      Puerto Rican 4 

     Spanish 334      South American 12 

     Tagalog 2          Other 70 

     Other 17     Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows:  

     Declined to answer 1          African 36 

▪  Age       Asian Indian/South Asian 8 

   0-15 16      Cambodian 14 

  16-25 419      Chinese 3 

   26-59 447      Eastern European 5 

   Declined to answer 29      European 5 

▪  Gender Assigned at Birth       Filipino 12 

   Male 20      Japanese 1 

   Female 588     Korean 2 

   Declined to answer 303       Middle Eastern 5 

▪  Current Gender Identity        Vietnamese 2 

     Male 20     Other 46 

     Female 588     More than one ethnicity 22 

     Transgender 1          Declined to answer 72 

     Genderqueer 2  ▪  Race  

     Questioning or unsure 0       American Indian 5 

     Another gender identity 6       Asian 52 

     Declined to answer 347       Black or African-American 92 

▪  Disability   
      Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific   
Islander 

3 

       No 666       White   

   Yes 208       More than one race 52402 

          Difficulty seeing 1       Other 277 

         Difficulty hearing 2       Declined to answer 28 

          Mental domain 110  ▪  Veteran Status  

         Physical/mobility domain 30       Yes 5 

         Chronic health condition 99       No 865 

         Other 20       Declined to answer 41 

  Declined to answer 37    

 
▪ Library Child, Family and Community Prevention Programs  

The Library initiative is intended to increase protective factors, thereby mitigating the impact 
of risk factors associated with serious psychiatric illness and negative outcomes. It is 
intended to serve primary target populations residing in underserved communities 
experiencing adversity: 1) young children and their parents/caregivers, 2) school-aged 
children, and 3) Transitional Age Youth (TAY). 
 
With the advent of COVID-19, the Library pivoted to address community need by adapting 
program service delivery pathways to mediums such as YouTube, Facebook, and WebEx. 
Specifically, the Library developed on-line programming as an alternative to in-person 
activities. Library staff scripted, researched, produced, and disseminated live and recorded 
programs. Staff reductions due to factors such as deployment, reassignment, retention 
issues, and leave impacted the program delivery time frame. Other challenges included 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

72 | Page 

community technology disparity and access to content for virtual programming. Challenges 
notwithstanding, the benefit of using virtual platforms to support program continuity during 
a time of pivot cannot be understated as it provided a necessary conduit for Library 
programs to be maintained and reach an audience that transcended the conventional 
Library patronage. 
 
The Library initiative was implemented through five programs delivered by funded staff with 
the intention of increasing protective factors (e.g. resilience, socio-emotional skill building 
and social connectedness). The specific programs were:   
 
1. School Readiness - Smarty Pants Storytime introduced parents and children to the 
variety of skills needed for school success and allowed practice of those skills in a virtual 
setting.   
 
2. Triple P Positive Parenting Program (Triple P). Librarians, certified in the Triple P model, 
engaged with participants, and provided parenting assistance. They offered information and 
educational materials on parenting and child development. Triple P librarians attended 
select School Readiness Programs, Parent Cafes, Afterschool Programs, and other funded 
programs that have parents in attendance.  
 
Triple P programming was generally delivered during “brief contacts” under 15 minutes in 
length. These consultations were informal conversations with parents or caregivers about 
their parenting concerns. For instance, a Library staff might have provided a Triple P 
consultation in response to a parent asking for strategies to help their child go to bed on 
time. Consultations were scheduled upon requests and provided virtually or by phone.  
 
3. Afterschool Program. Programming delivered afterschool activities in a virtual setting 
targeting youth and families. Programs varied and included self-expression through 
activities that encompassed art and exploration of STEM subjects. 
 
4. The Summer Discovery Programs are generally interactive and delivered by 
professionals. Programming introduced aspects of a culture to a family-focused audience. 
The programs featured a culture prevalent in the community or introduced aspects of a less 
dominant culture in the area. These programs were offered during the spring and summer 
seasons.   
 
5. Steam/MākMō programming supported exploration of science, technology, engineering, 
arts, and mathematics (STEAM) subjects through fun and interactive activities designed for 
children, teens, and adults. 
 
During FY 2020-21, the Library provided a total of 458 virtual programs. There were 103,755 
cumulative views across all programming.   
 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

73 | Page 

Table 35.  Library programs deliverables 

Library Program 
Number of 
programs 

Number of 
Views 

School Readiness (0-5) 225 76,543 

Triple P (parent/caregiver) 71 7,147 

Afterschool (youth) 70 10,945 

Summer Discovery Programs (youth and families) 42 3,122 

STEAM/MākMō (all ages) 50 5,728 

TOTAL 458 103,755 

 

 

In an effort to evaluate the impact of these programs on protective factors, participants were 

encouraged to complete one of two (depending on age) surveys that were available via link 

after the virtual program. The surveys were composed of two demographic questions (age 

and primary language) and 5 self-report items intended to assess perception of protective 

factors resulting from participation in Library Prevention Programming. Approximately 1% of 

virtual programs resulted in a participant following the link to a survey. Although this is a 

small convenience sample, respondents overwhelmingly agreed that the Library Prevention 

Programs provided helpful information, that it helped them feel like a part of the community, 

that it was a good use of their time, and that the Library was a safe place. The demographics 

reported by this sample are as follows: 
 

Table 36. Library client demographics (n = 1,184) 

▪  Primary Language  

     Arabic 5 

     Armenian 4 

     Cambodian 1 

     Chinese (Other/Unknown dialect) 32 

     English 986 

     Farsi 2 

     Korean 11 

     Russian 9 

     Spanish 76 

     Tagalog 21 

     Vietnamese 13 

     Other 13 

     Declined to answer 11 

▪  Age  

     0-15 201 

     16-25 48 

     26-59 617 

     60+ 291 

     Declined to answer 27 

 
▪ Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD) 

LAUSD conducts an assortment of mental health promotion interventions with students and 
their parents, including More Than Sad, Erika’s Lighthouse, FOCUS Resilience Curriculum, 
FOCUS on Parenting, and Triple P.  

 
▪ My Health LA Behavioral Health Expansion Program  

On October 1, 2014, DHS formally launched the My Health LA (MHLA) Program with the 
goal of increasing access to primary health care services for low income, uninsured 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

74 | Page 

residents of Los Angeles County. The Board of Supervisors approved numerous changes 
to the MHLA agreement with Community Partner Clinics (CPs) on November 20, 2018. A 
workgroup was formed to understand gaps in behavioral healthcare access and how to 
address those gaps. The group identified the need to better support CPs who provide mental 
health care services to MHLA participants in the primary care setting as a priority. 
 
It was determined that DMH would fund and support mental health prevention services 
and/or activities (MHPS) to reduce/manage risk factors associated with the onset of serious 
mental illness, as well as to cultivate and support protective factors of MHLA participants at 
CP clinics through a Prevention Program. 
 
MHLA participants who live in Los Angeles County, are age 26 or older, low-income and do 
not have and cannot get health insurance are eligible to receive one or more applicable and 
clinically appropriate MHPS. The MHPS delivered through MHLA are designed to 
reduce/manage risk factors, as well as to cultivate and support protective factors. 
 
These services included (but were not limited to): Initial Engagement and Mental Health 
Screening, Linkage to non-specialty and specialty mental health services as needed, 
psychoeducation, wellbeing workshops, individual support services such as social and 
emotional skill development, healthy coping skills, stress reduction, mitigating the impacts 
of trauma, and prevention skills for depression and anxiety. All services may be delivered in 
person, by phone or virtually. Further, these services were offered as individual or group 
sessions. 
 
In FY 2020-2021, 27,603 MHLA patients elected to enroll in these Mental Health Prevention 
Services (MHPS). 10,676 of them received two or more MHPS services. 
 
The Covid-19 Pandemic impacted program delivery and data collection for a variety of 
reasons, including the strain put on County staff and resources and each CPs’ workforce. 
As community-based health care clinics, CPs were front line in their respective communities 
for handling Covid-19 education and information dissemination, treatment, testing, and 
vaccinations. As such, staff were being pulled in multiple directions to help their community 
manage this crisis while also trying to implement this new MHPS Program.  
 
The measures selected to collect outcomes for this Prevention program were the Patient 
Health Questionnairre-9 (or PHQ-9) as a required measure and the Generalized Anxiety 
Disorder-7 or (GAD-7) as an optional, but recommended measure, respectively used to self-
report on depression and anxiety. However due to the aforementioned factors and others, 
that data is not available at this time. 
 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

75 | Page 

Table 37. MHPS client demographics (n = 27,603) 

▪  Primary Language  

 

▪  Ethnicity  

     English 1,900      Hispanic or Latino as follows:  

     Arabic 3           Other/Unknown Hispanic 25,835 

     Armenian 84      Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows:  

     Farsi 3      African 42 

     Korean 104      Asian Indian/South Asian 13 

     Chinese (Other/Unknown) 21           Cambodian 4 

     Russian 8           Chinese 19 

     Spanish 25,132           Filipino 270 

     Tagalog 34           Japanese 3 

     Vietnamese 1      Korean 65 

     Other 258               Vietnamese 1 

     Declined to answer/missing 55      Other Non-Hispanic 771 

▪  Age            Declined to answer 580 

     26-64 24,789 ▪  Race  

     65+* 2,814      Asian 620 

▪  Gender        Black or African-American 42 

     Male 9,614      Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander 274 

     Female 17,972      White 220 

     Other 17      Other** 25,867 

       Declined to answer/missing 580 

*DHS uses 65+ to indicate elderly whereas MHSA uses 60+. 

**Ethnicity and race were collected as one category by DHS. Therefore, participants identified as 

Hispanic or Latino were coded as “Other” race. 

 
  

▪ Prevent Homelessness Promote Health (PH2) 
Prevent Homelessness Promote Health (PH2) is a collaboration between Los Angeles 

County Department of Health Services: Housing for Health (HFH) and Department of Mental 

Health (DMH). It is a Countywide program that conducts field-based outreach services to 

assist previously homeless individuals and families who are experiencing untreated serious 

and persistent medical and mental illness avoid returning to homelessness due to lease 

violations. 

 

The DMH Prevent Homelessness Promote Health - PH2 employs an interdisciplinary, 

multicultural, and bilingual staff, utilizing a collaborative approach through coordination with 

Department of Health Services (DHS), Housing for Health (HFH) Intensive Case Managers 

(ICMS), Department of Mental Health (DMH), and community housing agencies. This 

program provides services within the 8 Service Areas of Los Angeles County. All initial 

outreach is provided in the community where the individual lives to promote access to care. 

The PH2 team conducts triage, coordination of services, and brief clinical interventions, as 

well as incorporating Motivation Interviewing (MI), Harm Reduction, Trauma Informed 

therapy, Solution Oriented therapy, Cognitive Behavior therapy, and Seeking Safety. 

Services are delivered primarily in person or can be delivered by phone or virtually. 

Individuals are referred with the following identified problems, among others: 

Aggressive/Violent Behavior, Destruction of Property, Failure to Pay Rent, Fire 

Safety/Health Hazard, Hoarding, Infestation of Unit, Legal Issues, Relationship Conflicts, 

and Substance Abuse. The PH2 team meets with individuals weekly, depending on acuity 

and need. The program may see participants from two weeks to 18 months, with an average 

of six months. 

The effectiveness of the program can be demonstrated by examining three sources of data 

in the Integrated Behavior Health Information System (IBHIS): 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

76 | Page 

• The first tool is the Service Request Log (SRL). The SRL documents the name of the 

individual being referred and other pertinent details of the referral. 

• The second tool is the PH2 Referral Log. This log contains referring party information 

(agency), reason for referral, service provider area, type of housing, eviction status, safety 

issues, referral type (physical or mental health related), type of housing voucher, gender 

identity, sexual orientation, disability and veteran status. 

• The third tool is the PH2 Activity Log. The purpose of this log is to capture what type of 

services were offered and/or provided that prevented the return to homelessness. The PH2 

Activity Log is completed for each corresponding billable note in IBHIS (direct or indirect). 

The categories include resources offered, linkages obtained, peak eviction risk, eviction 

prevented, eviction date (if applicable) and closure reason. 

Housing insecurity is addressed when an individual’s protective factors are increased and/or 

their risk factors are decreased. The PH2 Activity Log in IBHIS tracks Peak Eviction Risk 

Level during the participant’s engagement in PH2. Meanwhile, linkage to resources like 

mental health services, medical care, In Home Supportive Services, and food and other 

basic necessities, indicate progressive housing stabilization. As such, the number of 

referrals with linkages and the number of evictions prevented serve as good proxies for 

reduced homelessness and the conditions caused or exacerbated by homelessness. 
 

Table 38. FY 2020-21 Referrals for Each Identified Problem Area 
Aggressive/Violent Behavior 80 

Destruction of Property 64 

Failure to Pay 56 

Fire Safety/Health Hazard 59 

HMIS Forms 33 

Hoarding 43 

Infestation 26 

Needs MHS Connection 73 

Other 139 

Relationship Conflicts 89 

Substance Abuse 108 

Unit Abandonment 3 

Note: Referrals can have multiple problem areas. 

 
Table 39. FY 2020-21 Linkages to Each Resource 

Mental Health Services 146  Transportation 5 
Psychoeducation (not client) 39 Pet Supplies 5 
Gift Cards 30 General Relief 5 
Housing and Supportive Services 27 In-Home Support Services 4 
Clothing 23 Countywide Benefits Enrollment Services 

Team 
3 

Personal Protective Equipment 23 
DHS 16 In-Home Care Giver 2 
Food Bank 15 Safety Supports (Emer. Res.- not client) 2 
Basic Necessities 14 Shelter Placement 2 
Shelf Stable Food 12 Board and Care 1 
Emergency Services 9 Adult FSP 1 
Primary Care Physician 8 Life Line 1 
Cal Cards 7 Other (ICMS, groceries, etc.) 206 

Note: Referrals can have multiple linkages. 
 

Of the unique referrals received by PH2,  

49% were successfully linked to mental 
health services. These linkages and other 
types of linkages address and reduce 
isolation, substance use disorders, 
hoarding, and aggressive/violent behavior, 
and improve communication, conflict 
resolution, financial resources, activities of 
daily living, and other solution-oriented 
activities. 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

77 | Page 

Table 40. FY 2020-21 Disposition of Closed Cases  
Count  
(n = 57) 

Declined Services 10 

Eviction Prevented 16 

Eviction not Prevented 5 

Unknown  26 

 
Table 41.  P3/UFF client demographics (n = 667) 

▪  Primary Language  

 

▪  Ethnicity  

     Armenian 1      Hispanic or Latino as follows:  

     American Sign Language 1      Central American 1 

     English 228 
     Mexican/Mexican 

American/Chicano 
15 

     Farsi 1      Puerto Rican 2 

     Spanish 17      South American 1 

     Tagalog 1          Other 12 

     Vietnamese 1     Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows:  

     Other 2          African 66 

     Declined to answer/Unknown 42      Cambodian 1 

▪  Sex Assigned at Birth       Filipino 1 

   Male 153     Korean 1 

   Female 126      Middle Eastern 1 

   Declined to answer/Unknown 15    Other 52 

▪  Current Gender Identity     More than one ethnicity 8 

     Male 151      Declined to answer/Unknown 133 

     Female 125 ▪  Race  

     Transgender 4      American Indian 4 

     Genderqueer/Non-Binary 2      Asian 3 

     Declined to answer/ask 15      Black or African-American 67 

▪  Sexual Orientation  
     Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific 
Islander 

2 

     Heterosexual or Straight 32      White  41 

     Another sexual orientation 1      More than one race 5 

     Declined to answer/ask 261      Other* 39 

▪  Disability        Declined to answer/Unknown 133 

No 13  ▪  Age  

Yes 62       16-25 4 

Difficulty seeing  3       26-59 182 

Mental domain 47       60+ 93 

Physical/mobility domain 20       Declined to answer/Unknown 15 

Chronic health condition 17  ▪  Veteran Status  

Other 2       Yes 5 

Declined to answer/ask 219       No 49 

        Declined to answer/ask 240 

*Ethnicity and race were collected as one category by IBHIS. Therefore, participants identified as 
Hispanic or Latino were coded as “Other” race. 

 
 

Among those for whom disposition was known at the 
end of their PH2 programming (31 participants), 
eviction was prevented for more than half (51.6%). 
About a third (32%) did not engage in services long 
enough to prevent eviction. 16% were evicted. 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

78 | Page 

▪ SEEDS Trauma-Informed Care for Infants & Toddlers 
In fall 2020, SEEDS launched its Trauma-Informed Care for Infants & Toddlers (“SEEDS 
Infants & Toddlers series”), a four-part trauma-informed, attachment-based virtual training 
series designed for professionals who work with young children and families. As of the 
writing of this report, SEEDS has completed seven cohorts of this training series with 188 
total participants.  
 
SEEDS Infants & Toddlers series explores how to co-regulate with and promote self-
regulation in infants and toddlers, including those who have experienced trauma and other 
early adversities. Self-regulation skills in young children have been found to be highly 
predictive of positive educational, social, and mental health outcomes throughout childhood, 
adolescence, and later in adult life. 
 
In total, the series provides 6 hours of specialized training in trauma-informed care for young 
children (ages birth to 3 years old), including: 

•Part 1: Learning how to recognize the types of cues that infants and toddlers 
demonstrate, 
•Part 2: Practicing how to understand (or seek to understand) the meaning of these cues 
in light of what we know about early childhood trauma and early adversities, 
•Part 3: Preparing to respond to infant and toddler cues in hot moments (that is, when 
the child and/or the adult is distressed, upset, or dysregulated), 
•Part 4: Preparing to respond to infant and toddler cues in cool moments (that is, when 
the child and the adult are comfortable, calm, and able to play, engage, or have fun 
together). 

 
Participants completed a 10-item measure (with possible scores ranging for 0 to 10) to 
assess their knowledge of concepts and skills covered in SEEDS Infants & Toddlers series.  
At the pre-training assessment, participants had a mean score of 6.17, whereas at the post-
training assessment they had a mean score of 7.49, indicating a mean improvement of 1.32. 
 
Table 42. FY 2020-21 Outcomes - SEEDS 

Knowledge/Skill Domain Pre-
training % 
correct 

Post-
training % 
correct 

Change 
from pre- 
to post- 

1. Trauma-informed approach/using observation with infants 77% 89% +12% 

2. Co-regulating using sensory inputs 27% 37% +10% 

3. Self-regulation in infants and toddlers 62% 71% +09% 

4. Trauma-informed approach/using observation with toddlers 64% 83% +19% 

5. Trauma-informed approach/What types of questions to ask 
ourselves before intervening 

80% 71% -09% 

6. Goal for adult caregivers is not to prevent the child’s 
dysregulation, but to attempt co-regulation to strengthen 
relationship 

53% 66% +13% 

7. Relationships as crucial for infants’ and toddlers’ development 77% 80% +03% 

8. Responding in hot moments 70% 83% +13% 

9. Child-led play, skills of duplicate and elaborate 44% 71% +27% 

10. Hot and cool moments 62% 97% +35% 

 
 
 

▪ Veterans Peer Access Network (VPAN) 
Veteran Peer Access Network (VPAN) is a Prevention program which serves Veterans and 
Military family members in Los Angeles County. The goals are to: 1) increase protective 
factors such as financial stability, resiliency, socio-emotional skill building, and social 
connectedness, and 2) reduce risk factors such as suicidality, homelessness, and 
under/unemployment.  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

79 | Page 

 
Under VPAN, DMH and Southern California Grantmakers, as well as other Community-
based Organizations (CBOs), provide peer support and linkage to services, reducing mental 
health services utilization. The goal of prevention services provided through VPAN CBOs is 
to implement a set of strategies that will augment existing programs. In addition, new 
preventative and trauma-informed community supports are provided to Veterans and 
Veteran family members in order to promote protective factors and diminish risk factors for 
developing a potentially serious mental illness.  
 
Data collected is based on services provided to clients by the veteran service navigators 
such as benefits establishment, employment and education assistance and referrals/linkage 
to mental health services. Out of 748 clients referred to SCG's contract CBO network for the 
VPAN, 1432 requests for services were made.  
 
Table 43. FY 2020-21 VPAN CBO Network Requested Services 

Requested Service Count 

Total requests 1,432 

Housing & Shelter 358 

Benefits Navigation 266 

Employment 235 

Income Support 142 

Individual & Family 
Support 

142 

Legal 100 

Mental/Behavioral Health 36 

Food Assistance 29 

Physical Health 28 

Transportation 28 

Education 24 

Clothing & Household 
Goods 

18 

Substance Use 10 

Utilities 5 

Money Management 4 

Social Enrichment 4 

Wellness 2 

Entrepreneurship 1 

 
In addition, under the VPAN Veteran System Navigators program, the Department of Military 
and Veterans Affairs (DMVA) provides benefits establishment, reducing potential economic 
negative outcomes like homelessness, food insecurity, and associated stress. Prevention 
programing serves to increase protective factors which include resilience, socio-emotional 
skill building in Veterans and Veteran family members, and social connectedness through 
specialty programming. Veterans and Veteran family members will have access to services 
delivered by Veteran System Navigators staff who have been trained in the impacts of 
Question, Persuade, and Refer (QPR) and Mental Health First Aid. 
 
DMVA served a total of 101 clients for FY 2020-21, of which, 93.1% (94) requested 
assistance with compensation benefits. 92.1% (93) clients claimed mental disability. 
Additionally, 92.1% (93) were referred for PTSD/anxiety/depression. 
 
The VPAN Support Line is dedicated to assisting active-duty military personnel, veterans, 
reservists, and guard members. The peers who staff the VPAN Support Line understand 
the unique sacrifices and emotional needs that come with military life. The VPAN Support 
Line offers Emotional First Aid related to stressors, referrals to community services, real-



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

80 | Page 

time psychoeducation on mental health services, and direct access to field-based teams for 
additional support and follow-up.  
 
The Veteran Support Line received a total 4,071 calls, of which 94 were assigned to VPAN 
field staff for follow-up. Due to the nature of the support line, a referral is generated and 
demographics are collected only when the caller is requesting services and/or benefits. 

 
Table 44. FY 2020-21 Demographics – VPAN (N=2,009) 

▪  Primary Language  

 

▪  Ethnicity  

     English 213      Hispanic or Latino as follows:  

     Spanish 4      Mexican/Mexican-American/Chicano 171 

     ASL 1           Other Hispanic 38 

     Declined to answer/missing 1,791      Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows:  

▪  Age       African 18 

     0-15 3      Asian Indian/South Asian 1 

     16-25 58      Japanese  1 

     26-59 661      Other Non-Hispanic 354 

     60+ 371      Declined to answer/missing 1,426 

     Declined to Answer/missing 916 ▪  Race  

▪  Current Gender Identity       American Indian or Alaska Native 7 

     Male 866      Asian 34 

     Female 195      Black or African-American 199 

     Declined to answer/missing 948      Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander 7 

▪  Disability       White 249 

     No 261      Other 129 

     Yes 303      More than one race 1 

          Difficulty Hearing 1      Declined to answer/missing 1,383 

          Mental Disability 93 ▪  Veteran  

          Physical/Mobility Disability 6      No 49 

     Declined to Answer/missing 1,445  Yes 744 

   Declined to Answer/missing 1,216 

 
▪ Youth Diversion and Development (YDD) 

The YDD program aims to improve outcomes for youth by redirecting law enforcement 
contact and addressing underlying needs through systems of care that prioritize equity, 
advance wellbeing, support accountability, and promote public safety. The YDD program 
primarily aims to decrease negative outcomes related to incarceration, school failure, 
unemployment, substance use, social isolation, and family conflict.  The YDD program may 
also decrease the risk of suicide, prolonged suffering, homelessness and removal from their 
homes.   

 
Youth diversion programs can improve outcomes for youth otherwise at risk for long‐term 
involvement in the justice system and the associated damage to their health and wellbeing. 
Studies show youth who participate in pre-arrest diversion programs are 2.5 times less likely 
to re-offend than similar youth who were not diverted. Likewise, youth who participate in 
post-arrest diversion programs are 1.5 times less likely to re-offend. 

 
YDD serves children and youth 18 years of age and younger. Law enforcement determine 
whether a child/youth is eligible for diversion services using a universal screening tool. 
Children/youth enrolled in the YDD program receive intensive case management services. 
Services this past year were all virtual or over the phone across YDD provider sites. 
Recently, some providers have made plans for limited, socially distanced in-person services. 
However, most youth services remain virtual/over the phone. 
 
In FY 2020-21, 259 youth were served through YDD. Those who completed the program 
indicated improvement in several protective factors. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

81 | Page 

 
Table 45. FY 2020-21 Outcomes - YDD 

Protective factor & Question Enrollment 
(n = 186) 

Completion 
(n = 126) 

Emotional Competence 

“When feeling anxious, angry, or depressed, I am able to take positive 
steps to help myself feel better.” 

67% 91% 

Ability to resolve conflicts 
“I’m pretty good at figuring out how to resolve disagreements.” 

68% 89% 

School Engagement 
“I feel engaged and supported in school.” 

70% 80% 

  
Table 46. FY 2020-21 Demographics – YDD 

 
Count 

(n = 259) 

 

 
Count 

(n = 259) 

▪  Primary Language  ▪  Ethnicity  

     English 149      Hispanic or Latino as follows:  

     Spanish 39      Central American 7 

     Declined to answer/Missing 71      Mexican/Mexican-American/Chicano 104 

▪  Age       South American 7 

     0-15 130           Other Hispanic 4 

     16-25 127      Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows:  

     Declined to Answer/Missing 2      African 19 

▪  Current Gender Identity       European 1 

     Male 142      Filipino  2 

     Female 59      Middle Eastern 2 

     Transgender 1           Other Non-Hispanic 26 

     Genderqueer/Non-Binary 1      Declined to answer/Missing 87 

     Declined to answer/Missing 56 ▪  Race  

▪  Sex Assigned at Birth       American Indian or Alaska Native 1 

     Male 142      Asian 2 

     Female 59      Black or African-American   56 

     Declined to Answer/Missing 58      White 144 

▪  Sexual Orientation       Other 1 

     Gay or Lesbian 4      More than one race 8 

     Heterosexual or Straight 160      Declined to answer 47 

     Bisexual 6 ▪  Disability  

     Questioning or Unsure 2      No 158 

     Declined to Answer/Missing 87      Yes 15 

▪  Veteran            Difficulty Seeing 1 

     No 259           Another Communication Disability 2 

 

          Mental Disability 5 

          Physical/Mobility Disability  1 

          Another Type of Disability 6 

     Declined to Answer/Missing 86 

 
B2. Prevention: Community Outreach 
 LACDMH has expanded its PEI Community Outreach Services (COS) in order to achieve the 

following: 
- Increase the number of individuals receiving prevention and early intervention services; 
- Outreach to underserved communities through culturally appropriate mental health 

promotion and education services; and 
- Provide mental health education and reduce stigma on mental health issues in our 

communities. 
 
 COS affords an avenue for the LACDMH PEI network to provide services such as education 

and information to individuals who are not formal clients of the mental health system and 
providers who are outside the county mental health system. Often individuals, as well as their 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

82 | Page 

parents, family, caregivers, and other support system, who need or would benefit from 
prevention and early intervention mental health services do not seek traditional clinic-based 
services due to a multitude of factors. Community outreach is a key component in initiating and 
providing effective mental health supportive services to these individuals. Most programs are 
not evidence-based practices, but nonetheless have significant data and research indicating the 
effectiveness of their services.   

    
 Table 47.  COS Prevention services provided 

Agencies 

Alcott Center Los Angeles Unified School District 

Alma Family Services One in Long Beach 

Child & Family Center Pacific Asian Counseling Service 

Child & Family Guidance Center Pacific Clinics 

Childnet Youth & Family Services Para Los Ninos 

Childrens Center of the Antelope Valley Penny Lane Centers 

Children’s Hospital of LA Project Return Peer Support Network 

Children’s Institute San Fernando Valley Community MH 

Community Family Guidance Center San Gabriel Childrens Center 

Counseling4Kids Shields for Families 

Didi Hirsch Social Model Recovery Systems 

Dignity Health Special Services for Groups 

El Centro de Amistad St Anne’s Maternity Home 

Emotional Health Association SHARE St Francis Medical Center 

Enki Health & Research Systems St. Joseph Center 

Exceptional Childrens Foundation Star View Behavioral Health 

Foothill Family Services Stirling Academy 

Hamburger Home Tarzana Treatment Centers 

Hathaway Sycamores Child & Family Telecare 

Healthright 360 Tessie Cleveland Comm Service 

Helpline Youth Counseling The Help Group 

Heritage Clinic & CAPS The Village Family Services 

Hillsides The Whole Child 

Hillview Mental Health Center Tobinworld 

IMCES Uplift Family Services 

Jewish Family Services of LA Victor Treatment Centers 

Korean American Family Service Center VIP Community MH Center 

 
 

 

Table 48.  Programs approved for billing PEI COS 

Prevention Program Description 

Active Parenting 
Parents of children (3-17)  

 

Active Parenting provides evidence-based, video-based, group parenting classes that 
cover topics including parenting skills training, step-parenting, managing divorce, 
school success, and character education. Active Parenting classes can be delivered in 
1, 3, 4, or 6 group sessions. Curriculum addresses: child development, appropriate 
discipline, communication skills, decision-making and prevention of risk behaviors.  

Arise  
Children (4-15) 
TAY (16-25) 
Adult (26-59) 
Older Adult (60-64)  

Arise provides evidence-based life skills group based curricula and staff training 
programs.  Programs are geared towards at-risk youth; however, the program is 
adaptable for adults as well.  Program content focuses on violence reduction, goal 
setting, anger management, drug and alcohol avoidance and other life management 
skills.  

Asian American Family 
Enrichment Network (AAFEN)  
Parents of Children (12-15) 
TAY (16-18)  
 
 

AAFEN is for Asian immigrant parents and/or primary caregivers with inadequate 
parenting skills to effectively discipline and nurture their teenage children. Because 
of the cultural and linguistic barriers experienced by many of these immigrant 
parents, they often feel overwhelmed and incompetent in terms of effectively 
managing their family lives. Moreover, their children experience reduced family 
attachment and social functioning, as well as increased family conflict. The children 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

83 | Page 

Prevention Program Description 

are thus at high risk for emotional and behavioral problems. Their immigrant parents 
and/or primary caregivers are at high risk for depressive disorders and for being 
reported to DCFS to corporal punishment. 

Childhelp Speak Up and Be 
Safe 
Children (3-15) 
TAY (16-19)  

 
 

This is a child-focused, school-based curriculum designed to build safety skills within 
the child while addressing today’s societal risks, such as bullying and Internet safety. 
The program helps children and teens learn the skills to prevent or interrupt cycles of 
neglect, bullying, and child abuse. The program focuses on enhancing the child’s 
overall sense of confidence regarding safety and promotes respect for self and peers 
that can be applied to general as well as potentially harmful situations. In addition to 
increasing children’s ability to recognize unsafe situations or abusive behaviors and 
building resistance skills, lessons focus on helping children build a responsive safety 
network with peers and adults that the child identifies as safe.  

Coping with Stress 
Child (13-15) 
TAY (16-18) 

 

This course consists of 15 one-hour sessions, which can be offered at a pace of 2 to 4 
times per week, depending on site capabilities and needs.  The first few sessions 
provide an overview of depression, its relationship to stressful situations, and an 
introduction to other group members.  Subsequent sessions focus on cognitive-
restructuring skills and techniques for modifying irrational or negative self-
statements and thoughts which are hypothesized to contribute to the development 
and maintenance of depressive disorders. 

Erika’s Lighthouse: A Beacon 
of Hope for Adolescent 
Depression 
Children (12-14)  

 
 

Erika’s Lighthouse is an introductory depression awareness and mental health 
empowerment program for early adolescence. The program educates school 
communities about teen depression, reduces the stigma associated with mental 
illness, and empowers teens to take charge of their mental health.  “The Real 
Teenagers Talking about Adolescent Depression: A Video Based Study Guide” is a 
depression and mental health school program designed for middle and high school 
classrooms and is listed in the Suicide Prevention Resource Center and the American 
Foundation for Suicide Prevention "Best Practices Registry for Suicide Prevention." 

Guiding Good Choices 
Parents of Children (9-14)  

 

 

Guiding Good Choices is a five-session parent involvement program that teaches 
parents of children ages 9-14 how to reduce the risk that their children will develop 
drug problems. The goal of the program is to prevent substance abuse among teens 
by teaching parents the skills they need to improve family communication and family 
bonding. Participants learn specific strategies to help their children avoid drug use 
and other adolescent problem behaviors and develop into healthy adults. They also 
learn to set clear family guidelines on drugs, as well as learn and practice skills to 
strengthen family bonds, help their children develop healthy behaviors, and increase 
children's involvement in the family.  

Healthy Ideas 
(Identifying Depression, 
Empowering Activities for 
Seniors) 
Older Adults (60+)  

 
 

This is a community program designed to detect and reduce the severity of depressive 
symptoms in older adults with chronic health conditions and functional limitations. 
The program incorporates four evidence-based components into the ongoing service 
delivery of care/case management or social service programs serving older 
individuals in the home environment over several months. Program components 
include screening and assessment of depressive symptoms, education about 
depression and self-care for clients and family caregivers, referral and linkage to 
health and mental health professionals, and behavioral activation.  

Incredible Years 
(Attentive Parenting) 
Parents 

The Attentive Parenting program is a 6-8 session group-based “universal” parenting 
program. It can be offered to ALL parents to promote their children’s emotional 
regulation, social competence, problem solving, reading, and school readiness.  

Life Skills Training (LST)  
Children (8-15) 
TAY (16-18)  

 
 

LST is a group-based substance abuse prevention program developed to reduce the 
risks of alcohol, tobacco, drug abuse, and violence by targeting the major social and 
psychological factors that promote the initiation of substance use and other risky 
behaviors. This comprehensive program utilizes collaborative learning strategies 
taught through lecture, discussion, coaching, and practice to enhance youth’s self-
esteem, self-confidence, decision-making ability and ability to resist peer and media 
pressure. LST provides adolescents and young teens with the confidence and skills 
necessary to successfully handle challenging situations.  

Love Notes 
Children (15) 
TAY (16-24) 

Love Notes consists of 13 lessons for high risk youth and TAY in which they discover, 
often for the first time, how to make wise choices about partners, sex, relationships, 
pregnancy, and more. Love Notes appeals to the aspirations and builds assets in 
disconnected youth.  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

84 | Page 

Prevention Program Description 

Making Parenting a Pleasure 
(MPAP)  
Parents of children (0-8)  

 
 

MPAP is a 13-week, group-based, parent training program designed for parent 
educators of parents and/or caregivers of children from birth to eight years of age. 
The program is designed to address the stress, isolation, and lack of adequate 
parenting information and social support that many parents experience. The 
curriculum focuses first on the need for self -care and personal empowerment and 
moves from an adult focus to a parent/child/family emphasis. Its content is adaptable 
and flexible to fit a wide range of parent education programs and has broad appeal 
to families from a wide spectrum of socioeconomic, educational, cultural and 
geographical background.  

More than Sad 
Parents/Teachers/Children (14-15) 
TAY (16-18) 

This is a curriculum for teens, parents and educators to teach how to recognize the 
signs of depression.  The program for teens teaches how to recognize signs of 
depression in themselves and others, challenges the stigma surrounding depression, 
and demystifies the treatment process.  The program for parents teaches parents 
how to recognize signs of depression and other mental health problems, initiate a 
conversation about mental health with their child, and get help.  The program for 
teachers teaches educators to recognize signs of mental health distress in students 
and refer them for help.  The program complies with the requirements for teacher 
education suicide prevention training in many states.  

Nurturing Parenting 
Parents of children (0-18)  

 

These are family-based programs utilized for the treatment and prevention of child 
abuse and neglect. Program sessions are offered in group-based and home-based 
formats ranging from 5-58 sessions. Programs are designed for parents with young 
children birth to 5 years old, school-aged children 5-11 years old, and teens 12-18 
years old. Developed from the known behaviors that contribute to the maltreatment 
of children, the goals of the curriculum are: (1) to teach age-appropriate expectations 
and neurological development of children; (2) to develop empathy and self-worth in 
parents and children; (3) to utilize nurturing, non-violent strategies and techniques in 
establishing family discipline; (4) to empower parents and children to utilize their 
personal power to make healthy choices; and (5) to increase awareness of self and 
others in developing positive patterns of communication while establishing healthy, 
caring relationships. 

Peacebuilders 
Children (0-15)  

 

PeaceBuilders is a violence prevention curriculum and professional development 
program for grades pre-K to 12.  Its essence is a common language - six principles, 
taught, modeled and practiced. 

Prevention of Depression 
(PODS) - Coping with Stress 
(2nd Generation)  
Child (13-15) 
TAY (16-18) 

This is the second-generation version of the Coping with Stress program.  PODS is an 
eight-session curriculum developed for the prevention of unipolar depression in 
adolescents with increased risk. It is not meant to be a treatment for active episodes 
of depression.  It is designed to be offered either in a healthcare setting or in schools. 

Positive Parenting Program 
(TRIPLE P) Levels 2 and 3  
Parents/Caregivers of Children  
(0-12) 
 
 
 

Triple P is intended for the prevention of social, emotional, and behavioral problems 
in childhood, the prevention of child maltreatment, and the strengthening of 
parenting and parental confidence.  Selected Triple P (Levels 2 and 3) is a “light touch” 
parenting information presentation to a large group of parents (20 to 200) who are 
generally coping well but have one or two concerns. There are three seminar topics 
with each taking around 60 minutes to present, plus 30 minutes for question time.  

Project Fatherhood 
Male Parents/Caregivers  
of Children (0-15) 
TAY (16-18) 

  
 

Project Fatherhood program provides comprehensive parenting skills to men in 
caregiving roles using an innovative support group model.  The program was 
developed to give urban, culturally diverse caregivers an opportunity to connect with 
their children and play a meaningful role in their lives.  The program continues to be 
recognized nationally for effectively addressing the problem of absentee fathers.  
Through therapy, support, parenting education and other services, fathers learn to 
be more loving, responsible parents and active participants in their children’s lives.  

Psychological First Aid (PFA)  
All Ages  

 

 

PFA is an evidence-informed approach for assisting children, adolescents, adults, and 
families in the aftermath of disaster and terrorism. The practice is a partnership 
between the National Child Traumatic Stress Network and the National Center for 
PTSD. The Core Actions of PFA include Contact and Engagement; Safety and Comfort; 
Stabilization; Information Gathering: Current Needs and Concerns; Practical 
Assistance; Connection with Social Supports; Information on Coping; and Linkage with 
Collaborative Services.  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

85 | Page 

Prevention Program Description 

School, Community and Law 
Enforcement (SCALE) 
Children (12-15) 
TAY (16-18)  

SCALE Program is for Asian immigrant youths who are at high risk for, or are exhibiting 
the beginning signs of, delinquent behavioral problems. These behavioral problems 
include, but are not limited to, school truancy, academic failure, association with gang 
members, and early stages of law enforcement encounter and detention (such as by 
police or probation officers).  

Second Step 
Children (4-14)  

  
 
 

A classroom-based program, this practice teaches socio-emotional skills aimed at 
reducing impulsive and aggressive behavior while increasing social competence. The 
program builds on cognitive behavioral intervention models integrated with social 
learning theory, empathy research, and social information-processing theories.  The 
program consists of in- school curricula, parent training, and skill development.  
Second Step teaches children to identify and understand their own and others' 
emotions, reduce impulsiveness and choose positive goals, and manage their 
emotional reactions and decision-making process when emotionally aroused in 
developmentally and age-appropriate ways.  

Shifting Boundaries 
Children (10-15) 

 

Shifting Boundaries is a six session, group based, dating violence prevention program 
that focuses on peer sexual harassment. The intervention consists of classroom-
based curricula designed to reduce the incidence and prevalence of dating violence 
and sexual harassment among middle school students. The program aims to: Increase 
knowledge and awareness of sexual abuse and harassment; Promote pro-social 
attitudes and a negative view of dating violence and sexual harassment; Promote 
nonviolent behavioral intentions in bystanders; Reduce the occurrence of dating and 
peer violence; and Reduce the occurrence of sexual harassment. 

Teaching Kids to Cope 
Children (15) 
TAY (16-22)  

 
 

This 10-session group intervention is designed to reduce depression and stress by 
enhancing coping skills. Program components include group discussions, interactive 
scenes, videos, group projects, and homework assignments. Group discussions 
include a variety of topics, such as family life situations, typical teen stressors, self-
perception issues, and interactions with others.  

Why Try 
Children (7-15) 
TAY (16-18)  
 
 

Why Try is a resilience education curriculum designed for dropout prevention, 
violence prevention, truancy reduction, and increased academic success. It is 
intended to serve low income, minority students at risk of school failure, dropping 
out of school, substance use/abuse, and/or juvenile justice involvement. Why Try 
includes solution-focused brief therapy, social and emotional intelligence, and 
multisensory learning.  

 
  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

86 | Page 

COS Outcomes 
In previous years, LACDMH in collaboration with RAND, developed questionnaires that asked 
individuals to report on general wellness and risk and protective factors for our COS programs.  
For each different population (adult, parent, youth), surveys were administered to clients at the 
start of a prevention activity and follow-up surveys were administered to clients after they 
participated in the prevention activity. 
 

In FY 2020-21, LACDMH suspended the use of the instrument created by the RAND corporation 
to collect outcomes for COS programs. LACDMH recently made changes to the data collection 
protocol for Prevention programs funded under MHSA Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI). 
These changes were proposed after consulting with subject matter experts based on input from 
our stakeholders to reduce the burden of collecting additional measures while still ensuring data 
satisfies PEI evaluation regulations set forth by the Mental Health Oversight and Accountability 
Commission (MHSOAC). It is anticipated that these outcomes and demographics will be 
available starting in FY 2021-22. 

 

◼ PREVENTION 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$37.4 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$74.3 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$50.5 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$140.2 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

 

  

Currently, unique client count is only for 
MHSA programs with Mode 15 Direct Services 
(Prevention).   
 
All dollar amounts in this table are reported at 
gross costs and does not include program 
administration costs. 
 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

87 | Page 

C. STIGMA AND DISCRIMINATION REDUCTION (SDR) 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

The purpose of SDR is to reduce and eliminate barriers that prevent people from utilizing mental health services by 
prioritizing information and knowledge on early signs and symptoms of mental illness through client-focused, 
family support and education and community advocacy strategies.  Core strategies have been identified to 
reduce stigma and discrimination, increase access to mental health services, and reduce the need for more 
intensive mental health services in the future.  The services include anti-stigma education specifically targeting 
underrepresented communities through outreach utilizing culturally sensitive and effective tools; educating and 
supporting mental health providers; connecting and linking resources to schools, families, and community 
agencies; and client and family education and empowerment.  

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ STIGMA AND DISCRIMINATION REDUCTION Data and Outcomes 

 
C1.  Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) 
 MHFA is an interactive 8-hour evidence based training that provides knowledge about the signs 

and symptoms of mental illness, safe de-escalation of crisis situations and timely referral to 
mental health services. The use of role-playing and other interactive activities enhances the 
participants’ understanding and skill set to assess, intervene and provide initial help pending 
referral/linkage to a mental health professional. Participants are also provided information about 
local mental health resources that include treatment, self-help and other important social 
supports.  

 
C2. Mental Health Promoters/Promotores 
 Many underserved communities have been shown to have high rates of mental health related 

stigma as well as cultural/linguistic barriers that limit their access to mental health services and 
mental health resources available. Often these barriers limit/prevent the utilization of mental 
health services until symptoms are chronic and severe.  Underserved communities, such as the 
API and Latino communities in Los Angeles County show high levels of ongoing disparities in 
their access and use of public mental health services.  The Promotores program represents a 
promising approach to mental illness & disease prevention as it increases knowledge about 
mental illness, increases awareness about available mental health services and promotes early 
use of mental health services. The criteria will be to decrease mental health and stigma. 

 
C3. WhyWeRise Mental Health Campaign 

WhyWeRise is a social marketing campaign conducted by The Los Angeles County Department 

of Mental Health (LACDMH) that is focused on prevention of, and early intervention for, mental 

health challenges among county residents. It is intended to promote community engagement 

with mental health issues along a continuum from self-care to professional treatment services, 

reduce barriers to care, and increase awareness of how to seek mental health care. While 

remaining committed to this overarching goal, the campaign has shifted its emphasis over the 

years since its inception (in May of 2018), responding to shifting community needs and 

refreshing content to maintain and expand community interest. The primary aim of the fall 2020 

campaign was to continue to raise awareness of resources available to support mental health 

in Los Angeles County, perceptions of support, and feelings of hope and connection. 
 

The spring 2020 WeRise was wholly conducted online due to COVID-19, but in 2021 WeRise 

used a hybrid model. Online events were a strong focus, together with “pop-up” COVID-safe in-

person events in communities throughout the county, Art Rise outdoor art installations in five 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

88 | Page 

Los Angeles neighborhoods, Love Letters in Light that projected poetry from residents on the 

outside of ten public libraries, and Rising with Chalk events where artists and youth created 

sidewalk art at 55 Los Angeles parks. 
 

To gain insight into the fall 2020 WhyWeRise campaign’s reach and impact and that of the 2021 

WeRise effort, LACDMH and the California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA) 

commissioned the RAND Corporation to conduct an evaluation. RAND previously evaluated the 

2018 and 2019 WhyWeRise campaigns, as well as the COVID-19 campaign (Collins et al., 

2018, 2019, 2021). The current report provides an evaluation of fall 2020 WhyWeRise outdoor 

ads (e.g., billboards, bus shelters), television and radio outreach, and an evaluation of the online 

portion of the 2021 WeRise events. RAND researchers conducted online surveys of attendees 

at the WeRise online events and (separately) a representative sample of Los Angeles County 

adults; both surveys were limited to those ages 18 and older. The WeRise survey looks at the 

experiences of those who attended the online WeRise events, while the WhyWeRise 

countywide survey allows for comparison of those who were exposed to the WhyWeRise 

campaign to those who were not exposed to the campaign to assess possible effects of 

exposure. 
 

Event-attendee survey results indicated that the pivot to include online WeRise events in the 

face of COVID-19 and associated restrictions on social contact was successful. Attendees felt 

empowered by the events, connected to community, and hopeful about the future. Nine in ten 

of those attending most of the events said afterward that they know how to find mental health 

information or resources if needed and felt empowered to care for their own wellbeing. 
 

Countywide survey results indicated that the WhyWeRise campaign reached an impressive 

percentage of Los Angeles County residents: About half of adults reported exposure to the 

campaign. The campaign was effective in reaching all major racial/ethnic groups in the county, 

particularly Spanish-preferring Hispanic residents and those with lower income and education. 

County residents were exposed to the campaign via the two major forms of outreach: broadcast 

media (television and radio ads) and outdoor ads. The majority of individuals reached by the 

campaign found it beneficial, in that it made them feel their mental health was important and 

provided new information on how to get mental health help. Los Angeles County residents 

exposed to the campaign were nearly twice as likely to be aware of the information and 

resources offered by LACDMH and were significantly more likely to say the agency is there for 

them if they need help. The campaign was also effective in driving those exposed to the 

LACDMH website and help line, as intended, though overall rates of use for both resources are 

low.  
 

In summary, there is evidence that both elements of the LACDMH WhyWeRise campaign 
successfully reached a racially, culturally, and economically diverse group of Los Angeles 
County residents, fostered a feeling of support among those exposed, boosted awareness of 
county mental health resources, and conveyed how to seek help with mental health issues. 
 

 
C4.  SDR Outcomes  
 SDR trainings are intended to decrease stigma and discrimination against people who have a 

mental illness and increase knowledge about the topic of mental health. To determine the 
effectiveness of its SDR trainings, Los Angeles County uses a post-training survey that 
assesses the impact of trainings on participants’ knowledge about stigma towards persons with 
mental illness as well as their attitudes and behavior toward persons with mental illness. In 
addition, the survey measures training quality and demographics. 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

89 | Page 

 The following write-up discusses the results of data analyses performed on the 109 SDR 
surveys administered to assess SDR trainings that were conducted during the FY 2020-21, from 
July 2020 through June 2021. The number of surveys collected in FY20-21 (109) was far less 
than in previous years (e.g.; FY19-20 5,968). The decrease is primarily due to LA County not 
having online Spanish SDR survey when SDR programs unexpectedly changed from in-person 
to online programing in March 2020, following the global pandemic of Covid-19, as most 
participants at SDR trainings are monolingual Spanish speakers. The County developed a 
Spanish language version of the online survey in March 2021. 

 
  
  

  Figure 16.  Survey languages (n = 109) 

 

The following chart assesses the impact of SDR trainings on participants’ willingness to engage 
in behaviors that support persons with mental illness. Item ratings are: Strongly Agree, Agree, 
Neither Agree nor Disagree, Disagree, and Strongly Disagree. Agreeing suggests the 
participant believes the training positively influenced their future behavior (e.g. willingness to 
advocate for a person who has a mental illness). Results suggest participants believed the 
trainings: 1) decreased the likelihood of discriminating against persons with mental illness; 2) 
increased the likelihood of acting in support of individuals who have a mental illness; and 3) and 
greatly increased the likelihood of seeking support for themselves in times of need:  

- Item 5: A high of 94% agreeing (46%) or strongly agreeing (48%) the training increased 
willingness to “actively and compassionately listen to someone in distress” 

- Item 6: A high of 94% agreeing (45%) or strongly agreeing (49%) the training increased 
willingness to “seek support from a mental health professional if I thought I needed it” 

- Item 7: A high of 94% agreeing (45%) or strongly agreeing (49%) the training increased 
willingness to “talk to a friend or a family member if I thought I was experiencing emotional 
distress” 

 

English
(88%)

Spanish
(12%)



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

90 | Page 

Figure 17.  Changes in behavior

 
The following chart assesses change resulting from attending an SDR training in knowledge about 
mental illness and beliefs about mentally ill people.  Items may be rated: Strongly Agree, Agree, 
Neither Agree nor Disagree, Disagree, and Strongly Disagree. Disagreeing suggests the 
participant believes training had a positive influence (e.g., decreasing with the belief mentally ill 
people are dangerous) and agreeing suggests the opposite, for all but the third item (see previous 
figure in the Changes in Behavior ratings).  Survey results suggest trainings tended to positively 
influence participants’ knowledge about the topic of mental illness and beliefs about people who 
have a mental illness. 
 
Across six of the seven items, the majority of participants agreed the trainings had a positive 
influence, with the strongest positive influence on items rating beliefs about people who have a 
mental illness, as the data callouts below suggest:   
- Item 4: A high of 97% agreed (39%) or strongly agreed (58%) the training increased the 

likelihood of believing, “people with mental health conditions can contribute to society” 
- Item 7: A high of 97% agreed (38%) or strongly agreed (59%) the training increased the 

likelihood of believing, “anyone can have a mental health condition” 
 
  

  

16 
24 24 

33 39 37 
37 

47 

48 47 

42 

40 40 

41 

9 

9 9 5 
30 30 

3 

1 

- - -
- - 1 12 

7 6 6 
2 2 1 

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

1) live next door to
someone with a
mental health

condition

2) socialize with
someone who had a

mental health
condition

3) start working
closely on a job with
someone who had a

mental health
condition

4) take action to
prevent discrimination

against people with
mental health

conditions

5) actively and
compassionately

listen to someone in
distress

6) seek support from
a mental health
professional if I

thought I needed it

7) talk to a friend or a
family member if I

thought I was
experiencing

emotional distress

As a direct result of this training, I am more willing to...

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

91 | Page 

Figure 18.  Changes in knowledge and beliefs 

 

 
The next figure assesses the quality of SDR trainings.  Items may be rated: Strongly Agree, Agree, 
Neither Agree nor Disagree, Disagree, and Strongly Disagree. Agreeing suggests the participant 
had positive perceptions about the training quality and disagreeing suggests the opposite. 
Participants tended to have extremely positive perceptions of the trainings’ quality, particularly in 
their perceptions of presenters.  At least 96% of participants agreed or strongly agreed with every 
item, and a high of 98% agreed (39%) or strongly agreed (59%) with item 1, “The presenters 
demonstrated knowledge of the subject matter.” 

 
  

7
3

13

58

3
2

3819

7

52

39

9

5

24

14

6

6
13

22

2
1

4 4 6 2

2

5

2

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

1) people with mental
illness are different

compared to
everyone else in the
general population

2) people with mental
conditions are to
blame for their

problems

3) people with mental
illness can eventually

recover

4) people with mental
illness can contribute

to society

5) people with mental
illness should be felt

sorry for or pitied

6) people with mental
illness are dangerous

to others

7) anyone can have a
mental health

condition

As a direct result of this training, I am more likely to believe...

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

92 | Page 

 Figure 19.  Training Quality 

 
Table 49.  Survey demographics (n = 109) 

Sex at Birth 
Female - 85%  Declined to answer - 6% 
Male - 9%                                             

Gender Identity 
Female - 84%  Declined to answer - 5% 
Male - 10%                                            Genderqueer/Non-Binary 1% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual or straight - 78%         Declined to answer - 23% 
Gay or lesbian - 3%                             Bisexual – 2% 
Questioning or unsure of sexual orientation – 1% 
Queer – 4% 

Ethnicity 

Mexican/Mexican-American/Chicano - 46%   
Central American - 6%  Other - 20% 
European - 6%                                   Declined to answer - 15% 
More than one ethnicity - 7% 

Veteran Status 
Yes - 1%  Declined to answer - 3% 
No - 96% 

Age Groups 
Children (0-15) - 1%  Older Adult (60+) - 14% 
TAY (16-25) - 14% Declined to answer - 5% 
Adult (26-59) - 67%  

Disability 
Yes -4% Declined to answer - 8% 
No - 88% 

Primary Language 
English - 65% Other - 7% 
Spanish - 26% Declined to answer - 2% 

Race 
 

 

White - 22%  More than one race - 10% 
Black or African American - 8%  Other - 29% 
Asian - 5%  Declined to answer - 26% 

 

◼ STIGMA AND DISCRIMINATION REDUCTION  

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$2.4 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$3.2 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 Three-Year Plan FYs 2021-24 

$0.4 million 
Estimated Gross 

Expenditures 

$1.2 million 
Estimated Gross 

Expenditures 

 
 

50 51 48 

33 31 33 

2 3 3 

0%

25%

50%

75%

100%

1) The presenters demonstrated
knowledge of the subject matter.

2) The presenters were respectful of my
culture (i.e., race, ethnicity, gender,

religion, etc.).

3) The training was relevant to me and
other people of similar cultural

backgrounds and experiences (race,
ethnicity, gender, religion, etc.).

Please tell us how much you agree with the following statements:

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree

Currently, unique client count is only for 
MHSA programs with Mode 15 Direct 
Services (Prevention).   
 
All dollar amounts in this table are 
reported at gross costs and does not 
include program administration costs. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

93 | Page 

D. SUICIDE PREVENTION 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Priority Population 
☐  Children 

Ages 0 - 17 

☒  TAY 

Ages 16 - 24 

☒  Adult 

Ages 24 - 59 

☒  Older Adult 

Ages 60+ 

Program Description 

The Suicide Prevention Program provides suicide prevention services through multiple strategies by strengthening the 
capacity of existing community resources and creating new collaborative and comprehensive efforts at the 
individual, family, and community level. These services include: community outreach and education in the 
identification of the suicide risks and protective factors;  linking direct services and improving the quality of care 
to individuals contemplating, threatening, or attempting suicide;  access to evidence-based interventions trained 
suicide prevention hotlines; and building the infrastructure to further develop and enhance suicide prevention 
programs throughout the county across all age groups and cultures. 

 
In response to the needs in our community, the Los Angeles County Suicide Prevention Network, with support from 

LACDMH, has developed a strategic plan for suicide prevention to guide our efforts towards the goal of zero 
suicides in the County.  

 
Some of the key elements to suicide prevention are: 
- Focus on fostering prevention and well-being through connections, education, outreach, advocacy and stigma 

reduction;  
- Promote early help seeking where people know the warning signs and resources and are confident to intervene 

with someone they care about or get help for themselves; 
- Ensure a safe and compassionate response during and in response to crises by focusing on stabilization and 

linkages to services in the least restrictive setting; and 
- Implement a system of short- and long-term support for individuals, families, schools and communities following 

a suicide attempt or death. 

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ SUICIDE PREVENTION Data and Outcomes 

 
D1. Latina Youth Program (LYP) 
 The primary goals of LYP are to: 

- Promote prevention and early intervention for youth to decrease substance use and 
depressive symptoms, which are major risk factors for suicide. 

- Increase youth awareness of high-risk behaviors and provide immediate assessment and 
treatment services. 

- Increase access to services while decreasing barriers and stigma among youth in accepting 
mental health services. 

- Increase family awareness about high-risk behaviors and empower families through 
education about the benefits of prevention and early intervention and health promotion. 

- Enhance awareness and education among school staff and community members regarding 
substance abuse and depression. 

 

D2. 24/7 Crisis Hotline 
 During FY 2020-21, the 24/7 Suicide Prevention Crisis Line responded to a total of 129,328 

calls, chats, and texts originating from Los Angeles County, including Spanish-language crisis 
hotline services to 12,420 callers.  Korean and Vietnamese language services are also available 
on the crisis hotline.  Additionally, various outreach events were conducted in Los Angeles and 
Orange County.  

 
 
 
 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

94 | Page 

Table 50.  Call analysis              Table 51.  Total calls by language 

*Calls from Lifeline, 
  Lifeline Spanish, SPC 
  Local Line, Teenline,  
 and Disaster/Distress. 
 

 

Figure 20.  Call, chat and text volume by month 

 

Table 52.  Calls and chats by ethnicity Table 53.  Calls and chats by age groups 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 54.  Calls and chats by suicide risk assessment 

Suicide Risk Assessment Calls Chats 

History of psychiatric diagnosis 44% 0% 

Prior suicide attempt 24% 6% 

Substance abuse - current or prior 18% 0% 

Suicide survivor 7% 1% 

Access to gun 3% 2% 

 

Table 55.  Suicide risk status 

Suicide Risk Status 
Calls  

(n = 47,208) 
Chats 

(n = 3,951) 

Low Risk 51% 44% 

Low-Moderate Risk 23% 22% 

Moderate Risk 14% 16% 

High-Moderate Risk 3% 4% 

9,979

10,592 10,475

10,710

10,329
10,792

11,115

10,319

11,141

10,855

11,661

11,360

5,000

10,000

15,000

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Total calls 115,902 

Total chats 7,422 

Total texts 6,004 

Total* 129,328 

Korean 49 

Spanish 12,420 

English 100,205 

Total 103,433 

Ethnicity 
Call  

(n = 53,133) 
Chat/Text 
(n = 1,848) 

White 36% 50% 

Hispanic 36% 16% 

Black 12% 15% 

Asian 8% 5% 

Native American 1% 1% 

Pacific Islander 0% 0% 

Other Race 8% 0% 

Age Groups 
Call  

(n = 64,468) 
Chat  

(n = 8,964) 

5 to 14 6% 29% 

15 to 24 37% 44% 

25 to 34 26% 16% 

35 to 44 11% 5% 

45 to 54 8% 2% 

55 to 64 7% 1% 

65 to 74 4% 1% 

75 to 84 1% 0% 

85 and up 0% 0% 

Presence of the above factors significantly 
increases an individual's risk for suicide 
attempts; thus, all callers presenting with crisis 
or suicide-related issues are assessed for these 
risk factors.  Percentages are calculated based 
on the total number of calls in which suicide or 
crisis content was present. 
 

Percentages are calculated 
based on the total number of 
callers with reported risk 
levels. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

95 | Page 

Suicide Risk Status 
Calls  

(n = 47,208) 
Chats 

(n = 3,951) 

High Risk 8% 12% 

Attempt in Progress 1% 0% 

 
Risk assessment is based on the four core principles of suicide risk:  suicidal desire, suicidal 
capability, suicidal intent, and buffers/connectedness.  A caller's risk level is determined by the 
combination of core principles present.  For example, a caller who reports having only suicidal 
desire, as well as buffers, would be rated as low risk.  A caller with suicidal desire, capability, and 
intent present would be rated as high risk, regardless of the presence of buffers. 
 
Intervention Outcomes: Self-rated Intent  
Callers are asked to answer the question: "On a scale of 1 to 5, how likely are you to act upon 
your suicidal thoughts and feelings at this time, where 1 represents not likely and 5 represents 
extremely likely?"  Callers rate their intent both at the start and end of the call.  Note: This data is 
on calls for which information was reported. 
 
Figure 21.  Self-rated suicidal intent calls  

  
 Figure 22.  Self-rated suicidal intent chats 
 

                
 

 

1.5

1.2

3.0

1.8

4.3

2.6

Start End

Low (n=5,550) Med (n=3,538) High (n=2,700)

1.6

1.2

3.0

1.7

4.3

2.3

Start End

Low (n=977) Med (n=1,066) High (n=665)

Callers rating of suicidal intent at 
the beginning of the call:   
4 or 5 = high or imminent risk 
3 = medium risk 
1-2 = low risk 

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

96 | Page 

 
 
D3. Suicide Prevention Outcomes 
 LACDMH has chosen to implement a suicide prevention program in the form of training and 

education that has shown effectiveness in changing attitudes, knowledge, and/or behavior 
regarding suicide.  Participants in these trainings include, but are not limited to, first responders, 
teachers, community members, parents, students, and clinicians.  

 
 To determine the effectiveness of its Suicide Prevention trainings, the County utilized the 

California Institute of Behavioral Health Services’ Suicide Prevention Program participant 
questionnaire, which assesses the impact of trainings on participants’ attitudes, knowledge, and 
behaviors related to suicide. In addition, the questionnaire measures training quality and 
participant demographics. This write-up discusses the results of data analyses performed on 
the 780 questionnaires received for these trainings conducted during the FY 2020-21.  The 
questionnaire is available in each of the County’s 13 threshold languages, as well as Hmong.   

 
 The three primary goals of the Suicide Prevention program interventions are to: 1) increase 

knowledge about suicide and ways to help someone who may be at risk of suicide; 2) increase 
willingness to help someone who may be at risk of suicide; and 3) increase the likelihood the 
participants seeking support for themselves in times of need. The questionnaire includes five 
items that assess the success of these trainings in meeting program goals. Items may be rated: 
Strongly Agree, Agree, Neither Agree nor Disagree, Disagree, and Strongly Disagree. Agreeing 
with an item suggests the training met a program goal(s), disagreeing suggests the opposite.  

 
 Data analyses of questionnaire results in the following figure found that at least 97% of 

participants agreed or strongly agreed with all 5 items, suggesting that, overall, the Suicide 
Prevention programs had great success in meeting their program goals. Participants had the 
highest percentage of agreement with the 2nd items; 98% agreed (33%) or strongly agreed 
(65%) that, “as a direct result of this training I am more knowledgeable about professional and 
peer resources that are available to help people who are at risk of suicide”. 

 

 Figure 23.  Responses to suicide prevention training  

 
 

466
484

474

464
439

265 247 241 251 239

0
0

0 0
00 0 2 4 4

16 15 14 15 14

1) I am better able to recognize
the signs, symptoms and risks of

suicide

2) I am more knowledgeable
about professional and peer

resources that are available to
help people who are at risk of

suicide

3) I am more willing to reach out
and help someone if I think they

may be at risk of suicide

4) I know more about how to
intervene (I've learned specific

things I can do to help someone
who is at risk of suicide)

5) I've learned how to better care
for myself and seek help if I need

it

As a direct result of this training, .... 

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

97 | Page 

 
The questionnaire includes three items in the following figure that assesses the quality of Suicide 
Prevention trainings. Items may be rated: Strongly Agree, Agree, Neither Agree nor Disagree, 
Disagree, and Strongly Disagree.  Agreeing suggests the participant had positive perceptions 
about the training quality and disagreeing suggests the opposite.   
 
Participants tended to have extremely positive views of the trainings’ quality as 98% agreed or 
strongly agreed with all 3 items. The majority of participants strongly agreed with all 3 items, with 
the highest percentage of strong agreement (80%) for item 7, “The presenters were respectful of 
my culture (i.e., race, ethnicity, gender, religion, etc.).” 

  
Figure 24.  Responses to suicide prevention training  

 
 Table 56.  FY 2020-21 Survey demographics  

Gender Identity 
Female - 81% Declined to answer - 3% 
Male - 16%  

Age Groups 
TAY (16-25) - 6% Declined to answer - 4% 
Adult (26-59) - 85% Older Adult (60+) - 5% 

Race 

White - 24%  Other - 23% 
African American - 11%  Declined to answer - 22% 
Asian - 11%                                              More than one race - 7%  
American Indian – 2% 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Heterosexual - 82%  Queer - 2% 
Gay/Lesbian - 4%  Declined to answer - 11% 
Bisexual - 2%   

Ethnicity 

Central American - 9%  Other - 14% 
European - 5%  Declined to answer - 15%  
More than one ethnicity - 9%            African - 6% 
Filipino - 2%                                          Middle Eastern - 1% 
Mexican/Mexican-American/Chicano - 35% 
Chinese – 3% 

Veteran Status 
Yes - 2% 
No - 96% 
Declined to answer - 2% 

Disability 
Yes - 5% 
No - 88% 
Declined to answer - 7% 

Primary Language 
English - 73% Other - 9% 
Spanish - 15% Declined to answer - 2% 

612
572

554

142
147

165

0
0 02 1 1

12 11 13

1) The presenters demonstrated knowledge of the
subject matter.

2) The presenters were respectful of my culture (i.e.,
race, ethnicity, gender, religion, etc.)

3) The program was relevant to me and other people of
similar cultural background and experiences (race,

ethnicity, gender, religion, etc.)

Please tell us how much you agree with the following statements

Strongly Agree Agree Neither Agree nor Disagree Disagree Strongly Disagree



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

98 | Page 

Armenian - 1% 

 
D4. School Threat Assessment Response Team (START) 
  
 The services include, but are not limited to, faculty consultation on threat management; close 

monitoring of potentially violent individuals; development of threat management plans and 
interventions specific to individuals; trainings extended to students and their families; and 
linkage to a wide range of community resources.  Additionally, START participates in LAUSD’s 
Threat Assessment Response Partners (TARP) collaborative, and the higher education Threat 
Assessment Regional Group Evaluation Team (TARGET) to provide on-going consultations and 
trainings on threat cases.  START will continue with its mission to be the driving force in 
establishing a safe, healthy school environment in the County. 

  

◼ SUICIDE PREVENTION 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$17.4 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$18.0 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$22.3 million 
Estimated 
Gross Expenditures 

$32.9 million 
Estimated 
Gross Expenditures 

 
  

Currently, unique client count is only for 
MHSA programs with Mode 15 Direct 
Services (Prevention).   
 
All dollar amounts in this table are 
reported at gross costs and does not 
include program administration costs. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

99 | Page 

WORKFORCE EDUCATION AND TRAINING (WET) 
 

Status ☐  New ☒  Continuing ☐  Modified ☐  Discontinued 

Program Description 

The Los Angeles County MHSA - WET Plan seeks to address the fundamental concepts of creating and supporting a 
workforce (both present and future) that is culturally competent, consumer/family driven, and promotes the 
transformation of mental health services to a strength based approach that is inclusive of recovery, resilience 
and wellness. Such tenets are cornerstones of MHSA.  The Plan provides opportunities to recruit, train and re-
train public mental health staff to meet those mandates.  

 

FY 2020-21 ◼ WORKFORCE EDUCATION AND TRAINING Data and Outcomes 

 
A. Training and Technical Assistance:  

▪ Public Mental Health Partnership (PMHP) 
 The mission of the UCLA-DMH Public Mental Health Partnership (PMHP) is to implement 

exemplary training and technical assistance activities focused on vulnerable populations with 
serious mental illness in ways that build excellence in public mental health care across Los 
Angeles County (LAC); and to do so in the context of a transparent, trusting partnership with 
the Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health (DMH) that generates benefits for both 
the University and public health communities. The PMHP is comprised of two sections focused 
on serious mental illness -- the Initiative for Community Psychiatry (ICP) and the Full-Service 
Partnership (FSP) and HOME Training and Implementation Program.  During FY 2020-21, 
UCLA provided the following trainings services: 

  START has years of partnership with various threat management teams in the Los Angeles Community College 
District (LACCD), the largest community college system in the nation.  Through its partnership with the 
Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department and the LACCD, START has established protocol for managing 
threats in educational settings.   

During the reporting period, the PMHP delivered 110 trainings over 315.5 hours, with an 
attendance of 4,683 participants. The training team provided trainings on a wide variety of topics 
including person centeredness, cultural humility, and psychiatric disorders and symptoms 
(Table 57). The training topics delivered to the most participants include “Crisis & Safety 
Intervention” (1,321 participants) and “Continuous Quality Improvement” (776 participants) 

 
 Table 57.  Public Mental Health Partnership Trainings 

Topic Name  Number of Trainings  Training Hours  Number of Participants  

Crisis & Safety Intervention  18  59  1321  

Continuous Quality Improvement  33  44.5  776  

Manualized Evidence-Based 
Practices  

10  43.5  473  

Provider Wellbeing  8  15.5  379  

Trauma  10  37.5  376  

Psychiatric Disorders & Symptoms  6  19.5  355  

Cultural Humility  7  27  247  

Person Centeredness  5  21  203  

Persistent & Committed 
Engagement  

3  5  202  

Co-Occurring Disorders  3  15  131  

Team-Based Clinical Services  3  15  129  

Whole Person Care  2  10  60  

Everyday Functioning  1  1  31  

Ethical Issues  0  0  0  

Service Delivery Skills  1  2  0  

TOTAL 110  315.5  4,683  

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

100 | Page 

Participants who attended PMHP trainings represented a broad range of roles (Table 57).  
Clinical social workers comprised the largest group (26.7%), followed by case manager (18.8%) 
and program directors/supervisors (14.9%). Most participants worked in an FSP setting 
(44.5%). 
 
▪ Bilingual and Spanish Interdisciplinary Clinical Training (BASIC-T) 
BASIC T: Professional trainees within the Hispanic Neuroscience Center of Excellence (HNCE) 
consist of three (3) early entry neuropsychologists, three (3) postdoctoral fellows, and three (3) 
clinical social workers who work in multidisciplinary teams. The neuropsychologists are 
receiving training in the completion of comprehensive neuropsychological assessments across 
the life span, while the clinical social workers are being trained to provide allied linkage services 
following comprehensive assessment and psychosocial support that addresses multiple social 
determinant of health including: economic stability, education access and quality, healthcare 
access and quality, neighborhood and build environment, social and community context. During 
the reporting period, HNCE trainees have collectively cared for 258 patients, with a total of 504 
since program inception.  
 
During the reporting period, the HNCE delivered 88 trainings over 151 hours, with an attendance 
of 1,060 participants (Table 58). This was on par with maintaining the initial rapid COVID-19 
Pivot made prior to the current reporting (i.e., April to June 2020), during which HNCE delivered 
48 trainings over 122 hours, with an attendance of 1,274 participants. The training team 
provided bilingual trainings in English and Spanish on a wide variety of topics, including mental 
health stigma among communities of color during COVID-19 and support groups for isolated 
older adults and parents of children with developmental disabilities during COVID-19. Some of 
the training topics delivered to the most participants include “Culturally Competent COVID-19 
Psychological First Aid for Faith based Organizations and Churches” (260 participants), 
“Culturally Competent COVID-19 Mental Health Intervention with Community Based 
Organizations” (140 participants), and “Culturally Competent Recovery & Resilience 
Intervention during COVID-19” (138 participants). Participants in the HNCE trainings 
represented all five LA County Supervisorial Districts. In addition to direct participants reached 
through HNCE trainings, it is important to highlight that the training provided through the HNCE 
on COVID-19 topics for Health Promoters has already resulted in the Latina/o/x Promotoras 
reaching an additional 15,705 community members via their own 2,171 trainings over 3,505 
hours. 

 
        
                          Table 58. BASIC-T Outcomes for FY 2020-21 

Topic Name Number of Trainings Training Hours Number of Participants 

Culturally Competent COVID-19 
Psychological First Aid for Faith 
Based Organizations and Churches 

43 
  

Culturally Competent COVID-19 
Mental Health Intervention with 
Community Based Organizations 

11 22 260 

Culturally Competent COVID-19 
Mental Health Intervention with 
Community Based Organizations 

6 11 140 

Culturally Competent Recovery & 
Resilience Intervention during 
COVID-19  

3 4 138 

COVID-19 & the Brain 
(Promotoras)  

8 16 113 

Virtual Support Groups for Isolated 
Older Adults during COVID-19 
(Genesis)  

25 50 94 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

101 | Page 

Topic Name Number of Trainings Training Hours Number of Participants 

Support Groups for Latino and 
Spanish-speaking Parents with 
Children Diagnosed with 
Neurodevelopment Disabilities 
during COVID-19  

20 20 61 

COVID-19: Psychiatric & Cognitive 
Sequelae  

3 5 57 

Psychological First Aid Related to 
COVID-19 & Related Trauma 
(Promotoras)  

3 6 54 

Use of Telehealth & Digital 
Platforms for Psychological 
Intervention during COVID-19 
(Promotoras)  

2 4 54 

The Community Mental Health 
Promoters Model: The roles of 
mental health promoters and 
popular education during COVID-
19  

1 2 20 

Social Determinants of Health & 
COVID-19  

1 2 20 

Mental Health & Stigma Among 
Communities of Color during 
COVID-19  

1 2 20 

Resilience & the Role of Self-Care in 
the time of COVID19  

1 2 20 

Culturally Competent Support 
Groups for Caregivers of Older 
Adults with Dementia during 
COVID-19 (Genesis & Others) 

3 5 9 

Totals: 88 151 1,060 

 

Consultations For the reporting period, HNCE spent 324 hours on consultation providing 
support to LACDMH clinicians with respect to ongoing needs for psychometric assessment, 
resilience/ coping/ bereavement, and continued COVID-19 related program development. 
Additionally, BASIC-T conducted a number of mass media appearances via COVID-19 related 
PSAs and interviews that reach a large TV, radio, and online viewership within Los Angeles, as 
well as nationally and internationally in Spanish (e.g., 1.0 to 3.5 million media consumers 
locally). 
 

B. Navigator Skill Development Program  
▪ Health Navigation Certification Training 
This program trains individuals employed as community workers, medical case workers, 
substance abuse counselors, peer specialists, and their supervisors on knowledge and skills 
needed to assist consumers navigate and advocate in both the public health and mental health 
systems.  Training was limited during the Covid-19 pandemic, and training was delivered to one 
cohort.  In this group, 18 individuals completed this model, with 44% spoke a threshold 
language, and 83 represented an un- or under- served community. 
 
▪ Interpreter Training Program (ITP) 
The Interpreter Training Program (ITP) offers trainings for bilingual staff currently performing or 
interested in performing interpreter services and monolingual English speaking mental health 
providers. The use of linguistically and culturally competent interpreters is important to bridging 
the language and cultural gap in the delivery of services in public mental health.  Due to Covid-
19, this program had limited offerings.   

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

102 | Page 

Table 59.  ITP Outcomes for FY 2020-21 

Training 
Number of 
Attendees 

Increasing Spanish Mental Health Clinical Terminology 43 

Introduction to Interpreting in Mental Health Settings 11 

Totals 54 

 
C. Learning Net System 
 The Department has developed an online registration system called eventsHub that manages 

both registration and payment for trainings and conferences coordinated by the Department.  
eventsHub is fully operational with most if not all clinical training administratively processed  by 
the system inclusive of posting, registration, and other training logistics important for tracking 
purposes.  Enhancement and maintenance of eventsHub continues through FY 2021-22. 

 
D. DMH + UCLA General Medical Education (GME): UCLA Public Partnership for Wellbeing 

Agreement 
 Psychiatry Residency and Fellowships Professional Trainees – Public Psychiatry Professional 

trainees of the UCLA Graduate Medical Education program at the Jane and Terry Semel 
Institute for Neuroscience and Human Behavior consisted of adult residents and fellows 
specializing in child and adolescent, geriatric, and forensic psychiatry. During the reporting 
period, the trainees provided a total of 574 patient visits during their public psychiatry rotations.  
There was a total of 11 trainees: 4 psychiatric residents, 3 Child Psychiatry Fellows, 1 Geriatric 
Fellow and 3 Forensic Psychiatry Fellows. 

 
E. Charles R. Drew Affiliation Agreement – Psychiatric Residency Program 
 Charles Drew University (CDU) was contracted to develop a new psychiatric residency program 

and to manage, administer, and coordinate training of resident physicians at DHS and LACDMH 
facilities, as well as the University itself and private non-profit facilitates contracted by or in 
partnership with the County. 

 
 The first class started in Academic Year 2018-19 and at the program’s capacity, there will be 

24 trainees ranging from Post Graduate Year Is to IVs.  The first class will graduate in June 
2022.   

 
Table 60.  Outcomes for FY 2020-21 

Post Graduates 
Number of  

Psychiatric Residents 
Rotations 

Year 1 Post Graduates 6 • 1 month of university onboarding is done at CDU 

• Veterans Administration (VA) Long Beach (Inpatient 
Psychiatry): 4 months 

• Rancho Los Amigos (Inpatient Medicine): 2 months  

• Rancho Los Amigos (Neurology): 2 months  

• Kedren (Outpatient Medicine): 2 months 

• Harbor-UCLA (Emergency Psychiatry): 1 month 

Year 2 Post Graduates 6 • VA Long Beach (Inpatient Psychiatry): 1 month 

• VA Long Beach (Consultation and Liaison): 2 months 

• VA Long Beach (Emergency Psychiatry): 1 month 

• VA Long Beach (Substance Abuse): 2 months 

• VA Long Beach (Geriatric Psychiatry): 1 month 

• Kedren (Inpatient Psychiatry): 3 months 

• Resnick Neuropsych Hospital UCLA (Child and 
Adolescent Psychiatry): 2 months 

Year 3 Post Graduates 6 • Rotations in LACDMH Directly Operated Clinics and 
Programs: 

• Augustus F. Hawkins MHC  

• West Central MHC  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

103 | Page 

Post Graduates 
Number of  

Psychiatric Residents 
Rotations 

• Compton MHC Child & Adolescent Psychiatry  

• Women’s Community & Reintegration Center  

• Harbor UCLA Medical Center HIV Clinic  

• Street Psychiatry/HOME Team and Disaster 
Service  

• Collaborative Care/Telepsychiatry  

 The above Post Graduate Year 2 rotation times represents averages.  Individual resident rotations vary in their second 
 year depending on areas of focus.  

 

F. Intensive Mental Health Recovery Specialist Training Program 
 Intensive Mental Health Recovery Specialist Training Program prepares individual, mental 

health consumers and family members, with a minimum of 2 years of college credit, to work in 
the mental health field as psycho-social (recovery) rehabilitation specialists. This program is 
delivered in partnership with a mental health contractor and local community college. Successful 
completion of this program ensures that participants are qualified to apply for case management 
level career opportunities in the public mental health system. Due to Covid-19, only one cohort 
was able to complete this training.  Of the 27 individuals that began this training, 18 completed 
the training with 76% representing an un- or under- served community and 73% speaking a 
second language.   Of those that completed the training, 50% have secured employment, with 
all but one working in the mental health field.  

 
During FY 2020-21, a solicitation was released for the training program, one proposal was 
submitted and reviewed for awarding.  A contract agreement was executed to begin training 
services Fiscal Year 2021-22. 
 

G. Expanded Employment and Professional Advancement Opportunities for Parent Advocates, 
Child Advocates and Caregivers in the Public Mental Health System 
▪ Parent Partners Training Program 

 This training program promotes knowledge and skills relevant to individuals interested in 
working as Parent Advocates/Parent Partners in the public mental health system servicing 
families and their children.  It enhances resilience and wellness understandings increasing 
the availability of a workforce oriented to self-help, personal wellness and resilience 
grounded in parent advocate/parent partner empowerment.  Lastly, the training program 
supports employment of parents and caregivers of children and youth consumers.  During 
FY 2020-21, available training opportunities moved to an online platform, resulting in 1,568 
individuals receiving this training through 39 online sessions. 
 

▪ Honest, Open, Proud Program 
During FY 2020-21, one training (4 online sessions) was delivered on 6/8, 6/9, 6/15 and 
6/16/2021. A total of 17 DMH Peer staff have successfully completed the training. The 
training was provided to help the DMH Peer Workforce to identify and overcome the 
negative impact of the internalized shame and stigma of mental illness. The training 
demonstrated the necessity and importance of effective self-disclosure in self-
empowerment and providing peer support services. It provided strategies on how to 
effectively disclose their lived-experience for the provision of peer support services as the 
DMH Peer Workforce.  Additional components of this training are planned for subsequent 
Fiscal Years.. 
 

▪ Intentional Peer Support (IPS) Advanced Training 
During FY 2020-21, one Advanced Intentional Peer Support training (6 online sessions) was 
provided  04/27,05/04,05/11,05/18,05/25,and 06/01/2021. Sixteen (16) DMH Peer Staff, 
former graduates of the Core Training, completed this Advanced IPS Training.  Advanced 
level IPS practices were covered and included a review of core principles, application of 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

104 | Page 

strategies to real-life scenarios, affirmation of self-reflection understanding and promotion 
of enhanced mutual connections all relevant to sustaining the practice. 
 
During FY 20-21, one cohort of IPS Co-reflection training was delivered (6 online sessions 
were provided) with 7 Peer Staffs from DMH and DMH contracted agencies participating. 
Staff regularly met to review and discuss issues and concerns associated with 
implementation of peer services and application of the IPS practice. Topics included peer to 
peer relationship challenges, unhelpful assumptions, and fidelity of IPS principles to peer 
service practices. 
 

▪ Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) 
Assembly Bill (AB) 403, also known as Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) provides 
comprehensive transformation of the foster care system with the intent of achieving 
permanency planning for foster youth and their families.  In particular, this legislation brings 
forth significant changes for group homes and respective providers that necessitate training 
for legislative compliance and provider readiness.  To that end, the following table outlines 
DMH-offered trainings and include topics subjects such as introduction to mental health, 
diagnosis/assessment and self-care. A total of 1,459 individuals were trained. 
 

  Table 61.  CCR training 

Training Service Provided 

CCR: Child and Family 
Team Process Overview 
(CFT) 
 
3 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
113 participants 

This training will provide an overview of how the CFT process is utilized in the CCR. 
In CCR, the CFT process is the decision- making vehicle for case planning and 
service delivery. This training will review the elements involved in the CFT process, 
team members, and their roles. This training identifies the Integrated Core 
Practice Model elements embedded in the CFT process, and its role in providing 
collaborative services. Participants will learn engagement strategies and the 
importance of keeping the child and family’s voice and choice at the center. 
Participants will learn strategies for effective teaming with children and families, 
and formal and informal supports. This training will review how teaming can 
promote positive permanency outcomes and assist with meeting the underlying 
needs of children. This training utilizes both didactic and experiential learning 
strategies to support the transfer of learning.   

CCR: Integrated Core 
Practice Model Overview 
(ICPM) 
 
5 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
143 participants 

This training provides an overview of the CCR, ICPM practice standards.  It 
highlights expansion of the California’s Core Practice Model, including the core 
values, principles, and elements; additional discussion incorporates the model’s 
practice wheel components and practice behaviors.  Participants will learn to 
utilize interagency teaming strategies while providing services to children and 
families involved in the child welfare system.  The child and family’s voice and 
choice are of primary importance and supported utilizing a strength-based and 
trauma-informed approach. A review of safety, permanency, and well-being 
promote the tenets of the model throughout the training. Lastly, both didactic 
and experiential learning strategies serve to enhance application of 
understanding and knowledge.  

 
Crafting Underlying Needs 
Statements and Services 
(UNDERLYING NEEDS) 
 
7 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
177 participants 
 

This training provides information on Underlying Needs and its application in the 
CCR process. It prepares providers to identify the relationship between underlying 
needs and youth’s behavior as well as highlight the importance of engaging youth 
and families and empowering their voice and choice. Participants will learn 
approaches for effective teaming and collaboration with children and families and 
their formal and informal supports. Incorporation of the family’s culture and 
functional strengths inform the needs based statement and support development 
of individualized services for youth and families in the child welfare system.  Both 
didactic and experiential learning activities serve to enhance understanding, 
knowledge, skills and implementation of training strategies.   

Engaging Probation Youth 
(PROBATION) 
 
2 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  

This training will provide the audience with knowledge to recognize and 
understand trauma when observed in youth on probation through a trauma 
informed lens. The impact of trauma and its effects on the brain, attachment, 
physiology, and social relationships are examined. The overview includes 
discussion of the trauma informed approach, cultural sensitivity, and underlying 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

105 | Page 

Training Service Provided 

70 participants 
 

needs. Strategies for engagement as well as staff’s awareness of their 
countertransference are explored. Group activities are incorporated to enhance 
application of learning and address challenging behaviors. Lastly, the training 
covers self-care, and participants will develop self-care strategies for themselves.   

LGBTQ+ Youth in 
Placement: Strategies and 
Interventions (LGBTQ) 
 
2 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
35 participants 
 

This training seeks to provide the audience with a better understanding of trauma 
and barriers specific to LGBTQ+ youth in the child welfare and probation systems. 
A trauma informed lens will be utilized to increase participants’ awareness of 
specific challenges that affect this vulnerable population. Using a culturally 
sensitive approach, trainers will highlight appropriate LGBTQ+ terminology as 
well as explore the impact of stigma and trauma, particularly as it relates to 
LGBTQ+ youth of color. This training discusses how community impacts LGBTQ+ 
youth and suggests strategies to support positive connections. Participants will 
learn about the Helm’s Identity Development Model to conceptualize the coming 
out process and how to employ healthy approaches in their daily interactions with 
these youth. Trainers will provide practical applications to address bullying, 
LGBTQ+ challenges, the coming out process, and the CFT model. Group activities 
will enhance learning and increase one’s self-awareness as it relates to this 
population.   

Prevent the Eruption: 
Trauma Informed De-
Escalation Strategies                                        
(DE-ESCALATION) 
 
21 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
513 participants 
 
 

This training seeks to provide LACDMH, DCFS, Probation and Contract Provider 
staff with knowledge to recognize and better understand trauma when observed 
in children and youth; address the impact of trauma on the brain; and provide 
trauma informed care strategies using a developmentally appropriate and 
culturally relevant approach. This training will review the ascent of escalation 
phases, de-escalation phase clues and offer trauma informed interventions for 
each phase including specifics regarding the debriefing process and strategies for 
prevention of self-injurious behavior.  Finally, the importance of self-care is 
discussed, and the participants will develop self-care strategies for their use. 

LGBTQ+ Youth In Care: 
Guidelines for Clinical 
Practice 
 
1 training 
FY 2020-21:  
29 participants 
 

This training seeks to provide the audience with a better understanding of trauma 
and barriers specific to LGBTQ+ youth in the Child Welfare and Probation systems. 
A trauma informed lens will be utilized to increase participants’ awareness of 
specific challenges that affect this vulnerable population. Using a culturally 
sensitive approach, trainers will highlight appropriate LGBTQ+ terminology as 
well as explore the impact of stigma, particularly as it relates to LGBTQ+ youth of 
color. Lastly, participants will learn about Eli Coleman’s Identity Model as a way 
to conceptualize the coming out process and the value of acceptance. Group 
activities will be facilitated to enhance application of learning and increase one’s 
self-awareness as it relates to this population. 

Engaging Runaway Youth 
In Placement: Overview 
and Strategies for 
Response 
 
5 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
177 participants 
 

Most runaway youths struggle with substance abuse and mental health issues, 
are at high risk for being a victim of sex trafficking and have higher rates of 
involvement with the juvenile justice system.  This training shall increase 
participants’ understanding of the characteristics of youth who run and the 
impact of traumatic experiences and development on running behavior. It will 
provide strategies to reduce the risk of running, including recommended policy, 
practice, training, and direct engagement with youth.  The curriculum will take a 
case based approach to designing implementable strategies to reduce risk to run.  
Following the introduction of core content, attendees will review case 
information using a multidisciplinary and collaborative lens to assist them in 
identifying effective strategies for engaging youth and reducing run risk.  Teams 
will learn to develop safety plans that encompass run behavior prevention and 
intervention. 

Creative Interventions for 
System Involved Youth 
 
1 training 
FY 2020-21:  
28 participants 
 

This training prepares Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) providers to explore the 
transformative and restorative power of creativity for youth. Discover how 
providers can utilize creative interventions when working with youth who are 
involved in systems of care including child welfare, mental health and probation. 
Discussions will include the key components of trauma-informed expressive art 
therapy, creative art therapy modalities, and adaptable interventions. 
Participants will build awareness of the benefits of utilizing creative trauma-
informed interventions and identify tools to support the implementation of art, 
dance/movement, music, play, drama, and other expressive modalities in their 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

106 | Page 

Training Service Provided 

work with youth. Lastly, this training incorporates both didactic and experiential 
learning to support transfer of understanding, knowledge and integration of 
training objectives. 

Prevent the Eruption: 
Interventions Booster (2 
hours 
 
3 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
45 participants 
 

This booster training seeks to provide DMH, DCFS, Probation and Contract 
Provider staff with information and practice in the following areas: engagement, 
phases of escalation, strategies to de-escalate youth, and ways to manage trauma 
triggers and unsafe behaviors. This training builds upon strategies learned in the 
Prevent the Eruption: Trauma- Informed De-escalation Strategies to further equip 
providers with developmentally and culturally relevant tools to support the de-
escalation process. Participants will be placed in breakout rooms to facilitate the 
learning process through group work and discussions. 

Engaging Youth in 
Placement: From 
Admission Through 
Aftercare 
 
1 training 
FY 2020-21:  
24 participants 
 

This training provides an overview and practical applications for engaging youth 
in placement throughout the course of treatment from admission to aftercare. 
Topics covered include trauma, challenges and barriers to engagement, specific 
strategies to initiate and maintain engagement with youth, interagency 
collaboration, and aftercare planning. Utilizing a trauma-informed lens, trainers 
discuss the impact of trauma on youth’s overall development, attachment, and 
relationships. Participants learn a variety of approaches to aftercare planning 
which they may integrate into their own agencies. Interagency collaboration 
efforts as well as connecting youth to community resources are considered. The 
warm hand-off and facilitation of a “good goodbye” with youth and families are 
highlighted. Group activities enhance learning and provide opportunities to apply 
a variety of useful strategies to promote engagement. 

Youth with Developmental 
Disabilities and Mental 
Illness: Overview and 
Interventions 
 
4 trainings 
FY 2020-21:  
105 participants 
 

This training focuses on youth with developmental disabilities and mental illness. 
It address how to identify common mental health symptoms for youth with 
developmental disabilities placed in a STRTP. Differences abide in presentation of 
mental illness symptoms in this population and such conditions warrant adapting 
interventions to meet their unique needs.  Lastly, additional discussion includes 
the CFT process, which is a collaboration strategy which can provide practical 
tools and techniques to support providers who work directly with this population. 

 

H. Financial Incentive Programs 
▪ Mental Health Psychiatrist Student Loan Repayment Incentive 

LACDMH offers a financial incentive towards the outstanding balance of student loans for 
full-time Mental Health Psychiatrists and Supervising Mental Health Psychiatrists who have 
completed one-year of continuous service at DMH and have active, unpaid, graduate, or 
medical, student loans.  Eligible psychiatrists who have not participated in or have received 
funds from the MH Psychiatrist Recruitment Incentive program, will receive a maximum 
annual amount of up to $50,000 for a period of five years which equates to a lifetime total of 
$250,000.  During FY 2020-21, 37 mental health psychiatrists participated in this program.    

▪ MHP Recruitment Incentive Program 
 This program targets recruitment of potential Mental Health Psychiatrists for employment in 

the public mental health system.  For eligible full-time Mental Health Psychiatrists and 
Supervising Mental Health Psychiatrists who have completed one year of continuous service 
in DMH and who have not participated in or received funds from the Student Loan 
Repayment Incentive program, a one-time award of $50,000 will be granted consisting of 
$25,000 upon completion of the first year of continuous service at DMH, and an additional 
payment of $25,000 upon completion of the second year of continuous service. During FY 
2020-21, 10 individuals were recruited and awarded. 

▪ MHP Relocation Expense Reimbursement 
 Available to full-time, newly hired Mental Health Psychiatrists or Supervising Mental Health 

Psychiatrists who have been recruited by DMH.  The maximum reimbursement amount for 
eligible relocation expenses is $15,000.  If the employee leaves DMH within one-year from 
employment start date, the full reimbursement amount must be repaid.  During FY 2020-21, 
2 individuals were awarded. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

107 | Page 

▪ Stipend Program for MSWs, MFTs, and Psychiatric Nurse 
 LACDMH provides 2nd year students with education stipends in the amount of $18,500 in 

exchange for a contractual work commitment (a minimum of 1 year) to secure employment 

in a hard-to-fill/hard to recruit program/area. This program targets students who are 

linguistically and/or culturally able to service the traditionally unserved and underserved 

populations of the County.  

During FY 2020-21, due to the Covid-19 pandemic, no stipends were awarded.  The 

contracted fiscal intermediaries provided past stipend recipients job seeking assistance; 

work commitment extensions were given on a case-by-case basis.  Tracking and 

administrative functions continued throughout the Fiscal Year.  Program needs, funding, 

and hiring freezes have impacted reinstatement of the program. DMH will continue to review 

workforce needs with potential reinstatement consideration FY 2021-22.  

In addition to the stipends, 9 post-doctoral fellows were also funded as part of the 

Department’s Psychology Post-Doctoral Fellowship Program.  Of these fellows, 5 

represented un- or under- served communities and 5 individuals spoke a second language, 

other than English. 

 

◼ WORKFORCE EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$4.1 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$14.2 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$18.7 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$56.1 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

 

 

 

  

Does not include program administration costs 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

108 | Page 

INNOVATION (INN) 
FY 2020-21 ◼ INNOVATION Data and Outcomes 

 
A. INN 2:  Community Capacity Building to Prevent and Address Trauma 
 This project centers on building the capacity of the community to identify and support community 

members at risk of trauma or experiencing trauma. The project aims to utilize the assets of the 
community to test strategies that allow local communities to work together in ways that will 
ultimately lead to better mental health and reductions in trauma, through the building of shared 
community values, leadership development and community member empowerment.  
 
In the past eighteen months the Community Ambassador Network (CAN) was developed and 
implemented into the INN 2 project. To date, over 265 CAN have been hired and/or rebranded. 
The CAN was introduced to expand the concept of community capacity building and to address 
the traumas to communities around the COVID-19 pandemic. The Community Ambassadors (CA) 
who comprise the CAN, are members of the community who are trusted and are the right people, 
at the right time, who provide the necessary services and supports to individuals within their 
identified communities. The CAN intern project was an additional concept that was introduced to 
the project a year ago as a collaborative project with the Department of Public Social Services 
(DPSS), the INN 2 team and the CalWORKs team. CAN Interns were introduced to the project, 
funded by DPSS, and supporting each of the projects and expanding the reach and supports 
available to those communities most in need. Training and supports have been provided and to 
date 160 CAN and 36 CAN interns are working across the project. 
 
The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors approved nine (9) lead agencies and ten (10) 
projects, 2 in each Supervisorial District, to establish community partnerships in geographically-
defined communities.  The identified communities are those with a concentration of inequalities, 
including disproportionate levels of poverty, high concentrations of unserved and underserved 
individuals and poor health and well-being outcomes, including educational and unemployment 
inequities. Lead agencies were selected through a solicitation process. Each proposing 
organization and their community partners selected specific strategies from the menu below, 
based on their community’s interests.  Beyond the implementation of selected strategies, each 
community partnership is responsible for building the capacity of the specific communities to work 
collectively toward supporting community identification and reduction of trauma, as outlined in the 
solicitation. 
  

 Strategies 

• Community Ambassador Network (CAN) the newest strategy added to the project extends 
across all providers, which streamlines all peers into this network of community ambassadors 
to educate and empower the communities, primarily at this time, around COVID-19. The CAN 
will emphasize and expand upon the community capacity building already central to the INN 
2 project. 

• Building Trauma Resilient Families targeting children ages birth to five and their caregivers 
who have experienced trauma and/or are at risk for trauma. Activities include assessing and 
educating families and young children for exposure to Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACES).  

• Trauma-Informed Psycho-education and Support for School Communities 
Training/workshops on recognizing behaviors and symptoms of stress and trauma in children 
provided to early care/education and school personnel and community mentors who work with 
children ages 0-15. The workshops would teach simple trauma-informed coping techniques 
that can be implemented within EC/E and school settings to reduce stress experienced by 
children. 

• Outreach and engagement to TAY and TAY peer support groups to outreach and engage 
TAY who are at risk of or experiencing trauma as a result of homelessness. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

109 | Page 

• Coordinated Employment within a community. Through a standardized employment 
assessment tool, a network of businesses within a specific community will be created that will 
provide coordinated job opportunities to individuals who are mentally ill and homeless/formally 
homeless. Job opportunities will be sought out in the competitive employment market and 
through the development of social enterprises within the neighborhood.   

• Community Integration for individuals with a mental illness with recent incarcerations or who 
were diverted from the criminal justice system.  A community response involving the creation 
of a consortium of law enforcement, the courts and community agencies designed to reduce 
re-incarcerations. 

• Geriatric Empowerment Model designed to outreach, engage and house homeless older 
adults. 

• Culturally competent non-traditional self-help activities for families with multiple generations 
experiencing trauma, including engagement, intergenerational story- telling and 
intergenerational mentorship programs. 

 
Currently, Innovation 2 is halfway through the fourth year of this four-year project. Since the 
implementation of the INN 2 project, there have been a two-day kick off and twelve (12) learning 
sessions, attended by INN 2 lead agencies, community partners, community members, CAs and 
each session filled with informative experts sharing their knowledge on various keynote subject 
matter, in addition to INN 2 partner presentations. The INN 2 team has called in, attended in-
person/virtually and reviewed the minutes from over 625 community partner, provider and TAY 
network meetings.  
 
Since the inception of this project, nine (9) lead agencies and their community 
partners/subcontractors have implemented one or more of seven identified key strategies for 
capacity building focused on targeted outreach and community empowerment. All partnerships 
and participants have been tasked with registering in iHOMS, an electronic data collection system, 
in order to track outcomes, data and observe various learning curves related to the strategies of 
this project, including major pivots affecting lead agency work during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Lead agencies that have implemented more than one capacity building strategy have higher INN 
2 participant enrollment in general, and the data collection system is accurate although at times 
may under-report actual participation and community engagement when data is not input in a 
timely manner. The INN 2 COVID-19 pivots have included the addition of the Community 
Ambassador Network (CAN) and specified data collection for both the CAN and COVID-19 
specific activities and outreach and engagement. 
 
During the first three and a half years of the INN 2 project (2018-2021), lead agencies have 
committed themselves and their partnerships to serving their communities in trauma-informed 
ways. While the goals for this project are innovative in that they are not delivering traditional direct 
mental health services, the community capacity vision of a non-traditional approach has been 
serving all communities very well, based on the data collection indicated below. 
Learning Sessions are held quarterly (January, April, July and October) and have been designed 
intentionally to be dynamic and support real-time learning for partners and DMH Staff.  As such, 
Learning Sessions included expert training, peer learning and discussions.  Activities conducted 
within each Learning Session have strengthened community capacity building tools and skills, 
built trust and deeper relationships among partners', and have used evaluation data for expansive 
learning.  To-date, Innovation 2 has conducted 12 full Learning Sessions. The CAN Promoting 
Learning, Networking and Advocacy (PLAN) Meetings were implemented in January of 2021, with 
the completion of nine (9) meetings to date with an average of approximately 120 CAN/CAN 
Interns in attendance at each of the meetings.  
During this unprecedented time of the novel coronavirus disease-2019 (COVID-19) pandemic 
which has impacted INN 2 communities and beyond, the work of the lead agencies and their 
partners has been unwavering. By leveraging existing relationships and partnerships, each lead 
agency was able to identify available resources and connect with community members with 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

110 | Page 

needed supports (i.e., housing, food, mobile shower units, hot meals, rental and utility assistance 
and a multitude of linkages) while expanding various social media platforms and creating a higher 
visibility for providing these resources and services. Agency and partnership meetings have 
moved to Zoom and other teleconferencing platforms, allowing every individual to continue with 
important, life-changing work and remain connected. It should also be noted that a COVID-related 
category has been tracked since these pivots were made and all CAN and CAN Interns have 
been registered in iHOMS with the ability to track all CAN activities, along with cultural and 
language capacity. 
 
Many lead agencies have used social determinants of mental health to identify at-risk and 
vulnerable populations within their communities. Using social media to educate their communities 
with accurate virus information, reopening, available concrete supports, outreach and 
engagement, education, training and have supported communities around COVID-19 testing, 
immunization and boosters. This project has slowly transitioned to a platform that has identified 
deeper community needs and incorporating the CAN and CAN interns has made it possible to 
reach communities at a deeper and more meaningful level. 
 
Cultural Humility Workgroups have designed a framework and associated goals in conjunction 
with the assistance of the evaluation team for INN 2. This workgroup initially convened in 
December 2019, composed of agency representatives. Over the course of 12 primary meetings 
in 2020 and 10 meetings in 2021, the workgroup has discussed the intersection of cultural 
competence and trauma-informed care, with the goals remaining aligned with community capacity 
building strategies. About 5 ad-hoc meetings and comprehensive one-on-one checks with lead 
agency participants took place to engage the workgroup in the planning of the July 2020 Learning 
Session and to determine optimal format and strategy for the workgroup. The latest conversations 
that have taken place in 2021 were brought to a CAN PLAN meeting for feedback and insight 
from the boots on the ground and will be more deeply discussed and addressed at the upcoming 
Learning Session in January 2022. 
 
Sustainability planning has been implemented since the halfway mark of the project. Template 
guides were dispersed to each lead agency along with thought-provoking brainstorms during 
monthly partnership meetings for project expansion and future funding planning projected for after 
the fourth-year conclusion of joint lead agency-DMH collaboration.  The anticipated keys for 
sustainability that have been discussed included the "Three C's":  connectedness, collective 
agency (combined personal agency of all community members) and community capacity building. 
As conversations have progressed this past year the importance of the community and CAN being 
trained and informed of important practices with regards to trauma informed care, resiliency and 
community capacity building, has been discussed and will leave long lasting impacts and 
sustainable knowledge across communities as well. 
 
Outcome Measures 
 

Learning from both qualitative and quantitative sources is necessary to document how 
strategies are successful at increasing community awareness of trauma and partnerships’ ability 
to support community members who have experienced trauma or are at risk of experiencing 
trauma. The quantitative measurement approach focuses on implementing tools and outcome 
measures that support continuous learning. This approach focuses at two levels of the project. 

• Measurement of the partnerships, using the Wilder Collaboration Factors Inventory, 
Social Network Survey and Trauma-Informed Partnership Self-Assessment, to 
document partnership development and coalition building. 

• The impact of capacity building strategies on INN 2 participants is measured using the 
Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale (CD-RISC-10), COPE Inventory (Brief Version) 
and Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale. 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

111 | Page 

At the close of 2021, nearly 8,100 participants have been registered in iHOMS (Innovation 
Outcomes Management System).  The iHOMS system was launched in February 2019 to 
support completion of two partnership measures, the Wilder Collaboration Factors Inventory 
and the Social Network Survey.  The system has since evolved in parallel with INN 2, and 
now supports tracking outreach and engagement activities and linkages with resources and 
supports, as well as outcome measurement for INN 2 participants and hiring and training 
tracking of CAN. The system also supports real-time automated reporting of partner and 
participant outcomes. The evaluation team also made all the partnership and outcome 
measures available (in English and Spanish) in Qualtrics, an online survey platform which 
does not require a login and password to access, as a way to enable participants to complete 
measures from home during the pandemic.   
 
To-date, the majority of the data collected is from INN 2 participants who are families with 
young children between the ages of 0-5 (25.2%), TAY (22.3%), intergenerational families 
(23.2%) and individuals who were recently incarcerations or diverted from the justice system 
(10.4%). 
 
The following are a brief overview of outcome measurement tools used: 

• The Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale is a pictorial measure designed to 
understand one's perception of connectedness with the community. 

• The Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale (CD-RISK-10) is a 10-item self-report 
measure of an individual's level of resilience. Resilience may be viewed as a measure 
of successful stress-coping ability, which varies with time and context. 

• The COPE Inventory is a multidimensional self-report measure to assess the different 
ways in which people respond to stress. The 28-item Brief COPE items assess a broad 
range of coping responses, such as positive reframing, active coping, self-distraction, 
denials acceptance, substance use, and venting. 

• The Wilder Collaboration Factors Inventory is a 44-item research-based assessment 
tool designed to measure twenty-two factors that influence the success of 
collaboration. 

• The Social Network Survey is a 2-item survey designed for INN 2 to visualize 
partnership structure and changes in communication within partnerships over the 
course of INN 2. 

• The Trauma-Informed Partnership (TIP) Self-Assessment is based on the Trauma-
Informed Organizational Toolkit. The 36-item assessment is intended as a tool to help 
organizations assess their knowledge of trauma-informed culture within their 
partnership. 

 
Additional Qualitative Breakdown of the Analysis Approach for This Project To-Date: 
 

The average Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale score for all INN 2 participants with a 
pair of assessments (n=1732) at baseline was 3.5 (out of a possible score of 6), with more than 
40% of participants in the 3 to 4 range, demonstrating some sense of interconnectedness within 
the community. The average ICS score for participants at the most recent follow-up assessment 
was 3.6, which is a statistically significant increase from baseline. More participants (31.8%) 
rated their relationship with the community in the 5 to 6 range at the most recent follow-up 
assessment, compared to baseline, which suggests that some individuals may feel higher levels 
of connectedness through participation in Innovation 2. (Connectedness) 
 
The average Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale (CD-RISC-10) score for INN 2 participants at 
baseline was 28.7 out of a possible score of 40, with higher scores indicating greater resiliency. 
This measurement tool uses a scale to gauge between "sometimes true" and "often true" for 
participants who have experienced resilience in the aftermath of trauma.   The average CD-
RISC score for participants at the most recent follow-up assessment was 28.9. While there is 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

112 | Page 

no significant change in scores, it is notable that there is no loss of stress tolerance during the 
pandemic, which speaks to the community capacity building efforts. Focusing on participants 
who enrolled in INN 2 during the past year of the pandemic, there was a statistically significant 
change in average CD-RISC scores between baseline (28.2) and the 9-month follow-up 
assessment (29.4). It is possible that participants’ resiliency is impacted by longer engagement 
in INN 2 activities. (Resilience)  
 
Brief Cope scores are presented for two overarching coping styles, avoidant coping and 
approach coping. Avoidant coping can be linked with poorer physical health and is shown to be 
less effective at managing anxiety and stress. Approach coping is associated with more helpful 
responses to adversity, including adaptive practical adjustment, better physical health 
outcomes, and more stable emotional responding. Emotional avoidance is a common reaction 
to trauma.  The average Approach Coping sum score for all INN 2 participants with a pair of 
assessments (n=1383) at baseline was 34.8 out of a possible score of 48. Higher scores 
indicate more approach coping. The average Approach Coping score for participants at the 
most recent follow-up assessment was 35.7. This suggests that INN 2 participants perceive that 
they use more approach coping skills than avoidant coping skills when they confront difficult or 
stressful events. Focusing on participants who enrolled in INN 2 during the past year of the 
pandemic, there was a statistically significant change in average Approach Coping sum scores 
between baseline (34.7) and the 3-month follow-up assessment (35.5), which suggests that 
some individuals may feel better able to cope with stress through participation in Innovation 2.  
The average Avoidance Coping sum score for all INN 2 participants with a pair of assessments 
(n=1391) at baseline was 23.1 out of a possible score of 48. Lower scores indicating less 
avoidance coping. The average Avoidance Coping score for participants at the most recent 
follow-up assessment was 22.8. There was no statistically significant change in Avoidance 
Coping scores. (Coping Skills) 
 
Partnership development, as measured by the Wilder, continued to grow over the past year, as 
most agencies have moved past previous challenges related to forming their partnerships. 
Partner’s ratings of collaboration within their partnerships is seen as a strength, as most Wilder 
category scores are close to or greater than 4.0 (On a scale of 1-5). Collaboration among 
partnerships likely contributed to INN 2’s ability to successfully pivot outreach and engagement 
activities and provide needed linkages and resources to support communities during the past 
year. Biannual review of the data highlights strengths to leverage and opportunities for 
partnership growth and progress, and also helps to frame Learning Session agendas and 
agencies collaborating and fine-tuning their vision for INN 2 plans.  (Partnerships and capacity 
building data collection tool)  
 
Social network analysis (SNA) is a science to understand structure, interactions, and 
relationships among individuals in a group. SNA illustrates communication patterns and 
information flow among individuals who are connected to each other. Over the past year, 
partnership rosters increased by 13% as INN 2 partnerships expanded to include new 
organizations and community members. The biggest change seen in the network maps is the 
addition of the CAN. All networks have more connections. Networks averaged 57 partners in 
February 2021, compared to 51 partners last year (February 2020) and 36 partners in March 
2019 (baseline assessment). Organizations, which are part of a network, are able to leverage 
resources, new ideas and knowledge to build capacity more effectively than those that “go it 
alone.” (Partnerships and capacity building data collection tool)  
 
The Trauma-Informed Partnership (TIP) Self-Assessment is based on the Trauma-Informed 
Organizational Toolkit and is intended as a tool to help organizations assess their trauma-
informed knowledge and culture within a partnership. It is not a measure of what individuals 
know about trauma, but rather the opportunities for education and training with an 
organization/partnership. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

113 | Page 

 
The core objective for TIP data collection is to understand each partnerships' capacity to 
implement trauma-informed approaches and identify core knowledge components of trauma 
needed to educate others.  A bi-annual review (every six months) of the 2020 data has shown 
93.4% of partners reported participating in a trauma-informed care training as part of their role 
for Innovation 2. The most common trainings included "Community Resilience Model (CRM)", 
"Emotional CPR"/"Mental Health First Aid", and DMH's "Becoming Trauma-Informed" among 
other general Trauma-Informed Care trainings.  Over 86% of INN 2 partners felt there were 
education and training opportunities on the definition of traumatic stress, what the relationship 
between trauma and mental health is and how traumatic stress affects the brain and body.  79% 
of INN 2 partners learned about how trauma affects a child's development through this project's 
training and education.  Over 75% have identified opportunities about how working with trauma 
survivors impacts the general community as a whole. 

 

Additional Quantitative Breakdown of Outreach and Linkages for This Project To-Date: 

One vision of INN 2 is to invest in the community and extend outreach and support to those 

community members who have been previously unaware of available resources or may not be 

willing to seek out a mental health organization directly. Non-traditional approaches to “meet 

people where they are at” has been essential to partnerships’ responsiveness to the COVID-19 

crisis and social unrest. The pandemic changed the way INN 2 partners are able to connect 

with each other and the community. It has required agencies to pivot their INN 2 work quickly 

to be responsive to community needs. Programming and capacity building approaches were 

adapted to incorporate social media and partnerships continue to leverage their existing 

relationships and develop new partnerships to support the community. 

This past year, INN 2 providers recorded a total of 14,219 outreach and engagement events in 

iHOMS. This is a substantial increase in events compared to the prior year of the project. 

Partnerships placed significant effort in hosting group activities over the past year in innovative 

ways to keep participants engaged and provide meaningful group support virtually (21% of 

recorded events). General community outreach, meetings, trainings, and COVID-19 education 

efforts represent the other top outreach and engagement activities, which have reached an 

estimated 323,641 community members (count is not de-duplicated). Monthly community 

partnership meeting engagement grew with the use of virtual platforms, allowing for increased 

participation across communities. Programs continued to make trainings in the community and 

for their partners and staff a priority throughout the challenges of the past year, as these 

trainings are integral to building capacity as programs move more towards sustainability efforts. 

INN 2 providers made a total of 29,587 linkages to community resources and supports for 4,594 
participants during the past year. This is a substantial increase in linkages compared to the prior 
year of the project. Linkages were tailored for the target population and varied by capacity 
building strategy. The most common linkages were for basic needs, including food (32.8%), 
housing (9.9%), and education (10%). Education includes supports for students, such as 
backpacks and school supplies, and skill building classes. 

 
Summary 
 

Overall, training and education for all partners is crucial to becoming trauma-informed as the 

data has suggested.  Having shared knowledge about these specific topics ensures that 

partners have the same level of uniform understanding and can consistently provide similar 

types of trauma-sensitive responses. All CAN are currently being trained in both the COVID-19 

DMH/DPH/DHS collaborative training and the Community Resiliency Model (CRM), and in turn 

will deliver both these trainings to their surrounding communities. The aforementioned trainings 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

114 | Page 

are in addition to the CAN Landing page developed and supported by UCLA, which offer a 

plethora of supportive and informative trainings, including motivational interviewing, among 

many others. 

We are requesting the project be extended, in order to continue the support of the CAN and 

ongoing assistance to the communities in the recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. It is 

requested that Prevention funds be used for these efforts to be uninterrupted.   

 

B. INN 3:  Help@Hand (formerly Technology Suite) 
Help@Hand (previously known as the Innovation Technology Suite) is a multi-county and city 
collaborative project, with potential to reach over half of the California population, that aims to use 
a menu of innovative digital mental health solutions, to increase access to care and well-being.  
Based on initial learnings from the first year of the project, LACDMH focused its local target 
populations and aims to: 
- Focus on engaging college, graduate, and vocational students with a set of technology 

applications that aim to meet their mental health and well-being needs and/or assist in linking 
them to appropriate levels of care and supports; 

- Improve mental health and well-being of County employees by increasing access and 
engagement to digital technologies supporting mental health and well-being; 

- Improve mental health and well-being of County residents by increasing access and 
engagement to digital technologies supporting mental health and well-being; and  

- Improve engagement among individuals receiving services at LACDMH through digital mental 
health and well-being tools. 

 
After receiving approval from the MHSOAC on October 26, 2017, LACDMH entered into an 
agreement with the California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA), a Joint Powers 
Authority utilized by counties, to facilitate the administrative functions such as fiscal, contract, and 
project management, of this multi-county and city project. The participation agreement was 
approved by Board of Supervisors in February 2018. Participating county mental health 
departments aim to bring technology-based mental health solutions into the public mental health 
system with objectives to: 
- Increase access to the appropriate level of care; 
- Reduce stigma associated with mental illness by promoting mental wellness; 
- Detect and acknowledge mental health symptoms sooner;  
- Increase purpose, belonging, and social connectedness of individuals served; and  
- Analyze and collect data to improve mental health needs assessment and service delivery.  
 
Los Angeles, Kern and Mono counties participated in vendor selection for technologies in 
February 2018 and selected 7 Cups and Mindstrong as initial vendors.  In April 2018, Orange and 
Modoc counties were approved to join the Technology Suite and, in September 2018, 10 
additional counties were approved, for a total of 15 counties and cities.  During the early summer 
of 2018, RSE was selected as an outreach, engagement and marketing firm and the University 
of California, Irvine as the evaluator of the project.   
 
Significant learning was accomplished in the initial phase of the project with the piloting of the first 
two applications.  LACDMH is piloting the Mindstrong care application at Harbor-UCLA’s 
outpatient Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) program as a strategy to promote early detection 
of emotional dysregulation.  LACDMH also piloted 7Cups as a digital tool (application and web-
based) to increase social connectedness through chat and well-being through growth paths and 
educational, self-help content.   
 
Project has been completed.   
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

115 | Page 

C. INN 4:  Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
LACDMH implemented Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) as the Innovation 4 
project.  TMS is FDA approved for the treatment of depression and is a non-invasive treatment 
that can enhance or suppress the activity of neurons in targeted areas of the brain through the 
use of electromagnetic stimulation. According to the American Psychiatric Association best 
practice guidelines for the treatment of major depressive disorder, TMS is now a first-line 
treatment for depression that has not responded to one antidepressant medication (APA 2010) 
as well as being effective for treatment-resistant depression.  
 
TMS uses precisely targeted magnetic pulses similar to those used in Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging (MRI) to stimulate key areas of the brain that are underactive in clients with depression. 
The client reclines comfortably in the treatment chair and is awake and alert during treatment.  An 
electromagnetic coil is then placed on the skull directly to the target area of the brain where the 
device generates magnetic fields that alter the electrical activity of neurons. The enhancing or 
suppressing of neuron activity depends upon a number of variables including the frequency of the 
TMS pulses. During treatment, the client hears a clicking sound and feels a tapping sensation on 
the head. The client can go back to their normal activities immediately after treatment.  Treatment 
can last between 3-45 minutes and is administered once per day for 5 consecutive days per week 
for 4-8 weeks.  
 
In April 2018, LACDMH was approved to implement a Mobile TMS program via in a mobile van 
outfitted with the technology, delivered to fully consenting clients receiving services in adult 
outpatient programs. The target population includes individuals receiving outpatient services that 
have a depression as a major part of their psychiatric symptoms and one or more of the following: 

• Resistance to treatment with psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by a lack of a 
clinically significant response to at least two psychopharmacologic agents in the current 
depressive episode; or 

• Inability to tolerate psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by two trials of 
psychopharmacologic agents from two different agent classes; or 

• History of response to TMS in a previous depressive episode; or 

• A history of response to electroconvulsive therapy (ECT) in a previous or current episode or 
an inability to tolerate ECT, or is a candidate for, but has declined ECT and TMS is considered 
a less invasive treatment option. 

 
Given the nature of the TMS treatment, individuals with a history of seizure disorder and those 
with metal implants in the head or upper torso (e.g., cardiac pacemakers) are excluded.   
 
The goals of The INN 4 Mobile TMS Project include: 

• Provide access to new and effective treatment to clients with chronic and severe mental illness 

• Increase adherence to treatment by bringing the treatment to the client 

• Reduce use of other resources (i.e., psychiatric hospitalization, Emergency Room visits, 
intensive supportive services, etc.) 

• Improve social and occupational functioning that would lead to successful community 
reintegration 

• Increase the quality of life of clients with histories of poorly treated depression. 
 
Overall, the primary purpose of this Innovation project is to improve the quality of mental health 
services and achieve greater outcomes by providing new and effective treatment to clients with 
chronic and severe mental illness.  This project seeks to introduce a new approach or approach 
that is new to the overall mental health system, including, but not limited to, prevention and early 
intervention. 
 
Status of implementation as of August 15, 2021 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

116 | Page 

Provision of service for this project began on May 30, 2019 after obtaining a mobile TMS unit.  
The mobile TMS unit consists of a customized van with modifications that allow a small treatment 
team to deliver TMS treatments within it.  Clients of directly operated clinics are referred to the 
TMS program by their outpatient providers (psychiatrists or clinicians).  After receiving referrals, 
clients have an in-person consultation with the TMS program director (Marc Heiser, MD, PhD) 
during which their symptoms, treatment history, and medical history are reviewed, and a safety 
screening form and initial symptom rating scales are completed.  The treatment is explained and 
demonstrated for the clients and clients have the opportunity to ask any questions. If they are 
interested and the treatment is appropriate, an informed consent form is completed and they are 
scheduled for their initial treatment.   
 
Until March 13, 2020, clients were being referred and receiving daily (Monday- Friday) treatments 
within the mobile TMS unit at one location, the Harbor UCLA Outpatient Psychiatry Clinic.  While 
the TMS unit has been at one location, the program has received referrals and treated clients 
from six LACDMH clinics located throughout LA County (including SAs 2, 3, 5 and 8).     
 
Mobile TMS services were put on hold as of March 14, 2020, due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Due to the intensive treatment schedule that TMS services require (5 days per week for 

approximately 4-6 weeks), clients may have difficulty adjusting to the change and experience a 

sudden worsening of depressive symptoms.  Therefore, TMS staff completed phone check-ins 

with TMS clients as soon as possible to assess how they were coping with the transition and 

continued to conduct phone check-ins 1-2 times per week while they were not receiving TMS 

services, to the extent possible. PHQ-9 scores were also completed over the phone weekly with 

each client while they were not receiving TMS services in order to track depressive 

symptomology. This information is used to monitor clients and determine the need for a client to 

return for TMS treatments with a decreased frequency (provided 1-2 times per week) until TMS 

services are back up to scale.  

In November 2020, TMS services restarted once weekly treatment for clients who had been 
receiving treatment prior to COVID-19 and who were struggling with worsening mood symptoms.  
By February 2021, TMS services were being provided to current clients 5 days per week and the 
TMS team began treating new clients.  TMS services are currently being provided five days per 
week. In addition, due to the small size of interior space of the Mobile TMS van and concern for 
client and staff safety during COVID-19 pandemic, the TMS device was moved from the van into 
an office space in Long Beach in February of 2021 and the plan is to continue administering TMS 
from this office space.   
 
Number of clients served:  
As of August 15, 2021, the program had received 89 referrals.  Between May 1, 2019, and August 
15, 2021, 70 client consultations/initial evaluations were completed.  A total of 26 of these clients 
completed a full TMS treatment course. Common reasons for not completing a full TMS treatment 
include a disruption due to COIVD-19, difficulty with transportation, and lack of efficacy.   
 
Below is a summary of the demographic information on the 26 clients who completed a full 
treatment course of TMS as of August 15, 2021:   
- The majority were adults (ages 26-59) 88%, while 12% were older adults (60 years or older). 
- The majority identified as male (65%) and 35% identified as female. 
- The majority identified as Non-Hispanic/Latino (58%), while 31% identified as Hispanic/Latino 

and for 12% of the clients, the ethnicity was unknown. 
- 31% of clients identified their race as White and 12% identified as Mexican. Other races 

included Asian Native (4%), Black/African American (4%), Cambodian 4%), Central American 
(4%), Korean (4%), South American (4%), and Vietnamese (4%).  16% of clients were of 
another race and the race of 19% of clients was unknown. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

117 | Page 

- The majority of clients stated that their primary language was English (77%).  Other primary 
languages included Spanish (15%), Cambodian (4%), Vietnamese (4%). 

 
Outcome data being collected and any analysis of impact to date: 
The Overarching Learning Questions for this project include the following:  
- Will these individuals be adherent with a mobile TMS treatment program? 
- Is TMS an effective treatment for this population? 
- Does TMS for depression lead to improvement in comorbid symptoms (i.e., substance use, 

psychotic symptoms, etc.)? 
- If TMS is an effective treatment for this population, should the program be expanded to treat 

a larger part of the population? 
 
To assess the impact of TMS, depression outcome measures are administered at the beginning 
of treatment and weekly throughout the course of treatment.  Measures include the following: 
Quick Inventory of Depressive Symptoms (QIDS-SR-16, client rated), the Hamilton Depression 
Rating Scale (HAM-D, clinician rated), and the Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ-9, client rated).  
Client satisfaction with TMS is also assessed at the end of each session, utilizing a verbal check 
in, and using a Client Satisfaction Survey at the end of treatment.  These assessment tools enable 
clinicians to track improvements in depressive symptoms and functional outcomes that can, in 
turn, will be used to judge the efficacy of this program.  
 
Below is the average score on each of the three depression measures over the course of 
treatment for clients who completed a full treatment course of TMS treatment between May 1, 
2019, and August 15, 2021.  The length of treatment varies for each client, but the trend line (in 
black) shows that, on average, depressive symptoms decreased in frequency and intensity over 
time as TMS treatment was provided. 
 

 
Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HAMD-17) 
The HAMD-17 is one of the longest standing, most widely used measures of depression in 
research and clinical practice.  The HAMD-17 is a clinician completed measure that includes 17-
items.  Total scores of 0-7 indicate no depression; scores of 8-13 indicate mild depression, scores 
of 14-18 indicate moderate depression, scores of 19-22 indicate severe depression, and scores 
23-50 indicate very severe depression. 
 
For the clients who received TMS treatment during this period, the average initial HAMD-17 score 

was 18 which indicates moderate depression.  At the end of treatment, the average final HAMD-

17 score was 11, which indicates mild depression.  There was an average change in score of 7 

points (39% decrease), which indicates that there was an overall improvement in depressive 

symptoms at the end of the course of TMS treatment.  Of those who completed a full course of 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

118 | Page 

TMS treatment, 9 clients (35%) of clients met criteria for remission (no depressive symptoms) at 

the end of treatment.   
  

Figure 25.  Summary of Average HAMD-17 Scores for Mobile TMS clients (n = 26) 

 

 

Quick Inventory of Depressive Symptomatology-Self-Report (QIDS-SR-16) 

The QIDS-SR-16 is a 16-item self-report measure of depressive symptom severity derived from the 30-
item Inventory of Depressive Symptomatology (IDS). There are nine depression symptoms measured 
across the 16 items (sleep, mood, appetite/weight, concentration, view of self, suicidal ideation, interest, 
fatigue, and psychomotor). Scores 1-5 indicate no depression; scores of 6-10 indicate mild depression; 
scores of 11-15 indicate moderate depression; scores of 16-20 indicate severe depression; scores 21-
27 indicate very severe depression.  
 
For the clients who received TMS treatment during this period, the average initial QIDS-SR-16 score 

was 17, which indicates severe depression.  At the end of treatment, the average final QIDS-SR-16 

score was 9, which indicates mild depression.  There was an average change in score of 8 points (47% 

decrease), which indicates that there was an overall improvement in depressive symptoms at the end 

of the course of TMS treatment.  Of those who completed a full course of TMS treatment, 6 clients 

(26%) of clients met criteria for remission (no depressive symptoms) at the end of treatment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18

11

8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Initial Final

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
co

re
 

Assessment

Severe Depression

Moderate Depression

Mild Depression

Average Score



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

119 | Page 

Figure 26.  Summary of Average QIDS-SR-16 Scores for Mobile TMS clients (n = 23) 

 
 

 

Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ-9)  

The PHQ-9 is a concise, self-administered screening tool for assessing depression. It incorporates 
DSM-IV depression criteria with other leading major depressive symptoms into a brief self-report 
instrument that is commonly used for screening and diagnosis, as well as selecting and monitoring 
treatment.  Scores of 0-4 indicate minimal depression; scores of 5-9 indicate mild depression; scores 
of 10-14 indicate moderate depression; scores of 15-19 indicate moderately severe depression; and 
scores 20-27 indicate severe depression.  
 
For the clients who received TMS treatment during this period, the average initial PHQ-9 score was 18, 

which indicates moderately severe depression.  At the end of treatment, the average final PHQ-9 score 

was 10, which indicates moderate depression.  There was an average change in score of 8 points (44% 

decrease), which indicates that there was an improvement in depressive symptoms at the end of the 

course of TMS treatment. Of those who completed a full course of TMS treatment, 6 clients (23%) of 

clients met criteria for remission (no depressive symptoms) at the end of treatment.   

 

Figure 27.  Summary of Average PHQ-9 Scores for Mobile TMS clients (n = 26)

 

17

9

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Initial Final

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
co

re

Assessment

Severe Depression

Moderate Depression

Mild Depression

Average Score

18

10

5

7

9

11

13

15

17

19

Initial Final

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
co

re

Assessment

Moderately
Severe
Depression

Moderate
Depression



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

120 | Page 

TMS Client Satisfaction Survey 

The TMS Client Satisfaction Survey was developed by LACDMH and was completed by clients who 

completed a full course of TMS treatment.  The Client Satisfaction Survey includes 11 items that assess 

satisfaction with various aspects of TMS treatment and the impact of TMS on the client’s overall well-

being and functioning.   
 

Overall Satisfaction [Figure 28]:  

Overall, a majority (94%) of respondents were “Very Satisfied” or “Satisfied” with their TMS experience, 

which is  21% increase since December 1, 2019. None of the clients were dissatisfied with their TMS 

experience. 
 

Figure 28.  Overall Satisfaction with Mobile TMS services (n = 17) 

 
 

 

TMS Treatment Experience [Figure 29]:  

A majority of respondents (93%) “Strongly Agreed” or “Agreed” that they understood what to expect 

before starting TMS treatment.  All respondents (100%) “Strongly Agreed” or “Agreed” that they felt 

comfortable while receiving TMS services.   As well, all respondents (100%) “Strongly Agreed” or 

“Agreed” that TMS services have been an important part of their treatment and that TMS services have 

improved their participation in their treatment.   Finally, all respondents (100%) “Strongly Agreed” or 

“Agreed” that they would return for more TMS treatments in the future if recommended by their clinician 

and would recommend TMS to others if they are experiencing depression.    
 

  

Very Satisfied
53%

Satisfied 
41%

Neutral 
6%



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

121 | Page 

Figure 29.  Feedback on Mobile TMS Experience (n = 17) 

 
 

 

Level of Discomfort/Pain during and after TMS Treatment [Figure 30]:  

Clients were asked to rate their discomfort/pain during TMS treatments and after TMS treatments on a 

scale of 1-10, with 1 corresponding to “No Pain” and a score of 10 corresponding to “Very Painful”. On 

average, respondents felt mild discomfort/pain during TMS treatments (2 out of 10) and less mild 

discomfort/pain after TMS treatments (1 out of 10).  Clients most often described discomfort/pain as 

“annoying” and the the discomfort usually decreased over the course of treatment and resolved after 

treatment.  

 

Figure 30.  Average Level of Discomfort/Pain During and After Mobile TMS Treatments (n = 15) 

 
                                 

Perceived Benefits of TMS Services: 
Clients (n = 15) were asked how they felt they benefitted from participating in TMS services. As a result 
of TMS services: 

• 73% of clients stated that they that they feel happier.  

• 67% of clients stated that they feel less worried/anxious. 

• 53% of clients stated that they have more motivation to engage in meaningful activities. 

53% 88% 57% 70%

40%

12%

43%

30%

12%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Understood What to
Expect

Felt Comfortable with
TMS

TMS Important and
Improved Treatment

Participation

Would Return and
Recommend TMS

Strongly Disagree

Disagree

Neutral

Agree

Strongly Agree

2

1

0

2

4

6

8

10

1 2

Le
ve

l o
f 

D
is

co
m

fo
rt

/P
ai

n

During TMS Treatment After  TMS Treatment

Very 

Painful 

No Pain 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

122 | Page 

• 47% of clients stated that they are less frustrated, have more contact with family/friends, and have more energy. 

• 40% of clients stated that they are able to focus better, feel more relaxed, and that they have an increased abilty 

to do the things that they want to do. 

• 33% of clients stated that they are sleeping better. 

• 27% of clients stated that they have more self-confidence. 

• 20% of clients stated that they feel less body pain and are getting along better with family/friends. 

• 13% of clients stated that they are eating better. 

 

Treatment Team Survey 

A survey was provided to each of the client’s treatment team of providers. The providers were asked 

to rate their perception of their client’s improvement in mood, behavior, overall functioning, and progress 

made toward treatment goals as a result of TMS services.  A total of 20 surveys (for 17 clients) were 

completed by treatment team staff (13 Psychiatrists, 4 Therapist, 2 Case Managers, and 1 Registered 

Nurse).  

• A majority (68%) of providers “Strongly Agreed” or “Agreed” that their client demonstrated 
improvements in mood, behavior, and overall functioning (family, community, occupational) as a 
result of TMS services [Figure 31].  

• A majority of providers (85%) “Strongly Agreed” or “Agreed” that their client made progress towards 
his/her treatment goals as a result of TMS Services [Figure 31].  

 

Figure 31.  Provider Perception on the Impact of TMS - 

Services on Client’s Mood, Behavior, and Overall Functioning (n = 20)             

    
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Neutral 18%

Agree 38%

Srongly Agree 30%

Disagree 15%



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

123 | Page 

Figure 32.  Provider Perception on the Impact of TMS -  

Services on Client’s Progress Toward Treatment Goals (n = 20) 

 

 

 
D. INN 5:  Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership  

LACDMH received approval from the MHSOAC on April 26, 2018 to implement 2 teams 
comprised mostly of peer support specialists to provide FSP level services.  PeerSS FIRST will 
utilize a team primarily staffed by individuals with lived experience as mental health consumers 
or family members, supported by clinical staff, to provide intensive field-based services to 
individuals with multiple challenges including justice involvement.  Two contracted PeerSS 
FIRSTs will each serve a caseload of 50 individuals.  Each PeerSS FIRST will provide a full array 
of mental health services ranging from peer support to medication management as well as 24-
hour on-call coverage.  
 
Successful implementation of PeerSS FIRST will expand the role of peers from an adjunct or 
supportive service provider to a leading member of the treatment team and the primary contact 
for every service recipient.  PeerSS FIRST will prove the effectiveness of peer staff and peer-
based services.  
 
Status of implementation as of December 1, 2021 
Due to COVID-19, implementation of the program has been delayed. 

 
E. INN 7:  Therapeutic Transportation (TT) 

TT program was partially implemented on January 30, 2022.  Since then, DMH staff have been 
housed at Los Angeles City Fire Department (LAFD) Station 4 - Downtown area, providing 
services 24/7.  4 Licensed Psychiatric Technicians, 4 Community Health Workers, and 4 Drivers 
were trained by LAFD on communications and how to utilize the radios and IPad for deployment 
purposes.   To date, teams have responded to over 100 calls that were generated through the 
911 system.  The program has provided mental health services and when necessary transported 
to Urgent Care Centers.   
 
Currently, LAFD is training staff with the goal to expand to Station 59 - West Los Angeles/ Venice 
Area.  The teams will begin to be deployed by LAFD on March 6, 2022 to provide mental health 
services 24/7.   
 
The overall goals of the Pilot Therapeutic Transportation Project - INN 7 are to: (1) increase 
access and enhance the quality of mental health services to individual callers in crisis; (2) 
decompress EDs; (3) reduce the use of Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) resources for 

Strongly Agree 20%

Agree 40%

Neutral 25%

Disagree 15%



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

124 | Page 

mental health responses; and (4) leverage partnerships to develop a community-driven approach 
toward improving outcomes for individuals experiencing a mental health crisis. 

 
 LACDMH has developed a collaborative with Los Angeles City (City) LAFD to implement INN 7.  

The City estimates tens of thousands of emergency calls per year to its police and fire dispatch 
centers that involve people suffering from a mental health crisis. LAFD Emergency Medical 
Technicians (EMTs)/paramedics do not have the training or experience to deal with mental health 
crises and in turn, need the support of LACDMH to provide a mental health field response 
operation. 

 
 Currently, LACDMH triages mental health crises through its ACCESS hotline and deploys the 

Psychiatric Mobile Emergency Response Team (PMRT). PMRT is staffed with licensed clinicians, 
who have legal authority per Welfare and Institutions Code Sections 5150 and 5585, to initiate 
applications for evaluation of involuntary detention of individuals determined to be at risk of 
harming themselves or others due to a mental health disorder. If transportation is necessary for 
an individual, PMRT staff utilize the ACCESS hotline to request an ambulance to transport the 
individual. 

 
 However, for City mental health emergency dispatch calls, PMRT is not called to provide on-site 

mental health crisis services or to arrange an ambulance for individuals since PMRT only responds 
to community calls. To expand PMRT's role to assist with the City's mental health emergency calls, 
INN 7 will allow PMRT to work in conjunction with LAFD to assess and treat individuals with mental 
health crises through LAFD's Tiered Dispatch System and the placement of LACDMH 
Teams/PMRT staff at five select fire stations. The fire stations were identified based on their mental 
health emergency call load, proximity to a mental health urgent care facility, and inclusion within 
County Supervisorial Districts.  Each LACDMH Team is staffed with three employees: Peer 
Support Specialist, Licensed Psychiatric Technician, and Clinical Driver. 

 
 
F. INN 8:  EARLY PSYCHOSIS LEARNING HEALTHCARE NETWORK 
 LACDMH received approval from the MHSOAC for this multi-county 5-year project on December 

17, 2018 and DMH entered a contract with UC Davis to execute this project as of July 1, 2020.  
The Early Psychosis Learning Healthcare Network (LHCN) will allow counties who use a variety 
of coordinated specialty care models to treat early psychosis to collect common outcome data, 
be able to use it to inform treatment, and engage in cross-county learning informed by outcome 
data.  It includes the development of the Beehive tablet and web application.  Beehive will be 
used by programs to collect client and clinician-reported outcome data and help clinicians, clinic 
management and County administration visualize client outcome data to help inform treatment 
and track clinic and Countywide program outcomes.  The goals of the Statewide Early Psychosis 
Evaluation and LHCN are to increase the quality of mental health services including measurable 
outcomes, and to introduce a mental health practice or approach that is new to the overall mental 
health system. 

 One of LACDMH’s early psychosis coordinated specialty care models is the Portland Identification 
and Early Intervention (PIER) program to identify and comprehensively treat individuals ages 12-
25 who are at clinical high risk for psychosis (prodromal) or have experienced their first psychotic 
episode.  Five contractor teams have been trained in the PIER Model as of December 2019 and 
began community outreach and direct service in January 2020.  As of November 11, 2020, there 
are 35 clients enrolled at five clinics across Los Angeles County. 

 
 Additional funding by the National Institutes of Health (NIH) obtained by UC Davis has allowed 

the project to further expand to add additional sites. The overarching name of the project, which 
encompasses the LHCN and the NIH-funded components, is now “EPI-CAL.” In this and future 
reports, we will refer to the LHCN only when describing components of the project that are specific 
to the LHCN evaluation (e.g., county data analysis). 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

125 | Page 

 
One of the Department’s early psychosis coordinated specialty care models is the Portland 
Identification and Early Referral (PIER) program to identify and comprehensively treat individuals 
ages 12-25 who are at clinical high risk for psychosis (i.e., prodromal) or have experienced their 
first psychotic episode.  Five (5) contractor teams have been trained in the PIER Model as of 
December 2019 and began community outreach and direct service in January 2020.  As of 
November 15, 2021, there are 77 clients enrolled at five (5) clinics across Los Angeles County. 
 
Status of Implementation as of December 1, 2021 

 LACDMH entered a contract with UC Davis to execute this project as of July 1, 2020.  Since then, 
deliverables in the following areas have been completed. 

  
 Stakeholder Advisory Committee and Multi-County Quarterly Leadership Meetings 

The Advisory Committee for the LHCN is comprised of a county representative from each 
participating county, a representative from each participating EP program, and up to five (5) 
consumers and five (5) family members who have been, or are being served, by EP programs. 
Attendees receive updates and provide feedback on project elements biannually.  Recruitment 
for the Advisory Committee is ongoing, and includes past consumers, family members, clinic staff 
and providers. Advisory Committee meetings during this reporting period were held on December 
8, 2020, June 7, 2021 and November 15, 2021.  
 
Attendees reviewed progress on the development of the Beehive application, including 
development of questionnaire battery to be included in the application, surveys related to factors 
that may impact Beehive implementation (e.g., organizational readiness for change, comfort with 
technology) or consumer-level outcomes (e.g., provider burnout, stigma around mental health, 
views on recovery) and End User License Agreement (EULA) video used at enrollment in the 
Beehive application and Beehive training progress with programs.  Attendees also were also able 
to hear feedback from pilot programs about the advantages and challenges of implementing 
Beehive in their programs. 

 
Beehive Software Application Development, Pilot and Rollout 
Over the course of the past year, the EPI-CAL team has conducted extensive qualitative research 
in order to engage various stakeholders and utilize their valuable feedback to shape the 
development of the Beehive application. The team received qualitative feedback throughout the 
development of this custom application in three different types of qualitative focus groups: 1) 
wireframe focus groups, 2) alpha testing groups, and 3) data-sharing/end user license agreement 
(EULA) focus groups. They conducted a total of 23 focus groups spanning these three focus 
group types in order to get detailed feedback and suggestions for the application and dashboard 
from EP program staff, EP program consumers, and their family members.  Feedback was then 
gathered into a qualitative report summarizing results. 

 
In the wireframe focus groups, stakeholders provided feedback on the wireframe for the tablet 
and web-based applications developed collaboratively by the EPI-CAL research team and the 
software development subcontractor, Quorum. When integrating the feedback into application 
development, the team endeavored to balance consumer and family needs with provider and staff 
needs. Overall, stakeholders approved of the look and feel of the application. They provided 
feedback about color scheme, imagery and visual information.  
 
Stakeholders also provided several suggestions to improve integration of the application into their 
EP clinic workflow and procedures. Stakeholders emphasized the importance of having an option 
for clinic staff to pre-register consumers if they gather registration information over the phone prior 
to the consumer’s first visit in the clinic to reduce burden on the consumer and demonstrate that 
the clinic was well organized and listening to the information consumers and family members had 
already provided.  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

126 | Page 

 
Some stakeholders provided feedback specific to their role in the clinic. For instance, based on 
feedback from participants in a focus group with clinic administrators from various programs, the 
team subsequently built in data visualizations for race, ethnicity, sex, gender identity, and other 
metrics which clinics are commonly asked to report. On the other hand, consumers and their 
family members nearly unanimously agreed about how they wanted to view data visualizations 
on the web application with their provider.  Instead of seeing the results of the symptom survey 
as the default display, they preferred to see a more recovery-oriented measure, such as the 
Questionnaire about the Process of Recovery (QPR), when first looking at their survey responses. 

 
During focus groups with Los Angeles County stakeholders in August 2020, the team also asked 
for feedback about how to adapt both the data collection and data visualization components of 
the application for use with telehealth. Multiple EP staff participants agreed that a remote data 
collection option, which would allow consumers to complete surveys from home, would be ideal. 
Consumer and family stakeholders agreed with providers for the remote option, but were split 
between their preference for a mobile application or a personalized link that could be emailed or 
texted from their provider. Consumer and family stakeholders said they would prefer to look at 
their data with their provider and would not necessarily want individual access to look at their 
results from home.   

 
Once an Alpha version of the Beehive application was developed from the wireframes, a focus 
group was held on October 22, 2020 to elicit feedback from stakeholders on the development of 
the Beehive application. This feedback was valuable as it was the first opportunity for 
stakeholders to review the application in a production environment, rather than wireframes or 
plans.  Focus group participants made suggestions to improve the application, including changes 
to language, look and feel, features, and information presented to consumers.   

 
To develop the End User License Agreement (EULA) and presentation of data-sharing options 
for Beehive, the EPI-CAL team conducted a series of focus groups to gather stakeholder 
feedback. Two different phases of groups were conducted: (1) Data-Sharing Preferences Focus 
Groups, and (2) EULA Focus Groups.  The Phase 1 focus groups conducted in August 2020 were 
to understand stakeholders’ views on how their personal health information is and should be used 
in the EPI-CAL study including a review of definitions of key terms (e.g., privacy, confidentiality), 
a discussion focused on stakeholders’ understanding of and perspective on data sharing, 
changing sharing options, and sharing different types of data (i.e., identifiable vs. de-identified) at 
different levels (i.e., individual- and group-levels).  Using notes and preliminary analysis of the 
transcripts from these focus groups as guidance, the EPI-CAL team developed the materials for 
the EULA focus group. 

 
The Phase 2 Focus Groups were conducted in January 2021 to understand stakeholders’ 
response to how the End User License Agreement (EULA) in Beehive is presented. First, 
participants were shown an informational video (YouTube link: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jzrVmToiGmo&ab_channel=EPI-CAL) created by the 
research team presenting the key points of the Beehive EULA.  After watching the video, 
participants were asked their opinions about how the information was presented, what questions 
they still had after watching the video, and how they felt about this method of presenting a EULA. 
Participants were then shown a demonstration of how the EULA would be presented in the 
application, with a specific emphasis on the screen on which users may opt-in to data-sharing 
outside of their clinic for research purposes. Participants were asked for their perspective on how 
the information was written and presented. 

 
In general, stakeholders thought that using a video to present the EULA was a creative approach 
that may help users to understand this information better than if they were simply presented this 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

127 | Page 

information in a written format alone. All stakeholder groups commented on how to further clarify 
the information provided. 
 
Preliminary Results of Beehive Pilot 
The first part of beta testing was internal user acceptance testing (UAT) by the EPI-CAL team. 
UAT began when the developers released the beta version of Beehive to the EPI-CAL team, who 
created test clinics and users at all levels in order to test various use-scenarios to ensure Beehive 
was working as expected and report any issues in cases where there were typos, bugs, etc.  Any 
typo or bug that was found was reported in a shared review document and corrected internally, if 
possible, or sent to the developers if it was not an issue that could be resolved by the team.  
 
After the initial training on Beehive, beta testing began on March 22, 2021 in two pilot programs 
(EDAPT/SacEDAPT and Solano County SOAR Aldea; LACDMH providers were not pilot 
programs), providers and staff in each of the pilot programs shared feedback after their initial 
introduction to the Beehive application via a survey. In addition to feedback surveys, the EPI-CAL 
team assigned each pilot program an EPI-CAL staff point person. This point person manages any 
issues that arise as users implement Beehive in their assigned program including utilizing a ticket 
system that allows Beehive users to create a support request, resolve a request, and escalate a 
request outside of their clinic or group.  This similar model has also been established at LACDMH 
with two point people assigned from UC San Diego to manage support requests. 
 
Pilot programs were able to begin enrolling consumers into Beehive. After registration is complete, 
Beehive will then prompt consumers and families to complete registration, review the EULA, and 
choose data sharing permissions. When consumers finish registration in Beehive, they then have 
access to Beehive surveys. Beehive makes the EPI-CAL Enrollment Life Questions survey bundle 
available for completion (see Table 53). If a consumer is in a survey window (e.g., at intake or six 
months), Beehive makes available 15 additional surveys arranged in bundles that assess various 
outcomes including family functioning, education, social relationships, demographics and 
background, medications, and symptoms (see Table 1). EPI-CAL enrollment and required 
bundles are automatically assigned to every consumer who registers in Beehive. However, each 
individual clinic also has the option of assigning addition surveys if they choose to do so. The 
current data only include EPI-CAL enrollment and required bundles. 

 

Table 62: EPI-CAL Enrollment and Required Survey Bundles  

Bundle Name Survey Name Bundle Timing 

EPI-CAL Enrollment 
Life Questions 

EPI-CAL Enrollment Life Questions 

Enrollment only Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES) 

Primary Caregiver Background 

EPI-CAL Experiences 
Bundle 

Life Outlook 

Every 6 months, 
including intake 

Questionnaire About the Process of Recovery (QPR) 

Modified Colorado Symptom Index (MCSI) 

Substance Use 

Legal Involvement and Related 

EPI-CAL Treatment 
bundle 

Intent to Attend and Complete Treatment Scale 

Every 6 months, 
including intake 

End of Survey Questions 

Hospitalizations 

Shared Decision Making (SDM) 

Medications 

EPI-CAL Life Bundle 
SCORE-15 Every 6 months, 

including intake Demographics and Background 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

128 | Page 

Bundle Name Survey Name Bundle Timing 

Social Relationships 

Employment and Related Activities  

Education 

 

Beehive then shows them the surveys that are available for them to complete within each bundle 

(see Figure 33 below). Respondents can choose which surveys they wish to complete in the order 

they wish to complete them. 

Figure 33: Surveys Available for Consumer to Complete at Baseline 

 
 

 
 
 

During the initial phase of Beehive roll out, clinics were asked to enroll consumers and support 
persons who are already engaged in EP care. When these active consumers are enrolled, 
Beehive prompts them to complete registration, review the EULA, choose data sharing 
permissions, and complete enrollment surveys. If they are within the active 6-monthly survey 
window, they are also able to complete the EPI-CAL required bundles.   
 
At this time, we are reporting the survey completion rate from 17 consumers on the three available 
enrollment surveys because some consumers were enrolled outside of survey windows and thus 
were not presented with the remaining 15 surveys. The distribution of survey completion is 
reported in Figure 8. Survey completion rate ranges from 0-100%, with 47% of individuals 
completing all three enrollment surveys. The point person at each clinic site will track survey 
completion and inform clinic staff if there are consumers who are not completing their surveys so 
that the clinic staff may check in with consumers. 
 
To support the successful integration of the data platform into clinical practice, a series of 
interviews will be completed with providers, consumers, and family members from participating 
EPI-CAL clinics. The aims for these interviews will be to determine the acceptability of the platform 
in this setting, identify potential barriers and solutions to implementation, and explore factors that 
may facilitate implementation. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

129 | Page 

 
Overall, the interview participants interviewed identified several strengths and challenges in the 
initial implementation of Beehive. Participants elicited some concern that the current intake 
process takes significantly longer relative to previous protocols. For one participant, the 
expectation was that some of these challenges could be alleviated by the return of in-person 
assessments. Other proposals included delaying the completion of the survey to after the initial 
clinical intake, advocating for functionality changes to allow the Beehive system to send surveys 
prior to the intake date for earlier completion, and reducing the level of online support afforded to 
consumers during the completion of the surveys. These challenges highlight the importance of 
the research team providing significant support during the initial implementation process, and the 
necessity of the research process being as flexible as possible to help minimize stakeholder 
burden. In later reports, the success of implementing modifications to the intake process will be 
explored, with facilitators to efficient intake procedures being distributed across the network to 
support other programs. 
 
Additionally, after receiving feedback from Beehive beta testing, the EPI-CAL team pushed issues 
to the application developers to implement in future versions of the application. The types of 
issues reported were bugs (such as items not displaying as expected), cosmetic issues (such as 
typos and updating language and display icons), fixes to already implemented features, usability 
problems (such as expanding input characters permitted) and requested new features. 
 
Training and Rollout of Beehive in Los Angeles County 
Los Angeles County consumers and PIER Program staff were asked to complete self-report 
questionnaires in the pre-implementation period of the project during August and September 
2020. Consumers are asked to complete self-report questionnaires about insight into illness, 
perceived utility of the application, satisfaction with treatment, treatment alliance, and comfort with 
technology. Unfortunately, no data was collected from Los Angeles County clients before 
implementation.  PIER Program staff from treatment, non-treatment, and leadership roles were 
also asked to complete pre-implementation questionnaires.  The goal was to assess baseline 
factors thought to impact buy-in and adoption of new technology, like Beehive, in the clinic, and 
factors thought to impact client outcomes.  Thirty-one PIER staff across all 5 clinics completed 
the pre-implementation surveys.  Reports for each clinic were made available to LACDMH on 
December 6, 2021, and meetings to discuss outcomes with management from each program are 
planned for January 2022.  Outcomes from surveys will be reported in the next annual report. 
 
In the original LHCN proposal, in-person site visits to conduct the initial training for the Beehive 
application were proposed, however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the training plan was 
adjusted and the first training “site visits” were conducted remotely. This began with a pre-training 
meetings during the week of May 10, 2021 with leadership at all five LACDMH contracted program 
sites to discuss which program staff members would be designated as providers, group analysts, 
or group and clinic admin in Beehive, as well as to cover topics around integrating Beehive into 
their current data collection system.  
Next, the EPI-CAL team conducted a three-part training series to introduce Beehive to each 
program (Part 1, Part 2, and Part 3).  In June, 2021, the EPI-CAL team began to onboard non-
pilot sites, starting with the Los Angeles County PIER programs. All LA County PIER programs 
completed Part 1 trainings in June 2021, starting with The Help Group on June 14, 2021, The 
Whole Child on June 17, 2021, San Fernando Valley Community Mental Health Center 
(SFVCMHC) on June 18, 2021 and Institute for Multicultural Counseling and Education Services 
(IMCES) Service Area 3 and 4 on June 21, 2021.  During these meetings, a re-introduction to the 
EPI-CAL project was given, including the overarching purpose and goals of data collection via 
Beehive.  There was also a presentation on the value of Beehive and data collection, and finally, 
the Beehive Application training session was completed. 
 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

130 | Page 

During pre-training meetings and Part 1 trainings, PIER programs were able to enroll their staff 
and administrators as providers and administrators in Beehive.  As of December 1, the five PIER 
programs were able to enroll 38 staff that included both direct service providers and administrative 
staff.  Additionally, DMH has enrolled two administrators in Beehive who can access County-level 
data.  
As there was a significant gap between the Part 1 and Part 2 training due to waiting on penetration 
testing results and DMH information security approval, as well as a new training cohort of 20 PIER 
staff in September 2021, refresher sessions for the Beehive Part 1 training were offered by 
Beehive staff on October 28, 2021 and November 3, 2021 in preparation of the Part 2 training. 
 
The second Beehive training focused on how providers can utilize individual level data in care. 
Next, the training details the types of urgent clinical issues that are currently tracked by Beehive, 
including “Risk to self”, “Risk to others”, “Risk of homelessness,” and “Plan to stop taking 
medication.” To conclude the training, the trainer introduces the “Data Use in Care” question pop 
up and its different response options. These data will contribute to a data-driven understanding 
of Beehive’s impact (e.g., whether and how staff use data as part of treatment) on the participating 
programs of the LHCN. 
 
All LA County PIER programs completed Part 2 trainings in November 2021, starting with 
SFVCMHC on November 18, 2021, IMCES Service Area 3 and 4 on November 19, 2021, The 
Whole Child on November 23, 2021 and The Help Group on November 29, 2021.  Part 3 trainings 
for all sites are currently being scheduled for December 2021.   
Additionally, each program will undergo a fidelity assessment to determine their adherence to 
evidence-based practices for first-episode services using a revised version of the First Episode 
Psychosis Services Fidelity Scale (FEPS-FS). The FEPS-FS represents a standardized measure 
of fidelity to EP program best practices (Addington et al., 2016; First Episode Psychosis Services 
Fidelity Scale: (FEPS-FS 1.0), 2015).  Fidelity assessments for each of the 5 Los Angeles County 
PIER programs are scheduled for July, August and September 2022. 
 
County-level Historical Data Analysis 
As part of the LHCN evaluation, service utilization and costs are compared between EP and 
comparator outpatient programs in that county who serve similar consumers with EP diagnoses. 
These comparator programs are identified by input from county representatives and an evaluation 
of county level data to identify where first-episode psychosis consumers are typically treated in 
their county outside of the EP program. Individuals with EP diagnoses, within the same age group, 
who enter standard care outpatient programs during that same time period, will be identified as 
part of the comparator group (CG). This analysis focuses on data from Los Angeles, San Diego, 
Orange, Napa, and Solano Counties only, until other counties join the LHCN and opt in to this 
part of the project. For this component of the project, the evaluation has two phases: 1) the three 
years prior to the start of this project (e.g., January 1, 2017 – December 31, 2019) to harmonize 
data across counties, and 2) for the 3.5-year period contemporaneous with the prospective EP 
program level data collection to account for potential historical trends during the evaluation period. 
 
LACDMH was able to provide retrospective EP program de-identified datasets for 91 clients from 
the CAPPS Early Psychosis program through a secure UC Davis web portal on February 18, 
2021, and for comparator data for 19,856 clients on November 9, 2021. 

 
 Number of clients served for FY 2020-21 (where applicable): 
 Because Part 1 Trainings for Beehive did not begin until June 2021 and final approval of 

penetration test results by the LACDMH Information Security Officer occurred on September 13, 
2021, the first consumers were not enrolled in Beehive until October 22, 2021.  However, as of 
December 1, 2021, eight existing consumers and nine primary support persons of those 
consumers were enrolled throughout Los Angeles County. All clients are pending to complete the 
EULA process and assigned survey bundles in Beehive.   



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

131 | Page 

 
 Outcome data being collected and any analysis of impact to date 
 Qualitative data - Outcome Domain and Outcome Measure Selection 
 As the focus of this annual year period has been to develop the Beehive application which will be 

used in data collection, outcomes data is limited.  At this time, there is no client outcome data for 
Los Angeles County as LACDMH did not participate in the pilot. 

 
Once the two pilot EP programs (EDAPT/SacEDAPT and Solano County SOAR Aldea) were 
trained in March 2021, programs were able to begin enrolling consumers into Beehive. As of May 
31, 2021, 41 consumers were registered in Beehive across both pilot clinics and of those, 22 
consumers completed their EULA indicating their data sharing permissions and 17 consumers 
agreed to share their data with UC Davis (77%).   The goal was to have 70% of consumers agree 
to share their data with UC Davis and NIH. It is important to note that clinic staff register 
consumers and invite them to Beehive; consumers then complete their registration and then have 
the ability to complete surveys. So, if someone has been registered in Beehive, it does not 
necessarily mean that they have completed any of the outcomes surveys available in Beehive. 

 
As stated above, Los Angeles County will continue to provide updates on client outcomes once 
more clients are enrolled in Beehive and begin completing surveys.  Additionally, as county-level 
utilization and cost data are analyzed by UC Davis in the next annual period, a preliminary 
evaluation for both EP and comparator group programs is expected in subsequent annual reports. 

  
 

 

References 

 Niendam et al., 2021. FY 2020/21 Annual Innovation Report: Early Psychosis Learning Health 

Care Network.  Pending submission. Prepared by UC Davis, San Francisco and San Diego. 

 

◼  INNOVATION 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$24.0 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$26.3 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$12.6 million 
Estimated Gross 
Expenditures 

$34.6 million 
Estimated Gross 
Expenditures 

 

 

  

Does not include program administration costs 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

132 | Page 

CAPITAL FACILITIES AND TECHNOLOGICAL NEEDS (CFTN) 
 

A. CAPITAL FACILITIES 
▪ Olive View Mental Health Wellness Center  

LACDMH will provide an array of outpatient mental health and supportive services for clients 
who live with serious mental illness at the Mental Health Wellness Center.  This Center will 
be complete and operational in the spring of 2022. 
 

▪ High Desert Mental Health Urgent Care Center (UCC) 
UCCs provide 24/7 rapid access to mental health evaluation and assessment, intervention, 
and medication support. They also support the County’s efforts to decompress psychiatric 
emergency services, reduce unnecessary hospitalizations, thereby improving access to 
mental health treatment and services. The facility opened in July 2021. 

 
▪ LAC+USC, Olive View and Rancho Crisis Residential Treatment Programs (CRTPs) 

CRTPs provide a short-term alternative to hospitalization to address mental health needs. The 
services are designed to resolve the immediate needs and improve the level of functionality 
of the individuals so that they can return to a less intensive treatment environment via care 
coordination and discharge planning. Residents participate in the development of recovery-
oriented, individualized plans that promote the goal of becoming self-sufficient and going into 
permanent supportive housing. The CRTPs are scheduled to open in the spring of 2022.  
 

B. TECHNOLOGICAL NEEDS 
 

▪ ACCESS Call Center Modernization Project 
The approved funding shift allows the Department to engage with a consultant to modernize the 
existing antiquated Call Center into the hub in accessing services with the DMH system of care.  
The Call Center will provide end-to-end assistance in an efficient and client-focused manner 
utilizing an agent and client centered design.  Project goals are as follows: 

- Reduce the number of software applications used by agents by developing a single view 
with end-to-end care visibility in order to best meet the needs of the caller 

- Allow for integration with other systems (e.g., law enforcement) for receiving, assessing, 
triaging and mounting non-law enforcement responses to crises cross our communities 

- Provide integration technology between the Call Center and service providers (including 
crisis response) in order to reduce time-to-care, maximize service capacity and improve 
coordination of services 

- Develop self-service capabilities and alternative access-points designed by feedback 
from the community 

- Automate call and client analytics to ensure the Call Center is meeting the needs of the 
community and responding in a timely manner. 

 
On September 28, 2021, DMH posted a solicitation to secure the services of a vendor for the 
ACCESS Call Center Modernization Project. A bidders conference was held on October 5, 2021. 
As of February 2022, DMH has received multiple bids for this solicitation and is in the evaluation 
process. This evaluation process is anticipated to be completed no later than spring 2022. 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

133 | Page 

 
 

◼  CAPITAL FACILITIES AND TECHNOLOGICAL NEEDS 

Prior FY 2020-21 Prior FY 2019-20 

$3.5 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

$5.3 million 
Total Gross Expenditures 

FY 2022-23 
Three-Year Plan 
FYs 2021-24 

$8.5 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

$8.5 million 
Estimated  
Gross Expenditures 

 
  

 
 
 
  

Does not include program administration costs 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

134 | Page 

EXHIBITS  
 
EXHIBIT A - FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 
 
  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

135 | Page 

 
 

 
 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

136 | Page 

 

 
 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

137 | Page 

 

 

 

 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

138 | Page 

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

139 | Page 

EXHIBIT B - MHSA COUNTY COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 
 

 

 
 
 
 

6/28/2022 

Darlesh Horn, DPP 

(213) 943-8475 

dhorn@dmh.lacounty.gov 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

140 | Page 

EXHIBIT C - MHSA COUNTY FISCAL ACCOUNTABILITY CERTIFICATION 
 
 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

141 | Page 

EXHIBIT D - MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION LETTER 
 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

142 | Page 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

143 | Page 

 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

144 | Page 

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

145 | Page 

 

 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

146 | Page 

EXHIBIT E –MHC COMMISSION LETTERS OF SUPPORT   
 

Partnership: Adventist Health White Memorial, Family Care Specialist 

Medical Group/Altais & Wellnest 

 

The purpose of the partnership between Adventist Health White Memorial (AHWM), Family Care 

Specialist Medical Group (FCSMG), and Wellnest is to integrate health care and mental health 

services for mild to moderate patients at the clinic level and SMI services at the hospital setting.  This 

model of care will help reduce ED visits, improve community well-being and care coordination, and 

create better systems of care.  With this project our goal is to show how patients can be better cared 

when communication is streamlined, services are closely located, bilingual/ bicultural care is 

provided, and there is an infrastructure to facilitate this process. This is a community based/focused 

model of integrated care.    
  

 

1. Family Care Specialists Medical Group Clinics: 

Family Care Specialist clinics are community-based and Latinx-led.  FCS Medical Group/Altais comprise four 

privately-owned medical clinics that focus on different payer types: Medi-Medi, Medi-Cal, Medicare, and 

commercial plans serving about 30,000 patients. 

Clinic: 

 

a. AHWM campus clinic 402: has case management services through Blue Shield.  In addition, MSW interns 

will work in this clinic as part of workforce development pipeline pilot.  This will be in partnership with 

local colleges and universities.  

b. AHWM campus clinic 230: has a Family Residency Program, a psychologist to work with residents, and 

care manager services. 

c. Montebello clinic 

d. Highland Park clinic 

 

2. Wellnest: 

Partnership with Wellnest provides mild to moderate services to all patients who need mental health services and 

have a medical condition. Referral process is in place, and patients are currently being referred. Wellnest’s office 

is located above clinic 402, in Suite 532. This is an Integrated Services Management (ISM) program with focus on 

the Latinx community. Bilingual/bicultural services provided in Boyle Heights: 

Services: 

 

a. Therapist 

b. Psychiatry (psychiatric medicine management) 

c. Case management 

d. Peer support 

e. Non-traditional providers/services 

f. Outreach and engagement 

 

3. “Café con Pan: Talks and Activities” are group-style sessions that provide information to participants on 

a variety of topics such as meditation and breathing techniques. The purpose of the talks is to help introduce 

participants to different approaches to well-being, destigmatize mental health, and enroll participants in Wellnest’s 

services. This is a collaboration between AHWM, FSCMG, and Wellnest.  

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

147 | Page 

The classes take place in Adventist Health White Memorial Hospital’s community garden and allows for 

participants to listen and openly discuss their feelings. Maximum capacity is 20 people, and all are welcome. 

Classes are free and snacks, coffee, tea, and water are provided during sessions. Sessions are held in Spanish and 

English. 

Presenters: 

1. DMH Promotoras 

2. Wellnest staff 

3. Doctors from AHWM and Residents from family medicine program 

4. Chase Community Outreach — Benny Sanchez, Community Manager 

 

4. Mental Health Trainings: 

Mental health trainings for all staff at FCS clinics will be targeted at two groups: clinicians (doctors, nurses, PAs, 

and NPs) and support/admin staff.  The trainings will happen quarterly, and the objectives are to understand 

mental health, destigmatize, help better diagnose patients, improve medication management, promote awareness, 

and provide more inclusive care for LGBTQ+ patients. We will work with psychologist Dr. Geny Zapata, Psy.D. 

to implement and add to her trainings.   

Trainers: 

 

a. DMH Speaker’s Bureau 

b. DMH Promotoras 

c. Wellnest 

d. Dr. Geny Zapata 

 

5. Adventist Health White Memorial Hospital: 

AHWM provides SMI services through the Behavioral Health (BH) unit funded through LACDMH.  The 

Continuum of Care Department (CCD) provides social work services to the different hospital units but needs mild 

to moderate mental health services for the patients who are discharged from hospital. The plan is to work with BH 

unit and CCD to help streamline services between mild to moderate and SMI. Also, one of the objectives of this 

project is to improve communication with patients’ primary care physician (PCP) on plan of care for mental 

health services. 

Departments:  

 

a. Continuum of Care Dept./Social Work Dept. 

b. Behavioral Health Unit 

c. Community Resource Center 

 

6. Adventist Health Community Clinic (FQHC) 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

148 | Page 

 

  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

149 | Page 

 

 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

150 | Page 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

151 | Page 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

152 | Page 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

153 | Page 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

154 | Page 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

155 | Page 

  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

156 | Page 

 

 

 

 

 

Asian Pacific Policy & Planning Council’s Proposal for Expansion of DMH Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

157 | Page 

 

PROPOSAL SUMMARY 

The Asian Pacific Policy & Planning Council (A3PCON) is a coalition of community-based organizations 

that advocates for the rights and needs of the Asian and Pacific Islander American (APIA) Community 

in the greater Los Angeles area, with a particular focus on low income, immigrant, refugee and other 

disadvantaged sectors of the population.  To accomplish this mission, A3PCON strives to: 

• Serve as a vehicle for promoting the needs, interests and concerns of the APIA Community to 

policy makers and the public. 

• Promote collaboration, planning and collective action amongst its members to support 

common advocacy/policy, organizational development and capacity-building goals. 

• Activate the APIA electorate and promote public accountability to the APIA Community 

through non-partisan political and electoral participation. 

The A3PCON Mental Health Provider Network is comprised of 12 culturally competent community 

based agencies whose multidisciplinary staff provide services in 12 Asian languages. They provide 

these services in over 20 locations and in every service area of the county. 

Collectively, the following members of the A3PCON Mental Health Provider Network are requesting 

expansion in the following categories to expand service to the API Community: 

 

Cambodian Advocacy Collaborative 

Center for Pacific Asian Families 

Chinatown Service Center 

Little Tokyo Service Center 

Pacific Asian Alcohol and Drug Program 

Federation of Filipino American Associations 

Samoan National Nurses Association 

Search to Involve Filipino Americans 

South Asian Network 

Special Service for Groups, Inc. 

 

 

PROPOSAL TO EXPAND API FSP SERVICES 

Overview: 

• Access to care: Increase utilization of programs and strategies that target Underserved Cultural 

Communities and the use of non-traditional practices to engage these specific communities 

• Reducing Disparities: Increase the number of API FPS slots to match the reflected increase of the API 

population as service utilization rates have remained stagnant as the population has continued to grow 

but only accounts for 4% of all clients in mental health programs 

• Cultural Competence: Demonstrate cultural competence in serving API consumers as a condition 

to receiving funding. Targeted, culturally and linguistically competent programs and providers 

show significant success over mainstream programs. 

 

 

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

158 | Page 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Requested FSP Funding 

 

Goal: Expands the FSP slots allocated to the existing API provider network as well as develop the 

capability of additional API community based providers. DMH funds are imperative for development 

and capacity building for successful engagement of API high needs consumers. 

  
Current Year 1 Increase Year 2 Increase Year 3 Increase Total at year 3 

Older 

Adult 

45 41 
$1,615,000 

40  
$2,185,000 

40  
$2,755,000 

166 

330 

270 

275 

Adult 121 69  $3,610,000 70  $4,750,000 70  $5,890,000 

TAY 30 75  $1,995,000 80  $3,515,000 85  $4,465,000 

Child 83 57  $2,717,000 65  $3,952,000 70  $5,130,000 

 

 

PROPOSAL TO EXPAND API WELLNESS ACTIVITIES AND RRR SERVICES 

In order to provide an adequate continuum of care in LA County for API consumers in all age groups 

under the FSP, ISM, FCCS, and other contracts, the current lack of funding for wellness activities and 

RRR services for APIs must be addressed.  Since the inception of the API FSP collaborative, FCCS 

funding was not allocated under the countywide contracts. 

With three proposals in the pipeline to DMH that address disparity for APIs, it is critical that funding for 

recovery based and wellness-focused services for API clients and family members be given priority.   

Proposed Funding:  

Request for RRR (Formerly FCCS) Funding:  We propose that $12,500 be allocated for each FSP client 

to provide wellness activities and RRR services plus an additional Wellness amount for Older Adults.  

Details in chart below. 

 

FSP Expansion:   Year 1 – total 500 API FSP slots countywide 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

159 | Page 

   Year 2 – total 725 API FSP slots countywide 

   Year 3 – total 950 API FSP slots countywide 

 

Goal: Expands the continuum of care for high need API consumers initially served through FSP, allows FSP 

consumers to step down, and provides access for those not qualified for FSP due to acuity (i.e. mild to 

moderate). RRR can be instrumental in preventing individuals from needing a higher level of care and 

promote recovery.  
 

Requested* Year 1 Increase Year 2 Increase Year 3 Increase 

Older 

Adult 

44 $550,000 75 $937,500 105 $1,312,500 135 $1,687,500 

Wellness $50,000 Wellness $100,000 Wellness $150,000 

Adult 121 $1,512,500 180 $2,250,000 240 $3,000,000 300 $3,750,000 

TAY 30 $375,000 105 $1,312,500 180 $2,250,000 255 $3,187,500 

Child 83 $1,037,500 140 $1,750,000 200 $2,500,000 260 $3,250,000 

*Requested RRR amount based on current FSP slots. Amount calculated based on $12,500 annually including service 

delivery costs and flex dollars 

RRR Costs for API FSP clients:  Year 1  = $6,300,000 

      Year 2  = $15,462,500 

      Year 3  - $27,487,000 

 

Community Partner Empowerment Project:  $285,000 per year (see proposal for details) 

Expansion of API ISMs:  3 ISMs x 50 enrollees x $5000 pp $750,000 per year 

 

TOTAL RRR Costs for FSP, Community Partner Empowerment and ISM proposals: 

Total for Year One:      $7,335,000 

Total for Year Two:      $23,832,000 

Total for Year Three:      $28,522,000 

 

This proposal would address Gap #7 regarding the lack of recovery based and wellness-focused 

services for API clients from the DMH Disparities Report.   



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

160 | Page 

Consumers during the input process felt strongly that funding should be included for family 

members, too.  They feel that for APIs the support and involvement of the family is a key element in 

the recovery of the client.  Services that assist family members in this process should be part of the 

wellness process. 

 

Proposed Implementation: 

We highly recommend that the strategies and interventions developed under the Innovation Plan One 

API ISMs be used as a model of care for recovery based and wellness focused services and RRR funding 

allow for the billing of these activities.  This would be in addition to the DMH list of RRR activities and 

goals (See Addendum B below).  Each API community or ethnic group must have individualized 

approaches that are culturally sensitive and relevant, but there are commonalities that can be used as 

a blueprint for success:  

1. Hire staff at all levels who are bilingual and culturally knowledgeable about their community, 
the country of origin, the cultural norms and traditions, and even the politics of the place of 
origin as well as the community in LA County.  Recruitment of community members for staff 
positions is important. 

a. Hire staff who understand how that community operates, the hierarchy of power, etc. 
b. Hire staff who will be respected by the community. 
c. Hire staff who are committed to supporting clients towards recovery. 

2. Emphasize employment opportunities for clients so they have more meaningful roles and jobs. 
This includes hiring FT employment specialists for the RRR level clients who assist the consumer 
to determine their job goal as well as actively outreach to employers for positions, following the 
CalWORKs EBP of Individual Placement and Support Supported Employment (IPS-SE).  The 
employment specialist would follow-up with the consumer to troubleshoot communication and 
life skill issues, monitor progress, and ensure client satisfaction with their employment. 

3. Utilize the Support Specialists, peer and family advocates more fully at each agency with the 
goal of attaining full time employment.  Agencies should provide them with frequent training 
opportunities that expand their skills and improve their changes for promotions within the 
system.  Clinical staff should receive training on how a peer strengthens the clinical team and 
what their role in treatment will be for a client and family members. 

4. Understand the role of spirituality or religion within that community and incorporate them into 
the treatment plan. 

5. Use practices such as meditation, dance, gardening, cooking, etc. as part of whole person 
approach to health. 

6. Use a trauma focused approach to care for the client and the family. 
7. Encourage a whole person approach to care that includes physical health, substance abuse and 

emotional well-being. 
8. Utilize strategies that encourage clients and family members to meet one another to decrease 

isolation, share information and support one another. 
a. Developing groups with a concrete purpose such as artwork, sewing, handicrafts where 

participants are encouraged to interact. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

161 | Page 

b. Encourage clients to participate in community activities with staff support such as 
community fairs, cultural events, etc. so they become comfortable going back to the 
community. 

c. Use of rehab specialist or navigators so clients can learn needed skills such as how to 
use the bus, financial skills, applying for benefits, etc. 

d. Encourage family members to use supplementary services such as respite care for 
themselves. 

 

PROPOSAL TO EXPAND API ISMs 

Given the diversity of the API communities in LA County that includes 40 plus ethnicities and over 30 

languages, we propose the expansion of the 3 current RRR-ISM models and the formation of 3 new API 

ISMs.  All of these API ISMs should be flexible enough to allow for either regional populations or single 

ethnic-specific programs depending on the needs and resources of that community.   

Double the size and budget of the three current API ISMs. We propose doubling the existing ISMs to 

allow for the following: 

1. Korean ISM (KISM) – Double the size of the KISM agencies.  The demand for services in the 
Korean community continues to surpass the available services, particularly for the Adult and 
Older Adult populations. The KISM has increased annual client slots by 50% from 54 to 81 over 
the past 5 years and it continues to enroll more clients than it can serve in the Adult and Older 
Adult categories.  The number of days that clients have to wait before enrollment has steadily 
increased by 20 days.1  

2. Cambodian ISM (INC Program) –Expand the INC Program to include other Southeast Asian 
populations, such as Thai, Hmong and/or Laotian and increase the service area to the entire 
county.  These populations have many similarities in their culture, customs and traditions but 
are also uniquely individual. The Hmong and Laotian communities tend to cluster in the Long 
Beach area where PACS already has infrastructure capacity in its INC Program.  In FY2017-18, 
PACS has already subcontracted with Thai CDC under its PEI COS contract to conduct 
community outreach services to Thais, primarily in SA2 and SA4.  There is a definitive number of 
Thais in the Long Beach (SA8) area as well.   

a. See Addendum A for Cambodian client feedback on this proposal below. 
3. Chinese ISM (CISM) – Double the size and expand the CISM program to include the Vietnamese 

population. Asian Pacific Family Center, which provides the mental health services under the 
Chinese ISM, states that approximately 20% of the agency’s clients (500) identify as Vietnamese 
and another 25% (625) as Chinese-Vietnamese, who immigrated from Vietnam but are 
originally of Chinese ancestry. Although the Chinese-Vietnamese clients could be served under 
the Chinese ISM because they can speak some Chinese and have Chinese ancestry, about 1 in 3 
would prefer to receive services in Vietnamese, which is their stronger language.  
 

 
1 To accommodate the need in the Korean community, the existing KISM led by KYCC could be 
expanded and a second Korean ISM could be established led by another agency.  



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

162 | Page 

We recommend adding three additional API ISMs.  At this time, we envision THREE entirely new API 

ISMs to reach populations that are of sufficient size in LA County but still largely underserved:   

1. Filipino ISM – This is the second largest API ethnic group in LA County after the Chinese, but it is 
severely underserved for mental health services.  The population is dispersed throughout LA 
County and there is a lack of culturally specific programs and services tailored to this 
community’s needs.  

2. South Asian ISM – The Asian Indian, Pakistani, and Bangladeshi populations are of a significant 
size in LA County yet there have been few culturally specific mental health services dedicated to 
this population.  The depth of need in its many communities as well as the many languages of 
the diverse population have made it difficult to select just one population.   

3. Pacific Islander ISM – Pacific Islanders have some of the poorest health outcomes of any racial 
or ethnic group in the County, yet they are severely underserved and often overlooked amongst 
the API communities. Some of the suggested populations would include Samoan, Native 
Hawaiian, Tongan, and/or Guamanian.  
  

Proposed Funding:  $3,600,000 

Approximately $600,000 added to each of the existing ISMs plus $600,000 for each of the new ISMs. 6 

ISMs (3 expanded + 3 new) x $600,000 

Each of these regional groupings may include several different nationalities, ethnicities, languages and 

religious beliefs.  Each is unique, but several may share some commonalities.  Our recommendation is 

based: 

A. On the knowledge that for most of the new or expanded ISMs, their numbers are not large 
enough to sustain the needed outreach and client enrollments to be a stand-alone ISM.   

B. Many of these communities do not have a CBO large enough to handle the requirements to 
become a legal entity under DMH at this time.   

C. Existing API ISMs have the knowledge, experience and infrastructure to expand services to their 
additional communities in a shorter amount of time. They can serve as a rich resource to 
mentor the new ISMs. 

D. If the API communities must wait until these two conditions are met - sufficient numbers and 
meet the requirements to become a DMH legal entity – they will continue to be underserved 
for many years despite a documented need for mental health services now. 
 

This proposal would address two gaps identified in the DMH Disparities Report: 

Gap #1: Underutilization of public mental health services by APIs.  This proposal would expand the 

current network of providers, implement strategies that address the unique needs of API 

subpopulations, increase awareness of mental illness through culturally relevant outreach 

activities through partnerships and collaborations with established community networks and 

increase the number of API consumers.   



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

163 | Page 

Gap #2: Recognize that API sub-populations are unique, culturally diverse and are separated by many 

challenges such as language, religion and cultural beliefs.  This proposal would address this at 

the sub-population level while involving many community stakeholders and relevant 

organizations. 

Proposed Implementation: 

Each lead agency must commit to have individualized activities, strategies and programs for each of 

their ethnic communities.  This is especially important when it comes to non-traditional practices.  

Community specific workers and peers need to be hired to develop trust with each community. 

Each lead agency would subcontract out OEE to the smaller CBOs that are already working with that 

population. The goal would be to mentor these CBOs to become independent providers over time. If 

there are no CBOs as is probably the case with the Hmong and Laotians, the lead agency would use in-

house staffing to provide direct services and recruit community workers for OEE. 

Some of the enrollment requirements such as having an FQHC for each ethnic community may need 

modification.  For example, the lead agency will commit to find medical care for enrollees if their FQHC 

is not available due to location or linguistic barriers.  If the ACA continues, many of these potential 

clients may already have medical care through a local physician whom they may wish to continue with.   

Allowing for regional ISMs provides an opportunity for each collaborative to grow and evolve based on 

the community’s needs. For example, based on the opportunities and challenges described above, the 

South Asian ISM might want to start with the Bangladeshi and Indian communities but later expand to 

encompass another South Asian community.  As the mental health needs of an underserved, emerging 

population are identified, the regional ISMs should be allowed to include them.  

The implementation of these collaborative ISMs will be challenging.  This proposal recognizes that it is 

an enormous undertaking for the lead agencies to be community specific, culturally humble to each 

group and innovative enough to do effective OEE. There are probably new implementation strategies 

that will need to be tested and refined for these communities.  Flexibility must be built into the 

implementation process so changes can be made as needed.  However without such an expansion, 

many of the smaller and/or emerging API communities will never be adequately served. 

Cambodian ISM Expansion (move to Cambodian narrative?) 

In December 2017, nine Cambodian clients from the INC Program and two peer advocates met to discuss the 

feasibility of expanding the Cambodian ISM.  This is a summary of their discussion.  Overall they had a positive 

response to the proposal as well as identifying some of the challenges. 

1. How do you feel about having other Southeast Asians (SEA – such as Thai, Lao and Hmong) join the INC Program? 
a. Happy to: 

i. Share experiences, cultures and language differences 
ii. Beneficial to have more SEA people access the services of an ISM 

iii. Promotes openness and acceptance of other cultural differences 
iv. Promotes a feeling of being united as Asian Americans 

2. How about the addition of non-traditional services? 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

164 | Page 

a. They would like to see the addition of traditional Khmer Blessing dance as well as classical, folk and social 
dances. 

b. Add traditional New Year games 
c. Add groups that teach arts and crafts.  They see this as way to empowerment as they would like to sell 

these. 
d. Add groups for traditional music classes. 

3. What are the challenges/barriers to grouping SEA into the INC Program? 
a. Currently there is no language specific materials for the other countries.  This would need to be 

developed. 
b. There is the challenge of hiring staff with language capacity. 
c. There are some differences in each community’s non-traditional practices. 

i. There is a history of political conflicts. These cannot be ignored but they need to be addressed in 
a culturally sensitive manner. 

ii. There may be unresolved feelings of animosity or resentment.  The remembrance of these 
conflicts may re-trigger symptoms due to past trauma. 

 

Cambodian Multigenerational Expanded Services 

The Cambodian population experiences significant physical health, mental health, socioeconomic, and 
educational disparities which the effects of span across generations. In human developmental terms, 
Cambodian immigrants and refugees are among the most traumatized populations in the United 
States. Cambodian refugees faced the “Killing Fields” genocide firsthand from 1975-1979 and were, 
virtually without exception, left traumatized by their experience and its aftermath, the indeterminacy 
of flight, camp life and resettlement in poor, high-crime neighborhoods in America. The cognitive 
impact of torture and the refugee experience often results in traumatic emotional distress, depression, 
memory loss, concentration problems, learning difficulties. Although decades have passed since the 
war and genocide in Cambodia, a study by RAND involving Long Beach Cambodians found “shockingly 
high” rates of post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) among this population; 62% met the DMS-IV 
diagnosis criteria for PTSD and 51% met diagnostic criteria for major depression2. Over time, 
experiences of extreme untreated and unresolved trauma can result in patterns of emotional distress, 
poor sleep, unhealthy diet, physical inactivity, and other health-compromising behaviors, which if left 
unaddressed, result in severe mental illness and chronic disease.  
 
The Cambodian Advocacy Collaborative recognizes that Cambodians have been suffering from the 
disproportionate mental health disparities and challenges that have become multigenerational, 
extending past the first generation of refugees to the youth who are American-born citizens. In a study 
by Khmer Girl in Action (KGA) of youth engaged in their program, 50% of Cambodian youth surveyed 
reported depressive symptoms3. Sixty-four percent of Cambodians have five or more chronic health 
conditions that include co-morbid PTSD and depression4. A most recent Community Needs Assessment 

 
2 Marshall, G.N. et al. Mental Health of Cambodian Refugees 2 Decades After Resettlement in the United States. Journal of the American 

Medical Association, 2005 294(5), 571-579. 
3 Khmer Girl in Action (KGA), Step Into Long Beach, Exposing How Cambodian American Youth are Under Resourced, Over Policed and 

Fighting Back for /their Wellness.  A participatory action research project funded by the UCLA Center for Community Partnership, the 

Women’s Foundation of California, the Third Wave Foundation, Asian American/Pacific Islander in Philanthropy’s National Gender and 

Equity Campaign, the Dwight Stuart Youth Foundation, and the California Endowment. November 2011. 
4 Berthold, S.M. et al.  Comorbid Mental and Physical Health and Health Access in Cambodian Refugees in the U.S. Journal of Community 

Health, 2014.  http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/24651944. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

165 | Page 

conducted by the California State University Long Beach and the CAC partners in 2017 indicates that 
one out of two Cambodians in Long Beach have depressive symptoms, 25.4% have either attempted 
suicide or knew someone who attempted suicide5.  Furthermore, the majority of Cambodians have 
incomes below the poverty level.  Overall, these factors result in Cambodians be between ages 45-64 
get sick and die an average of 10-15 years younger than their counterparts in other ethnic groups6. 
 
The proposed expansion of services under Full Service Partnership (FSP) and Recovery, Resilience & 

Reintegration (RRR) services will reduce the mental health disparities and risk factors for very severe 

mental illness and increase protective factors among the Cambodian community and will in turn help 

to reduce mental health disparities for the overall API community.  

Overall expected outcomes are 

• Access to care: Increase access to appropriate mental services to the severely underserved 

Cambodian community including low-income, aging Cambodians who are at risk of severe 

mental illness and Younger Cambodians, including transition-age youth (TAY) at-risk of severe 

mental illness 

• Reducing Disparities: Reduce the mental health disparities and the risk factors for very severe 

mental illness and increases protective factors among Cambodians 

• Cultural Competence: Demonstrate cultural competence in serving API/Cambodian 

consumers with targeted, culturally and linguistically competent programs and providers 

to increase access to community resources, promote discussion of mental health needs 

earlier, and reduce mental health stigma in the community 

 

Filipino Expanded Services 

The Search to Involve Pilipino Americans, Pacific Asian Alcohol and Drug Program, and the Federation 

of Filipino Associations 

 

A3PCON MENTAL HEALTH COMMUNITY PARTNER PROFILES 

 

Cambodian Association of America 

The Cambodian Association of America (CAA), incorporated as a nonprofit organization in 1975, is the 
oldest and largest Cambodian organization in the United States. The organization has been 
instrumental in establishing the Cambodian community across the United States, especially in Long 
Beach, and promoting small businesses along the Anaheim and Atlantic corridors, an area known to 

 
5 CSULB & Cambodian Advocacy Collaborative, Community Needs Assessment. A participatory action research project funded by the 

California Endowment Building Healthy Community, 2017. 
6 National Cambodian American Health Initiative, in partnership with the University of Connecticut School of Pharmacy, Funded by 

Centers for Disease Control & Prevention Grant#558DP000988 

Wong, Eunice C., et al.  RAND Corporation.  Santa Monica, CA.  The Unusually Poor Physical Health Status of Cambodian Refugees Two 

Decades After Resettlement.  Journal of Immigrant Minority Health, 13, 876-882. 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

166 | Page 

many as “Cambodia Town.” The mission of the early founders was to assist Cambodian refugees in 
acculturating and assimilating to life in America, while preserving the Cambodian culture, customs, and 
values. CAA’s current mission is to improve the quality of life of low-income children and families by 
providing linguistically and culturally appropriate social, health, mental health, outreach education and 
employment services.  
 
Since 2000, CAA has expanded services to serve non-Asian groups, including Hispanics, African 
Americans, Caucasians, and others. CAA’s current programs include counseling and advocacy 
programs, such as the Community Family Preservation Program, the Domestic Violence Program, the 
Substance Abuse Outpatient Counseling Program, the Child Abuse, Neglect Prevention and 
Intervention, and the Cambodian Senior Services. CAA has over 10 years of experience in providing 
mental health services. CAA’s other programs include: Substance Abuse Community Prevention 
Services, Healthy Marriage Education Services, Career Enhancement and Job Placement Services, 
Lifeline Outreach Education services, Citizenship Network and Legal Assistance, the Cambodian Art 
Preservation Program, and Cambodian Radio Broadcast (106.3 FM).  Each year, over 4,500 people 
receive direct services from CAA, and our outreach education programs reach over 35,000 people 
annually. 
 

Cambodian Advocacy Collaborative 

The Cambodian Advocacy Collaborative (CAC) made up of five nonprofit agencies dedicated to health, 
mental health, and social service provision in the greater Long Beach Area. The CAC is made up of 
Cambodian Association of America (CAA) mentioned above, the United Cambodian Community (UCC), 
Khmer Parents Association (KPA), Families in Good Health (FiGH), and The Khmer Girl in Action (KGA). 

• Families in Good Health (FiGH) developed and implemented its original perinatal health 
education program in 1987 and has built on this model over the years (with the indigenous 
Community Health Worker as the crux of this home visitation model). Based on the model of 
the indigenous community facilitator (as used to reach low-literate communities in rural areas 
of developing countries), the Community Health Worker (CHW) serves as the essential bridge 
between the Southeast Asian family and the Western health care system. FiGH (CHW) provide 
the cultural linkage to the Southeast Asian community that they serve and enable Families in 
Good Health to build strong reputations with families, local Buddhist temples, agencies and 
other community partners. These CHWs facilitate needed cultural access for our clients and 
families through services like linguistic translation, cultural interpretation, health and nutrition 
education, development of culturally appropriate educational materials and cultural sensitivity 
training for health and social service professionals.  In 1989, FiGH implemented a home 
visitation model for seniors (known as the Older Southeast Asian Health Project), an approach 
synonymous with practices currently recognized as “aging in place.” FiGH adapted its bilingual, 
bicultural Health Navigator model so as to train CHWs as Community Health Navigators – These 
Navigators are equipped to navigate community members to services, while providing culturally 
and linguistically appropriate support.   
 

• Khmer Parent Association's (KPA) mission is to produce tomorrow’s leaders of today's Khmer 
youth through higher education by providing tutoring, leadership development, scholarships, 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

167 | Page 

and health education to youth, women and families.  Khmer Parent Association is a nonprofit 
focused on afterschool tutoring for grades 1 thru 12, annual scholarships for Southeast Asian 
High School Graduates, medical interpretation and patient navigation, health education, and 
free health screenings for the Cambodian community with an Annual Khmer Health Forum.  

 

• United Cambodian Community (UCC) has provided culturally competent services to the 
Cambodian community in Long Beach.  UCC’s mission is to promote and advocate for the well-
being and advancement of the Cambodian community.  Beginning as a self-help group in the 
1970’s for Cambodian refugees, UCC has developed into a comprehensive social service 
provider.  UCC provides culturally competent health, youth development, and community 
engagement programs.  UCC’s health programs include health education, chronic disease 
management, health insurance enrollment, mental health outreach and education, wellness 
activities, social support groups, and case management.  Through its youth development 
program, UCC empowers youth to success through college readiness, recreation activities, 
leadership development, and work readiness programs.   

 

• Khmer Girls in Action (KGA) is a community-based organization whose mission is to build a 
progressive and sustainable Long Beach community that works for gender, racial and economic 
justice led by Southeast Asian young women. KGA believes in the leadership of Southeast Asian 
youth to create social change. Our programming invests in and empowers Southeast Asian 
youth to become leaders in their community and their lives. KGA take a comprehensive 
approach to working with our members to ensure their holistic development. KGA’s areas of 
programming are infused with an analysis of gender, class, race, sexuality and culture. 

 
Center for the Pacific Asian Families 
 
CPAF has been a pioneer in providing services API survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence 
and child abuse, with nearly 40 years of experience. As mentioned below, last fiscal year, CPAF 
responded to 3,861crisis calls from callers speaking 25 different languages in LA County, enabling 
them to be the first responders to these individuals and provide the necessary crisis support and 
linkage to needed services, including mental health. CPAF provides a continuum of comprehensive 
services for survivors, including emergency shelter, transitional shelter, counseling, and case 
management. They also engage in frequent community outreach, capacity building and training to 
various government and community-based organizations, who seek and benefit from CPAF's 
expertise in sexual assault, domestic violence and child abuse prevention and intervention services. 
SSG has subcontracted with CPAF on DCFS programs targeting child abuse prevention and 
treatment, and have collaborated for 20 years in serving mutual clients, families and our 
communities. 
 
CPAF has been a pioneer in creating and providing services for underserved and marginalized 
Asian and Pacific Islander (API) immigrants since 1978, when it established the first multilingual 
hotline assisting API survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence and child abuse in the United 
States. In 1981 CPAF opened the first multilingual and multicultural emergency shelter in the US 
to specialize in serving API survivors of sexual assault and domestic violence. In 1998, CPAF 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

168 | Page 

opened the first multilingual and multicultural transitional shelter in the nation, focusing on 
the needs of the API survivors who seek to establish independent and violence-free lives. 
Today, CPAF continues to provide multilingual and multicultural, comprehensive and free 
services in Los Angeles targeting API community. Last fiscal year, CPAF responded to 3,861 crisis 
calls from callers speaking 25 different languages; provided intervention services to 238 
survivors through its community-based case management and counseling program, and 
provided shelter to 132 sexual and domestic violence survivors and children. 
 
Chinatown Service Center 

The Chinatown Service Center (CSC) is the largest private, non-profit, community-based Chinese 
American health and human services organization in Southern California, serving immigrant s, 
refugees, and others in need of assistance. CSC promotes community collaboration and 
partnerships to assist underserved populations in achieving their American dream. CSC's mission 
is "to provide outstanding services and advocacy that promote a better quality of life and equal 
opportunity for immigrants and other communities so we can fulfill our vision of thriving lives in 
empowered communities." CSC provides services in English and a variety of Chinese dialects: 
Cantonese, Mandarin, Toisan, Chiu Chow and other languages including Vietnamese, Spanish, 
and Khmer (Cambodian). 
 

Search to Involve Pilipino Americans 

SIPA enriches and empowers generations of Pilipino Americans and others by providing health and 
human services, community economic development, and a place where all people of all 
backgrounds can come together to strengthen community. 
 
Founded in 1972, the mission of Search to Involve Pilipino Americans (SIPA) is to enhance the 
quality of life in Los Angeles' Historic Filipino town and for Pilipino Americans throughout Los 
Angeles County. As such, SIPA provides a wide range of health and human services and 
community economic development programs aimed at improving economic self-sufficiency, 
educational attainment, cultural awareness and civic engagement. Youth and family services 
(counseling and case management, afterschool programs, etc.) are the core of SIPA's programs, 
but in the 1990's housing, small business and consumer assistance and civic engagement and 
advocacy were added to more comprehensively address the needs of our clients. Additionally, 
SIPA has expanded its capacity to serve a diverse population and currently provides services in 
English, Tagalog (Filipino), Spanish and Armenian. 

Pacific Asian Alcohol & Drug Program (PAADP) 

The mission of the Pacific Asian Alcohol and Drug Program (PAADP) is to enhance and enrich 
the quality of life of Los Angeles County residents by: providing alcohol and drug prevention, 
treatment and recovery services; supporting youth leadership and development; providing child 
and family services, housing referrals; and participation in collaborative activities with other 
health and human service providers and institutions. Dr. Leo Pandac is a long-time community 
leader and gatekeeper for the Filipino community. 
 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

169 | Page 

Federation of Filipino American Associations (FFAA) 

The FFAA led by long-time leader Paul Blanco is a leadership, civic engagement and advocacy 
organization based in Long Beach. One of their many focus areas is immigration issues relating to 
civil rights as well as health and wellness. 

 

 

Asian Pacific AIDS Intervention Team (APAIT) 
APAIT is a thirty-year-old HIV/AIDS service and behavioral health program of SSG, Inc. aimed at 
advocating, educating, and achieving optimal health and well-being for the LGBTQ community of 
Los Angeles and Orange Counties. Behavioral health programming will include:  
1. outreach and engagement activities in non-traditional settings frequented by the LGBTQ 

community including but not limited to night clubs, bars, health fairs, school-based settings, 
public sex environments such as a sex clubs and bathhouses, street and alley outreach, and 
psychosocial groups;  

2. peer-driven support groups including but not limited to populations such as pre-and-post 
gender reassignment surgery (GRS} for transgender and gender non-binary, trauma-informed 
anti-bullying programs for LGBTQ;  

3. evidence based intervention therapy, case management, and rehabilitation services including 
but not limited to LGBTQ affirmative cognitive behavioral therapy, Seeking Safety, and 
Interpersonal therapy (IPT}; and provision of LGBTQ cultural competency and sensitivity 
training as well as mental health first aid training. 

 

Little Tokyo Service Center 

Little Tokyo Service Center, a Community Development Corporation (LTSC CDC}, was established in 
1979 by representatives of various Japanese American groups who wanted to form a 
multipurpose social service center. Little Tokyo Service Center aimed to provide 
linguistically and culturally sensitive social services to the Little Tokyo community and the 
broader Japanese American community in the Southland. 

 
LTSC CDC is a nonprofit charitable organization serving Asian and Pacific Islanders throughout 
Los Angeles County who are in need, especially those facing language or cultural gaps, financial 
need, or physical disabilities.  
 
Currently, LTSC CDC sponsors over a dozen different community and social service programs, with 
over 100 paid staff persons and hundreds of volunteers to provide competent and 
compassionate services in many languages. Services include individual and family mental health 
counseling, child abuse prevention, case management, support groups, senior services, 
childcare, preschool, after school youth programs, and domestic violence programs. 
 
LTSC conducts outreach and education to increase awareness mental health services by Japanese 
and Japanese American families and individuals when they are needed. A part of that work 
involves overcoming social stigma and developing an awareness of tools and resources for 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

170 | Page 

counseling, support groups and educational workshops. Our counselors provide culturally 
sensitive and linguistically appropriate services to the Japanese American community 
throughout Southern California and uses a variety of therapies that cut through cultural barriers 
to understanding. 
 
Samoan National Nurses Association  

SNNA was established in 1996. The mission of SNNA is to assist the Samoan community to better 
health . SNNA works to improve and expand the community's opportunities through quality health 
education, prevention screenings and primary health services, local and national policy advocacy, 
community organizing, community-based research and developing resources and linkages with 
government and community healthcare agencies. 

Given that Pacific Islanders are by nature and their culture a religious people, SNNA's primary 
collaboration has been with faith-based organizations. SNNA works together with pastors and their 
congregations to utilize their capacity to adequately share and disseminate health information by 
holding youth and adult community forums, focus groups and workshops where information/ 
findings will be shared through the church affecting all generations and promoting community . 

South Asian Network 

South Asian Network was founded in 1990 to provide an open forum for people of South Asian 
origin to gather and discuss social, economic, and political issues affecting the community, with the 
goal of raising awareness, engagement and advocacy among community members leading to 
empowerment. As the South Asian American community continues to grow, SAN is committed to 
challenging systems of oppression and inequality, building solidarities with other communities, and 
achieving economic, political, and human right s for all. South Asian Network is a community-based 
organization advancing the health, well-being, and civil rights of South Asians in Southern California. 

Special Service for Groups  

Special Service for Groups (SSG) is a private, non-profit agency incorporated in 1952. SSG is a unique 
'umbrella' organization, and currently operates over 25 major social service programs, located 
throughout Los Angeles and Orange Counties. SSG is renowned for effective fiscal and program 
management, in particular  strong administration of public grants (Federal, State, County, City 
and regional). 
 

SSG is a well-established and respected provider of comprehensive behavioral health services. 
SSG is a long-time contractor in excellent standing with the Los Angeles County Department of 
Mental Health (DMH). We are well known for our comprehensive and innovative program 
design and support to minority, Limited English Proficient (LEP) and other disenfranchised 
groups of all ages in need of services throughout the entire LA County. SSG currently operates 
twenty five (25) mental health outpatient project locations funded wholly or in part with DMH 
funds and in addition provides housing (directly operated and via community partnerships), 
vocational rehabilitation services, other employment services, Independent Living Skills training, 
and much more. 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

171 | Page 

SSG is a leader in providing culturally competent community based behavioral health services. 
SSG is also noted for strategic community partnerships that include support and empowerment 
for grass roots associations, neighborhood groups, social enterprise start-up entities and more. 
SSG has also excelled in developing and leading multi-group collaborative efforts as a lead 
agency with the recognized fiscal and program management skills necessary for such efforts. SSG 
is highly diverse with more than 85% of the staff and board members representing minority 
communities.  People with disabilities, people living with HIV/AIDS, and people of color make up 
over 80% leadership positions within SSG programs. SSG maintains local and national 
accreditation status -- being both State Medi-Cal certified as well as certification by the 
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF). SSG is also one of the few 
nonprofit organizations nationwide with an accredited Institutional Review Board (IRB) under the 
direction of the SSG Research & Evaluation unit. 

 
Attachment:  Asian and Pacific Islander (API) Disparities 

 

Executive Summary 

 

 From 2020-21 the Mental Health Commission’s (MHC) Integrated Services and Cultural Competency 

subcommittee made a review and provided a recommendation regarding disparities of services to the Asian and 

Pacific Islander American (APIA Community in Los Angeles County and how it can be addressed within the 

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). 

 

 The subcommittee made the following observations to the Commission the following: 

 

 The disparities of mental health services and attention to communities of color is especially acute 

 in the APIA community.  The disparity is apparent over a multiple years and admitted by the    

 becoming Department of Mental Health (DMH) numerous times in testimony and MHSA-related   

 documents.  This has become a condition of "benign neglect.”   

 

 The APIA disparity is not addressed in a meaningful way in the recent 3-year MHSA plan   

 despite the data establishing the fact it is a multi-year the disparity exists while ; this Census   

 the APIA population has increased to 15% in Los Angeles County. 

 

The latest FSP data re: serving APIA community hovers around 5%. The APIA mental health community since 

2019 supported by a Board of Supervisors motion and subsequent DMH memos accentuates the APIA admits 

disparity in Los Angeles County. 

 

The alarming glaring disparity that exists is that APIA services and funding is NOT being addressed by DMH.   

 

There is a need to identify and addressing the APIA disparity and other issues contained in the Board 2019 

motion with clear service and funding related recommendations. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mental Health Commission recommends the Board of Supervisor consider funding 

APIA community based mental health services to address  disparities and the DMH provide the gap analysis 

information to the Board and MHC as outlined in the 2019 Board Motion.  In addition, the testimony to the MHC 

of Dr. Herb Hatanaka regarding the APIA mental health service disparities and how they can be addressed via 

MHSA be reviewed. 

 



   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

172 | Page 

—————————————————————————- 

 

1.  Background 

 

 Per State law -  Welfare Institutions Code (WIC )Section 5812.5(d), 5868(b), 5878.1(a); and, 9 California 

Code of Regulations (CCR) Section 3200.100 — requires a county’s’ MHSA 3 Year Plan to address disparities, 

cultural and linguistic competency by incorporating and working to achieve the following goals listed below into 

all aspects of policy-making, program design, administration and service delivery.  Each system and program is 

assessed for the strengths and weaknesses of its proficiency to achieve these goals.  The infrastructure of a 

service, program or system is transformed, and new protocoled procedure are developed as necessary to achieve 

the following goals: 

 

 

 

 

•  Equal access to services of equal quality is provided, without disparities among racial/ethnic, cultural and 

linguistic populations or communities. 

 

• Treatment interventions and outreach services effectively engage and retain individuals of diverse 

racial/ethnic, cultural, and linguistic populations. 

 

• Disparities in services are identified and measured, strategies and programs area developed and implemented 

, and adjustments are made to existing programs to eliminate these disparities. 

 

• An understanding of the diverse belief systems concerning mental illness, health, healing and wellness that 

exist among different racial/ethnic, cultural, and linguistic groups is incorporated into policy, program 

planning, and service delivery.  

 

• An understanding of the impact historical bias, racism, and other forms of discrimination have upon each 

racial/ethnic, cultural, and linguistic population or community is incorporated into policy, program planning, 

and service delivery. 

 

• An understanding of the impact bias, racism, and other forms of discrimination have on the mental health of 

each individual served is incorporated into service delivery. 

 

• Services and supports utilize the strengths and forms of healing that are unique to an individual's racial/ethnic, 

cultural, and linguistic population or community they serve. 

 

• Staff, contractors, and other individuals who deliver services are trained to understand and effectively address 

the needs and values of the particular racial/ethnic, cultural, and/or linguistic population or community they 

serve. 

 

• Strategies are developed and implemented to promote equal opportunities for administrators, service 

providers, and others involve din service delivery who share the diverse racial/ethnic, cultural, and linguistic 

characteristics of individuals with serious mental illness/emotional disturbance in the community.  

 

 The Board of Supervisors in 2017 directed the DMH Director to develop strategies to reduce disparities 

in the delivery of mental health services to underrepresented ethnic and cultural communities, focusing on the 

Asian and Pacific Islander community, in part, how are these addressed in the DMH MHSA Three Year Plan.  



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

173 | Page 

The motion also instructs DMH to report back to the Board of Supervisors on a gap analysis of disparities and 

areas that are underrepresented and how to address those issues throughout Los Angeles County. 

 

 Specifically, the 2017 motion unanimously passed by the Board of Supervisors: 

  

 a)  Directed the Director of Mental Health to include in the Mental Health Services Act Three   

 Year Plan recommendations on outreach strategies to address the need of the API community for   

 mental health services to the Countywide population over the next five years.  A recommendation   

 should address appropriate allocations for CSS funding for individuals with serious mental   

 illness and MHSA Prevention and Early Intervention funding in all age groups: 

 

 

 b) Required the Department of Mental Health to conduct an evaluation to determine specific   

 areas of geographic and programmatic disparities in order to develop a targeted outreach   

 strategy for addressing the needs of the API population; 

 

 c)  Required the Director of Mental Health or his staff to collaborate with groups that provide   

 mental health services to the API population to enhance existing successful outreach approaches   

 and identify new strategies for decreasing disparities in mental health care among this population 

 including the options of expanding the service network; and 

 

 d) Instructed the Director of Mental health to report back to the Board a gap analysis on    

 disparities and areas that are underrepresented, how to address those issues, and disparities in   

 funding throughout the County. 

 

 These cultural and linguistic disparities are particularly prevalent within the Los Angeles County Asian 

Pacific Islander populations, and like others, deserves great deal of attention within the DMH MHSA 3 Yr Plan.  

Additionally, it is unclear how and adequately these disparities are addressed in the Plan. 

 
2.  Data 

 

 A report published by Mental Health America highlights that more than 10 million adults in the U.S have 

an unmet need for mental health treatment.   

 
(see link: https://mhanational.org/issues/state-mental-health-america) 

 

 The National Council for Behavioral Health (NCBH) also reports that:  

 

 "Mental health services in the US are insufficient despite more than half of Americans (56%)   

 seeking help." 

 

 "Limited options and long waits are the norm, but some bright spots with 76% of Americans now   

 seeing mental health as important as physical health." 

 

 The National Council for Behavioral Health makes reference to three big issues: high cost and 

insufficient insurance coverage; lack of awareness; and stigma. Below are excerpts from the NCBH. 

 

 High Cost and Insufficient Insurance Coverage: Forty-two percent of the population saw cost   

 and poor insurance coverage as the top barriers for accessing mental health care. One in four   

https://mhanational.org/issues/state-mental-health-america


   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

174 | Page 

 (25%) Americans reported having to choose between getting mental health treatment and paying   

 for daily necessities. 

 

 Limited Options and Long Waits: Access to face-to-face services is a higher priority for    

 Americans seeking mental health treatment than access to medication. Ninety-six million    

 Americans, or 38%, have had to wait longer than one week for mental health treatments. And   

 

 

  nearly half of Americans, or 46%, have had to or know someone who has had to drive   

  more than an hour roundtrip to seek treatment. 

 

 Social Stigma: Nearly one-third of Americans, or 31%, have worried about others judging them   

 when they told them they have sought mental health services, and over a fifth of the population, or 

 21%, have even lied to avoid telling people they were seeking mental health services. This stigma   

 is particularly true for younger Americans, who are more likely to have worried about others  

 judging them when they say they have sought mental health services (i.e., 49% Gen Z vs. 40%   

 Millennials vs. 30% Gen X vs. 20% Boomers). 

 

 The following provides a glaring picture of regarding unmet needs for mental health services among 

California and Los Angeles County Adults: 

 

 In a recent UCLA Health Policy Brief, co-authored by Los Angeles County’s Mental Health 

Commissioner Imelda Padilla-Frausto, “Based on data from the 2018 California Health Interview Survey 

(CHIS), approximately 11 million California adults were MHSA eligible due to their insurance status. Over one-

quarter of these (3 million) reported psychological distress, with the majority (1.8 million) reporting unmet needs 

for services. Policies that could reduce this unmet need include expanding the breadth and reach of PEI 

programs and increasing efforts to develop a robust, culturally and linguistically competent workforce across all 

MHSA services.” 

 

 Commission Padilla-Frausto also provided the MHC a supplemental document based on this policy brief 

that has LA County specific data:  

 
 “ In 2018, over one-quarter or 700,000 of Los Angeles County MHSA-eligible adults reported   

 symptoms indicating a need for public mental health services (Exhibit 1).  
  

 “• 15.1% or 500,000 MHSA-eligible adults reported symptoms associated with serious    

 psychological distress, an estimate of adults with serious diagnosable mental health disorders   

 that warrant mental health treatment.1  

 

 “• 12.0% or 400,000 MHSA-eligible adults reported symptoms associated with moderate    

 psychological distress, an estimate of adults with mental distress that are clinically relevant and   

 warrants mental health intervention.2 “ 

 

 The “LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH OFFICE OF 

ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS - CULTURAL COMPETENCY UNIT - CULTURAL COMPETENCE PLAN 

UPDATE – FY 2019,” pages 90-100, analyzes and assesses the unmet need for mental health services in the 

County, specifically:   

 

 **Disparity by Race/Ethnicity (African American, Asian/Pacific Islander Population, Latino,   

 Native American, White) Within Service Areas 1-8;  

 



 MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

175 | Page 

 ** Disparity by Language; 

 

 **Disparity by Age (0-15, 16-25, 26-59, 60+) Within Service Areas 1-8; and, 

 

 **Disparity by Gender Within Service Provider Areas. 

 

 (see link:  http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/dmh/1061452_2019CCPlanCR1-8FINAL.pdf ) 

 

 These findings show those who have the greatest need for services include Latino and Asian American 

adults, adults who are noncitizen, and adults with no to low English proficiency, and in pronounced in specific 

Service Areas of the County.  It also reinforces the Board’s motion of 2017 and other related motions such as:  

Improving and Expanding the Mental Health Delivery Service for Underserved Latino Communities throughout 

Los Angeles County, 

 

 (see link:  http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/bos/supdocs/146649.pdf) 

 

 In 2017, the Board of Supervisors unanimously passed a motion that: 

  

 a)  Directed the Director of Mental Health to include in the Mental Health Services Act Three   

 Year Plan recommendations on outreach strategies to address the need of the API community for   

 mental health services to the Countywide population over the next five years.  A recommendation   

 should address appropriate allocations for CSS funding for individuals with serious mental   

 illness and MHSA Prevention and Early Intervention funding in all age groups: 

 

 b) Required the Department of Mental Health to conduct an evaluation to determine specific   

 areas of geographic and programmatic disparities in order to develop a targeted outreach   

 strategy for addressing the needs of the API population; 

 

 c)  Required the Director of Mental Health or his staff to collaborate with groups that provide   

 mental health services to the API population to enhance existing successful outreach approaches   

 and identify new strategies for decreasing disparities in mental health care among this population 

 including the options of expanding the service network; and 

 

 d) Instructed the Director of Mental health to report back to the Board a gap analysis on    

 disparities and areas that are underrepresented, how to address those issues, and disparities in   

 funding throughout the County. 

 

 These cultural and linguistic disparities are particularly prevalent within the Los Angeles County Asian 

Pacific Islander populations, and like others, deserves great deal of attention within the DMH MHSA 3 Yr Plan.  

Additionally, it is unclear how and adequately these disparities are addressed in the Plan. 

 

Issues & Data 

 

 The Mental Health Services Act funding is intended to address access to care disparities for all 

communities of color and underserved populations unfortunately the data points to a historic and continued lack 

of progress in this for the API communities of Los Angeles County.  

  

 In an August 17, 2016, DMH document entitled, “Mental Health Service Act (MHSA) 3 Year Program & 

Expenditure Plan, Fiscal Years 2017-18 through 2019-20 Planning Process,” the API total population was 

14.6%.  Yet, API populations represent 5.35% of the CSS clients served and 2.64% of the PEI clients served.  The 

http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/dmh/1061452_2019CCPlanCR1-8FINAL.pdf
http://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/bos/supdocs/146649.pdf


   MHSA  ANNUAL UPDATE 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

176 | Page 

document pointed out that regarding PEI Programs“[t]he numbers suggest that Asian/Pacific Islanders and 

Whites may the ethnic groups in most need of services.” 

 

 (“Mental Health Service Act (MHSA) 3 Year Program & Expenditure Plan, Fiscal Years 2017-18 

through 2019-20 Planning Process,” pp. 19-22, 24-25, 27-28) 

 

 Today, per the Untied State Census, the Asian, Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islander population in Los 

Angeles County is 15.8%.  (see link:  https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/losangelescountycalifornia)  However, 

within the MHSA 3-year plan brought before the Board of Supervisors, API populations continue to represent 5% 

of all CSS clients and 3% f all PEI clients served by DMH.  (see pages 32 and 65 respectively of the DMH MHSA 

3 Yr Plan) 

  

 In a LAC/DMH memo to the L.A. County Board of Supervisors dated May 30, 2017 and titled “Strategies 

To Reduce Disparities to Mental health Services in Underrepresented Ethnic and Cultural Communities (Item No. 

8, Agenda of February 21, 2017)” [hereafter called  “DMH Memo”], the fact that “API, as a group, do not utilize 

public mental health services in proportion to either their relative percentage of the County’s population or 

estimated mental health prevalence rate” is recognized.   

 

 (LAC/DMH memo to the L.A. County Board of Supervisors dated May 30, 2017 and titled “Strategies To 

Reduce Disparities to Mental health Services in Underrepresented Ethnic and Cultural Communities) 

  

 Dr. Herbert K. Hatanaka, DSW, is the Co-Chair of the Asian Pacific Planning Council’s (A3PCON) 

Mental Health Committee, an established coalition of community-based organizations that advocates for the 

rights and needs of Asian and Pacific Islander American Community in the greater Los Angeles area, with a 

particularly focus on low income, immigrant, refugee and other disadvantaged sectors of population since 1976. 

Dr. Hatanaka in written testimony to the MHC regarding the DMH MHSA 3 Yr Plan noted the following: 

 

“As a network of providers A3PCON continues to be concerned about the lack of targeted effort  by the 

Department of Mental Health to address the longstanding disparities in mental health service  access for Asian 

Pacific Islanders communities in this county. We do not see any significant targeted commitment to address 

disparities and cultural competence in the three year MHSA Plan submitted by DMH for your review and 

approval. API’s continue to represent less than 4% of all clients served by DMH while representing 16% of the 

County’s total population. While the Mental Health Services Act funding is intended to address access to care 

disparities for all communities of color and underserved populations we unfortunately have seen  no progress in 

reducing this disparity of access to care for the API communities of this county.     

  

Furthermore as the UCLA Center for Health Policy Research points out in their review of MHSA and unmet 

mental health need, the level of unmet need (both serious and moderate) is highest for Latino and  Asian 

Pacific Islander communities relative to the other racial groups.   

 

 “Since Supervisor Hahn s original Board motion in February 2017 to direct DMH to develop a plan to 

address API disparities and the subsequent DMH plan submitted to the Board on May 30, 2017, A3PCON has 

provided recommendations and expansion proposals to DMH for FSP, PEI and Innovations over a three year 

period. We are attaching summaries of these proposals for your review. “  (see Asian Pacific Policy & Planning 

Council s Proposal for Addressing Unmet Mental Health Need of the Asian Pacific Islander Community: Written 

Testimony to the Los Angeles County Mental Health Commission) 

https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/losangelescountycalifornia


 
  

 

Asian Pacific Policy & Planning Council’s Proposal for Addressing Unmet Mental 

Health Need of the Asian Pacific Islander Community: 

 Written Testimony to the Los Angeles County 

Mental Health Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr. Herbert K. Hatanaka, DSW 

Co-Chair, Mental Health Committee 

July 2, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

178 | Page 

Dear Commissioners Acebo, Ogawa and the Mental Health Commission,  

I am Dr. Herbert K. Hatanaka, Executive Director of Special Service for Groups (SSG) and the Co-

Chair of the Mental Committee of the Asian Pacific Policy and Planning Council (A3PCON). The 

committee is composed of 12 culturally competent community based mental health agencies serving 

the Asian Pacific Islander communities in Los Angeles County including two directly operated DMH 

clinics. This network of API provider agencies are fully staffed with multi-disciplinary staffing providing 

services in 12 API languages in every Supervisorial District and annually serves over 10,000 clients. 

This network of API provider agencies represents the foundation in the DMH system for the provision 

of culturally competent mental health care in the County of Los Angeles. 

As a network of providers A3PCON continues to be concerned about the lack of targeted effort by the 

Department of Mental Health to address the longstanding disparities in mental health service access 

for Asian Pacific Islanders communities in this county. We do not see any significant targeted 

commitment to address disparities and cultural competence in the three year MHSA Plan 

submitted by DMH for your review and approval. API’s continue to represent less than 4% of all 

clients served by DMH while representing 16% of the County’s total population. While the Mental 

Health Services Act funding is intended to address access to care disparities for all communities of 

color and underserved populations we unfortunately have seen no progress in reducing this disparity 

of access to care for the API communities of this county. Furthermore as the UCLA Center for Health 

Policy Research points out in their review of MHSA and unmet mental health need, the level of unmet 

need (both serious and moderate) is highest for Latino and Asian Pacific Islander communities relative 

to the other racial groups.   

Since Supervisor Hahn’s original Board motion in February 2017 to direct DMH to develop a plan to 

address API disparities and the subsequent DMH plan submitted to the Board on May 30, 2017, 

A3PCON has provided recommendations and expansion proposals to DMH for FSP, PEI and 

Innovations over a three year period. We are attaching summaries of these proposals for your review.  

We fully understand the importance of mental health related issues facing this County such the 

continued rises in the mentally ill among the homeless and justice involved populations and of course 

the life threatening COVID-19 pandemic that all of us face. However we respectfully like to point out 

that in regards to COVID-19 that communities of color including APIs are disproportionately 

represented in the highest rates of infection and death and this is attributed to the historic lack of 

access to health and mental health care.  

We would respectfully appreciate your response and support for an amendment to the County’s 

MHSA 3 year plan to address the mental health services disparity of culturally competent services for 

our Asian Pacific Islander communities. Please feel free to contact me for any questions or 

clarification of our proposals that we have previously submitted to the department.  

Sincerely, 

Herbert Hatanaka, A3PCON MH Committee, Co-chair 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
179 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

180 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
181 | Page 

 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

182 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
183 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

184 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
185 | Page 

 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

186 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
187 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

188 | Page 

 

 
 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
189 | Page 

EXHIBIT F – LACDMH RESPONSE TO MHC 
 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

190 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
191 | Page 

 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

192 | Page 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
193 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

194 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
195 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

196 | Page 

EXHIBIT G - COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADOPTED LETTER AND MINUTES 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
197 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

198 | Page 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
199 | Page 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

200 | Page 

APPENDICES 
 

APPENDIX A – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
POSTED TO THE LACDMH WEBSITE ON MARCH 4, 2022.  THE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

HIGHLIGHTED THE UPCOMING CHANGES FOR FY 2022-23 AND PROVIDED AN UPDATE ON THE 

PROGRAMS CHANGED IN THE THREE YEAR PROGRAM AND EXPENDITURE PLAN.   
 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
201 | Page 

African American
835,191

(8%)

Asian / Pacific Islander
1,457,731

(14%)

Latino
4,993,673

(49%)

Native American
23,720
(<1.0%)

Two or More Races
230,193

(2%)

White
2,719,729

(27%)

B. Los Angeles County Demographics 

 

The County of Los Angeles is the most populated in the United States (US), with an estimated 10,260,237 

residents in Calendar Year (CY) 2019.  According to California’s census data, in Los Angeles County, the 

Latino group is the most represented race/ethnicity, and the Native American group is the smallest.  

   

Figure 1. Los Angeles County (N=10,278,834)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The County of Los Angeles is organized into eight (8) Service Areas (SAs), each with its own characteristics 

and diverse ethnic make-up. Services within the Los Angeles County - Department of Mental Health (LAC-

DMH) are organized on a geographic basis to facilitate greater ease of access. However, clients are free to 

request services in any geographic area within the system, and may secure referrals to any mental health 

program, whether directly operated or contracted with the Local Mental Health Plan (LMHP). At the SA level, 

White residents (including non-Hispanic, European Americans, and Middle Eastern Americans) are the 

largest in SA 2 and SA 5. In contrast, Latinos are the largest group in all other SAs. 

 
Table 1. Total Population by Race/Ethnicity and Service Area, CY 2019  

SA African 
American 

Asian/Pacific 
Islander 

Latino Native 
American 

White Two or 
More Races 

Total 

SA 1 61,148 15,464 181,754 1,922 125,684 11,300 397,272 

Percent 15.4% 3.9% 45.8% 0.48% 31.6% 2.8% 100.0% 

SA 2 77,002 254,680 909,678 4,703 943,807 58,441 2,248,311 

Percent 3.4% 11.3%  40.5% 0.21% 42.0% 2.6% 100.0% 

SA 3 63,409 507,240 846,574 3,720 358,478 35,040 1,814,459 

Percent 3.5% 28.0% 46.7% 0.21% 19.8% 1.9% 100.0% 

SA 4 59,582 206,948 616,104 2,619 285,102 21,416 1,191,772 

Percent 5.0% 17.4% 51.7% 0.22% 23.9% 1.8% 100.0% 

SA 5 37,299 91,134 110,277 1,184 398,949 28,378 667,220 

Percent 5.6% 13.7% 16.5% 0.18% 59.8% 4.3% 100.0% 

SA 6 275,338 19,164 717,130 1,825 25,738 11,503 1,050,698 

Percent 26.2% 1.8% 68.3% 0.17% 2.4% 1.1% 100.0% 

SA 7 39,210 119,386 974,630 3,344 168,786 15,589 1,320,945 

Percent 3.0% 9.0% 73.8% 0.25% 12.8% 1.2% 100.0% 

SA 8 222,204 243,714 637,526 4,403 413,188 48,525 1,569,560 

Percent 14.2% 15.5% 40.6% 0.28% 26.3% 3.1% 100.0% 

Total 835,191 1,457,731 4,993,673 23,720 2,719,729 230,193 10,260,237 

Percent 8.1% 14.2% 48.7% 0.23% 26.5% 2.2% 100% 
Data source:  ACS, US Census Bureau and Hedderson Demographic Services, Calendar Year 2019.  Some totals and percentages reflect rounding 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

202 | Page 

Table 2.  Population by race/ethnicity and Service Area 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles County 

SA 8 – South Bay 

 
In addition to the racial and ethnic diversity, LACDMH also serves residents across their lifespan.  Figure 2 
and Table 3 below provide a snapshot of the population breakdown by age group based on the SAs.   
 
Figure 2. Total Population by Age Group CY 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Table 3. Total Population by Age and Service Area, CY 2019  

SA 0-18 19-20 21-25 26-59 60-64 65+ Total 

SA 1 104,022 13,206 34,450 176,405 24,364 44,825 397,272 

Percent 26.2% 3.3% 8.7% 44.4% 6.1% 11.3% 100.0% 

SA 2 486.825 60,627 152,108 1,085,643 147,042 316,066 2,248,311 

Percent 21.7% 2.7% 6.8% 48.3% 6.5% 14.1% 100.0% 

SA 3 390,614 54,138 131,937 837,009 119,711 281,050 1,814,459 

Percent 21.5% 3.0% 7.3% 46.1% 6.6% 15.5% 100.0% 

SA 4 239,083 26,350 69,744 643,006 64,200 149,389 1,191,772 

Percent 20.1% 2.2% 5.9% 54.0% 5.4% 12.5% 100.0% 

SA 5 119,662 23,038 40,973 334,647 41,382 107,518 667,220 

Percent 17.9% 3.5% 6.1% 50.2% 6.2% 16.1% 100.0% 

SA 6 298,631 38,452 90,823 477,317 50,349 95,126 1,050,698 

Percent 28.4% 3.7% 8.6% 45.4% 4.8% 9.1% 100.0% 

SA 7 329,651 40,947 103,494 610,331 72,824 163,698 1,320,945 

Percent 25.0% 3.1% 7.8% 46.2% 5.5% 12.4% 100.0% 

SA 8 361,487 43,443 109,466 740,406 98,813 215,945 1,569,560 

Percent 23.0% 2.8% 7.0% 47.2% 6.3% 13.8% 100.0% 

Total 2,329,975 300,201 732,995 4,904,764 618,685 1,373,617 10,260,237 

Percent 22.7% 2.9% 7.1% 47.8% 6.0% 13.4% 100% 

 
  

Ethnic Group Highest Lowest 

African-American SA 6 (33%) SA 5 (4%) 

Asian/Pacific Islander SA 3 (35%) SA 6 (1%) 

Latino SA 7 (20%) SA 5 (2%) 

Native American SA 2 (20%) SA 5 (5%) 

White SA 2 (35%) SA 6 (1%) 

Two or More Races SA 2 (25%) SA 1 (5%) 

Adult
4,904,764 

48%

Children
1,934,741 

19%

Transition Age 
Youth

1,428,430 
14%

Older Adult
1,947,942 

19%



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
203 | Page 

C. MHSA Client Counts, FY 2020-21 

COMMUNITY SERVICES AND SUPPORTS  

Number of Unique Clients Served: 135,232  
Number of New Clients Served: 35,499 
 

Table 4. CSS clients served by Service Area 

Service Area Number of Clients Served Number of New Clients 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 9,098 2,410 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 22,613 5,886 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 19,146 5,952 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 25,458 6,801 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 7,837 1,918 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 21,682 4,727 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles 12,465 2,953 

SA 8 - South Bay 27,189 6,940 

 

Table 5. Number of unique clients served through CSS by age group and Average MHSA cost 

Age Group Child TAY Adult Older Adult 

Number of Clients Served 24,408 22,917 72,752 18,872 

Average MHSA Cost $195,844,453.30 $135,016,574.60 $381,253,396.18 $90,581,063.20 

 

Table 6. Number of unique clients served through CSS by Ethnicity 

Ethnicity White 
African 

American 
Latino 

Asian/ Pacific 
Islander 

Native 
American 

Multiple 
Races 

Number of Clients Served 23,998 27,373 49,468 6,831 1,087 1,276 

Percentage 18% 20% 37% 5% 1% 1% 

 

Table 7. Number of unique clients served through CSS by ethnicity and Service Area 

Service Area White 
African 

American 
Latino 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Native 
American 

Multiple 
Races 

SA 1 (9,098) 2,141 2,890 2,496 127 50 616 

Percent 24% 32% 27% 2% 1% 7% 

SA 2 (22,613) 6238 1910 7876 826 76 1,338 

Percent 28% 8% 35% 8% 0.34% 6% 

SA 3 (19,146) 268 1655 6246 1,541 84 815 

Percent 14% 9% 33% 8% 0.44% 4% 

SA 4 (25,458) 4,301 5,133 9,248 1,589 218 990 

Percent 17% 20% 36% 6% 1% 4% 

SA 5 (7,837) 2,679 1,668 1,427 222 40 414 

Percent 34% 21% 21% 3% 1% 5% 

SA 6 (21,682) 969 8,866 7,676 171 212 690 

Percent 4% 41% 41% 1% 1% 3% 

SA 7 (12,465) 1,372 804 6,189 393 134 669 

Percent 11% 6% 6% 3% 1% 5% 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

204 | Page 

Service Area White 
African 

American 
Latino 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Native 
American 

Multiple 
Races 

SA 8 (27,189) 4,622 6,724 8,461 1,794 101 1,475 

Percent 17% 25% 31% 7% 0.4% 5% 

 

Table 8. Number of unique clients served through CSS by Primary Language 

Primary 
Language 

English Spanish Farsi Vietnamese Korean Mandarin 
American 

Sign 
Language 

Pilipino, 
Tagalog 

Other 

Number of 
Clients 
Served 

106,987 18,668 611 406 601 381 58 235 6,573 

Percentage 79% 14% 0.45% 0.30% 0.44% 0.28% 0.04% 0.17% 5% 

 

Full Service Partnership (FSP) 
 

Table 9. Number of unique clients served by age group and Average MHSA cost 

Age Group Child TAY  Adult Older Adult 

Number of Clients Served 3,777 2,915 7,618 1,993 

MHSA  Average Cost $17,954 $13,405 $14,642 $11,373 

Cost is based on Mode 15 services, not inclusive of community outreach services or client supportive services expenditures. 

 

Table 10. Service Area Full Service Partnership Slots as of 2/14/22 (Master Slot Allocation Reports) 

Service Area  
Number of 

Children Slots 
(0-17) 

Number of 
Wraparound 

Slots 

Number of Adult 
Slots 
(18+) 

Number of 
Homeless 

Slots 

Service Area 1 103 60 380 70 

Service Area 2 386 110 854 100 

Service Area 3 360 70 845 70 

Service Area 4 451 60 1209 420 

Service Area 5 36 0 524 160 

Service Area 6 531 120 1045 300 

Service Area 7 390 60 705 70 

Service Area 8 381 40 1304 170 

Countywide  15 0 229 0 

 

Table 11. Countywide Full Service Partnership Slots as of 2/14/21 

Countywide FSP Program  
Number of  

Slots 

Intensive Field Capable Clinical 
Services (IFCCS) 

510 

Assisted Outpatient Program (AOT) 300 

Integrated Mental Health Team 
(IMHT) 

300 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
205 | Page 

Outpatient Care Services (Formerly Recovery, Resilience, and Reintegration)  
 

Table 12. Number of unique clients served by age group and MHSA cost 

Age Group Child TAY Adult Older Adult 

Number of Clients Served 21,110 18,696 60,206 16,175 

MHSA Average Cost $5,972 $4,642 $3,861 $3,885 

 

Prevention and Early Intervention 

Number of Unique Clients Served: 42,784   
Number of New Clients Served: 23,277 
 

Table 13. Number of unique clients served by age group and MHSA cost 

Age Group Child TAY Adult Older Adult 

Number of Clients Served 27,025 9,002 6,609 1,027 

MHSA Average Cost $3,915 $3,794 $3,072 $3,243 

 
Table 14. PEI clients served by Service Area 

Service Area  Number of Clients Served Number of New Clients 

SA 1 – Antelope Valley 2,850 1,560 

SA 2 – San Fernando Valley 7,288 3,807 

SA 3 – San Gabriel Valley 7,042 4,068 

SA 4 – Metro Los Angeles 6,231 3,890 

SA 5 – West Los Angeles 1,626 931 

SA 6 – South Los Angeles 5,249 3,334 

SA 7 – East Los Angeles 6,185 3,882 

SA 8 - South Bay 7,020 3,807 

 

Table 15. Number of unique clients served by Ethnicity 

Ethnicity Latino White 
African 

American 
Asian Pacific 

Islander 
Native 

American 
Multiple 

Races 

Number of Clients Served 19,181 3,701 3,779 1,058 210 1,760 

Percentage 45% 9% 9% 2% 1% 4% 

 

Table 16. Number of unique clients served by ethnicity and Service Area 

Service Area White 
African 

American 
Latino 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Native 
American 

Multiple 
Races 

SA 1 (2,850) 484 675 1,040 18 16 213 

Percent 17% 24% 36% 1% 1% 7% 

SA 2 (7,288) 986 280 4,009 182 11 434 

Percent 14% 4% 55% 3% 0.15% 6% 

SA 3 (7,042) 474 232 2,250 225 17 147 

Percent 7% 3% 32% 4% 0.24% 2% 

SA 4 (6,231) 474 335 3,318 300 15 170 

Percent 8% 5% 53% 5% 0.24% 3% 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

206 | Page 

Service Area White 
African 

American 
Latino 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Native 
American 

Multiple 
Races 

SA 5 (1,626) 281 225 496 37 4 59 

Percent 17% 14% 31% 1.14% 0.25% 4% 

SA 6 (5,249) 142 1,069 2,378 30 109 108 

Percent 3% 20% 45% 0.29% 2% 2% 

SA 7 (6,185) 385 156 3,079 78 32 254 

Percent 6% 3% 50% 1% 1% 4% 

SA 8 (7,020) 549 887 2,976 201 8 401 

Percent 8% 13% 42% 3% 0.11% 6% 

 

Table 17. Number of unique clients served by primary language 

Primary Language English Spanish Korean 
Unknown/Not 

Reported 

Other 

Number of Clients Served 32,413 9,051 119 634 686 

Percentage 76% 21% 0.28% 1.48% 1.60% 

Data Source for Figures 1-2 and Tables 1-3: American Community Survey (ACS), US Census Bureau and Hedderson Demographic Services, 2019.  Data 

Source for Tables 4-17: Direct service claiming as of 12/1/2021.  Cost is based on Mode 15 services and not inclusive of community outreach services, 

client supportive services or invoiced services. 

 

D. Covid-19 Impact on Mental Health Services 
The LACDMH MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan, Fiscal Years 2021-22 through 2023-24 
sheds light on the significant impact the COVID-19 outbreak had on residents and communities within the 
County noting: 

- increased demand for critical mental health services due to increased stress and isolation 
across populations 

- increased housing and economic disparities for communities of color 
- significant capacity/staff shortages for the mental health and health safety nets to meet the 

needs of those most vulnerable populations 

- Widespread rising COVID infection rates prompting the need for temporary and/or permanent 
business and clinic closures  

 
The third year of the pandemic reflects improvements in the County’s ability to control infection rates, 
hospitalizations, and to provide social services and economic assistance to those in need.   
 
LACDMH has developed and executed several strategies to continue to adapt, including: 

- Increased use of technology, including telehealth and telepsychiatry, and virtual groups and 
celebrations to ensure clients have access to care 

- Regular phone check ins with clients and/or their families 

- Implementation of a peer/volunteer run warm line for those seeking to reach out by phone to 
stay connected 

- Video clinical team meetings, case conferencing, and clinical supervision to ensure best 
clinical practice and team cohesion 

- WebEx court hearings when possible for clients involved in the justice system 

- Continued street outreach to clients experiencing homelessness  
- Resumed outreach and engagement teams with increased COVID-19 safety measures  

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
207 | Page 

E. Fiscal Year-2022-23 Budget Projection Changes 
Tables 18-23 show the difference of what was projected for FY 2022-23 in the Three Year Program and 
Expenditure Plan, Fiscal Years 2021-22 through 2023-24, and what is now projected in the MHSA 
Annual Update FY 2022-23. 

 
Table 18. Community Services and Supports 

Program 
Original 

Projections as of 
June 2021 

Updated Projections 
as of March 2022 

Change Description 

Full Service 
Partnership 

 $302,391,232   $299,567,466   $(2,823,767) 

(1) Overall reduction in services due to the 

pandemic and difficulties to retain staff 

offset by funds allocated to maintain the 

Flexible Housing Subsidies Pool for 

housing vouchers provided to mental 

health clients for rent.  

Outpatient Care 
Services 

 $636,564,407   $569,476,324   $67,088,083) 
(2) Overall reduction in services due to the 

pandemic and difficulties in retaining 

staff.  

Alternative Crisis 
Services 

 $139,819,715  $165,520,546    $25,700,832  
Reflects the operating cost for the new 

Crisis Residential Treatment Programs 

(CRTP) at the Restorative Villages.  

Planning Outreach 
& Engagement 

 $7,108,451   $6,464,668   $(643,783) Same as (2) above  

Linkage Services  $28,322,985   $34,901,893   $6,578,907  Reflects projection of additional Linkage 

services based on current utilization.  

Housing  $ 35,073,361   $35,144,049   $70,688  Same as (1) above 

CSS Administration  $38,865,316   $43,284,429   $4,419,113  Same as (2) above  

TOTAL $1,188,145,468 $1,154,359,375 $(33,786,093)  

 

Table 19. Prevention and Early Intervention 

Program 
Original 

Projections 
as of June 

2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

Suicide 
Prevention  $ 22,302,998   $22,302,998   $       -      

Stigma & 
Discrimination 
Reduction  

 $366,250   $366,250  $        -    



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

208 | Page 

Program 
Original 

Projections 
as of June 

2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

Prevention  $43,564,826   $50,513,488   $6,948,662  

Primarily reflects the addition of 311 positions for universal promoters 
which will serve as community promoters to provide outreach and 
education and the one-time extension of My Health LA (MHLA) 
Agreement with Department of Health Services (DHS) for mental health 
prevention services provided in a primary care setting. 

Early 
Intervention  $198,997,562   $188,002,410   $(10,995,152) 

Reflects the overall reduction in services due to the pandemic and 
difficulties in retaining staff.  

Outreach   $8,368,989   $ 38,688,869   $30,319,880  
Primarily reflects continuation of funding for the Los Angeles Unified 
School District (LAUSD) and Los Angeles County Office of Education 
(LACOE) for Community School Initiatives (CSI) and the transition of the 
Innovation Community Capacity Building project. 

PEI 
Administration  $14,343,578   $15,640,011   $1,296,433  

 Reflects the change in administrative costs based on the projected cost 
of the projects.  

TOTAL  $287,944,203   $315,514,026   $ 27,569,823  
  

 

Table 20. Innovation 

Program 
Original 

Projections 
as of June 

2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

 Inn #2 - 
Community 
Capacity Building  

 $ 14,700,000   $  -     $(14,700,000) Continuation of CANS programming with PEI funding. 

INN # 3 - 
Technology Suite 

 $6,321,028   $  -     $(6,321,028) 
 Reflects the completion of the project.  DMH is currently in discussions 
with the California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA) for 
additional services that may be provided.  

 Inn # 4 - 
Transcranial 
Magnetic 
Stimulation  
Center  

 $1,150,726   $1,150,726   $ -     Reflects the continuation of this project in FY 2022-23.  

 Inn #7 - 
Therapeutic 
Transportation  

 $ 3,387,415   $5,467,999   $2,080,584  
 Reflects the expansion of teams in partnership with Los Angeles City 
Fire Department.  

Inn # 8 - Early 
Psychosis Learning 
Health Care 
Network 

 $492,709   $492,709  $ -     Reflects the continuation of this project in FY 2022-23.  

 Hollywood 2.0 
Project ( formally 
known Trieste)  

   $5,439,504   $5,439,504  
 Reflects the implementation of True Recovery Innovation Embraces 
Systems That Empower (TRIESTE) / Hollywood 2.0 Project  

 INN - 
Administration  

 $ 4,176,000   $2,310,671   $(1,865,329)  Reflects the change in administrative costs based on the projected cost 
of the projects  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
209 | Page 

Program 
Original 

Projections 
as of June 

2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

TOTAL  $ 30,227,878   $14,861,609   $ (15,366,269)  
 

Table 21. Workforce Education and Training (WET) 

Program 

Original 
Projections as 
of June 2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

UCLA Affiliation Agreement  $7,135,501   $6,417,864   $(717,637) 
 Reflects scheduled reduction of one-time 
services.  

Financial Incentive Programs  $3,873,084   $3,873,084   $        -      

Stipend Program for MSWs, MFTs, 
AND NPs 

 $3,063,600   $3,063,600   $        -      

Charles R. Drew Affiliation Agreement  $2,011,394   $2,309,058   $297,664  
Reflects an increase in the services provided in 
the residency program. 

Funds Assistant Behavioral Sciences 
Consultants (6 FTEs), for Post-Docs at 
Harbor-UCLA 

 $510,000   $        -     $(510,000) 

Reflects the elimination of this funding as the 
fellows being funding with a different funding 
source, as they provide direct mental health 
services. 

Intensive MH Recovery Specialist Core 
Training Program 

 $440,000   $ 440,000   $        -      

Interpreter Training Program  $ 80,000   $80,000   $        -      

Learning Net System 2.0  $250,000   $250,000   $        -      

Navigators (Health and Housing)  $200,000  
 $                                         

400,000  

 $                    

200,000  

 Reflects an expansion in the Health Navigation 

training program. 

  

Continuum of Care Reform / Staff and 

Resource Parents Training  
 $500,000   $500,000   $        -      

Parent Partner Training and Parent 

Volunteers Project 
 $320,000   $320,000   $        -      

Peer Focused Training  $        -     $400,000   $400,000  Reflects funding for Peer focused training. 

Med. School Affiliation at Harbor  $260,000   $260,000   $        -      

UCLA Medical School Affiliation 

Agreement (MSAA) 
 $126,000   $136,000   $10,000  

Reflects an increase in cost for services provided 

by UCLA. 

Licensure Preparation Program (MSW, 

MFT, PSY) 
 $250,000   $250,000   $        -      

Administrative Overhead  $1,412,379   $1,501,578   $89,199  
 Reflects the change in administrative costs 

based on the projected cost of the projects.  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

210 | Page 

Program 

Original 
Projections as 
of June 2021 

Updated 
Projections 

as of 
March 
2022 

Change Description 

TOTAL  $20,431,958   $20,201,184   $(230,774)   

 

Table 22. Capital Facilities/Technological Needs (CFTN) 

Program 

Original 
Projections as of 

June 2021 

Updated 
Projections as 
of March 2022 

Change Description 

 Tenant Improvement / Capital 
Facilities  

   $5,000,000   $5,000,000  

 Reflects funding for new and/or existing 
facilities to continue to modernize and develop 
welcoming building to meet the goals of the 
mental health services delivered in Los Angele 
County.  

Modern Call Center  $3,500,000   $3,500,000   $        -    
 Reflects the continuation of this project in FY 
2022-23.  

 CFTN - Administration   $350,000   $2,150,000   $1,800,000  
 Reflects the change in administrative costs 
based on the projected cost of the projects  

TOTAL  $3,850,000   $10,650,000   $6,800,000   

 

Table 23. Summary by Program 

Program 
Original Projections 

as of June 2021 

Updated Projections 
as of March 2022 

Change 

  Community Services and Supports (CSS) Plan   $1,188,145,468   $1,154,359,375   $(33,786,093) 

Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) Plan  $287,944,203   $315,514,026   $27,569,823  

 Innovation   $30,227,878   $14,861,609   $(15,366,269) 

 Workforce, Education and Training (WET) Plan   $20,431,958   $20,201,184   $(230,774) 

Capital Faculties / Technology Needs(CFTN) 
Plan 

 $3,850,000   $10,650,000   $6,800,000  

TOTAL $1,530,599,507 $1,515,586,193 $(15,013,313) 

 
 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
211 | Page 

F. Disparities 
Based on feedback from Underserved Cultural Communities (UsCC) groups, LACDMH reviewed the data it 
collects to more comprehensively capture the racial, ethnic, cultural and disability status of the clients its 
serves. 

 
Race and Ethnicity: 
LACDMH will now be reporting the racial and ethnic status, including primary language spoken, of the 
clients served at a more granular level and will publish a public-facing dashboard on its website. 
 
Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity (SOGI) 
The County has finalized data collection fields for gender identity and sexual orientation.  LACDMH has 
been working to ensure that recent federal requirements are consistent with County reporting prior to 
modifying its electronic health record and requiring that of contractors.  The Department’s subject matter 
expert on SOGI has developed training materials for staff on collecting this information and will finalize 
once data fields are finalized.   
 
Services for Clients with Disabilities 
▪ The number of clients who report their primary language as American Sign Language (ASL) 

will now be reported.  Current data has clients who report their primary language as ASL is 
.03% of clients served. 

▪ The ACCESS Center Help Line is in the process of transitioning to 711, the California Relay 
Service, to assist callers who are deaf or hard of hearing.  This will replace the antiquated TTY-
TTD system. Informational materials will be disseminated upon adoption of 711. 

 
In the first quarter of calendar year 2022, LACDMH will begin participating in a multi-county learning 
collaborative, informed by the outstanding work of Solano County and comprised of training from the 
University of California, Davis (UC Davis) Center for Reducing Disparities on applying the Culturally 
and Linguistically Appropriate Standards (CLAS) to populations that we specify and to utilize quality 
improvement approaches to reduce disparities.  LACDMH views this opportunity as a vehicle for the 
disparities reduction efforts and as a way to strengthen community voice. 

 
G. Updates on Actions Approved in the MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan FYs 2021-22 
through 2023-24 
 

FSP Redesign 

As part of the previous Three-Year Plan, FSP programs and services were developed to provide 
comprehensive mental health services to clients requiring intensive treatment.  Services are provided by a 
multi-disciplinary team based on a specific number of client slots.  Services provided to clients enrolled in 
FSP may include, but are not limited to, 24/7 crisis response (in-person when needed); ongoing intensive 
mental health treatment; housing services; employment services; and co-occurring mental illness and 
substance use treatment services. Adult FSP Services aim to help Clients, those adults enrolled in Adult FSP 
Services, increase their ability to function at optimal levels, decrease homelessness and incarcerations, and 
reduce unnecessary medical and psychiatric urgent care and emergency room visits and hospitalizations. 
For those Clients that are homeless, Adult FSP Services will help them transition from street to home by 
providing immediate and on-going assistance with securing and maintaining housing. Child/Young Adult (YA) 
FSP Services include but are not limited to individual and family counseling, 24/7 assessment and crisis 
services, Intensive Care Coordination (ICC), and Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS). The intent of these 
services is to help Clients and/or families increase their ability to function at optimal levels. Existing FSP 
programs serve children and young adults between the ages of 0-20 and adults (21+).  

 
LACDMH transformed the FSP program so that we can best support our highest acuity outpatient consumers 
on the path to recovery and well-being.  This effort included: 

- Changed the eligibility criteria to be more focused on those most in need of FSP care; 
- Changed the FSP service model to utilize a multidisciplinary team/population approach, rather than 

individual caseloads and “slots;” 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

212 | Page 

- Began the integration of all specialty FSP programs into one FSP model (with the exception of 
Housing FSP which transitioned to housing support); 

- Lowered client to staff ratios; 
- Added funding for additional staffing to enable Child FSP programs to provide Intensive Care 

Coordination (ICC) & Intensive Home Based Services (IHBS); 
- Provided enhanced training and technical assistance to support FSP providers in achieving desired 

outcomes; 
- Enhanced services and supports to ensure successful transitions between levels of care; 

- Centralized the authorization, enrollment, and disenrollment processes for FSP to ensure that those 
highest needs clients are able to access the FSP services; 

- Standardized rates to bring contracted provider staff salaries closer to parity with their counterparts 
in the LACDMH clinics, as a part of LACDMH’s broader rate-setting exercise; and  

- Changes to the FSP contracts to add incentives for providers to help their clients achieve critical 
life outcomes, moving our system towards performance-based contracting; and 

- Using data, and consumer & provider feedback to drive continuous improvement. 

 
These changes were incorporated into the Service Exhibits within the contracts, which were included in the 
new Legal Entity agreements that were executed on July 1, 2021.  The transformed FSP program was 
launched on July 1, 2021.  Because this program redesign is new for both LACDMH and contract providers, 
we plan to work with existing FSP providers to pilot this new model over the next 3 years.  Lessons learned 
from this pilot will inform the rebid of FSP contracts for FY 2024-25.   
 

24/7 Access Modernization Project 

The approved funding shift allows the Department to engage with a consultant to modernize the existing 

antiquated Call Center into the hub in accessing services with the DMH system of care.  The Call Center will 

provide end-to-end assistance in an efficient and client-focused manner utilizing an agent and client centered 

design.  Project goals are as follows: 

- Reduce the number of software applications used by agents by developing a single view with end-
to-end care visibility in order to best meet the needs of the caller 

- Allow for integration with other systems (e.g., law enforcement) for receiving, assessing, triaging and 
mounting non-law enforcement responses to crises cross our communities 

- Provide integration technology between the Call Center and service providers (including crisis 
response) in order to reduce time-to-care, maximize service capacity and improve coordination of 
services 

- Develop self-service capabilities and alternative access-points designed by feedback from the 
community 

- Automate call and client analytics to ensure the Call Center is meeting the needs of the community 
and responding in a timely manner. 

 

On September 28, 202, DMH posted a solicitation to secure the services of a vendor for the ACCESS Call 

Center Modernization Project. A bidders conference was held on October 5, 2021. As of February 2022, DMH 

has received multiple bids for this solicitation and is in the evaluation process. This evaluation process is 

anticipated to be completed no later than spring 2022. 

 

Mental Health Treatment Beds and Housing Capacity 

• LACDMH recommended a two-year pilot, long with strategies to expand and improve mental health bed 
capacity and service quality throughout the system, to procure up to 500 mental health treatment beds of 
varying types based on available funding.   In the last two years, LACDMH arranged for access to up to 239 
beds when they became (or will become) available, of which 160 beds were utilized. In implementing the bed 
pilot, DMH went approximately $9.9 million dollars over budget utilizing one-time Sales Tax Realignment. In 
order to continue to move patients and allow continuous and efficient system flow, ongoing funding above 
the $25 million in Sales Tax Realignment revenues set aside in the FY 2019-20 Final Adopted Budget by 
LACDMH is required.  This bed pilot was implemented in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic and as such, 
it was executed in combination with the County Continuity of Operations: Surge Plan. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
213 | Page 

 
G. Proposed Changes in the MHSA Annual Update FY 2022-23 
 

Innovation 2: Community Capacity Building to Prevent and Address Trauma 

This Innovation project was posted to the LACDMH website on February 27, 2015 and approved by the OAC 

on May 28, 2015.  Due to the time-limited nature of MHSA-Innovations, this project is scheduled to end on 

June 30, 2022. 

 

This project centers on building the capacity of the community to identify and support community members 

at risk of trauma or experiencing trauma. The project aims to utilize the assets of the community to test 

strategies that allow local communities to work together in ways that will ultimately lead to better mental health 

and reductions in trauma, through the building of shared community values, leadership development and 

community member empowerment.  In June 2020, LACDMH integrated community mental health workers 

(community ambassadors) into the INN 2 project.   

 

The concept of the Community Ambassador Network (CAN) leverages existing networks of trusted 

community-based providers and organizations to have the right people in the right place at the right time to 

provide necessary resources to those in need.  The development of the CAN through Innovations 2 has 

allowed LACDMH to expand our behavioral health workforce, in partnership with community based 

organizations, to hire and train 326 community ambassadors.  As of 12/6/2021, 321 individuals have been 

part of the CAN.  The CAN intern project was introduced a year ago as a collaborative project with the 

Department of Public Social Services (DPSS), the INN 2 team and the California Work Opportunity and 

Responsibility to Kids (CalWORKs) team. Funded by DPSS, CAN Interns expand the reach and supports 

available within communities by members of the community.  

 

The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors approved nine (9) lead agencies and ten (10) projects, two (2) 

in each Supervisorial District, to establish community partnerships in geographically-defined communities.  

The identified communities are those with a concentration of inequalities, including disproportionate levels of 

poverty, high concentrations of unserved and underserved individuals and poor health and well-being 

outcomes, including educational and unemployment inequities. Lead agencies were selected through a 

solicitation process. Each proposing organization and their community partners selected specific strategies 

based on their community’s interests and needs.  Beyond the implementation of selected strategies, each 

community partnership is responsible for building the capacity of the specific communities to work collectively 

toward supporting community identification and reduction of trauma, as outlined in the solicitation. 

 

COVID-19 has resulted in a critical need for mental health services, and the 321 individuals that have been 

part of the CAN have allowed DMH to build capacity, provide trauma-informed targeted outreach and 

resources to communities at higher risk.  In addition, by leveraging existing relationships and partnerships, 

each lead agency was able to identify available resources and connect with community members with needed 

supports (i.e., housing, food, mobile shower units, hot meals, rental and utility assistance and a multitude of 

linkages).    

 

Innovation 2: Outcomes  
Specifically, the following process and summative outcomes were achieved by the Innovations 2 program: 

• There were 8,077 registered participants, with 68% (5,499) of all participants were enrolled in 

INN 2 during the pandemic.  Most participants in INN 2 are families with young children between 

the ages of 0-5 (25.2% of participants), intergenerational families (23.2% of participants) and 

TAY (22.3% of participants).  

• Through nearly 10,700 community events, outreach and social media posts, 560,268 

community members were reached, 18,000 meals provided, 9,865 individuals vaccinated for 

COVID-19 and PPE provided to nearly 14,000 individuals.   



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

214 | Page 

• The CAN Participants demonstrated a stronger understanding of the relationship between 

trauma and mental health, significant improvements in resilience, and improved ability to cope 

with stress.   

• Over the past year, 93% of the 29,587 linkages to community resources and supports were 

successful.  Despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, linkages increased substantially 

from the prior year. 

• During FY 2020-2021, there were a total of 14,219 outreach and engagement efforts, 
representing a substantial increase compared to the prior year of the project. 

• Through Learning Sessions, partners learned how to engage a wider net of at-risk community 

members to provide support.   

• Participants enrolled in INN 2 during the COVID-19 pandemic, reported feeling significantly 
more connected with the community, and utilized more approach coping skills after three 
months of INN 2 activities. 

• Participants reported feeling significantly more resilient after 9 months of participation in INN 
2. 

• Based on data from the Conner-Davidson Resilience Scale (CD-RISC-10) participants who 
enrolled in INN 2 during the past year of the pandemic, reported no decline in their resilience 
despite the significant amount of stress communities experienced over the course of the past 
year.   

• In addition, based on the Inclusion of Community in Self (ICS) Scale, INN 2 participants 
reported a significant increase in their connection to the community, relative to the baseline 
score. 

• Community members engaged with INN 2 and the Community Ambassadors also reported 
significant improvement in Approach Coping scores, based on The Cope Inventory. 

• Partnership rosters within the community increased by 13% as INN 2 partnerships expanded 
to include new organizations and community members.  Specifically, the INN 2 networks 
averaged 57 partners in February 2021, compared to 51 partners last year (February 2020) 
and 36 partners in March 2019 (baseline assessment).  On key factor responsible for the 
stronger community partnerships has been the addition of the Community Ambassador 
Network. 

 

Innovation 2: Proposed Budget 
An annual budget of $22,489,000 using Prevention and Early Intervention funding.  

 

Capital Facilities 

Capital Facilities component funds will be utilized to increase and improve existing capital facilities 

infrastructure to accommodate the needs of current and expanded MHSA programs. The additional funds will 

address the current and anticipated needs of both public mental health service facilities and administrative 

space. Space utilization at all facilities is currently at maximum capacity.  To the extent possible, DMH will 

utilize these funds to continue to modernize and develop welcoming facilities that will move its mental health 

system toward the goals of wellness, recovery, and resiliency; and will also help to expand the opportunities 

for accessible community based services for clients and their families, promoting the reduction in disparities 

in underserved groups. 

Innovation – Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project 

LACDMH was approved to receive MHSA Innovation funding from the Mental Health Services Oversight and 

Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) to test a new and comprehensive approach to providing services to 

individuals in the Hollywood area suffering from severe and persistent mental illness, as a result, experiencing 

chronic homelessness, incarceration and or repeated hospital use.  The Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project is a 

modification of the MHSA Innovations project Trieste, which was approved by the MHSOC in May of 2019 

prior to the pandemic.  The project is based on LACDMH’s fiscal projections and the anticipated CalAim 

program. The Hollywood 2.0 pilot aims to provide our most vulnerable residents with relentless engagement 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
215 | Page 

and enhanced access to treatment functioning as tools to facilitate individuals with connection to people, 

place, and purpose in life. Hollywood 4WRD (4 Walls, a Roof and a Door), a grassroots public-private 

coalition, will serve as the engagement body for the Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project.  The primary purpose of the 

Hollywood 2.0 Pilot Project is to establish a variety of recovery-oriented resources that promote an integrated, 

community-based approach in the delivery of novel programs and services that enhance the client’s abilities 

to lead fulfilling lives in their neighborhood. The project is proposed for 5 years. 

 

The Hollywood 2.0 pilot represents an opportunity for the County to leverage MHSA Innovation funding, 

partner with local community leadership, and use existing local assets to build out a rich array of resources that 

will strengthen clients’ ties to the Hollywood community.  Such resources include a robust infrastructure of 

facilities and a system of care that offers both services and opportunities to support a highly vulnerable 

community in new and exciting ways. 

 
Hollywood 2.0 will allow the Department to develop novel programs and services that will   enhance client’s 
abilities to lead fulfilling lives and feel connected to their surrounding neighborhood. New programs such as 
Supportive Employment and Supportive Education services will provide clients with opportunities to learn 
life skills while simultaneously connecting them to agencies and employers in the Hollywood area. By 
providing the Pilot’s clients with a chance to find purpose in their daily lives and make meaningful 
connections to others in their community, Hollywood 2.0 embraces the Department’s belief in clients’ ability 
to manage their life successfully, which is a key element  of recovery. 
 

Staffing for Hollywood 2.0 will be identified for assignment to Full-Service Partnership (FSP) (6-7 staff) and 

Homeless Outreach Mobile Engagement (HOME) teams dedicated to the project.  The proposed annual 

budget is $100,000. 

 

Hollywood has one of the County’s most concentrated populations of unhoused individuals suffering from 

profound brain illness(es) and languishing in the streets. Aside from putting in place resources needed to 

address this crisis, the goal of the Hollywood 2.0 project is to leverage the significant momentum and buy-in 

across the Hollywood community. As part of our plan to expand the current footprint and establish new 

resources in Hollywood to create service arrays, the pilot will leverage a few key evolving reform efforts, 

including the Full-Service Partnership (FSP) Redesign, (HOME) Outpatient Conservatorship Pilot (HOME 

pilot), Peer Resource Center replication (including clubhouse type programming) and Alternative Crisis 

Response (ACR) initiatives.  

 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

216 | Page 

APPENDIX B – STAKEHOLDER PRESENTATION – MARCH 9, 2022 
POWERPOINT PRESENTATION TO THE CLT, SLT AND FULL MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION –  
 
 
 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
217 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

218 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
219 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

220 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
221 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

222 | Page 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
223 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

224 | Page 

 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
225 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

226 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
227 | Page 

APPENDIX C – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION (MHC) PRESENTATION 
PRESENTATION TO THE MHC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – MARCH 10, 2022 
[C1] AGENDA 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

228 | Page 

[C2] POWERPOINT PRESENTATION 
 
 
 
 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
229 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

230 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
231 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

232 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
233 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

234 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
235 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

236 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
237 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

238 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
239 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

240 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
241 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

242 | Page 

 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
243 | Page 

APPENDIX D - PUBLIC REVIEW OF DRAFT ANNUAL UPDATE AND COMMENT PERIOD: 
MARCH 8 THROUGH APRIL 13, 2022 
PUBLIC COMMENTS AND SURVEY RESPONSES RECEIVED 
 
[D1] SURVEY RESPONSES 

• 66 Survey responses were received, 65 in English and 1 in Spanish.   

• Not all respondents answered all the questions. 

 
• After reviewing the FY 2022/23 MHSA Annual Update, please rate your understanding of the following: 

Overall ease and clarity of the information presented (n=60) 

• 8% reported Excellent 

• 20% reported Very Good 

• 22% reported Good 

• 32% reported Fair 

• 8% reported Poor 
 
How MHSA programs are being implemented (n=60) 

• 5% reported Excellent 

• 15% reported Very Good 

• 22% reported Good 

• 33% reported Fair 

• 25% reported Poor 
 
How MHSA funding is being spent (n=60) 

• 7% reported Excellent 

• 17% reported Very Good 

• 27% reported Good 

• 20% reported Fair 

• 30% reported Poor 

 
What is your affiliation? (The respondents can choose more than one category) 

• 21% of the respondents are clients/consumers 

• 7% of the respondents are peers 

• 13% of the respondents are advocates 

• 14% of the respondents are family members of a client/consumer 

• 5% of the respondents are other government employees 

• 6% of the respondents are LACDMH staff/employees 

• 17% of the respondents are mental health service provider 

• 16% of the respondents indicated Other 

 
What is your age? (n=65) 
 

• 0% reported Under 20 years old  

• 6% reported 20 to 29 years old  

• 17% reported 30 to 39 years old  

• 26% reported 40 to 49 years old  

• 25% reported 50 to 59 years old  

• 17% reported 60 to 69 years old  

• 9% reported 70 years old or over 
 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

244 | Page 

What ethnic groups do you identify with? (The respondents can choose more than one category) 

• 14% reported African 

• 8% reported Asian 

• 24% reported Caucasian 

• 26% reported Latin/Latina/Latinx 

• 4% reported Mixed/multi-ethnic 

• 10% reported Native American / American Indian / Alaskan Native 

• 14% reported Other 

 
SURVEY #1 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• So disconnected. There is no strength to this 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Not enough focus on serious mental illness, not enough focus on finding enough treatment beds or facilities. 
Not enough advocacy not enough family support or engagement not enough being done for the gravely 
disabled... Not enough done for the dually diagnosed 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Even the email is confusing.. spread the words to the public that they can provide input as to how the county 
treats the mentally ill and post about in online, on social media, on the radio and you will vet alot of 
information 
 

SURVEY #2 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• Similar goals with less difficult language that is causative of side talk. Rendering delays 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Very little 
 

SURVEY #3 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• There will be more communication with those in need in terms of having regular phone calls with clients 
and/or their families. 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• If I understood correctly, the CANs program is expected to end. There is a high need for community members 
trying to access resources, and the CANs program seems to be the bridge in making sure the community 
members have access to the needed resources. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• It would be helpful to put a brief summary/explanation after each table presented with information/money. 
It would also have been helpful to talk about the action steps taken to address the impact of COVID-19 on 
mental health services. 

 

SURVEY #4 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• The objective to expand mental health services to underserve communities 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Failure to open MHSA funds in a grant driven, open bid solicitation unrestrictive bidding directly targeting 
innovative approaches expanding direct mental health services. Treatment services are not identified for 
mental health disorders like Rape Trauma Syndrome (PTSD), Intermittent Explosive Disorder in Children and 
Teens, Adjustment Disorder, Autism with Behavioral Disorders. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
245 | Page 

• Include the number of clients served and evaluation process which reports effectiveness rate of money spent. 
Innovation Grants: Detailed description on how programs are selected, number of grants released and the 
recipients receiving the money 
 

 
SURVEY #5 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• Nothing 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Very weak 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Get me a fucking housing for me and my daughter. 
 

SURVEY #6 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• Very data driven. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• It was a lot of information in a short amount of time. There was no contact information provided as follow-
up. Also, the slides were too small to read the content. First, there is one area of public health that was not 
called out specifically. That is the devastating acceleration of the opioid crisis since the pandemic. Overdose 
deaths have increased 45% in 2020. Please help me understand what this year’s plans are to address this 
issue. Second, the pandemic forced a lot of small businesses and non-profits to close while the needs of the 
community intensified. The contracting process within LA county required 3 years of experience. New 
businesses (which most are because the old ones closed) do not meet those criteria. I propose a new pathway 
be created to encourage innovation, adaptability, and agility to respond to the ever changing needs of the 
community. This will also promote equity and fairness in the application process. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Contact information for follow-up questions in specific areas. 
 

SURVEY #7 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• FSP 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Family Education about Mental Illness and DMH service. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Family Education(like NAMI Family-to-Family) 
 

SURVEY #8 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update?  

• The Budget it’s ok , I wish the DMH or DPSS AND Children Department DEVELOP PROGRAM TO ERRADICATED 
BULLING IN THE SCHOOLS 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The pandemic 😷 still on, and I hope THE CDC DEVELOP VACCINE FOR THE 5 year old 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Print out or hard copy the Document 
 

SURVEY #9 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• There is a plan and action is being taken. The needs of those who struggle with housing are being address 
especially by DMH. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

246 | Page 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The issue of substance use (all substances) and the lack of awareness to substance use being a contributor to 
a transient lifestyle. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Use client stories to share what services benefited and why type of personality was most helpful to their 
wellbeing. 

 

SURVEY #10 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• NOTHING. IT'S THE SAME PLAN AS BEFORE, NAMELY: "STAY THE COURSE." 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• IN THE ENTIRE REPORT, I FOUND ONLY 4 INSTANCES MENTIONING AOT, AND THEY WERE ALL IN ONE SHORT PARAGRAPH ON PAGE 

16 WITH ONLY 300 SLOTS. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• THE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY SHOULD NOT LOOK LIKE THE APPENDIX. PLEASE REMOVE ALL THE DATA, AND TABLES, AND MAKE IT ONE 

PAGE STRICTLY HIGHLIGHTING THE BEFORE, THE NOW, AND THE FUTURE IN PLAIN ENGLISH. AOT SHOULD BE EXPANDED. ONLY 300 

SLOTS OUT OF 171K?! WE TREAT ANIMALS BETTER THAN WE TREAT PEOPLE. RESCUING A DOG FROM THE LA RIVER WAS BIGGER 

NEWS THAN 800 PEOPLE WITH MENTAL ILLNESS DYING EVERY YEAR ON THE LA STREETS FROM PREVENTABLE DEATHS! IF ONLY WE 

HAD A "FOSTER A PERSON WITH MENTAL ILLNESS" PROGRAM TO AT LEAST COME CLOSE TO HOW PEOPLE TAKE PETS IN THEIR HOMES! 

ANTONOVICH USED TO BRING OUT A PUPPY THAT IS UP FOR ADOPTION AT EVERY BOS MEETING. WHY CAN'T DMH SELECT A BOS 

SUPERVISOR WHO WILL BE THE MENTAL HEALTH CHAMPION AND FEATURE A PERSON WITH MENTAL HEALTH PROBLEMS AT EVERY 

MEETING WHO IS IN NEED OF A HOME, CARE, LOVE, COMMUNITY, AND SUPPORT? IF WE CAN GET THE PUBLIC TO LOOK AT PEOPLE 

WITH MENTAL ILLNESS THE WAY THEY LOOK AT THE RESCUE STORIES FEATURED ON YOUTUBE CHANNEL "THE DODO" (SEE FOR 

EXAMPLE THE YOUTUBE CHANNEL "LIVING WELL WITH SCHIZOPHRENIA") THEN WE AT LEAST WILL BE HALF WAY THERE. PLEASE 

EXPAND AOT TO INCLUDE "OPEN HOUSE" (FOR THE LACK OF A BETTER WORD) EVENTS AT SHELTERS, DMH TREATMENT FACILITIES, 
WHERE PEOPLE WITH MONEY WON'T HAVE TO GO TO FOREIGN COUNTRIES TO LOOK FOR COMPANIONS BUT INSTEAD FIND THEIR 

COMPANIONS AND THE FAMILIES THEY CAN HELP BY TAKING THEM INTO THEIR MANSIONS DIRECTLY FROM THE LA HOMELESS 

SHELTERS! THERE ARE MANY RECOVERED PEOPLE WITH MENTAL ILLNESS WHO ARE ON DATING APPS SEARCHING FOR SOMEONE LIKE 

THEM, WHEREAS THEY COULD BE SEARCHING IN THE WRONG PLACE! THEIR FUTURE MATE COULD BE WAITING FOR THEM AT A 

HOMELESS SHELTER OR A DMH TREATMENT FACILITY! CREATE A BRIDGE FOR MORE PEOPLE TO CONNECT WITH AKIN PEOPLE RATHER 

THAN FOR MORE PEOPLE TO CONNECT WITH MORE SHELTERED, ABUSED, HURT, AND DISTRESSED ANIMALS. WHAT MAKES SUCH A BIG 

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THESE ANIMALS AND THE PEOPLE WE CAN SAVE? 
 

SURVEY #11 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The population served was broken down by SPAs with specific numbers for each service area. 

• Charts/visual are accessible and easy to follow the data presented 

• Measures taken by the agency to address the disabled population being served (Deaf/HOH) 

• The inclusion of areas where the agency needs grow and the ability of the agency to self-monitor and design 
programs as needed. 

• The agency's acknowledgement of trauma consequences and potential interventions to address the issue. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Lack of disaggregated API data (Ideally be specific to Filipinos and others served) 

• 3 Year Plan is too broad 

• Provide links to the proposed programs/plans in order to have a better understanding of the proposed 
changes and/or services. 

• Topic of DMH being a multi-county collaboration with other counties; what is its purpose? What has been 
done? Who are the counties? 

• Capital Facilities – what does this mean? Provide definitions for terms to make it accessible for the public 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Perhaps using hyperlink to access more detail information about programs, projects, data and expenditures 
(more detailed graphs) 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
247 | Page 

 

SURVEY #12 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Loaded with information 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• everything is to general 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• send out a survey before putting together the budget, asking people what they would want elaborated on 
and add depth with how money will be spent on the most voted upon.. 

 

SURVEY #13 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• HELP THE HOMELESS MORE 
 

SURVEY #14 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• IS TO FIND WAYS TO HELP IMPROVE EVERY PERSON WITH MENTAL HEALTH AND FINDS WAYS TO CREATE UP 

MORE VALUE FOR MORE MENTAL HEALTH CLINICS, CORPORATIONS, COMPANIES WITH EXCELLENT 

PHARMACY SUPPLY GREATMEDICATIONS. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• NOT PROVIDING ENOUGH SUPPORT AND MEDICAL ASSISTANCE FOR PEOPLE DEALING WITH MENTAL HEALTH 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• TO SUPPLY A REALLY GOOD MEDICAL STAFF FOR MENTAL HEALTH. 
 

SURVEY #15 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• USING 4 MEDICAL FACILITIES TO HOUSE OR MANAGE THOSE IN CRISIS. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The person in crisis must be referred by provider. Some are uninsured and medical records are not available 
for historical patient data. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Half of the budget is being spent on Hispanics. More neighborhood resources should be made available for 
this group. 

 

SURVEY #16 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• An over all there could be improvement, where it’s programs or planning housing for the homeless, changing 
rules where there are protecting the clients as well as the staff, over seeing attitudes management? 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Based of communication, with clients and not being knowledgeable of any abuse. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• By making a application, for phone app. So client can view appointment and treatment plans. 

 

SURVEY #17 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Available resources 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Not having a team in place for mental health on emergency they take days to respond 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

248 | Page 

• Having available mental health specialist there to support families in s crisis 
 

 
SURVEY #18 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• How does this plan help the mentally ill for the long term.? 

• Where is the plan to provide them a community of recovery? 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• nothing references LIVED experiences. Where is the input from people experiencing mental illness NOW? 

• How does this plan help those for the long term.? 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• People living with mental illness NEED a community of recovery and hope. Build communities with housing 
where people have a purpose. Those that cannot recover stay and live a decent life. Those that can learn a 
skill, take their meds and live on their own can leave the community and live a hopeful life. 

 

SURVEY #19 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• THESE REPORTS ON WHO FUNDS ARE USED, BUT IT'S DIFFICULT TO RESULTS AND OUTCOMES. WITH THE WAY THE SOCIETY IS 

FUNCTIONING I CAN'T VISIBLY OR MENTALLY GET MY MIND AROUND THINGS GETTING BETTER. I HAVEN'T PARTICIPATED IN THE 

CULTURE FOR OVER 3 YEARS, DUE TO COVID BUT STILL CAN'T INQUIRIES ABOUT ALL TYPE OF SERVICES. IT'S OVERWHELMING. IT'S 

LIKE A LOGIC MODEL ALL OVER THE PLACE. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• What's hard is interpreting the information effectiveness with the amount of money being spent. The 
information overload. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Stats that show reduction on the problems and who is being helped to become less dependent on the system. 
For three years, I tracked two former lifer's journeys after 32 years in prison upon reentry. Tracking, evaluation 
and support service that successful watched them be productive. I see the tangible. 

 

SURVEY #20 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Very little. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Am so sick and tired of talk and no action. DMH is mostly a dead broken bureaucracy, and no one really even 
tries to fix it 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Fuck improving your presentation --start fixing problems and make things work. 
 

SURVEY #21 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• NOTHING 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• lot with me in general 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Check my email and stay rite in tell god call on to me. 
 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
249 | Page 

SURVEY #22 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Not sure 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• I ONLY KNOW YOU ARE NOT SEEING THINGS AS IT REALLY IS. OVER 65 YEAR OLDS NO MATTER WHAT RACE ARE IMPACTED BY PANDEMIC 

SO BAD THAT MOST OF ALL I KNOW HAVE WITHDRAWN FROM ALL SOCIAL EVENTS AND OUR LIVES HAVE BECOME SO DEPRESSED THAT 

I’M SURE OUR LIFE HAS LOST 10 YEARS OF EXPECTANCY 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Help people who are not poor or homeless but can’t afford help 
 

SURVEY #23 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• THE PROCESS FOR INPUT AND REVIEW. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• FLEXIBILITY IN BETTER UNDERSTANDING THE VARIOUS STAGES ENTITIES/CONTRACTORS ARE IN. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• IT IS ACTUALLY PRETTY GOOD BUT NEEDS BETTER DESIGN AND EASE OF USE. 
 

SURVEY #24 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• NONE 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• NONE 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Open 
 

[SURVEY #25 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• THERE IS A LOT OF GOOD INFORMATION BUT IT'S HARD TO KNOW HOW EVENLY SERVICES ARE BEING COVERED. FOR INSTANCE WHEN 

THE CATEGORY OF CHILDREN IS LISTED THERE IS NO BREAKDOWN TO KNOW HOW MANY CHILDREN 0-5 ARE BEING COVERED OR HOW 

MANY TAY ARE BEING SERVED. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• I GUESS I COVERED THAT IN THE FIRST QUESTION. SHOWS HOW MUCH MONEY IS ALLOTTED BUT NOT HOW WELL SERVICES ARE 

ACTUALLY BEING PROVIDED. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Offer outcomes - perhaps in another document. Breakdown categories such as children into 0-5 and 6 to 14 
and TAY 

 

SURVEY #26 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Strong promotion of racial classification and "wastebasket" taxonomies of Linnaeus & various white 
supremacist psuedoscientists. Strong perpetuation of functional inferiorization of "underserved" 
Foundational and Indigenous Americans. Excellent masking of corebarrier i.e., irrational invisibility of 
whiteness, with rationality. 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Bolstering white settler meritocracy through reconceptualizing cultural competency as a measure of poor 
adaptation to white supremacy named "stigma", while 2% of U.S. psychiatrists are non-white. 
Misappropriation of Adinkara and ancestral African technology in support of advancing status quo. 
Pathological avoidance of real structural change eg. Redistribution of wealth as a social determinant of well 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

250 | Page 

being and equitable access. Imposing fallacies of a white settler episteme eg. universal psychosocial axiology, 
"intersectionality", cultural capitalization, trauma integration, mental health as a set rather than component 
of human health, on Foundational Black American communities. The continuing presentation of white 
supremacy as rational. Pandering to white settler psychosocial scholarship that only seeks to measure, & profit 
from, the adaptive failure of stolen fresh water fish, in a toxic salt water environment, without addressing the 
"health" of the water. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Encourage and support the voices of "real"( i.e. non-nationalistic, unconditioned through white settler 
meritocracy) FBA & first peoples' advocates who seek to dismantle imperialist, white-supremacist, capitalist, 
patriarchy and restore space, time, energy, and movement as "health" agency in our communities. Address 
and face the fragile white-settler fears of the "cost" of a truly equitable Nuestra Señora La Reina de los Angeles 
de Porciuncula. 

 

SURVEY #27 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Unsure. Received the notice for this survey on April 5th. Comments are due April 6th. This is not adequate 
notice. 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Unsure. Received the notice for this survey on April 5th. Comments are due April 6th. This is not adequate 
notice. 

 

SURVEY #28 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• not enough skilled and educated clinicians and para professionals to meet the demand in providing the 
services required. No accountability with the contract providers. We need to see greater outcomes and if 
there are poor results we must not delay in scraping a program and turn our attention elswhere. Thank-You 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Work ethics implementation for those with higher functioning skills need to be addressed. And entry level job 
opportunities for those mentally ill clients who would like to work would benefit from a program that could 
prepare them into the work force and make them independent from other services. 

 

SURVEY #29 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Peers, Community Workers, and Medical Case Workers 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Management and DMH Leadership 
 

SURVEY #30 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• THE MODERNIZATION OF THE CALL CENTER AND HOLLYWOOD 2.0 PROJECT 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• 1. Communication with DMH has become difficult. 

• 2. DMH is planning to pilot the Hollywood 2.0 project intead of relying on community partners that are more 
flexible and nimble. 

• 3. Despite the success of Peer Respites DMH still isn't talking to providers about adding more peer respites to 
our our continum. 

 

SURVEY #31 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
251 | Page 

• None 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• A) It's not stakeholder driven, and it failed to follow stakeholder recommendations and request to correct the 
major errors by LACDMH and its consultants in their failed understanding and implementation of state 
mondated CPP legal requirements. 

• B) The process discriminated against LACDMH who are Spanish monolingual by not having equitable 
opportunities to learn, participate, and develop this 2022/23 Annual Update. This current update does not 
include, reflect, or represent the interest, comments, and recommendations of Spanish monolingual 
stakeholders who provided comments to LACDMH about this MHSA update, and or who wanted to participate 
in the CPP process for the 2022/23 Annual Update that was presented by LACDMH in such a limited manner. 
The process included discrimination, harrasment, and retaliation of LACDMH consumers who participated in 
LACDMH MHSA planning and implementation sessions by LACDMH staff, consultants, and service providers. 

• Here is a video link to example sited: 
http://lacountymediahost.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?clip_id=9758http://lacountymediahost.granicus.c
om/MediaPlayer.php?clip_id=9758 

 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• We need the CPP because the CPP can only be robust when (LACDMH) stakeholders, staff, and commissioners 
understand the requirements and is intentions about reaching out to stakeholders, unserved and underserved 
communities. 

• Needs include: 

• 1) Staff Training (for local mental/behavioral health agency staff) that includes: 

• a. CPP Requirements by law: 

• i. Definition 

• ii. Participants 

• iii. Process 

• b. Community Engagement Training - Local agency staff should go out into the community (in-person & 
remotely) as they work to engage and receive input. Components of community engagement training should 
include:  Individual Meetings with Leadership of Community Organizations (such as Cultural Organizations, 
Older Adult Groups, Children & Youth Groups, Parent Organizations, Veterans Groups, Advocacy Groups, Peer 
Groups) 

• 1. Create a Relationship 

• 2. Understand Cultural Sensitivity/Understanding regarding Mental Health 

• 3. Discuss Barriers/Gaps and Successes 

• ii. Listening Sessions with small groups 

• c. Unconscious Bias Training 

• 2) Ensure CPP Requirements are Met - Increased Emphasis in all of Los Angeles County localities, SALT’s, 
UsCCs, LACDMH operated clinics/sites, mental health commission to review and approve the procedures used 
to ensure LA County residents and LACDMH consumers are involved in all stages of the planning process. 

• 3) Identify and Communicate Successful Programs – Stakeholders, unserved and underserved communities as 
well as agency staff need to know what success looks like. They need to know about effective mental health 
strategies and programs that meet the needs of individuals with diverse backgrounds and experiences 
(including ethnic, racial, cultural, older-adult, justice-involved, people with disabilities, children, transitional 
age youth (TAY), and LGBTQIA2S+). CA’s state agencies should work to increase the identification and 
communication of effective behavioral health programs and practices. Provide ongoing training and 
discussions about the MHSA, reports, and updates. 

• 4) Have a dedicated staff that consumers, stakeholders, and community members can email and get timely 
responses about questions, concears, recommendations, and information related to LACDMH MHSA reports, 
updates, and mandated CPP processes. 

• 5) Have safe spaces where LACDMH consumers are not attacked, and can be provided support from LACDMH 
staff when they are attacked, retaliated, harassed, and victimized by LACDMH staff, consultants, and contract 
providers for attending and participating in these MHSA process.  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

252 | Page 

• We never got an answer about how much money is being allocated to LACDMH CPP , or how much has been 
spent and on what. Similarly there was no clear answer about the reported $100 million dollars of unspent 
MHSA money that LACDMH has not spent and is saving. 

 

SURVEY #32 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• EFFORT TO ADDRESS BUDGET AND AVAILABLE FUNDING DIFFERENCES 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Continued token effort to address barriers and lack of services for deaf, hard of hearing, deaf-blind, and 
physically disabled 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Greater effort to address public concerns across services 
 

SURVEY #33 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• larger scope 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• real time solution. 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• That a person with community is more involved into planning etc.. As he / she is able to identify issues. 

 
SURVEY #34 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Robust list of services and options that DMH provides 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Did not get a sense of support specific to my area, SPA 8 Additionally, we would like to see more MHSA 
investments in mobile mental health crisis response vans. It is our understanding that Orange County utilizes 
MHSA prevention funding for these services. LA County should provide funding to municipalities or COGs 
looking to implement mobile mental health crisis response services. 

 

SURVEY #35 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• We get an overall view of the budget and provides information on each part of MHSA. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The community stakeholder process is not being implemented correctly. The community should be working 
with DMH on creating the 3 year MHSA budget. There needs to be more transparency and accountability in 
this process 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Provide more detail about the budget: how are projects/ programs get selected. How can community provide 
input on money is spent. Be more transparent with the community stakeholder process 

 

SURVEY #36 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• We need to continue to have the opportunity to gather as stakeholders through the Underserved Cultural 
Communities (UsCC) subcommittees and MHSA. 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• More funding for community-based organizations servicing the American Indian/Alaska Native (AI/AN) 
community and more funding needs to be given to the underserved cultural community (UsCC) 
subcommittees (an increase in UsCC funding from 200k to 500k). More time needs to be allocated for 
stakeholders, consumers, and peers to provide feedback on this plan. The presentations did not offer an 
opportunity for community feedback. Please extend the public comment period beyond 4/6/22. There is a 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
253 | Page 

clause in MHSA that it should go through a collaborative process with community members and that did not 
occur.  

• Increased accessibility options/accommodations.  

• Frequent presentations should be provided to stakeholders leading up to the three-year plan including 
background information regarding MHSA to increase meaningful participation. One option would be to 
educate community leaders who can then educate their community (train the trainer). This could potentially 
come out of the Community Planning Process (CPP) funding source.  

• There is a need for increased education to the Native American community on navigating the public mental 
health system and on their rights.  

• With regards to Native youth, to practice a similar enforcement process so that the family/caregivers have 
the necessary information to advocate for their children. Similarly to follow and comply with necessary 
consultation requirements with IHSS and tribal communities (similar to as mandated by the Katie A Law).  

• For AI/AN community members, we would like to see more community-based driven MHSA funded projects 
that are peer driven. Offer meaningful incentive based/reimbursement based services to facilitate access and 
participation.  

• DMH can develop better programs/services to meet the needs of the AI/AN community by increasing capacity 
for AI/AN UsCC staff and projects.  

• DMH can better evaluate contracts and funds by looking at outcomes that increase access, participation, and 
continuity of engagement in LACDMH AI/AN services/programs 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• During the recent Community Leadership Team meeting, the promised breakout rooms to have deeper 
discussions were not provided. 

 

SURVEY #37 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• The briefings gave more clarity on Full Service Partnership team approach, schools initiative and data on 
numbers served in different service areas. Also, more clarity on Innovations projects especially Innovations 2 
as it is evolving to ongoing program and Hollywood 2.0 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Didn't see any metrics for goals/objectives in what was new efforts or difference was going to be made 
especially in terms of disparities. How is the MHSA filling in the gaps in our system wasn't addressed. Didn't 
explain why there were increasing or decreases in numers or groups which could be very important with the 
racisim, economic and COVID issues. Still large amount of unspent funds when need is so great even allowing 
for prudent reserve and captial funds being set aside for long term projects. Didnt' really address the problems 
of staffing shortages and need for more mental health professionals. Hard to tell if things are getting better 
or worse from the report without measures It may be the funds are not sufficient but no explanation if that is 
a problem. Also, no real information on how effective the system is in serving clients. How long to assistance 
or referred to and got services. What happens with those who refuse service 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Hard to comment on use of funds without know the overall plans of DMH. How do the MHSA fund plans 
support, complement the other plans of the DMH. 

 

SURVEY #38 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• More funding for the Mental Health Promoter Program to increase Promoters to full-time (permanent) 
Positions. More funding for the UsCC's. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• More time for meaningful participation and inclusion of the American Indian, Alaskan Native and Indigenous 
Community. 

 
SURVEY #39 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Focus is being dealt with Regards to mental health 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

254 | Page 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Statistically the highest impacted group of people in the United States with mental health issues are Native 
Americans in yet they are not addressed adequately. Native Americans fall in between the cracks because too 
often they are identified as other racial groups 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• For those that are unable to attend the meetings that breakdown the report a YouTube video or other form 
of media breaking down the key points would be good 

 

SURVEY #40 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• No mention or emphasis on services to older adults other than FSP teams. Criteria for these teams do not 
include most older adults needing mental health services with mobility impairments. Please see attached 
letter addressed to county Aging Dept. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Include older adults as a specialized population 
 

SURVEY #41 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• They help more the people who are struggling whit mental issues 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• They need more programs to help the people who got more mental issues be usefull in society 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Help the comunity the has mental issue over come there problems 
 

SURVEY #42 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• No layoffs 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Lazy workers taking advantage of teleworking. 
 

SURVEY #43 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• i see the strengths as being involved with people of the community 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• weakness is that you guys dont enough people handling the amount of people that need the help 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• hire more people to help with others that need the help 
 

SURVEY #44 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• I got help but it took the courts for me to get any help , I knew I was in trouble but the medical profession was 
incapable of sending me to a place where I would get help, yes it was COVID , everything was locked down 
but my problem started long before COVID, 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• My son needs help , he had a psychotic break at his job , and no one was available to help , he called the police 
and told them I had been kidnapped, the police talked with and I explained he was in the middle of a psychotic 
break , don’t take him to jail , , that was in December 2021 , I finally got him help , from olive view mental 
health , but he can’t afford the meds , he lost his job , and this has caused us to owe so much in utilities that 
they will probably shut off our gas and electric, he went down to where he used to work and begged for his 
job back , he got it back , but as before , the job is only minimum wage and stil only part time , he has no 
insurance to pay for his meds no money to pay for transportation , and I only get 1060. A month , our rent is 
1238. a month so we are stuck , I just got this free phone , but our utilities and WiFi cost us a lot , we will be 
in the dark soon , I am a senior walk with a cane have vision problems , there is no bus , no sidewalks where 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
255 | Page 

we live except in front of our rental . So I am imprisoned to the house , after we pay rent there is 0 money . 
So paying for a therapist for my son is out of the question. He does not make enough , and I have nothing 
after rent is paid 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Follow up on people who get lost in the system , we have been in trouble for years and no one comes to help. 
 

SURVEY #45 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• it was a comprehensive report 
 

SURVEY #46 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Do not know much about it. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Do not know enough about it to judge. 
 

SURVEY #47 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Good 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Okay 
 

SURVEY #48 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• My energy 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Money problem on paying bills on time 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Seek different styles of knowledge for all together 
 

SURVEY #49 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Help the homeless 
 

SURVEY #50 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• Include all mental heath advocates and or primary mental health patient representatives. 
 

SURVEY #51 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Excellent 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• none 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• let us come back to the clinic 
 

SURVEY #52 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• organized approach 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• not addressing underserved communities enough 
Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

256 | Page 

• more concise. big bullet points and then more details on each later 
 

[D53] SURVEY #53 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Emphasis on reaching underserved communities 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Too many programs that seem to overlap with one another. Not clear how specific communities are impacted 
by programs. There is a lot of programs at at Latinx population, but others are not brought into focus. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• There was a lot of information about the WeRise campaign, but I think that the other programs are much 
more important. Would have wanted more details on those programs. 

 

SURVEY #54 
Q1 ¿Cuáles cree que son los puntos fuertes de la actualización anual del año fiscal 2022/23? 

• 8 
Translation: Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• 8 
 
Q2 ¿Qué ve como debilidades en la actualización anual FY2022/23? 

• Anormal 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Abnormal 
 

SURVEY #55 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• This group was not able to name any strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• There was not enough time to get information about this update, ask questions, or make feedback. 

• The proposed listening session did not have consistent and reliable ASL services. 

• The presented materials were presented were not ADA accessible. 

• The printed materials for this update were not ADA accessible. 

• There were no Spanish interpreters for the Annual Update presentation. 

• The facilitator for this annual update was not adequate in facilitating, organizing, and responding to what is 
needed for this presentation. 

Q4 Ideas on how to improve the presentation and content of future MHSA reports and updates? 

• There was a general consensus in this UsCC that LACMH should have a “paid” disability-led task force that can 
create, guide, and partner with LACDMH in its MHSA process to ensure compliance with Welfare and 
Institutions Code (WIC), section 5847(b)-(e), 5848(a), 5892(g) required that a draft plan be developed through 
the Community Program and Planning process (CPP). 

• More opportunities for our stakeholders to provide MHSA suggesting ideas. Nothing about us without us.  

• Finally, LACDMH needs to have in place a mechanism to immediately address instances of discrimination, 
harassment, retaliation, and intimidation because of our disability(ies) not only in its MHSA-funded programs, 
but also in its MHSA CPP process 

 
SURVEY #56 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Better effort to decrease gaps in services 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Bare minimum effort at decreasing gaps in MH resources for deaf and hard of hearing 

 
 
SURVEY #57 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
257 | Page 

Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Very clear and detailed.  Easy to understand. 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Related to public engagement, please continue to improve the public engagement process with quarterly 
presentations to Service Area leadership and Under-served Cultural Community groups, and additional 
language translation. 

 
SURVEY #58 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Peer Support and Employment are very important to the success of RECOVERY, information being put out to 
the PUBLIC is a complete BREAK-THOUGH, BREAKING THE SIGMA as we chisel away at this BIG ROCK it will 
have to CLUMBLE, On Line meetings and programs. 

Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Lack of CHILDRENS BEDS especially in THE SAN FERNANADO VALLEY, creates more of a TRAUMA to children 
not being able to see parents due to the distance and issues with TRANSPORTATION. (Personal Experience ). 
More respect for THE CONSUMER by FORENSIC personal at entrance at our CLINIC SITES. SLOW RESPONCE BY 
PMRT TEAMS.Not working closer with Mental Health Commissioners for on SITE inspections or visits. 

 
SURVEY #59 
Q1 What do you see as strengths to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Being a mental health advocate supporting people struggling with mental health 
Q2 What do you see as weaknesses to the FY 2022/23 Annual Update? 

• Schedule 

 
[D2] EMAILS 
 
Received March 14, 2022, 1:33 PM 

Hello,  

Thank you for posting this report and your presentation last week. It was very helpful. I have two comments/questions.  

First, there is one area of public health that was not called out specifically. That is the devastating acceleration of the 
opioid crisis since the pandemic. Overdose deaths have increased 45% in 2020. Please help me understand what this 
year’s plans are to address this issue.  

Second, the pandemic forced a lot of small businesses and non-profits to close while the needs of the community 
intensified. The contracting process within LA county required 3 years of experience. New businesses (which most are 
because the old ones closed) do not meet those criteria. I propose a new pathway be created to encourage innovation, 
adaptability, and agility to respond to the ever changing needs of the community. This will also promote equity and 
fairness in the application process. 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Received March 10, 2022, 3:12 PM 

I have sat on Spa 6 Consumer Advisory Committee since minimally 2014 when Yolanda Whittington was the 
Administrator.  She was recently called upon as an advocate to attempt to resolve a landlord Tenant dispute.  

DMH Hollywood involved. Dakota Simms DMH West Central Mental Health.  Recently contacted regarding 
Collaboration. Previously contacted regarding Housing from DMH representative. Women's Reintegration Center 
contacted multiple times regarding obtaining records. Sandra DMH was supposed to.mail. Apparently all emails and 
DocUsign and Documents in question even signatures 

_______________________________________________________________ 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

258 | Page 

 
Received March 9, 2022, 2:07 PM 
 
My Name is Terri Jay, community member and member of the LADMH-SubCommittee - LGBTQIA2-S, 

This email pertains to questions to present in the reading of DRAFT : LADMH " MHSA Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Annual 
Update and here are my questions seeking your answers based on what I read and i'm quite confused that needs 
information. 

1.  Language not being used correctly for LGBTQIA2-S as most of the term for LGBTQIA2-S where A is left out most of 
the report and some are used with A ( Asexual ) for instance for page 11 Table and page 52 Sec F as correct with 
definition. I do believe in the FISCAL Year report, the report should be consistent to use  terms with all acronyms  in 
LGBTQIA2-S throughout the report. 

2. Again using the term isa important and what is INCONSISTENCY is in the report is not being consistent using the 
correct term identifying community  as NATIVE AMERICAN / ALASKA NATIVE and throughout the reports is 
inconsistency using either NATIVE AMERICAN, AMERICAN INDIAN and not using ALASKA NATIVE with NATIVE 
AMERICAN . such as TABLES 1,2, 6 SEC F Page 52 and page 58  PEI-SEC  TABLE 30 , 7, 17.  Again throughout the report 
is the inconsistency in using correct term / language to identify for DEMOGRAPHICS and for Percentages % and for the 
sole purpose of fiscal  allotted  revenue for outlets to all community at large or for projects  or for outreach engagement 
reports. 

3. On Pgae 89 the Term GENDER IDENTITY if not specific as to what percentages are reported to what? is the report 
on d=gender identity for TRANSWOMEN and TRANSMEN or GENDER NON-BINARY or QUEERS community or the 
Gender Identity inclusive for all identifying as  MEN and WOMEN, is this is true, there is no clarity of specifications. 

Any feedback to help me understand the terms is helpful and the entire FISCAL reports cannot move forward until 
there is FINAL DRAFT approved until DRAFT is corrected/edited with correct terms/languages as mentioned. 

Thank you for your understanding, 

Terri Jay  
Case manager, Community Member and Member of LADH- SubCommittee LGBTQIA2-S 

_______________________________________________________________ 
Received April 6, 2022, 12:36 PM 

 
Hello, on March 21, 2022, as co-chairs of the ACCESS For All UsCC, Cody and I requested our LACDMH UsCC support 

staff send out a Microsoft teams survey to our membership, similarly to the one that was created and distributed to 

the members of other UsCC's to gather timely and meaningful feedback from their members, Instead, our disabled 

community and stakeholders got a word document with only 2 days to offer comments. 

I would like to point out that the feedback process that LACDMH and its paid contractor created for stakeholders to 

participate in the SLT meeting was not guided by stakeholders and did not provide stakeholders an opportunity to 

participate in the advertised break out group sessions, ASL services were both not consistent or reliable through the 

presentation, there were no Spanish language interpreters, and the materials presented were not ADA accessible for 

our communities  

The Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health (LACDMH), with a budget of approaching $3 billion, is the largest 

county-operated mental health department in the United States, directly operating programs in more than 85 sites, 

and providing services through contract programs and LACDMH staff at approximately 300 sites co-located with other 

County departments, schools, courts, and various organizations. Each year, the County contracts with close to 1,000 

organizations and individual practitioners to provide a variety of mental health-related services. On average, more 

than 250,000 County residents of all ages are served every year. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
259 | Page 

A large portion of the funding that LACDMH receives is obtained by the MHSA funds and so we know that LACDMH 

and its staff are committed to upholding is statutory obligations in order to receive MHS funds and continue providing 

services to our most impacted and historically marginalized communities.  

Given the many barriers, challenges, and missed opportunities our stakeholders have had to deal with we are asking 

once again for an extension to the public comment period that LACDMH has establishes for the MHSA  report, in 

accordance with Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC), section 5847(b)-(e), 5848(a), 5892(g) required that a draft plan 

be developed through the Community Program and Planning process (CPP).  

In unity,  

Héctor Manuel Ramírez 

____________________________________________________________ 
 
Received April 6, 2022, 10:28 AM 
 

Hello,  
 
I did request a call back in the online survey after the annual update meeting last month and never heard back. Is there 
someone that I could speak with?  
 
My name is Sarah Anderson and I have started a new non-profit, Vic James Center, to help meet the needs of the 
community. 
 
Many non-profits closed due to the pandemic which has created a surge in the demand for these healthcare services. 
The new non-profits built to replace the ones that closed are backed into a corner with lengthy applications and prior 
service requirement. They are unable to get the funding they need. It is also difficult to to secure a lease for the same 
reasons.  
 
My ask is that we put in place application processes that encourage innovation, agility, and adaptability to meet the 
needs of the community we can fill the gap the pandemic has created without sacrificing integrity, quality, or reliability. 
We also need support from the State and County to establish the resources when roadblocks come up.  
 
Thank you for making it possible to skillfully respond to our communities’ everchanging needs.  
 
Sarah Anderson 
Founder & CEO 
Vic James Center  

____________________________________________________________ 
 
Received April 6, 2022, 9:47 AM 

 
Feed back Great 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
Received April 12, 2022, 12:18 PM 
 

Dear LACDMH: 

Here is the recommendations on behalf of the LGBTQIA2S+ community.  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

260 | Page 

 
 
 
 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
261 | Page 

 

 

[D3] LETTER FROM THE CULTURAL COMPETENCY COMMITTEE AND THE UNDERSERVED 

CULTURAL COMMUNITIES  
 
March 21, 2022 
 
Jonathan E. Sherin, M.D., Ph.D. 
Director of Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health 
550 S Vermont Ave 
Los Angeles CA, 90020 
 
Dear Dr. Sherin: 
 
The Cultural Competency Committee (CCC) and the Underserved Cultural Communities 
(UsCCs) are writing to request an increase of funding to $500,000 for each UsCC to invest 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

262 | Page 

in community based capacity building projects and separate funding for the CCC. By 
directly funding the CCC and the UsCCs, you will be upholding your commitment to serving 
the most impacted communities and uplifting the voices of the consumers. This can be 
achieved by increasing the use of CSS funds for these stakeholder bodies. Additionally, 
the timeline for stakeholder involvement must restart due to violations to the MHSA general 
standard of a client driven process and the Welfare and Institutions Code. 
 

INCREASE THE PERCENTAGE OF PLANNING OUTREACH AND ENGAGEMENT IN 
THE CSS FUNDS 
 

According to the LA County Department MHSA Update for FY 2022-2023, your department 
is suffering from a lack of and retention of staff (slide 14 from the Community Leadership 
Team Stakeholder Meeting on March 9, 2022). Therefore, the work culture and service 
rendered by LACDMH is currently insufficient for staff and clients. It would be wise to place 
funds towards CSS (Planning Outreach and Engagement) so that the community can 
provide the services to those in need while LACDMH is hiring and restructuring its 
infrastructure towards a more equitable and anti-racist institution. There have also been 
cuts to Prevention and Early Intervention, which is key to living a fulfilled life with a 
behavioral health condition. The CCC and UsCC leadership agree this is not a wise 
decision for consumers. 
 
MHSA states that counties can use up to 5% of the CSS budget for Planning Outreach and 
Engagement (POE). In LA County for FY 2022-2023 that is $57.7 Million dollars that could 
be spent on Planning Outreach and Engagement to fund programs like UsCC and CCC. 
However, LACDMH is only spending $6,464,688. There are about $51 Million dollars that 
are not being used. In fact LACDMH is reducing the initial projection of $7,108,451 by 
$643,783, due to “Overall reduction in services due to the pandemic and difficulties in 
retaining staff”. If LACDMH is low on staff, then they should compensate the Community 
Leader Volunteers who serve in “Your DMH” Committees as stated in the August 19, 2019 
UsCC Charter- “Policies, Procedures, and By-laws”. Many promises have been made to 
community members by LACDMH for participation in the Community Planning Process, but 
there is no follow-through. 
 

LACDMH CURRENT PLAN FY 2022-2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
263 | Page 

CCC AND USCC RECOMMENDATION FOR FY 2022-2023 
 

 
 
VIOLATIONS OF THE MHSA ON STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 

On March 9, 2022 at the CLT meeting, the promised breakout sessions did not occur, thus 
inhibiting the input of stakeholders. According to the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC), 
section 5847(b)-(e), 5848(a), (5892(g) required that a draft plan is developed through the 
Community Program and Planning process (CPP). As stakeholders, we must be involved 
in the drafting process by MHSA law, not have a draft given for stakeholders to vote on. 
The plans must contain a programming component and a budgetary component. There 
were many barriers for stakeholders in addition to the cancellation of breakouts sessions. 
These included but are not limited to: 

• Lack of space/opportunity to adequately advise and provide feedback on MHSA 
budget 

• Language interpreting availability and quality – above and beyond the bare minimum 
to begin meeting accessibility standards 

 
We kindly demand that timeline for stakeholder input be restarted due to the violation of the 
MHSA general standard for the process to be client driven (9 CCR §3200.050) and 
community collaborative (9 CCR §32.060). 
 
CONCLUSION 
Therefore, as leadership of the UsCC and CCCs, we kindly request you increase your 
investment in the capacity building project that positively and directly impacts our 
underserved communities. We are requesting $4 million dollars for the UsCC and CCC, or 
$500,000 per subcommittee. This is an increase of only $2.6 million dollars from the existing 
budget for the UsCC. Community leaders must be reimbursed for their work, and we need 
more capacity building projects that affect our most vulnerable and underserved 
populations who have been the most impacted by the COVID-19 Pandemic. When the 
community and LACDMH staff collaborate, we can achieve more. 
 
Very respectfully, 
CCC and Us 
 

 

 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

264 | Page 

[D4] COMMENTS/QUESTIONS FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES REGARDING THE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR THE MHSA ANNUAL UPDATE FY 2022-23 
 
 
 
FSP Transformation 
 

1. Table 10: How many of these FSP slots were authorized, and connected upon discharged and housed for 
patients discharged from DHS county hospitals?  

 
2. Table 11: How many slots were utilized for each Countywide FSP Program? 

 
3. Table 11: How many were authorized, accepted, connected upon discharge and housed for patients 

discharged from DHS County hospitals? 
 

4. Table 18 and 19: Does this mean that less funding was used or less funding is projected and planned for 22-
23?  Can these buckets of funding be used for designated collaborative care psychiatry support? 
DHS is seeking for greater DMH psychiatry support to assist with DHS Collaborative Care model for Depression 
in the Primary Care Medical Home. 
Please provide clarification on the  changes in eligibility criteria for the FSP Transformation? 

• DMH Response: The focus is on highest acuity, most vulnerable clients who meet focal population criteria. 
 

5. Please provide clarity to the difference in the previous FSP model? 

• DMH Response: There is a long list of program differences. The previous model included "at-risk" 
populations. Also, there were a number of specialty FSPs that have now all been integrated into 1 general 
FSP because our clients tend to have overlapping domains of need (not just homeless, not only forensic, 
etc.). The changes are outlined at the bottom of page 12 & top of 13. Are there specific changes that need 
clarification? 

 
6. What is the current ratio compared to the previous (FSP)?  With current challenges with workforce shortage, 

does this lowered client to staff ratios affect the service utilization and/or FSP capacity/slots availabilities? 

• DMH Response: Past client to staff ratio was 15:1, now it is 10-12:1. These are not hard and fast ratios; 
there is flexibility based on clinical need. We lowered the ratio to match the specialty FSPs, recognizing 
that some clients are at a level of need that requires more resources & staff time. We've had some 
providers tell us that they are able to adequately serve their current client populations with the 15:1 
ratio. The current workforce shortages do make it a challenge to maintain capacity while lowering 
caseloads. We have given extra technical assistance, support, and consultation to mitigate the impact on 
capacity as much as possible. 

 
7. Please clarify what are new "enhanced services and supports" are being provided between levels of care and 

how is this being measured (FSP)? 

• DMH Response: Enhanced services & supports include: technical assistance (from data to clinical issues); 
specialized trainings focused on working with high acuity populations, homelessness, justice involvement, 
cultural differences, reducing disparities, clinical issues, involuntary treatment, specialty populations, 
supportive supervision, self care, trauma, and many other topics; increased availability of flex funds and 
housing supports; adding to OCS capacity & navigation teams, standards for relentless engagement & 
assessing appropriate levels of care, and protocols for overlapping services to strengthen transitions 
between levels of care. 

 
8. What are the changes? 

• DMH Response: Some changes include the addition of incentives for specific outcomes, emphasis of focal 
population and a multidisciplinary/population approach, easier access to data & an emphasis on data-



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
265 | Page 

informed practice, and a rate setting exercise to bring LE provider salaries closer to parity with their DMH 
counterparts. 

 
9. Are the service exhibits accessible to public? 

• DMH Response: Yes 
 
500 Bed Pilot 

10. Please clarify.  Does this mean that funding for 239 beds are allocated, however only 160 beds were available 
and utilized (500  bed pilot)?   

• DMH Response: Yes, as of the time of the writing of the report. 
 

11. What are the reasons for the  remaining beds not utilize, particularly during COVID surge when hospital beds 
were short and lacked capacity? 

• DMH Response: The remaining subacute beds were occupied by other counties.    
 

12. How many of these beds were provided and utilized by DHS county hospital patients? 

• DMH Response: Beds were prioritized and utilized by DHS county patients as they came available. A total 
of 112 beds were utilized by DHS.    

 
13. What are the level of care for these 239 beds?   

• DMH Response: The 239 beds included acute inpatient beds, subacute beds, and skilled nursing facility 
beds. 

 
14. Were any of these beds re-purposed? If so, in what way? 

• DMH Response: Not certain what is meant by re-purposed. 
 

15. How many of these beds were authorized for DHS county hospital patients? 

• DMH Response: Beds were prioritized and utilized by DHS county patients as they came available. 
Because acute inpatient beds and other transitional beds were turned over quickly, the number of beds 
provided & utilized by DHS outnumbered 239. 

 
 
  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

266 | Page 

[D5] MOTION BY COMMISSIONERS KATHLEEN AUSTRIA AND REBA STEVENS: EXPANDING 

DIVERSION-RELATED SERVICES 
 
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONERS KATHLEEN AUSTRIA AND REBA STEVENS  
Expanding Diversion-Related Services April 28, 2022  
 
There are currently 12,859 people in the Los Angeles County jail system. It is essential that the 
Mental Health Commission do what it reasonably can to care for the forty-three percent of the jail’s 
population who have serious mental health needs -- a 21% increase since 2020. Consistent with 
national trends, incarcerated women have a particularly high rate of mental health needs. Moreover, 
there are significant racial disparities in who is incarcerated—with Black Angelenos and 
Latinx/Hispanics hit the hardest. The RAND Corporation did a study in 2020 which found at least 
61% of the individuals with serious mental health needs could safely be served in community-based 
settings.  
 
Many experts have recommended further expansion of community-based mental health treatment 
options to increase diversion for people with mental health conditions. The Los Angeles County 
Department of Health Services’ Office of Diversion and Re-entry (ODR) has demonstrated success 
in addressing this crisis, but it has not been able to expand services beyond its 2,200-bed capacity 
because of financial constraints. 
  
The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors created ODR in 2015 to reduce the number of people 
incarcerated in Los Angeles County jails with mental health and/or substance use disorders who 
are at risk of homelessness, to reduce recidivism, and to improve the health outcomes of justice-
involved populations who have the most serious underlying health needs. Since its creation, the 
courts have released 7,414 persons from jail and into ODR’s care where they receive community-
based treatment and various types of supportive housing programs. (See Attachment A). Numerous 
studies have confirmed that ODR’s programming is successful at stabilizing persons with serious 
mental illness so they can safely live in the community. Another Rand Corporation study of ODR’s 
Supportive Housing Program found 91% of its clients had stable housing after six months; 74% had 
stable housing after twelve months; and 86% had no new felony convictions after a year. Ninety 
percent of its clients successfully remained housed after six months, and only 15% had a felony 
conviction within the next year. 2  
 
Preliminary results of a study by UCLA of 962 ODR clients is showing that their medical and mental 

health hospitalization and emergency department visit rates dramatically dropped after they 

enrolled in ODR programs. (See below).   



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
267 | Page 

 

Despite the demonstrated efficacy of the ODR model, sufficient funding has not been identified 

to sustain its current operations, much less scale up diversion efforts to keep pace with the 

growing need. It is time for the MHSA Commission to confirm its support for this program and 

the dignity it restores to its persons with serious mental illness.  

WE THEREFORE MOVE THAT THE MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION:  
 

1. Proclaim that Jail-Based Diversion is a strong priority of the Mental Health Services 
Act Commission.  

2. Strongly recommend that the Department of Mental Health allocate $25M a year in 
ongoing Mental Health Service Act (MHSA) funds, beginning FY 2022-2023, to 
support the Office of Diversion & Reentry’s services to MHSA eligible clients and 
that the fiscal year MHSA plan be amended to reflect these recommendations.  

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

268 | Page 

 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE MOTION 

Amendment 1: 

The Department of Mental Health reports back to the Commission on Mental Health at its May 2022 

meeting with recommendations on how the ODR-DMH MOU “operational pieces” can enhance 

reimbursements such as Medi-Cal and other state and federal funding. 

Amendment 2:  

The Department of Mental Health report back to the Commission on Mental Health Commission at 

its May 2022 with recommendations on enhancing client/mental health outcome data from ODR. 

Amendment 3: 

The Department of Mental Health report back to the Commission on Mental Health at its May 2022 

meeting as to what category the ODR funding will be allocated and what, if any, specific MHSA 

state requirements need to be addressed regarding the allocation. 

Amendment 4:  

The recommendation for ODR MHSA funding be subject to 30-day community input hearing.    

Amendment 5: 

Ensure MHSA funds will not supplant other funds. 

Amendment 6: 

Add details on a budget; report back on metrics and health outcomes, people that get out of jail due 

to this funding and data sharing  

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
269 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

270 | Page 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
271 | Page 

 

APPENDIX E - PUBLIC HEARING PRESENTATION AND TRANSCRIPTS 
[E1] PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 
 

 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

272 | Page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
273 | Page 

[E2] PUBLIC HEARING POWERPOINT PRESENTATION 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

274 | Page 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
275 | Page 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

276 | Page 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
277 | Page 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

278 | Page 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
279 | Page 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

280 | Page 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
281 | Page 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

282 | Page 

 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
283 | Page 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

284 | Page 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
285 | Page 

 

 

 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

286 | Page 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
287 | Page 

 
[E3] PUBLIC HEARING TRANSCRIPTS 
 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Let the games begin. Thank you. >> JOHN FLYNN: Just a second, I 

want to make sure I've got Mr. Polk's slide deck ready to roll. I only have by the way two 

documents today, I have the main slide deck and I have Mr. Polk's MHSA annual update. 

Should I be expecting anything else? That's it, right? >> That's it on our end. > JOHN 

FLYNN: Thank you, Darlesh. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:Commissionr Friedman is asking if 

she's on. She didn't hear miles an hour name mentioned.>> JOHN FLYNN: Commissioner 

Friedman is here, I also saw Commissioner Acebo, I -- Dr. Weissman. It's a full house 

today. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I know, boy, this is awesome. All right. Good. Thank you. 

Let's hit it, John. >> JOHN FLYNN: A moment of silence, I'm going to start the live event. 

And when I raise my –>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I'm not seeing your picture, I need to see 

your photo. >> JOHN FLYNN: I'm going to spotlight myself for a moment. You can see 

me, right? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I can't see you. Why don't you just tell me. >> JOHN 

FLYNN: I'll just say good morning and turn it over to you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Okay. >> 

JOHN FLYNN: A moment of silence, please. >> JOHN FLYNN: Good morning, and 

welcome to the Mental Health Commission for April, 2022. And good morning to our 

Chair, Commissioner Stacy Dalgleish. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you for joining us for 

the April full commission meeting. It's a packed agenda and I understand we have quite 

a few visitors with us as well. So I want to welcome you too. I want to take this 

opportunity to thank several people who are joining us today, and helping make this 

meeting the quality and accessible meeting that it is. Our ASL interpreters, mark 

Robinson, Johnathan, Spanish interpretation, by Lucy and Alex, we have Korean 

translation as well today, welcome. Samantha, you and Sumi. And our CART services are 

by Juline Bajada. I.T. is jf, and Julio Miranda, and our staff, Canetana Hurd will be taking 

roll call momentarily. I do want to introduce a new commissioner today, (indiscernible) 

I don't know why there is an echo. Can you fix that, John, or is that coming from me? >> 

JOHN FLYNN: Got it, Commissioner. We're good. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Okay, great. Dr. 

Jack barber is a new appointee from supervisor Holly Mitchell's office, and I want to 

welcome him, he's a long-time member of the mental health community, and in contact 

as well and working with the Department of Mental Health. He's been the director of 

Kedren as well as other entities, and we're honored to have him, and his expertise 

joining our commission. If if Dr. Barber is here, I'd like him to speak and introduce 

himself before we head into the roll call. Dr. Barber? >> COMMISSIONER BARBER: I'm 

excited to be a part of this commission, and to be able to move things in a care-forward 

manner. I'm very excited to be able to speak with all of the commissioners very soon, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

288 | Page 

I'm the CEO of Southern California Health and Rehabilitation Programs in South L.A., our 

flagship site is on Crenshaw and can be seen from anybody who drives up and down 

Crenshaw and those that community. This is my first meeting, so I'm learning a bit, but 

I understand there's a big agenda today, so thank you very much Stacy for introducing 

me, and I appreciate Supervisor Mitchell the opportunity to serve. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. We also will have Supervisor Mitchell with us today, Supervisor Mitchell 

serves as the 16th seat on our commission, and a voting member of the commission as 

well. So I want to welcome her if she is on the line at this time. It's an honor to have you 

with us, and I hope that you'll join us again in the future. In the meantime, it's also been 

a pleasure having (indiscernible) with us representing. Let's go ahead and take roll call, 

please. Canetana Hurd? Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER PADILLA-FRAUSTO: 

Commissioner Friedman. (no answer ). Ben Root? He's trying to get in. >> Susan is here. 

Sorry. >> CANETANA HURD: Hold on a second, I did something. Commissioner Stevens 

present. >> Bar 54 here. (roll call ). Commissioner Schallert here Commissioner 

Weissman here. >> CANETANA HURD: We have a big quorum. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you very much. Welcome all commissioners. Let's move on then to the next part 

of our agenda. We have -- is Dr. Sherin on the line? >> DR. SHERIN: I'm here. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Great. Welcome, Dr. Sherin. Thank you for joining us today. You have the 

floor. >> DR. SHERIN: Thanks very much to the commission and to everybody. I guess 

the first thing on my mind is that I really wish that we were doing this in a big room 

together, and that I could see you and we could share in the energy of a really important 

convening. I miss being with people. And especially for at such a juncture for me. The 

annual update in the three-year plan are really, really important documents that 

represent an amazing amount of work. An amazing amount of work by the department 

and by the entire community. And I want to salute everybody that has been working on 

this in a relentless way, in an ongoing way, and an iterative way throughout the year, 

and I will say when I started this job about 5½ years ago, I didn't feel that the stakeholder 

process was one that was really genuinely driven by the grass-roots, by our 

communities. And I'm not saying we're where we need to be, but we're a long way from 

where we were when I started. And there was a lot of great work. That had been done 

before I got here, but we have continued to push for a much more robust, genuine way 

to distill the voices of our communities so that we understand how to direct our 

resources. And how our services can be the most impactful. Supply ask demand is key. 

The program, we call it Your DMH, I think it's a really important one -- it's an important 

one. It's important not just to update and improve, but to embrace. And to recognize 

that it's through ongoing efforts on all of our parts that we can get to that place where 

we realize the vision for your DMH. Another thing which I think is representative of us 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
289 | Page 

trying to really blow the roof off of our process is that we have some new components 

today. We have a motion by the commission which I wasn't aware it was a process, 

about very important stuff, and work that our board of supervisors is trying and we're 

trying as a county to drive. Decarceration, particularly for people who are punished and 

incarcerated because of their condition. Which is completely unacceptable. And needs 

to be remedied. I invite that new process, I think it's important, I think it's symbolizes 

again at least for me that the stakeholder process is continuing to evolve in a very 

important way. And also, I think we have Supervisor Mitchell in the house today. So I 

mean, this for me, these are symbols for me -- to me of us breaking open what I think 

was a smaller process and a more closed process into one that has to be transparent. It 

has to be the way the department runs, and not just this department, but the whole 

community. The whole county. To address the needs of our community. I guess the last 

part -- I have not been doing well on this piece of exchanges in the past few weeks. I 

don't know, week. I certainly was not expecting the "LA Times" to cover the fact that I 

am stepping down. Or to have access to the letter I wrote to the staff. But the "LA Times" 

is a special entity, which I think, you know, helps us communicate about certain things, 

and I don't want to go into details about my personal scenario, but it's time for me and 

-- I talk about being art forward, and that's really all I've ever tried to be. And I guess my 

heart hasn't been able to keep up. I'm going to take time to look out for myself. I haven't 

done that well, spend more time with my family, which I have not done, because I 

always push at a high space. I only know one speed, and whoever is running this 

department in my opinion needs to keep up that pace. And I just, I send a lot of love to 

everybody, and I'll be watching, and I will reemerge, because this mission is one that's 

in my DNA, it's in my blood. It was ingrained in me by my mom, and I'll never give it up. 

I don't know what form, but this is a very special event today. I'm sorry if I took too much 

time to the commission U. and I know it hasn't always been easy. And nothing is easy 

when it really, really is important. So let's get on with the affairs and I'm going to be 

going around and seeing people in the community as much as I can, and I hope that 

some of the things that I've tried to bring and some of my spirit and heart will continue 

as a part of this endeavor going forward. Thank you very much. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you very much, Dr. Sherin, and thank you for your service. I think I arrived shortly 

after you did, and so I didn't know the department before, I know that many of the 

commissioners did, but I want to thank you for your help to me as a commissioner and 

as chair. Thank you. And we look forward to seeing you around and your continued 

support for what we're all trying to accomplish for our community. Thank you. Let's 

move on, then. On our agenda. I believe the next item on our agenda would be public 

comment. Public comment is two minutes. We are introducing a new feature this time. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

290 | Page 

Which is that John Flynn will be announcing your 30-minute mark when you have -- 30 

-- when you have 30 seconds left in your two minutes, he'll be announcing that so you 

have some warning about speaking. I also want to remind you that when you are asked, 

the instructions are to press 1 and then 0, that's a toggle feature, so if you press it again, 

it will disconnect you. So when you're ready to speak, press 1 and 0. We'll be getting 

further instructions from our AT&T operator. AT&T operator? >> AT&T OPERATOR: 

Thank you. As noted, it's 1, then 0 to get into the comment queue. And an operator will 

provide you with your line number, and you'll be addressed by this line number for your 

comments. Your time limit will be two minutes. If you have a comment, please press 1, 

then 0. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. Thank you. And then I'd like to go to our Spanish 

interpreters, would you please interpret the instructions at this time? >> INTERPRETER: 

Absolutely. [speaking Spanish] So far we have none but I have left a message. Thank 

you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Now our Korean interpreter. (speaking Korean ). 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Do we have anyone on the line for public comment? 

AT&T operator? >> AT&T OPERATOR: Yes. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Someone is speaking 

on the line, John, can you handle that? >> JOHN FLYNN: Will do. >> AT&T OPERATOR: 

All right. Our first -- (speaking Korean ). >> JOHN FLYNN: Stand by, make sure our 

translators are in the right place. Julio, I'm still hearing background noise. I think we're 

ready to roll, go ahead. >> AT&T OPERATOR: First comment will be from line 16, please 

go ahead. I'm sorry, line 16, please, hit 1, then 0. Until line 16 returns, we'll move to line 

five, please go ahead. Line five, your line is open. >> I'm sorry, I wasn't given the number 

at the beginning. Given -- I guess for Dr. Sherin, for him to be leaving will be like a hole 

for those that are a part of Salt, given the number of times he's actually taken out of his 

time to meet with the team. So that will be a great loss, and that will set a bar for the 

next person that will be taking his spot. Thank you very much. >> AT&T OPERATOR: 

Thank you. Our next comment will come from line 12. Please go ahead. >> Hello, can 

you hear me? >> JOHN FLYNN: Yes. >> My name is Trouty Winters, and I'm the executive 

director of NAMI L.A. County. I'm calling in support of the motion that I believe is going 

to be heard today, recommending that DMH dedicates 25 million a year in ongoing 

MHSA funds to support the very successful ODR program. NAMI has been involved many 

years in supporting ODR and has seen the success of the program. The numbers speak 

for themselves. Over 7,000 people including those with serious mental illness have been 

diverted from jail and offered the support they need including various types of 

supportive housing, community-based treatment, and a better quality of life. Several 

studies have shown ODR is successful in stabilizing persons with serious mental illness 

so they can safely live in the community. The recidivism rate of the program is lower for 

those that are enrolled in the program. It's less expensive to house a person than to 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
291 | Page 

incarcerate them. Additionally, many people with serious mental illness in our jails are 

currently candidates for diversion. Let's please continue the success of this program and 

support its long-term sustainability, including housing, funding to support this program. 

Thank you. >> AT&T OPERATOR: Thank you. Next we go to line 6. Peter? Please go 

ahead. >> I'm sorry, did you say line six? >> AT&T OPERATOR: Yes, your line is open. >> 

Hi, this is Peter Elias from the ACLU of Southern California and chief counsel. The ACLU 

strongly supports the motion to provide ongoing MHSA funding to ODR, and we 

submitted a letter on this fact. I think the motion does an excellent job of laying out the 

success of ODR's programs. The reasons why ODR programming is so much better for 

people with mental health issues who get caught up in the criminal legal system and 

incarceration, which is brutal and inhumane, leads to terrible mental health outcomes, 

horrible recidivism rates, and a variety of other negative effects. I want to actually touch 

on a couple things that maybe members of the commission might not be aware of, make 

they are. It's essential that the county dramatically lower its population of people with 

mental illness, the county, for 25 years has been flagrantly out of compliance with both 

a memorandum of agreement and a consent decree with the United States Department 

of Justice governing the treatment of people with mental health illness in the jails. It's 

really shameful that the county has not been able to come into compliance in 25 years. 

As I explained in a letter that I attached to the letter I submitted to the commission, it 

will be impossible for the county ever to come into compliance with that consent 

decree, unless it dramatically lowers the population of people with mental illness in the 

jails. They simply cannot provide adequate high observation and medium observation 

housing -- >> JOHN FLYNN: 30 seconding. >> -- in a variety of other ways. You're simply 

no acceptable reason for the county to be out of compliance, and unless, however, there 

is enough community treatment of the kind that's provided through ODR, the county 

can't lower its jail population and will tb ton out of compliance with this decree designed 

to protect the rights of people with mental illness. So we strongly support this motion. 

>> AT&T OPERATOR: Thank you. Our next comment will come from mark G, like golf. 

Please go ahead. >> Can you hear me? Is this me? >> JOHN FLYNN: Yes. >> Okay. I guess 

it is. My name is Mark, I'm also with NAMI, and I'm our criminal justice chair. I'm also a 

member of the permanent steering committee of ODR and has been since its early 

inception. So I've watched everything that ODR has done since really the blueprint for 

change back in 2015, and the inception of ODR. The success of the program speaks for 

itself. I call your attention to a report from ODR that was delivered to the public safety 

realignment team on April 21st with statistics that also speak for themselves. And a 

world where recidivism rates are 60-70% for people coming out of jail or prison, rearrest 

rates, since that is the subject of the day, 16%. Mesh program of 20%, the CBR17%, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

292 | Page 

rearrest rate for DSH diversion, 2%, if did you look at the number of hospitalizations for 

100,000 clients, down 60-70%, the number of emergency department visits, the county 

is saving a tremendous amount of money in crisis resources because ODR has helped so 

many thousands of people. The number of emergency department visits are down 63%, 

and people are getting better healthcare because primary care visits are up 161%. And 

specialty visits up 154%. This program works. And if the county is going to go forth with 

a mission of care first, jails last, and I read everything that Peter Elias said, and all the 

good statistics in the motion, but if we're going to say we're care first, jails last, the cap 

on ODR needs to be lifted, we need to get creative with our funding, we need housing 

money, we need sustainability, we need accountability, so we have more -- >> JOHN 

FLYNN: Time. >> -- how well this works. Thank you very much. >> AT&T OPERATOR: Our 

next question will come from line nine. Please go ahead. >> Hi. This is Tiffany Smith, to 

Dr. Sherin, I watched him (indiscernible) and tackle the -- supporting me as an advocate 

and I love you. Also am 100% ODR funding, my matter is tied to it -- my heart is tied to 

it, I was on the board of directors for the reentry agency that contracts with ODR. My 

husband is a program manager for (indiscernible) housing there. I know it's working. 

Again, I'm in 100% support. The reason for my phone call today is to talk to you about a 

failure. When I hang up I have to pick up a 6'8" Black man and take him to (indiscernible) 

because he's been in county jail, has a schizophrenia diagnosis, his last long-acting 

injection was March 3rd, he was released March 10th. No treatment plan. No 

medication. No nothing. The failure is because (indiscernible) has not been on his 30-

month -- his 30-day injection. LAPD shows up, we all know what can happen. How many 

were released to the streets without medication? Into a home that says yes, he can live 

there where there's a woman with dementia and an abusive alcoholic man. >> JOHN 

FLYNN: Time. >> When I ask how he's doing, he said I just need a roof over my head. >> 

AT&T OPERATOR: Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Excuse me, this is Stacy Dalgleish. 

Do we have someone available to speak to this caller? A support person? >> JOHN 

FLYNN: Robert is on. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Can you please take care of that transfer? 

Thank you. >> AT&T OPERATOR: Ready for the next public comment? >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Yes. >> AT&T OPERATOR: Moving on to line eight, please go ahead. We lost 

line eight. 13, your line is open. >> Good day. My name is (indiscernible), speaking on 

behalf of the Black Los Angeles County Client Coalition, I would like to share a recent 

informational feedback loop regarding concern of community stakeholders about the 

West Central Family Mental Health Services recent move to the site of Augustus 

Hawkins Mental Health located at 1720 East 120th Street, Los Angeles. The Augustus 

Hawkins Center supports services primary for adults and children. Most services are 

restricted to adults who live in the southeast region in parts of San Antonio health 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
293 | Page 

region, this area includes Compton, South Central Los Angeles. The African American 

community has asked the Black Los Angeles County Client Coalition about any pending 

plans in our solicitations pending to replace essential family mental health services, 

clinical services replacement. Et cetera on the Crenshaw corridor. I'm glad to know that 

Jack Barbour has joined the commission. I applaud you, Doctor. And our services, 

located in close proximity nearest - -- >> JOHN FLYNN: 30 seconds. >> Nearest in place, 

transportation time in relation to the (indiscernible) West central family mental health 

services, We Beseech the Los Angeles County Mental Health Commission Oversight and 

Action for Answers to the African American stakeholder inquiry, furthermore, the 

feedback loop stated the deputy director has transferred to MLK. We'll be in touch in 

the near future concerning this matter with Commissioner Dalgleish, chair presiding. >> 

JOHN FLYNN: Time. >> Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: How many callers are there on 

the line? >> AT&T OPERATOR: There are currently -- there's one in the comment queue. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. And does that include line eight? >> AT&T OPERATOR: It 

does not. Anyone who was overlooked, line 10 is the last one in the queue at this time. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. So if there was anyone else who phoned in they should 

phone in now, and then -- the motion has not been made yet that is being addressed at 

this time. There will be another comment time as well. But we do have someone who is 

trying to speak who was on line eight, just to let you know. And then go ahead and we'll 

continue with the last caller, please. >> AT&T OPERATOR: Very good. Line 10, your line 

is now open. Go ahead, Mark. >> This is Mark, can you hear me? >> JOHN FLYNN: Yes. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes, mark. >> Okay. I want to give some answers to something, 

that is the cowboys did a workshop about incarceration and about a week and a half 

ago, and I'm going to read some of the suggestions that they have, that they made, and 

I hope that's okay. They had videos that included peer provider workshops, including 

engagements. There was several videos, slides that included sequential (indiscernible) 

and practices for recruiting and data mining and hearing for hiring peer staff. In justice 

settings. The supports integrating (indiscernible) peer providers, and there's a whole list 

of stuff that they gave, like -- we can probably call and get that -- get the slides, and 

there's a bunch of them that were on YouTube. So these are -- those are programs that 

can be -- we can utilize in order to bring peer support -- >> JOHN FLYNN: 30 seconds. >> 

-- so that people can be (indiscernible) in peer support while they're incarcerated, and 

then can be brought out. This was also done sort of at the alternatives conference last 

year. There was an organization in New York that brought peer supporters into the jails 

there, and introduced trainings into their system. We can get that. >> AT&T OPERATOR: 

Thank you. We do have line eight. >> Hello, can you hear me? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes, 

we can, thank you. >> Wonderful. Thank you. I want to express to Dr. Sherin how 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

294 | Page 

wonderful it's been to have him on the team, and he definitely will be missed, and I 

really hope that someone can try to fill his shoes. His heart has always been apparent. I 

want to address an issue in the antelope valley with SFP service quality, and the ability 

to receive trauma-informed care through SFP programs. I did write a letter of comment 

to the commission regarding an individual case which is not the first, probably not the 

last, but I want to find out how we can audit SFP if people we are dealing with and trying 

to support are not getting FSP services that they are needing or supposed to get. Peer 

mentors, peer support specialists desperately needed to fill this role of trying to 

intervene in families and individuals with the Department of Mental Health that are not 

able to get through the blockades. I also want to express my sincere support for ODR. 

So many people, that is the only option. And I'm sick and tired of telling families that 

maybe their loved one will get help for their mental illness when they get in jail. That is 

so wrong. And I don't want to ever have to tell families that again. We need to change 

laws, change requirements for gravely disabled, I know there are bills in the state 

legislature to do so, but this is imperative to be able to require people to get the help 

they need and not have to go to jail to access treatment for mental illness. Thank you. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. I have Alex, the Spanish interpreter's hand up. >> 

INTERPRETER: We are here. Let me give you the -- let me set up the interpretation. 

[speaking Spanish] >> My name is Mrs. Lozano. I just wanted to thank Dr. Sherin 

wholeheartedly. I hope that God blesses him and walks with him always. I'm calling to 

ask that they increase the funds so that the community can help heal the community. 

And I remember that the commission had said that they were going to send an 

application at a federal level to request funds and emergency state funds monies for 

this purpose. Because at this time we do not have enough people to give the services to 

the community. Speaking of the subcommittees, like the Latino groups and other 

groups. >> INTERPRETER: That's who she's speaking of. And I'm sorry for. >> I'm. >> 

INTERPRETER: This is the interpreter. We're going to miss Dr. Sherin very much. I'm sorry 

for being emotional. Thank you very much. That is the end of her comment. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. All right. Clearly we have a lot of people who want to speak on 

different issues that are on our agenda right now. I'm going to return right now to our 

commissioners. Commissioner Friedman. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I apologize. I 

noticed that Alex's hand is up. Are you aware of that? >> JOHN FLYNN: That was the 

translation we did. Commissioner Friedman, are you muted at the moment. >> 

COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I s it my turn? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes, it is, it's your turn. 

>> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I just wanted to say to Dr. Sherin that from the moment 

you arrived, we felt and the department felt a new energy. You did that. That was a 

quite extraordinary thing to happen in this department, because finally things were 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
295 | Page 

moving along, and people began feeling like we can finally do the work that needs to be 

done. We need to get to this work. And we were moving along, and then the pandemic 

hit. And then a whole new group of problems appeared. And now we have all of those 

problems and all of those people who are suffering anxiety, depression, whatever. And 

the school children. We have so many more things to deal with right now, and we will 

miss you terribly. Really, really miss you. And your energy, and your ideas. And just you, 

being there. So all I want to say is, I really wish you good health. I hope that your health 

improves, and I hope that somehow you can get some of your ideas settley back to us 

so that we can continue to work with them, because they were all quite wonderful. We 

will miss you terribly. Thank you, thank you, thank you for everything you did. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you, Susan. I see that there were many comments in the chat as well. 

Are there any other commissioners who would like to speak at this time? >> 

COMMISSIONER BANKO: I would. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go ahead. >> COMMISSIONER 

BANKO:Than k you. I wanted to thank you, Dr. Sherin, I think it takes a special human 

being to uphold and undertake a position like yours with the Department of Mental 

Health, but also to make sense of the bureaucracy, to strive for better, to clear 

blockages, to enact programs that support people in the best ways possible. So again, 

just thank you so much. You're a truly special person, and you've left a great legacy 

behind. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Schallert? >> COMMISSIONER 

SCHALLERT: Y eah, I would just like to reiterate what everyone is saying. Thank you, Dr. 

Sherin, for all you've done. We down in the fox holes appreciate all you've done, and 

kind of what -- we see how difficult the job is, and I thank you for taking it on. It's quite 

a job. So just wish you the best of luck and appreciate everything you've done. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Weissman. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: >> 

JOHN FLYNN: We're not hearing you, commissioner Weissman, and I'm not sure why. It 

looks like your mic is active. But we're not getting audio. She says come back, as in I 

think come back to me. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. Good. We will be coming back as 

well to this subject. So thank you, everyone. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: H ow 

about now? >> JOHN FLYNN: That works. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: O kay, good. 

Thank you, sorry for the blip. I just wanted to thank Dr. Sherin and echo what everyone 

else has said from the commission. But also to note that coming from NAMI and from 

the mental health client perspective, and peer perspective, how it can still be strong 

leadership to do self-care first and foremost, and show strong leadership by making a 

decision that puts yourself first and make sure that you maintain your own well-being. 

Even with everything else going on. So I gist wanted to recognize that it affirmed 

decisions that I'd made in my personal life and professional life to do similar kinds of 

things, and I think it's good for our community to see that as a strong leader as well. So 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

296 | Page 

thank you, Dr. Sherin. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. All right. Let's move on right 

now, then, to the next part of our agenda. We're going to move to the motion to be 

made by Commissioners Stevens and Austria. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: We put 

forth a motion regarding expanding the services for ODR that are much needed. I think 

the statistics do speak for themselves -- >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I think most of 

you read them, but there's questions down the line, we'd like to have you ask them. We 

also have Dr. Ochoa on the line, and also our supervisor, Supervisor Holly Mitchell, who 

is the actual 16th member, and I really welcome her and maybe Supervisor Mitchell if 

you'd like to make remarks regarding the motion. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Could we start 

by your reading the motion, please? >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA:Su re. It's a little long. 

So here we go. The motion is by the second district Kathleen Austria, Stevens, and the 

motion is entitled Expanding Diversion-Related Services. There are currently 12,859 

people in the Los Angeles County jail system. It is essential that the commission do what 

it reasonably can to care for the 43% of the jail population who have serious mental 

health needs. 21% increase since 2020. Consistent with national trends, incarcerated 

women of a particularly high rate of mental health needs. Moreover, there are 

significant racial disparities with Black Angelenos and Latinx Hispanics hit the hardest. 

The Rand Corporation did a study in 2020 which found at least 61% of the individuals 

with serious mental health needs could safely be served in the community. Many 

experts have recommended further expansion of community-based mental health 

treatment options. We in-- version for people with mental health conditions. The Los 

Angeles County Department of Health services, office of diversion and reentry, ODR, has 

demonstrated success in addressing this crisis. But it has not been able to expand 

services beyond the 2200-bed capacity because of its financial constraints. The Los 

Angeles County Board of Supervisors created ODR in 2015 to reduce the number of 

people incarcerated in Los Angeles County jails with mental health and/or substance 

abuse disorders who are at risk of homelessness. Reduced recidivism and to improve 

health outcomes of justice involved populations, the most serious underlying health 

needs. (indiscernible) the courts have released 7,414 persons from jail and into the ODR 

care where they receive community-based treatment and various types of supportive 

housing programs. The attachment A. Numerous studies have confirmed that ODR's 

programming is successful at stabilizing persons with serious mental illness so they can 

safely live within the community. Another Rand Corporation study of ODR supportive 

housing program from 91% of its clients had stable housing after six months. 74% have 

stable housing after 12 months, and 86% have no new felony convictions after a year. 

90% of its clients profess (indiscernible) housed after six months, only 15% had a felony 

conviction within the next year. Preliminary results of a study by UCLA of 962 ODR 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
297 | Page 

clients is showing that their medical and mental health hospitalizations and emergency 

department visit rates dramatically dropped after they enrolled in ODR programs. See 

below. Would you care for me to read that, everyone? That piece? It's really critical, 

actually. The number of hospitalizations per 100,000 clients, in 12 months, 156,128 

clients. Post 12 months, (indiscernible). >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:Kathlee n, can we -- the 

screen we're sharing with the motion on it, is it possible to just maximize that so we can 

all see? It's very small. >> JOHN FLYNN: Will do. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA:Th ank 

you. It will give me a chance to drink water. Number of ED visits per 100,000 clients. 

313,092, and post 12 months, 116 -- 116,986. Number of primary care visits per 

hundred00,000 clients, previously 92,200, post, 199,249. Number of specialty visits per 

100,000 clients, 59,888, versus post, 92,490. That was an increase. Mental health 

utilization rate per one huh,000 clients, in pre and post 12 months of enrollment. The 

number of clients per hundred thousand, pre12 months, 71,587. Post 12 months, 

20,775. Number of ED visits per 100,000 clients, 56,546, versus 17,271. Despite the 

demonstrated efficacy of the ODR model, sufficient funding has not been identified to 

sustain its current operations, much less scale up diversion efforts to keep pace with the 

growing need. It is time for Mental Health Commission to confirm its support for this 

program and the dignity it restores to its persons with serious mental illness. We 

therefore move that the Mental Health Commission proclaim that jail-based diversion 

is a strong priority of the Mental Health Commission, we should delete "services act," 

strongly recommend that the department of mental health allocate 25 million a year in 

ongoing mental health services to say beginning fiscal year 2022-2023 to support the 

Office of Diversion and Reentry services to MHSA eligible clients and that the fiscal year 

MHSA plan to be amended to reflect these recommendations. Thank you for your time 

on that reading. There's also a graph in the back. Showing the efficacy of the program. 

And you can read that. Any questions on that slide? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I see one hand 

up. It was up before by Commissioner Root, but we do have a question being raised as 

to whether the motion was noticed 72 hours in advance. And I've asked the staff to 

confirm that it was posted to our website along with the agenda 72 hours in advance. 

>> We did put it in in a timely way. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I know you did. I'm questioning 

the -- I'm asking if it was posted to the website along with the agenda timely. Canetana 

Hurd, are you there? >> CANETANA HURD: Yes. I'm searching the link to send to you. 

That it was. I can send you the email where it was confirmed. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. Yes? >> A point of clarification, we have the chair of the board of supervisors 

on the line now, and we should yield time to her because her time is very valuable. That 

would be my recommendation to the commission. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I agree. And it 

was -- >> I agree, and it was posted in a timely manner. I would defer also. >> CHAIR 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

298 | Page 

DALGLEISH: All right. Good. Thank you very much. Yes, Supervisor Mitchell, you have 

the floor. Thank you. >> SUPERVISOR MITCHELL: Thank you very much for that. I'm here 

to support and answer questions if there are any. I wanted to be here in support of the 

second district commissioners in bringing forth this motion. And so I didn't intend to 

make any comments. If questions come up, I'm happy to respond to them. I appreciate 

the comment, hearing the public's commitment to care first, jails last, hearing very real, 

emotional testimony about why the public feels ODR beds must be funded and must be 

made available for all the reasons I completely support. I appreciate you for all your time 

and commitment and I want to tip my hat to the second district commissioners for doing 

the hard work of moving this motion forward that I fully support. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you very much, Supervisor. We have the motion, we have a second, and we are 

going to move to discussion at this time. I see we have several hands raised at the 

moment. Let's move first to Commissioner Root. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: Thank you. 

I am strongly in favor of ODR and the work that it's done, and particularly the first 

portion of this motion. I am not sure whether the second item in the motion is well 

stated or not. For example, I'm not sure whether $25 million is enough, is a suitable 

amount to meet our objectives. Secondly, I'm not sure that we should have a motion of 

this type without having some idea about how money would be used, so that we're sure 

that it is being used with the most effective way possible. Third, I would like to make 

sure that our justice deputies, as well as our health deputies, are consulted. This is one 

of these areas where we have a foot in two camps. Mental health, very important, we're 

intimately familiar with that and deeply committed to it. I'm not as familiar with some 

of the justice issues, and I know that there are both sides of this. And fourth, I am -- 

what I know of ODR's work is, I would like to be able to bottle what they have done and 

use it in some other areas within the county, particularly over at SAPSI, because the 

recidivism rates that were noted by several callers and in the motion are astoundingly 

different in ODR's case, for reasons that I think we can trace, and may relate to 

homelessness issues so they're very timely. And they touch other substance use and 

abuse issues with which we need to be concerneds on behavioral health side. So for all 

of those reasons, I fully support this. I would move to table this motion for 30 days, ask 

that some of the commissioners form a subset to answer the four questions. Is the 

amount of money enough, how should it be used, what input if any do the justice 

deputies have, and how can we export the success that ODR has for other mental health 

use? And I'd like to ask that the 30 days be used to have a subcommittee study those 

things, and come back and make a recommendation to the full commission about 

whether the second part of this motion should be more detailed, perhaps have more 

time to take a look at those four issues, so that we can pass or at least consider I think 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
299 | Page 

pass, a motion that will be as effective as it can be. I move to table for 30 days with 

those provisions. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you, Commissioner Root. So we have a 

new motion. I am not operating from my office, so I don't have my Robert's Rules in 

front of me, however, I do know Commissioner Acebo is adept in this area. May I ask 

you to step in on this issue right now? Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Mada m 

Chair, members, there is a motion to table, which requires a second. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Do I hear a second? >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: D oes tabling take this 

off the table in terms of the agenda and plan and allocation? What's the implication on 

timing of tabling? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:Commiss ioner Acebo? >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO:Ques tion to the author, Mr. Root, can you elaborate? >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: 

Yes. It's my intention, Brittany, that we not take it off our agenda, but we defer a vote 

for 30 days, have a report back that would detail and consider -- maybe item two is just 

perfect the way it's written. I don't know. I'm fully in favor of the item one in this motion. 

But I -- before we vote on it, and put it away, I'd like to consider is $25 million enough, 

and what are the other elements here that would best guide this? So I don't want to 

take it off out of our consideration, I want to get some more information so that we can 

vote with the maximum impact and I would hope that it could be brought back on our 

agenda for a final vote next month. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Ther e needs to be a 

second to the motion, and then we can have more conversation specific to the motion. 

Is there a second? Having no second to the motion -- >> If the request is a second to the 

motion, Chief Mitchell will second it. If it's a second to the table motion, I'm not 

seconding that. If we're seconding the motion in chief I will second it. >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: No, it's -- Madam Chair, it's regarding specific to the tabling, 

Madam Chair. >> SUPERVISOR MITCHELL: Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Go 

ahead, Ms. Freedman. >> I will second Mr. Root's motion, I'm very much in support of 

this, but I do want to know what the money is going for. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Ther 

e is a second to the motion, open to discussion, Madam Chair, you can recognize 

whoever would like to speak. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. All right. I am looking to 

see whose hands are raised to speak. And I will start with Commissioner Cooperberg. 

Thank you. And this is a discussion specifically related to the motion to table. Thank you. 

>> COMMISSIONER COOPERBERG: T hank you. It actually relates to both. First of all, I 

am in support of ODR expansion. My question is, and it may be added to Commissioner 

Root's issues, is looking at MHSA and they do have criteria, exclusions, requirements on 

what MHSA funds can actually go to, is there anything in the legislation that would 

preclude using funding for ODR? Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. 

Commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS:Th ank you. I'm not certain if 

county council is on the line, and I also want to acknowledge that in reference to this 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

300 | Page 

motion that's on the table, I also want to acknowledge that there -- that Dr. Ochoa is 

present, and I believe there's opportunity for a lot of the questions that are being asked 

of Commissioner Root to be answered. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. Thank you. We 

are -- this discussion is related to the motion to table. So if I am -- let me see. 

Commissioner Schallert, please. >> COMMISSIONER SCHALLERT: T hank you. I'm also 

totally in favor of the (indiscernible) ODR expansion. I've seen it work amazingly well. 

Just a quick question to the tabling question, will that affect -- is there a time element 

here with MHSA, three year, one-year plan? Will a month make a big difference? 

Because I feel like we're right on the edge of these you MHSA three-year plan being 

approved. I don't know the answer to that, but that should be answered, I think. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Root, is your hand up related to your 

motion, or is your hand still up from before? >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: My bad, my 

hand is still up. I have said my piece and let me take it down if I can figure out how to 

do that. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Barbour. >> COMMISSIONER 

BARBOU RU: Yes. As a provider and working in mental health, I've had some exposure 

to ODR. Working in that setting and I have been impressed with the versatility of the 

program. How nimble it is. How quickly it is able to stabilize individuals and the intensity 

of the providers who do this in terms of its -- their residential placement. We talk a lot 

about bureaucracy and no red tape, and all of these things, and I think the motion and 

its intent and its purity is to try to eliminate red tape and bureaucracy by being able to 

directly infuse these funds without a lot of difficulties and barriers. And I worry that 

programs that are so nimble sometimes don't -- are hung up. And so therefore I do not 

really support the tabling. It would be nice to have this move ahead. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. Supervisor Mitchell, is your hand up from previously, or is your 

hand up to speak again to this -- to the motion to table? >> SUPERVISOR MITCHELL: My 

hand is up to speak to the motion to table. Again, to speak to the motion to table, the 

30 days from my understanding is problematic. I think another commissioner raised the 

point that given the timing on the finalization of the MHSA plan, that we would lose the 

window of opportunity if we wait the 30 days. So that's concern number one. So again, 

speaking to the motion, I understand that Dr. Ochoa is on and perhaps can answer some 

of the questions now that Commissioner Root has. With regard to how the money would 

be allocated with regard to is it, quote, enough, and so if ODR could answer those 

questions in real time, I think that would be helpful. Again, speaking to the motion. With 

regard to the justice deputy's involvement, the justice deputies for the second district 

work collaboratively with the second district commissioners in developing the motion 

language. I do not believe that justice deputies for the other offices are aware, I'm going 

to check with my own justice deputy to see if they've communicated with the justice 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
301 | Page 

deputies from the other supervisorral offices, but ours was directly involved in assisting 

with the -- and my health deputy, in assisting with the crafting of the motion. But again, 

to speak to the motion, based on the questions raised, if they could be answered now, 

Commissioner Root can decide if he wants to continue with his motion or not. But I think 

we have the opportunity to have those questions answered to the best of Dr. Ochoa's 

ability right now. So I hope that we would be afford -- he would be afforded the 

opportunity to do so. >> Point of clarification, Madam Chair. Would it be advisable -- >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Woul d it be advisable, to call the question on tabling so we can 

get to the main motion because those questions will obviously come up as referenced 

by the chair of the board. So I'm calling the question on the motion to table. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: The question has been called. Canetana Hurd? >> COMMISSIONER 

AUSTRIA: I think it's premature without having the first question. We have someone 

here, so I would say let her speak -- >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:We'r e going to have -- 

Madam Chair? Sorry to interrupt. I think these are relevant questions to the main 

motion. And it's going to come up again and again. So I would rather wait until we get 

to the main motion, because there are a lot of members who probably have other 

questions relating to that to the main motion. So really the question, let's disperse with 

the motion that's on tabling first. So we can get to the main motion and move forward. 

Because I think that's really what the's the bottom line here. That's my opinion, 

Commissioner Austria. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: My opinion is if we don't get the 

questions answered, how do we vote -- >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: H ow do we 

vote on tabling it if we don't get the questions answered? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: 

My suggestion to the commission that this is a procedural motion to table. It is not a 

substive message to the actual motion. And we can get to those if we get to the tabling 

motion. I get a sense that maybe the body of the commission may not be favorable to 

tabling with all respect, Commissioner Root, and I would like to just disperse with that 

so we can get on with the direct business of the actual motion. But that would be my 

suggestion to the chair. But I yield to my commissioners and the majority of the 

commission. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:Commiss ioner Acebo, I have -- go ahead, but I have 

a question for -- one moment, please. I have a question for Commissioner Acebo, 

because I'm using him as my guide right now. Commissioner Acebo, we will -- someone 

will be able to make another motion to table after we've had the discussion on the 

motion. Is that correct? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: If someone chooses to make 

another motion to table, they are free to. But if I was an individual looking at how to 

maybe how the outcome of this first tabling the motion, it would not be my advice that 

they would do another motion to table. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: I'm happy to 

withdraw the motion, hear the discussion, and then if we need to make it again, I'll make 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

302 | Page 

it again. I don't want to have this taken out of our -- >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. 

Are you removing the motion? >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: I'll withdraw the motion. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: You're withdrawing? All right. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: Yes, I'll 

withdraw the motion, let's have the discussion. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: And we had a 

second. Commissioner Friedman, are you -- >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: S econd. 

Withdraw. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. All right. The motion has been withdrawn, 

let's proceed with the discussion on the motion, and that is before the commission right 

now. And I would like to go now to Sharon, who is county council. Go ahead. >> SHARON 

LIKEMAN: I'm an assistant county council with the office of the county council. I have 

been with the county since roughly 1991. I am currently stationed at the health 

department but I have been involved quite extensively with ODR and the mental health 

department around negotiating the MOU, or as we're calling it the MOA, that sets out 

how ODR and the Department of Mental Health will move forward cooperatively. If 

there are questions that I can assist within that regard, I would be very happy to help 

you. If you're not familiar with the MOA, what it does is it sets out the responsibility of 

both departments in terms of services and funding. And so we are actually in the process 

now of building out operational pieces for that MOA, and I think that work is going at a 

very positive directs and we're moving really well towards establishing, I think, a solid 

collaborative working relationship. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. I see hands raised. 

I'm going to move next to Commissioner Molina. >> COMMISSIONER MOLINA:Tha nk 

you, Madam Chair. Just a very simple question based upon what we were just told. Does 

an MOA between the department and ODR need to be in place in order for us to utilize 

MHSA funding for ODR? Yes or no? >> I'm going to give you the attorney answer. What 

I would say is not necessarily. I apologize. But let me just briefly explain. The MOA is 

essentially the board's guidebook. The road map for how the departments will allocate 

services and funding. And so there is the opportunity under the MOA to deal with 

allocations including those related to MHSA, so that the departments make those 

decisions in accord with the board's road map. I hope that helps. >> COMMISSIONER 

MOLINA: It kind of didn'ted. So what's -- what's the purpose or the objective of the 

MOA? >> SHARON REICHMAN: The purpose is to ensure that ODR is providing mental 

health services that are consistent with legal requirements in the county code and state 

law. And so if you'd like me to elaborate a little more on that, what that means -- >> 

COMMISSIONER MOLINA: One final question and I'll be done. When do you foresee the 

conclusion or the signing of this MOA? Days, weeks, months? >> SHARON REICHMAN: 

It's been executed by both directors and the board of supervisors. So that road map as 

I like to call it, is in place and approved. Now the departments are dealing with 

operational pieces to ensure that they are acting consistently with the way the MOA is 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
303 | Page 

structured, with regard to mental health services being provided by ODR. And so much 

of that operational discussion will include pieces about finance. >> COMMISSIONER 

MOLINA:Tha t's helpful. Thank you very much. >> SHARON REICHMAN: You're welcome. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH:Commiss ioner Acebo. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Than k you, 

Madam Chair. Members, a question to the county council and also I hope that there is 

a Department of Mental Health staff person available to answer other questions related 

to this specific MOA. Question to the county counsel. With respect to operational pieces 

specifically financing, is it the intent of the board to look at and meet all requirements 

relating to state and/or federal funding that could be available to ODR for mental health 

purposes? Services, purposes? >> SHARON REICHMAN: I think -- >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO: Does the 2019 motion, if you remember, states that they cited a number of 

various state funding options, including MHSA. >> SHARON REICHMAN: I apologize, I'm 

not familiar with the 2019 motion. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: The 2019 motion was 

the actual motion by sprr Hn that put this in motion to establish this MOA. Sorry, not to 

put you on the spot, county counsel. >> SHARON REICHMAN: No, no, no. This is one of 

the side effects of me being stationed away from the hall of administrations. I 

sometimes miss things like this motion. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Let me try to 

rephrase the question for you. You had mentioned operational pieces and associated 

with financing. I assumed that opens the door for many revenue options for ODR to 

pursue and the board hoping that they would pursue it to provide mental health 

services. Would you say that is a -- that is correct on my part? >> SHARON REICHMAN: 

The MOA is specifically structured to allow ODR to access funding for mental health 

services in a legally complaint way. So that in other words, so that the mental health 

department and the health department cooperate to ensure that any finances that are 

structured, any money that is dispersed will be handled appropriately as required by 

law. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Okay . So MHSA is an appropriate funding alternative, 

yes? >> SHARON REICHMAN: Yes, I believe so, sir. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Medi um 

Cal reimbursement is an appropriate funding option as well. >> SHARON REICHMAN: 

Yes, that is correct. For specialty mental health. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: All right. 

Can I have a member of the Department of Mental Health available to answer a question 

for me? >> GREG POLK: This is Greg Polk. Welcome, Supervisor, Mitchell. Glad to see 

you here. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Than k you for being on the call, and members, I 

appreciate your patience with me. I want to get to this funding issue, Greg. Because 

under MHSA there are these categories, it wasn't stipulated in the motion which 

category that the 25 million would come out of. It's not for me to decide, but how is that 

decided, and if that is decided in terms of a category, what are the state requirements 

associated with that category of 25 million so the commission is clear what will be 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

304 | Page 

required of ODR relating to this 25 million. >> GREG POARK: I think it depends on the 

services ODR are providing. The parameters around PEI dollars, prevention and early 

intervention dollars, parameters around CSS dollars. So it has to fall within the 

parameters of those categories. So what we would do is take a look at the dollars, of the 

services being provided by ODR, and see where it fits within the whole MHSA plan, so 

to speak. So it has to fall with one -- within one of those categories. >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO: Do you know, Greg, if ODR is pursuing med Cal reimbursement since it will be 

available particularly under the MOA? >> GREG POLK: I would assume so. Maybe Dr. 

Ochoa can answer that. I would assume they will be. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: And I 

would assume that the practice of any county department is that we always protect net 

county costs or general fund dollars. And try to get reimbursed from state and federal 

as much as possible. I would assume would that be a correct assumption on my part? 

>> GREG POLK: I think that's been a directive of the board. The board always tries to 

protect net county costs, and to the extent it can be funded by state and federal 

revenues, that's always our first disability. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I have a question 

for Dr. Ochoa, Madam Chair, if that's okay. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. I do want to 

say I understood that the MOA had been executed also by the director, or directors. And 

since we have the director of the Department of Mental Health on the line, I would like 

Dr. Sherin to address this issue if possible. >> DR. SHERIN: I haven't left yet. A couple 

things. First of all, Greg's points are important. It really depends on the type of program 

that's being administered in terms of what funding, what bucket of MHSA can be used 

as many know, going back at least four years, I and others have been trying to simplify 

the use of those funds, because they're so constrained. There is a little bit of an issue 

here around timing, because as you all would know, there's a required 30-day posting 

for new types of programming. Though maybe there's a way we can think about how all 

of the input that we've collected over the past year supports the programs that would 

be delivered. And that's something I think we want to figure out. If we are going to go 

forward. The other thing, I want to make something really clear. Going back to 2018, 

myself and lawyers at the time, in this department, raised the flag to say, listen, ODR is 

doing great work, but in order for them to be authorized to deliver treatment, to draw 

down funds, they need a contract with the Department of Mental Health. So we've been 

pushing for that. And unfortunately I think it's taken a long time for a variety of reasons, 

including the fact that when you use money like this, it's constrained. It's constrained 

when you want to draw down, there's a lot of reporting requirements, et cetera we did 

sign it, Christina and I signed it as soon as we could get through all the process, and we 

want to move, and we want to invest in ODR as a contractor for the Department of 

Mental Health. Big-time. In fact, I'm working and our team is working on innovation 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
305 | Page 

project, because we also have innovation funding, that we want to use to get people 

out of the jail. You have to realize also that one of the things about MHSA is that it can't 

be used in any institutional setting. So any of the funding -- any of the services that 

would be funded would have to occur in the community, which I don't think is a 

problem. But I want the community to know that the Department of Mental Health is 

very much behind the work that ODR does, it will be not as flexible, because the money 

has things tied to it, and it took since at least the beginning of 2018 when we raised the 

flag to say that we needed an MOA until, I don't know, four or five, six months ago to 

get that agreement signed. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS:Co uld we invite -- Ochoa to the discussion, please? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I 

think she's still here. Are you asking me to -- >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS:I' m asking for 

Dr. Ochoa -- >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Is she not able to get on the line? >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS:I' m asking to welcome her into the discussion. She is present. Thank you. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. Fine. Yes, thank you. Go ahead. >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO:Mada m Chair, I have a question for Dr. Ochoa before I yield it to Dr. Sherin. Is 

that still appropriate? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go ahead. I see everyone's hand. >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I just want to finish my question to Dr. Ochoa. Or do I need to 

yield, ma'am? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I'm asking you to go ahead, please. >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Than k you. Welcome to the Mental Health Commission and 

thank you for being here. And a very important motion and -- that the second district 

commissioners have brought forward. I just have a couple questions on sort of your 

reporting. And I know at least two years ago that under Commissioner Weissman's 

chairmanship we did a deep dive into ODR, and so we are very knowledgeable of the 

great work it does. I'm curious about the, your reporting, look be at your website, you 

report on recidivism and housing retention. And hospitalization visits. Can you tell me, 

do you do any reporting relating to mental health outcomes? Specific consumer 

outdismoms by ODR? >> DR. OCHOA: Can you hear me? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: 

Yes, ma'am. >> DR. OCHOA: Thank you. And thank you for -- to everyone who is 

considering our work and who cares so much about what we do, we really appreciate 

everything I've been hearing on this call. So we -- right now the health services research 

that's taken place around our work, and you've seen it in the motion from UCLA, really 

looks at outask comes in terms of mental health and psychiatric emergency room visits 

as well as psychiatric and patient hospitalizations. That's what we've reported on thus 

far. And as you mentioned, rearrests, what the CIO's office calls failure to appear in 

court, which basically means someone has fallen out of the court's eyes and is not 

reporting back to court as they are court ordered to do. And then housing retention, 

whether people stay in our program and stay in housing, we are housing first model, so 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

306 | Page 

those are the primary outcomes. However, we have a very -- I'm a researcher by 

background, and we have a really robust analytical ability with our own pretty rigorous 

data and database, and so I'm pretty confident that if there were further requirements 

under MHSA that we could meet them in terms of reporting outcomes. >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Than k you, Madam Chair, I appreciate your patience. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. Dr. Sherin, had you finished? Before I move on to other 

questions. >> DR. SHERIN: Yes, that's fine. Thanks for giving me a chance. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: All right. Thank you. I'm moving on now, Commissioner Austria, please. >> 

COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA:Ye s. I wanted to point out that ODR is a new and innovative 

program which comes under MHSA. I believe it's up to DHS and DMH to find exact 

funding piece. But there is a surplus of funds in MHSA, which has been identified but 

not particularly shared with the commission. So I would ask that -- we're giving a 

directive as commissioners, we're not asking to be the bureaucrats ourselves. We're 

asking the commission we make a recommendation to DMH to work with DHS and ODR 

to move this really critical piece and not delay it. Because if we delay it, the program is 

already closed. I got a call Tuesday after I went and visited a site, and there's a young 

man in jail, a graduate of USC, schizophrenic, he's been arrested a couple times. And he 

was in jail, and he needs a program like this. But he can't be referred at this moment. 

There's a lot of people sitting here, so I want to remind people that there are individuals 

that need to be thought of first and let the people who need to work out the 

bureaucracy. From what I understood of how the money would be spent, it would be 

spent primarily to increase the project by 500 beds. So I'm asking people to think about 

that, the departments and the -- how we can get the directive from us and then move 

this motion. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. You did bring up one point that we will 

need to circle back to, and that is extra money that has not been revealed to the 

commission, but we will come back to that because Dr. Galley has just joined us, and Dr. 

Galley would like to speak to this motion. I would like to give you the opportunity. Thank 

you. >> DR. GALLEY: This is director of DHS. I apologize, I just joined because of another 

conflict with my schedule. So I missed the first part of the meeting. But I do want to 

thank the commissioners for the motion in support of ODR. I understand that the site 

visit was informative earlier this week, and I hope offered an opportunity to see in action 

some of the really life-changing services that are provided through ODR. And how those 

services, by providing a housing first approach, offering stability through housing, 

through case management services, through medications and therapy, as well as other 

services, can really change the trajectory of people's lives. The outcomes that ODR has 

been able to achieve through its various programs are impressive in terms of greater 

housing stability, reduced recidivism rates, and are frankly much better than anything 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
307 | Page 

else I think that's been seen among a population that is really very, very sick. I'm very 

supportive of this motion surrounding the use much MHSA funding, it's entirely 

consistent with MHSA funding principles. It would not be used to supplant any 

additional revenue sources that ODR receives, either through other county funding 

sources, whether it's net county cost or other funding. And also would not supplant any 

Medi-Cal revenue, either nonfederal share or federal share that also ODR would be able 

to bring in and it's entirely consistent with the MOA that has already been signed, which 

DHS and ODR are absolutely and fully supportive of. We're still working out all of the 

operational agreements for how that MOA will be operationalized, but there's 

absolutely nothing consistent with the use of MHSA funding for the ODR purpose, and 

that separate MOA. So just want to express my thanks to the entire commission for 

those who put forward the motion, and for the commission's consideration of it, and to 

the ODR team for being here. I would be more than happy to answer questions. I'm sure 

a lot of it has been covered, but more than happy to address any other concerns or 

questions there might be, and again, just thank you for your time. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you very much for joining us. And giving us your time. If there are any questions 

for Dr. Ghaly at this time, I'm going to go through the hands that are already raised, we 

have Commissioner Weissman, Commissioner Friedman, and Commissioner Stevens. 

Commissioner Weissman. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: T hank you very much for all 

of the context and in input from all of the doctors and department leaders and 

Supervisor Mitchell. It's a lot to consider at this point. We've heard lots of different 

angles a this premise. I would like to just chip in my couple of cents here, which are one, 

it's pretty frustrating to be dealing with this when it feels like a sense of urgency or 

emergency, really, that program with ODR has been quiet for some time due to funding 

concerns. We've known this for some time, so to come to the commission and kind of 

hail Mary it to get a motion passed to get $25 million infused, it feels very tight. And can 

I want to voice that, I'm sure I'm not the only commissioner who feels a little behind the 

eight ball trying to conceive of all this and make sense and integrate. It does feel a little 

bit like a political football coming to the Mental Health Commission, it seems to me that 

with the questions that are coming up through the commissioners and the content 

being provided in response, that more due diligence is maybe needed for us at least to 

understand a little bit more fully, and I consider myself somewhat on the cusp of being 

an insider to witness the birth of ODR and the transitions, and the escalation through 

the years. I don't know if we want to consider talking internally up through the 

Department of Mental Health to get ideas from DMH leadership on what our motion 

should look like to get the most out of MHSA dollars for ODR. Because my goal is really 

to support ODR, and the most -- to make it the biggest, most successful program it can 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

308 | Page 

be in the most sustainable way. And $25 million in an annual installment from MHSA in 

a kind of a nonscript way, it doesn't seem like it's tied to much, is that the best way to 

do that for ODR's sustainability, and forever ability in L.A. County, which I hope it can 

be. And then finally, with the advent of the MOA discussion here, I was just getting 

confused as to whether or not our motion as a commission supports what's in the MOA, 

are we informing the MOA, could the MOA inform this motion? And so I think to the 

extent that any of the experts and knowers on this call can help me make sense of any 

of that, I'd appreciate it. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. I'm going to continue through 

the -- at this moment, unless Dr. Ghaly has a response specifically to the last question 

from Commissioner Weissman. Or if Dr. Sherin has a response to that. >> DR. GHALY: 

With respect to the MOA, there's really nothing inconsistent with the two pathways. 

The MOA governs a process where ODR would be able to seek a contract so that it can 

receive payment in Medi-Cal -- and Medi-Cal reimbursement for the services it provides. 

It's to date not been able to access Medi-Cal reimbursement because it doesn't have a 

contract with the plan. So this MOA offers that structure for it to be able to obtain Medi-

Cal reimbursement for eligible specialty mental health services. It also offers a 

framework for how performance contract related funds would be governed. And then 

leaves the rest of the discretion to ODR and DHS for areas in which DMH is not directly 

involved as a source of revenue. So in this sense, be where DMH is the designated 

authority for development of MHSA spending plans, the MOA as signed by both 

departments is entirely consistent with DMH making an allocation to ODR or to anything 

that MHSA is able to fund and the MOA is in support of that. It doesn't speak to any of 

the details about what has to be included in it, or what has to be funded. The MOA 

doesn't speak to those issues. But it allows for that possibility. So they really run I would 

say in parallel. I don't know if Commissioner Weissman if that gives you enough 

information for your question. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Y es. It does seem like 

they can run in parallel. But again, the swirling concerns around -- the integrity of our 

decision making process and how we're considering things as a Mental Health 

Commission feels under the gun right now, and I don't know how we're going to come 

to peace, but I have faith in our chair to help us along, Stacy. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank 

you. Commissioner Friedman. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I just want to say that I 

absolutely agree with every single thing that Brittany said. And I was going to say the 

exact same thing. But I have one specific question, and that is, what is the urgency? Is 

the urgency if we pass this today, does that mean that on Tuesday the board of 

supervisors will have a motion and they will vote on it and the money is immediately 

available? Or what is the urgency? Could someone answer that? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Counsel or commissioner or Dr. Ghaly or someone from DMH, please. >> 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
309 | Page 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to remind us -- >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I was going to 

call you next, Commissioner Stevens. >> DR. GHALY: I don't know whether you can 

answer questions about timelines or where the board would weigh in or perhaps one of 

the health deputies has the information to answer that question, or alternatively, our 

counsel, I believe Sharon may still be on the line. >> DR. SHERIN SLZ I THOUGHT I HAD 

COMMENTED ON THIS IN MY: Earlier statements. There technically is a 30-day period 

of comment that's required from the community around the use of MHSA dollars. What 

I'm saying is, we probably can look at all the input we've gotten that supports the 

concepts for the program so that we can thereby conclude that there is community 

support for the program, and that the 30-day period is unnecessary. I'm not a lawyer. I 

don't pretend to be, but that would certainly be my recommendation is to see if we can 

do that. And I also just, what I've said earlier, I don't know if you were on, the 

Department of Mental Health has wanted to have a contract with ODR for some time. 

And now that we have one in place, we will be able to invest in it as we do with 

contractors all over L.A. County and leverage the expertise that has been developed and 

the practices that have been developed. I'm -- one last thing, I'm a little confused about 

comments related to the department not sharing funding issues with MHSA. We've 

been struggling to spend mast in two pots. The prevention pot and the innovation pot. 

And because there are more millionaires as a result of COVID, there's a massive amount 

of new MHSA money coming down to all of the counties. So we're looking in the 

department, we've been actively figuring out ways we can invest particularly through 

other departments to spend the money, because it's really outstripping our ability to 

hire and to contract ourselves. So this for us is a good thing, it's core to the direction of 

the board, the direction of the Health and Human Services departments in the county. 

And we -- so we're very interested, I'm interested on my way out in figuring out how to 

get this done, now that we have Christina, you ESPY have signed this MOA. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Stevens and then Commissioner Austria. >> 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to first thank everyone for the conversation that we're 

having. Thank you Dr. Christina Ghaly, Dr. Ochoa, county counsel, thank you Dr. Sherin 

for acknowledging interest. And the work that's already currently -- the direction in 

which we're going. I want to remind us, because there was a question that was asked 

about what's the urgency, what's the rush? I think it's important to remind us that there 

are over 13,000 people right now that are languishing in the county jail system. And in 

order to provide them with opportunity, we have to have funding and places for them 

to go. I experienced 12 arrests, untreated mental illness, unhoused, a disaster. A mess. 

There was no ODR. So I know firsthand the benefits of what ODR offers, and the 

opportunity for people to live -- you cannot get well in a cell. It's a disgrace. Because 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

310 | Page 

oftentimes even upon release, and I was released all 12 times, with nowhere to go. No 

opportunity, no new possibilities. So when you talk about a rush, and you talk about 

why now, I want to remind this commission, I brought this up last year, around this time, 

the year before, and because of the support and because I had the courage to ask for 

help to do something different, not only are we having a conversation about a motion, 

but we're doing something we ain't never done before. And so I think this is a great 

opportunity for us to wrap ourselves around this new possibility and new opportunity 

to do something different and grow as a commission, but also think about the people 

that we are here to serve. Some of them are inside of the jails and under the Department 

of Health services. But the truth of the matter is, we're talking about people who have 

severe mental health issues or challenges, and we're also talking about an opportunity 

to give them an opportunity, and we should not miss that moment. It is before us here 

today. I have no questions. The only thing that I have -- I have an ask. And I ask that this 

commission embrace and support, even if we're making amendments, but let's move 

this forward. Thank you honorable Supervisor Holly Mitchell for being here today and 

for the support of your staff and this courageous bold move and ask from the second 

district commission. Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Austria 

and then (indiscernible). >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA:It 's always hard to follow Reba, 

she's so passionate. That is passion that is needed for all of us as commissioners. 

Because I too am from the other end, not as a peer, but an employee in the field, and 

seeing a need. Firsthand. Getting calls as a board staff prior, and still getting those calls 

from people who are -- people who are in jail who need help now. And they're not 

getting it. So this is really critical. I know that in the letter of recommendation from the 

commission last year, this was put in there, there was a recommendation to make this 

a priority. And so what we're trying to do is move that recommendation from last year's 

recommendation to actually move it into a motion and take action. So we are asking for 

action in the county, and not to be so bureaucratic, still meeting the bureaucratic needs, 

it fits under MHSA, community-based, and it's needed now. So please support the 

motion, and we thank all of you, if it feels urgent, I'm sorry, it's been lingering and the 

program has moved forward and I think this is the time. And if we need to form 

something so that people are monitoring it, I'm fine with that. I will happily head 

something up. But what I understand, it's to create 500 more beds, which is a fairly 

simple act in terms of this is the goal. How we get there, I leave that to Dr. Sherin, Dr. 

Ghaly, to Dr. Ochoa, and to the authorities that need to do that -- the others that need 

to do that with us monitoring that. Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. 

(indiscernible) and then there's a question in chat from Yolanda Vera, and I will read 

that after the next person speaks. Thank you. >> Thank you. I also just wanted to echo 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
311 | Page 

Commissioner Stevens' sentiment on the question of urgency. I think we spent decades 

in meetings like this discussing how we need to move with urgency on the matter of the 

homelessness and mental health crisis on our streets. And now we found a model that 

actually works, that is nationally recognized as a best practice. At the same time we find 

out we have almost a billion dollars of unspent dollars in reserves, that we could move 

quickly to fund the programs that we know work to reduce incarceration, adverse 

mental health risks, and homelessness. And so I'm a little confused by the question of 

what is the urgency here. Because all I ever hear is that we need to move with urgency 

to act on this. So, yeah. Kathleen, don't think you need to apologize for the urge si here. 

That's all. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. That is bringing up the question of 

discovering unused funds. I'm going to wait for that until I read Yolanda's question, if 

this motion is tabled and the MHSA update goes forward without the funding for ODR, 

does that mean ODR and diversion services must wait another year until the next plan 

before any relief is afforded? And I have asked for someone to answer that question. >> 

GREG POLK: It required a 30-day posting. Once the posting is done it requires a board 

to go before the vote -- the board to vote, or the supervisors can bring in a green sheet 

or motion to make that happen. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Dr. She rin has also said that there 

might be a way around that. So I think that might be what is being asked here. Dr. Sherin, 

are you still with us? >> DR. SHERIN: I am, and I have to peel off for an interview. You're 

right, I think what Greg is saying, I can't say for sure that we've gotten the kind of public 

comment about a specific program that technically statutorily we're required to get. On 

one hand we don't move fast enough, and on the other hand we move too quickly. I 

can't tell you how many times we get reprimanded and -- about not including people's 

voices, and then things -- and now we're trying to push something quickly. There's no 

one that's more restless about all of these things, especially around homelessness, and 

this department, as well as those who are incarcerated. So we want to move together 

in partnership, and as I've said, in 2018, I told both departments and everybody in this 

county that we needed to have a contract with ODR. For them to do the work they 

wanted to do. And now that we're here, it's great. And let's move. And we're trying to 

spend the money. We have contractors all over the county who can't spend the money 

that we give them. Let's let ODR, let's see how much money ODR can spend to go after 

a board priority, that's fine. We want that. We want great contracts with everybody, 

including other departments, we want to grow our own department as quickly as 

possible. That's not the issue. We're not trying to -- the bureaucratic processes are what 

we fight about, what I fight about all the time. Including the more flexibility for MHSA 

money so we don't have to have all of these onerous processes and fenced bucketed 

money. The money that's easy to spend is spent. The money that's difficult to spend is 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

312 | Page 

not. Prevention money. We have a the who of prevention money. You can't use 

prevention money for this population. It's prevented by statute. So we will do 

everything in our power to move this as quickly as possible. I would love for it to go in 

to the plan that we can get signed off on in the process that I think Yolanda is asking 

about. If we can't, we'll do whatever we can with board support to expedite it. And we'll 

also make sure that the departments and the operationalizing of the MOA are taken 

care of. There will be learning curves. ODR has not operated as a part of the plan with 

all of the requirements around reporting, and programmatic restrictions, and what it 

takes to draw down money. That's going to be a learning curve for them, and it's not 

going to be fun, but those are the realities. If it were up to me, we wouldn't have any of 

that. We would give money and get asked to achieve outcomes for the people we are 

here to serve. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Ms. Vera, does that answer your 

question? >> YOLANDA VERA: Actually, hi some concerns and issues on it, because I 

don't know whether counsel is still on the line, because my understanding was that the 

board was always told they could not direct the commission or DMH as to how to spend 

MHSA dollars. So I don't know to what extend the board could direct it, and that's why 

it's so critical that the commission recommends it to occur. I've been watching ODR 

through the years, we've seen so many studies, we've heard eloquently from witnesses 

about the outcomes. But to date, years have gone by and there still have been no MHSA 

dollars to support services for MHSA eligible clients. So that's the urgency, that's the 

push on acting now. Rather than deferring it over to the board of supervisors. Which 

certainly would want to support the effort and do everything to get the county 

departments engaged so that they can implement it with Dr. Sherin, Dr. Ghaly, and the 

ODR staff. But I -- we've always been told, and I have county counsel opinions that no, 

the board can't direct DMH, if the commission does not do it first. So that's the need for 

the vote today. >> DR. SHERIN: I just need to say, we're not suggesting the board would 

tell us, and the board is not thoarsed to do that. The community input, which we 

incorporate as guidance, is then built into a plan. Right now the commission 

representative of the community is providing input to the annual update. The thing 

about the board is that if we are unable to move this as quickly as we would all like to, 

in terms of this annual update, we would then revise the annual update early a in the -

- in the next year, like within a 30-day period, and then once that is done, and there's a 

30-day comment period on this particular program, we then would need authority to 

act upon a modification of the plan. So this -- we're not asking for mandate from the 

board. And in terms -- I'm going to say this again. This is the third or fourth time I've said 

it -- in order to use MHSA money, to do things like support ODR, we need a contract 

with ODR. And we finally have one. So we're now actually technically able to do that. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
313 | Page 

We had thought -- >> DR. GHALY: MHSA funds can be allocated and a contract can be 

developed. It is true that an MOA is in place and it's not a barrier, the MOA, though, 

largely governs Medi-Cal specialty mental health reimbursement. It's not particular to 

MHSA. There's absolutely no reason why MHSA funding could not have moved to ODR 

prior to that contract being in place. So I just don't want there to be any 

misunderstanding that there's some barrier in place either historically or currently. I 

think -- I'll defer to others as to why there hasn't been an ability to fund ODR with MHSA 

funds, but the contract is not the primary barrier. We are all glad, I know all of us on this 

call are glad that an MOA is in place now, we think that's a major step forward. We 

believe for both organizations, and that there's a lot of good that will come from that in 

seeking that reimbursement through the various options for Medi-Cal. But it's not, 

never was, and is not a barrier to MHSA funding being able to move to ODR programs. 

>> DR. SHERIN: It's unfortunate, especially as I'm exiting this county to air differences 

on a call like this, but in order for an entity to deliver mental health treatment, it has to 

be authorized by the mental health plan. And that was not the case prior. So maybe for 

things other than treatment, what you're saying is true. But inners the of treatment, 

that's been the crux of the whole matter. >> DR. GHALY: The agreement is in place now. 

I just don't want people to think there is any sort of relevance of a barrier of the MOA. 

That's not the case. >> DR. SHERIN: You get the last word. We'll move it. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I used the word "urgent" -- >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: Wait. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: C an I say this one thing? >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH:Commiss ioner Friedman, are you speaking? >> COMMISSIONER 

FRIEDMAN: I just want to -- >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: You will be next. I'm going next to 

Commissioner Root, then freedman, then Acebo. Commissioner Root. >> 

COMMISSIONER ROOT: Thank you. Certainly there's a sense, I gather the commission to 

move this ahead, and it's a sense that I agree with and support. I also hear Commissioner 

Weissman's comment that there are a lot of questions about how and we do this, and I 

still am not sure I understand the difference between doing it today and doing it after 

we have more direction and some answers to this question. Reba, I certainly hear your 

passion in this, and I support that. What I'd like to see is if we're going to put 25 million 

bucks in this T. or some other number, maybe that's not enough, as I said, is it -- yes, 

that's my point. Is it 500 beds or is it 500 beds and some other things? ODR does some 

great work, and their model of tying homes and tying back with long-term supervision 

is what I believe has made this successful. That model doesn't exist in other mental 

health services. In recovery from addictions and things like that. I'd like to see whether 

we can -- as long as we're putting the money in this and making a commitment, I'd like 

to be able to use this success and build on it for some other programs. So I'm going to 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

314 | Page 

support the concept that we do this. Whether the number and the direction is correct, 

I don't know. And I would like to have a little more time, but I'm going to support this 

overall, and if somebody says if we don't support it today we're going to lose the 

opportunity of putting the 25 million bucks or some other number in, I'm going to be in 

favor of it today. If somebody fails to tell me that, I'm going to come back and say I think 

we ought to take 30 days and see whether item two needs to be fleshed out a little bit 

in more detail to make the motion of the commission as impactful as it can be. Don't 

hear me that I want another four years of playing around with this and not getting 

anything done. I want to make item two as powerful as it can be. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. Thank you, Commissioner Root. I get a lot of time -- I did allow a lot of time 

for this motion today. We do have one other item on the agenda. We don't have an 

ending time. And that's intentional because of this motion and the report that we have 

as a public hearing which has to happen. So if -- I will proceed with allowing people to 

speak, please make it brief, because we would like to move forward on this or at least 

reach some resolution. Thank you. Commissioner Friedman, Acebo, Schallert, 

Weissman, Stevens, and then that will be the end of our discussion. We need to go to 

public comment as well. Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: I just wanted to say 

when I used the word "urgent" that was an incorrect use of the word. What I really 

meant was what is going to happen if today we approve this, does that mean that on 

Tuesday the board of supervisors will vote on it, and approve it, and then when does 

the money flow to ODR? And my second question is, if we do approve it, 25 million does 

seem like a minuscule amount of money. I wish we could ask for more money. It would 

make a lot of sense to ask for more money, because I'm not sure how much 25 million 

can do. But my real question is, what does this mean? Does this mean that after Tuesday 

ODR gets the money and then things start happening? Can someone answer that for 

me? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I will just say that we can't say what's going to happen at the 

board of supervisors meeting at this juncture. Even if it's not on the agenda at this time, 

there is time for it to be noticed. Commissioner Acebo. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I 

have a question for Mr. Polk if he's still available, please. >> GREG POLK: I'm available. 

>> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I just from the fourth district point of view, we support Dr. 

Sherin's interpretation of the MHSA. And we are the authority on MHSA. I will also say, 

Dr.-- Mr. Polk that Dr. Sherin seems to say the timing of delaying the vote doesn't mean 

that we have to wait a year. And I also think it means that we maybe have to wait a 

month or two because the board still has to decide and budget negotiations for FY22-

23. Is that somewhat -- is that accurate on my part, Mr. Polk? >> GREG POLK: One of the 

things the board has to vote on the whole plan. The adjustments that we make and the 

commission makes up. There is a need, when you are talking about appropriation, it has 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
315 | Page 

to be appropriation authority given for us to shift money from DHS. All that is once 

there's an agreement we need to do that. And one of the things I wanted to say too is 

that, you know, we're clear what the direction is of this department. Of this supervisor 

Mitchell, we understand what we need to do, and I don't think it's upon mental health 

to help inform the process. I think we should work with the commission, work with the 

board officers of how we think these dollars should work, athan who with DHS and 

Christina and her staff, and should have a conversation about how best to move this 

forward. Because one of the things that's required here is two outcomes. The one thing 

about MHSA, there's a lot of data behind it, and data requirements. So we have to talk 

about the outcomes and how we report those outcomes to the state. And so I don't 

know if the commission or the department is familiar with how that process works. I 

think we need to be a part of that to help inform what Supervisor Mitchell is trying to 

achieve. Like Dr. Sherin said, we've -- we're all in on spending dollars, as much money 

as we can spend. We're trying to spend MHSA dollars, there's no secret about that. It's 

just there's a process, there's always a process, and a big piece of it is the stakeholder 

process. And I think we have to get that part done by statute, and once we do that, I 

think it's important for us to help inform how we move this toward and get the best 

outcomes for our clients, and move it forward. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO:Than k you. 

And I have one more question K. Madam Chair, for ODR. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go 

ahead. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Is it true that the CEO just allocated 30 million in net 

costs to ODR because of its fiscal challenges? >> DR. GHALY: The board of supervisors 

CEO, the budget is still to be approved, allocated $30 million in net county cost as 

ongoing funding to maintain the current set of beds for ODR housing, because ODR has 

a fiscal cliff. So the portal that allows for new clients for new individuals to be diverted, 

that would be needed to build up additional housing isn't -- that portal is still closed, 

ODR can't build additional housing. The 30 million you're referring to, sir, is just for the 

ability to maintain the existing portion, not even all, a portion of the existing ODR 

housing portfolio. It does not allow for any growth or expansion. >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO:Than k you. Madam Chair, just on my time, I will say that after we get to public 

comment that I have amendments to the motion. Which I will introduce after all 

comments. Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Schallert. >> 

COMMISSIONER SCHALLERT: T his isn't totally relevant to this, but we did receive a letter 

very recently from the ACLU pointing out that L.A. county has entered into a dissent 

decree way back in 2015 after 1997 investigation that said our jails were horrendous. 

And by May of this year we're still -- the county is supposed to have reasonable plan in 

place. So I found that I have interesting, that that's something I didn't know about. So I 

don't know if we really need to take that into account, but it seems like we should since 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

316 | Page 

this is not a new problem. Just a comment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Hang on a 

second, I'm sorry. Commissioner Weissman and then Commissioner Turner, and then 

we'll go to public comment. Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: T hank you. 

Maybe this speaks to Kevin's idea about amendments, but I was wondering if we could 

move this forward and approve if we simply added some detail and specifics to that 

number two, like around budget and report backs and outcomes, and data sharing. 

Once those elements are on paper it would address a lot of the concerns I've heard, and 

we'd be able to make a recommendation to DMH and BOS to take this a little further. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS:Th ank you, Commissioner Weissman, you basically said it. And that was my 

comment. And then in reference to what Greg Polk had stated about outcomes, I think 

it's important that -- and I know that Dr. Ochoa and as well as Dr. Ghaly can provide that 

information as well. Around that. But I just want to end by saying, before the public 

speaks, that it's important that when folks are exiting that there's opportunity and a 

place to exit. But more importantly, I think it's important for us to remember that it's 

important for them to live safely in community-based settings. And have appropriate 

mental health care as well as case management services. And I hate the word "case 

management." Because I don't like -- I never want to be case managed. But care 

managed is what I would love for us to fight to change that. The other is around restoring 

dignity. And it is really clear, I wanted to make sure that I shared the experience that I 

had by going to on the tour to two of those sites, and what was most fascinating was -- 

it was sad but it was fascinating too to see so many Black men, and also men of color 

that were taken advantage or being providing an opportunity. I think we also need to 

be calling for data around ethnicity. Because we know that there's an 

overrepresentation of Black people or Black and brown people who are currently 

incarcerated. And so the importance to restore dignity to their lives, and especially 

those who have mental health challenges, because I do know that we can get better. 

And that we're capable of doing just that. And so that's all that I want to say. But I will 

end with this -- there was one question that I asked all of the men in this -- in these two 

facilities and I asked them, what would you like to see different? And you would be 

amazed at what they said. Nothing. So it says that the good work that's happening 

currently today, those participants did not find a fault anywhere. And I think that's really 

important to highlight. So thank you, thank you again, thank you everyone. Thank you 

for your support. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. We do have a request for a quick 

break at this time. Could you, AT&T operator, could you tell me how many people are 

on the line for public comment? >> AT&T OPERATOR: Currently three in the queue for 

public comment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right. Then let's go to public comment and 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
317 | Page 

then we'll take a five-minute break. Thank you. >> AT&T OPERATOR: You currently have 

-- line 30, please go ahead. >> Hi, my name is (indiscernible), I'm an L.A. County 

commissioners -- consumer and former commission body. I really appreciate that this is 

being brought up as an issue. It's important DMH begin to tackle it. However, the MHSA 

has significant stakeholder requirements that everybody here has been aware of. So I'm 

glad that I don't have to be repeating those issues again. I know this is a significant 

priority for all of us, but particularly as I hear from the board of supervisors, the priority, 

the board of supervisors needs to fund it from their other budget. They have a lot more 

money than they pay for the Department of Mental Health. The Department of Mental 

Health only gets about 10% from the county's budget. And that needs to change so the 

priorities like this are equitably funded across our systems. This feels very rushed 

through our MHSA process, and by no way should that burden or responsibility be put 

on this commission. Th The county has a responsibility to fund ODR fully, fully and 

continuously to the partnership and it should not be doing it by reading images of funds. 

Particularly with this are some of our most, you know, very delivery type of processes, 

so I really agree. Advice with physicians as well and the discussion that has been had, 

you know around this issue, but going through it with me She has a funding mechanism 

really seems very rushed at this point. I actually liked the proposal, but the mechanism 

doesn't necessarily work, even though there is significant issue with the questions 

around ODR. And want to remind everybody about those responsibilities. >> Thank you. 

Line 37 please go ahead. >> Rick P: Hello, this is Rick Pulido. SALT 7, a longtime advocate 

for parents and for here for and South Bay Area. I have to agree with the first of all I 

want to say Dr. Sherin. Shara was unable to get on to his public comment on the CLT 

meeting, but he's a very strong advocate and emotional person And he made some 

excellent points. You all and the board of supervisors need to take heed because we are 

we, I'm including myself, are dragging our feet getting this ODR instead of 25 million 

only I suggest you guys contemplate on asking for 25 million per district so make that 

more like 125 million. As a starter or even more, because the funds are there like my 

previous colleagues were saying. This has to be grass roots effort, and need to be 

connecting because the silos are huge, and more importantly DMH is doing a great job 

overall, and have to say it's not easy with your hands full right now with the crisis, and 

wars, and Coronavirus and whatnot but, in closing, I would just like you to please move 

this forward as soon as possible because of disparity right now for people of color as the 

commissioner said. Dignity. We need a one stop shop concept, I talked about this for 

years, a job on the job training for peers peers peers.. Street treatment. Funding for 

MHSA. And we need to take care of our families and peers now. Thank you, and god 

bless you. >> Thank you. On the line you are open. Carmen line 39 please go ahead. >> 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

318 | Page 

Carmen Perez: Hello, I'm Carmen Perez. The interim co chair of the Latin X Mental Health 

policies as well at the LatinaUsCC. I'm calling about workforce in regards to 

implementing a lot of these programs were already having issues with...And I'm 

wondering how that department will tap for the lack of workforce specially bilingual, 

bicultural, and implementing some of these programs we haven't seen a plant from the 

department about workforce development. And I think that's imperative right now 

when it comes to implementing a lot of the programs that we're talking about today. So 

just try to figure out what the department is trying to do around workforce and if you 

can please show that, thank you very much. >> Thank you, and line 32 please go ahead. 

>> Good afternoon, Anette director of policy and advocacy of dignity and power now, 

an organization founded by the advocacy of family members with loved ones as Mental 

Health needs that were criminalized. I'm also a commissioner on the gender responsive 

advisory committee, as well as other county commissions,the gender response advisory 

committee set out recommendations last year, which included not just maintaining 

significantly extending ODR housing because this is a gender justice issue. Black women 

are disproportionately impacted by Mental Health needs that are unmet within the 

criminal legal system. They also serve the longest length of stay inside of LA County Jail, 

of any population across race, or gender. . By providing the funding for ODR expansion 

now we're able to meet the needs of our most marginalized folks, and trance folks that 

K6G which are also disproportionately black and disproportionally held with Mental 

Health needs that are unmet inside the jail system. . I urge you not to delay this motion 

any further, or providing funding for ODR any further, really appreciate the comments 

from Commissioner Stevens. Really grounding us in the reality of urgency. But these are 

human beings that are languishing in these jails. These are human beings who are our 

family members who need services and diversion now. It is completely unacceptable 

that for decades, LA County has been the largest Mental Health care provider -- and I 

use that term loosely -- in the nation. This is a moment where we need to act with 

urgency because I need. This was a need that has been long standing. And as pointed 

out, there is legal imperative to fund ODR. 25 million is just the beginning. I agree with 

a previous speaker that said we need a lot more money to divert to ODR but that 

shouldn't stop this commission from voting on this motion. And shouldn't stop the 

commission from moving on the motion as written. A please don't include any 

amendments that will create additional partners hurdles. >> Time. >> Thank you, line 

33 employees go ahead. >> AMBROSE BROOKS: Hi, this is Ambrose Brooks and the 

campaign coordinator at dignity and power nowand the coalition coordinator for the 

justice fell a coalition, I'm calling to express my strong support for this motion as is ODR 

is currently the county's leader in the CareFirst division. Just last month I was outside of 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
319 | Page 

men's Central Jail, speaking to family members of incarcerated people who have severe 

mental illness and would be perfect candidates to ODR programming. But due to lack of 

cap of ODR funding and ODR portal being closed due to lack of funds these individuals 

could not received the services they're very much qualifieded for. I want to say this 

motion absolutely should be passed today. And then, more adequate funding should be 

considered at a later date. But should not be any more delay as thousands of individuals 

are currently inside of LA county jails in need of ODR services. And I just want to say that 

ODR, again, is the county's leader in the care first division and the Board of Supervisors 

has recognized that rhetorically but now also needs to recognize that through budget 

allocation. >> Thank you. Line 35 employees go ahead. >> Can you all hear me. >> Yes, 

proceed. >> Megan: Hi my name is Megan and I am the coordinated for the reimagined 

led coalition, I want to first thank Commissioner for sharing your perspective and 

uplifting the urgency around this issue. I also want to express my strong support of the 

motion for trending toward or we are as is right ODR has been proven, and report after 

report to be highly effective in the sense of that are provided right and also making sure 

that we're diverting people with the highest needs and needs that would otherwise sit 

in jail. Or otherwise, otherwise you behind bars in cages right . And any delays with 

funding toward ODR will only continue to have detrimental effects on those folks with 

legal health and their families. So I ask you vote for the 25 million without delay. And 

making sure that we are pushing toward and the county has verbally expressed in 

supportive for to make that happen now. So again, I strongly support the motion. Thank 

you. >> Thank you, line 8 please go ahead. >> Jean Harris: I also asked for you to please 

pass this motion. Today, as a beginning, if we need to extend the MHSA3 year plan for 

additional time in order to have public comment on this we can not go forward without 

making this happen. And it is a beginning. It needs a lot more funding which I would ask 

the board of super visors to consider additional funding. With you the MHSA3 year plan 

ties into how we care for communities and stop the tragedy-travesty of the individual 

that are incarcerated. You like that word, tragedy and travisty together. It's got to start 

somewhere. We need to fund ODR, whatever it takes to make it happen. Thank you. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH:Thank you at&t operator. >> You have 4 currently in the qua. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: So I'm going to limit the time to 1 minute, thank you. >> Thank you, 

line 13 you have one minute, please proceed. >> Speaking on behalf of the Black Los 

Angeles County coalition, like to say thank you commissioners for all your hard work. 

And once again like to echo the urgency, however public comment is very important to 

this national recognized model ODR. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you,line 10, please go 

ahead. You have one minute. >> Mark Carmets: >> Operator: Go ahead. >> Mark 

Carmets: I'm trying to. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Mark you have one minute to speak go 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

320 | Page 

ahead. >> Yes, this is Mark Carmets: And I looked up a couple things, last year at the 

conference, there was two workshops for reentry, and one was called ready for reentry 

and beyond. And the other was called the justice initiative. Model for activating justice 

involved peers in your communities. And it had to do with people re-entering from jails 

into the community. And classes that were taking place in the jails so that they would 

not repeat what they did before hand. >> Operator: Time. Thank you. >> In other 

words... >> Thank you, Mark. >> Operator: Line 36 please go ahead. >> Hello, I'm James 

Nelson, formally incarcerated. 8 year now. I do programs at dignity and power. Now I'm 

Senior Advocacy I'm calling in support of funding for ODR is like, we know that if some 

things that need to change in the way of changing things for the better, and really 

address care before cages, and ODR, the example that ODR has shown. So I think we no 

longer need to delay that. The longer we delay the more people being harmed and dying 

inside of these cages, we need to act on this. We get paid to do this. We need to be 

responsible and put our differences aside, and address the real issue at hand. People 

are dying in jail. Thank you. >> Thank you. And our last commenter will be line 10. One 

moment. Your line... line is open. Please go ahead. Mark, please proceed with your 

comment. >> Mark: This is Mark again. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: You had your time. >> 

Mark: That's fine. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: There will be another opportunity for public 

consent at the end and thank you very much for calling. Go ahead. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

If that's the last caller, we're going to take a 5-minute break and come back. Thank you. 

>> Ladies and gentlemen, we'll take a 5 minute break, and return in 5 minutes, at 

approximately 1:33. . >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: John, are you there? How is our 5 minutes 

going >> JOHN FLYNN: We're there. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Okay, welcome back. I'm 

going to go to Judy Cooperberg. >> COMMISSIONER COOPERBERG: Yes, thank you, 

Madam Chair, at last I would like to call for the question. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank 

you. Commission Acebo? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Madam Chair and members, I will 

put in the chat amendments to the motion. Friendly amendments in terms of report 

backs. And I would like to second, so I can present it. >> COMMISSIONER MOLINA: 

Molina seconds. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I speak to amendment. >> Madam Chair, 

I'm not your parliamentarian but I believe that we do need to at least read those out 

loud >> >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Recommendation and this is an amendment to ODR 

MSA funding be subject to the following one the Department of Mental Health report 

back to the Commission on Mental Health had its May 2022. Meeting with 

recommendation how the ODR DMH. MOU operational pieces can enhance 

reimbursement such as medical and other state and federal funding to the Department 

of Mental Health report back to the Commission on Mental Health. Provisional Mental 

Health, sorry, they got that word as its at its May 22 meeting with a recommendation 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
321 | Page 

on enhancing client slash med Mental Health outcome data from ODR. ODR Number 

three for department Mental Health report back to the commissioner Mental Health, 

and it's me May 2022 meeting, as to what category the ODR funding will be allocated. 

And what if any specific state requirements need to be addressed regarding the 

allocation . 4: The recommendation for ODR image as a funding be subject to the 30 day 

community input hearing that is the motion was seconded, >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Discussion. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: The motion really -- after hearing Commissioner 

Root and Commissioner Weissman and both my commissioner Molina and I have 

spoken about this prior to the our meeting today. We just think that a little bit more 

information would enhance the motion, and provide the entire Commission and the 

public with greater information. And that's the intent of the amendments. Thank you 

Madam Chair. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Commissioner Austria? >> 

COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I was looking for them in writing. Because I'm visual. I just 

want to make sure we're not bogging down. I do believe we should have a 30-day 

process. Don't want to violate a process. And want to make sure it doesn't get bogged 

down in layers of bueraucracy to delay implementation, and that's my concern 

regarding that. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Madam Chair, the amends are in chat, and 

wanted to mention that to you. So you can read them properly. If so. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: We have motion and amendments that have been spoken and written, and 

read into the record. And we have call for the vote. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: On 

the amenment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Sorry? >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I believe we 

have to address the amendment first and vote that up or down, and then the actual 

motion. First we have to vote on the amendment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: And we're 

calling for that. Apologize, we're calling for that vote right now. Role call vote. We have 

motion and second on these amendments. >> Then don't we go to discussion. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: I thought we just had discussion. Okay, I see a couple new hands up I 

thought we were finished with those. Apologize. Commissioner Banko. >> 

COMMISSIONER BANKO: Sorry, I had computer issues, I'm wondering could we say in 

order to avoid the 30 day causing additional wait time, could we say upon enactment 

per... instead of requiring that 30-day input period. Apologize if you all already discussed 

this. Having it before hand, having it after. Is that possible? >> Madam may I take a stab 

at the amendment. Commissioner Banko the reason I said 30 days and director Sharon 

and Dr. Sherin confirmed with Greg Polk there is 30 day input hearing, and that's why 

the 30 days was there to reflect their advice to the Commission. >> Good afternoon, this 

is Patti -- counsel, sorry to interrupt, but the 30 days is required for the welfare 

institutions code. >> Point of order Madam Chair. Commissioner Acebo we do not see 

the language in the chat. You might have to hit the little arrow on the bottom right 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

322 | Page 

corner under your message RNGS and that's why I'm here. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: 

Commissioners I apologize for my technological ininadequacies. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. Thank you, IT. >> Does that answer your question commissioner Banko. >> 

COMMISSIONER BANKO: It does, I do share the same concern, nobody wants to wait 

on. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:... >> >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: I am interested if we're 

talking about amendments and just adding details to the motion on these few things. A 

budget, so I don't know what dollar amount but any dollar amount and a budget attach 

report backs of some regular basis and metrics and outcomes on health 

outcomespeople that get out of jail because of the infusion of money on an annual basis, 

and data sharing, and I thought we add those elements to whatever final language there 

is. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I accept as friendly additions to the amendment. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: I so no other hands raised. Sorry, I do. Commissioner Stevens. >> 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I just want to be clear if we could still move forward with 

approving it with the friendly amendments today. And here is the deal -- why not have. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I believe the answer is yes. But I will ask for confirmation of that. 

Just to be clear. I think we're all trying to move forward on this. And I hear... >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I can clarify that as maker of the amendments. I think 

Commissioner Stevens and Austria are correct, that definitely want to move in step with 

them. And sorry, commissioner Barbra you too. And welcome Jack, did you like the first 

meeting we planned it that way for you. [Laughter] >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: And so 

it is to add to your motion. It's like No. 3 underneath it. All the other parts of your motion 

remain in tact, Commissioner Stevens, I hope that answers the question. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Commissioner Stevens? >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: I understand the 

commissioner Weissman... >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Moving and recognizing Commissioner 

Root and Commissioner Austria. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: As I understand the friendly 

amendment at this point, Commissioner Weissman points are added to Commissioner's 

Acebo points under item 3 of the motion, so we have a budget ready. Can you repeat 

the four things, they addressed the very issues I want that makes me able to support 

this. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Yes. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: And also commissioner 

Weissman please write them into the chat so they're part of the written record as well. 

>> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Yes, forgive me I'm on the more casual side of the 

commissioner, so I'll write them nicely and formally in the chatbox so many. They are 

budget for the requested dollar amount. Report backses to the regular interval to the 

commission, board, etc. Metrics and outcomes so what we are hoping to achieve in the 

area of data driven decision making and report backs. And then data sharing, and regular 

intervals providing report of progress to date, and just as with any grant or funding 

stream. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you, is that clear to all commissioners at this time? 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
323 | Page 

Thank you. Commissioner Austria and then Commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER 

AUSTRIA: [Muted]. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Commissioner Austria and then Commissioner 

Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I want to make amendment to make sure the 

funds -- are not supplanted. (INDISCERNIBLE). To not supplant them. >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO: I accept as friendly addition to the amendments. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: 

Thank you, there is a lot of them. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. We could have just 

started with this. Commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to 

apologize, I got distracted reading the amendments and added in the chat and I will say 

out loud, it seems the first amendment could cause some delay. And want to make 

certain we're not delaying this. So could you clarify that very first one would not delay 

us. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Thank you, Commissioner Stevens for the question. Each 

amendment as you saw as written is consistent with the 30-day. That's why it was made 

in 22 meeting -- right the next meeting that the information come back. And because of 

the county council's comments that operational pieces are being worked out. We may 

be able to expand ODR abilities by going after other funding such as Medi-Cal 

reimbursement and other state federal funding and that is the intent. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. I do want to say I attended -- I was very pleased to be able to 

attend two site visits yesterday that were arranged by the commissioners making the 

motion. And was very impressed by both the facilities, staff and services being offered. 

And did have the opportunity to interview some of the people living in those two 

locations. And without exception they spoke very highly of their experience and positive 

effect it had on them. Commissioner Barber please. >> Commissioner Barbour: Yes, I 

just want to let people know that I've had direct experience, a few years ago, as being a 

psychiatrist, a consultant psychiatrists for ODR program. It was one of the most 

transformative experiences I had in mental health and what was so transformative 

about it, was the flexibility, and versatility. And lack of red tape. And how urgent the 

movement of people from jails to a community setting was. And as a Black man, I was 

really struck by seeing so many Black men receiving treatment and in this type of a 

setting. And really like nothing I seen before -- in terms of residential setting and terms 

of beds being available. I think all of us know that beds are a huge priority for the whole 

county. And there are no beds that are more difficult than people who are justice 

involved. And have have substance abuse problems. And Mental Health problems, and 

I'm very concerned that we are going to delay the impact that ODR has. I want to try to 

move this amendment along. I think much of the community has been made aware of 

ODR through the department of health services and DMH. Because many DMH 

programs have had interlocking relationships with ODR. So I just want to suggest that 

we move this as quickly as possible. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. I have not heard 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

324 | Page 

anything from -- at least directly from any commissioner suggesting there be a delay. In 

fact I think all of us want to move it as quickly as possible. So we have motion and 

friendly amendment. So to speak friendly amendment, and we have a call for the vote. 

Commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to make sure Brittany 

Weissman was your hand up, or one of your beautiful flowers. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Let 

me go back and check, I thought I got to everyone with their hands raised. >> 

COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: My hand was not raised but I do wonder about the 

amendment number 1 and the delay item. I don't know if we're going to wait until May 

to approve this or today with the amendments. I don't understand. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Commissioner Acebo my understanding that we would be approving today 

with the amendments to come back with these items at our full commission meeting in 

May. Is that correct. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: That is correct. To commissioner 

Weissman comments. Commissioner Weissman it's consistent with the 30-day clock, 

that community input is needed under MSHA verified by the county counsel. So 

everything is in alignment to come back, both community input in this information as 

well, and that's why it was written as such. Does that help commissioner Weissman. >> 

COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: I'm afraid nod. That would mean if we're not approving 

today. If we accept your amendment we are not approving today is that correct, >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: The language says that, that it's subject to the following, right, 

but it's subject to a 30 day clock which is already consistent with the community input, 

okay. Because it can not happen, at least according to county counsel, as spoken that 

the funding can not be allocated or approved by the board is supervising an 

amendment, until a 30 day process occurs, and I'm following that process. . >> 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I'm just going to jump in. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go ahead. I 

see your hand raised. Thank you commissioner Stevens. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I 

don't know what it is. But I am not embracing the first amendment. I believe it's going 

to bog us down, and delay things for us. And I'm really concerned about that. Let's a 

look at it, this very first one. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: Can I make a suggestion that 

we bifurcate the amendments, quite a bit on. Also we can pass this motion. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: We have the amendment and the wording of the motion. Has I just want to 

go back if I'm wrong, please correct me, my understanding is that we have the motion 

we have the amendment, and we hadagreement from the makers of the motion to the 

amendment, is that correct? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Point of clarification Madam 

Chair. Is there a second to the amendment that is on the floor. >>MIKE MOLINA: Second. 

No, this is Molina. I made it. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I'm not trying to close 

comments off. If there is no more comments, everyone should vote as they see fit. And 

move on to the motion as is. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I have procedural comment, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
325 | Page 

we didn't really accept it, we were discussing it. I would suggest that we bifurcate the 

pieces. No matter what happens if we pass this motion today they still have to do the 

30 day, it doesn't preclude mhsaa process, we must do it. There's no question of that. . 

>> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Madam Chair. >> May I try. >> COMMISSIONER MOLINA: 

There is no delay. No delay. No delay. These are report backs to our next commission 

meeting on the details relative to this issue. There is no delay for our commission to 

move on this motion today. Beauty of the report backs, is that there's a 30 day period 

anyway as designated by statute,so we have to go through the 30-day community 

period. But our action today there is absolutely no delay. The amendments call for 

report back at future meeting. We can act on the motion today, and the amendments 

will in no way delay what the spirit of the motion does. Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS: Going back to the very first one, if that's the case, then why is it necessary, 

why is the language necessary, if we know that by law, we have to do the 30 day period. 

And I'm just going to be honest with you, I am so unafraid when I am uncertain about 

something and something doesn't feel right, I don't have a problem saying it. And so I 

need this to click for me, because as far as what I'm reading here, and we all know, and 

it was already stated that by law, we have to do the 30-day period. Okay, I'm with that. 

But the language in the first amendment, why is it necessary? Why aren't we just asking 

for the report back, we already know they're going to report back to us. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Commissioner Acebo. I understand what commissioner Stevens concern is, 

and so I'm going back to Commissioner Acebo on amendment one. >> COMMISSIONER 

ACEBO: Madam Chair and members, if you read each amendment they talk about issues 

that have been raised in the entire hearing. And by commissioners. And I think that it's 

information, and I think that information does not delay the intent of the motion. Now, 

if there are commissioners that still feel the amendments are not agreeable, they have 

the right to vote up or down. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: So we could be taking each one of 

these amendment separately. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: That's not the intent. I 

introduced them as whole. They have whole as one amendment, they are not 

separated. And not bifurcation. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right, that's exactly my 

question. >> Point of order I did call for the question, people can vote it down if we want 

to, but should be taking the vote. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: Point of order the motion 

was amended by commissioner Weissman amendment. And so the amendment we're 

voting on is what commissioner Acebo said, and what commissioner Weissman said 

together. And that's an up or down vote, and then we vote on the whole motion as 

amended if that passes, or without amendment if it doesn't. >> I requested not to 

supplant funds as an amendment. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Unaccepted. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: We have... we have commissioner Cooperberg who has called the question. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

326 | Page 

We are moving to a role call vote. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Would like a restatement at this 

time. Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Madam Chair should I try to read it, and 

that it also includes commissioner Weissman and commissioner Austria's comments. 

Would you like me to do that Madam Chair. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Proceed please 

commissioner Acebo. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: [2:41 p.m.] Kevin M. Acebo (Guest). 

The recommendation regarding ODR MHSA funding be subject to the following: 

Amendment #1: The Department of Mental Health report back to the Commission on 

Mental Health at its May 2022 meeting with recommendations on how the ODR-DMH 

MOU “operational pieces” can enhance reimbursements such as Medi-CAL and other 

state and federal funding. Amendment #2: The Department of Mental Health report 

back to the Commission on Mental Health Commission at its May 2022 with 

recommendations on enhancing client/mental health outcome data from ODR. 

Amendment #3: The Department of Mental Health report back to the Commission on 

Mental Healthat its May 2022 meeting as to what category the ODR funding will be 

allocated and what, if any, specific MHSA state requirements need to be addressed 

regarding the allocation. Amendment #4: The recommendation for ODR MHSA funding 

be subject to 30 day community input hearing. Commissioner Weissman added that the 

budget amount request would be reported back on regular intervals to the mental 

health commission, the Board of Supervisors. DMH that metrics and outcomes for the 

investment be shared and data sharing across departments, with the public. . >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: And commissioner Austria wanted to make sure any of the 

funds -- any funds are not supplanting the MHSA25 million. I think that covers. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you very much. And in no way is this meant in anyway to delay the 

implementation. Role call vote. Please proceed with the vote. >> Before we vote are we 

voting on those amendments together or bifurcating it. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: I 

believe we're voting on the amendments super visor Friedman. That was the motion 

and seconded with the friendly added. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Do you understand 

Commissioner Friedman. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I'm going back. I'm sorry. This is 

a learning curve. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH:... to move ahead. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: 

Well... >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: It sounds to me your concern commissioner Stevens is the 

delay. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to go back to Brittany, and her... can you 

repeat Brittany's. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Yeah, I put it in the chatbox. My only 

request In addition to the original motion is a Budget for requested amount, report 

backs at regular intervals to MHC, BOS, DMH, metrics and outcomes for the investment, 

data sharing across Depts and with public. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I'm not hearing 

Commissioner Weissman. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: You didn't hear her? >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: I didn't hear her just now. If you can repeat -- I heard you list your 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
327 | Page 

amendments, I didn't hear any comment from you that came after listing those 

amendments. >> COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: I didn't make a comment. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: That explains why I didn't hear you. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I'm still 

uncomfortable. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: The question has been moved, we should 

vote on the amendment, that's where we stand. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: Wait a 

minute, didn't see Supervisor Mitchell. >> She has her hand. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I 

understand that. I haven't herd from you each time we asked about calling, just want to 

make sure you are there. >> Yes. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Supervisor Mitchell. >> 

Supervisor Mitchell: I respect you call for the question, ignore my hand. I was going to 

reply to commissioner Weissman, but I'll do it after the vote on the amendment, thank 

you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Role call vote please. >> Commissioner Friedman: Yes. >> 

COMMISSIONER ROOT: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: No. >> COMMISSIONER 

AUSTRIA: No. >> Commissioner Barber: No. >> COMMISSIONER BANKO: No. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Yes. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER MOLINA: Aye. >> 

COMMISSIONER COOPERBERG: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER SCHALLERT: Aye. >> 

COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Yes. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Supervisor Mitchell. >> 

Supervisor Mitchell: No. The amendment passes with 8 yeses and 5 no's. The 

amendment carries. >> ROOT: I move the question as to the amended motion. >> 

COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Second. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Root moved the question and 

who was the second? >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Acebo. >> >> Discussion? >> 

Supervisor Mitchell. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Supervisor Mitchell, did you have your hand 

up about this. I didn't lower it, I know you were going to speak with commissioner 

Weissman. I lowered it previously, it's my understanding that the commissioner 

Weissman amendments were not taken in the first set of amendments we just voted 

on. So I was going to offer if those amendments failed and I did not support them. Then 

I accept commissioner Weissman amendments, but it's my understanding that 

commissioner Weissman amendments were not included in the first set of 

amendments, so since those passed I don't know how you want to do that Madam Chair. 

>> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Point of clarification. I accepted Commissioner Wiseman's 

Amendment additions to the First Amendment well I was, I was looking at the 

amendments. >> Supervisor Mitchell: Well, I was I was looking at the amendments that 

were since the amendments were flying kind of fast and loose, let me say that. And so 

when I was attempting to follow what was submitted in chat I didn't see them, because 

those amendments I, it's unfortunate that the amendments word bifurcated I would like 

to support it, some of them, I still don't support the 30 day delay I think it is going to be 

a problem. I appreciate you not choosing to do so. So I thought I was trying to pick up 

commissioner Weissman amendments, thank you Madam Chair allowing to get 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

328 | Page 

clarification. >> We did pick up Kathleen's amendment as well about supplementation. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Super visor Mitchell, did you hear what commissioner Weissman 

said. >> Supervisor Mitchell: I was clear about that. And I was clear about that and again 

my statement was bifurcated I would love to have support at some of those. The reason 

I was a no vote was because they weren't bifurcated and I don't support the first 

amendment as it was submitted in the chat. . That's why it was a no vote I appreciate 

somewhere accepted, but without the bifurcation, I couldn't support the motion >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: I understand. Thank you. All right, I see no other hands up, although 

I thought I might have seen Yolanda Vera raising her hand physically. All right, moving 

forward. I see Commissioner Austria agreeing with Supervisor Mitchell. All right. I lost 

part of my screen so... Let me see here. >> Madam Chair, you don't have any hands up. 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right, thank you very much. Moving forward we have a first, 

second, discussion. Commissioner Acebo. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: [Muted]. The 

question was called -- the motion was moved and seconded, and so that's what is on 

the floor right now Madam Chair. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes, and we had discussions so 

we're moving to a roll call vote. Hurd, please. >> CANETANA HURD: Commissioner 

Friedman. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: Yes. >> CANETANA HURD: Commissioner 

Root. >> COMMISSIONER ROOT: Aye. >> CANETANA HURD: Commissioner Stevens. >> 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: Aye. >> CANETANA HURD: Commissioner Austria. >> 

Commissioner Austria: Aye. >> CANETANA HURD: Commissioner Barbour. >> 

Commissioner Barbour: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER BANKO: Aye. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Aye. >> COMMISSIONER ACEBO: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER MOLINA: Aye. >> 

COMMISSIONER COOPERBERG: Aye. >> COMMISSIONER SCHALLERT: Aye. >> 

COMMISSIONER WEISSMAN: Yes. >> CANETANA HURD: Are these the amendments or 

motion. >> Supervisor Mitchell: To the motion as amended. Motion as amended passed 

with unanimous vote. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you everyone, I just want to pause 

and thank you all for your involvement, and thank our commissioners who came 

forward with the motion from Supervisor Mitchell's office. And want to thank the 

Supervisor for being with us as well. This is the first time in my history on the commission 

when we have had our Supervisor with us, thank you for being here, it's an honor to 

have worked together. Let's move forward now with public comment. >> 

COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I have my hand up. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I'm sorry, just a 

second. Let me go back here to hands. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I personally want 

to -- >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go ahead. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: I want to thank 

everyone here. All the commissioners. But I want to say something. And I say this as a 

person with lived experience. One who has been dedicated and committed to systems 

change, who have been attending on a regular basis, the Mental Health Commission 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
329 | Page 

since 2008. And I never experienced a motion being brought forth: but I think it's 

important for me to also highlight something I noticed here. There is robust discussion, 

and amendments made, and votes taken around this particular motion that would truly 

change many lives. But I ask us to pay attention to ourselves, because as we move 

forward it is my hope that we will challenge, or that we will address concerns on every 

level when it comes to what is happening and what the Department of Mental Health is 

doing even after Dr. Sherin exhibits. I also want to bring to our attention that it's been 

brought to us about W Mental Health Centre. Which is directly operated clinic that 

belongs to the Department of Mental Health operates. And yes there has been little ask 

or little push to ensure the quality of those folks's lives are secured. And I just wanted 

to highlight that. I truly from my whole heart thank you thank you for us moving forward 

with this motion. But I hold myself and each and every one of us accountable as we 

move forward to challenge and to question. Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank 

you, Commissioner Stevens. Thank you. Seeing no other hands raised let's move to 

public comment, AT&T operator. >> Operator: Thank you, ladies and gentlemen, once 

again, if you have a public comment, please press 1, 0, to get into the queue. Repeating 

the 1, 0 demand will remove from you the queue. Please limit your comments. Our first 

comment will come from Ezekiel Riez. >> Sorry, the time? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: One 

minute, please. >> The time, 1 minute or two minutes? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: How many 

callers do we have. >> Operator: 3 currently in the queue. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 2 

minutes each and then we'll move on. Thank you. Mr. Raiz please proceed. >> I sent in 

a diagram to the Commission. It's a study of little more than 100 people. By asking 

general questions about food an individual can gain insight into how quick or developing 

different stages of mental disorders. The diagram shows for questions that intensify 

emotion felt. Amplifying stress for our homeless, the numbers represent the scenarios 

played out in an individual's mind simultaneously. The higher the number the more 

unstable the individual becomes. With the lack of food patterns form, developed form 

rapidly to adjust. While those that are housed feel that housing is detrimental to a 

Homeless Person's cognitive stability. Housing is it would be third or fourth on the list. 

This can be see how many people would rather stay homeless than move in doors, issues 

higher up on the list is food, water, stereotypes, and then safe place to sleep. As 

struggles fashion the next steps for those experiencing homelessness in order to adapt 

when was fine the repetition, and the struggles and the because of the barrage of issues 

faced. Repetitions formulated comprised of hunger, than need to find clean water, 

stereotypes, and a safe place to sleep and developing patterns of fear, depression and 

worry. I know many of you dealing with homelessness as a race against timebut helping 

our homeless needs to start from the basics. Because the lack of the lack of basic needs, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

330 | Page 

drives people think, to thinking through their situation hastily causing confusion. 

Starting late to help the homelessness hinders their opportunity to move on down the 

line. Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> Operator: Thank you, line 43 please 

go ahead. >> Charlene Newhouse: Charlie Newhouse My telephone number is 424-370-

6948. I've been searching for homeless assistance in the form of like some type of 

housing in Los Angeles County. Attempted to registerer with the homelessness service 

provider for several months. Almost a year now, and I have not been successful. And if 

L is filled to capacity Dr. Sherin can the department of mental health step in to help 

provide housing for my family and I? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. Dr. Sherin isn't 

on the line. Do we have someone from the department who can take this call at this 

time, John? >> JOHN FLYNN: I'm checking to see if Robert is here from OCFS. I do not 

see him. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: You took the phone number though. Do you have the 

phone number. Would you please take care, or another member of staff please take 

care of connecting this caller to the department. >> JOHN FLYNN: Caller could you please 

repeat the phone number. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Why don't we take her offline, and get 

the phone number, so it doesn't have to be said again publicly, because of privacy 

reasons, thank you, caller. And yes, we have one more. And then we have our Spanish 

interpreters hand it up. Alex is this something you need to say now before we continue? 

Are you having a problem with interpretation. >> No, just waiting in queue we have one 

person with a comment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Fine, thank you. Go ahead. ATAT 

operator first, and then from our Spanish language line, please, thank you. >> Operator: 

Thank you. Line 37, please go ahead. >> Is that me? >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes. >> 

Operator: Yes. >> Rick PULIDO: . Rick Pulido here. Grassroots longtime advocate for the 

families and for our loved ones here from Nami, I just want to say, Namiwe're having 

our NAMI walks, May 21st. Here at Grant Park at 830 Dris Sherin is going to be there as 

one of his fair wells. To help stamp out the stigma and to work with NAMI walks in, in 

being the strongest and the biggest, grassroots Mental Health agency in the world. I'd 

like to also say thank you to the commissioners for passing the motion today ODR and 

especially to our honorable Holly Mitchell who's always been the forefront for jails and 

folks that don't have a voice. And appreciate all her hard work, and all the 

commissioners and all the supervisors Hilda and Janice, and all the rest, want to say, 

keep up the great work, and he with have a lot of work to go ahead of us this year. With 

the pandemic, want to make sure we address, and making sure our peers, we get to 

their homes, and unhoused this year. And mobile, DMH vans we're doing, and very, very 

useful. And working harder to make sure our loved ones are taken care of 

comprehensively, with job opportunities for those in full recuperation. And with 

outpatient treatment, I believe that's the key right now. >> Operator: 30 seconds. >> 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
331 | Page 

Rick Pulido: And want to say if you can, please commissioners if you can make sure you 

get out to all the SALT meetings. I know that the term chairperson, a few others always 

get out, we appreciate your words of wisdom, and we look forward to working closely 

this up program year. I'm going to be turning out this year so I just want you to know 

that it's been a pleasure being a co Chairman out here at Salt seven. Being innovators 

with the podcast, but the peer resource centers, and withthe things we're doing now. 

Thank you god bless you and see you later. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you for your 

efforts, and commitment Mr. Pulido thank you. Spanish line please. >> LOZANO: I belong 

to the district that belongs to... and I'm talking about Supervisor Mitchell as well as 

Commissioner Stevens. They have done a great deal today for our community. I truly 

hope they continue doing this. Because they themselves have not only the tools, but 

they are helping to heal our community. And I hope that more Supervisors come forth 

to the commission meetings because we're doing really good work. I congratulate you 

all for what you have done today, and for saying "yes". >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Was that 

the end. >> Yes, that was the end of her comment. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Mucho Gracis. 

Let's move forward on the agenda. At this time, we're moving to item 8. The mental 

health services annual update for fiscal year 2020 to 23, public hearing. Thank you. Go 

ahead, . >> GREG POLK: Thank you. Thank you, Madam. Madam Chair, thank you guys 

who's participating in 2020 Next slide please. . >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I'm not seeing the 

slides. If you are, I'll work it out. Thank you. >> GREG POLK: Yeah, as I was saying the 

purpose of the annual update, want to lay out what the purpose is. Obviously back in 

November 2004, prop 63 passed. 1% income tax on personal income in excess of a 

million dollars. Act provides for significant funding to expand services around the public 

Mental Health system and improve the quality of individuals living with Mental Health. 

A code that supports this. WIC code. An 847 which requires county Mental Health 

programs are submitted three year plan and expenditure plan followed by an annual 

updates and MSA programs or procedure. This provides a lot of opportunities to review 

current existing MHSA programs and services and allows us the opportunity to evaluate 

the effectiveness of the services. To incorporate any new programs, described in the 3 

year plan is also part of the requirement. And we gather fee back from stakeholders, 

and we try to have robust community planning process, and stakeholder process. 3 year 

plan, that we're speaking of. Is for fiscal years 2021, 24, adopted by the board, June 22, 

2021. Next slide, please. And another review of components, there is major 

components, talking about funding of MSHA. And largest, is CSS community services and 

supports, and second largest component and prevention and early intervention, 

referred to as PEI, about 19%. And component of work force and education and training, 

the WET budget, we have innovation, 5% of the budget, and capital facilities and 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

332 | Page 

technological needs component. Next slide, please. Annual update, and talk about the 

presentation, overview. And we're going to talk about COVID impact on mental health 

services. And huge focus on disparities I know in the past with conversations with the 

commission, a lot of focus on disparities and we want to make sure that we address 

that. MHSA client accounts. I think there is a lot of interest in client counts, by SPA's, 

and tried to address that. And overall increase and decrease, and talking about 

proposed changes year to year. And big piece of the presentation, and community 

planning process, I know there is a lot of conversation about robust community planning 

process, and what we done, and make sure we include the stakeholders as required by 

statute. So we're going to talk about that as well. Community feedback you know, we 

have some information based on community feedback from some of our plans. Next 

slide please. Impact on meantal health service, obviously, there was an increase in 

demand for Mental Health services due to the stress and isolation of the population, as 

it resulted to COVID-19 increase housing and economic prosperity to communities of 

color that we found out there is significant capacity shortage for Mental Health services 

and health safety nets to meet the needs of those vulnerable you will, there's a huge 

challenge of getting not only for the department but the whole mental health system 

nationwide. That was a huge impact, and another widespread of COVID infection rates. 

Temporary and permanent business and clinic closures. Now, we got out of that and 

hopefully we don't we don't fall back into that. And pandemic, and delta and omicron 

variants. Hown improvement and accountability to control the infection and 

hospitalizations, and to provide social services economic help to go to those in need, 

next slide, please. Focus on disparities, I'll pass this on to the assistant director, Debbie, 

Gins sburg to talk about this one. >> Debbie Ginsburg: Thank you, Greg. This slide really 

reflects an update to what we talked about last year. And that was the focus on 

disparities and the different ways that we're trying to address disparities. And so the 

first thing I wanted to report on. >> GREG POLK: Can we move to the next slide. >> 

Debbie: There we go. Awesome. The multicounty learning collaborative is the first thing 

I wanted to report on in terms of our progress. We are -- as you may remember, Solano 

county approached us last year about joining a multi county Learning Collaborative, that 

would focus on specific cultural communities, and reducing disparities within those 

communities. It took the Oversight and Accountability Commission and Sacramento a 

little while to approve the contract between UC Davis, and OAC funding this learning 

collaborative. But I'm happy to say it starts next month, and I think this will be super 

helpful to us, and very community driven, in fact the communities and under served 

cultural community groups, will be the ones identify identify the communities we will 

focus on in Los Angeles County, we'd be very interested in your input as well. The second 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
333 | Page 

thing is sexual orientation and gender identity, and being able to identify clients sexual 

orientation and gender identity and match of courseto appropriate services for that 

population, and being able to report on that. We have made significant progress in the 

last year around this. In part, the California initiative. Cal-Aim has compelled each 

county, to really adopt federal standards around this and we work with our electronic 

health record, net smart to be able to input that into our, and then to create what's 

called a web service for the contractors that have different electronic health records. So 

we will probably probably by the middle two are closer to the end of this calendar year 

will be able to report out on the number of clients from different gender identity and is 

sexual orientations and providing comprehensive training around this as well. Because 

we know that's super important. And then finally services for clients with disabilities, 

we focused on two areas here. And the first one is the reporting on clients who, who 

say that their primary language is American Sign Language. We now are reporting on 

that in the annual update, and so far, point 03% of clients we have been searching report 

that as are their primary language, and second thing I wanted to report out on is using 

technology to be able to improve our services for the Deaf and hard of hearing 

community, and through our access center, our help line, we're now able to use 711 as 

opposed to the really antiquated TTyTTD service that we had before. Those are updates 

to three I think very key areas that we had all talked about last year. I'll pass it back to 

Greg. >> GREG POLK: Thank you, Debbie. One of the things we want to talk about is the 

programs and the amount of client that we serve, unique clients we serve as well as new 

clients served. So this slide depicts, this is community services and supports, which is 

76% of our allocation. And some of the programs that false under CSS is the service 

partnership, referred to as FSP, out patient care services, alternative crisis services. Our 

housing, linkage, and we call POE, planning out reach and engagement. I think it's 

important to note in fiscal year 2021 we had about 135,000 new unique clients receive 

direct service, and what we try to show is ethnicity and primary language break down, 

and 37% his span,ic, and 20% African American, and 18% white, and 5% Asian pacific 

islander, and 1% native American. Primary language was English with second with 

Spanish second of the 135,000 unique clients there was about 35,000 new client service 

from with no previous images say service. And so when you look at the ethnicity 

breakdown it's 36% Hispanic 14% African American, and 16% white, and 3API and less 

than half a percent, native American, and primary language, 77% English, and 14% 

Spanish. I know when we had other conversations with the commission, we talked 

about service areas, how does this impact service areas. What are the numbers around 

each Service Area, so we try to show here that the information that I showed before by 

Service Area. So if you look at client data by Service Area, number of clients served. 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

334 | Page 

About 25,000 clients served, followed by San Fernando Service Area 2. And of that, 5900 

new clients served. And of the 25,000 in Service Area 4 about 6,000 new clients. Next 

slide please. Second largest piece is prevention and early intervention. 19% of total 

MHSA allocation. And focus on early intervention, education, suicide prevention, and 

stigma and discrimination reduction. We talk about unique clients, 42,000 received 

direct service. When you talk about ethnicity break down, there is a shift we saw from 

CSS. Hispanic 45%, 9% African American, 9% white, and 2% API and 1% native American, 

and primary language, 76% English, and 21% Spanish. And again, of that 42,000, it was 

23,000 new clients, with no previous MHSA experience, and the train of ethnicity 

remained the same and primary language consistent as well. Next slide. And again we 

want to break it down by Service Area. You see here, the largest Service Area was the 

San Gabriel valley. 835,000. It's quite interesting in that area about 6400 new clients to 

get the second largest area being against SanFernando 6800 I'm sorry, new client makes 

like I was saying because you know this is where we want to talk about some of the 

things that we're changing, and I let Robert Byrd of our staff speak to this, this is around 

and changes in the proposal. . >> Good afternoon, one of the recommended changes 

we're proposing is continue the innovations 2 project, but funding it with prevention 

and early intervention dollars. With a budget of 29, 520,000. The innovations to project 

really centers around community capacity building with the goal of increasing 

awareness of an understanding of and then identifying and supporting trauma. And 

identifying and supporting community members at risk of trauma, or potentially getting 

experiencing trauma. The project utilized assets within communities to really test 

strategies that allow local communities to work together in ways to lead to improved 

mental health and reductions in trauma through building on shared community values, 

and leadership development, and community membership empowerment. In June of 

2020, DMH integrated community mental health workers, or what are... better known 

as community ambassadors into the innovations 2 project, the concept of the 

community ambassadors, really leverages existing networks within a trusted 

community based providers and organizations. So we have the right people in the right 

place at the right time to provide necessary resources to community members who are 

in need. The outcomes for this have been pretty strong, and, you know, warrant the 

continuation of the project. As I said one of the primary role of the community 

ambassador is to provide out reach education to the community, and particularly during 

the last two years, some of that around COVID-19 and wellness, and awareness of 

resources and supports within the community. There were over 10,000 community 

events. Out reach and social media posts, reaching 560,000 community members. 

18,000 meals provided. Nearly 10,000 individuals vaccinated for COVID-19. And PPE was 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
335 | Page 

provided to nearly 14,000 individuals. The community ambassadors themselves 

demonstrated a stronger understanding of the relationship between trauma, and 

mental health. Acknowledged significant improvements in their own resilience, and 

improved ability to cope to stress, and able to share that to the community members 

they were interacting. In addition, over the past year there were 29,000, almost 30,000 

linkages to community resources and support. 93% of those were successful. That 

means people took the referral or linkage, and followed through with it. Pretty strong 

statement for the work the community ambassadors are doing, and the trust the 

community members have in the ambassadors. We can go to the next slide. >> GREG 

POLK: Just to add what Robert said there, the biggest Chang was the integration tool 

with an innovation project that ran it's course, and the outcomes were so great, and we 

decided to recommend funding it using PEI dollars. Next changes around Hollywood 2.0. 

And we have Dr. Dr. B to give us an update on what we're doing here. >> GREG POLK: I 

think Dr. B is with us. >> Sorry, I'm not seeing Dr. B on the list. >> GREG POLK: I'll take it. 

Hollywood 2.0, moving that forward. That's been a huge point of conversation with the 

third district. Supervisors really helping us move this right along. Some of the things 

we're talking about, key characteristics we want to speak to. Holistic, human centred, 

hospitality oriented and it's going to be carrying a community and as a lot of questions 

How does it differ from Truestay. Some of the reasons why I differ is it optimizes funding 

through full federal match voice the use of fiscal administrative intermediaries, expedite 

community planning processes by actively exploring available resources through 

philanthropic areas. Also avoid unnecessary technological electronic medical record 

investments key components, FSP. Full service partnership, we have home team one of 

the out reach teams. We have intensive out patient services team based. There is peer 

research, and clubhouse component, alternative crisis component here, and also 

housing, interim and permanent supporter congregate and enhanced residential, which 

we commonly refer to as boarding care services here. And then we always get the 

question why Hollywood right a large concentration of unhoused individuals suffering 

from serious brain, injury there. Also there's a strong coalition of local neighborhood 

businesses and faith leaders in government health care providers. And law 

enforcement, i e, the group Hollywood forward, that has a lot of impact and Hollywood 

and can make a lot of things happen. We talked about possibly Skid Row, but just the 

problem on skid row with just two challenging at this time and so we decided to move 

to the Hollywood area. Next slide, please. Cap facilitates. Requesting about $5 million 

for future and problem improvement projects. So there's a lot of problems with with 

our facilities and our infrastructure. So some of these dollars want to put a forth 

addressing improvement in our facilities. Next slide. Expansion and diverse related 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

336 | Page 

services. The board recommended a motion, just a motion we talked about today right 

here, and wanted to make sure we had something in here to kind of speak to this. So 

obviously motion by the commission today to dedicate funding for ODR. Obviously there 

was expansion of beds to expand beyond the 2200 beds capacity based ODR 

demonstrating success and reducing the number of incarcerated individuals with 

mental illness, and expand services to radical ethnic disparities reflected in the jail 

population, and recommended Chang allocate 25 million dollars we spoke of. Annual, 

July 2022. And this required a 30 day public posting in comment period, so thinking 

around May 15 or June 15th, that can always be adjusted. And we hadded added this 

slide so we reference this and the record reflects during the presentation we were 

aware of this. Next slide. Talking about budget projections here. When we presented in 

June 2021 we had what I consider an estimated actual. Basically what we thought would 

be spending at that time, and so wanted with presenting now -- updated numbers, and 

based on utilization, and this is showning each program, and share from last time, what 

the major changes, are CSS dropped about 33 million dollars, and PEI up 27. And 

innovation, and down 15 million. And you see about 68 million in Cap facilities. Next 

slide. Please. Here we talk about each individual program, and kind of some notes as to 

why the shift, you look at the full service partnership, decreasing about 2.8 million, the 

whole purpose of this is mainly due to the pandemic, and difficulties in retaining staff, 

offset by allocation of flexible housing subsidy pool for housing vouchers, so the main 

reduction here was related to the pandemic, as you see a lot of them have pandemic 

impact. Out patient care services dropped about 67 million dollars in projection, due to 

the pandemic and again, difficulties in restaining staff. ACS. There was increase in ACS, 

reflects the cost of crisis residential treatment program, and increase there. And 

pending an out reach engagement and wasn't an opportunity to get out and have 

engage face to face engagement, pandemic impact there. And linkage services 

increased due to current utilization, and housing and administrative cost, driven by the 

amount of money you spend as percentage, as the spending goes down and 

administrative cost goes down, and all impacted by the pandemic. Next slide, please. 

Here we talk about prevention and early intervention, when you look at the stigma and 

discrimination reduction, really no Chang, pretty much on target what we talked about 

last time. Prevention, you see increase of about 6 million dollars, 6.9 million dollars of 

the last estimate, again, estimate from June 2021. March is about 9 months, and so... 

on the prevention side, 6.9. Reflect a lot of community promoters and I think we 

increased 311 postioonscommunity promoted to provide out reach engagement as well 

as one time extension to my health la agreement with DHS for Mental Health preventive 

services privately provided primary and the primary care setting. Early intervention was 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
337 | Page 

increase due to the pandemic again. Our recent increase in recognition of early signs of 

mental illness, huge increase, primarily because of the continued continuation of 

funding for the Lego project and LAUSD for community school initiatives, and a 

transition of innovation community capacity building project so funding to make sure 

we have impact in schools. And PEI administration had a small increase. Next slide, 

please. Innovation projects: -- bear with me one second. Innovation projects, innovation 

2 of the CANS program. There is no Chang there. Pretty much we had 14 million dollars 

consider CAN2. And CAN3, 6.3 million dollars. Transcranial magnetic stimulation center 

this is reflexive content what continuation of that project or 2022 23 at about $1.1 

million. . Increase in the therapeutic transportation program. You know, we we expand 

it to teams and a partnership with LA County, LA City Fire Department so that's under 

way. So cost there increase. O our call today to increase our early psycho Kosis Learning 

Health Net Health Care Network kind of keeps the continuation there at a 2020 for 2023. 

Some expenditures for having a 2.0 we expect to spend about 5.6 million 5.5 million 

there. Also innovation, administration goes along with expenditures spent. Next slide. 

Huge investment here. Work force investment and training, sorry, work force education 

and training, UCLA affiliation agreement we have. Our cost going down just a little bit. 

One-time services going away. Financial incentive programs, no change there. This is the 

loan repayment program that relates to loan repayments, and hopefully continue to 

increase that, and stipendeked program for that we will continue. No change to that for 

stipends. For MS W's and MFTs and nurse practitioners are child through affiliation 

agreement, small increase due to services and supplies for increase in services for the 

drew affiliation. 510,000 for science consultant for postdoc at Harvard UCLA, between 

your net program, and there's no change to what we anticipated our projections to be 

for bone health recovery specialist core training program. Interpreter training program, 

and Learning Net System. Next slide, please. And again here, just more WET programs 

and projections. And so increase in navigators 200,000 increase there. Resource parents 

training we see our projections pretty consistent as well as our prayer partner training 

and parent volunteers project. New one anneding is the peer focus training. 400,000 

dedicated to that. Projections as it relates to medical school affiliation with Harvard and 

UCLA medical school affiliation agreement MSSA there's pretty consistent with our 

anticipated spend and licensure program for expenditures. Cap facilities. 5 million 

dollars set aside to meet the goals of the mental health services to have our facilities up 

to para-and modernize that. And 5 million there. Call centre, 3.5 million of those, and 

projects still on target, and administration jumped up here, reflect Chang, and increase 

again, percentage of what we spend, so when we add 5 million there, there is 

percentage that administration can bill for. Next slide, please. Big conversation about 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

338 | Page 

the community planning process, I know Dr. Sherin has been a huge advocate for robust 

community planning process, and stakeholder process, and what we wanted to lay out 

here what we have done as it relates to this process. What our meeting dates and any 

activities that took place. To make sure and tried to ensure that we met that threshold 

of stakeholder process -- that robust stakeholder process we're trying to achieve. Key 

dates here, March 4th executive summery of the annual update posted on the DMH 

website, and obviously a couple days later, we posted a Spanish version of the executive 

summery, in the annual update, and posted to the DMH website for review, and March 

8th full version of the draft update posted on the website. To allow the 30 day public 

comment. And March 8, focus on disparity and is propose changes presented in full 

health commission, meeting attended by the CLT's underserved communities to sought 

for input and feedback on the 10th of March, a summary of a summary of the plan was 

presented to the executive committee of the Mental Health Commission for input and 

feedback. . April 26th, update presented to the health deputies on the 28th which is 

obviously today.plan presented for public hearing and sometime between May and 

June, present to the board for approval. Our next slide. Talk about some of the 

stakeholder feedback, in gathering that feedback and documenting stakeholder 

feedback, and 45 public comment peer, and obviously we mentioned it requires 30 days, 

we extended for 15 days, with online surveys open for March 3rd to April 19th and again 

try to get as much input as we could on this. 66 survey responses and 65 in English and 

Spanish, and it was 9 question survey, and not all respondents answered the questions, 

so we're just trying to gather information, and some of the stuff we gathered, self-

identified affiliation, respondents being clients or consumers, seven other responders 

are peers 13% of respondents are advocates. Now the 14 was an unresponsive or family 

members of clients and consumers. 5% government employees. And 6% of respondents 

are staff and employees, 17% are mental health service providers. And another 16% 

responders indicators other. We want to also capture the racial ethnicity breakdown of 

this feedback. And again, we got about 14% African American eight reported as Asian: 

24% Caucasian 20% Latin Latino 4% Mix multi ethnic 10% reported Native American or 

Indian American and Alaskan Native native and 14% reported other . Transcripts for 

discussion which portion of the stakeholder meetings were included like the CLTs and 

Mental Health Commission and excetera and emails and correspondence received. . 

Next slide, please. Want to lay out some of the responses and highlights of the current 

plans and we feel are some of the opportunities to improve the plan, some of the 

stakeholder feedback we got was the plant was finally run in a manner the stakeholder, 

in the general public can read and easily understand. And thought was positive 

feedback, and access to services to communities in need, expanded regular phone calls, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
339 | Page 

client and family members. That was response to feedback, and planned focus on 

objective to expand mental health services to ethnic and under served community and 

is thought this plan really reflects that. And the plan was very data-driven. And happy 

to see the continuation of the full service partnership program. And additional 

information on budget and spending, and providers and stakeholders were helpful for 

them to see. Not just on department spend, but what is the full revenue stream, and 

also got feedback on opportunities to improve. They felt that we need to focus on 

people SMI, and disable, and dual diagnosed and suffering in the opioid crisis, and 

obviously always a need for more beds and some of the opportunities for stakeholder 

feedback, we need to find more treatment beds or facilities, and wanted us to have 

more advocacy for family support and engagement, and wanted to see programs, to 

bridge, and show community members have access to the needed resources. So that 

was an opportunity that we need to take into consideration. A lot of requests for grant 

opportunities in open-bed solicitation. With restrictions targeting innovation, approach 

is to expand the direct Mental Health services mainly through CBOs and other areas like 

that. They felt we need to focus a little more on treatment services that identify for 

Mental Health disorders like rape trauma syndrome, intermediate Explosive Disorder, 

or children, children and teens. Autisms and behavior disorders like a lot more increased 

time for sharing the plan. You know, we try to make this a robust process as you see we 

increased it by 15 days to kind of address this issue. Here, just increased time for sending 

a plan and making follow up contact information available. . And one we found 

interesting, they thought the font was too small, so we need to make the font larger 

when we print our documents. Next slide. Some of the strategies, that were identified 

and how to respond to that. Continue to maintain multiple outlets to ensure the general 

public and stakeholder groups are aware of the mhsaa funded proposal but not only 

aware, of programs and activities but to engage in the CPPP so we will continue to 

expand that and make sure that that that being kind of in the forefront of what we do 

to get us as inclusive as we can be. . We'll continue to streamline document and is 

provide tables and summaries similar to what we did breaking down a lot of the 

information by SPA. And past meetings the commission wanted to have a little more 

deeper dive into how it impacted certain Service Area. And so we'll continue to try to 

do that. Not only from a client perspective, but as we talk about dollars, and trying to 

find a way, how to break down our dollars, and how do we allocate in certain areas, and 

certain spots, and geographic areas. And so, continual challenge for us, but we're going 

to get there. And access to address COVID, and barriers, and update, it's important to 

discuss where we struggle, around the impact of COVID-19. Not only on our clinic, but 

on our hiring, and our ability to gather work force, and retiring work force. I think we'll 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

340 | Page 

continue to report on that. And one of the things we're thinking about doing is providing 

monthly MHSA one on one training stakeholders, and UsCC and the commission. 

Anyone interested in the general public, interested in how MHSA is working and provide 

trainings around mental health providers and department staff. And DMH, to make sure 

everybody understands the process, the stakeholder process, and feedback process, 

and we try to incorporate everything for the commission, to inform the commission so 

they can vote in an informed manner. Incubation academies and other grant 

opportunities for CBOs. I think that this is one where I think we want to make sure that 

the And exploring funding opportunities and CBOs have an opportunity to be acquired, 

other process so you know keep an incubation category kind of training them about the 

county, processes and how you get a grant how you get a contract with the county, and 

what's required to be a grantee with the county and continue to work on those. We've 

entered into an agreement with nominee for three additional years to provide 

expanding training for family members across the county that's another thing that we're 

working on. And one of the things, seems small. We want to provide hard copies to 

stakeholder groups and the general public for all three year plans and annual updates 

you know it's a Herculean effort to print these documents and when you're talking 

1000s of documents of these large plans it's challenging, and providing in different 

languages, it gets tough, but we're going to try to make an effort to do that. And I think 

we want to continue to update our communication, and follow a process, as it relates, 

by having a mailbox, and receive input, and communication year round. And I just 

through a meeting through the commission, or update period, and year round, if there 

is input we need to take into consideration. We want to be able to do that. Next slide. 

Next steps, we complete public hearing April 28th. Which is today. We receive Mental 

Health Commission feedback and recommendations by May 14 You know there's 

another presentation to board deputies on June, 8,. And estimate trying to get the plan 

to board around June 28th. Next slide. Again, any contact information, or questions 

around the annual update, it can go to the stated email address, MHSA, admin at 

DMA.LA county.gov. And with that I thank you guys. Madam Chair. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. I have a couple questions, and as I see hands raised I'll go to other 

commissioners with questions. Thank you very much to you and to your staff. I have a 

question. Appreciate you giving us the information based on service areas, and 

demographics. I know that I've been asked about services and expenditures by 

supervisorial district. And since there's often overlap of service areas, and the numbers 

you know per service area don't line up the way that the supervisorial districts do where 

you have about 2 million people per district. I wonder if that's something that is available 

or can be available in the future. >> GREG POLK: That's something we're working on 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
341 | Page 

when we trying to figure out how to do that. The budget is not set up that way by 

supervisor district, it's overall county budget, so you have to collect that data in that 

format. So we're trying to change some of our data collection to make that available. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: Okay, and you also said you were going to do that in relation to 

stakeholder engagement and outreach, so assume you are continuing to do that and 

expect more detailed numbers on that. So we don't have people saying we're not 

spending money in those areas. >> GREG POLK: Absolutely. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: When 

do you think we would be able to see that. >> GREG POLK: We're trending that way. 

DMH has a lot of priorities, our finance staff and CFO does a good job responding not 

only the board, but to the commission, and had numerous conversations about that, 

and hopefully in the next 6 months we can have something that he we can break down. 

Key is that we budget that way, and challenging to take -- huge, larger than that. Huge 

budget like this. And try to flip it into the another way of reporting out. And it's a 

challenge, but I think we can get there. I think we have some ideas on how we could do 

this. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I understand it's a challenge, and also part of MHS mandate, 

when it says 5%, and people are asking about numbers, and we're not showing numbers 

that are relative to measure it, it's important that we prioritize that so we can come 

back to people, and that you can come back to the Commission with those too. So I 

know that we have been talking about having reports from you on an on going basis. 

Even an monthly basis, so we'll continue moving toward that. >> GREG POLK: Yep. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: I also had a question. You were talking about Hollywood 2.0, or Treisa 

project. And the new formation. I'm wondering about funding for that and how much 

you are allocated toward it. It's a pretty robust plan, or it was. And I don't know if it's 

been paired down, or how you are planning on funding it so it's successful. >> GREG 

POLK: When the project was approved, allocation of 116 million dollars, that allocation 

hasn't changed. The only thing that changed was Triase to Hollywood 2.0. But the 

allocation of funding has not changed. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: How much has expended. 

>> GREG POLK: I think in the chart, it was 5 million. >>STACY WILLIAMS: You are 

anticipating. I'm wondering how much has been extended. >> GREG POLK: I don't have 

that number. We put in the presentation, what we expect to spend this year. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: If you don't have it right now. >> GREG POLK: We can report back what year 

to date we spent. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I've been sending some questions to staff that 

I want to have answers to. And one of them relates to the CAF. And how much are we 

spending on CAF. And how many people are receiving CAF money. And has there been 

a problem with that? Because, we certainly have seen a drop in attendance to our 

meetings. I know that in part, some people used to attend, because they were receiving 

CAF it's important for us to be able to continue to get that stakeholder input, and 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

342 | Page 

anything that can be done to increase that participation is very important to us. From 

what I understand CAF hasn't been increased over decades. And so I think that's 

something to be looked at from the perspective of what need is. And so more people 

know about it and are using it so they're attending our meetings and making public 

comment. So I would like your commitment to working on that and further discussion 

about how much it should be. But if you know how much it is right now, that you are 

spending on CAP or have spent over the last fiscal year, I would like to know that. >> 

GREG POLK: I don't know that number in my head, a lot of expenditures, we have, but 

what I can say is that Madam Chair that I understand the commission the Commissioner 

is requesting us to do and we'll make sure we make the effort to do that and report 

back. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Okay, I'm keep coming back to you on that. Thank you. I 

appreciate that. And then in regards to FSP. We hear from people who aren't having 

great experiences with FSP, and I'm just curious what kind of monitoring there is that is 

done with the FSP providers from the department on quality control or outcome? >> 

GREG POLK: We have a contract monitoring unit, they're tasked with making sure that 

not only the numbers are right when you talk about budget, but also quality of care, I 

think we have robust unit that works on that. And so I would say that, by Terry Boykins 

and she does a great job, ensuring the programs adhere to what we expect from a 

quality perspective, and financial perspective. So there are quality controls in place. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: All right, I'll come back to you on that too so we can be -- I would like 

to be more clear, so I have answers as well. So I'm going to open it up to other questions 

right now. Thank you, again. And Commissioner Austria, please. >> COMMISSIONER 

AUSTRIA: Hi, I just wanted to follow-up on one of Stacy's questions, and that was 

breaking it down by district. I know I was able to get that in the distant past, prior to, I 

think Greg coming over to DMH. But we received it by, facility, and added that up. And 

nonprofit, contracts as well as directly operator, and looked at position status report, 

and able to come up with a... >> GREG POLK: Yeah, I think we had a conversation about 

that, you and I, about how did we do that in the past. >> GREG POLK: And one of the 

things, research back how they did that. And make sure we can align it the same way, 

based on how we budget now. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: I know they used to do it 

by the head of that, like pacific clinics was in the 5th district, and looked like there was 

more budget over there. But it was actually spread through the county, just making sure 

it's done properly. >> GREG POLK: I think that's a good example, you take pacific clinics, 

and they may have clinics all over the county. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: Break it 

down by each facilities and staffing, and status report on vacancies and all that good 

stuff. The other question is MHSAA reserves. Which we haven't really spoken very 

specifically about. So I'm wondering exactly how much because I've heard like 350 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
343 | Page 

million 200 million. And also, how do we engage with the Commission in developing a 

plan to spend reserves, this is money there. We know there is. We had a motion today, 

which in the scheme of things isn't that much money, but a lot of money in some ways. 

And so, how can we do that. >> GREG POLK: Obviously the commission at any time can 

request and update on MHSA and discussion about how to ex-spend those dollars, and 

Dr. Sherin has been pretty clear, about the anticipation and ex-pentations to get rid of 

fund you know, our fund balance started in July won about close to a billion dollars you 

know, we bring in about 600 700 million a year. So you know when you think about and 

I expenditure up to about 700 million a year. So we think about a billion dollar fund 

balance is not a lot is probably 7,8,9 months in the hole . So any time we downsize, we 

have to have available funding. We can't take clients on day one. And we see our 

revenue streams going down and just say hey, guess what, you guys got to leave so we 

have to have the ability to downsize now, what's the correct amount of fund balances 

is six months is it a year. Is it less than that or more than that. That's a conversation we 

have to have as a Commission, as a county. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: Right, and I 

think it's prudent to have prudent reserve, and rainy day fund. But we also need to make 

sure people are getting services and so finding that balance is, I think a discussion we 

should have just to say a lot of that fund balance. >> GREG POLK: To remind the 

commission a lot of fun balances one time money. Right. And so when you deal with 

one time when you need to spend one time money on one time type of activities that 

you can, you can set yourself up for a structural deficit right. So have to keep that in 

mind. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: Yeah, we have to have a deeper conversation with 

budget as we move along. Not just MHSAA budget, but the DMH budget overall. And 

again, we know again staffing is another issue that has been a challenge for DMH. And 

want to know, what are we doing, again, to ensure -- I see the WET program working on 

it. But what are we doing really specifically to get people hired. And also understand, 

I'm getting a number of reports from staff in the field about, you know, ability to hire or 

promotions, they're sitting on desks for weeks at a time, and HR is why hasn't it moved 

off the desk, because somebody hasn't signed it, and quite a few signatures required, 

to get somebody hired or promoted. And I'm getting blowback on making sure people 

are signing off on those in a timely way. >> GREG POLK: It's funny that you mentioned 

that. Sent out a memo around hiring, first of all to dismiss this notion that the 

department is not hiring on or a hiring freeze. We're trying to hire as fast as anybody 

else. There is definitely a shortage of the work force in this department, so making every 

effort to increase the work force, obviously hiring takes time, talking about live scans, 

and reference checks, it takes time, we have no control of that, can't control the federal 

government or State government about live scanning people, it's part of the hiring 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

344 | Page 

process. We sent that to our managers. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: It's sitting on 

desks. That's something we can control. When they're waiting for somebody to get it 

off their desk. HR is calling people, we haven't received it and we know we sent it out. 

>> GREG POLK: I'm not aware of that, but can follow-up. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: 

Yeah, saying get these things off your desk and move it, please. Hard enough, so 

providing that little extra thing. Thank you, do appreciate everyone's work, we know 

this is difficult. We know a lot of work has been put in that. And don't want our 

questions, to be, you know, we're not attacking. We're just asking questions, and 

appreciate the hard work that goes into this. >> GREG POLK: I'm pretty tough, I can take 

it. It's fine with me. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: Being in accounting. >> GREG POLK: 

Exactly. >> I have a question, what is our budget. Other commissioners are asking what 

is your budget. >> GREG POLK: I think we need to have a conversation about that. And 

lay out what is a commission budget. And all depends what the commission wants to 

do, you guys drive this. And need to have a deeper conversation, so when I talk about 

meeting more frequently will be helpful to all figure out what we want, as a commission 

and department, how we want to align, and budget and things we want to do and make 

sure we're all on the same page. >>CHAIR: So I'll put that on the agenda for the executive 

committee meeting coming up in May. Great. Do we have a quorum by the way. >> 11 

commissioners. >> According to Robert's rule, once you establish a qorum you don't lose 

a quorum that's my understanding of Roberts rules. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Mine is you 

lose a quorum you lose a quorum . >> Mr. Polk, I know you will be watching very close, 

and hope that it bears fruit for you, and maybe at the same time you can give the 

department updates, as it will have significant impact on the budget. I have a question 

for the chair regarding the MHSAA plan. >> Madam Chair for the last two years or so 

The commission has worked, you know, focus a lot of plan. And it is my suggestions that 

you review sort of the Commission's communication to definitely his apartment. He's a 

board of supervisors, regarding particular unmet needs and programs. I will focus on 

one of particular interest to the fourth district. Regarding the disparity Asian And Pacific 

Islander Community. I hope the executive committee would review those 

communications and review that in your report to the Board. Regarding the annual 

update. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I think it was included last time if I recall. Point noted and 

make sure that's included this year as well. And from what understand you are saying 

with follow-up, so we're able to note any change or movement made. Is that part of 

what you are asking. >> Yeah, and previously before commissioner G left. He said had 

particular concerns with his working group, associated not only with the disparity within 

the Asian Pacific Islander Community. But also regarding integrate service and the 

model they worked on. Relating to community based setting. In the first district would 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
345 | Page 

like Memorial Hospital. Thank you Madam Chair, >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Anyone else, 

anytime that you want to have on the record as recommendation. Just to reiterate, we 

don't approve this budget. We are accepting and listening to the public hearing. But it's 

not that we as a commission approve the budget per se. Commissioner Austria. I think 

that's the only hand I see. Go ahead. Commissioner Austria. >> COMMISSIONER 

AUSTRIA: One of the questions about the trauma-building, capacity building, and I was 

wondering how many budgeted positions there are and how many filled, and how many 

yet to be filled. You might not have right at your fingertips, if you can find that out for 

me I would appreciate it. >> GREG POLK: We have that information. I'll make sure we 

send that back to you. >> And I don't think sent rat in is your capital project, it doesn't 

really specify what capital projects are. We want to know where west central falls in 

capital projects, if it's this budget or other budget, I know they are having difficulty 

finding that. >> GREG POLK: Just talked about how much we're allocating. I think the cap 

project lead Pinedo does a great job around what and so we can make available 

somebody ideas, Her and Damien Parker about what we're going to do and how we're 

going to fund some of the cap projects of our clinics.. >> COMMISSIONER AUSTRIA: 

Yeah, we're getting a lot of feedback from our constituents and people are gonna go, go 

to Hopkins, you know, where are we going to go so you know it's been a long time clinics 

and that's gonna be a big change. >> GREG POLK: Yep understood. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Thank you. I know that several commissioners are going to need to be leaving, I just 

want to start by thanking all of the commissioners for being on with us for this marathon 

session. And I know Commissioner Stevens has her hand raised. I want to ask Canetana 

are you with us. Just to confirm we do not vote to approve this. In the past what has 

been the action of the Commission after the public hearing. >> CANETANA HURD: From 

my history, a letter composed and submitted to the MHSA Report. Yeah, addressed to 

the board and Dr. Sherin on the recommendations. On recommendations. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: That's my understanding too. Just to clarify, thank you. All right thank you, 

everyone who is still with us, I am going to ask if there is anyone on the public comment 

line. Hang on one second. I see commission Stevens hand is raised. >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS: Let me apologize, someone had a crisis, and got my undivided attention. So 

my question may have been answered, just wondering about ODR. Just want to confirm 

the actions will be included in the report. The MHSA report. That's one question. And 

then the other is -- I believe it was Commissioner Austria who asked about West Central 

Mental Health. And I'm wondering if perhaps may be not today, but very soon we get 

an update about that. And then asked about the process here and what is the roles and 

responsibilities of the commission around MHSA. So I would hope -- I'm not sure the 

second district is still on the line or not. But I would hope that perhaps we could really 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

346 | Page 

get something solid, to really clearly understand what is the role and responsibility 

around MHSA. Greg, my question to you directly is -- what process was used to collect 

the unmet needs across the communities? Because I don't recall it going to Service Area 

6. Did that process happen? In our Service Area groups, as well as in our under served 

culture community groups at large or not. >> GREG POLK: From my understanding I 

believe those are collected at group settings under served cultural communities, if not, 

several different types of unmet needs, and budget process, unmet needs and data 

department layout, and capacity, and nature we need as a department, and stakeholder 

unmet need is a different process, right. And that's captured with our CLT and things 

like that. And if not, I'll verify where that information is captured. >> COMMISSIONER 

STEVENS: I'm happy you mentioned CLT. CLT is not community, it's just elected 

members chairing those groups. But I do recall a time when it happened broadly in the 

community at the Service Area level during a Service Area meeting group. And I think 

it's important for us to get back to basics around collecting the communities input as 

well around the unmet needs in those immediate communities. And so if we shied away 

from that. Perhaps you don't have the answer right now. But I would like to know why. 

And then back to collecting that information at every Service Area level. Thank you. >> 

CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thanks. Thank you. Not thanks, but thank you. All right, I do not see 

any other hands raised. Do we have anybody on public comment lines? >> Operator: If 

you would like to register a comment please press 1 then 0 at this time. We'll go to Line 

49. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: How many do we have? >> Hello, can you hear me? >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Yes, I can hear you. >> Can you hear me. Hi, yes, my name is Hector M. I 

want to point out the fact, the department of mental health has at least 237,651 people 

that he provides that you provided services to. And I just want to point out the incredibly 

low number of consumer responses. In this particular process. With all the money, the 

millions the department is getting, why was response from consumers from the 

department of mental health so low. And fact that majority of residents of LA County, 

and the people receiving services member from Latina community you know, our 

participation was second highest to people who identify as white, but yet our priorities 

are nowhere reflected in this particular plan. . So I see a significant disconnect in the 

stakeholder process, which really is not accessible to consumers. So I want to point out 

the CAP is inaccessible to our communities because you need to have a computer to 

access it and get it approved safely the CLT is not a community project, our community 

process, because it's not led by consumers or chairs of the committee. It's It is 

completely driven by stuff like this particular last meeting. We didn't even have an 

agenda. So, those particular spaces can not be ethically stakeholder processes because 

they're not. From the US they disability USCC community members have access to sign 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
347 | Page 

language. Services for things like FSP our adult services. We don't have adult services, 

when in ASL for our for our community and here, you know, money's going left and right 

and you're not even able to take care of your fiduciary need for the people that you 

already have. I'm an FSP person that hasn't been able to get FSB services, because 

there's no sign language services. I have to pay for it if I want to use it, and that is super 

expensive. So you talk about FSP -- it isn't. I really want to point out the fact no response 

for questions, or input. So this was kind of informative to see and also kind of 

disappointing. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> Operator: We'll go next to line 50. 

>> All right, that's me. Hello. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Hello. >> Can you hear me. >> 

Operator: Yes. >> Okay, I'm going to speak now. Okay. >> Operator: Go for it. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: M-hm. >> Okay. Hello. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Yes, hello. >> Hello my name... 

>> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Go ahead. >> Romalez Taylor: And I'm the new cochair for the 

Black and African heritage UsCC. I want to ask why can't we turn around and expand the 

contracting services since it's been shut down for the past 2 or 3 years that is culturally 

relevant and culturally competent in the communities for high needs, South central LA, 

and east LA and Antelope Valley. Where the people are critically needed we can use the 

MHSA funds to provide services such as trauma focused cognitive behavioral therapy 

and other services that many of these culturally appropriate agencies are ready to go, 

able to meet those needs. When is the department going to expand and do that for all 

the agencies sitting there ready to go. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Excuse me, Mr. Taylor, do 

you have your phone on also. I'm hearing an echo. >> Yeah, I do. Sorry. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: All right. So we heard... thank you. >> Operator: We'll go next to line 10. >> 

MARK: >> Operator: Line 10, your line is open. >> MARK: My comment right now, 

especially for the people who are coming out of the jails, and for that part of the meeting 

CRD, you need to bring that up before the mental health services Oversight and 

Accountability Commission. So they can approve the funding for that. And another -- I 

was looking on the Oversight Commission Meeting. And there was a program called 

REST where they have cabins for people who are homelessness. So there is kind of 

housing for them. That's up in Butte County. And something like that in Germany. And 

like I said before, look into the -- I got off their site -- look into the stuff from the 

alternatives conference, regards to people reintegrating from jails, two work shops, 

thought I kept on the computer but I didn't. >> Operator: 30 seconds. Into the jails, 

taught taught classes there are people there are whenever working in the community 

to reduce -- from what I understand reduce disparities. And I should have mentioned -- 

I know what I was going to do. Hold on a second. I mentioned it before, so... >> Operator: 

>> MARK: Sorry I didn't do that. Here it is. I spotted it. NYC peers justice initiative. Justice 

involved, peers in our community, and also the forensic peer mentor connect with them, 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

348 | Page 

so many people who were in jail. Maybe we can provide something Thank you. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> MARK: ... >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Mark? Your time is up. >> I'll 

let you go. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Do we have anyone on the Korean line, or Korean 

speaking line or Spanish language line. >> ALEX: We don't have anybody on the Spanish 

line. >> Korean Interpreter: We don't have anybody from the Korean line. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Want to thank both of you for our service at today's meeting. So, let me see 

here. All right, so moving to... Thank you very much again Mr. Polk for your presentation. 

And we will be preparing a letter based on today's meeting which will be sent, thank 

you. >> GREG POLK: Thank you. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Let's see here. Let's go on to 

continuing with the agenda. Pull it up here, we have Lily Sofiani are you here? >> Sofiani 

stepped off. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: I completely understand. We will ask for a report 

from her. Maybe she didn't give a written report that we can send out at our next 

meeting. >> Yolanda is here, I know lily stepped off. She had asked me to provide any 

updates with regards to board activities. And it's a pleasure meeting all the 

commissioners. I haven't had a chance to address the commissioners before, the Senior 

Deputy for health and wellness for supervisor Michel, thus the mask. And in terms of 

other things coming just generally before the Board of Supervisors. There's a number of 

topics that we're watching carefully this coming Tuesday there will be a large motion, 

that was introduced by supervisor Barger and I believe some leaves with regards to the 

Blue Ribbon Commission on homelessness. It has significant changes, and probably 

would be great for the commissioners just to become aware of that motion generally. 

And other things coming before the board, you heard quite a bit today about ODR. And 

that's part of larger effort the board of supervisors is doing to try and identify funding, 

of all types for beds, because we have such a shortfall of beds into the community. And 

will be seen in the coming board meetings more activities related to that. And other 

things, that I think you will be seeing as well too, is restorative care villages. There are 

roughly -- every campus, medical campus, in the county has a restorative vary village. 

Village at Harbor UCLA, which is a 72 acre campus and Carson. In his in his supervisors 

district. We're doing a feasibility study and putting a restorative care village there as 

well too. There is one that is opening up the MLK campus , perhaps that would be a 

great opportunity for the commissioners to come out and do a tour once it's fully 

opened in the fall I would say. There is effort to create beds at LSEUSC. Campus also has 

some beds and then Rancho Los Amigos. At Harbor. We are doing a feasibility study to 

figure out what space might be available to Toomore restorative care village there and 

that would be the county walking the walk, and creating beds. A full continuum of 

Mental Health services for both individuals who might beexperiences mental health 

crisis, and substance abuse crisis. I would be happy to share with you Madam Chair any 



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
349 | Page 

motions that come up, and alert of you opportunities to weigh in before the board on 

all these items. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: If possible, could you send that in written format 

to attach to the minutes. >> Absolutely will, happy to do that. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: 

Looks to me we reached the end of the meeting. And I'm -- I doubt that we would have 

any opposition to adjourning at this time? So... the meeting is adjourned. Thank you 

everyone. And we'll see you next month for May is mental health month. >> Thanks 

everybody, take care. >> CHAIR DALGLEISH: Thank you. >> COMMISSIONER STEVENS: 

Enjoy your weekend. >> COMMISSIONER FRIEDMAN: Thanks Stacy. >> CHAIR 

DALGLEISH: Remember, we're meeting in person next month. Bye. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

350 | Page 

APPENDIX F – ACRONYMS  
 

ACS: Alternative Crisis Services EBP(s) Evidence Based Practice(s) 

ACT: Assertive Community Treatment ECBI: Eyeberg Child Behavioral Inventory 

ADLS: Assisted Daily Living Skills EESP: Emergency Shelter Program 

AF-CBT 
Alternatives for Families –  

Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 
EPSDT: 

Early Periodic Screening,  

Diagnosis and Treatment 

AI: Aging Initiative ER: Emergency Room 

AILSP: American Indian Life Skills Program FCCS: Field Capable Clinical Services 

APF: American Psychiatric Foundation FFP: Federal Financial Participation 

ARF: Adult Residential Facility FFT: Functional Family Therapy 

ART: Aggression Replacement Training FOCUS: Families Overcoming Under Stress 

ASD: Anti-Stigma and Discrimination FSP(s): Full Service Partnership(s) 

ASIST: Applied Suicide Intervention Skills Training FSS: Family Support Services 

ASL: American Sign Language FY: Fiscal Year 

BSFT: Brief Strategic Family Therapy Group CBT: Group Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 

CalSWEC: CA Social Work Education Center GROW: General Relief Opportunities for Work 

CAPPS: 
Center for the Assessment and  

Prevention of Prodromal States 
GVRI: Gang Violence Reduction Initiative 

CBITS: 
Cognitive Behavioral Intervention for  

Trauma in Schools 
HIPAA: 

Health Insurance Portability and  

Accountability Act 

CBO: Community-Based Organizations HOME: Homeless Outreach and Mobile Engagement 

CBT: Cognitive Behavioral Therapy HSRC: Harder-Company Community Research 

CDE: Community Defined Evidence HWLA: Healthy Way Los Angeles 

CDOL: Center for Distance and Online Learning IBHIS: Integrated Behavioral Health System 

CEO: Chief Executive Office ICC: Intensive Care Coordination 

CF: Capital Facilities ICM: Integrated Clinic Model 

CFOF: Caring for our Families IEP(s): Individualized Education Program 

CiMH: California Institute for Behavioral Health IFCCS: Intensive Field Capable Clinical Services 

CMHDA: California Mental Health Directors’ Association IHBS: Intensive Home Base Services 

CORS: Crisis Oriented Recovery Services ILP: Independent Living Program 

COTS: Commercial-Off-The-Shelf IMD: Institution for Mental Disease 

CPP: Child Parent Psychotherapy Ind CBT: Individual Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 

CSS: Community Services & Supports IMHT: Integrated Mobile Health Team 

C-SSRS: Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating Scale IMPACT: 
Improving Mood-Promoting Access to 

Collaborative Treatment 

CTF: Community Treatment Facility IMR: Illness Management Recovery 

CW: Countywide INN: Innovation 

DBT: Dialectical Behavioral Therapy IPT: Interpersonal Psychotherapy for Depression 

DCES: Diabetes Camping and Educational Services IS: Integrated System 

DCFS: Department of Children and Family Services ISM: Integrated Service Management model 

DHS: Department of Health Services ITP: Interpreter Training Program 

DPH: Department of Public Health IY: Incredible Years 

DTQI: Depression Treatment Quality Improvement KEC: Key Event Change 
 

 

  

  

  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  
351 | Page 

  

LGBTQ: Lesbian/Gay/Bisexual/Transgender/Questioning PEMR(s): Probation Electronic Medical Records 

LIFE: Loving Intervention Family Enrichment PE-PTSD: 
Prolonged Exposure therapy for Post-Traumatic 
Stress Disorder 

LIHP: Low Income Health Plan PMHS: Public Mental Health System 

LPP: Licensure Preparation Program PMRT: Psychiatric Mobile Response Team 

MAP: Managing and Adapting Practice PRISM: Peer-Run Integrated Services Management 

MAST: Mosaic for Assessment of Student Threats PRRCH: Peer-Run Respite Care Homes 

MDFT: Multidimensional Family Therapy PSH: Permanent Supportive Housing 

MDT: Multidisciplinary Team PSP: Partners in Suicide Prevention 

MFT: Masters in Family and Therapy PST: Problem Solving Therapy 

MH: Mental Health PTSD: Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder 

MHC: Mental Health Commission PTSD-RI: Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder – Reaction Index 

MHCLP: Mental Health Court Linkage Program QPR: Question, Persuade and Refer 

MHFA: Mental Health First Aide RFS: Request For Services 

MHIP: Mental Health Integration Program RFSQ: Request for Statement of Qualifications 

MHRC: Mental Health Rehabilitation Center ROSTCP: 
Recovery Oriented Supervision Training and 
Consultation Program 

MHSA: Mental Health Services Act RPP: Reflective Parenting Program 

MHSOAC: 
Mental Health Services Oversight  
and Accountability Commission 

RRSR: Recognizing and Responding to Suicide Risk 

MMSE: Mini-Mental State Examination SA: Service Area 

MORS: Milestones of Recovery Scale SAAC: Service Area Advisory Committee 

MOU: Memorandum of Understanding SAPC: Substance Abuse Prevention and Control 

MP: Mindful Parenting SED: Severely Emotionally Disturbed 

MPAP: Make Parenting a Pleasure  SF: Strengthening Families Program 

MPG: Mindful Parenting Groups SH: State Hospital 

MST: Multisystemic Therapy SLT: System Leadership Team 

NACo: National Association of Counties SNF: Skilled Nursing Facility 

NFP: Nurse Family Partnerships SPC: Suicide Prevention Center 

OA: Older Adult SPMI: Severe and Persistently Mentally Ill 

OACT: Older Adult Care Teams SS: Seeking Safety 

OASCOC: Older Adult System of Care START: School Threat Assessment and Response Team 

OBPP: Olweus Bullying Prevention Program TAY: Transitional Age Youth 

OEF: Operation Enduring Freedom TF-CBT: Trauma Focused-Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 

OEP: Outreach and Education Pilot TN: 
 
Technological Needs 

OMA: Outcome Measures Application Triple P: Triple P Positive Parenting Program 

OND: Operation New Dawn TSV:  Targeted School Violence  

OQ: Outcome Questionnaire UC: Usual Care 

PATHS: Providing Alternative Thinking Strategies UCC(s): Urgent Care Center(s) 

PCIT: Parent-Child Interaction Therapy UCLA: University of California, Los Angeles 

PDAT: Public Defender Advocacy Team UCLA TTM: UCLA Ties Transition Model 

PE: Prolonged Exposure VALOR: Veterans' and Loved Ones Recovery  

PEARLS: 
Program to Encourage Active,  
Rewarding Lives for Seniors 

VPAN: Veteran’s Peer Network 

PEI: Prevention and Early Intervention WCRSEC:  
Women's Community Reintegration Service and 
Education Centers  



 

MHSA Annual Update 
Fiscal Year 2022-23  

352 | Page 

WET:  Workforce Education and Training  

YOQ:  Youth Outcome Questionnaire  

YOQ-SR:  Youth Outcome Questionnaire – Status Report  

YTD:  Year to Date  
 

 

  

  

 
 

 
Adult Age Group: Age range is 26 to 59 years old. 

Child Age Group: Age range is 0 to 15 years old. 

Older Adult Age Group: Age range is 60+.  

Transitional Age Youth Age Group: Age range is 16 to 25 years old. 

Total client cost calculation is based on Mode 15 services, inclusive of Federal Financial Participation (FFP) & 

Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT) Program.  Not inclusive of community outreach 

services or client supportive services expenditures.  

Unique client means a single client claimed in the Integrated Behavioral Health Information System.  

New Community Services and Supports clients may have received a non-MHSA mental health service. 

New Prevention and Early Intervention clients may have received a non-MHSA mental health service. 

 



BOARD LETTER/MEMO  
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

 
  Board Letter                                     Board Memo                                             Other 

 
CLUSTER AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/19/2023 

BOARD MEETING DATE 05/02/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 
AFFECTED 

 
  All         1st       2nd        3rd       4th      5th          

DEPARTMENT(S) DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 

SUBJECT REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF INTERIM ORDINANCE AUTHORITY FOR 
DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH (DMH) TO ADD AND FILL SIX (6) POSITIONS 
TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED ACTIVITIES AND FUNCTIONS TO IMPLEMENT THE 
COMMUNITY CARE EXPANSION (CCE) PRESERVATION PROGRAM AND 
APPROVAL FOR LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LACDA) 
TO SIGN AND EXECUTE NECESSARY AGREEMENTS TO ADMINISTER AND 
IMPLEMENT THE CCE PRESERVATION PROGRAM – Capital Projects (CP) 
COMPONENT 
 

PROGRAM  
AUTHORIZES DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO DEPT   Yes            No   

SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT   Yes            No   
 

DEADLINES/ 
TIME CONSTRAINTS 

May 2, 2023 

COST & FUNDING Total cost: 
 
n/a 

Funding source:  
 
n/a 

TERMS (if applicable): 
 

Explanation: The Board granted LACDA authority to serve as the agent of the 
County for the administration of the CP Program funds, which requires a match of at 
least 10 percent. DMH will allocate $11.2 million of Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 
Community Services and Supports (CSS) funds to satisfy the match requirement and 
other administrative requirements. This BL has no additional funding. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST Request approval of interim ordinance authority for Department of Mental Health (DMH) 
to add and fill six (6) positions to perform the required activities and functions to 
implement the Community Care Expansion (CCE) Preservation Program which includes 
two components, Capital Projects (CPs) and Operating Subsidy Payments (OSPs); and 
approval for Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) to sign and execute  
necessary agreements to administer and implement the CCE Preservation Program - 
CPs component, with the goal of preserving licensed Adult Residential Facilities (ARFs) 
and Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly (RCFEs) also known as Board and Care 
Facilities in Los Angeles County.  
 

BACKGROUND 
(include internal/external 
issues that may exist 
including any related 
motions) 

 
The California Department of Social Services (CDSS) CCE Preservation Program has 
made noncompetitive allocations available to counties for the preservation of existing 
licensed ARFs and RCFEs serving applicants and recipients of Supplemental Security 
Income/State Supplementary Payment (SSI/SSP) or Cash Assistance Program for 
Immigrants (CAPI), including those who are experiencing or at risk of homelessness. 
 
The December 20, 2022, Community Care Expansion Preservation Program 
Administration and Management of Funds to Further Address Los Angeles County’s 

Draft



Board and Care Crisis motion (Supervisors Hahn/Solis) authorized DMH to accept the 
CCE Preservation Program funds issued by CDSS and their fiscal intermediary 
Advocates for Human Potential (AHP), enter into a contract with AHP and administer 
and manage CCE Preservation Program funds issued for the preservation of licensed 
ARFs and RCFEs.  

EQUITY INDEX OR LENS 
WAS UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how:  

SUPPORTS ONE OF THE 
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES  

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how:  

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email: 
 Maria Funk, Deputy Director, at (213) 943-8465 or mfunk@dmh.lacounty.gov or Carolina 
Romo, Assistant Director of Community Development, LACDA at 626-296-6298 or 
Carolina.romo@lacda.org 

 

Draft

mailto:mfunk@dmh.lacounty.gov
mailto:Carolina.romo@lacda.org


DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
LISA H. WONG, Psy.D. 

Director 
 

Curley L. Bonds, M.D. 
Chief Medical Officer  Connie D. Draxler, M.P.A. 

Acting Chief Deputy Director 
 

 
510 S. VERMONT AVENUE, LOS ANGELES, CA 90020  |  HTTPS://DMH.LACOUNTY.GOV  |  (800) 854-7771 

 
 
 
 

May 2, 2023 
 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
 
The Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Los Angeles County Development Authority 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012  
 
Dear Supervisors/Commissioners: 
 

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF INTERIM ORDINANCE AUTHORITY FOR 
DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH (DMH) TO ADD AND FILL SIX (6) POSITIONS 
TO PERFORM THE REQUIRED ACTIVITIES AND FUNCTIONS TO IMPLEMENT THE 

COMMUNITY CARE EXPANSION (CCE) PRESERVATION PROGRAM AND 
APPROVAL FOR LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (LACDA) 

TO SIGN AND EXECUTE NECESSARY AGREEMENTS TO ADMINISTER AND 
IMPLEMENT THE CCE PRESERVATION PROGRAM – Capital Projects (CP) 

COMPONENT 
(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS) 

(3 VOTES) 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Request approval of interim ordinance authority for Department of Mental Health (DMH) 
to add and fill six (6) positions to perform the required activities and functions to 
implement the Community Care Expansion (CCE) Preservation Program which includes 
two components, Capital Projects (CPs) and Operating Subsidy Payments (OSPs); and 
approval for Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA) to sign and execute  
necessary agreements to administer and implement the CCE Preservation Program - 
CPs component, with the goal of preserving licensed Adult Residential Facilities (ARFs) 

Draft

http://dmh.lacounty.gov/


The Honorable Board of Supervisors/Commissioners 
5/2/2023 
Page 2  
 
 

 
 
 

and Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly (RCFEs) also known as Board and Care 
Facilities in Los Angeles County.  
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 
1. Approve interim ordinance authority pursuant to Section 6.06.020 of the Los Angeles 

County Code, for DMH to recruit and hire six (6) key personnel to support the overall 
implementation and administration of the CCE Preservation Program, subject to 
allocation by the Chief Executive Officer’s (CEO) Classification Division.  

2. Delegate authority to the DMH Director, or her designee, to adjust the DMH local 
match requirement as needed for any additional CCE Preservation Program – CP 
funds that DMH may receive from the State and transferred to LACDA. 

3. Find that the recommended actions are exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), for the reasons stated in this Board letter and in the record of 
the project. 
 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE LOS 
ANGELES COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 
 
1. Delegate authority to the Executive Director of LACDA, or his designee, to act as 

agent of the County with regard to the administration of the CCE Preservation 
Program - CP component (CP Program) funds, to:  

a. Execute and amend as necessary, owner participation agreements for 
facilities that are leased, grant agreements, deed restrictions and any other 
agreements needed to facilitate the CP Program;  

b. Execute Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) with cities within Los 
Angeles County for the provision of services to expedite reviews for 
entitlement and permit applications as related to the rehabilitation of ARFs 
and RCFEs;  

c. Execute and use construction contracts, including Job Order Contracts (JOC), 
and as necessary due to the urgency of preventing the closure of ARFS and 
RCFEs and narrow timeframe of the CP Program grant cycle, to execute non-
competitive contracts to expeditiously operate the CP Program to conduct 
rehabilitation and refurbishment activities; and 

d. Execute and use other contracts or agreements up to $300,000 to provide all 
necessary services including, but not limited to, architectural/engineering 
services, relocation services, and environmental consultant services. This 
authority will not exceed the amount of the funds received by LACDA from 
DMH. 

2. Find that the recommended actions are exempt from CEQA, for the reasons stated 
in this Board letter and in the record of the project.  

 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

Draft



The Honorable Board of Supervisors/Commissioners 
5/2/2023 
Page 3  
 
 

 
 
 

 
The purpose of the recommended actions is to approve interim ordinance authority, 
pursuant to Section 6.06.020 of the County Code, for DMH to recruit and hire key 
personnel for the CCE Preservation Program subject to allocation by the CEO 
Classification Division.   
 
On December 20, 2022, your Board approved the motion, “Community Care Expansion 
Preservation Program Administration and Management of Funds to Further Address 
Los Angeles County’s Board and Care Crisis,” which delegated authority to the Interim 
Director of DMH to accept the CP Program grant funds in the amount of $53,497,135 
and OSP Program grant funds in the amount of $19,654,821, and any additional funds 
awarded to the County by the State through its third-party administrator, Advocates for 
Human Potential (AHP). The motion further granted authority to the Interim Director of 
DMH to negotiate and execute contracts with AHP for CCE Preservation Program grant 
funding subject to review and approval as to form by County Counsel with notification to 
the Board and CEO. On March 3, 2023, DMH was awarded an additional $19,863,912 
for CCE Preservation OSP Program for a total of $39,518,733. The CCE Preservation 
Program is effective this Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 through June 30, 2029 (FY 2028-29). 
 
The Board granted LACDA authority to serve as the agent of the County for the 
administration of the CP Program funds, which requires a match of at least 10 percent. 
DMH will allocate $11.2 million of Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Community 
Services and Supports (CSS) funds to satisfy the match requirement and other 
administrative requirements. Upon receipt of the funds and in alignment with all applicable 
federal, State, and local program requirements, LACDA will administer the CP Program, 
including facilitating owner participation agreements for those facilities that are leased, 
the grant application process which shall include preapplication technical assistance for 
facilities, processing and ranking of grant applications using an approved criteria and 
scoring rubric, and determining grant award amounts. After the conclusion of the grant 
application process, LACDA will administer the construction rehabilitation of the grantee 
facilities, including creating a scope of work for each of the projects, requesting cost 
proposals for contractors to perform the work, monitoring the progress and quality of 
construction and verifying the work completed for payment and compliance with all labor 
requirements. LACDA will also execute grant agreements. LACDA will also record deed 
restrictions for those facilities that receive a grant for $250,000 or greater.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS  
 
These recommendations support the County’s Strategic Plan Goal I, Make Investments 
That Transform Lives via Strategy I.2 Enhance Our Delivery of Comprehensive 
Interventions, Strategic Plan Goal III, Realize Tomorrow’s Government Today via 
Strategy III.3 Pursue Operational Effectiveness, Fiscal Responsibility, and Accountability.  
 

Draft



The Honorable Board of Supervisors/Commissioners 
5/2/2023 
Page 4  
 
 

 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING 
 
Sufficient funding is included in the Budget Year 2022-23 Final Adopted Budget for this 
action.  Funding for future budget years will be included in the budget request process.  
There is no net County cost impact associated with the recommended action. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
The California Department of Social Services (CDSS) CCE Preservation Program has 
made noncompetitive allocations available to counties for the preservation of existing 
licensed ARFs and RCFEs serving applicants and recipients of Supplemental Security 
Income/State Supplementary Payment (SSI/SSP) or Cash Assistance Program for 
Immigrants (CAPI), including those who are experiencing or at risk of homelessness. 
 
The December 20, 2022, Community Care Expansion Preservation Program 
Administration and Management of Funds to Further Address Los Angeles County’s 
Board and Care Crisis motion (Supervisors Hahn/Solis) authorized DMH to accept the 
CCE Preservation Program funds issued by CDSS and their fiscal intermediary 
Advocates for Human Potential (AHP), enter into a contract with AHP and administer 
and manage CCE Preservation Program funds issued for the preservation of licensed 
ARFs and RCFEs.  
 
By way of this Board letter DMH requests the additional authority needed to hire staff to 
implement and administer CCE Preservation Program funds including CP funds to allow 
facilities to make essential physical repairs or necessary upgrades to avoid closure or 
make the facility compliant with licensing standards and OSP funds to cover potential or 
projected operating deficits in existing ARFs and RCFEs so they can avoid closure. 
LACDA requests the authority as agent of the County to administer the CP Program and 
to execute related agreements and amendments to perform the construction 
rehabilitation of the facilities.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION 
 
Pursuant to the Welfare and Institutions Code Chapter 20, Section 18999.97, the State 
of California has determined that any project receiving CCE Preservation Program funds 
shall be deemed a ministerial action under Section 15268 of the State CEQA Guidelines 
and Section 21080(b)(1) of the California Public Resources Code. 
 

  

Draft



The Honorable Board of Supervisors/Commissioners 
5/2/2023 
Page 5  
 
 

 
 
 

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES OR PROJECTS 
 
These actions will not have a significant impact on current services. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us or staff can 
contact Maria Funk, Deputy Director, at (213) 943-8465 or mfunk@dmh.lacounty.gov or 
Carolina Romo, Assistant Director of Community Development, LACDA at 626-296-6298 
or Carolina.romo@lacda.org.  
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Lisa H. Wong, Psy.D.    Emilio Salas 
Director      Executive Director, LACDA 
 
LHW:CDD: 
 
 
c: County Counsel  

Executive Office, Board of Supervisors  
 Chief Executive Office    
  
 
 
 

Draft

mailto:mfunk@dmh.lacounty.gov
mailto:Carolina.romo@lacda.org


BOARD LETTER/MEMO 
CLUSTER FACT SHEET 

 Board Letter    Board Memo  Other 

CLUSTER 
AGENDA 
REVIEW DATE 

4/12/2023 

BOARD 
MEETING DATE 

6/27/2023 

SUPERVISORIAL 
DISTRICT 
AFFECTED 

  All     1st      2nd        3rd   4th      5th   

DEPARTMENT(S) Chief Executive Office 

SUBJECT APPROVAL OF NEW BOARD POLICY – AUTOMATED EXTERNAL DEFIBRILLATORS (AEDs) FOR 
EMPLOYEE AND PUBLIC USE AND HANDS-ONLY CARDIOPULMONARY RESUSCITATION (CPR) 

AND AEDs USAGE TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES 
(ALL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES) 

PROGRAM 
AUTHORIZES 
DELEGATED 
AUTHORITY TO 
DEPT 

  Yes     No  

SOLE SOURCE 
CONTRACT 

  Yes     No  
If Yes, please explain why:  

DEADLINES/ 
TIME 
CONSTRAINTS 

N/A 

COST & 
FUNDING 

Total cost:   
See explanation below. 
$ 

Funding source: 
See explanation below. 

TERMS (if applicable):  N/A 
Explanation: 
The cost to procure AEDs is estimated at $2,500 per AED, for a total estimated initial cost of $2,370,000. 
Thereafter, the estimated cost of maintenance and part replacement is approximately $500 per AED every 
five years, totaling $474,000.  The grand total for procurement and maintenance of newly acquired AEDs 
is $2,844,000 in the next five years.  Departments that serve as building proprietors are responsible for the 
acquisition, installation, and ongoing maintenance of AEDs for their respective buildings. 

PURPOSE OF 
REQUEST 

The proposed Board Policy will make AEDs available in all County facilities for employee and public use 
and train all County employees on using AEDs and performing hands-only CPR. 

BACKGROUND 
(include 
internal/external 
issues that may 
exist including 
any related 
motions) 

Per the direction of the Board of Supervisors on January 24, 2023, the Chief Executive Office is to 
provide a Countywide AEDs and hands-only CPR Policy to the Board by 6/27/23 for their consideration 
and adoption. 

The Chief Executive Office, Risk Management Branch and Asset Management Branch assessed the 
County’s existing AEDs and identified the County’s need for additional AEDs at County facilities, including 
cost estimates for the additional AEDs.  We consulted with a group of leading medical and emergency 
health professionals from the Departments of Fire, Health Services, Mental Health, Public Health, 
Probation, Sheriff (Correctional Health Services), and the Emergency Medical Services agency to review 
the proposed policy in order to move it to completion.  County Counsel has further reviewed and approved 
the policy. 

EQUITY INDEX 
OR LENS WAS 
UTILIZED 

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please explain how: 

SUPPORTS ONE 
OF THE NINE 
BOARD 
PRIORITIES  

  Yes            No   
If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how: 

DEPARTMENTAL 
CONTACTS 

Name, Title, Phone # & Email: 
Destiny Castro, Manager, CEO 
Ph. (213) 738-2194    Email:  DCastro@ceo.lacounty.gov 

mailto:DCastro@ceo.lacounty.gov


"To Enrich Lives Through Effective And Caring Service" 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 27, 2023 
 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Los Angeles 
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012 
 
Dear Supervisors: 
 

APPROVAL OF NEW BOARD POLICY – AUTOMATED EXTERNAL 
DEFIBRILLATORS (AEDs) FOR EMPLOYEE AND PUBLIC USE 

AND HANDS-ONLY CARDIOPULMONARY RESUSCITATION (CPR) 
AND AEDs USAGE TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES 

(ALL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES) 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Recommendation by the Chief Executive Officer to approve the new Board of Supervisors 
(Board) Policy to establish procedures for the placement, management, and maintenance 
of Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) in County of Los Angeles (County) facilities 
(owned and/or leased), and annual employee training on the usage of AEDs and  
hands-only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR).   
 
IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD: 
 
Approve the enclosed Board Policy to establish procedures for the placement, 
management, maintenance, and training on the use of AEDs and hands-only CPR in 
County facilities (owned and/or leased), for use by both employees and members of the 
public, should the need arise.  This Policy is in compliance with the California Health and 
Safety Code, Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Kathryn Barger 
Fifth District 

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 
Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 
500 West Temple Street, Room 713, Los Angeles, CA 90012 
(213) 974-1101 ceo.lacounty.gov 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
Fesia A. Davenport 

Janice Hahn 
Fourth District 

BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS 

Hilda L. Solis 
First District 

Holly J. Mitchell 
Second District 

Lindsey P. Horvath 
Third District 

DRAFT 



The Honorable Board of Supervisors  DRAFT 
June 27, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The proposed Board Policy will make AEDs available in all County facilities for employee 
and public use and train all County employees on using AEDs and performing  
hands-only CPR. 
 
Sudden Cardiac Arrest is a life-threatening emergency that occurs when the heart 
suddenly stops beating, often due to a disturbance of heart electrical function.  It can 
affect people of any age and leads to death in minutes without prompt action.  Calling 
911, starting CPR, and using an AED are crucial to maximizing a person’s chance of 
survival. 
 
An AED is used to analyze and possibly shock (defibrillate) victims who experience 
sudden cardiac arrest, a condition that occurs when the electrical impulses of the heart 
malfunction causing a disturbance in the electrical rhythm.  This erratic and ineffective 
electrical rhythm stops the heart’s normal function of pumping the blood, resulting in 
sudden death.  Defibrillation of the abnormal rhythm, by providing an electrical current to 
the heart through an AED, may shock the heart and return it to a functional rhythm 
capable of sustaining life. 
 
Applying CPR, pushing hard and fast on the center of the victim’s chest, is extremely 
important to keep blood flowing to the brain until emergency services arrive.  Performing 
bystander CPR triples a person’s chance of survival.  Without bystander CPR, even if a 
person survives their cardiac arrest, they are likely to have severe brain damage. 
 
Applying CPR and defibrillation with an AED are temporary, life-saving measures used 
until emergency medical help arrives.  When used together to treat a patient with sudden 
cardiac arrest, survival can be over 50 percent.  Either intervention alone is much less 
successful at saving a life.  Ensuring use of both emergency interventions is an important 
goal of this initiative. 
 
All County Departments will be required to make available AED and Hands-Only CPR 
training to their employees. Departments shall use the County’s learning management 
system to maintain training records for employees who have received AED and Hands-
Only CPR training. 
 
Currently, of the 1,150 County-occupied buildings, 202 buildings already have at least 
one AED installed.  Departments who reported AEDs in their workplaces also indicated 
that the AEDs are in good working order and maintained in accordance with manufacturer 
recommendations and will not be replaced.  Upon approval of the proposed policy, one 
AED will be procured and installed in each of the remaining 948 buildings. 
 
The proposed Board Policy was approved by the Audit Committee on May 17, 2023. 
 
 
 



The Honorable Board of Supervisors  DRAFT 
June 27, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals 
 
Approval of the proposed Policy supports the County’s Strategic Plan Goal I, Make 
Investments that Transform Lives, by formally establishing a Countywide policy that 
makes life-saving devices available throughout all County-occupied buildings for use by 
both employees and members of the public, should the need arise. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING 
 
The cost to procure AEDs is estimated at $2,500 per AED, for a total estimated initial cost 
of $2,370,000.  Thereafter, the estimated cost of maintenance and part replacement is 
approximately $500 per AED every five years, totaling $474,000.  The total for 
procurement and maintenance of newly acquired AEDs is $2,844,000 in the next five 
years.  Departments that serve as building proprietors are responsible for the acquisition, 
installation, and ongoing maintenance of AEDs for their respective buildings. 
 
FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Currently, there are no Countywide requirements for placing, maintaining, and training on 
the use of AEDs and hands-on CPR. 
 
Implementing the proposed Board Policy will have a positive impact on both employees’ 
and the public’s safety wellbeing.  The proposed Board Policy will become effective upon 
the Board’s approval. 
 
County Counsel reviewed the proposed Board Policy and concurs with its creation. 
 
IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS) 
 
No negative impact on services (or projects) is foreseen. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
FESIA A. DAVENPORT 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
FAD:JMN 
STR:DC:mld 
 
Enclosure 
 
c:  All Department Heads 
 
 
i:RMB Secs/Board Letters and Memos/Board Letters/2023/BL – Proposed Board Policy for AEDs and CPR (Draft)_6-27-23 [revised 3-14-23].docx 



 
 

Policy #: Title: Effective Date: 

0.000 
 

Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) and Hands-
Only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) for 

Employee and Public Use 
 

 
00/00/00 

 
 

PURPOSE 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
Establishes procedures for the placement, management, and maintenance of Automated 
External Defibrillators (AEDs) in County of Los Angeles (County) facilities (owned and/or 
leased) for employee and public use.  This proposed Policy is in compliance with the 
California Health and Safety Code, Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196.   
 

 
REFERENCE 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 

January 24, 2023, Board Order No. 10 
June 27, 2023, Chief Executive Office Board letter, “Automated External Defibrillators 
(AEDs) and Hands-Only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) for Employee and Public 
Use” 
California Health and Safety Code Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196 
California Civil Code Section 1714.21 
CARES Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival, 2021 Annual Report  
Sudden Cardiac Arrest Foundation, Sudden Cardiac Arrest: You Can Save A Life 
Los Angeles County Emergency Medical Services Agency PAD Post Event Report 
 

 
POLICY 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 

All buildings occupied by County employees shall have at least one AED present in the 
workplace.  Positive outcomes often rely on prompt response between sudden cardiac 
arrest and treatment with an AED and/or CPR administration.  Building Facility Services 
Managers should coordinate the assessment of their respective building(s) to determine if 
additional AEDs may be required based on several factors, including size of the facility, 
configuration, the type of occupancy/building use, and the volume of employees and 
visitors.  AEDs shall be available for both employee and public use. 
 
All County Departments will be required to make available AED and Hands-Only CPR 
training to their employees. Departments shall use the County’s learning management 
system to maintain training records for employees who have received AED and Hands-
Only CPR training. 
 
 

https://mycares.net/sitepages/uploads/2022/2021_flipbook/index.html?page=26
https://www.sca-aware.org/sites/default/files/downloads/sca-infographic-flyer-letter-2022-web_0.pdf
https://file.lacounty.gov/SDSInter/dhs/207152_PostEventReportForm.pdf


 
 
The Chief Executive Office, Risk Management Branch (CEO Risk Management) is 
responsible for the overall coordination of the Countywide AED program and will ensure 
that the County’s AED program complies with all federal, State, and local regulations. 
 
Building Facility Services Managers will: 
 

• Ensure issues related to maintenance and record keeping are managed on a 
continuing basis. 

 
• Serve as the key contact for CEO Risk Management and the AED manufacturer.  In 

this capacity, they will ensure timely responses to any notifications received from 
CEO Risk Management and/or the AED manufacturer. 

 
• Maintain an updated bi-annual inventory list of the existence and location of each 

AED at each AED site. 
 

• Ensure the location of AEDs are accessible, clearly marked, and visible to visitors 
and staff within the facility. 

 
• Contact AED manufacturer/vendor with any questions or concerns regarding the 

AED. 
 

• Provide notification of AED usage to the Emergency Management Services Agency 
via the PAD Post Event Report referenced herein. 

 
• Provide annual notification to the building tenants of the AED location(s).  If an AED 

should be out of service for any reason, they will identify and disclose the location 
of the next closest AED location. 

 
• Ensure all equipment is properly maintained according to manufacturer 

recommendations, including but not limited to, testing, maintenance, and battery 
and pad changes as required. 

 
• Ensure all equipment is sent back to the AED manufacturer if an AED requires 

inspection by the AED manufacturer, and upon return, is placed back at the original 
designated location at the AED site.  

 
 

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
Chief Executive Office 
Department of Human Resources  
 

 
DATE ISSUED/SUNSET DATE 

_______________________________________________________________ 
 

Issue Date:  June 27, 2023  Sunset Date:  June 27, 2027  
 



BOARD OF Hilda L. Soils Holly J. Mitchell Lindsey P. Horvath Janice Hahn Kathryn Barger
SUPERVISORS First District Second District Third District Fourth District Fifth District

Chief COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
. Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration

Executive 500 West Temple Street, Room 713, Los Angeles, CA 90012

Office.
(213) 974-1101 ceo.lacounty.gov

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Fesia A. Davenport

June 27, 2023

Dear Supervisors:

SUBJECT

DRAFT

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street
Los Angeles, California 90012

APPROVAL OF NEW BOARD POLICY - AUTOMATED EXTERNAL
DEFIBRILLATORS (AEDs) FOR EMPLOYEE AND PUBLIC USE

AND HANDS-ONLY CARDIOPULMONARY RESUSCITATION (CPR)
AND AEDs USAGE TRAINING FOR EMPLOYEES

(ALL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES)

Recommendation by the Chief Executive Officer to approve the new Board of Supervisors
(Board) Policy to establish procedures for the placement, management, and maintenance
of Automated External Defibrillators (AED5) in County of Los Angeles (County) facilities
(owned and/or leased), and annual employee training on the usage of AED5 and
hands-only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR).

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

Approve the enclosed Board Policy to establish procedures for the placement,
management, maintenance, and training on the use of AEDs and hands-only CPR in
County facilities (owned and/or leased), for use by both employees and members of the
public, should the need arise. This Policy is in compliance with the California Health and
Safety Code, Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196.

03%

“To Enrich Lives Through Effective And Caring Service’



The Honorable Board of Supervisors DRAFT
June 27, 2023
Page 2

PURPOSEIJUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The proposed Board Policy will make AEDs available in all County facilities for employee
and public use and train all County employees on using AEDs and performing
hands-only CPR.

Sudden Cardiac Arrest is a life-threatening emergency that occurs when the heart
suddenly stops beating, often due to a disturbance of heart electrical function. It can
affect people of any age and leads to death in minutes without prompt action. Calling
911, starting CPR, and using an AED are crucial to maximizing a person’s chance of
survival.

An AED is used to analyze and possibly shock (defibrillate) victims who experience
sudden cardiac arrest, a condition that occurs when the electrical impulses of the heart
malfunction causing a disturbance in the electrical rhythm. This erratic and ineffective
electrical rhythm stops the heart’s normal function of pumping the blood, resulting in
sudden death. Defibrillation of the abnormal rhythm, by providing an electrical current to
the heart through an AED, may shock the heart and return it to a functional rhythm
capable of sustaining life.

Applying CPR, pushing hard and fast on the center of the victim’s chest, is extremely
important to keep blood flowing to the brain until emergency services arrive. Performing
bystander CPR triples a person’s chance of survival. Without bystander CPR, even if a
person survives their cardiac arrest, they are likely to have severe brain damage.

Applying CPR and defibrillation with an AED are temporary, life-saving measures used
until emergency medical help arrives. When used together to treat a patient with sudden
cardiac arrest, survival can be over 50 percent. Either intervention alone is much less
successful at saving a life. Ensuring use of both emergency interventions is an important
goal of this initiative.

All County Departments will be required to make available AED and Hands-Only CPR
training to their employees. Departments shall use the County’s learning management
system to maintain training records for employees who have received AED and Hands-
Only CPR trainingEvery County employee will be required to complete an annual basic
(non certified) instructional course on the use of AEDs and Hands-Only CPR. This will
be created and tracked through the Department of Human Resources.

Currently, of the 1 ,1 50 County-occupied buildings, 202 buildings already have at least
one AED installed. Departments who reported AEDs in their workplaces also indicated
that the AEDs are in good working order and maintained in accordance with manufacturer
recommendations and will not be replaced. Upon approval of the proposed policy, one
AED will be procured and installed in each of the remaining 948 buildings.

The proposed Board Policy was approved by the Audit Committee on May 17, 2023.



The Honorable Board of Supervisors DRAFT
June 27, 2023
Page 3

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals

Approval of the proposed Policy supports the County’s Strategic Plan Goal I, Make
Investments that Transform Lives, by formally establishing a Countywide policy that
makes life-saving devices available throughout all County-occupied buildings for use by
both employees and members of the public, should the need arise.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The cost to procure AEDs is estimated at $2,500 per AED, for a total estimated initial cost
of $2,370,000. Thereafter, the estimated cost of maintenance and part replacement is
approximately $500 per AED every five years, totaling $474,000. The total for
procurement and maintenance of newly acquired AEDs is $2,844,000 in the next five
years. Departments that serve as building proprietors are responsible for the acquisition,
installation, and ongoing maintenance of AEDs for their respective buildings.

FACTS AND PROVISIONSILEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Currently, there are no Countywide requirements for placing, maintaining, and training on
the use of AEDs and hands-on CPR.

Implementing the proposed Board Policy will have a positive impact on both employees’
and the public’s safety wellbeing. The proposed Board Policy will become effective upon
the Board’s approval.

County Counsel reviewed the proposed Board Policy and concurs with its creation.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

No negative impact on services (or projects) is foreseen.

Respectfully submitted,

FESIAA. DAVENPORT
Chief Executive Officer

FAD:JMN
STR:DC:mIcl

Enclosure

c: All Department Heads



The Honorable Board of Supervisors DRAFT
June 27, 2023
Page 4

RMB Seco3oard Lattoro arrd Mor,roojfloard Lotto,rt2O23tBL - Propooad Board t°oIioy too Atttto arrd CPR (Draft) 6-27-23 (rooroad 3-14-23(.doco



bc Angelec Counly
BOARD Of SUPERVISORS P01 ICY MANUAL

PURPOSE

Establishes procedures for the placement, management, and maintenance of Automated
External Defibrillators (AED5) in County of Los Angeles (County) facilities (owned and/or
leased) for employee and public use. This proposed Policy is in compliance with the
California Health and Safety Code, Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196.

REFERENCE

January 24, 2023, Board Order No. 10
June 27, 2023, Chief Executive Office Board letter, ‘Automated External Defibrillators
(AED5) and Hands-Only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) for Employee and Public
Use”
California Health and Safety Code Sections 1797.190 and 1797.196
California Civil Code Section 1714.21
CARES Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival, 2021 Annual Report
Sudden Cardiac Arrest Foundation, Sudden Cardiac Arrest: You Can Save A Life
Los Angeles County Emergency Medical Services Agency PAD Post Event Report

POLICY

All buildings occupied by County employees shall have at least one AED present in the
workplace. Positive outcomes often rely on prompt response between sudden cardiac
arrest and treatment with an AED and/or CPR administration. Building Facility Services
Managers should coordinate the assessment of their respective building(s) to determine if
additional AEDs may be required based on several factors, including size of the facility,
configuration, the type of occupancy/building use, and the volume of employees and
visitors. AEDs shall be available for both employee and public use.

All County Departments will be required to make available AED and Hands-Only CPR
training to their employees. Departments shall use the County’s learning management
system to maintain training records for employees who have received AED and Hands-
Only CPR trainingEach County employee will be required to complete an annual basic
(r,rsr, rr+ifcrU r,e+ri Ir’+f5rI r’r’I Irc rr i i’ rf A IZflc’ rlrl I.-lr,dc’_(1rI, (‘Dp frr .r1, il+c

I 14.31 I 4..fl.#I LII 14.fl4 / II 1434.1 S.4dLl43I 14.41 4.34.04.41 4.J4.. 4.01 I LI 14.? t4434..#’..dl 4.41 14.4 I 14.41 14.44_i l 113 4._tI I 4. I 4.31 4.44.14.41 LSJ

and children. Departments shall use the County’s learning management system, Learning

Policy #: Title: Effective Date:

0.000 Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) and Hands- 00/00/00
Only Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) for

Employee and Public Use



Link, to maintain training records for employees who have received AED and Hands-Only
CPR training.

The Chief Executive Office, Risk Management Branch (CEO Risk Management) is
responsible for the overall coordination of the Countywide AED program and will ensure
that the County’s AED program complies with all federal, State, and local regulations.

Building Facility Services Managers will:

• Ensure issues related to maintenance and record keeping are managed on a
continuing basis.

• Serve as the key contact for CEO Risk Management and the AED manufacturer. In
this capacity, they will ensure timely responses to any notifications received from
CEO Risk Management and/or the AED manufacturer.

• Maintain an updated bi-annual inventory list of the existence and location of each
AED at each AED site.

• Ensure the location of AEDs are accessible, clearly marked, and visible to visitors
and staff within the facility.

• Contact AED manufacturer/vendor with any questions or concerns regarding the
AED.

• Provide notification of AED usage to the Emergency Management Services Agency
via the PAD Post Event Report referenced herein.

• Provide annual notification to the building tenants of the AED location(s). If an AED
should be out of service for any reason, they will identify and disclose the location
of the next closest AED location.

• Ensure all equipment is properly maintained according to manufacturer
recommendations, including but not limited to, testing, maintenance, and battery
and pad changes as required.

• Ensure all equipment is sent back to the AED manufacturer if an AED requires
inspection by the AED manufacturer, and upon return, is placed back at the original
designated location at the AED site.

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT

Chief Executive Office
Department of Human Resources

DATE ISSUEDISUNSET DATE

Issue Date: June 27, 2023 Sunset Date: June 27, 2027



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

HEADQUARTERS 
KENNETH HAHN HALL OF ADMINISTRATION 

500 W. TEMPLE STREET, ROOM 579 • LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90012 
(213) 974-2406 • FAX (213) 621-0387 

BRANCH OFFICE 
510 S. VERMONT AVENUE, 12TH FLOOR • LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90020 

(213) 866-5846 • FAX (213) 637-0821
LISA M. GARRETT

DIRECTOR OF PERSONNEL 

To Enrich Lives Through Effective and Caring Service 

March 16, 2023 

To: 

From: 

Supervisor Janice K. Hahn, Chair 
Supervisor Hilda L. Solis 
Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell 
Supervisor Lindsey P. Horvath 
Supervisor Kathryn Barger 

Lisa M. Garrett, J.D., M.B.A. 
Director of Personnel 

Christina R. Ghaly, M.D. 
Director of Health Services 

REPORT BACK ON BOARD MOTION SAVING LIVES: CARDIOPULMONARY 
RESUSCITATION AND AUTOMATED EXTERNAL DEFIBRILLATORS - TIMELINE 
AND PLAN FOR IMPLEMENTING A MANDATORY TRAINING FOR ALL COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES TO BECOME CPR AND AED CERTIFIED (ITEM 10, AGENDA 
OF JANUARY 24, 2023) 

BACKGROUND 

On January 24, 2023, your Board approved a motion by Supervisor Hilda L. Solis to 
expand access to Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and Automated External 
Defibrillators (AEDs) training to reflect the access recommended by our preventative 
healthcare professionals, which should consider the size and scale of the facilities.  The 
motion directed: 

1. Direct the Chief Executive Office (CEO), working with health experts and County
Counsel to develop a Countywide policy on the usage, maintenance, and
placement of AEDs and documentation of training for Hands-Only CPR, and
present the policy to the Board for consideration and adoption within 90 days.

2. While the above policy is being developed, direct the CEO, in consultation with all
relevant County department facility proprietors, to evaluate the current state and
needs for AEDs at our County facilities.  The evaluation must include:



Each Supervisor 
March 16, 2023 
Page 2 

a) Assessment of existing AEDs at County facilities and ensuring AEDs are
appropriately located and in good working order in accordance with national
recommendations.

b) Identification of the County’s need for additional AEDs at County facilities.

c) Recommendations based on the evaluation of the current state and need for
additional placement of AEDs, which considers the final proposed County
policy, including cost estimates to meet the identified needs.

3. Direct the Department of Human Resources (DHR), working with the
Department of Health Services (DHS) and health experts and in consultation with
labor partners, to report back in 45 days with the timeline and plan for
implementing a mandatory training for all County employees to become CPR
and AED-certified.

Therefore, DHR conferred with DHS and CEO Labor to assess current CPR and AED 
training certifications and provide recommendations for future training of the County 
workforce.  

PREVIOUS CPR TRAINING CERTIFICATION IN THE COUNTY WORKFORCE 

A previous Board Motion by Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas – Encouraging Employee 
Participation in PulsePoint Application to Save Lives – was approved on September 16, 
2014.  This motion directed the Fire Chief, Chief Executive Officer, Director of Health 
Services, and Director of Internal Services to develop and implement a plan to train 
County employees in Hands-Only CPR, to conduct an inventory of all AEDs located in 
County facilities, and to register the location of these devices with the PulsePoint AED 
Application.  Approximately 2,600 County employees were trained and certified in 
Hands-Only CPR through this effort.  

Additionally, certain County departments have existing CPR certification requirements for 
their staff (e.g., Health, Fire, Mental Health, Public Health, and Sheriff) as part of their job 
requirements. DHR and DHS advise that such staff be exempted from any new County 
training requirement and defer to the standards set forth by the requirements of their 
specific County position.  

FEASIBILITY OF COUNTYWIDE CPR CERTIFICATION 

Based on Health Agency Standards, CPR certification requires in-person training from 
the American Heart Association or the American Red Cross.  Following the initial 
three-hour certification training, a one-and-a-half-hour recertification training is also 
required every two years. 

In-person certification training is provided at a cost of approximately $50 per person, 
which could equate to initial upfront costs of up to approximately $5.5 million to train the 



Each Supervisor 
March 16, 2023 
Page 3 

current County workforce.  In addition, there will also be a backfill cost for those 
departments that must provide continuous services which may come in the form of 
overtime, onboarding of additional part-time staff or registry use, as well as a decrease of 
work productivity countywide as individuals need to transition to this additional training. 
Biennial (recurring) recertification costs thereafter could be in excess of $3.3-$5.5 million 
(at $30-$50 per person), in addition to the additional costs of ongoing staff backfill and 
productivity impact.  There would also be undetermined additional initial training costs 
associated with new County hires in perpetuity.  

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ACHIEVING BOARD DIRECTIVE GOALS 

As a potential alternative to mandatory training of all workforce members, a feasible, 
multi-pronged CPR training approach was developed jointly by DHR and DHS, along with 
CEO Labor1.  This training plan would allow the County to efficiently reach all County 
employees and also provide life-saving information in County worksites at the moment of 
need: 

a) Post illustrated instructional posters at each County work site with step-by-step
guidelines for performing Hands-Only CPR.

b) Provide all County employees with video training from the American Heart
Association or the American Red Cross on Hands-Only CPR, which would be
distributed via an annual email campaign during American Heart Month (February).
Include information on basic emergency response until paramedics arrive.

c) Secure in-person training classes through the American Heart Association or the
American Red Cross and provide certification training to interested employees,
with session availability dependent on the extent of funding made available through
the County.

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

The proposed timeline for the above multi-pronged CPR training approach described 
above is as follows: 

a) Post illustrated instructional posters at each County work site with step-by-step
instructions for performing Hands-Only CPR by June 30, 2023.

b) Provide all County employees with video training from the American Heart
Association or the American Red Cross on Hands-Only CPR, which would be
distributed via an annual email campaign during American Heart Month (February).

1 Pending the approval of the proposed training plan by the Board, DHR will work with CEO Labor to 
meet with SEIU and the Coalition of County Unions to present the development and deployment of this 
training initiative. 



Each Supervisor 
March 16, 2023 
Page 4 

Include information on basic emergency response until paramedics arrive by 
June 30, 2023. 

c) Secure in-person training classes through the American Heart Association or the
American Red Cross and provide certification training to interested employees,
with session availability dependent on CEO funding by December 28, 2023.

Due to the significant variations between AED models, the AED training plan is pending 
equipment purchase and the establishment of policies and procedures under Directives 
one and two.  Additional training may also be needed to assist employees in determining 
when to use CPR versus an AED.  While many AED models include voice-narrated 
instructions, additional instructional posters could be distributed for County worksites 
along with an annual email campaign that provides video training on general AED usage. 

Should you have questions or require additional information, please contact 
Rodney Collins, Assistant Director, Human Resources, at (213) 974-2449 or 
rcollins@hr.lacounty.gov.  

LMG:CRG:PAM 
RC:ML:DM 

c: Executive Office, Board of Supervisors 
Chief Executive Office 
Human Resources  
Health Services 

S:WED/LMG and CRG to Each Supervisor CPR and AED – 03-15-2023 

mailto:rcollins@hr.lacounty.gov

	Final Agenda 4.19.2023  
	Final Agenda 4.19.2023  

	2023-05-02 Request to Accept Compromise Offers of Settlement Full Package
	2023-05-02 Request to Accept Compromise Offers of Settlement BL FINAL.pdf
	DRAFT
	REQUEST TO ACCEPT COMPROMISE OFFER OF SETTLEMENT
	FOR PATIENT SEEN UNDER THE
	TRAUMA CENTER SERVICE AGREEMENT
	IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:
	IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS
	FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING
	FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
	IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

	2023-05-02 Accept Compromise of Settlement 23-04-A 3-29-2023.pdf
	JUSTIFICATION


	2023-05-02 Radiology Equipment Full Package
	Draft BL 5-2-23 (#06817) Execute MOU with LACOE and TCSS
	Draft BL 5-2-23 (#06894) Accept SA CDPH Syphilis Outbreak Strategy Project
	Draft BL_Revised Annual Update_050223
	Draft BL_CCE Preservation Program_050223
	Fact Sheet for 4-12-23 Health Cluster Meeting re Proposed Board Policy for AEDs and CPR_6-27-23 Board Agenda_revised 4-11-23 - FINAL (1)
	AED and Hands-Only CPR Policy [revised 4-11-23].pdf
	0.000





